
1 

 

Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting and Joint City Council, 
Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom 
Public Financing Authority, the Folsom Ranch Financing 
Authority, and the South of 50 Parking Authority Meeting 
City Council Chambers | 50 Natoma Street, Folsom CA  95630 

December 12, 2023 
6:30 PM 

Welcome to Your City Council Meeting 

We welcome your interest and involvement in the city’s legislative process. This agenda includes 

information about topics coming before the City Council and the action recommended by city staff. You 

can read about each topic in the staff reports, which are available on the city website and in the Office 

of the City Clerk. The City Clerk is also available to answer any questions you have about City Council 

meeting procedures. 

Participation 

If you would like to provide comments to the City Council, please: 

 Fill out a blue speaker request form, located at the back table. 

 Submit the form to the City Clerk before the item begins. 

 When it’s your turn, the City Clerk will call your name and invite you to the podium. 

 Speakers have three minutes, unless the presiding officer (usually the mayor) changes that 

time. 

Reasonable Accommodations 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

How to Watch 

The City of Folsom provides three ways to watch a City Council meeting: 

In Person Online On TV 

 

  
City Council meetings take place at 

City Hall, 50 Natoma Street 
Watch the livestream and replay past 

meetings on the city website, 
www.folsom.ca.us 

Watch live and replays of meetings on 
Sac Metro Cable TV, Channel 14 

More information about City Council meetings is available at the end of this agenda 

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/Downloads/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us
http://www.folsom.ca.us/


2 

 
 

 

 

 

 

City Council Regular Meeting and Joint City Council, Folsom Redevelopment 
Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority, the Folsom Ranch 

Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking Authority Meeting 
City Council Chambers | 50 Natoma Street, Folsom CA  95630 
 www.folsom.ca.us   

Tuesday, December 12, 2023 6:30 PM 
 

Rosario Rodriguez, Mayor 

 

YK Chalamcherla, Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino, Councilmember 
Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember Anna Rohrbough, Councilmember 

 
AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: 

Council/Boardmembers:     Chalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rohrbough, Aquino, Rodriguez 

The City Council has adopted a policy that no new item will begin after 10:30 p.m.  Therefore, if you are 
here for an item that has not been heard by 10:30 p.m., you may leave, as the item will be continued to 
a future Council Meeting. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

AGENDA UPDATE 

CONVENE JOINT MEETING 

Joint meeting of the City Council, Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom Public 
Financing Authority, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking Authority 

JOINT MEETING CONSENT CALENDAR: 

1. Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom 
Public Financing Authority, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking 
Authority Monthly Investment Reports for the Month of September 2023 
 
 

 

Page 2

http://www.folsom.ca.us/


3 

JOINT MEETING PUBLIC HEARING: 

2. Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom 
Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 

i. Resolution No. 11147 – A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Authorizing the 
Issuance of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2024, the Execution of an Indenture 
Providing therefor, Authorizing the Execution of a Local Obligation Purchase Contract, and 
Authorizing Necessary Actions and the Execution of other Documents in Connection therewith 

ii. Resolution No. 011 - Folsom Ranch FA – A Resolution of the Governing Board of the Folsom 
Ranch Financing Authority Authorizing the Issuance, Sale, and Delivery of not to exceed 
$12,500,000 Aggregate Principal Amount of City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 
(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2024; Approving 
the Form and Substance of a Trust Agreement, Authorizing Modifications thereof and Execution 
and Delivery as Modified; Approving a Preliminary Official Statement, Authorizing Changes 
thereto and Execution and Delivery of an Official Statement to be Derived therefrom; Approving 
a Local Obligation Purchase Contract and a Bond Purchase Contract and Execution and 
Delivery of each, and Authorizing Related Actions Necessary to Implement the Proposed 
Financing 

ADJOURN JOINT MEETING 

RECONVENE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS: 

3. Resolution of Commendation Honoring Kikkoman Foods on their 25th Anniversary 

4. Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming December 16, 2023 as Wreaths 
Across America Day 

5. Declaration of the Folsom City Council Reaffirming Its Commitment to Promoting an Inclusive, 
Safe Environment For All 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 

Members of the public are entitled to address the City Council concerning any item within the Folsom 
City Council's subject matter jurisdiction.  Public comments are limited to no more than three 
minutes.  Except for certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one 
motion.  City Councilmembers may pull an item for discussion. 

6. Receive and File SB-165 Annual Reports for Community Facilities Districts No. 13, No. 14, No. 
2013-1, No. 16, No. 17, No. 18, No. 19, No. 20, No. 21, No. 22, and No. 23 to Comply with the 
Local Agency Special Tax Bond and Accountability Act 

7. Resolution No. 11134 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Sewer Easement 
and Maintenance Agreements between the Property Owners of 115 Natoma Street, 210 Natoma 
Street, 216 Natoma Street, 308 Natoma Street, 310 Natoma Street, and 312 Natoma Street and 
the City of Folsom for the Construction of the Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and Replacement 
Project and Appropriation of Funds 

Page 3



4 

8. Resolution No. 11135 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Purchase 
Agreement with 911 Vehicle for Full Emergency Response Equipment and Emergency Lighting 
Installation for Four Fire Department Dodge Ram Pickup Trucks 

9. Resolution No. 11136 – A Resolution Accepting the AB1600 Development Fees Annual Report 
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2023 

10. Resolution No. 11137 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Causey Consulting for Professional Consulting Services for the Preparation of the Sewer 
System Management Plan and Audit for Compliance with Statewide Waste Discharge 
Requirements 

11. Resolution No. 11141 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to execute a Communications 
Site License Agreement with Comcast Cable Communications Management, LLC, a Delaware 
Limited Liability Company, at 403 Stafford Street 

12. Resolution No. 11143 – A Resolution Rejecting All Proposals for Maintenance of Parks, Trails & 
Pet Stations, and Public Works Areas 

13. Resolution No. 11144 -  A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Public Trail 
Easement for the Oak Parkway Trail between the Property Owner of 339 Montrose Drive and the 
City of Folsom  

14. Resolution No. 11145 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Public Trail 
Easement for the Oak Parkway Trail between the Property Owner of 337 Montrose Drive and the 
City of Folsom 

15. Resolution No. 11146 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Public Trail 
Easement for the Oak Parkway Trail between the Property Owner of 341 Montrose Drive and the 
City of Folsom 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

16. Resolution No. 11139 - A Resolution to Adopt an Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Specific 
Plan EIR/EIS and Approve a Specific Plan Amendment to Modify FPASP Table A.7 
(Transportation, Communication, Infrastructure) to Add “Electronic Readerboard Sign” as a 
Conditionally Permitted Use on a Specific Property (Parcel 61 - APN No. 072-3190-052) Located 
at the Southwest Corner of the Intersection of U.S. Highway 50 and East Bidwell Street within 
the Folsom Plan Area  (to be continued to the January 9, 2024 meeting) 

NEW BUSINESS: 

17. Presentation on the City’s General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance (Reserves) Policy and 
Direction to Staff 

SELECTION OF MAYOR AND VICE MAYOR FOR 2024: 

18. Selection of Mayor and Vice Mayor 

COUNCIL REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council will be in recess during the second half of December.  The next regular meeting is 
scheduled for January 9, 2024. 

 

Page 4



5 

 

NOTICE:  Members of the public are entitled to directly address the City Council concerning any item 

that is described in the notice of this meeting, before or during consideration of that item.  If you wish to 

address Council on an issue, which is on this agenda, please complete a blue speaker request card, and 

deliver it to a staff member at the table on the left side of the Council Chambers prior to discussion of the 

item.  When your name is called, stand to be recognized by the Mayor and then proceed to the podium.  If 

you wish to address the City Council on any other item of interest to the public, when the Mayor asks if 

there is any “Business from the Floor,” follow the same procedure described above.  Please limit your 

comments to three minutes or less. 

 

NOTICE REGARDING CHALLENGES TO DECISIONS:   Pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, 

including without limitation, California Government Code Section 65009 and or California Public 

Resources Code Section 21177, if you wish to challenge in court any of the above decisions (regarding 

planning, zoning and/or environmental decisions), you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 

someone else raised at the public hearing(s) described in this notice/agenda, or in written 

correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to remove 

or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally 

abusive while addressing said Council, and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

PERSONS INTERESTED IN PROPOSING AN ITEM FOR THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SHOULD 

CONTACT A MEMBER OF THE CITY COUNCIL. 

The meeting of the Folsom City Council is being telecast on Metro Cable TV, Channel 14, the 

Government Affairs Channel, and will be shown in its entirety on the Friday and Saturday following the 

meeting, both at 9 a.m.  The City does not control scheduling of this telecast and persons interested in 

watching the televised meeting should confirm this schedule with Metro Cable TV, Channel 14. The City 

of Folsom provides live and archived webcasts of regular City Council meetings.  The webcasts can be 

found on the online services page of the City's website www.folsom.ca.us. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 

will be made available at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, 

California and at the Folsom Public Library located at 411 Stafford Street, Folsom, California during 

normal business hours. 

  

Page 5

http://www.folsom.ca.us/
https://municode.sharepoint.com/sites/WebMeetingsTeam/Shared%20Documents/_Customers/California/Folsom%20California/Meetings%20Project/Templates/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us


6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank  

to facilitate double-sided printing.  

 

 

Page 6



 

 

Folsom City Council 
Staff Report 

  
 

1 
 

MEETING DATE: 

 

12/12/2023 

AGENDA SECTION: 

 

Joint Meeting Consent Calendar 

SUBJECT: Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment 
Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority, the 
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking 
Authority Monthly Investment Reports for the Month of 
September 2023 
 

FROM: Finance Department 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

 

The Finance Department recommends that the City Council receive and file the City of Folsom, 
the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority, the 
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking Authority monthly 
Investment Reports for the month of September 2023. 
 
BACKGROUND / ISSUE 

 

Under the Charter of the City of Folsom and the authority granted by the City Council, the 
Finance Director is responsible for investing the unexpended cash of the City Treasury.  The 
primary objectives of the City’s investment policy are to maintain the safety of investment 
principal, provide liquidity to meet the short and long-term cash flow needs of the City, and 
earn a market-average yield on investments.  The City’s portfolio is managed in a manner 
responsive to the public trust and is consistent with state and local laws and the City’s 
investment policy.   The Finance Department hereby submits the investment reports for the 
City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing 
Authority, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking Authority for 
the month of September 2023 
 

 
 
 

Page 7

12/12/2023 Item No.1.



 2

POLICY / RULE 

 

1. Section 3.30.010(a) of the Folsom Municipal Code states “the term ‘city’ shall 
encompass the city of Folsom, the Folsom community redevelopment agency, and all 
other agencies and instrumentalities of the city under either the direct or indirect control 
of the city council, and this chapter regulates the investment of all moneys of those 
agencies.” 

 
2. Section 3.30.030(f) of the Folsom Municipal Code states that “the city’s chief 

investment officer shall each month submit an investment report to the city council, 
which report shall include all required elements as prescribed by California 
Government code section 53646.”   

 
3. California Government Code, Sections 53601 through 53659 sets forth the state law 

governing investments for municipal governments in California. 
 

4. Section 3.30.020(g) of the Folsom Municipal Code states that “all city cash shall be 
consolidated into one general bank account as set out in this code and invested on a 
pooled concept basis.  Interest earnings shall be allocated to all city funds and subfunds 
according to fund and subfund cash and investment balance on at least a quarterly 
basis.” 

 

ANALYSIS 

 

Overview 

The City has diversified investments in accordance with the City Investment Policy and 
Government Code.  The City of Folsom’s total cash and investments are invested on a pooled 
basis as required by the Folsom Municipal Code.   
 
The Portfolio Summary of the City’s current report includes a “Pooled Equity Section” 
identifying the Redevelopment Successor Agency’s (RDSA) and Folsom Public Financing 
Authority’s (FPFA) portion of the investment pool.  The RDSA and FPFA list these amounts 
under “Cash” in their respective sections.  Currently, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority 
(FRFA) has no funds invested in Pooled Equity. 
 

City of Folsom 

 

Total Cash and Investments 

The following graph illustrates the City’s monthly cash and investment balances for fiscal 
years 2020 through 2024.  Monthly fluctuations in cash and investments are the result of typical 
receipt of revenues less expenditures for operations, debt service, and capital improvements.  
As of September 30, 2023, the City’s cash and investments totaled $251,882,893; an increase 
of $57,346,664 (29%) from September 30, 2022. 
 

Page 8

12/12/2023 Item No.1.



 3

 
 
The following chart shows the City’s monthly cash and investment balances and percentage 
change for Fiscal Year 2023-24 along with the yearly dollar and percentage changes. 
 

 
 

The City’s projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by 
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments.  In addition, in accordance 
with Section 3.30.020(c) of the Municipal Code, less than 50% of the City’s total cash is 
invested for a period longer than one year. 
 

Total City Cash and Investments

2023-24

Monthly 

Change 2022-23

Monthly 

Change

Yearly $ 

Change

Yearly % 

Change

Jul  $      257,726,288  $    199,093,877 58,632,411$     29%

Aug  $      250,130,252 -3%  $    193,398,740 -3% 56,731,511$     29%

Sep  $      251,882,783 1%  $    194,536,119 1% 57,346,664$     29%

Page 9

12/12/2023 Item No.1.



 4

 
 
Investment Performance  
The City’s Portfolio Management Summary report for the month of September 2023 is 
presented in Attachment 1 to this report.  Portfolio investment earnings (including pooled 
equity earnings for the RDSA and FPFA) for the three-month quarter ended September 30, 
2023 totaled $2,533,563.  The total rate of return of the investment portfolio for the same period 
was 3.92%. 
 
The following graph illustrates the total dollar amount and breakdown by investment category 
for September 30, 2022 and September 30, 2023.  This graph lists the investments by book 
value 
 

Page 10

12/12/2023 Item No.1.



 5

 
. 
A detailed listing of the portfolio holdings as of September 30, 2023 is included in Attachment 
2 to this report. 
 
The Local Government Investment Pool (LAIF) yield typically moves in the same direction as 
market yields, but is less volatile, lagging somewhat behind market moves.  This can be seen 
in the chart on the next page, illustrating the historical monthly change in yield from July 2021 
through September 2023 for LAIF and two-year US Treasury securities.  The effective rate of 
return for the City Portfolio is also included. 
 
Beginning March 17, 2022 the Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) has increased the 
Federal Funds Rate eleven times, most recently on July 26, 2023 to a rate of 5.25%-5.50%, up 
from 0.00-0.25% at the start of 2022.  Since then there has been a pause, with policymakers 
suggesting rates could still increase.  However, Fed Funds futures markets are priced 

Page 11

12/12/2023 Item No.1.



 6

anticipating a 1.00% decline in Fed Funds rates in 2024.  The rapid tightening over the past 
year and a half has curbed inflation to a degree - October CPI was 3.20% year over year, and 
is still well above the FOMC’s stated target rate of 2.0%.   CPI is a lagging indicator, and the 
cumulative effect of the FOMC’s tightening still may not be reflected in this number.  The rise 
in interest rates has exerted considerable pressure on financial institutions, leading to the 
largest bank failures since 2008, and further rate increases would almost certainly see more 
banks fail.  Given the slowdown in inflation from the 40 year high in 2022, the expectation is 
for rates to remain unchanged in the near term, with easing to occur in mid-to-late 2024.   In 
addition, another factor impacting future rate increases is the labor market, which  showed a 
jobless rate of 3.9% in October.  While still low by historic standards, this is a jump of 0.5% 
since April, and could be a sign that tighter credit conditions have finally begun to impact 
employment, and may further lead the FOMC to be hesitant to consider future tightening. 
 

 
 
A listing of transactions for the first quarter of fiscal year 2024 is included in Attachment 3 to 
this report. 
 

Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency 

 

Total Cash and Investments 

The RDSA had total cash and investments of $3,529,766 as of September 30, 2023.  This is a 
decrease of $3,747,024 (51%) since September 30, 2022.  The cash held by the RDSA is 
comprised of city-held funds, as well as 2011 bond proceeds to be utilized for housing and 
non-housing projects.  These proceeds held by the Agency are broken out individually in the 
Portfolio Management Summary in Attachment 1.  

Page 12

12/12/2023 Item No.1.



 7

 
The following table and graph illustrate the monthly balances and their respective percentage 
changes for the reporting period.  Monthly fluctuations in cash and investments are the result 
of typical receipt of revenues less expenditures for operations, debt service, and capital 
improvements. 
 

 
 

 
 
The RDSA’s projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by 
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments. 
 
Investment Performance 

The RDSA’s Portfolio Management Summary report for the month of September 2023 is 
presented in Attachment 1.  The RDSA’s investment earnings for the three-month quarter 
ended September 30, 2023 totaled $34,915.  The effective rate of return for the RDSA 
investment portfolio for the same time period is 3.81%. 
 

 

 

Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency

2023-24

Monthly 

Change 2022-23

Monthly 

Change

Yearly $ 

Change

Yearly % 

Change

Jul 6,587,646$          10,299,687$      (3,712,041)$      -36%

Aug 3,529,550$          -46% 7,276,599$        -29% (3,747,049)$      -51%

Sep 3,529,766$          0% 7,276,790$        0% (3,747,024)$      -51%

Page 13

12/12/2023 Item No.1.



 8

Folsom Public Financing Authority 

 
Total Cash and Investments 

The FPFA cash and investments totaled $29,229,473 as of September 30, 2023.  This is a 
decrease of $3,364,450 (10%) from September 30, 2022.   Monthly fluctuations in cash and 
investments are the result of typical receipt of debt service repayment revenues and the 
subsequent debt service expenditures.  The following table and graph illustrate the monthly 
balances and their respective percentage changes for the reporting period. 
 

 
 

 
 
The FPFA’s projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by 
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments. 
 
Investment Performance 
The FPFA’s Portfolio Management Summary report for the month of September 2023 is 
presented in attachment 1.  The FPFA’s investment earnings for the three-month quarter ended 
September 30, 2023 totaled $216,032.  The effective rate of return for the FPFA investment 
portfolio for the same time period is 2.79%. 

Folsom Public Financing Authority

2023-24

Monthly 

Change 2022-23

Monthly 

Change

Yearly $ 

Change

Yearly % 

Change

Jul 32,214,456$        38,743,267$      (6,528,812)$      -17%

Aug 32,214,464$        0% 38,743,274$      0% (6,528,810)$      -17%

Sep 29,229,473$        -9% 32,593,924$      -16% (3,364,450)$      -10%

Page 14

12/12/2023 Item No.1.



 9

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority 

 

Total Cash and Investments 

The FRFA cash and investments totaled $125,945,000 as of September 30, 2023, an increase 
of $10,215,000 from the prior year.  This increase is due to the issuance and purchase of   
$11,225,000 Community Facilities District No. 20 Local Obligations on December 8, 2022.  
The only other activity within FRFA was the maturing of $1,010,000 of local obligations held 
by FRFA on September 1, 2023. 
The Authority’s projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by 
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments. 
 
Investment Performance 

The FRFA’s Portfolio Management Summary report for the month of September 2023 is 
presented in attachment 1.  The FRFA’s investment earnings for the three-month quarter ended 
September 30, 2023 totaled $1,312,573.  The effective rate of return for the FRFA investment 
portfolio for the same time period is 4.77%. 
 
South of 50 Parking Authority 

 

Total Cash and Investments 

The South of 50 Parking Authority cash and investments totaled $0 as of September 30, 2023. 
 
The Authority’s projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by 
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments. 
 
Investment Performance 

There is no investment activity for the South of 50 Parking Authority. 
 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

1. City of Folsom, Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, Folsom Public Financing 
Authority, and Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Portfolio Management Summary 
September 2023 

2. City of Folsom Portfolio Holdings as of September 30, 2023 
3. City of Folsom Transaction Summary, First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2024 

 
Submitted, 
 
 
       
Stacey Tamagni, Finance Director 

    Agency Finance Officer 
    Folsom Public Financing Authority Treasurer 
    Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Treasurer  
    South of 50 Parking Authority Treasurer 

Page 15

12/12/2023 Item No.1.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 16

12/12/2023 Item No.1.



ll.i. icD rL, fi (cD-Mt

Gity of Folsom
Combined City of Folsom, Redevelopment

Successor AgencY, FPFA & FRFA
Portfolio Summaries

September 30,2023

50 Natoma St,

Folsom, CA 95630

(s16) 461{080

%of
Portfolio

Book
Value

Malket
Value

Days to Accrued
lntsrostof Folsom

Cash

Certilicate Of Deposit

Commercial Paper

Corporate Bond

Local Government lnveslmeni Pool

Money Market

Municipal Bond

US Agencies

US Treasuries

YTM Cost
3J18o/o

3192o/o

5.5390/6

3-498o/o

4.852o/o

5.300%

2.904%

3.8220/"

L2A50h

Face Amounu
Shares CostValue

1,42A,127.O0

17,463,912,43

19,349,395.82

26,325,614.40

42,391,600,89

6,749,559.44

61,371 ,96935
70,804,680.65

a774.493 06

1,42AJ27.0O

17,484,000.00
20,000,000"00

25,500,000"00

42,391,600.89

6,749,559.44

63,20s,000.00

71,1 00,000.00

9.000,000.00

1,428,127 .OO

17,468,805,29

19,708,415_9s

26,343,236.32

42.391,600.89

6,749,559.44

61,61 1,548"68

70,9 t 2,368.27

8.933.212.31

Book

valuo
$ 251,882,783,30

3,526,644.38

137,446.47

t 255,546,874.f5

Book

value

1,428,127.OO

16,s10,38121

19,703,425.00

25,213,890.00

42,391,600"89

6,749,s59-44

58,973,565.40

69,176,133.00

8.908.640.00

olo ol
Portblio

111,6s1 39

202,218?9
140,247 19

Acc?ued

lnter€st

I
922

96

647

1

1

931

s74

88

0_55

6.78

776
10.28

16.44

2.62

24.51

27.57

3.49

$ 254,6s9,353.14 $ 255,545,874.15 $ 249,455,321'94

304,546 10

57 t,565"98

730.A7

526 $ 1,330,960.32 100.00

lnterest Total Rate

of Return

3.918% $ 257,658,287.33

Pooled
City of Folsom Cash and lnveslments (excluding RDSA, FPFA & FRFA amounts)

Redevelopment Sucessor Agency (included in RDSA lnvestment Report)

Public Financing Authority (included in PFA lnvestment Report)

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (included in FRFA lnvestment Report)

Total Pooled Equity

98.57Yo

1.380/0

0"05o/o

0^00%

100.00%

Ma.ket
Value

Days to Vo ot
Portfollo

131.5'1

a7s%
4.81%

$ 2,533,563.11

34,91479

216,032.39

Succegsor
Cash

Non-Housing 201 1A Proceeds

Housing 2011B Proceeds

Money Market

Total , AveEge

Folsom Public
Cash

Money Market

Municipal Bond

Total , Avorage

Folsom Ranch
Municipal Bond

Total , Avetage

Flnancino Authorifu YTM

Financlno Authoritv YTM

YTM Cost

Face AmounU

shares cost Value

122,472.21

2,591,295.00

u2,a77 17

3j2175
$ 3,529,766.13

GostValue

137,446.47

2,026.79

CcttValue

3.831% $ 3,529,766.'13

Cost

Face Amount
Sharos

$ 3,529,766.13 5 3,529,766.13

3,830%

3.830%

3.8300/6

5.220%

3.830%

5 23oo/o

2.760alo

122,472.21

2,591,295"00

812,877'17

3,12175

137,446.47

2.02619
29,090.000.00

't22,472.21

2,591,295pO

812,877.17

3,121.75

Book

value
137,446-47

2,02679

Book
Value

122,47221

2,591,29s.00

812,877.17

3,12175

Market
Value

137,M6 47

2,026.79

Market
Value

Days to

Days to
Maturity

Accrued

lntsrest

Accrued
lntotesit

3.47

73,41

23.03

0,09

{00.00

%ot
Portfolio

a-47

0.01

99.52

100.00

%ol
Portfolio

't00,00

$

td Matudtv
,|

I
2275 64.667.34

2. s 29,229,473,26 s 29,22s,473.26 s 29,229,473.26 I 29'229173-26 2264 9 64667.34

rA Cost
Face Amounu

Sharss

(-'
'.i 

I
-ort,*':7 *'"*

4.72A% 125,945,000-00 125,945,000.00 7217 479,650.93
4.728% g 125,945,000.00

November 28. 2023

Stacey Tamagni, Finance Direclor Date

125,945,000.00 t t25,9115,000.00 $,t2s,9'15,000.00 721t J 479,650,93 100.00

Page 17

12/12/2023 Item No.1.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 18

12/12/2023 Item No.1.



City of Folsom

Portfolio Holdings
Portfolio Holdings for lnv Report
Report Format: By Transaction
Portfolio / Report Group: City of Folsom

Group By: Secudty TYPe

Average By: Face Amount / Shares
As of 9/30/2023

De€cription lsBuer
Coupon

Rate
Face

AmUShares

olo oe

Portfollo

0.000 428j27 00 017Wells FarsorA/ells Faroo Cash
5,310 1.000.000.00 0,39Wells Faroo
3.714 1.428.127.00 055iub Total / Averaqe cash

243.000.00 0.09Advia CU 5.250{dvia CU 5.25 91812026
0.104.600 249,000.00Alaska USA FCHusAFcH 4.631812028

4.950 249,000.00 0.10Alliantqlliant 4.95 12130 12027
2.950 246.000.00 0. 10Allv BankAllv Bank 2s5 121912025

0.1 0American Exoress National Eank 3.'t 50 246.000,00Bank 3.15 511112027
0,10\ustin Telco 5.050 248,000.0(Telco 5.05 1

243.000.00 0.09Bank of Hooe 5,250Bank of Hooe 5.25 911612024
5.000 248,000.00 0.10Bankers' Bank of the WestBankers' Bank of the West 5 3/30/2026
1,950 247.OOO,OO 0.10Barclays Bank1 212312027
4"200 244.000.00 0.09Blue Ridoe Bank NABankNA4.2Z28l2o28

244.000.00 0.09BMO Hanis Bank NA 4,600BMO Harris Bank NA 4,6 51812026
0.10BMW Bank of North America 2.500 246,000,00Bank
0.10Caoital One Bank (USA) NA 3,500 245,000.00One Bank NA3.57t27t2027
0.'103,500 245,000,00Capitial One NAOne NA 3.5 712712027

4.000 245,000.00 0.10Celtic BankCeltic Bank 4 1Ol712026
5 400 243.000,00 0.0!Charter Oak CUCharter Oak CU 5,4 2118t2O25
5.250 248.000.00 0.10Chartwav CU)hertwav CLi 5.25 7 I 1 412025

244.000.00 0.09CIBC Bank USA 4750Bank USA 4.7s 3124t2O28
0,10:omenitv Caoital Bank 2.600 249,000,00Comenitv Caoital Bank 2.6 4l'1412026

249.000.00 0,10onnexus 3.400Connexus 3.4 8115!2025
4.500 244,000.00 0.09Customers BankI ustomers Bank 4.5 6h 4 12028
3.200 246.000,00 0.10Discover Bank3.2 511912027
4.500 247.000.00 0.1(Dort Financialort Financial 4,5 1211612027

249.000,00 0.10Eaolebank 4-500Eaolebank 4.5 7 121 12025
0.10Eaolemark Savinos Bank 2.900 246,000.00Bank
0.09Enterorise Bank 4.350 244,000.00EnterDrise Bank 4.35 3l3l2o2a
0,103.550 245,000.00Essential FCUFCU 3.55 12t5t2023

5.250 243.000.0 0,0sFirst Bank Richmond:irst Bank Richmond 5,25712912024
4.850 244.000.00 0.0!:irst Familv FCUFirst Family FCU 4.85 111712025

0.09:irst Foundation Bank 4.700 244,000.00Foundation Bank 4.7 11t4t2027
0.09First National Bank of Middle Tennessee 4.500 244,000,00First National Bank of Middle Tennessee 4,5 5/1 1/2
0.10First National Bank Parasould 2.600 249,000.00First National Bank Paraoould 2.6 611Ol2O24

5.000 248.000.00 0.10General Electric CU51t3012024
3.1 00 249.000.00 0,10GreenState CUGreenstate CU 3-1 511412027
5.'150 248.000.00 0,1 0Harborstone CUcu 5.15712612024

0.09l.H. MississiDDi Vallev 5.500 243,000.005,5 9/1
0, 10,lonesboro State Bank 1.100 249,000.00State Bank 1.1 121812026
0.102"450 247,000.00Kearnev Bank2"4511t3012023

3.200 249.000.00 0.10Lafavette FCU512612026
4.350 244.000.00 0.01LCA Bank CoroLCA Bank Corp 4.35 1111812026

246.000,00 0,1 0Leader Bank NA 2.550Leader Bank NA2.55 412212025
0.10CU5

First CU 4.3521312028
2.200 247,000,00 0.10

Ltoettv Filst uu

Moroan Stanley Bank, NAN42.27
Moroan Stanlev Private Bank. NA 2.200 247.000.00 0.10NA2.27t18t2024

4.500 249.000.00 0.10Mountain America1 312023
245.000.00 0.10National CooDerative Bank, NA 3.4001212112023National Coooerative Bank
24S.000.00 0,10New York Communitv Bank 0.65(New York Communitv Bank 0.65 Sh0l2O24

0.103.250 246,000.00Oceanfirst Bank NAOceanfirst Bank NA 3,2571112024
5,1 00 243,000,00 0.09Pacific Western Banktacific Western Bank 5 1 61912028-24

0.10Pentaoon FCU 1.400 249.000.00211812025
4.600 244.000.00 0.09Pinnacle Bank)innacle Bank 4.6 51812026
4.500 247.000.00 010Pooular BankBank 4.5

Page 19

12/12/2023 Item No.1.



rrefened Bank 4 I I 30 I 2027 Preferred Bank 4.000 249.000.00 0-10

)roGrowth Bank 1.2 812212024 Procrowth Bank 1.200 249.000.0( 0.10

iz FCU 4.65 511112026 Raiz FCU 4 650 249,000.00 0,10

Bank 5 11 Renasant Bank 5.000 243,000.00 0.09

4.5 Saco & Biddeford Svq 4,500 244,000.00 009

afra National Bank of NY 2 312412025-22 Safra National Bank of NY 2.000 247,000.00 010

iandy Spring Bank 4.9 3116t2O26 iandv Sorino Bank 4.900 244,000 00 009

Sharonview FCU 3.400 249.000 00 0.10

3 85 912312027 State Bank of lndia Chicago 3.850 24s,000 00 0.10

Bank of lndia NY 3.35 6/1/2027 State Bank of lndia NY 3.350 245,000.00 0.10

Bank 5 Svnchronv Bank 5.000 243,000.00 0.09

ssB 1.2s 't211012026 Texas Exchanoe Bank. SSB 1.250 249,000.00 0.10

lnc.44 The Pitnev Bowes Bank. lnc. 4.400 244,000.00 0"0e

Third Federal S&L of Cleveland 3.5 612812027 Ihird Federal S&L of Cleveland 3.500 245.000.00 0,1 0

Tovota Financial Savinos Bank O.65 91912024 fovota Financial Savings Bank 0.650 249.000.00 0.10

Bank USA 2.9 41312024 UBS Bank USA 2.900 249,000.00 0,10

Financial 3.45 USAlliance Financial 3.450 245,000,00 010

Bank 4 75 212912024 Wakefield Co-Op Bank 4.750 244.OOO OO 0.09

Sub Totel / Averaoe Certificate Of Deposit 3.763 17.484.000.00 6.74

0970.000 2,500.000.00Credit Aoricole CIB NYctB NY 0 1111712023
o.970.000 2.500,000,00CreditAoricole CIB NYctB NY 0 311812024

0.000 2,500,000.00 0.97Credit Aoricole CIB NYcrB NY 0 314t2024
0.970.000 2.500,000 0(MUFG Bank Ltd/NYo 101412023Bank

2.500.000 0( 0.s7flUFG Bank Ltd/NY 0.000MUFG Bank Ltd/NY 0 111212023
2.500.000.00 0.970.000MUFG BANK Ltd/NYMIUFG Bank Ltd/NY 0 121412023
2.500.000-00 0.970.000Natixis NYNatixis NY 0 1/1a12o24

o.970.000 2,500.000.00Natixis NYNatixis NY 0 41312024
7.760.000 20,000,000.00:ommerciel PaoerTotal /

Bond
4.780.800 2.000.000.00ank of America Coro212412026-22

2.000.000 00 0.78iank of America Corp 4.000Bank of America Corp 4
2.000.000 00 0.781.220Bank of MontrealBank of Montreal'l -22 3117 12026'22

0.391,220 1.000.000.00Bank of MontrealBank of Monkeal 1.22 311712026-22
o.7a1 250 2,000,000 00Bank of MontrealBank of Montreal

3.000 2.000.000.0( 4.78Barclavs Bank PLC31011712023-22
1163,000.000 00tiorouo Global Markets 6.0006812012024-24

2.000.000.00 0.78
C itiqrouoGloba I Markets 4.000

OitiorouoGlobalM a*eE 4 81 1 512024-23
1.000.000.00 0.394.300lnter-American Oevel Bknter-American Devel Bk 4"3 611512028'26

0,782.650 2.000.000.00lntl. Finance Corplntl. Finance Coro. 2.65
0.3s2 950 1,000,000.00JP Morqan Chase & CoJP Morsan Chase & Co 2.95 101112026

4.754 1,000.000,00 0.39Morgan Stanley Bank NAMlorqan Stanlev Bank NA 4.754 412112026
1.500.000.00 0.581.200Pacific Life GF ll,2

116Roval Bank of Canada 4.847 3,000,000,003118t2025Bank of
1,000,000,00 0.39State Street Corp 5.1045t1812026 -25Street CorD Var

10.283.269 26,500,000.00ub Total / Averaoe Coroorate Bond

FFCB Bond
2.000.000.00 078FFCBFFCB 0"68 12i2012023 0.680

.750
1162.625 3,000,000.00FFCB

=FCB 
2625 AnOl2024

4.782.800 2,000,000.00FFCBFFCB 2.8 1112512025
0.783.875 2.000,000,00FFCBFFCB 3.875 2t142028
o.784,000 2.000.000,00FFCB
0.784.125 2.000.000.0t:FCB

2.000.000.00 0.78;FCB 4,2504.25 6Ht2U26
5.125 2 000.000.00 0,78FFCBFFCB 5.125 212812024

0395,33( 1,000.000,00FFCB:FcB 5 33 7124t2025-24
0.785.500 2.000.000,00FFCB5.5 1112512024

3-5'19 22.000.000,00 8.53
iub Total / Average FFCB Bond

FHLB BONd

o 6 12117t2024-21 FHLB 0,600 2.000.000.00 078

FHLB 0,7 412412025-22 FHLB 0.700 500.000,00 019

1 375 812612A26-22 FHLB 1.375 2.000,000,00 o78

tB2S7 712712026-2s FHLB 2,970 2.000.000.00 0.78

IHLB 3.000 2.000,000.00 078

3.2 -23
IHLB 3.200 1.000.000.00 0.39

47t24t2025-22 FHLB 4.000 1.250.000.00 0.48

=HLB 4.75 31812024 FHLB 4,750 2.000,000.00 078

Page 20

12/12/2023 Item No.1.



F H LB 4.89 I 2t 28t2023-23 FHLB 4.890 2.000.000.00 o.78

=HLB 5 2t15t2024 FHLB 5,000 2.000.000.00 0.78

5.O5 2t1512024-23 FHLB 5,050 3.000.000.00 116

5.OA71912024
IHLB 5.080 3.000.000,00 116

FHLB 5.250 1.000.000.00 0.3s

FHLB 5.65 912712024-23 FHLB 5.650 2.000.000.00 078

FHLB SteD 112712027-23 FHLB 1 500 2,000,000.00 o.78

FHLB SteD 21182025-22 FHLB 1 750 1,350,000.00 o-52

FHLB Sleo7l2gl2026-21 FHLB 0 900 2.000.000.00 0.78

FHLB Steo 812812024-22 FHLB 4.000 2,000.000.00 o78

Sub Total / Averase FHLB Bond 3.499 33,1 00.000.00 12.84

1.000.000.00 0.392.550FHLMCFH LMC 2.55'l 21 222023-22
0"393.450 1,000,000.00FHLMCFHLMC 345 e12512025-23

4.000 1,500.000.00 0.58FHLMCFHLMC 4 6t7t2027-23
1.000.000.00 0.39FHLMC 4.3001213012027-254

0.58FHLMC 5.050 1,500,000.005.O5712612024-29
0.785.35( 2,000,000.00FHLMC
0.785.500 2,000,000.00FHLMCFHLMC 5,5 6/18t2024-23
3.884.558 10,000,000.00Sub Total / Averaoe FHLMC Bond

:NMA Bond
:NMA 0.375 812512025

rNMA 0 375 0.

:NMA 5.1 25 212812024-23 FNMA 5_125 2.OOO,OOO.00l 0.78

:NMA 5.2 412612024-23 FNMA 5.200 2,000,000.001 0"78

Sub Tobl / AveraoE FNMA Bond 3.567 6.000,000'001 2-33

CLASS LGIP california CLASS 5.477 28.352.004.34 I 1.00

Pool 5.477 28.352.004.34 1 1.00

3,483.590 8,978,892.32ILArF-city
5.060.704.23 1.963 590lv lr-AlF-FPFAFA

5.443.590 1 4.039.596.55)uarterlv ITotal / lnvestmentLocal

Wells Faroo 5.2101 '1.666.986,66 0.65

Fa Wells Fargo 5.3301 5,082,572.78 197

,l Averade Monev Market 5 3001 6145559.44 2-62

Municlpal EOnr

Alameda Countv GOBS 3.46 81112027 Alameda Countv GOBs 3.460 500,000-00 0.19

GOBS '1.062 8/1 Alvord USD GOBS 1.062 1,280,000.00 0.50

ccD 2.016 8t112027 \ntelooe Vallev CCD 2.O16 1.000,000 00 0.39

sD 0.638 8/1 elmont-Redwood Shores SD 0.638 250.000.00 0.10

Beverlv Hills PFA Lease Rev 0.73 61112024 Beverly Hills PFA Lease Rev 0,730 300,000.00 o.12

Hills USD 2.45 Beverlv Hills USD 2.45A 1,000,000.00 0.39

Hills USD 2.6581112025 Severlv Hills USD 2,650 780.000.00 0.30

2.7 8t112026 Beverlv Hills USD 2.700 1.000.000.00 0.39

STDWR 0.751 1 CA St DWR Cent Val Proj a,751 1.865.000,00 o.72

Val 1.051 121112026-21 0A St DWR Cent Val Proi 1.051 1,62s,000.00 0.63

88 81112024RDASA TABS 1,1 Carson RDASATABS 1 .188 400,000,00 0.16

RDASA TABS 1,288 t2025 Carson ROASA TABs 1.288 300,000,00 o.12

Citrus CCD GOBs 0"669 81112024 Citrus CCD GOBs 0.669 400.000.00 0.16

o.819 81112025 litrus CCD GOBs 0.819 400.000.00 0,16

:olton USD o 88281112024 Colton USD 0.882 1.000.000.00 0.39

0,563 615,000.0( o.2411t'1t2024 CSU Revenue Bonds

ISU Revenue Bonds 0.685 111112024 CSU Revenue Bonds 0.685 500.000.00 0.1s

Davis RDA-SA T ABs 2 91 1 12025 Davis RDA-SA TABs 2,000 435,000.00 a17

Dixon USD 0,953 8/1/2025 Dixon USD 0.953 100.000,00 0.04

Dist221 Folsom Cordova USD lmo Dist 2 2.000 16s.000,00 0.06

Folsom Cordova USD lmp Dist 2 2.000 1,000,000.00Dis|221an12024
2210t112025 Folsom Cordova USD lmp Dist 2 2.OOO 1 040.000.00 040

Hooe ESD 0.97 8l'll2l25 Hooe ESD o.970 300,000,00 012

Hooe ESD 1 17 81112026 Hooe ESD 1 170 285,000.00 o.11

Joint USD 1

Altos SD

Livermore Vallev Joint USD 1.766 1.690.000.00 0_66

os Altos SD 1.000 2,000,000"00 0.7e

12026 Nlarin CCD GOs 0 679 900,000.00 0.35

Marin CCD GOs 3.37281112028-23 Marin GCD GOs 3.371 1,000,000.00 0.39

LJSD 1 S41 Moreno Valley USD 't 941 195,000,00 0.08

Moreno Vallev USD 2.203 anl2A25 Moreno Vallev USD 2203 100,000^00 0.04

Page 21

12/12/2023 Item No.1.



Vloreno ValleY USD 2.328 81112026 iloreno Valley USD 2.328 110.000 00 0,04

Vloroan Hill RDA-SA 0.961 9/1/2025 )rqan Hill RDA-SA 0.961 1.425.000,00 0,55

Novato RDA-SA 2.42 9l I 12027 Novato RDA-SA 2.420 1.545.000.00 0.60

Cak Grove SD o.561 81112024 0.561 600.000.00 0.23

Sxnard SD GOBS 0.82 81112024 Oxnard SD GOBS 0.820 345.000.00 0.13

Sxnard IJHSD 1.256 81112025 oxnard UHSD 1.25t 500.000.00 0.19

Palomar CCD O.AU U1l2O25 Palomar CCD 0.881 300,000.00 o.12

Pasadena Area CCD GOBS 5.3 Sl1l2O24 Pasadena Area CCD GOBS 5.300 1,000,000.00 0.39

Pittsburq USD 0.67 81112024 Pittsburs USD 0.670 680,000.00 0.

Rancho Santiaoo CCD GOBs 0.634 91112024 Rancho Santiago CCD GOBS 0.634 1,000,000 00 0"39

Sacramento Reo. Sanitation District 1.042 12111202 Sacramento Req. Sanitation District 1.O42 2.305.000.00 0.89

San Bernardino CCD 0.605 81112024 San Bernardino CCD 0.605 1.000.000.00 0.39

San Jose Everoreen CCD 0.921 91112025 San Jose Everoreen CCD 0.921 1,000,000.00 0,39

San Jose RDA-SA 3.176 81112026 San Jose RDA-SA 3.176 2,'170,000.0 0.84

San Jose RDA-SA 3226 81112027 San Jose RDA-SA 3.226 1,500.000.00 0.5

San Jose RDA-SA 3,226 El1l2o27 Sen Jose RDA-SA 3.226 1.000,000.00 0.39

San Jose USD 1 014 81112027 San Jose USD 't o14 700.000.00 a.27

Santa Ana Comm RDA-SA 3.967 91112027 Santa Ana Comm RDA-SA 3.967 1,485,000.00 0.58

Santa Clarita PFA Lease Rev 0.976 61112024-20 Santa Clarita PFA Lease Rev 0.976 355,000.00 o.1A

anta Clarita PFA Lease Rev 1.176 61112025-20 Sanla Clarita PFA Lease Rev 1.176 360,000.00 o.14

St, of Texas GOB's 3.011 '101112026-25 St of Texas GOB'S 3.01 1 2.000.000.00 o.7

St. ofTexas GOBS 5 101112027 St. of Texas GOBs 5.000 785.000.00 0,30

State of California GO 1 .7 21112028 State of California GO 1 700 2.000.000.00 0.78

State of California GO 2.375 101112026 State of California GO 2.375 1.600.000.00 0.62

Slaie of California GO 2.375 101112026 State of California GO 2.375 815,000.00 o.32

State of Califomia GO 4.846 31112027 state of California GO 4,846 1.000.000.00 0.3s

State of California GO 5.22231112024 State of California GO 5.222 1.000.000.00 0.39

Sbte of Delaware GOB'S 4.45 71112028 State of Delaware GOB'S 4^450 1.500.000.00 0.58

Sulohur Sorinos USD 5.285 91112025 Sulohur Sprinss USD 5.285 265.000.00 0.10

IJC Reoents GRBs Ser AX 3.0A3 7 nl2925 UC Reoents GRBs SerAX 3.O53 985 000,00 0.38

IIC Reoents GRBS Ser AX 3.06371112025 LJC Reoents GRBS SerAX 3,063 2,000,000.00 o78
llC Reoents GRBs Ser BF 0-833 511512024-24 UC Resenis GRBs Ser BF 0.833 250,000.00 0.10

UC Reoents GRBS Ser BG 1 316 511512027 UC Reqents GRBs Ser BG 1.316 1.000,000.00 0.39

UC Reoents MCPRBs Ser M 2.659 511512028 UC Reqents MCPRBS Ser M 2.65r 900.000.00 0.35

Yosemite CCD 0.804 81112024 Yosemite CCD 0,804 500,000,00 0.19

Yosemite CCD 1.35 81112026 Yosemite CCD 1-350 680,000.00 0.26

Yosemite CCD 1.35 81112026 Yosemite CCD 1.350 820,000,00 o.32

Yosemite CCD 1,44 81112024 Yosemite CCD 'l,440 300,000.01 o.12

Yosemite CCD 1.689 81112025 Yosemite CCD 1.689 750,000.00 0.29

Yosemite CCO''.91 2 8l I 12026 Yosemite CCD 1.912 250.000.00 0.10

Yosemite CCD 2.082 8l 1 I 2027 Yosemite CcD 2.OAt 2.000.000.00 0.78

Total / MU Bond 24.51

0.000 1.94

Srrb Total / Averaoe Treasurv Bill 0.000 5.000.000.0( 1.94

I I%sUI

T-Note 0.1 25 121 I 512023 freasurv 0,125 2.000.000.00 0.78

f-Note 2.25 313112024 ! freasurv 2.250 2,000,000.00 0.78

ub Total / Averaoe Treasurv Note 1 .188 4.000.000.00 1.55

3.091 257 1

Page 22

12/12/2023 Item No.1.



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 23

12/12/2023 Item No.1.



City of Folsom
Transactions Summary

Transaction Summary - lnvestment Report

Portfolio / Report Group: City of Folsom

Group By: Action

Begin Date: 071A112023, End Date: 0913012023

YTM@
CoBt

Maturity
DatE

Face
AmUShares

PrincipalSecur$ TypeDescrlption

Buy

5.25 Certificate Of Deoosit 9t8t2023 9t8t2026 243,000.00 243,000.00 5.250

lharter Oak CU 5.4211812025 Certificate Of Deoosit 8t16t2023 2t18t2025 243,000.00 243.000.00 5.400

)hartwav CU 5.25 7fi412025 Certificate Of Deposit 7t12,2023 7t14t2025 248,000,00 248,000-00 5.250

3itiorouo Global Markets 6 812012024-24 CorDorate Bond 7t20t2023 8t24t2024 3.000.000.00 3.000.000.00 6.000

it Aqricole CIB NY 0 3/1 Commercial Paper 9t15t2023 3t18t2024 2,500,000.00 2.428.569.44 5,724

425 FFCB Bond 8ni2023 8nno28 2.000.000.00 2.000.000.00 4.25(

FFCB 5 33 7t24t2A25-24 FFCB Bond 7t2412023 7t2412025 1,000,000,00 1,000,000.00 5,330

FFCB 5.5 11t25t2024 FFCB Bond 9t25t2023 11t2512024 2.000.000.00 2.000.000.00 5.500

FHLB 5.65 9t27t2024-23 FHLB Bond 8t31t2023 s127t2024 2,000,000.00 2.000.000.00 5,650

| .H, Mississiooi Vallev 5.5 911612024 Certificate Of Deposit 8t14t2023 9116t2024 243,000 00 243,000 00 5 500

0ertificate Of Deposit 8t30t2023 8t30t2028 248.000.00 248,000.00 5.000

Livermore Valley Joint USD Nlunicipal Bond 9t1t2023 8t1t2028 1,690,000.00 1,474,541 .90 4.740

GOs 3 8t1t2028-23 fiilunicioal Bond 8t1112023 8t1t202E 1.000.000.00 955,21 0.00 4.384

Natixls NY O 41312024 Commercial Paper 8t4t2023 4t3t2024 2.500,000.00 2,405,162.50 5.842

Pasadena Area CCD GOBs 5"3 81112024 Municioal Bond 8t3t2023 8t1t2024 1.000.000.00 1,000,000.00 5.30(

Saco & Biddeford Sus 4 5 812812028 Certificate Of Deoosit 8t28t2023 8t28t2028 244.000.00 244.000.00 4.500

State of Delaware GOB's 4.4571'|12028 Municipal Bond 9t29t2023 7t1t2028 1,500,000.00 1,473,435.00 4.870

Sub Total / Averaqe Buy 21.659.000.00 21.205.91e.84

0.00012t3112024 245.000,00 245.000.00Certificate Of Deoosit 8122120233.4
0.0008t24t2023 2t2412025 2,000,000.00FHLMC BondFH LMC 5.25 2124 12025 -23

7t24t2023 8t24t2027 1 1,310,000.00 0.000Coroorate Bondvloroan Stanlev Dom Hold 3.8 812412027-23
3.555.000.003,55s,000.00Sub Total / Averaqe Called

s00.000.00 0"0008t1t2023 8t1t2023 500,000.00Municipal BondAlameda countv GoBs 3.28 81112023
u12A23 't25,000.00 1 25,000.00 0.000Municioal Bond 8t1t2023Belmont-Redwood Shores SD 0 369 8l'|12023

170.000.00 't 70.000.00 0.000MuniciDal Bond 81112023 8t1t2023Belmont-Redwood Shores SD Ser B 0'369 81112023
0.0008t1t2023 8t1t2023 300,000.00 300,000.00Municipal BondOarson RDASA TABs 0.981 81112023

8t1t2023 1.265,000.00 1,265,000.00 0,000Municioal Bond 8t1t20231,975
1.000.000.00 0.0008t112023 8t1t2023 1,000,000.00Municipal BondUSD 702

0.0009t1t2023 9t1t2023 2.500.000.00 2.500.000.00Commercial PaoerCredit Aoricole CIB NY 0 91112023
625.000,00 625.000.00 0.0009t1t2023 9t1t2023Municipal BondDavis RDA-SA TABS 1 75 9l'112023

0.000lertificate Of Deoosit 9t27t2023 9t27t2023 245,000,00 245,000.00Farme/s & Merchants Bank3.3 912712023
0.0007t2612023 7t26t2023 2.000.000.00 2.000.000.00FFCB BondFFCB 4 67 712612023-23
0.0007t2812023 7t28t2023 2,000,000,00 2,000,000,00FHLB BondFHLB 3.05 7t28t2023-23
0.000at2al2023 8t28t2023 2.000.000.00 2,000,000 00FHLB Bond

2.000.000,00 0.0009t15t2023 9t15t2023 2.000.000.00FHLB Bond
0.0008t24t2023 8t2412023 1.500,000 00 1,500,000,00FHLMC BondFHLMC 0,25 8t24t2023

1.500.000.00 1.500.000.00 0.000FHLMC Bond 8t24t2023 8t2412023FHLMC 0.25 8t24r2023
0.000Comm€rciel Paoer 7t1712023 7n712A23 5.000.000.00 5,000,000,0007t1712023Securities
0.000at1t2023 140.000.00 140.000.00Municioal Bond 8t1t2023Nioreno Vallev USD 1,671 81112023
0.0007t14t2023 7t14t2023 2.500,000.00 2.500.000.00Commercial PaperNatixis NY 0711412023

9t18t2023 2.500.000,00 2.500.000"00 0.000Commercial Paoer 9t18t2023
245.000.0 0,0009t19t2023 9t19t2023 245,000.00Certificate Of DepositNeiqhbors FCU 3.3 911912023

8t1t2023 8t1t2023 1,500.000.00 1.500.000.00 0.000llunicioal BondSan Bernardino CCD 0.335 81112023
500.000.00 0 0008t1t2023 8t1t2023 500.000,00N/lunicipal BondSan Jose RDASA TABs 2,828 81112023

8t1t2023 1.000.000,00 't.000.000.00 0.000Municioal Bond 8t1t202iYosemite CCD 0.561 81112023
7s0.000.00 750.000.00 0.000Municioal Bond 8t1t2024 8t1t2023Yosemite CCD 'l .14 81112023

31.865.000.00 31.865,000.00Sub Total / Averaoe Matured

Sell

Contra Costa USD 1 761 81112024 Municipal Bond 8t1t2023 8t1t2024 1,000,000.00 967

Sub Total / Averaqe Sell 1.000.000.00 967.410.001

Page 24

12/12/2023 Item No.1.



 

 

Folsom City Council 
Staff Report 

  
 

1 
 

MEETING DATE: 

 

12/12/2023 

AGENDA SECTION: 

 

Joint Meeting Public Hearing 

SUBJECT: Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community 
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area 
No. 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 
 
Resolution No. 11147 - Resolution of the City Council of the 
City of Folsom Authorizing the Issuance of the City of Folsom 
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2024, the 
Execution of an Indenture Providing therefor, Authorizing the 
Execution of a Local Obligation Purchase Contract, and 
Authorizing Necessary Actions and the Execution of Other 
Documents in Connection therewith 
 

Resolution No. 011-Folsom Ranch FA - Resolution of the 
Governing Board of the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority 
Authorizing the Issuance, Sale and Delivery of Not to Exceed 
$12,500,000 Aggregate Principal Amount of City of Folsom 
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 
2024; Approving the Form and Substance of a Trust Agreement, 
Authorizing Modifications thereof and Execution and Delivery 
as Modified; Approving a Preliminary Official Statement, 
Authorizing Changes thereto and Execution and Delivery of an 
Official Statement to be Derived therefrom; Approving a Local 
Obligation Purchase Contract and a Bond Purchase Contract and 
Execution and Delivery of Each; and Authorizing Related 
Actions Necessary to Implement the Proposed Financing 
 

FROM: Finance Department 
 

 
 

Page 25

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



 2

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 
 
Resolution No. 11147- Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Authorizing the 
Issuance of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2024, the Execution of an Indenture 
Providing therefor, Authorizing the Execution of a Local Obligation Purchase Contract, and 
Authorizing Necessary Actions and the Execution of Other Documents in Connection 
therewith 
 
It is recommended the Governing Board of the Authority adopt the following resolution: 
 
Resolution No. 011-Folsom Ranch FA - Resolution of the Governing Board of the Folsom 
Ranch Financing Authority Authorizing the Issuance, Sale and Delivery of Not to Exceed 
$12,500,000 Aggregate Principal Amount of City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 
23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2024; 
Approving the Form and Substance of a Trust Agreement, Authorizing Modifications thereof 
and Execution and Delivery as Modified; Approving a Preliminary Official Statement, 
Authorizing Changes thereto and Execution and Delivery of an Official Statement to be 
Derived therefrom; Approving a Local Obligation Purchase Contract and a Bond Purchase 
Contract and Execution and Delivery of Each; and Authorizing Related Actions Necessary to 
Implement the Proposed Financing. 
 
BACKGROUND / ISSUE 

 
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (CFD No. 23) is a community facilities 
district organized by the City Council under the Mello-Roos Act for the purpose of providing 
for the construction and acquisition of certain public improvements and the financing of certain 
services to serve property within CFD No. 23. The City established CFD No. 23 on May 26, 
2020 and designated six separate improvement areas at that time, including Improvement Area 
No. 2. In December 2021, a seventh improvement area was designated within CFD No. 23, 
and in March 2023 change proceedings for Improvement Area No. 2 were held, which 
approved an Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment. Improvement Area No. 2 consists 
of a gross area of approximately 49 acres and is located wholly within the City of Folsom, east 
of East Bidwell Street, north of Mangini Parkway and south of U.S. Highway 50.   

Development within Improvement Area No. 2 is planned to include 291 multi-family low 
density units and approximately 5.8 acres expected to be developed into a 152-unit affordable 
housing site that will receive a welfare exemption and be exempt from the special tax. Property 
within Improvement Area No. 2 is in varying stages of development, including finished lots, 
home under construction, and completed homes. Improvement Area No. 2 is expected to be 
developed in four separate villages. Villages 1, 2, and 3 include lots that are owned and being 
developed by Tri Pointe. Village 4 includes lots that are owned by the Landbank and that are 
expected to be developed by Lennar Homes.   

Page 26

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



 3

The cost to construct all the facilities necessary to service property within Improvement Area 
No. 2 is estimated at approximately $34,300,000 and is comprised of backbone infrastructure, 
soft costs and subdivision infrastructure. Backbone facilities infrastructure improvements for 
Improvement Area 2 are expected to include transportation improvements, water system 
improvements, recycled water system improvements, drainage system improvements, 
wastewater system improvements, and park, parkway and open space improvements. 
Subdivision infrastructure improvements for development of Improvement Area No. 2 
includes, among other things, intract infrastructure such as underground utilities, subdivision 
roadways, street lighting, soundwalls and landscaping improvements.  

Notice of this public hearing was published in the Folsom Telegraph on November 30, 2023.  

POLICY / RULE 

 
Resolution No. 9282 – A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving 
Goals and Policies for Community Facilities Districts 
 
Chapter 3.110, “Community Facilities Financing”, of the Folsom Municipal Code 
 
Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 
 
Marks-Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985   
 
ANALYSIS 

 
The Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 
(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 (Series 
2024 Revenue Bonds) are being issued by the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (FRFA) in 
a not to exceed amount of $12,500,000 to finance the purchase of the limited obligation special 
tax bonds (Local Obligations), issued by CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch).  The purchase price of 
the Local Obligations will be used to finance the acquisition and construction of certain public 
facilities, fund a debt service reserve account, fund capitalized interest to September 1, 2024, 
and pay certain costs of issuance of the Local Obligations and Series 2024 Revenue Bonds. 
 
A special tax will be levied and collected annually to service the Local Obligations.  Every 
year, CFD No. 23 shall determine the annual special tax requirement relating to Improvement 
Area No. 2. The annual special tax requirement is that amount of special tax revenue required 
in any fiscal year for Improvement Area No. 2 to: 
 

• Pay administrative expenses 
• Pay annual debt service on all outstanding bonds for Improvement Area No. 2 
• Pay other periodic costs on outstanding bonds, including credit enhancement or rebate 

payments, if applicable 
• Pay any amounts required to replenish the reserve fund 
• Pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent special taxes 

Page 27

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



 4

• Fund Improvement Area No. 2 PAYGO costs 
• Pay for authorized services 
• Pay other associated costs as listed in the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment 

 
The special tax shall be levied each fiscal year proportionately on each Sacramento County 
assessor's parcel of taxable property within Improvement Area No. 2 at a rate up to 100% of 
the applicable maximum special tax to satisfy the annual special tax requirement.  As of the 
most current appraisal, the appraised value for the property within Improvement Area No. 2 is 
$84,653,000 and the value-to-lien ratio is 7.2:1, which is in compliance with the City’s CFD 
policy. The total projected residential property tax level for developed multi-family low-
density property within Improvement Area No. 2 is approximately 1.84%, and shall not exceed 
2.0% of the estimated sales price of the respective homes to be constructed in Improvement 
Area No. 2. 
 
Upon the conclusion of the noticed public hearing, and by adopting the proposed City Council 
Resolution, the City Council is taking the following actions in connection with the Local 
Obligations: 
 
1. Determining that there are significant public benefits to the City from the proposed 

financing and approving the Series 2024 Revenue Bonds 
2. Authorizing the issuance of an aggregate principal amount of not to exceed 

$12,500,000 in Local Obligations 
3. Approving the form and substance and the execution and delivery of the Indenture with 

U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association 
4. Approving the form and substance and the execution and delivery of the Continuing 

Disclosure Certificate 
5. Approving the form and substance and delivery of the Preliminary Official Statement, 

and authorizing the preparation, delivery and execution of a final Official Statement 
6. Approving the form and substance and execution and delivery of the Local Obligation 

Purchase Contract 
7. Approving the form and substance and execution and delivery of the Trust Agreement 
8. Authorizing the officers of the City to execute any and all documents and instruments, 

for and on behalf of the City and/or CFD No. 23, to carry out the issuance of the Local 
Obligations 

 
By adopting the proposed FRFA Resolution, the Governing Board is taking the following 
actions in connection with the Series 2024 Revenue Bonds: 
 
1. Authorizing the issuance of an aggregate principal amount of not to exceed 

$12,500,000 in Series 2024 Revenue Bonds 
2. Approving the form and substance and execution and delivery of the Trust Agreement 
3. Approving the form and substance and execution and delivery of the Local Obligation 

Purchase Contract 
4. Approving the form and substance and execution and delivery of the Bond Purchase 

Contract 

Page 28

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



 5

5. Approving the form and substance of the Preliminary Official Statement authorizing 
the Treasurer to determine when said Preliminary Official Statement is final, and 
authorizing the distribution of both the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 
Statement to be distributed by the Underwriter. 

6. Authorizing the officers of the FRFA to execute and deliver any and all documents, 
and to do any and all things deemed necessary to comply with the terms and intent of 
this resolution. 

 
Other documents included as exhibits to this staff report include: 
 
• Preliminary Official Statement 
• Trust Agreement 
• Indenture 
• Local Obligation Purchase Contract 
• Bond Purchase Agreement 
• Continuing Disclosure Certificate 
• Good Faith Estimates 
 
The City has engaged the following consultants to assist in the issuance of these Series 2024 
Revenue Bonds: 
 
Bond Counsel:   Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP 
Disclosure Counsel: Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP 
Tax Consultant: NBS 
Financial Advisor: Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc. 
Trustee:  U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

There is no discernable financial impact on the City of Folsom. The CFD No. 23 formation, 
bonded indebtedness, and expenses, including those for Improvement Area No. 2, are solely 
the responsibility of CFD No. 23.  The City will receive reimbursement from the issuance of 
the Series 2024 Revenue Bonds for staff time and expenses and will receive an annual 
administrative fee throughout the term of CFD No. 23; these amounts are intended to offset 
expenses incurred by the City for administration and other items. 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

 
On February 13, 2018, the City Council approved the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Vesting 
Tentative Subdivision Map and determined that the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Subdivision 
project is entirely consistent with the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP) and Westland 
Eagle Specific Plan Amendment and therefore exempt from review under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) provided by Government Code section 65457 and CEQA 
Guidelines sections 15182. No additional environmental review is required. 
 

Page 29

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



 6

ATTACHMENTS 

 
1. Resolution No. 11147 - Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Authorizing 

the Issuance of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2024, the Execution of an Indenture 
Providing therefor, Authorizing the Execution of a Local Obligation Purchase Contract, 
and Authorizing Necessary Actions and the Execution of Other Documents in Connection 
therewith 

 
2. Resolution No. 011-Folsom Ranch FA - Resolution of the Governing Board of the Folsom 

Ranch Financing Authority Authorizing the Issuance, Sale and Delivery of Not to Exceed 
$12,500,000 Aggregate Principal Amount of City of Folsom Community Facilities District 
No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2024; 
Approving the Form and Substance of a Trust Agreement, Authorizing Modifications 
thereof and Execution and Delivery as Modified; Approving a Preliminary Official 
Statement, Authorizing Changes thereto and Execution and Delivery of an Official 
Statement to be Derived therefrom; Approving a Local Obligation Purchase Contract and 
a Bond Purchase Contract and Execution and Delivery of Each; and Authorizing Related 
Actions Necessary to Implement the Proposed Financing. 

 

3. Trust Agreement by and among the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority and the City of 
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) and U.S. Bank Trust 
Company, National Association, as Trustee 
 

4. Indenture between the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom 
Ranch) and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as Trustee 
 

5. Preliminary Official Statement for the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom 
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special 
Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 
 

6. Local Obligation Purchase Contract for the City of Folsom Community Facilities District 
No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2024 between 
the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority and the City of Folsom Community Facilities 
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
 

7. Bond Purchase Agreement for the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom 
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special 
Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 between the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority and 
Piper Sandler & Co. 
 

8. Continuing Disclosure Certificate 
 

9. Good Faith Estimates for the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom 
Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2024 and the Folsom Ranch 

Page 30

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



 7

Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 

 
 
Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Stacey Tamagni  
Finance Director 
Treasurer of the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority 

Page 31

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 1 

Page 32

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Resolution No. 11147 
Page 1 of 5 

RESOLUTION NO. 11147 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM 

AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY 

FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 2 

SPECIAL TAX BONDS, SERIES 2024, THE EXECUTION OF AN INDENTURE 

PROVIDING THEREFOR, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A LOCAL 

OBLIGATION PURCHASE CONTRACT, AND AUTHORIZING NECESSARY 

ACTIONS AND THE EXECUTION OF OTHER DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION 

THEREWITH 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of the City of Folsom (the “City”) has 
formed the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the 
“Community Facilities District”) and designated various improvement areas therein, including 
Improvement Area No. 2 (the “Improvement Area”), under the provisions of the Mello-Roos 
Community Facilities Act of 1982 (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the Community Facilities District is authorized under the Act to levy special 
taxes within the Improvement Area (the “Special Taxes”) to pay the costs of certain public 
facilities (the “Facilities”) and to issue bonds payable from the Special Taxes; and 

WHEREAS, in order to provide funds to finance certain of the Facilities (the “Project”), 
the Community Facilities District proposes to issue not to exceed $12,500,000 principal amount 
of its City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area 
No. 2 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2024 (the “Local Obligations”); and 

WHEREAS, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the “Authority”) has agreed to 
purchase the Local Obligations pursuant to a Local Obligation Purchase Contract (the “Local 
Obligation Purchase Contract”) between the Authority and the Community Facilities District with 
a portion of the proceeds of the Authority’s City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 
(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 (the 
“Authority Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined in accordance with Government Code 
Section 53360.4 that a negotiated sale of the Local Obligations to the Authority in accordance with 
the terms of the Local Obligation Purchase Contract will result in a lower overall cost to the 
Community Facilities District than a public sale; and 

WHEREAS, there has been submitted to the City Clerk of the City (the “City Clerk”) a 
form of Indenture, between the Community Facilities District and U.S. Bank Trust Company, 
National Association, as trustee (the “Indenture”), providing for the issuance of the Local 
Obligations and a form of Local Obligation Purchase Contract providing for the sale of the Local 
Obligations to the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, there has been submitted to the City Clerk a form of Trust Agreement (the 
“Trust Agreement”), among the Authority, the Community Facilities District and U.S. Bank Trust 

Page 33

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Resolution No. 11147 
Page 2 of 5 

Company, National Association, as trustee, providing for the issuance of the Authority Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has authorized the sale of the Authority Bonds to Piper Sandler 
& Co., as underwriter (the “Underwriter”), with the net proceeds of sale thereof to be utilized to 
purchase the Local Obligations from the Community Facilities District; and 

WHEREAS, the Community Facilities District desires to assist the Underwriter in its 
compliance with Rule 15c2-12 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Rule 
15c2-12”) pursuant to a Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the “Continuing Disclosure 
Certificate”); and 

WHEREAS, the form of a Preliminary Official Statement (the “Preliminary Official 
Statement”) to be used in connection with the offering and sale of the Authority Bonds has been 
prepared and is on file with the City Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, there have been prepared and submitted to the City Council for consideration 
at this meeting the forms of: 

(a) the Trust Agreement; 

(b) the Indenture; 

(c) the Local Obligation Purchase Contract; 

(d) the Continuing Disclosure Certificate; and 

(e) the Preliminary Official Statement; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the evidence of the public benefits to the 
Community Facilities District of the proposed financing and is fully advised in the premises; and 

WHEREAS, the Community Facilities District desires to proceed to issue and sell the 
Local Obligations and to authorize the execution of such documents and the performance of such 
acts as may be necessary or desirable to effect the offering, sale and issuance of the Local 
Obligations; and 

WHEREAS, on this date, the City held a public hearing on the financing of the Project in 
accordance with Section 6586.5 of Articles 1, 2, 3 and 4 of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 
(commencing with Section 6500) of the Government Code of the State of California (the “Marks-
Roos Act”); and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 6586.5 of the Marks-Roos Act, notice of such 
hearing was published once at least five days prior to the hearing in the Folsom Telegraph, a 
newspaper of general circulation in the City; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 5852.1 requires that the City Council obtain from 
an underwriter, financial adviser or private lender and disclose, prior to authorization of the 
issuance of bonds with a term of greater than 13 months, good faith estimates of the following 

Page 34

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Resolution No. 11147 
Page 3 of 5 

information in a meeting open to the public: (a) the true interest cost of the bonds, (b) the sum of 
all fees and charges paid to third parties with respect to the bonds, (c) the amount of proceeds of 
the bonds expected to be received net of the fees and charges paid to third parties and any reserves 
or capitalized interest paid or funded with proceeds of the bonds, and (d) the sum total of all debt 
service payments on the bonds calculated to the final maturity of the bonds plus the fees and 
charges paid to third parties not paid with the proceeds of the bonds; and 

WHEREAS, in compliance with Government Code Section 5852.1, the City Council has 
obtained from Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc., the municipal adviser to the Community 
Facilities District, the required good faith estimates and such estimates have been disclosed at this 
meeting; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council is the legislative body of the Community Facilities District; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom, 
as follows: 

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct, and the City Council so finds 
and determines. 

Section 2. The City Council, on behalf of the City, hereby approves the issuance of the 
Authority Bonds to finance the Project and finds that the use of the Marks-Roos Act to assist the 
Community Facilities District in financing the Project will result in significant public benefits to 
the citizens of the City, including more efficient delivery of local agency services to residential 
and commercial development. 

Section 3. Subject to the conditions described in Section 8, the issuance of the Local 
Obligations in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $12,500,000, on the terms and 
conditions set forth in, and subject to the limitations specified in, the Indenture, is hereby 
authorized and approved.  The Local Obligations shall be dated, shall bear interest at the rates, 
shall mature on the dates, shall be subject to redemption, shall be issued in the form, and shall be 
as otherwise provided in the Indenture. 

Section 4. The form of the Indenture providing for the issuance of the Local 
Obligations, on file with the City Clerk, is hereby approved, and the City Manager of the City (the 
“City Manager”) and the Finance Director of the City (the “Finance Director”) and such other 
officers of the City as the City Manager or the Finance Director shall designate (each an 
“Authorized Officer” and collectively, the “Authorized Officers”) are, and each of them is, hereby 
authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the Community Facilities District, 
to execute and deliver the Indenture in substantially said form, with such changes therein as may 
be approved by the City Attorney of the City (the “City Attorney”), such approval to be 
conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof. 

Section 5. The form of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, in substantially the form 
submitted to this meeting and made a part hereof as though set forth in full herein, is hereby 
approved.  The Authorized Officers are, and each of them is, hereby authorized and directed, for 
and in the name of the Community Facilities District, to execute and deliver the Continuing 
Disclosure Certificate in the form presented to this meeting, with such changes, insertions and 

Page 35

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Resolution No. 11147 
Page 4 of 5 

omissions as the Authorized Officer executing the same may require or approve, such requirement 
or approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate 
by such Authorized Officer. 

Section 6. The Preliminary Official Statement, in substantially the form presented to 
this meeting and made a part hereof as though set forth in full herein, with such changes therein as 
may be approved by an Authorized Officer, is hereby approved, and the use of the Preliminary 
Official Statement in connection with the offering and sale of the Authority Bonds is hereby 
authorized and approved.  The Authorized Officers are, and each of them is, hereby authorized 
and directed, for and in the name of the Community Facilities District, to certify to the Underwriter 
that the Preliminary Official Statement has been “deemed final” for purposes of Rule 15c2-12. 

Section 7. The preparation and delivery of a final Official Statement (the “Official 
Statement”), and its use in connection with the offering and sale of the Authority Bonds is hereby 
authorized and approved.  The Official Statement shall be in substantially the form of the 
Preliminary Official Statement, with such changes, insertions and omissions as may be approved 
by an Authorized Officer, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and 
delivery thereof.  The Authorized Officers are, and each of them is, hereby authorized and directed 
to execute the final Official Statement and any amendment or supplement thereto, for and in the 
name of the Community Facilities District. 

Section 8. The form of the Local Obligation Purchase Contract providing for the sale 
of the Local Obligations to the Authority, on file with the City Clerk, is hereby approved, and the 
Authorized Officers are, and each of them is, hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name 
of the Community Facilities District, to execute and deliver the Local Obligation Purchase 
Contract in substantially said form, with such changes therein as may be approved by the City 
Attorney, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof; 
provided that the final maturity of the Local Obligations shall be no later than September 1, 2054, 
the principal amount of the Local Obligations shall not exceed twelve million five hundred 
thousand dollars ($12,500,000) and the true interest cost (taking into consideration the associated 
underwriter’s discount and any original issue premium or discount relating to the Authority Bonds) 
of the Local Obligations shall not exceed seven and one quarter percent (7.25%). 

Section 9. The form of the Trust Agreement, in substantially the form submitted to this 
meeting and made a part hereof as though set forth in full herein is hereby approved.  The 
Authorized Officers are, and each of them is, hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name 
of the Community Facilities District, to execute and deliver the Trust Agreement in the form 
presented to this meeting, with such changes, insertions and omissions as the Authorized Officer 
executing the same may require or approve, such requirement or approval to be conclusively 
evidenced by the execution of the Trust Agreement by such Authorized Officer. 

Section 10. Pursuant to Section 53345.8 of the Act and the City’s Local Goals and 
Policies, the City Council hereby finds and determines that the value of the real property that would 
be subject to the Special Taxes to pay debt service on the Local Obligations will be at least three 
(3) times the principal amount of the Local Obligations to be sold and the principal amount of all 
other bonds outstanding that are secured by a special tax levied pursuant to the Act on property 
within the Improvement Area or a special assessment levied on property within the Improvement 

Page 36

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Resolution No. 11147 
Page 5 of 5 

Area.  The City Council determines in its sole discretion that it is necessary and desirable to waive 
certain of its Local Goals and Policies to the extent the issuance of the Local Obligations does not 
conform thereto. 

Section 11. The officers of the City are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and 
severally, for and on behalf of the City and/or the Community Facilities District to do any and all 
things that they may deem necessary or advisable in order to consummate the transactions herein 
authorized and otherwise to carry out, give effect to and comply with the terms and intent of this 
resolution, including any subsequent amendments, waivers or consents entered into or given in 
accordance with any of the documents approved hereby.  The City Manager, the Finance Director, 
the City Clerk and the officers of the City are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver, 
for and on behalf of the City and/or the Community Facilities District, any and all certificates and 
representations necessary and desirable to accomplish the transactions set forth above. 

Section 12. The City Council hereby approves the execution and delivery of all 
agreements, documents, certificates and instruments referred to herein with electronic signatures 
as may be permitted under the California Uniform Electronic Transactions Act and digital 
signatures as may be permitted under Section 16.5 of the California Government Code using 
DocuSign. 

Section 13. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of December, 2023, by the following roll call vote: 
 
  
AYES: Councilmember(s):  

   

NOES: Councilmember(s):  
 

ABSENT: Councilmember(s):  
 

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):  
 
 
 

 
___________________________________ 
 Rosario Rodriguez, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
 Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK 

Page 37

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 2 

Page 38

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Resolution No. 011-Folsom Ranch FA 
Page 1 of 5 

RESOLUTION NO. 011-FOLSOM RANCH FA 

RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE FOLSOM RANCH 

FINANCING AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND DELIVERY 

OF NOT TO EXCEED $12,500,000 AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF CITY OF 

FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH) 

IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 2 SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2024; 

APPROVING THE FORM AND SUBSTANCE OF A TRUST AGREEMENT, 

AUTHORIZING MODIFICATIONS THEREOF AND EXECUTION AND DELIVERY 

AS MODIFIED; APPROVING A PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT, 

AUTHORIZING CHANGES THERETO AND EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN 

OFFICIAL STATEMENT TO BE DERIVED THEREFROM; APPROVING A LOCAL 

OBLIGATION PURCHASE CONTRACT AND A BOND PURCHASE CONTRACT AND 

EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF EACH; AND AUTHORIZING RELATED 

ACTIONS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THE PROPOSED FINANCING 

WHEREAS, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority is a joint exercise of powers 
entity duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (the 
“Authority”); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of the City of Folsom (the 
“City”) has formed the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the 
“Community Facilities District”) and designated various improvement areas therein, including 
Improvement Area No. 2, under the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 
1982 (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the Community Facilities District has completed its legal proceedings 
under the Act with respect to authorizing the issuance and sale of the “City of Folsom Community 
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Bonds, Series 
2024” (the “Local Obligations”) for the purpose of financing certain public facilities within the 
City south of Highway 50; and 

WHEREAS, the Community Facilities District is empowered under the provisions 
of the Act to undertake legal proceedings for the levy of a special tax and for the issuance, sale 
and delivery of special tax bonds upon the security of the recorded special tax liens; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority is empowered under the provisions of Article 4, 
Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 of the California Government Code (the “Law”) to issue its bonds 
for the purpose of purchasing various local obligations issued by certain local agencies and 
applying the proceeds of the bonds to finance certain authorized public facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to issue the “Folsom Ranch Financing 
Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement 
Area No. 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2024” (the “Bonds”) pursuant to that certain Trust 
Agreement (the “Trust Agreement”), among the Authority, the Community Facilities District and 
U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), in order to provide 
funds to purchase the Local Obligations; and 

Page 39

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



 

 
Resolution No. 011-Folsom Ranch FA 
Page 2 of 5 

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that the estimated amount necessary to 
finance the purchase of the Local Obligations will require the issuance of the Bonds in the 
aggregate principal amount not to exceed twelve million five hundred thousand dollars 
($12,500,000); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Community Facilities District have determined 
that all things necessary to make the Bonds, when authenticated by the Trustee, and issued as 
provided in the Trust Agreement, the valid, binding and legal obligations of the Authority 
according to the import thereof and hereof have been done and performed; and 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of implementing the financing, there have been filed 
with the Authority Secretary for consideration and approval by this Board forms of the following: 

(a) a Trust Agreement, under the terms of which the Bonds are to be issued and 
the Revenues (as said term is defined in the Trust Agreement and as said 
Revenues are received by the Authority as holder of the Local Obligations) 
are to be administered to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds; 

(b) a Local Obligation Purchase Contract, under the terms of which, among 
other things, the Community Facilities District agrees to sell and the 
Authority agrees to purchase the Local Obligations;  

(c) a Bond Purchase Contract, under the terms of which, among other things, 
the Authority agrees to sell and the underwriter agrees to purchase the 
Bonds; and 

(d) a Preliminary Official Statement, describing the Bonds and the Local 
Obligations; and   

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 5852.1 requires that the Governing Board 
of the Authority obtain from an underwriter, financial adviser or private lender and disclose, prior 
to authorization of the issuance of bonds with a term of greater than 13 months, good faith 
estimates of the following information in a meeting open to the public: (a) the true interest cost of 
the bonds, (b) the sum of all fees and charges paid to third parties with respect to the bonds, (c) the 
amount of proceeds of the bonds expected to be received net of the fees and charges paid to third 
parties and any reserves or capitalized interest paid or funded with proceeds of the bonds, and (d) 
the sum total of all debt service payments on the bonds calculated to the final maturity of the bonds 
plus the fees and charges paid to third parties not paid with the proceeds of the bonds; and 

WHEREAS, in compliance with Government Code Section 5852.1, the Governing 
Board of the Authority has obtained from Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc., municipal adviser 
to the Authority, the required good faith estimates and such estimates have been disclosed at this 
meeting; and 

WHEREAS, being fully advised in the matter of the proposed financing program, 
this Board wishes to proceed with implementation of said financing program; and 

Page 40

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



 

 
Resolution No. 011-Folsom Ranch FA 
Page 3 of 5 

WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution and laws 
of the State of California to exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and 
in connection with the consummation of the financing authorized hereby do exist, have happened 
and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as required by law, and the 
Authority is now duly authorized and empowered, pursuant to each and every requirement of law, 
to authorize the execution and delivery of certain documents in order to further implement the 
financing in the manner and upon the terms herein provided; and 

WHEREAS, as required by the Law, the City has conducted a public hearing and 
has determined that the issuance of the Bonds by the Authority and the acquisition of the Local 
Obligations will result in significant public benefits, including more efficient delivery of local 
agency services to residential and commercial development. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Board of the 
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority as follows: 

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct, and this Board so finds 
and determines. 

Section 2. Pursuant to the Law, the Bonds shall be issued in the aggregate 
principal amount of not to exceed twelve million five hundred thousand dollars ($12,500,000).  No 
Bond shall mature later than September 1, 2054. 

Section 3. The form and substance of the Trust Agreement are hereby 
approved.  The Treasurer of the Authority or designee thereof is hereby authorized and directed, 
for and in the name and on behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver the Trust Agreement in 
substantially said form, with such changes therein as such officer may require or approve, such 
approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof. 

Section 4. The form and substance of the Local Obligation Purchase Contract 
is hereby approved.  The Treasurer of the Authority or designee thereof is hereby authorized and 
directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver the Local 
Obligation Purchase Contract in substantially said form, with such changes therein as such officer 
may require or approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery 
thereof. 

Section 5. The form and substance of the Bond Purchase Contract is hereby 
approved.  The Treasurer of the Authority or designee thereof is hereby authorized and directed, 
for and in the name and on behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver the Bond Purchase 
Contract in substantially said form, with such changes therein as such officer may require or 
approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof; 
provided that the true interest cost of the Bonds shall not exceed seven and one quarter percent 
(7.25%) and the underwriter’s discount (exclusive of original issue discount) shall not exceed one 
and thirty-five hundredths percent (1.35%). 

Section 6. (a) The form and substance of the Preliminary Official Statement is 
hereby approved.  The Treasurer of the Authority or designee thereof is authorized to execute the 
final Official Statement to be derived therefrom. 

Page 41

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



 

 
Resolution No. 011-Folsom Ranch FA 
Page 4 of 5 

(b) This Board hereby authorizes the Treasurer of the Authority or designee 
thereof to find and determine that said Preliminary Official Statement in preliminary form is, and 
as of its date shall be deemed “final” for purposes of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission, and the Treasurer of the Authority or designee thereof is hereby authorized to execute 
a certificate to such effect in the customary form. 

(c) The Treasurer of the Authority or designee is authorized to approve 
corrections and additions to the Preliminary Official Statement by supplement or amendment 
thereto, by appropriate insertions, or otherwise as appropriate, provided that such corrections or 
additions shall be regarded by such officer as necessary to cause the information contained therein 
to conform to facts material to the Bonds or the Local Obligations or to the proceedings of this 
Board or the City Council or that such corrections or additions are in form rather than in substance. 

(d) The underwriter of the Bonds is authorized to distribute said Preliminary 
Official Statement and the final Official Statement to be derived therefrom in connection with the 
sale and delivery of the Bonds. 

Section 7. The officers of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed, 
jointly and severally, to do any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents, 
including any agency agreement, which they may deem necessary or advisable in order to carry 
out, give effect to and comply with the terms and intent of this resolution, including any subsequent 
amendments, waivers or consents entered into or given in accordance with any of the documents 
approved hereby, and to obtain a policy of bond insurance, a rating and/or a reserve fund surety 
policy for any series of the Bonds.  Such actions heretofore taken by such officers are hereby 
ratified, confirmed and approved. 

Section 8. This Board hereby approves the execution and delivery of all 
agreements, documents, certificates and instruments referred to herein with electronic signatures 
as may be permitted under the California Uniform Electronic Transactions Act and digital 
signatures as may be permitted under Section 16.5 of the California Government Code using 
DocuSign. 

Section 9. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 

Page 42

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



 

 
Resolution No. 011-Folsom Ranch FA 
Page 5 of 5 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of December, 2023, by the following roll call vote: 
  
 
AYES: Boardmember(s):  
 

NOES: Boardmember(s):  
 

ABSENT: Boardmember(s):  
 

ABSTAIN: Boardmember(s):  
 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
  Rosario Rodriguez, CHAIR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
 Christa Freemantle, SECRETARY 
 

Page 43

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



ATTACHME,NT 3

Page 44

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



OH&S DRAFT
1112712023

TRUST AGREEMENT

by and among the

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

and the

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMML'NITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)

and

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as Trustee

Relating to the

$[Par Amount]
FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMT]NITY FACILITIES DISTRICT
NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 2

SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS,
SERIES 2024

Dated as of January 1,2024

4 r65-35?4-9451.4 Page 45

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

Provisions for the Issuance of Authority Bonds

Parity and Subordinate Bonds......."'."'..

ARTICLE IV
REDEMPTION OF AUTHORITY BONDS

General Redemption Provisions.............
Optional Redemption .............'.
Extraordinary Redemption .'.'.". 

"

Mandatory Redemption.............
Redemption Instructions .......'.....
Notice of Redemption ..........
Payment of Redeemed Authority Bonds.
Purchase in Lieu of Redemption...,.........

ARTICLE V
REVENUES AND FUNDS FOR AI.]THORITY BONDS

Establishment of Funds
Deposit of Proceeds of Authority Bonds

Proceeds Fund........

Page

)
.10

Section 2.01.
Section 2.02.
Section 2.03.
Section 2.04.
Section 2.05.
Section 2.06.
Section 2.07.
Section 2.08.

Section 2.09.
Section 2.10.
Section 2.1 L

Section i.0l
Section 1.02

Section 3.01.
Section 3.02.

Section 4.01.
Section 4.02.
Section 4.03.
Section 4.04,
Section 4.05.
Section 4.06.
Section 4.07.
Section 4.08.

Section 5.01.
Section 5.02.
Section 5.03.

Definitions
Rules of Construction

ARTICLE II
TERMS OF AUTHORITY BONDS

The Authority Bonds...
Form of Authority Bonds
Autholity Bonds Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost ."'..
Execution of Authority Bonds........'....

Transfer and Registration of Autholity Bonds

Regulations with Respect to Exchange or Transfer of Authority Bonds

Authentication of Authority Bonds ......'

Cancellation of Authority Bonds.
Authority Bonds as Special Obligations
Special Covenants as to Book-Entry Only System for Authority Bonds

CUSIP Numbers

ARTICLE III
ISSUANCE OF AUTHORITY BONDS

.......1 8
18

4 I (r5-35 7zl-945 I 4

- 1-

Page 46

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Section 5.04.
Section 5.05.
Section 5.06.
Section 5.07.
Section 5.08.
Section 5.09.
Section 5.10.

Section 6.01.
Section 6.02.

Section 7.01.
Section 7.02.
Section 7,03.
Section 7.04.
Section 7.05.
Section 7.06.
Section 7.07.
Section 7.08.

Section 8.01.
Section 8.02.
Section 8.03.
Sectiorr 8.04.
Section 8.05.
Section 8.06.
Section 8.07.
Section 8.08.
Section 8.09,

Section 9.01

Section 9.02

TABLE OF CONTENTS
(continued)

Local Obligations Fund........
Revenue Fund.........
Revennes Derived from Special Tax Prepayments.",

Interest Fund.........
Principal Fund ........
Redemption Fund
Rebate Fund.........

Page

....,......22

..,,,,'..,'22
,.,,','',..23

)7
-1/a

...........23

..',..,'..23

.......24
,.''',,24

..26

..?6

..?6

..77

..?7

..28

..28

..28

11

ARTICLE VII
COVENANTS OF THE AUTHORITY AND THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT

ARTICLE VI
SECURITY FOR AND INVESTMENT OF MONEY

Security.......
Investment of Money

Payment of Authority Bonds; No Encumbrances.'.'
Enforcement and Amendment of Local Obligations
Furlher Documents ...,............
Tax Covenants for the Authority Bonds

Maintenance of Existence
Continuing Disclosure
Redemption Fund for the Local Obligations.......
Concerning the Trust Estate

ARTICLE VIII
DEFAULTS AND REMEDiES

Events of Default.
Proceedings by Trustee; No Acceleration..,....'..
Effect of Discontinuance or Abandonment'.'.. ".
Rights of Owners.
Restriction on Owner's Action.."
Power of Trustee to Enforce.
Remedies Not Exclusive ............

Waivel of Events of Default; Effect of Waiver..
Application of Money upon Event of Default..'.

ARTICLE IX
THE TRUSTEE

Appointment and Acceptance of Duties......
Duties,lmmunities and Liability of Trustee

41(r5-357.i-945 I .l

-ll-
Page 47

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



ARTICLE X
EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS BY OWNERS AND PROOF OF OWNERSHIP OF

AUTHORITY BONDS

Section 10.01. Execution of Instruments; Proof of Ou'nership...'...'.

ARTICLE XI
SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST AGREEMENTS

Section 9.03
Section 9.04
Section 9.05
Section 9.06
Section 9.07
Section 9.08

Section 11.01.
Section 11.42.
Section 1 1.03.

Section n.Al.
Section 12.02.
Section 12.03.

TABLB OF CONTENTS
(continued)

Merger or Consolidation
Compensation and Indemnification ...

Liability of Trustee....
Right to Rely on Documents; Adverse Effect Determinations
Preservation and Inspection of Documents ....'......'.
Indemnity for Trustee....

..38

Supplemental Trust Agreements with Consent of Owners .."'......."38
Supplemental Trust Agreements Without Consent of Owners ".."...39
Trustee Authorized to Enter into Supplemental Trust Agreements...,.,.............39

ARTICLE XII
DEFEASANCE

Defeasance
Authority Bonds Deemed to Have Been Paid

Money Held for Particular Authority Bonds.

Dissolution of Authority.............'...'. ..'.

Parties Interested Herein
Notice
Holidays
Lirnitation of Liability
Unclaimed Money
Governing Law..........
Severability of Invalid Provisions.".".
Counterparts and Electronic Execution

U.S.A. Patriot Act ...........
Force Majeure

.40

.40

.4r

.41Section 12.04. Effect of Defeasance of Authority Bonds..--..'.

ARTiCLE XIII
MISCELLANEOUS

Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section

13.01 .

13.42.
13.03.
t3.04.
13.05.
13.06.
13.01 .

13.08.
i 3.09.
1 3.1 0.

13.1 1 .

)

EXHIBIT A FORM OF AUTHOR]TY BONDS."..

_iii_

4l(r5-3574-9451 4

........ A-1

Page 48

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



TRUST AGREEMENT

This Trust Agreement (the "Trust Agreement"), dated as of January 1,2024, by and

among the Folsom Rapch Financing Autholity, a joint exercise of powers agency duly organized

and existing under the laws of the State of California (the "Authority"), the City of Folsom

Communiry Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), organized and existing under and by virtue

of the laws of the State of California (the "Community Facilities District") and U.S. Baxk Trust

Company, National Association, a national banking association duly organized and existing under

the laws of the United States of America, as Trustee (the "Ttustee");

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Authority is empowered under the provisions of the Marks-Roos

Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985, being Article 4, Chapter 5, Division 7, Title I of the California

Government Code (the "Law"), to issue its bonds for the purpose of purchasing various Local

obligations (as defined herein) issued by certain local agencies; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined to issue its Folsom Ranch Financing

Authority City of Folsorn Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement

Area No. 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 (the "Authority Bonds") to be secured by a

pledge, lien and claim upon the Revenues (as that term is defined herein) in order to provide a

pottio" of the funds necessary to purchase the Local Obligations (as that term is defined herein);

and

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Community Facilities District have determined

that all things necessary to make the Authority Bonds (as that term is defined herein), when issued

by the Autliority and authenticated by the Trustee and delivered as provided herein, valid, binding

and legal obligations of the Authority according to the import thereof and hereof have been done

and perforrned; and

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS TRUST AGREEMENT WITNESSETH, thAt iN

consideration of the premises, the acceptance by the Trustee of the trusts hereby created and other

good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and in order to

i..rr. the payrnent of the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on all

Authority bonds Ourstanding (as that term is defined herein) hereunder from time to time

accordilg to their tenor and effect, and the making of such other payments required to be made by

the Authority and the satisfaction of all the agleements, conditions, covenants and terms expressed

and irnpliecl herein ald in the Authority Bonds, the Authority does hereby assign, bargain, convey,

grant, mortgage and pleclge a security interest unlo the Trustee and unto its successors and assigns

hereunder forever i1 all right, title and interest of the Authority in, to and under, subject to the

provisions hereof permitting the application theleof for the pulposes and on the terms and

conditions set forth therein, each and all of the following (collectively, the "Trust Estate"):

(a) the proceeds of sale of the Authority Bonds;

(b) the Revenues (as that term is defined herein);

4I6:-357.1-945 r.4 Page 49

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



(c) the amounts in the Funds (as that tetrn is defined herein) established and

lield hereunder, except amounts in the Rebate Fund; arrd

(d) the Local Obligations;

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD IN TRUST all of the same hereby assigned, bargained,

conveyed, granted, rnortgaged and pledged or agreed or intended so to be to the Trustee and to its

,.,...r.o6 and assignr loi"u.r for the equal and ratable benefit of the Owrer issued by the

Authority hereundeiand authenticated by the Trustee and delivered hereunder and Outstanding

her.eulder, without any priority as to the Trust Estate of any one Authority Bond over any other

(except as expressly provided in or permitted hereby), upon the trusts and subject to the

agreeinents, conditions, covenants and terms hereinafter set forth;

AND THIS TRUST AGREEMENT FURTHER WITNESSETH, and it is expressly

declared, that all Authority Bonds issued and secured hereunder are to be issued, authenticated and

clelivered and all of the rights and property hereby assigned, balgained, conveyed, granted,

morlgaged and pledged are to be dealt with and disposed of under, upon and subject to the

agreelr-ents, "onditi*s, 
covenants, terms, trusts and uses as hereinafter expressed, and the

authority and the Community Facilities District have agreed and covenanted, and do hereby agree

and covenant, with the Trustee and with the Owner, as follows:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1.01. Definitions. The terms set forth below shall have the following

meanir-tgs set forth herein, unless the context clearly otherwise requires:

,.Act" shall rnean the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended

(being Sections 53311 et seq. of the Government Code of the State of California), and all laws

amendatory thereof or supplemental thereto'

"Authority" shall mean the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, a joint exercise of
powers agency duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California, and its

successors aud assigns.

"Authority Bond" or "Authority Bonds" shall mean the Folsom Ranch Financing

Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement

Area No.2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2A24. "Serial Autholity Bonds" shall mean the

Authority golds for which no Minimum Sinking Fund Payments are provided. "Term Autholity

Bonds,, shall mean the Authority Bonds which are payable on or before their specified maturity

date from Minimum Sinking Fund Payrnents estabiished for that purpose and calculated to retir"e

such Authority Bonds on or before their specified rnaturity date.

"Authorized Denominations" shall rnean five thousand dollars ($5,000) and any

integral multiple thereof, but not exceeding the principal amount of the Authority Bonds tnatudng

on any one date.

2

4t65-ti7.1-9451 4 Page 50

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



"Authorized Officer" shall mean, when used with reference to the Autliority, the

Chair, the Treasurer or any other person authorized by the Authority in a Written Order or

resolution to perfolm an act or sign a document on beiralf of the Authority for the pulposes hereof,

and when used with reference to the Community Facilities District and the City, acting for and on

behalf of the Community Facilities District, the Mayor, the Finance Dilector or any other person

authorized by the City or the Community Facilities District, as applicable, in a Written Order or

resolution to perform an act or sign a document on behalf of the City or the Community Facilities

District for the purposes hereof.

"Bond Counsel" shall mean an attorney-at-law, or a firm of such attorneys, of

nationally recognized standing in matters pertaining to the tax-exempt nature of interest on

obligations issued by states and their political subdivisions.

"Bond Register" shall meanthe registration books specified as such in Section 2'05'

"Business Day" shall mean any day other than (i) a Saturday or a Sunday or (ii) a

day on which commercial banks in New York, New York, or the city in which the Corporate Trust

Offrce of the Trustee is located, are closed.

"Cash Flow Certificate" shall mean a written certificate executed by a Cash Flow

Consultant.

"Cash Flow Consultant" shall mean a financial consultant or firm of such

consultants generally recognized to be well qualified in the financial consulting field relating to

municipal securities such as the Authority Bonds, appointed and paid by the Community Facilities

District or the Authority and who, or each of whom:

(l) is in fact independent and not under the domination of the Community

Facilities District, the Authority or the City;

(2) does not have any substantial interest, direct or indirect, with the

Community Facilities District, the Authority or the City; and

(3) is not connected with the Community Facilities District, the Authority or

the City as a member, offrcer or employee of the Community Facilities District, the Authority or

the City, but who may be regularly retained to make annual or other reports to the Comnrunity

Facilities District, the Authority or the City.

The Cash Flow Consultant shall not, as a result of its role as Cash Flow Consultant,

be deemed to have a "financial advisory lelationship" with the Authority within the meaning of

Califomia Government Code Section 53590(c).

"Chair" shall mean the Chair of the Authority.

"City" shall mean tlie City of Folsorn, a charter city and rnunicipal corporation duly

orgalized and existing under its charter and the Constitution and laws of the State of California,

and its successoLs.

4165-b74-945t.4 Page 51

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



"City ManageL" shall mean the City Manager of the City'

"'Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the

regulations issued thereunder.

"Cornmunity Facilities District" shall mean the City of Folsom Community

Faciiities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), established by the City pursuant to the Act.

"Corporate Trust Office" shall mean the designated cotporate trust office of the

Trustee at the location set forth in Section 13.03.

"Dated Date" shall rnean the applicable date of the original execution and delivery

of the Authority Bonds.

"DTC" shall mean The Depository Trust Company, in New York, New York; or,

in accordance with then curent guidelines of the Securities and Exchange Commission, such other

securities depository as the Authority may designate in an Officer's Certificate delivered to the

Trustee.

"Event of Default" shall ulean an event of default specified as such in Section 8.01'

"Finance Director" shall mean the Finance Director of the City.

"Fund" or "Funds" shall mean any or all, as the case may be, of the Revenue Fund,

the Interest Fund, the Principal Fund, the Redemption Fund, the Proceeds Fund, the Local

Obligations Fund and the Rebate Fund, including all accounts therein.

"Government Obligations" shall mean any investment Securities described in

clause (i) or clause (ii) of the definition thereof but excluding any securities that are caliable or

prepayable prior to the redernption or maturity date of the Authority Bonds to be paid therefrom,

and excluding any securities that do not have a fixed par value or the tems of which do not promise

a fixed dollar amount at maturity or earlier call date'

"Improvement Area" means Improvemenl Area No. 2 of the Community Facilities

District.

"Indenture Tlustee" means U.S. Bank Trust ComPanY, National Association, as

trustee under the Locai Obligations Indenture.

"lnterest Fund" shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to

Section 5.01.

"Interest Payrnent Date" shall mean March 1 and September 1 in each year,

commencing on SePtember 1, 2024'

"Investmelrt Securities" shall mean and include any of the following securities, to

the extent perrnitted by the laws of the State and the City's Investment Policy, fol and on behalf

of the Community Facilities District as it may be amended from time to time:

4
41(r5-3574-94514 Page 52

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



(i) Cash (insured at all times by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or

fully collatelalized by Ltvestment Securities described in clause (ii) hereof);

(ii) Obligations of, or obligations guaranteed as to principal and interest by, the

United States of America or any agency or instrumentality thereof, when such obligations are

backed by tlie full faith and credit of the United States of Arnerica including:

(A) All direct or fully guaranteed U.S. Treasuly obligations;

(B) Farmers Home Administration;

(C) GeneralservicesAdministration;

(D) Guaranteed Title XI financing;

(E) Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA); and

(F) U.S. Treasury - State and Local Govetnment Series;

(iii) Obligations of any of the following federal agencies which obligations

represent the full faith and credit of the United States of America, including:

(A) Export-Import Bank;

(B) RuralEconomioCommunityDevelopmentAdministration;

(C) U.S. Maritime Administration;

(D) SmallBusinessAdministration;

(E) U.S. Department of l{ousing & Urban Development (PHAs);

(F) Federal Housing Adrninistration; and

(C) Federal Financing Bank;

(iv) Direct obligations of any of the following federal agencies which

obligations are not fully guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America:

(A) Senior debt obligations issued by the Federal National Mortgage

Association (FNMA) or Federal Home Loan Mortgage Coryoration (FHLMC);

(B) Obligations of the Resolution Funding Corporation (REFCORP);

(C) Senior debt obligations of the Fedelal Home Loan Bank System;

and

(D) Senior debt obligations of other Govelnnrent Sponsored Agencies,

5

4r65-3a7-1-9151 4 Page 53

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



(v) U.S. Dollar-clenominated deposit accounts, federal funds and bankers'

acceptances with domestic comnercial banks which have a rating on their short term certificates

of deposit on the date of purchase of "P-1" by Moody's and "A-1" or "A-1+" by S&P and maturing

not mor.e than 360 calendar days after the date of put'cirase (provided that ratings on holding

companies shall not be considered the rating of the bank) or fully collateralized by Investment

Securities described in clause (ii) heleof for amounts in excess of deposit insurance;

(vi) Commercial paper which is rated at the time of purchase in the single

highest classification, "P-1" by Moody's and "A-1+" by S&P and which matures not more than

270 calendar days after the date ofpurchase;

(vii) Investments in a money market fund rated "AAAm" or "AAAm-G" or

better by S&P, including funds fol which the Trustee or an affiliate provides investment

management or other services but excluding funds with a floating net asset value;

(viii) "Pre-refunded Municipal Obligations," defined as follows: any bonds or

other obligations of any state of the United States of America or of any agency, instrumentality or

local goveinmental unit of any such state which are not callable at the option of the obligor prior

to maiurity or as to which irevocable instructious have been given by the obligor to call on the

date specified in the notice and (A) which are rated, based on an irrevocable escrow account or

fund (the "escrow"), in the highest rating category of Moody's or S&P or any successors thereto;

or (B) (1) which ale fully secured as to principal and interest and redemption premium, if any, by

an escrow consisting only of cash or obligations described in clause (ii) of this definition, which

escrow may be applied only to the payment of such plincipal of and interest and redemption

premium, if any, on such bonds or other obligations on the maturity date or dates thereof or the

specified redemption date or dates pursuant to such itrevocable instructions, as appropriate, and

iZ; wtrictr escrow is sufficient, as verified by a nationally recognized independent certified public

accountant, to pay principal of and interest and redernption premium, if any, on the bonds or other

obligations described in this paragraph on the matulity date or dates specified in the irrevocable

instructions leferred to above, as appropriate;

(ix) Any bonds or other obligations of any agency, instrumentality or local

governmental unit of any state of the United States of Arnerica which are rated "Aaa/AAA" or

general obligations of any such state with latings of "A2" or higher by Moody's and "A" or higher

by S&P.

(x) The Locai Agency Investment Fund (established under Sections 53600-

53609 of the California Government Code, as amended or si"tpplemented from time to time).

"Law" shall meal the Marks-Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985, being Article 4

of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Califcrrnia Government Code, and all laws amendatory

thereof or supplernental thereto.

"Letter of Representation" slrall n-rear-r the letter of the Authority delivered to and

accepted by 1he Depository on or priol to the issuance of rhe Autholity Bonds setting forth the

basii on which the Depository serves as depository fbl such Authority Bonds as originally

executed or as it may be supplernented or revised or replaced by a letter to a substitute depository.

6
4i6i-l'r74-9151.1 Page 54

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



"Local Obligations Fund" shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to

Section 5.01.

"Local Obligations Indenture" shall mean the indenture authorizing and securing

the Local Obiigations and pursuant to which the Local Obligations were issued.

"Local Obligation Purchase Contract" shall mean the purchase contract entered into

between the Authority and the Community Facilities District providing for the purchase of the

Local Obligations by the Authority with the proceeds of the Authority Bonds'

"Local Obligations" shall mean the Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom

Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2A24 to be issued by the Community

Facilities Dirtrirt pursuant to the Act and to be purchased by the Authority pursuant to the Law.

"Mayor" shall rnean the Mayor of the City.

"Minimum Sinking Fund Payments" shall mean the payments required by

Section 2.Ol to be deposited in the Sinking Fund Account.

"Moody's" shall mean Moody's Investors Service Inc., a corporation duly

organized and existing under and by virlue of the laws of the State of Delaware, and its successors

or-assigns, except ttrai if such entity shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the

functions of a municipal securities rating agency, then the term "Moody's" shall be deemed to

refer to any other nitionally recognized municipal securities rating agency selected by the

Authority (which shall be under no iiability by reason of such selection).

"Officer's Certificate" shall mean a certificate signed by an Authorized Officer.

"Opinion of Bold Counsel" shall mean a legal opinion signed by a Bond Counsel

selected by the AuthoritY.

"Outstanding" shall mean, with respect to the Authority Bonds and as of any date,

all Authority Bolds authorized, issued, authenticated and delivered hereunder, except:

(a) Authodty Bonds canceled or surrendered to the Trustee for cancellation

pursuant to Section 2.08;

(b) Authority Bonds deemed to have been paid pursuant to Section 12.02;

(c) Author.ity Bonds in lieu of or in substitution for which other Authority

Bonds shail have been authenticated and delivered pursuant to Section 2.03; and

(d) Authoilty Bonds paid pursuant to SectionZ'03'

"Ow.lel." sirall mean, as of any date, the Person or Persons in whose name o[ names

a pafticular Bond shall be registered on the Bond Register as of such date'

7
.tl(r5-1i74-9451 .1 Page 55

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



o'Person" shall mean an individual, a corporation, a partuership, an association, a

joilt stock cofitpany, a trust, any unincorporated organization or a govemment or political

subdivision thereof.

"Principal Fund" shall mean the fund by that name established pursuaut to

Section 5.01.

"Principal Installment," when used with respect to any Principal Payment Date,

shall mean the principal amount of Outstanding Authority Bonds due on such date'

"Principal Payment Date," when used with reference to an Authority Bond, shall

mean the maturity date or the Minimum Sinking Fund Payment date for such Authority Bond.

"Proceeds Fund" shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to

Section 5.01.

"Rebate Fund" shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to

Section 5.01.

"Rebate Instructions" shall mean the calculations and directions required to be

delivered to the Trustee by the Authority pursuant to the Tax Certificate.

"Rebate Requirement" shall mean the Rebate Requirement defined in the Tax

Certificate.

"Record Date" shall mean the fifteenth (15th) day of the month preceding any

Interest Payment Date, whether or not such day is a Business Day'

"Redemption Fund" shall mean the fund by that name established pursuaut to

Section 5.01.

"Responsible Off,rcer of the Trustee" means any officer within the global corporate

trust department (or any successor group ol department of the Trustee) inciuding any vice

president, assistant vice president, assistant secretary or any other officer or assistant officer ofthe

Trustee customarily performing functions similar to those performed by the persons who at the

time shail be such officers, respectively, with responsibility for the adrninistration of this Trust

Agreement.

"Revenue Fund" shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to

Section 5.01.

"Revenues" shall mean all amounts leceived by the Trustee as the payment of
interest on, or the equivalent tirereof, and the payment or return of principai of, or redernption

pr-enriums, if any, on, or the equivalent thereof, all Local Obligations, whethel as a result of
icheduled payments, or redemption premiums, Special Tax Prepayments or remedial ploceedings

taken in the event of a defar,rlt thereon, and all investment earnings on any money held in the Funds

held hereunder (except the Rebate Fund).

8

4r65-3574-945i 4 Page 56

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



"S&P" shall mean S&P Global Ratings, a business of Standard & Poor's Financial

Services LLC, and its successors or assigns, except that if such entity shall be dissolved or'

liquidated or shall no longer perforrn the functions of a municipal securities rating agency, then

the terrn "S&P" shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized rnunicipal securities

rating agency selected by the Authority (which shall be under no liability by reason of such

selection).

"Secretary" shall lnean the Secretary of the Authority.

"sinking Fund Account" shall mean the account withiir the Principal Fund by that

name established pursuant to Section 2'01.

"special Tax" shall mean the special tax authorized to be levied and collected

agually on all Taxable Property in the Improvement Area under and pursuant to the Act at the

special election held in the Community Facilities District, including boththe Facilities Special Tax

and the Services Special Tax (each as defined in the Local Obligations Indentule).

"special Tax Prepayments" shall mean all payments to the Cornmunity Facilities

District by or on behalf of the owner of a palcel within the Improvement Area subject to a Special

Tax to accomplish a pay-off of the Special Tax obligation perlaining to such parcel and the

discharge of the Special Tax lien with respect to such parcel (except the porlion thereof, if any,

which represents accrued interest on the Local Obligations).

"special Tax Revenues" shall mean all money collected and received by the

Community Facilities District on account of unpaid Special Tax obligations within the

Improvement Area, including all amounts collected in the normal course by the Community

f'acilities District, all Special Tax Prepayments and all amounts received by the Community

Facilities District as a result of superior court foreclosure proceedings brought to enforce payment

of delinquent Special Taxes within the Improvement Area, but excluding thelefrom any amounts

explicitly inclgded therein on account of collection charges, administrative cost charges, or

attorneys, fees and costs paid as a result offoreclosure actions.

"special Record Date" shall mean the date established by the Trustee pursuant to

Section 2.01 as a record date for the payment of defaulted interest on the Authority Bonds.

"State" shall mean the State of Califolnia'

"supplemental Trust Agleement" shall mean any trust agreement suppletnental to

or amendatory of this Trust Agreement which is duly executed and delivered in accordance with

the provisions of Article XI.

o'Ter.m Authority Bonds" shall rnean the Authority Bonds which are payable on or

before their specified maturity date flom Minimum Sinking Furrd Payments established for that

purpose and calculated to retire such Authority Bonds on or before their specif,red maturity date'

"Tax Certificate" shall mean each certificate for the Authority Bonds relating to

various federal tax requirements, including the requirelnents of Section 148 of the Code, signed

9
4l (r5-3574-9451 .4 Page 57

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



by the Authority and the Community Facilities Distlict on the Dated Date, as the same rnay be

amended or supplemented in accordance with its tetms'

"TLeasltrer" shall mean the Treasurer of the Authority'

,.Taxable Property" shall mean all ploperty within the Improvement Area taxable

under the Act in accordance with the proceedings for the authorizationofthe issuance of the Local

Obligations and the levy and collection of the Special Tax'

,.Trust Agreement" shall mean this Trust Agreement dated as of January I,2024,

by and among the Authority, the Community Facilities District and the Trustee pursuant to which

the Authority-Bonds are to be issued, as amended or supplemented from time to time in accordance

with its terms.

,,Trust Estate" shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the granting clause hereof.

,'Trllstee" shall mean U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Associatioti, a national

banking association duly organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America,

in its capacity as Trustee hereunder, and any successor as Trustee hereunder.

"Written Order" shall mean, when used with reference to the Authority, a written

order or written direction of the Authority to the Trustee signed by an Authorized Officer, and

when used with reference to the Community Facilities District, an instrument in writing signed by

the City Manager or the Finance Director, or by any other officer of the City duly authorized by

the City Council, as legislative body of the Community Facilities District, for that purpose'

SECTION 1.02.

all words imparting the

Except where the context otherwise requires,

singular number shall include the plural number and vice versa, and all

pronouns inferring the masculine gender shall include the feminine gender and vice versa. The

headings or titles of the several articles and secti ons hereof and the table of contents appended

hereto shall be solely fol convenience ofreference and shall not affect the meaning, constructtou

or effect hereof. Ail references herein to "Articles," "sections" and other subdivisions or clauses

are to the corresponding articles, sections, subdivisions ol clauses hereof; and the words "hereby,"

"herein," "hereof," "hereto," "herewith," "hereunder" and other words of similar import refer to

this Trust Agreement as a whole and not to any particular articie, section, subdivision or clause

thereof.

Rules of

4165-3574-9451 4

10
Page 58

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



ARTICLE II

OF AUTH

SECTION 2.01. The Authority Bonds. The Authority Bonds shall be issued under

and secured by this Trust Agreement and shall be in the form of fully registered bonds in

denominations of five thousand dollars ($5,000) or any integral multiple of five thousand dollars

($5,000) in excess thereof designated the "Folsom Ranch Financing Autholity City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Speciai Tax

Revenue Bonds, Series 2A24" and shall be in the aggregate principal amount of
clollars ($[par Amount]). The Authority Bonds shall be dated the Dated Date and shall bear interest

at the rates specified in the table below, such interest being payable semiannually on each Interest

Payment Date, and shall mature on the Principal Payment Dates in the following years in the

following principal amounts, namely:

Principal
Payment Date
(September 1)

Principal
Amount

Interest
Rate

$ %

l-erm Bonds

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

4'65-3574-9451 4

ll
Page 59

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Minirnum Silkilg Fund Payrrents are hereby established for the mandalory

redemption and payment of the Telm Autholity Bonds, which payments shall become due during

the years endingon the dates and in the amounts set forth in the following schedule (except that if
any Term Authority Bolds have been redeerned pursuant to Section 4.A2 ot 4.03, the amounts of

,u"h Mirrittrum Sinking Fund Payments shall be reduced proportionately by the principal amount

of all such Term Authority Bonds so redeemed), namely:

Term A tv Bond Maturins Seotember 1.201 I

Year Ending
September 1

Minimum Sinking
Fund Account Payment

$

Maturity,

Term Bond np Seotember 1 20t I

Year Ending
September I

Minimum Sinking
Fund Account Payment

Maturity.

All such Minimum Silking Fund Payments for the Term Authority Bonds shall be

deposited in a separate account in the Principai Funcl, which account is hereby established and

shall be known as the Sinking Fund Account and which account the Authority hereby agrees and

covenants to cause to be maintainecl by the Trustee so long as any Term Authority Bonds are

Outstanding. All money in the Sinking Fund Account on September 1 of each year during the

period beginning on Sepiember 1, 201 l, and ending on September 1, 2}lJ,both years inclusive,

r6utt U. used and withdrawn by the Autholity on each such September I for the mandatory

redemption or payment of the Term Authority Ronds maturing on September 1, 20LI; and ail

*onry in the Sinking Fund Account on September 1 of each year during the period beginning on

September l, 20L_], and ending on September 1 , 201-], both years inclusive, shall be used and

wiihdrawp by the Authority on each such Septernber I for the mandatory redemption or payment

of the Term Authority Bonds maturir.rg on September 1, 201-], and the Authority hereby agrees

ancl covenants with the Owners of the lespective Term Authority Bonds to call and redeem in

accordance with Section 4.04 or pay tire Terrn Authorily Bonds from Minimum Sinking Fund

payments deposited i1 the Sinking Fund Account pursuant to this paragraph wheneveL on

September 1 of any year there is money in the Sinkirig Fund Account available for such pllrpose.

4l(r5-3.574-9451 4

12
Page 60

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



The interest o1 and principal of and redemption pletniums, if any, on the Authority

Bo'ds shall be payable in lawfui money of the United States of America. The Autholity Bonds

shall be issuecl as fully registered bonds and shall be numbered f}om one (1) upwald. The

Authority Bonds shall bear interest from the Datecl Date. Payment of the interest on any Authority

Bond shall be made to the Person whose name appears on the Bond Register as the Owner thereof

as of the close of business on the Record Date, such interest to be paid by check mailed by first

class mail on each lnterest Payment Date to the Owner at the address which appears on the Bond

Register as of the Record Date for that purpose; except that in the case of an Owner of one million

dol'iars ($1,000,000) or more in aggregate principal amount of Authority Bonds, upon written

request of such Owner to the Trustee received not later than such Record Date, such interest shall

be paid on such Interest Payment Date in immediately available funds by wire transfer to an

account in a bank or trllst company or savings bank that is a member of the Federal Reserve Systern

and that is located in the coniinental United States of America. The principai of and redemption

premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds shall be payable by the Trustee at its Corporate Trust

bffi." uporl presentation and surrender of such Authority Bonds. Interest shall be calculated on

the basis of a 360-day yer consisting of twelve (12) 30-day calendar monlhs; rrroYidecl' that

notwithstanding any other provision herein contained, any interest not punctually paid or duly

provided for, aJ a ,esult of an Event of Default or otherwise, shall forthwith cease to be payable to

ih" O*n.'. on the Record Date and shall be paid to the Owner in whose name the Authority Bond

is registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such defaulted

i'terest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice of which shall be given to the Owner not less than ten

(10) Business Days prior to such Special Record Date'

SECTION 2.02. Fornr of Authority Bonds. The Authority Bonds and the forms of

the certificate of auth"nticutionJh. ussignment and the DTC endorsement to appear thereon shall

be substantially as set forth in Exhibit A hereto, with such variations, insertiorrs or omissions as

are appropriate and not inconsistent herewith.

SECTION 2.03

any Authority Bond is
Autlrori Bonds Mutilated Destroved. Stolen or Lost. In the event

rnutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Authority may execute and, upon

its request in writing, the 'l"rustee shall authenticate and deliver a substitute Authority Bond of the

same principal amount and lnaturity as the mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed Authority Bond in

exchange and substitution for such rnutilated Authority Bond, or in lieu of and substitgtion for

such lost, stolen or destroyed Authority Bond.

Application for exchange and substitution of mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed

Authority Bonds iliall be made to the Tlustee at its Corporate Trust Office. In every case the

applicani lbr- a substitute Authority Bond shall furnish to the Trustee indemnification to its
saiisfaction, and in every case of loss, theft or destruction of an Authority Bond, the applicant shall

also furnish to the Authority and the Tlustee evidence to their satisfaction of such loss, theft or

destructio' and of the ideniity of tlie applicant, and in every case of mutilation of an Autliority

Bond, the applicant shall surrender the rnutilated Authority Bond to the Trustee.

Notwithstandilg the folegoing provisiotrs of this Section, in the event any such

Authority Bond shall irave maiured, and no default has occuned which is then continuing in the

paymer-riof 1he interest on or principal of oI redemption plemiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds,

ih; Trlrstee slrall. upon writien direction from the Authority, pay the same (rvithout surrender

4l6r-i5?4-9451 4

13

Page 61

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



tirereof except in the case of a mutilated Authority Bond) instead of issuing a substitute Autholity

Bopd so long as indemnification is furnished as above provided.

Upon the issuance of any substitute Autholity Bond, the Trustee may charge the

Owler of such Authority Bond for its reasonable fees and expenses in connection therewith' Every

substitute Authority Bond issued pursuant to the plovisions of this Section by virtue of the fact

that any Autirority Bond is lost, stolen or destroyed shall constitute an oliginal additional

contraciual obligation of the Authority, whether or not the lost, stolen or destroyed Authority Bond

shall be found at any time, or be enforceable by anyone, and shail be entitled to all the beriefits

hereof equally and propor.tionally with any and all other Authority Bonds duly issued hereunder

to the same extent as tne Authority Bonds in substitution for which such substitute Authority Bonds

were issued.

SECTION 2.04. Execution qf Authority Bonds. All Authority Bonds shall, fi"om

time to time, be executed otr U"t *f of the Authority by the manual or facsimile signature of the

Treasurer ald attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretaly'

If any of the officers wlio shall have signed any Authority Bond shall ceaseto be

such officer of the Authority before the Authority Bond so signed shall have been actually

authenticated by the Trustee or delivered, such Authority Bond nevertheless rnay be authenticated,

issued and delivered with the same force and effect as though the person or persons who signed

such Authority Bond had not ceased to be such officer of the Authority, and any such Authority

Bond may be signed on behalf of the Authority by those persons who, at the actual date of the

execution of such Authority Bond, shall be the proper offlcers of the Authority, although on the

date of such Authority Bond any such person shall not have been such officer of the Authority.

SEC'IION 2.05. Transfer and Resistration of Authoritv Bonds. The Authority Bonds

slial] be transferred or exchanged and title thereto shall pass only in the manner provided herein,

and the Trustee shall keeP books constituting the Bond Register for the registration and transfer of

the Authority Bonds as Provided herein. All Authority Bonds presented for transfer or exchange

shall be accompanied bY a written instrument ol instruments of transfer or authorization for

exchang e, in form and with guaranty of signature satisfactory to the Trustee, duly executed by the

Owner or by his or her attorney duly authorized in writing, and all such Authority Bonds shall be

surrendered to the Trustee and canceled by the Trustee pursuant to Section 2.08. The Authority

and the Trustee shall be entitled to oonclusively treat tlie Owner as the absolule owner of such

Authority Bond for the purpose of receiving any payment of the interest on or principal ol or

redernption premium, if any, on such Authority Bond and for all other pulposes heleof, whether

such Autiroiity eond shall be overdue or not, and neither the Authority nor the Trustee shall be

affecled by ariy notice to the contrary. Al1 such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy

and dischar-g. il-t. liability upon such Authority Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.

SEC'IION 2.06 Reuulations with Respect to Lixchanue or Transfer of Ar,rtholitv

Ronds

In all cases in which the privilege of exchanging or registering the transfer of

Authority Bolds is exelcised, the Authority shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and

deliver Autl-rority Bonds in accordance with the provisions hereof. There shall be no charge to the

.1 lfi5-i571-945 I '1

14

Page 62

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Owner for any such exchange or registration of transfer of Authority Bonds, but the Authority may

require the payment of a srlm suffrcient to pay any tax or other governmental charge requiled to

be paid with respect to any such exchange or registration of transfer'. Neither the Authority nor

the Trustee shall be required to registel the transfer ol exchange of any Authority Bond during the

period established Uy itre Trustee for selection of Autholity Bonds for redemption or to register

ihe transfer or exchange of arry Authority Bond selected for redemption'

Upon surender for exchange or transfer of any Authority Bond at the Corporate

Trust Office of the Trustee, the Authority shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and

deliver in the narne of the Owner (in the case of transfers) a new Authority Bond or Authority

Bonds, of Authorized Denominations, in the aggregate principal amount which the registered

Owner is entitled to receive.

All new Authority Bonds delivered upon any transfer or exchange shall be valid

obligations of the Authority, evidencing the same debt as the Authority Bonds sunendered, shall

be secured hereby and shall be entitled to all of the security and benefits hereof to the same extent

as the Authority Bonds sunendered.

SECTION 2.07 Authentication of Bonds. No Authority Bond shall be

secured hereby or entitled to the benefits hereof ol shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose

unless there shall be endorsed on such Authority Bond the Trustee's certificate of authentication,

substantially in the form pr.escribed herein, executed by the manual signature of a duly authorized

signatory oi th* Trustee; and such certificate on any Authority Bond issued by the Authority

heieunder shall be conclusive evidence and the only competent evidence that such Authority Bond

has been duly authenticated and delivered hereunder'

SECTION 2.08,

of any mutilated Authori

SECTION 2.09.

special, limited obligati

Cancellation of Au Bonds. Upon the surender to the Trustee

ty Bond, or any Authority Bond surrendered for transfer ot exchange, or

any Authority Bond redeemed or paid at maturity, the same shall forthwith be canceled and the

Trustee shall destroy such Authority Borrds

with respect thereto to the Authority.
and the Trustee shall deliver a certificate of destruction

al O The Authority Bonds are

ons of the Autholity, payable from the Trust Estate and secured as to the

payment of the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, thereon in accordance

with their tet'ms and the terms hereof, solely by the Trust Estate. The Authority Bonds do not

constitute a charge against the general cred it of the Authority or any of its members, and under no

circumstances shall the Authority be obligated to pay the interest on or principal of or redemptiotl

premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds except fi'om the Tr"ust Estate. Noue of the Community

Facilities District, the City, the State, any public agency (other than the Authority) or any member

of the Community Facilities District or the Authority is obligated to pay the interest on or principal

of or redemption premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds, and neither the faith and credit nor the

taxir-rg po*i, of tire Community Facilities District, the City, the State or any public agency thereof

o, un! *ember-of the Authority or the Community Facilities District is pledged to the payrnent of

the interest on or pr-incipal of or redemption premiums, if any, oll the Autl,ority Bonds. The

payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds

4l(r5-3574-9451 4

1<

Page 63

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



does not constitgte a debt, liability or obligatiou of the Cornmunity Facilities District, the City, tlie

State or any public agency (other than the Authority) or any member of the Authority.

No agreernent 01.covenant contained in any Authority Bond or herein shall be

deemed to be an agreement or covenant of any officer, rnember, agent or employee ofthe Authority

in his or her. ildividual capacity, and neither the members of the Authority nor any officer or

employee thereof executing the Authority Bonds shall be liable personally on any Authority Bond

or be subiect to any p"rronul liability or accountability by reason of the issuance of the Authority

Bonds.

SECTION 2.10 ial Book- Authori

Bonds.

(a) Except as otherwise provided in subsections (b) and (c) of this Section, all of the

Authoriiy Bonds iniiiatty issued shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The

Depository Trust Company, New Yolk, New York ("DTC"), or such other nominee as DTC shall

request pursuant to th; Leiter of Representation. Payment of the interest on any Authority Bond

,"girtrr"d in the name of Cede & Co. shall be made on each Interest Payment Date for such

Authority Bonds to the account, in the matlner and at the address indicated in or pursuaut to the

Letter of Representation.

(b) The Authority Bonds initially shall be issued in the form of a single authenticated

fuily regiiter.ed Authority Bond for each stated maturity of such Authority Bonds, representing the

uggr"git" principal amount of the Authority Bonds of such maturity. Upon initial issuance' the

oi^t"rrt ip^of ali such Authority Bonds shall be registered in the registration records maintained

by the Trustee pursuant to Section 2.05 in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, or such

other nominee as DTC shall request pursuant to the Letter of Representation. The Trustee and any

paying agent may conclusivelytreaiDTC (or its nominee) as the sole and exclusive owner of the

Autnority Bonds registered inlts narne for the purposes of payment of the principal or redemption

price of and interesl on such Authority Bonds, selecting the Authority Bonds or portions thereof

to be redeemed, giving any notice pennitted or required to be given to Owners hereunder,

registering the transfer of Authority Bonds, obtaining any consent or other action to be taken by

Owners of the Authority Bonds and for all other purposes whatsoever; and neither the Authority

nor the Trustee or any paying agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary, Neither the

Trustee nor any paying age"t rtrutt have any responsibility or obligation to any Participant (which

shall rnean, for purpoies-of this Section, securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies,

clearing corporations and other entities, sofile of whom directly or indirectly own D fC), any

p"rro,rlluiming a beneficial ownership interest in the Authority Bonds under or tlrl'ough DTC or

any participant, or any other person which is not shown on the registration records as being an

Owner, with respect to (i) the iccuracy of any records maintained by DTC or any Participant' (ii)

the payment by DTC oi uny parlicipant of any amount in respect of tlie principal or redemption

pl." of or interest on the Authority Bonds, (iii) any notice which is permitted or required to be

giu"n to Owners of Agtholity Bonds heleunder', (iv) the selection by DTC or any Palticipant of

fny p.rron to receive payment in the event of a partial redemption of the Autholity Bonds, or (v)

uny .onr"nt given ot otfrlr action taken by DTC as Owner of Authority Bonds. The Tlustee shall

pay al1 prilcipal of and prernium, if any, and interest on the Authority Bonds only at the times- to

it. u..orrnts, at the addiesses and otherwise in accordance with the Letter of Representation' and

,l l 6:-15 74-9,15 1 .;i

16
Page 64

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



all sgcir payments shall be valid and effective to satisfy fuliy and discharge the Trustee's

obligations with respect to the principal of and prerniurn, if any, and interest on the Authority

Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. Upon delivery by DTC {o the Trustee of written

notice to the effect that DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of its then

existilg norninee, the Authority Bonds will be transferable to such new nominee in accordance

with subsection (e) of this Section.

(c) In the event that the Authority determines that the beneficial owners of tlie
Authority Bonds shall be able to obtain Authority Bond certificates, the Tt'ustee shali, upon the

written instruction from the Authority, so notifl' DTC, whereupon DTC shall notify the

participants of the availability through DTC of Authority Bond celtificates. In such event, the

Authoiity Bonds will be transferable in accordance with subsection (e) of this Section. DTC may

determine to discontinue providing its services with respect to the Authority Bonds at any time by

giving written notice of such discontinuance to the Trustee and discharging its responsibilities with

i"tp..t thereto under applicable law. In such event, the Authority Bonds will be transferable in

accordance with subseclion (e) of this Section. Wrenever DTC requests the Trustee to do so, the

Trustee will cooperate with DTC in taking appropriate action after reasonable notice to affange for

another securities depository to maintain custody of all certificates evidencing the Authority Bonds

then Outstanding. 
-ln 

such event, the Authority Bonds will be transferable to such securities

depository in accordance with subsection (e) of this Section, and thereafter, all references in this

Trust Agreement to DTC or its nominee shail be deemed to refer to such successor securities

depository and its nontinee, as appropriate.

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Trust Agreement to the contrary, so

long as ail Authority Bonds Outstanding are registered in the name of any nominee of DTC, all

paylents with respect to the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on each such Authority

bo"d and all notices with respect to each such Authority Bond sliall be made and given,

respectively, to DTC as provided in the Letter of Representation.

(") In the event that any transfer or exchange of Authority Bonds is authorized under

subsection (b) or (c) of this Section, such transfer or exchange shall be accomplished upon receipt

by the Trustee from the registered owner thereof of the Authority Bonds to be transfened or

exchanged and appropriate instruments of transfer to the permitted transferee, all in accordance

with the applicabii pravisions of Sections 2.05 and 2.06. In the event Authority Bond certificates

are issuedto Owners other than Cede & Co., its successor as nominee for DTC as Owner of all the

Authority Bonds, another securities depository as Owner of all the Authority Bonds, or the

nominee of such successor securities depository, the provisions of Sections 2.05 and 2.06 shall

aiso apply to, among other things, the registration, exchange and transfer of the Authority Bonds

and the method of payment of principal of, premium, if any, and iuterest on the Authority Bonds.

SECTION 2.1i CUSIP Numbers. The Authori ty in issuing the Authority Bonds may

use "CUSIP" numbers (if then generally in use), and, if so, the'flustee sliall use "CUSIP" numbers

irr lotices of redemption as a convenience to Owners; provided that the Trustee shall have no

liability for any defect in tl-re "CUSIP" numbers as they appear on any Authority Bond, notice or

elsewhere, and, provided further that any such notice may state that no represerrtation is nrade as

to the correctness of such numbers either as printed on the Authority Bonds or as contained in any

notice of redemption ancl that reliance may be placed only on the other identification numbers

17
4l6r-3i74-9451 4 Page 65

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



printed on the securities, and any such redemption shali not be affected by any defect in or omission

of such numbers. T5e Author-ity shall prornptly notiff the Trustee in writing of any change in

CUSIP numbers.

ARTICLE III

ISSUANCE OF A I J'IHORITY RONDS

SECTION 3.01.
Bonds shall be executed

with a Written Order au

Provisions for the Issuance of Authorifv Bonds. The Authority

by the Authority and delivered to the Trustee for authentication, together

thorizing and directing the Trustee to authenticate the Authority Bonds

and containing instructious as to the delivery of the Authority Bonds. The Trustee shall

authenticate and deliver the Authority Bonds upon

following having been made available to it:
receipt of such Written Order and upon the

(a) A copy of the resolution adopted by the Authority approving this Trust Agreement

and the execution and delivery by the Authority hereof, duly cedfied by the Secretary to have

been duly adopted by the Authority and to be in fuIl force and effect on the date of such

certification;

(b) The proceeds of sale of the Authority Bonds;

(c) An Officer's Certificate stating that all conditions precedent to the authorization of
the Authority Bonds have been satisfied and that the Authority is not in default in the performance

of any of the agreements, conditions, covenants or terms contained herein;

(d) An original executed countetpart hereof;

(e) The Local Obligations to be purchased with the proceeds of the Authority Bonds,

registered in the name of the Trustee; and

(D An Opinion or Opinions of Borrd Counsel addressing the validity and, if applicable,

the tax-exempt status of the Authority Bonds and the validity of the Local Obligations, subject to

such exceptions as may be reasonable and appropriate.

SECTION 3.02 Paritv and Subordinate Bonds. So long as any of the AuthoritY

Bonds remain Outstanding, the Authority shall not issue any bonds or obligations payable from

Revenues

4165-l-i74-945 t 4

18
Page 66

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



ARTICLE IV

RTIDEMPTI ONOFAUTHORITY DS

SECTION 4.01. Ceneral__&edemption Prnv.isions. Tlie Authority Bonds that are

subject to rederlption prior to maturity pursuant to this Trust Agreement shall be ledeemabie, upon

-uil"d notice u, prouid.d in this Article, at such times and upon such terms as are contained in

this Article.

SECTION 4.02. Optional Redenlption. The Authority Bonds are subject to optional

redemption by the Authority prior to their respective maturity dates as a whole or in palt on any

date on or after September 1-,201 1, from any source of available funds other than Minimum

Sinking Fund payments and Special tax Prepayments, upon mailed notice as provided herein, at

the folLwing ,.d.*ption prices (computed upon the principal amount of the Authority Bonds or

portio's thereof calteO foriedemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for

redemption:

rc3% if redeerned on any date on or after September 1, 201 I

through August 31,201 l;

102% if redeened on any date from September 1, 201 
.l 

through

August 31,201 l;

101% if redeemed on any date from Septernber 1, 201 ) through

August 31 , 20[ l; and

100% if redeemed on September 1, 201-l and any date thereafter.

SECTION 4.03. Extraordinary Redemption. The Authority Bonds are subject to

extlaordinary redernption by the Authority prior to their respective maturity dates, as a whole or

in part on any Interest Payment Date on or after September 1,20[ 1, solely from funds derived

from extraordinary redemption of Local Obligations from Special Tax Prepayments, at the

following redernption prices (computed upon the principal arnount of the Authority Bonds or

por.tions ihereof called ior redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for

redemption:

103% if ledeemed on any lnterest Payment Date on or after

September' 1 , 201 I through March 1,201 l;

102% if r-edeemed on an Interest Payment Date on September 1,

20f ) and March 1,20[ ];

101% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on September 1,

20t I and March 1,20[ l; and

n1%if redeemed on September 1, 20[ I and any Interest Payment

Date tltereafter.

.ll6r-3:74-9451 +

t9
Page 67

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



SECTION 4.04. Manclatory_l1g{lgmplig.lt. The Term Autho|ity Bonds maturing on

Septernber 1,201 j,are subject to *unt^toty redemption by the Authority prior to theil maturity

daie in part on -eptemuer i of each year on and after September l, 20[ l, to and including

Septernber l,2Al J; and the Term Autholity Bonds maturing on Septernber 1, 20[ l, are subject

to inandatory rede-mption by the Autholity prior to their maturity date in part on Septernber I of
each year on and after September 1, 20{-J, to and including September 1, 20t ] from (and in the

amount of) the Milimum Sinking Fund Payments due and payable for the Telm Authority Bonds

on each such daie, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest

thereou to the date of redemption, without premium'

SECTION 4.05. Redenrption- lnstructioils. Upon any prepayment of a Local

Obligarion, the Autho.ity rhutl d"ti* to ihe Trustee at least forty-five (45) days prior to the

redeiption date a Written Order of the Authority designating the arnounts and rnaturities of the

Authoiity Bonds to be redeemed, which shall be in the manner necessary to enable the Authority

to deliver a Cash Flow Certificate satisffing the requirements described below. In the event only

a portion of the Outstanding Authority Bonds of any maturity are to be redeemed at any one time,

the Trustee shall select the particulai Authority Bonds of each maturity date to be redeemed in

accordance with DTC pro""irr.., (which, at the time of the issuance of the Authority Bonds, would

be a redemption by loil or, if the Authority Bonds are not then in book-entry, in a manner that it

deems appropriate and fair. The Trustee shall redeem Authority Bonds in Authorized

Denominajtions. The Trustee shall promptly notify the Authority in writing of the numbers of the

Authority Bonds so selected for redemption on any date. Upon any redemption of a portion but

not al1 of the Outstanding Authority Bonds, the Authority shail deliver to the Trustee a Cash Flow

Certificate to the effect that, assuming all payments are made with respect to the Local Obligations,

(i) the Revenues, together with moneys on deposit in other funds and account held under this Trust

{greement, will be sufficient to pay all Principal Installments, Minimum Sinking Fund Payments

und int"r"rt payments on the Authority Bonds when due; and (ii) the redemption premiums, if any,

o' the LocaiObligations, together with other Revenues available to the Trustee for such puryose,

are sufficient to offset any dlfference between the interest to accrue on the Authority Bonds to be

paid or redeemed with the proceeds of prepayment of such Local Obligations (plus any redemption

pr.emium payable upor, ,.i"*ption of such Authority Bonds) and the income to be eanred on any

investment of such pro""eds (assured as of the date of payment thereof), in each case until the date

of payment or redemption of Authority Bonds, such that in no event will the prepayment of Local

Obligations cause the Trustee to have insufficient funds to pay debt service on the Autholity Bonds

when due. In no event shall Authority Bonds be redeemed if upon snch redemption the principal

amount of the Local Obligations remaining outstanding will be less than the total plincipal atnount

of outstanding Authority-Bonds. Such Written Order of the Authority may specify that optional

redemption oith. Authority Bonds will be conditioned upon receipt of funds ol other events.

SECTION 4.06. Notice of Redemption. Subject to receipt of the Written Order of

the Author-ity delivered p.,.r,lillto S."tio;4.05, the Trustee shal1, at the sole cost and expense of

the Ar.rthority, give notice of redemption as hereinafter" provided in this Section; provieled,_ that

Author.ity BtrrJs, identified by custn numbers, serial numbers and maturity date, have been

called for redernption and, in the case of Authority Bonds to be redeemed iri part only, the portion

of the pri'cipal arnount thereof that has been called for redernption (or if all the Outstanding

Authority Bonds are to be redeemed, so stating, in which event such serial numbets may be

omitted), that they will be due and payable on the date fixed for redernption (specifying such date)

4t6i-1574-q451 4

20
Page 68

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



upon surrender thereof to the Trustee at its Corporate Trust Office, subject to any conditions to

such redemption specified in the Wlitten Order of the Authority, at the ledemption plice

(specifying such plice), together with any accrued interest to such date, and that all interest on the

Authority Bonds (or portions thereof) so to be redeerned will cease to accrue on atid after such

date and that from and after such date such Autholity Bond (ol such portion thereofl) shall no longer

be entitled to any lien, benefit or security hereunder, and the Owner thereof shall have no rights in

respect of such redeemed Authority Bond or such portion except to receive payment from such

*on.y of such ledemption price plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption. If sufficient

monies for the payment of the redemption price of all Authority Bonds to be redeemed are not then

on deposit with the Trustee, such notice shall also state that redemption is conditioned upon the

timely deposit of sufficient funds therefor with the Trustee.

Such notice shall be mailed by first class mail, in a sealed envelope, postage

prepaid, at least thirty (30) but not more than sixty (60) days before the date fixed for redemption,

to the Owners of such Authority Bonds (or portions tirereof) so called for redemption, at their

respective addresses as the same shall last appeal on the Bond Register; pfpvidgd" that neither the

failure of an Owner to receive notice of redemption of Authority Bonds hereunder nor any error

in such notice shall affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of Authority Bonds.

Any notice of optional redemption hereunder may be rescinded by written notice

given by the Authority to the Trustee no later than ttu'ee (3) Business Days priol to the date

specif,red for redemption, instructing the Trustee to send such notice of rescission. The Trustee

shall give notice of rescission of the notice of optional redernption or non-satisfaction of any

condiiions specified in the notice of optionai redemption as soon as practicable to tl-re same parties

a1d in the same manner as the notice of redemption was given pursuant to this Section.

SECTION 4.07 Pavment of Recleemed Ar-rtholitv Bonds. If notice of redemption

has been given and not rescinded and if tlie conditions to such redemption

have been satisfied, each as provided in Section 4.06, the Authority Bonds
specified therein, if any,
(or the portions thereof)

called for redemption shall become inevocably due and payable on the date fixed for redemption

at the redemption price thereof, together with accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption,

upon presentation and surrender of the Authority Bonds to be redeemed at the Corpolate Trust

Offr". of the Trustee specified in the notice of redemption. If thele shall be called for redemption

less than the full principal amount of an Authority Bond, the Authodty shall execute and deliver

and the Trustee shall authenticate, upon sunender of such Authority Bond, and without charge to

the Owner thereof, Authority Bonds of like interest rate and maturity in an aggregate principal

amount equal to the unledeemed porlion of the principal amount of the Authority Bonds so

surrendered in such Authot'ized Denominations as shall be specified by the Owner thereof.

If any Authority Bond or any portion thereof shall have been duly called for

redemption and payment of the redemption price, together with unpaid interest accrued to the date

fixed for redemption, shall have been made or provided for by the Authority, then interest on such

Authority Bond or such portion thereof shall cease to accrue fi'oil such date, and lrom and after

such date such Authority Bond or such portion thereof shall no longer be entitled to any lien,

beneflt or security hereunder, and the Owner thereof shall have no rights in respect of such

Author.ity Bond or such porlion except to receive payment of such redernption price and unpaid

interest accrued to the clate fixed for redernption.

4l(r5-157.1-9451 4

21
Page 69

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



SECTION 4.08. Pur.chase in Lieu of Reclcurption. In lieu of lederrption of any

Authority Borrd pursuant to tlie priovisions of Section 4.02 or Section 4.03, and after" complying

with Section 4.05, amounts on deposit in the Proceeds Fund, the Principal Fund oI in the

Rede'rption Fund may be used and wirhdrawn by the Trustee at any time prior to a notice of

redempiion having been delivered, upon a Wlitten Order for the purchase of such Authority Bonds

at pubiic or private sale as and when and at such prices as the Authority may in its discretion

determi'e, but not in excess of the lower of the highest or then current redemption price theleof

plus accrued ilterest to the purchase date; and all Authority Bonds so purchased shall be delivered

to the Trustee for cancellation'

ARTICLE V

REVENUES AND FUNDS FOR AUTHO RITY BONDS

SECTION 5.01. Establishrnent of Funds. There is hereby established with the

Trustee, and the Trustee hereby agrees to maintain, the following
Authority Bonds, which the Trustee shall keep separate and apart from

held by it: the Revenue Fund, the Interest Fund, the Principal Fund,

Proceeds Fund, the Local Obligations Fund and the Rebate Fund.

SECTION 5.02. Deposit of Proceecls of Authorjtv Bonds. Tlie net proceeds received

from the sale of the Authority no"as (in the amount of $fPurchase Price], consisting of the

pri'cipal amount thereof, lplus/lessl the [net] original issue fpremium/discount] of
^$[prer.,irro/Discount] 

and less an underwriter's discount of $lUW Discountl) shail be deposited

by the Trustee in the Proceeds Fund.

SECTION 5.03. Proceeds Fund. The amounts in the Proceeds Fund shall be applied

forthwith by the Trustee for the pur-hase of the Local Obligations pursuant to the Local Obligation
purchase iontract in accordance with a Written Order of the Authority whereupon the Ploceeds

Fund shall be closed. If any amount shall remain in the Proceeds Fund following such purchase,

such amount shall be transferred to the Revenue Fund.

SECTION 5.04 Local Obli ions Furtcl. All Local Obligations acquired by the

Trustee pursuant to Section 5.03 shall be deposited in the Local Obligations Fund, which the

Trustee shall establish and maintain.

SECTION 5.05 Revenue Fund. All Revenues received by tile Trustee, other than

Revelues derived fi"om the early redemption of Local Obligations from Special Tax Prepayn'Ients

(which shall be admilistered in accordance with Section 5.06), shall be deposited by the Trustee

in the Revenue Fund. On each Interest Payment Date and Principal Payrnent Date, the Trustee

shall transfer Revenues (to the extent that Revenues are available therein) from the Revenue Fund,

in the amounts specifiedin Sections 5.07 and 5.08, for deposit into the respective Funds specified

therein ir-r the order. of priority herein set forth, the requirements of each Fr.rnd to be ftrlly satisfied,

leaving no deficiencies therein, prior to any deposit into any Fund later in priority. On each lutelest
paymJnt Date and pr-incipal Payment Date, after making the deposits lequired by Sections 5.07

uni 5.0g, the Tr-ustee shall transfer all remaining money in the Revenue Fund to the Indenture

Trustee for cleposit pursuant to the Local Obligations indenture.

special trust funds fol the

al1other funds and moneYs

the Redemption Fund, the

4l(15-3574-9451 4

22
Page 70

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



SECTION 5.06. Revenues Derived frorn SpecialTax P

Facilities District and the Authority acknowledge tirat amounts

Facilities Distlict on account of Special Tax Prepayments are to be

nts. The Community
received by the CornmunitY

utilized for the sole purpose of
the prior- redemption of Local Obligations pul'suant to Section 4.03, and not to pay current,

scheduled clebt ser.vice payments on the Local Obligations. Correspondingly, in order to maintain

a proper ratio between debt service payments on the Local Obligations and debt service payments

on the Authority Bonds, all Revenues received by the Trustee which are derived frorn the early

redernption of Local Obligations from Special Tax Prepayments when received by the Community

Facilities District shall be deposited in the Redemption Fund arrd used to redeem the Authority

Bonds pursuant to Section 4.03, in accordance with a Written Order of the Authority delivered

pursuant to Section 4.05.

SECTION 5.07

Interest Payment Date

Interest Fund. The Trustee shall deposit in the Interest Fund on each

frorn the Revenue Fund an amount of Revenues which, together with any

amounts then on deposit in the interest Fund, is equal to the

due on such date. On each Interest Payment Date, the Trustee

on the Authority Bonds on such date from the Interest Fund'

interest due on tlie Authority Bonds

shall pay the interest due and payable

SECTION 5.08. Principal Fund. After satisfying the requilements of the foregoing

Section 5.07 respecting deposits in the Interest Fund, the Trustee shall deposit in the Principal

Fund (i) on eactrprincipal Payment Date frorn the Reventie Fund an atnount of Revenues which,

together with any amounts then on deposit in the Principal Fund (other than amounts previously

deposited on account of any Authority Bonds which have matuled but which have not been

presented for payment) is suificient to pay the Principal Installments on the Authority Bonds due

fn such principal payment Date and (ii) on each September 1 on which a Minimum Sinking Fund

payment is required io be made (for deposit in the Sinking Fund Account) fi'om the Revenue Fund

an amount of Revenues which is equal to the Minimum Sinking Fund Payment due and payable

on such date. On each Principal Pa-yment Date, the Tlustee shall pay the principal ol redemption

price due a1d payable on the Authority Bonds on such date fi'om the Principal Fund.

SECTION 5.09,

Redemption Fund pursuant
purchasing ali or a portion o

Redemption Fund. All money held in or transferred to the

to Section 5.06 shall be used for the purpose of redeeming or

f the Outstanding Authority Bonds pursuant to Section 4.03, and the

Trustee shall use other moneY s in the Redemption Fund for the payment of the redenption price

of Authority Bonds call
to the redemption date.

SECTION 5.10.
needed a fund separate

ed for redemption pursuant to Section 4.02,tagethel'with accrued interest

Rebate Fund. The'I'r'ustee agrees to establish and maintail when

fronr auy othel fund established aud maintained hereundel designated the

Rebate Fund. The Trustee shall depos it in the Rebate Frtnd, from funds rnade available by the

Authority, the Rebate Requirelnent, all in accordance with the Rebate Instructions received from

the Authority. The Trustee will apply money held in tlie Rebate Fund as provided in Section 7'04

and according to instructiotls plovidecl by the Authority. Subject to tlte provisions of Section 7.04,

all money held in the Rebate Fund is hereby pledged to secure payments to the United States of
America, and the Authority and the Coumunt ty Facilities District and the Owners will have no

dghts in or claim to such money. The Ttustee will invest ail money held in the Rebate Fund in

Investment Secr,rrities as directed in u'riting by the Authority. such written direction to specifr

4 I 65-35 74-945 I .,1

/J

Page 71

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



which Investment Securities are to be invested il, and all investrnent earnings with respect thet'eto

shall be deposited in the Rebate Fund.

Upon receipt of tlie Rebate Instructions required by the Tax Certificale to be

delivered to the Trustee, the Trustee will rernit part or all of the balance held in the Rebate Fund

to the United States of America as so directed. In addition, if the Rebate Instructions so direct, the

Trustee will deposit money into or transfer money out of the Rebate Fund from or into such Funds

as the Rebate Instructions shali direct. The Trustee shall be deemed conclusively to have complied

with such provisions if it follows the wlitten dilections of the Authority including supplying all

necessary information in the manner provided in the Tax Certificate to the extent such information

is reasonably available to the Trustee, and shall have no liability or responsibility to monitor or

enfolce compliance by the Authority with the tems of the Tax Certificate'

The Trustee shall have no obligation to rebate any amounts required to be lebated

pursuant to this Section, other than from money held in the Rebate Fund or from other money

provided to it by the Aithority. The Trustee shall not be responsible for computing the Rebate
'Requirement, 

and computations of the Rebate Requirement shall be furnished to the Trustee or on

behalf of the Authority in accordance with the Tax Certificate.

Notwithstalding any other provision hereof, including in particular Article XII
pertaining to defeasance, the obtigaiiotr to remit the rebate amounts to the United States of America

a,rd to comply with all other reqJirements of this Section and the Tax Certificate shall survive the

defeasance or payment in full of the Authority Bonds.

ARTICLE VI

SECURITY FOR AND INVESTMENT OF MONEY

SECTION 6.01. Securi{,. All money required to be deposited with or paid to the

Trustee in any of the Funds (other than the Rebate Fund) referred to in any provision hereof shall

be held by the Trustee in tiust, and except for money held for the payment or redemption of

Authority Bonds or the payment of interest on Authority Bonds pursuant to Section 12.03, shall,

while treia Uy the Trustee, constitute part of the Trust Estate and shall be subject to the lien and

pledge created irerebY.

SECTION 6.02 investment of Monev. So Iong as the Authority Bonds are

Outstanding and there is no defauit het'eunder , all money on deposit to the credit of the Reveuue

Fund, the Interest Fund, the Principal Fund and the Redemption Fund and all accounts within such

Funds shall, at the written tequest of an Ar"rtho rized Officer of the Autholity speciffing and

dilecting that such investment of such money be made, be invested by the Trustee in Investment

Securities having matttrities not later than the date necessary to provide the availability of money

when needed for purposes hereof- and all money held in the Rebate Fund shall, at the written

request of an Authorized Officel specifying and dilecting that such investment of such money be

made, be invested by the Trustee in Goverrunent Obligation s liaving maturities not later than the

date necessary to provide the availability of nroney when needed

4165-i)71-9451 4

'\ tlL+

for putposes hereof, and the

Page 72

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively rely on such instluctions for purposes of this Sectiorr. The

Trustee shall notify the Authority in writing plior to the date noney held hereundel will be

available for investment, requesiing that the Authority deliver to the Tlustee writtetr itlstruclions

specifyi'g the Investment Securities to be acquired by the Trustee with such money. The

Authority, in issuipg such written instructions, shall comply with the provisions of the Tax

Cer.tificate. In the u6r.n". of written instructions from the Authority regarding investment, such

money shall be held uninvested. The Trustee (or any affiliate thereof may act as principal or agent

in the acquisition or disposition of any investments'

Money or-r deposit in the Proceeds Fund, if any, shall be invested in Investment

Securities pursuant to a Wriiten Order specifuing which Investment Securities to be invested in,

and such -on"y may not be reinvested in any other Investment Securities unless the Trustee

receives, at the iirne of such reinvestment, a further written cerlification to the effect that, after

such reinvestment, the Revenues will be sufficient to pay principal and interest on the Authority

Bonds when due.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, an amount of interest

received with respect to any Investmenisecurity equai to the amount of accrued interest, if any,

paid as part of the purchase price of such Investment Security shall be credited to the Fund fi'om

which such accr.ued interest was paid. The Trustee shall not be responsible for any losses, taxes,

fees, char.ges or consequences of uny investment, reinvestment ot liquidation of investment if it
follows such instructions. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the Trustee

shall have no obligation or responsibility to determine whether investment in a security is

permitted by the laws of the State and the City's Investment Policy, for and on behalf of the

bonimrrnityFacilities District, and shall be entitled to conclusively assume that any investment it

is directed to make is so permitted.

The secur-ities purchased with the money in each Fund shall be deemed a parl of

such Fund. If at any time it shall become necessary or appropriate that some or all of the securities

purchased with thg, money in any Fund be redeemed or sold in order to raise money necessary to

tomply with the provisions hereof, the Trustee shall effect such redemption or sale, employing, in

the case of a sale, any commercially reasonable method of effecting the same. The Trustee shall

not be liable or responsible for any consequences, fees, taxes or other chalges resulting from any

such investment oi resulting from the redemption, sale or maturity of any such investment as

authorized pursuant to this Section.

Investments in the Revenue Fund, the Interest Fund, the Principal Furrd and the

Redernption Fund niay be commingled for purposes of making, holding and disposing of

investinenls, notwithstanding provisions herein for transfer to or holding in partictilar Funds

amounts received or held bylhe Trusteei provicled, that the Trustee shall at all times account lor

suclr irvestments strictly iri accordan." *itll th" Funds to which they are credited aud otherwise

as provided hereiit.

All earrrings on the investment of the money on deposit in any Fund shall temain a

part ofsuch Fund.

4 t 65-1571-945 l.l
25

Page 73

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



ARTICLE VII

COVEN OF THE AUTHORITY AND "I'I.[E COMMUNITY FACILITIES DlSTRICT

SECTION 7.01. Pa)rment of Authority Bonds: No Encumbrances. The Authority

shall cause the Trustee to prornptty puy, fiom Revenues and othel funds derived from the Trust

Estate pledged hereunder,-the interest on and principal of and redemption premium, if any, on

every Authority Bond issued under and secured hereby at the place, on the dates and in the maruler

,p..ifi"d herein and in such Authority Bonds according to the true intent and meaning thereof.

Th. Authority shall not issue any bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness or incur any

obligations payable from or secured by the Trust Estate, other than the Authority Bonds.

SECTION 7.02. Enforcement and Amenctirent of Local Obligations. The Authority,

the Community Faciliti"s pistri"t und th" Tt',rstee (subject to Article IX hereof) shall enforce all

of their.rights with respect to the Local Obligations to the fullest extent necessary to preserve the

rights and protect the security of the Owners hereunder'

The Authority, the Community Facilities District and the Trustee may, without the

consent of or notice to the Owners of the Authority Bonds, consent to any amendment, change or

modification of any Local Obligation that may be required (a) to conform to the provisions hereof

(includi'g uny *oiifications oichanges contained in any Supplernental Trust Agreement), (b) for

tt * p.rrpJre of curing any ambiguity or inconsistency ol formal defect or omission, (c) to add

aaOltionat rights u"q:.tit"i in a""ordatrce with the provisions of such Local Obligation, (d) in

connection with any fther change therein that is not to the material prejudice of the owners of the

Authority Bonds, or (e) in the Opinion of Bond Counsel, to preserve or assure the exemption of
interest on the Local btHgations or Authority Boncls from federal income taxes or the exemption

of such interest from State personal income taxes'

Except for the amendments, changes or modifications provided for in the preceding

paragraph,neither the Authority, the Commurrity Facilities Distlict nor the Trustee shall consent

io uny amendment, change or modification of any Locai obligation without the written approval

or consent of the Owners of not }ess than a majority in aggregate principal amount of Authority

Bo'ds at the time Outstanding given and plocured as provided in this Section' If at any time the

Authority and the Community Facilities Di.tri"t, as the case lnay be, shall request the consent of

the Trustee to any such proposed amendment, change or rnodification of a Local Obligation, the

Trustee shall, upon being satisfactorily indemnified with respect to expenses, cause notice,

prepared by the Authorityl of such proposed amendment, change or modification to be mailed in

the same manner u, prouid"d by Sectibn 13.03. Such notice shall briefly set forth the nature of
such proposed ameniment, change or modification and shail state that copies of the instt'ttment

emboiying the same are on file with the Trustee for inspection by all Owners.

SECTION 7.03. Furthel Documents. The Authority covenants that it wili fi'om time

to tinre execute and delivet *"n futtiier instruments and take such further action as may be

reasonable and as may be required to cary out the purpose hereof; provided" that no such

instruments or actions shall pledge the faith and credit or the taxilig power of the State or any

political subdivision of the State.

4165-35?4-9451,1

26
Page 74

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



(a) The Authority and the Community Facilities District will not take any action, or

fail to take any action, if any such action or failure to take action would advet'sely alfect the

exclusio' fi.om gross income of interest on the Authority Bonds under Section 103 of the Code.

The Authority and dre Community Facilities District will not directly or indirectly use or permit

the use of any proceeds of the Autirority Boncls or any other funds of the Authority or take or omit

to take uny 
"ttion 

that wogld cause the Authority Bonds to be "private activity bonds" within the

meaning of Sectior, 141(a) of the Code ol obligations which are "federally guaranteed" within the

meanin! of Section 149(b) of the Code. The Authority will not allow ten percent (10%) or more

of the pioceeds of the Authority Bonds to be used in the trade or business of any nongovernmental

units and will not lend five peicent (5%) or more of the proceeds of the Authority Bonds to any

nongoverrunental units.

(b) The Authority and the Community Facilities District will not directly or indirectly

use or peimit the use of any proceeds of the Authority Bonds or any other funds of the Authority

or take or. omit to take any action that would cause the Authority Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds"

within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code. To that end, the Authority and the Community

Facilities Distr-ict will comply with all requirements of Section 148 of the Code to the extent

applicable to the Authority Bonds. In the event that at any time the Authority is of the opinion that

foi purpor"s of this Section it is necessary to restrict or to lirnit the yield on the investment of any

money^held by the Trustee hereunder, the Authority will so instruct the Trustee in writing, and the

Trustee will take such actions as directed by such instructions.

(c) The Authority will pay or cause to be paid the Rebate Requirement as provided in

the Tax Certilicate. This covenant shall survive payment in full or defeasance of the Authority

Bonds. The Authority will cause the Rebate Requirement to be deposited in the Rebate Fund as

provided in the Tax Certificate (which is incorporated herein by reference)'

(d) The Trustee will conclusively be deerned to have complied with the provisions of

this Section and the provisions of the Tax Certificate and shall incur no liability if it follows the

directions of the Authority set forth in the Tax Certificate and the Rebate Instructions and shall not

be required to take urry u"tior,, hereunder ili the absence of Rebate Instructions from the Authority'

(e) Notwithstanding any provision of this Section, if the Authority shall provide to the

Trustee'a, Opinion of Bond Counsel that any specified action required under this Section is no

longer required or that some further ol different action is required to maintain the exclusion from

grof* inco*e for federai income tax purposes of intelest with respect to the Authority Bonds, the

Trustee and the Authority and the Cornmunity Facilities District may conclusively rely on such

opinion in complying wiih the requirernenrs of this Section, and the covenants hereunder shall be

deemed to be modified to that extent.

(0 The provisions of this Section shall survive the defeasance of the Authority Bonds'

SECTION 7.05. lvlairrtenance o{' lixistence. ]'he Authority shall maintain the

existence, power.s and authority "f 
th" Arthority as a joint exercise of powers authority underthe

laws of the State.

SECTION 7.04. Tax Covenants lbr' Authoritv Bonds

4 r 65-3i?4-945 1.4

27
Page 75

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



SECTION 7.06 Continuins Disclosure. The Contmunt ty Facilities District has

undertaken all lesponsibility fal compliarrce with continuing disclosure requiretnents, arld the

Authority shall have no liability to the Owners of the Autholity Bonds or any other pelson witlt

respect to s.E,c. Rule 15c2-12. Notwithstandiilg any other provision hereo f, failure of the

Community Facilities District to cornply with any continuing disclosure obligation shall not be

considered an Event of Default; provided, that any Owners of the Autholity Bonds or beneficial

ownel may take such actions as may

specific performance by court order,
continuing disclosure obligations.

be necessary and appropriate, including seeking nrandate or

to cause the Comrnunity Facilities District to comply with its

SECTION 7.07. Redenr Fund for the Local Obliqations

(a) The Comrnunity Facilities District expressly acknowledges that, pttrsuant to the

Local dbligations Indenture, the Community Facilities District is to establish and maintain a

separate reJemptiop fgnd for the Local Obligations (the "Local Obligations Redeniption Fttnd")

und, ,o long as the Local Obligations remain outstanding, to deposit into such Local Obligations

Redemption Fuld, upon receipt, any and all Special Tax Revenues received by the Comrnunity

Facilitils District in connection with the Local Obligations. The Community Facilities District

further acknowledges that no lemporary loan or other use whatsoevel'may be made of Special Tax

Revenues, and that the Local Obligations Redemption Fund constitutes a trust fund for the benefit

of the owners of the Local Obligations'

(b) The Community Facilities District hereby covenants for the benefit of the

Authority, as owner of the Local Obligations, the Trustee, as assignee ofthe Authority with lespect

to the Revenues, and the Owners from time to time of the Authority Bonds, that it will establish,

maintain and administer the Local Obligations Redemption Fund and the Special'fax Revenues in

accordance with their status as trust funds as prescribed by the Act, the Local Obligations Iudenture

and this Trust Agreement.

(c) The Cornmunity Facilities District further covenants that, no later than one (1)

Business Day prior to each Inierest Payment Date and Principal Payment Date of the Authority

Bonds, the Community Facilities District will advance to the Trustee against payment on the Local

Obligations, as assignee of the Authority with respect to the Local Obligations, the interest due on

the iocal Obligations o1 such Interest Payment Date and the principal of all Local Obligations

matgring o,, ,ulh Principal Payment Date, respectively, and upon receipt by the Trustee, such

amounts shall constituta Revenues. For so long as Ar"rthority Bonds remain Outstanding, the

Trustee shall provide written notice to the Autholity no latel than fifteen (15) days prior to each

Interest payment Date specifying the amount requifed to be paid to the Trustee pursuant to this

subsection in the month subsequent thereto.

SECTION 7.08.
warrants as follows:

Concerning the Tlust Estate. The Authority hereby represents and

(a) This Trust Agreement creates a valid and binding pledge of and security irlterest in

the Trust Estate in favor of the Trustee in order to secure the payment of the interest on and

pr-incipal of a1d r.edernption prerniums, if any, on all Authority Bonds Outstanding heteunder,

enfor-ceable by the Trustee in accordance with the terms hereof.

4 t65-:i.574-945 t 4

28
Page 76

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



(b) Under the laws of the State of California, (i) such pledge of and security inierest in

the Trust Estate and (2) each pledge, assignment. lien, or other security interest made to secure any

prior obligations of the Authority which, by tire terms hereof, ranks on parity with or prior to the

pt.ag. of-and security intercst gianted hereby, are and shall be prior to any judicial lien hereafter

impos.o on such collateral to enforce a judgment against the Authority on a simple contract'

(c) The Authority has not heretofole made a pledge of, granted a iien on or security

interest in, o, made an assignment or sale of the Trust Estate that ranks on parity with or prior to

the pledge and security intei"est granted hereby, except for the pledge and security interest granted

to secure the Authority nonds. Th" Authority shall not hereafter make or suffer to exist any pledge

or assignment of, lienon, or security interest in such collateral that ranks prior to or on parity with

the pledge and security interest granted hereby, or file any financing statement describing any such

pleige, issignment, lien or security interest, except as expressly permitted hereby'

ARTICLE VIII

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

SECTION 8.01

Default" hereunder:

Events of Default. The following shall constitute "Events of

(a) if payment of interest on the Authority Bonds shall not be made when due; or

(b) if payment of any Principal Installment or Minimuni Sinking Fund Paynient shall

not be made when due and payable, whether at maturity, by proceedings for redemption, or

otherwise; or

(c) if the Authority or the Community Facilities District shall fail to observe or perform

in any material way any othelagreement, condition, covenant or tertn contained her"ein on its part

to be observed or perfoirned, and such failure shall continue for thirly (30) days,after written notice

specifuing such iailure and requiring the sarne to be remedied shall have been given to the

euthor.ity or the Community Facilities District, as the case may be, by the Trustee or by the Owners

of not less than fifty percent (50%) in aggregate plincipai amount of the Authority Bonds'

efe-vi-d_Ecl, that if su"h default be such that it cannot be corrected within the applicable period, it

,h.ll *t constitute an Event of Default if colrective action is instituted by the Authority or the

Community Facilities District within the applicable period and diligently pursued until the default

is corrected, or

(d) if ther-e is an event of default undel the Locai Obligations Indenture.

SECTION 8.02. Proccedinqs by T{ustcc: No Accelel:ation. Upon the happening and

continuance of any Event of p.fuuft tne Trustee may, ol' at the written request of the Owners of

not less than fifty percent (50%) in agglegate prirrcipal arrourlt of Authority Bonds Outstanding,

shall (but only if-indemnified to its satisfaction fi'om any liability, expense or cost), do the

following:

(a) by mandamlts, ol'other suit, action or ploceedirrg at law or iu equity, enforce all

rights of the Owners, including the right to receive and collect the Revenues;

29
4165-3574-9451 4 Page 77

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



(b) brilg suit Lrpon or otherrvise enforce any defaulting Local Obligation;

(c) by actiol or suit in equity enjoin any acts ol things which may be unlawful or itl

violation of the lights of the Ou'ners;

(d) as a matter of right, have a receivet' or receivers appointed for the Trust Estate and

of the earnings, income, issues, products, profits and revenues thereof pending such proceedings,

with such powers as the coult tnaking such appointment shall confer; and

(e) take such action with respect to any and all Local Obligations or Investnrent

Securities as shall be necessary and appropliate, subject to Section 8.04 and to the terms of such

Local Obligations or Investment Securities.

The Trustee shall have no right to declare the principal of all of the Authority Bonds

then Outstanding, or the interest accrued thereon, to be due and payable imrnediately'

SECTION 8.03. Elfect of Discontiulrance or Abanclonmeil. In case any proceeding

taken by the Trustee on u""ount of urry Event of Default shall have been discontinued or abandoned

for any reason, or shall have been determined adversely to the Trustee, then and in every such case

the Tiustee and the Owners shall be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder,

respectively, and all rights, remedies and powers of the Trustee shall continue as though no such

proceeding had been taken.

SECTION 8.04. Rishts Owners Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding,

but subj ect to the limitations and restrictions as to the rights of the Owner contained in Sections

8.01, 8.02, and 8.05, upon the happening and continuance of any Event of Default, the Owners of
not less than fifty percent (50%) 1naggregate principal amount of the Authority Bonds then

Outstanding shall have the right, upon providing the Trustee security and indemnity reasonably

satisfactory to it against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred therein or thereby, by an

instrument in writing executed and deli veled to the Trustee, have the right to direct the method

and place of conducting all remedial proceedings to be taken by the Trustee hereunder'

The Tr-ustee may refuse to follow any direction that conflicts with law or herewith

or that the Trustee detennines woultl subject the Tlustee to personal liability without adequate

indemnifi cation therefor.

SECTION 8.05 Restriction on Owner's Action. In addition to the other restrictions

on the rights of Owners to request action upon the occurence of an Event of Default and to enforce

rernedies set forth in this Article, no Owner shall have any right to institute any suit, action or

proceedilg in eqlity or at law for the enforcement of any trust hereunder, or any other remedy

irereunder or in the Authority Bonds, unless such Orvner previously shall have given to the Tlustee

written notice of an Event of Defauit as hereinabove providecl and unless the Owners of not less

than fifty percent (50%) in aggregare principal anrount of the Authority Bonds then Outstanding

shall have made wdtten request of the Trustee to institute any such suit, action, proceeding or other

remedy, after the right to exercise such powers or rights of action, as the case may be, shall have

o..ru"d, aud shall have afforded the Trustee a reasonable opporlunity either to proceed to exercise

the powers glantecl herein, or to institute such action, suit or proceeding in its or their name; nor

unless there also shall have been ofTered to the Trustee security and indemnity reasonabiy

4165-3574-94it 4

30
Page 78

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



satisfactory to it against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred therein or tl.rereby, and

the Trustee shall 1ot have complied with such request within a reasonable time; and such

1otificatio1, request a1cl offer of indemnity are hereby declared in evely such case to be conditions

precedent to the execution of the trusts hereof or for any other remedy hereunder, it being

understood and intended that no one or more Owners of Authority Bonds secured hereby shall

have any right in any manner whatever by his, her or their action to affect, disturb or prejudice the

security heieol or io enforce any rights hereunder or under the Authority Bonds, except in the

,rrun,r.i provided herein, and that all proceedings at law or in equity shall be instituted, had arrd

maintained in the manner provided herein, and for the equal benefit of all Owners of Outstanding

Authority Bolds; subjecf however, to the provisions of this Section. Notwithstanding the

foregoing provisions oithis Section or any other provision hereof, the obligation of the Authority

shall be absolute and unconditional to pay, but solely fiom the Trust Estate, the interest ou and

principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds to the respective Owners

in"r..of at the respectiv; due dates thereof, and nothing herein shall affect or impair the right of

action, which is absolute and unconditional, of such Owners to enforce such payment.

SECTION 8.06.

any of the Authority Bond
Power of Trustee to Enforce' All rights of action hereunder or ttnder

s secured hereby which are enforceable by the Trustee may be enforced

by it without the possession of any of the

other proceedings relative thereto, and

Trustee shall be brought in its own name,

subject to the provisions hereof.

Authority Bonds, or the production thereof at the trial or

any such suit, action or pt'oceedings instituted by the

as Trustee, forthe equal and ratable benefit of the Ownels

SECTION 8.07. Remedies Not Exclusive. No remedy herein confened upon or

reserved to the Trustee or to the Owners is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or

remedies, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative, and shall be in addition to every

other remedy givel hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute.

SECTION 8.08

request of the Owners

pon the written

of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of all Outstanding

Authority Bonds, the Trustee shall waive any Event of Default hereunder and its consequences. If
any Event of Default shall have been waived as herein provided, the'frustee shall promptly give

wlitten notice of such waiver to the Authority and the Community Facilities District and shall give

notice ther-eof by first class mail, postage prepaid, to all Owners of Outstanding Authority Bonds

if such Owner.s had nol previously been given notice of such Event of Default; but no such rvaiver,

rescission and annulm.nt rhull extend to or affect any subsequent Event of Default, or impair any

right or lemedy consequent thereon.

No delay or omission of the Trustee or of any Owner to exercise any riglit ot'power

accruing upon any Event of Default shall impair any such riglit or power or shall be construed to

be a waiu.i.of a1y such Event of Default, or an acquiescence therein; and every power and rernedy

given by this Article to the Trustee and to the Owners may be exercised from time to time and as

often as may be deemed exPedient'

SECTION 8.09 Aoolication of Monev unon Event of Defar"rlt. Any money received

Waiver of Events of l)efault: Effect of Wairrer. U

by the Trustee pursuant to this Article shall, after payment of all fees and expenses

und th. fees and expenses of its counsel incurred in representing the Owners, be appl
of the Tt'ustee,
ied as follows:

4 r65-.3i74-945 I ,+

31

Page 79

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



(a)
payable,

unless the pr-ilcipal of all of tl-re Outstanding Autholity Bonds shall be due and

FIRST - To the payment of the Owners entitled thereto of all installments

of ilterest then due on1h. Authority Bonds, in the order of the niaturity of the

installments of such interest, and if the amount available shall not be sufficient to

pay in full any particular installment, then to the payment ratably, according to the

amounts due on such installment, to the Persous entitled thereto, without any

discrimination or Privilege;

SECOND - To the payment of the Owners entitled thereto of the unpaid

principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on any of the Authority Bonds which

shall have become due (other than Authority Bonds tnatured or called for

redemption for the payment of which money is held pursuant to the provisions

hereof) in the ordei oi their due dates, and if the amount available shall not be

sufficient to pay in full the principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on such

Authority gondr due on any particular date, then to tlie payment ratably, according

to the amount due on such date, to the Owners entitled thereto without any

discrimination or Privilege; and

THIRD - To be held for the payment to the Owners entitled thereto as the

same shall become due of the interest on and principal of and redemption

premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds which may thereafter become due, either

at maturity or upon call for redemption prior to maturity, and ifthe amount available

shall not be sufficient to pay in full sucir interest and principal and redemption

premiums, if any, due on any particular date, payment shall be rnade in accordance

with the FIRST and SECOND paragraphs hereof'

(b) if the principal of all of the Outstanding Authority Bonds shall be due and payable,

to the payment of tte inteiest on and principal of and redemption prcmiums, if any, due on all

Outsta.rdlng Authority Bonds without preference or priority of or of any interest on any

Outsta'ding authority Bond over any other Outstanding Authority Bond, any principal of or the

redemptioriprernigm, if any, on any Outstanding Authority Bond or of any other Outstanding

euthoiity Bond, ratably, according to the amounts due respectively for interest and principal and

redemption prerniums, rf any, to the owners entitled thereto without any discrimination or

preference except u, io uny difference in the respective amouilts of interest specified in the

Outstanding Authority Bonds.

416:-3574-9451 4

J/
Page 80

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



SECTION 9.01

ARTICLE IX

THE TRI]STE,E

intrnent and

and agrees to the trusts hereby cleated to all of
Owners of the Authority Bonds, by purchase and

of The Trustee herebY accePts

wliich tire Authority agrees and the respecttve

acceptance thereof, agree.

SECTION 9.02. Duties.Immunities ancl Liabilitv of Trustee. The Trustee shall, prior

to an Event of Default, and uft", tlo .uring or waiver of all Events of Default which may have

occurred, perform such duties and only such duties as are specifically set forth herein, and uo

implied arrti"r or obligations shall be read herein against the 'frustee. The Trustee sha1l, during

the existence of any E-vent of Default (which has not been cured or waived), exercise such of the

rights and powers vested in it hereby and use the same degree of care and skill in their exercise as

a prudent person would exercise uncler the circumstances in the conduct of his or her own affairs'

In the absence of an Event of Default, the Authority rnay remove the Trustee. The

Authority shall remove the Trustee if (A) it receives an.instrument or concurrent instruments in

writing signeA by the Owners of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of.the

authoiity-eondsihen outstanding (or their attomeys duly autholized in wliting) or (B) at ariy time

the Trustee shall cease to be eligible in accordance with this Section, or (C) the Trustee shall

become incapable of acting, or ip) the Trustee shall commence a case under any bankruptcy,

insolvency or similar law, or (E) a receiver of the Trustee or of its property shall be a_PPointed, or

(F) a'y puUti. officer shall take control or charge of the Trustee or its property or affairs for the

p,,rpor.'ot rehabilitation, conservation or liquidation. To effect any such removal, the Authority

,t uit giu. written notice thereof to the Trustee, and thereupon the Authority (with the concurrence

of the community Facilities District) shall promptly appoint a successor Trustee by an instrument

in writing.

The Trr-rstee may, subject to the next following paragraph of this Section, resign by

giving written notice of such rerignation by mail, fir'st class postage prepaid, to the Authority, the

bomirunity Facilities District and the Owners at the respective addresses listed in the Bond

Register. upon receiving such notice of resignation, the Authority (with the concurrence of the

Colmunity Facilities nistrict; shall promptiy appoint, by an instrument in writing, a successor

Trustee.

Any removal or resignation of the Trustee and appointment of a successor Trustee

shall become effective only upon acceptance of the successor Trustee by the Authority and the

Community Facilities nisti-ici and acclptance of appoirrtment by the successor Trustee. If no

successor Trustee shall have been appointed and shall irave accepted appointment within thilty

(30) days of giving notice of removai or notice of resignation as aforesaid, the resigning Trustee

or any Owna. 1on-Ueliaf of himself and all other Owners) may petition, at the expense of tlre

Community Facilities District, any court of competent jtrrisdiction for the appointment of a

successor Trustee, and such court may thereupon, after such nolice (if any) as it may deem propet',

appoint such successor Trustee. Any successor Tmstee appointed under this Trust Agreement

siratt signify its acceptance of such appoinrment by executing and delivering to the Authority and

the Commuriity Faciiities District and to its predecessor Trustee a written acceptance thereof, and

41(r5-3574-9451 4

JJ
Page 81

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



thereupon such successol Trnstee, without any further act, deed or conveyance, shall become

vested witli all the money, estates, properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of such

preclecessor Trustee, *itt'r tit e -ff".t as if it wele originally named Trustee herein; but,

nevertheless, at the written request of the Authority or the Community Facilities District or the

successor Trustee, such plede...ro, Trustee shall execute and deliver any and all instruments of

conveyance or-further.urrururr." and do such other things as may leasonably be required for more

fully and certainly vesting in and confirming to such successor 'frustee all tlie right, title and

i'terest ofsuch predecessgr Tlustee in and to any property held by it hereunder and shall pay over'

transfer, assign and deliver to the Successor Trustee any money or other propefiy subject to the

trusts and conditions herein set forth. Upon request of the successol Trustee, the Authority and

the Community Facilities District shall execute and deliver any and all instruments as may be

reasonably recluired for more fully and certainly vesting in and confinning to such successor

Trustee all such money, estates, properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligatiorrs' Upon

acceptance of appointment by a successor Trustee as provided in this subsection, such successor

Trusiee shall mail a notice of the succession of such successor Trustee to the trusts hereunder by

first class mail, postage prepaid, to the Owners at their respective addresses listed in the Bond

Register.

Any successor Trustee appointed under the provisions of this Section shall be a

trust company or bank having the powers of a trust company, having a designated corporate trust

office in California, and with a combined capital and surplus of at least one hundred million dollars

($100,000,000) ani being subject to supervision or examination by federal ol state authority; and

if such bank or trust com-pany publishes a report of condition at least annually, pursuant to law or

to the requirements of any supervising or Lxamining authority above referred to, then for the

purpose of this subsection the combined capital and surplus of such bank or trust company shall

be deemed to be its combined capital and surplus as set forth in its most recent report of condition

so published. In case at any time the Trustee shall cease to be eligible in accot'dance with the

prouirion, of this subsection, the Trustee shall resign promptly in the manner and with the elfect

specified in this Section.

No provision herein shall require the Trustee to risk or expend its own funds or

otherwise irrcur anj financial liability in the pelformance of any of its duties heretlnder unless the

ownels shall havl offered to the Trustee indemnity it deems reasonable, against the costs,

expenses and liabilities that may be incurred. The Trustee shall be entitled to interest on allmoney

adva'ced by it hereunder at its prime rate then in effect plus two percent (2%), bttt not to exceed

the rnaximum interest rate permitted by the laws of the State'

In accepting the tlust hereby created, the Trustee is acting solely as Trustee fol tle

owners and not in its lndividual capacity, and under no circumstances shall the Trustee be liable

in its individual capacity for the obligations evidenced by the Authority Bonds.

The Trustee makes no representation or wartanty, express or implied, as to the

compliar-rce with legal requirements of the use contemplated by the Anthority or the Cornmunity

Facilities District of the funcls heleunder including, without limitation, the purchase of the Loca]

obligations hereunder; provided, that the Trustee shall not acquire Local Obligations other than

pursuaut to the provisions of Sectiotls 5.03 and 5'04'

4 t65-3574-94,i I ,4

34
Page 82

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



In no event shall the Trustee be resportsible or liable for special, indirect, punitive

or conseq'entiai loss or damage of any kind wliitsoever (inch-rding, br-rt not limited to' loss of

profit) iriespective of wheth.i th. Trustee has been advised of the likelihood of such loss or

au*ug" and regardless of the form of action'

The Trustee shall not be responsible fol the validity or effectiveiless or value of any

collateral or security securing any Local Obligation. The Trustee shall not be respotlsible for the

recording or filing of any document relating hereto or any Local Obligation or of financing

statements (or amendm.ni, o. continuation statements in connectiotr therewith) or mortgage or of

any supplemental instruments or documents of further assurance as may be required by law in

o.a.,. to p.rfect the security interests or lien on or in any collateral or security securing any Local

obligation. The Trustee shall not be deemed to have made representations as to the security

affoided thereby or as to the validity or sufficiency of any such document, collateral or security.

The Trustee shall not be deemed to have knowledge of any Event of Default

hereunder unless and until a Responsible Officer of the Trustee shall have actual knowledge

thereof at its Corporate Trust Office.

The Trustee shall not be accountable for the use or application by the Authority or

the Community Facilities District or any other party of any frnds which the Trustee has released

hereunder.

The Trustee shail provide a monthly accounting of all funds held pursuant hereto

to the Authority within fifteen (1s) Business Days after the end of such month and shall provide

statements of account for each annual period beginning July 1 and ending June 30, within ninety

(90) days after the end of such period. Such accounting shall show in reasonable detail all financial

transactions during the accouniing period and the balance in any accounts and funds (including the

Local Obligations-Fund) createdGreunder as of the beginning and the close of such accounting

period.

The Tr-ustee shall fuinish the Authority periodic cash transaction statements which

include detail for all investment transactions effected by tire Trustee or brokers selected by the

Authority. Upon the Authority's election, such statements will be delivered via the Trustee's online

service and upon electing such service, paper statenents will be plovided only upon request' The

Authority *uiu., the r.igf,t to receive b.oki.ug" confirmations of security transactions effected by

the Trustee as they o".irr, to the extent p.r-ittrd by law. The Autliority further understands that

trade confirmations for securities transactions effected by the Trustee will be available upon

request and at no additional cost and other fiade confinrations may be obtained fi'om the applicable

broker.

SECTION 9.03. Merser or Cotrsotidation. Arry collpany into which the Trustee may

be merged or conveLteO or wittr wtrictr it may be consolidated 01'any company resulting from any

-"rg"{ conversion or consolidation to which it shall be a party or any company to which the

Trustee may sell or transfer all or substantially all of its corporate trust business shall succeed to

the riglrts und obtigutions of the Trustee without tl'ie execulion or tiling of any paper or any further

act, aiything herein to the contrary notwithstanding; p-tp:j-.jgfl, that such company shallbe eligible

under Sectiou 9.02.

41(r5-i574-945 1.4

i)
Page 83

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



SECTION 9.04. Compensation and hrcierlrnification. The Authority shali pay or

cause the Commugity Facil;t;.sbitri.t to pay ihe Trustee such compensation, as shall be agreed

in writing, for its ,.rui.., rendered hereunder and reimburse the Trustee for reasonable expenses,

disbursements and advances, including attorneys' fees and expenses, incurred by the Trustee in

the performance of its obligations hereundel and with respect to the Local Obligations.

The Authority agrees, to the extent permitted by law, to indemnify the Trustee and

its officers, directors, employe-s, attorneys and agents for, and to hold it harmless against, any

loss, liability, claim o, 
"*p.nr" 

incurled without negligence or wiliful misconduct on its paft

arising out of or in connection with (i) the acceptance or administration of the trusts imposed

hereb|, including performance of its duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses of

defenbing itself uguinrt any claims (whether asserted by the City or any other Person) or liability

in co*ection with the exeicise or performance of any of its powers or duties hereunder (including

this Section g.04),(ii) the pr.ojects to be financed with the purchase of the Local obligations; (iii)

the sale of any Autirority gonar or the purchase of the Local Obligations and the carrying out of

any of the transactions contemplated by the Authority Bonds or the Local Obligations; or (iv) any

'ntrue 
statement of any material fact or omission to state a material fact necessary to make the

stateme'ts made, in ligiit of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading in any

official statement or orher disclosure document utilized by the Authority or the Community

Facilities District in connection with the sale of the Authority Bonds or the Local Obligations. The

A,thority's obligations hereunder with respect to indemnity of the Trustee and the provision for

its compensation set forth in this Article shall survive and remain valid and binding

notwithsianding the naturity and payment of the Authority Bonds, or the resignation or removal

of the Trustee.

The Trustee shall have no responsibility for or liability in corurection with assuring

that al1 of the procedures or conditions to closing set fortir in the contract of purchase for the sale

of the Authority Bonds, that all documents required to be delivered on the closing date to the

parties are actually delivered, except its own responsibility to receive or deliver the proceeds of

ihe sale, deliver the Authority nonds and other certificates explessly required to be delivered by it

and its counsel.

The Trustee shall not be responsible for determining or investigating whether any

Local Obligation purchased pursuant to Section 5.03 is a Local Obligation, as defined herein, and

the Trustee may conclusiveiy rely on the Authority's determination and direction in this regard;

p,nvtdgd, that the Trustee shall not acquire the Local Obligations other than pursuant to the

ffi-,riSon, of Section 5.03. The Trustee shall be entitled to rely conclusively on the covenants,

represe'tations and warranties of each obligor or1 any Local obligation and in the documents and

certificates deliveled in corulection therewith and each Written Order'

f :l'rustee. The lecitals of facts herein and in the AuthorityLinhilitvSECTION 9.05.

Bonds contained shallbe taken as statements of the Authority or the Community Facilities District,

and the Trustee cloes not assLllre any respollsibility for the correctness of the same, and does not

make any l'epresentations as to tlie validity or sufficiency hereof ol of the Authority Bonds, alrd

shall not incur any respoltsibility in respect thereof, other than in connection with the duties or'

obligations helein or itt the Autirority Bonds assigned to or irnposed upon it; proviclecl, that the

Tlustee shall be responsible for-its r.epresentations contained'in its celtificate of authentication oti

.l 165-3:74^9;15I 'l

36
Page 84

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



the Authority Bonds. The Trustee shall not be liable in connection with the pelfonnance of its

cluties herennder except for-its own negligence or willful misconduct. The Trustee (in its individual

or ally orher capacityj may become the bwrer of Autholity Bonds with the same rights it would

have if it were not Tiustee hereunder, and, to the extent permitted by law, may act as depositary

for and permit a1y of its officers, directors and employees to act as a member of, or in any other

capacity with respect to, any committee formed to protect the rights of owners, whether or not

such committee shall represent the owners of a majority in principal amount of the Authority

Bonds then outstanding. The Trustee shall not be liable with respect to any action taken or omitted

to be taken by it in go;a ruith in accordance with the direction of the owners of a majority in

principal amount of ii,e Outstanding Authority Bonds relaling to the time, method and place of

tonducti'g any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee, or exercising any trust or

power 
"ont",r"d 

upon the irustee hereundei'. Whether or not thelein expressly so provided, every

pro'ision hereof or related documents relating to the conduct or affecting the liability of or

affording protection to the Trustee shall be subject to the provisions of this Article'

SECTION 9.06 The

Trustee may conclusivelY relY on and shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting upon

any notice, resolution, requisition, request, consent, otdet, certificate, repolt, oPinion, bond or

other paper or document believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the

proper partY or parties. The Trustee may consult with counsel of its selection, who maY be counsel

of or to the Authority, with regard to legal questions, and the opinion of such counsel shall be full

and comp lete authorization and protection in respect ofany action taken or suffered or omitted bY

it heleunder in good faith and in accordance therewith'

Whenever in the administration of the trusts imposed upon it hereby the Trustee

shall deem it necessary or desirable that a matter be proved or established prior to taking or

suffering or omitting any action hereunder, such matter (unless other evidence in respect thereof

be her.ei*n specificall! prescribed) may be deemed to be conclusively proved and established by an

Ofhcer,s Certificate, and such Officer's Certificate shall be full warrant to the Trustee for any

action taken or suffeied or omitted in good faith under the provisions hereof in reliance upon such

Officer,s Certifrcate, but the Trustee may, in lieu thereof, accept other evidence of such matter or

rnay require such additional evidence as to it may seem reasonable'

The Trustee shail be entitled to advice of counsel of its selection and other

professio'als or agents concerning all matters of trust and its duty hereunder, but the Trustee shall

'ot 
be answerable or liable for the acts or ornissions of any agent, attorney-at-law, certified public

accountant, or other professional if such agent, attorney-at-law, ceriified public accountaut or other

professional was selected by the Trustee with due care'

SECTION 9.07. pr.elqlalion ancl lnspectiein of Documefrts. All documents received

bytheTrusteeunderth"p,ooffiretainedinitspossessioninaccordancewith
its record retention policies and shaii be subject at all reasonable times upon prior w.ritten notice

to the inspection of ih" Authority, the owners of not less than a rnajority of the aggregate principai

amount of the outstanding Authority Bonds, and their agents and representalives duly authorized

in writing. at reasonable hours and ttnder reasonable conditions.

-116: 3:7J-91: I 4

)l
Page 85

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



dghts or powels hereunder, the Trustee may leqnire that satisfactory

for the reimbursement of any and all costs, claims and expenses

indemni$ it against any and all liability, except liability which may

SECTION 9.08 Indemnitv tbr Trustee. Befole taking any action or exerclslllg any

indemnity be fulnished to it
wliich it may incul and to

result from its negligence or

willful misconduct, by reason of any action so taken'

ARTICLE X

EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS BY OWNERS AND
PROOF OF OWNERSHIP OF AU

.THORITY BONDS

SECTION 10.0i. Execution of Instruments; Ploof of Ownership' Any request,

direction, consent or other instrument in writing required or pelmitted hereby to be signed or

executed by Owners may be in any number of concurrent instruments of similar tenor by different

parties *nd *uy be signed or executed by such owners in person or by agent appointed by an

instrument in writing.- Proof of the execution of any such instrument and of the ownership of

Authority Bonds snJt Ue sufficient for any purpose hereof and shall be conclusive in favor of the

Trustee with regard to any action taken, suffered ol omitted by either of them under such

instrument if made in the following manner:

(a) The fact and date of the execution by any Person of any such instrument may be

proved Uv tfr. certificate of any officer in any jurisdiction rvho, by the laws thereof, has power to

iake acknowledgments within such jurisdiction, to the effect that the Person signing such

instrument acknowledged before him or her the execution thereof, or by an affldavit of a witness

to such execution.

(b) The fact of the ownership of Authority Bonds hereunder by any Owner and the

serial numbers of such Authority Bonds and the date of his ownership of the same shall be proved

by the Bond Register.

Nothing contained in this Article shall be construed as limiting the Trustee to such

proof, it being intended that the Trustee may accept any other evidence of the matters in this Article

,tut*d which shall be sufficient. Any request or consent of the Ownel shall bind every future

Owner of such Authority Bond and any Authority Bond or Authority Bonds issued in exchange or

substitution therefor or upon the registration of transfer thereof in respect of anything done by the

Trustee in pursuance ofsuch request or consent.

ARTICLE XI

L

SECTION 11.01 Su Trusl As.reenre nts with Consent of Orvners Any

modification or alteration hereof or of the rights and obligations of the Autholity, the Community

Facilities District or the Owners may be made with the consent of the Owners of not less than a

majority in aggregate principal amount of the Authority Bonds then Outstanding; pr:ovided, that

no such modification or alteration shall be rnade wliicl-r will reduce the percentage of aggtegare

principal amount of Authority Bonds the consent of the Owner's of which is required for any such

modification or alteratiol oi permit the creation by the Authority or the Community Facilities

District of any liel prior to oi on parity with the Jien hereof upon the Tlust Estate or which will

E

4165-3574-9451 4

38
Page 86

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



affect the times, amounts and currency of payrnent of the interest on or principai of or redemption

prerniums, if any, on the Authority Bonds or affect the rights, duties or obligations of the Trustee

without the cousent of tlie pariy affected tliereby'

Supplenr ental Trust A Without Consent of Owners. The

lities Distlict may, without the consent of the Owners, entet

greement or Supplemental Trust Agreements, which thereafter shall

form a palt of this Trust Agreem ent, for any one or more of the following purposes

(a) to add to the agreements and covenants of the Authority or the Community

Facilities District contained herein other agreements and covenants thereafter to be observed, or

to surender any right or power herein reserved to or conferred upon the Authority or the

Community n'acititiis District; pfovided, that no such agreement, covenant or sulrender shall

materially adversely affect the rights of any Owner;

(b) to cure any ambiguity, to supply any omission or to cure, colrect or supplement any

defect or inconsistent provisions contained herein or in any Supplemental Trust Agreement;

(c) to make any change which does not materially adversely affect the rights of any

Owner;

(d) to grant to the Trustee for the benefit of the Owners additional rights, remedies,

powers or authority;

(e) to subject hereto additional collateral or to add other agreements of the Authority

or the Community Facilities District;

(0 to modify this Trust Agreement or the Authority Bonds to permit qualification

hereof rinderthe Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, ol any similar statute at the time in

effect, or to permit the qualification of the Authority Bonds for sale under the securities laws of

any state of the United States of America;

(g) to make any amendrnents or supplements necessary or appropriate to preserve or

protect tile exclusion frorn gross income for federal income tax purposes under the Code of the

interest on the Authority Bonds or the exemption of interest on the Authority Bonds from State

personal income taxes; or

(h) to evidence the succession ofa successor Trustee'

For all putposes of this Section, the Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively rely

r.rpon and shall be fully prltected in relying upon an Opinion of Bond Counsel with respect to tlie

extelt, if any, to which any action affects the rights hereunder of any Owner'

SECTION 1 I.03
The Trustee is herebY

Trustee Authorized to Enter into SuDp lementai frust Asreemeuts

authorized to enter into any Supplemental Trust Agleement with the

Authority and the CommunitY Facilities District authorized or permitted by the tellrrs heleof, and

to make the further agreentent s and stipulations wirich may be therein contained. and fol all

purposes of this Section the Trust ee shall be entitled to conciusively lely upon and sl:all be fully

SECTION 11.42.
Authority and the Communi
into a Supplemental Trust A

ty Faci

{ 1 65-35?4-945 1,4

39
Page 87

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



protected i' relying upon an opinion of Boird Counsel to the eff'ect that such Supplernental Trust

hgreemelt is authorized or pelnitted by the provisions hereof'

ARTICLE XIi

DEFEASANCE

SECTION 12,01 . Defeasance. If and when the Authority Bonds secured liereby shali

become due and payable in u*ta*e with their terms or through l'edemption proceedings as

provided herein, oi otherwise, and the whole amount of the interest on and plincipal of redemption

prerniums, if arry, so due and payable upon all of the Authority Bonds shall have been paid, or

provisio' shall have been made for the payment of the same, together with all other sums payable

irereunderby the Authority, including all fees and expenses of the Trustee, then and in that case,

this Trust Agreement and the lien created hereby shalt be completely discharged and satisfied and

the Authority and the Community Facilities District shall be released from the respective

agr.eements, conditions, covenants and terms of the Authority and the Cotnmunity Facilities

district contained herein, and the Trustee shall assign and transfer all property (in excess of the

am'unts required for the foregoing) then held by the Trustee free and clear of any encumbrances

as provided in Section 12.04 and shall execute such documents as may be reasonably required by

the Authority or the Community Facilities District in this regard'

Notwithstar:ding the satisfaction and discharge hereof, those provisions of this

Trust Agreement relating to the maturity of the Authority Bonds, interest payments and dates

thereof, exchange and transfer of Authority Bonds, replacement of mutilated, destloyed. lost or

stolen Authority Bonds, the safekeeping and cancellation of Autholity Bonds, nonpresentment of

Authority Bonds, and the duties of tlie Tiustee in connection with all of the foregoing, shall remain

in effect and shall be binding trpon the Tlustee and the Owner, and the Trustee shall, subject to

Sectibn 13.06, continue to be obligated to hold in trust any money or investtnents therr held by the

Trustee for the payment of the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on

the Authority Blnds, to pay to the Owner of Authority Bonds the funds so held by the Trustee as

and when such paymenis become due, and those provisions heleof contained in Section 9.04

reiating to the comiensation and indemnification of the Trustee and in Section 7.04 relating to the

tax covenants of the Authority and the Community Facilities District shall remain in effect and

shall be binding upon the Truitee, the Authority and the Community Facilities District.

SECTION I2.A2. Authority Bonds Deenrecl to Have Been Paid. If any money shall

have been set asicle ald held Uy ti," flrrt." fot the payment or redemption of any Autlrolity Bonds

a'd tl,re interest installments thelefor at the matr,rrity thereof ol date fixed for redemption, such

Authority Bonds shall be deemed to be paid within the meaning and with the effect plovided in

Section 12.01. Aly Outstanding Bond ihall prior to the maturity or redemption date thereof be

deemed to have been paid within the meaning ancl with the effect expt'essed ir-i Section 12.01 if (a)

i' case any Authority Bonds are to be redeemed on any date prior to their maturity- the Authority

shall have given to the Trustee inevocable instructions to mail notice of redernption of such

Authority donds on such redemption date, such notice to be given in accordance with the

provisions of Article IV, (b) there shall have been deposited with the Tlustee in escrow either (i)

money in an amoult which shall be sufficient to pay when ciue the interest on atrd principal of and

redernption premiurns, if any, due and to become due on sr-rch Authority Bonds on and prior to the

4l6i-i5?,1-94-i I 4

40
Page 88

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



date scheduled for r-edemption or rnaturity date thereof, as tlie case tnay be, or (ii) noncallable

Government Obligationr ih" principal of and the interesl on which when due, and without any

reinvestment thereof, will provide money which, together with the money, if any, deposited witli

or held by the Trustee at the sarne time, shail be sulficient as verified by a report of a nationally

recognized independent certified public accountant to pay when due the interest on and principal

of and redemption premiums, if any, due and to become due on such Authority Bonds on and prior

to the date fixed for ledemption or matulity date thereof, as the case may be, and (c) in the event

any of such Authority Bon-ds are not to be redeemed within the next succeeding sixty (60) days,

the Authority shall have given the Trustee irevocable instructions to mail, as soon as practicable

in the same maruler as a notice of redernption is mailed pursuant to Article IV, a notice to the

Owners of such Authority Bonds that the deposit required by (b) above has been made with the

Trustee and that such Authority Bonds are deemed to have been paid in accordance with this

Section and stating the rnaturity dates or redemption dates upon which money is to be available

for the payment o1th" interesi on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on such

Authoriiy Bonds. Neither the sbcurities nor money deposited with the Trustee pursuant to this

Section nor interest or principal payments on any such securities shall be withdrawn or used for

any purpose other thanj and shalf be held in trust for, the paynrent of the interest on and principal

of'ana iedemption premiums, if any, on such Authority Bonds; ployided, that any cash received

frorn such interest oi principal or interest payments on such obligations deposited with the Trustee,

if not then needed foi sucirpurpose, shall, to the extent practicable and at the written direction of

the Authority, be reinvested in Govemment Obligations, such written direction to specifr which

GovernmeniObligations are to be invested in, maturing at times and in amounts, together with the

other money and payments with respect to Government Obligations then held by the Trustee

pursuant to ihis Section, sufficient to pay when due the interest on and principal of and redemption

premiums, if any, to become due on such Authority Bonds on and prior to such redemption date

or maturity date thereof, as the case may be, and interest earned from such reinvestments shail,

.rpon ,"".-ipt by the Trustee of a Wlitten Order so directing, be paid over to the Authority as

received by the Trustee free and clear of any trust, lierr or pledge.

SECTION 12.03.
provided in Section 12.02

Bonds. Except as otherwise

or 13.06, the amounts held by tlie Trustee for the payment of the interest

on ol principal of or the redemPti on premlum s, if any, ol the interest due on any date with respect

to particular Authority Bonds shall, on and after' such date and pending such payment, be set aside

on its books and held in trust by it solely for the Ownels entitled thereto

SECTION 12.04 Effect of sance of A Bonds. Notwithstanding anY

Monev Heid for Par-ticular Au

other provision hereof, in the event that the Autholity Bonds are defeased

hereunder are discharged pursuant to tiris Article, the Trustee shall transfer all

held by the Trustee (including, witliout limitation, the Local Obligations), to

and the obligations
property and moneY
or upon the written

order of the Authority

ARTICLE XIII

LANEOIJS

SECTION 13.01. Dissolution of Aurhorii:''. In the event of the dissolution of the

Authority, all the agreements, .onAitlons, covenants and terms contained herein by or on behalf

4l(ri-i574-9451 4

41
Page 89

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



of, or for the benefit of, the Autholity sliall bind or inure to the benefit of the successors of the

Authority fi-om tirne to tine and any officer, board, commission, agency or instrumentality to

whorn ori to which any powef or duty of the Authority shall be transferred'

SECTION 13.02. Parties llterestecl Her.ein. Except as otherwise specifically provided

herein, nothing contained hereirl expiessed ol implied, is intended or shall be construed to confer

upon any persin other than the Authority, the Community Facilities District, the Trustee and the

O*n"r, uny right, remedy or claim under or by reason hereof, this Trust Agreement being intended

to be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Authority, the Community Facilities District, the

Trustee and the Owners.

SECTION 13.03. Notice. All written notices to be given hereunder to the Authority

or the Comrnunity Facilities District or the Trustee shall be given by mail or electronic means to

the party entitled thereto at its address set forth below, or at such other address as such party may

provide to the other parties in writing fi'om tirne to time, namely:

If to the AutholitY: Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
Attention: Treasurer
Fax: 9i6-985-0870
Email : financetreasury@folsom.ca.us

If to the Community Facilities District:
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
Attention: Finance Director
Fax 976-985-0870
Ernail : financetreasury@folsom.ca.us

If to the U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association

Trustee: One California Street, Suite 1000

San Francisco, CA 94111
, Attention: Global CorPorate Trust

Fax: 415-677-3769
Email : karen.lei@usbank.com

Each such notice, statement, demand, consent, approval, authorization, off€r,

designation, request or other comrnunication hereunder shall be deemed delivered to the party to

whon it is addressed (a) if pelsonally servecl or delivered, upon delivery, (b) if given by electronic

communicatiol, upon the sender''s receipt of an appropriate answer back or other written

acknowledgmerrt or confirnation of receipt of the entire notice, approval, demand, report or other'

cermmunicalion, (c) if given by fir.st class mail deposited with the United States mail postage

prepaid, seventy-two 1lZ) hours aftel such notice is deposited with the United States mail, (d) if
giu"n by oyerpight courier. with courier charges prepaid, twenty-fout Q\ hours after delivery to

4l(r5-3574-9451.4

42
Page 90

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



said overpight courier, or (e) if given by any other means, upon delivery at the address specified

in tliis Section.

In case, by reason of the suspension of or irregulalities in regulal mail service, it
shall be irnpractical to mail to the Owners notice of any event when such notice is Iequiled to be

given pursuant to any provision hereof, then any Inanner of giving such notice as the Authority

shall dir-ect and not oUjected to by the Trustee shall be deemed to be a sufficient giving of such

notice.

The Trustee shall have the right to accept and act upon instructions, inciuding fttnds

transfer instructiols ("Instructions") given pursuant to this Trust Agreement and delivered using

Electronic Means ("Electronic Mcans" shall mean the following communications methods: e-

mail, facsimile transmission, secure electronic transmission containing applicable authorization

codes, passwords and/or authentication keys issued by the Trustee, or another method or system

specified by the Trustee as available for use in connection with its services hereunder); provided,

ho*.u.r, that the Authority shall provide to the Trustee an incumbency certificate listing officers

with the Authority to provide such Instructions and containing specimen signatures of stich

officers, which incumbency certificate shall be amended by the Authority whenever a person is to

be added or deleted from tie listing. If the Authority elects to give the Trustee Instructions using

Electronic Means and the Trustee in its reasonable judgment elects to act upon such Ilrstructions,

tire Trustee's understanding of such Instructions shall be deemed controlling. The Comrnunity

Facilities District understands and agrees that the Trustee cannot determine the identity of the

actual sender of such Instructions and that tlie Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively presume

without liability that directions that purport to have been sent by an officer listed on the

incumbelcy ceitificate provided to the Trustee have been sent by such officer. The Authority shall

be responsibl" for.nr,riirrg that only officers transmit such Instructions to the Trustee and that the

Authority and all officers are solely responsible to safeguard the use and confidentiality of
applicabie user and authorization codes, passwords and/or authentication keys upon receipt by the

euthority. The Trustee shall not be liable for any losses, costs claims, or expenses arising directly

or- indirectly from the Trustee's reliance upon and compliance with snch Instructions

notwithstanding the fact that such directions conflict or are inconsistent with a subsequent written

instruction. Tlie Authority agrees: (i) to assume all risks arising out ofthe use of Electronic Means

to submit Instlrctions to the lrustee, including without limitation the risk of the Trustee acting on

u'authorized instructions, and the risk of interception and misuse by third parties; (ii) that it is
fully ilformecl of the protections and risks associated with the various methods of transmitting

Instructions to the Truitee and that there may be more secure methods of transmitting Instructions

than the method(s) selected by the Authority; (iii) that the security procedures (if any) to be

fbllorared in connectiol with its transmission of Instructions provide to it a commercially

reasonable degree of protection in light of its particular needs and circumstances; and (iv) to notify

the Trustee in writing immediately upon learning of any compromise or unauthorized use of the

security procedures.

SECTION 13.04. l-loliclays. If the date for making any payment or the last date for

per.fbrrnance of any act orthe exercising of any right, as provided herein, shall not be a Business

bay" s'ch payment may be made or act performed ol right exercised on the next succeeding

Busiless Day with the same force and effect as if done on the nominal date p|ovided in this Trust

Agreernent, and no interest shall accrue for the period from and after such nominai date'

43
=l l6i-:lr7q-94i I 4 Page 91

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



SECTION 13.05. Limitation
make any payments required hereundet' ot' under any Bond. or be deemed to incur any liability

hereunder or by reason hereof or arising out of any of the transactiorts contemplated hereby,

payable frorn any funds or assets othel than the Trust Estate as provided het'ein.

SECTION 13.06. Unql4u0gd_MAngy. Anything contained her'ein to the contraty

notwithstanding, any money t*ld by th. T*stee in tlust for the payment and discharge of the

interest on o. piin"iial of oiredemption premiums, if any, on any Bond which remains unclaimed

for two (2) years after the date when ,.,"h urnornts have become payable, if such money was held

by the Trustee on such date, or for two (2) years after the date of deposit of such money if deposited

with the Trustee after the date such amounts have become payable, shall be paid by the Trustee to

the Authority as its absolute property free frorn trust, and the Trustee shall thereupon be released

a'd discharged with ,.rp""f thireto and the Owners shall look only to the Authority fol the

payment of iuch amounts; providecl, that before being required to make any such payment.to the
euthority, the Trustee ,halil ut th" 

"xpense 
and written direction of the Authority, give notice by

first class mail to the Owlers that ,u"h *on.y remains unclaimed and that after a date named in

such notice, which clate shall not be less than sixty (60) days after the date of giving such notice,

the balance of such money then unciaimed wili be returned to the Authority.

SECTION 13,07. Governing Law. This Trust Agreentent shall be governed as to

validity, construction and perfolmance by the laws of the State.

iabilit The Authority sliall not be obligated to

SECTION 13.08. Severabilit-v of lnvalid Provisions' If any clause' provision or

section hereof is held illegal or i"uufia lv any court, the invalidity of such clause, provision or

sectio, shall not affect any of the remaining clauses, provisions or sections hereof, and this Trust

Agreement shall be construed and enforcecl as if such illegal or invalid clause, provision or section

had not been contained herein.

SECTION 13.09. Counterparts and Electlonic Execution. This Trust Agreement may

be executed in any number of counterp-tt, 
"""h "f 

which, when so executed and delivered, shall

be an original; but all of which such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same

instrument. The exchange of copies of this Trust Agreement and of signature pages by facsimile

or pDF transmission shall constitute effective execution and delively of this Trust Agreement as

to the parties hereto and may be used in lieu of the oliginal Trust Agreement and signature pages

for all purposes. Each parti agrees that the electronic signatures, whether digital or encrypted, of

tfre parties included in ihis trust Agreement are intended to authenticate this writing and to have

the same force and effect u, *urruuf signatures. Electronic signature mea1ls any electronic sound,

symbol, or process attached to or logically associated with a record and executed and adopted by

aparty with the intent to sign such record, including facsimile or email electronic signatures'

SECTION 13.10. U.S.A. Patriot Act. The parties hereto acknowledge that in

accordance with Section326 "f 
th; U.s,q. patriot Act, the Trustee, like all financial institutions

and in order to help fight the funding of terlorism and money laundering, is required to obtain,

veriff, and record iniormation that identifies each person or legal entity that establishes a

relalionship ol.opens an account u,ith tl-re Trustee. 'I'lie parties to this Trust Agleement agree tliat

they will pr.ovide the Trustee with such inforrnation as it may request in order for the Trustee to

satisfy the requirements of the U.S.A. Patriot Act'

4l6r-1574-9451 4

44
Page 92

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



SECTION I 3. i 1 . F-orce Mqjeure. In no event shall the Trustee be responsible or liable

for any failure or delay in the p"rfott"*r.. of its obligations hereunder arising out of or caused by,

directiy or indirectty, rot".. beyond its control, including, without lirritation, strikes, work

stoppages, accidents, acts of war 01 terorism, pandemics, epidemics, quarantine restdctions,

,""og;ir"a public emergencies, civil or military disturbances, nuclear or natural catastrophes or

actsif God, and interruptions, loss or malfunctions of utilities, communications ol computer

(software and hardware) services; it being understood that.the Trustee shall use reasonable efforts

which are consistent with accepted practices in the banking industry to resume performance as

soon as practicable under the circumstances'

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

4t65-3574-9451 .1

45
Page 93

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Authority has caused this Trust Agreement to be

executed by the Treasurer, the Community Facilities Distlict has caused this Trust Agreement to

be executed i' its nanle by the Finance Diiector of the City of Folsom, and the Trustee has caused

this Trust Agreement to te executed by its authorized signatory, all as of the day and year first

above wlitten.

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

Treasurer

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMTINITY FACILITIES
DISTzuCT NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH)

Finance Director of the City of Folsom

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION,

as Trustee

By
Authorized SignatorY

By

By

4 I 65-3574-945 1.4

Siguature Page to Tl'tlst Agreement
Page 94

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



EXHIBIT A

OF TH TY

T'NITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Unless this Authority Bond (as hereinafter defined) is presented by an authorized representative

of The Depository Trust Company, a New York corporation ("DTC"), to the Trustee for

registration of transfer, exchange, or payment, aud any Authority Bond issued is registered in the

,rJ*. of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC

(and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized

r:"p..rrrrtutive of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE

on orupRwISE B]. OR TO ANy PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner

hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein.

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AT]THORITY
CITYoFFoLSoMCOMML|NITYFACILITIESDISTRICT

NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 2 SPECIAL TAX REVENUE

BOND, SERIES 2024

No. R- $

INTEREST
RATE

MATURITY
DATE

DATED
DATE CUSlP

% September 1,20-- [Closing Date] 3444141 l

Registered Owner: CEDE & CO,

Principal Sum: DOLLARS

The Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, a joint exercise of powers agency

established pursuant to the laws of the State of California (the "Authority"), for value received

hereby promises to pay to the registerecl owner specified above, or registered assigns, on the

matuiity date set forth uboue (subject to any right of prior redemption hereinafter mentioned) the

principal sum set forth above and to pay intelesl thereon at the intelest rate per annum set forth

ubou*. The interest on this Authority Bond will be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year

consisting of twelve (12) 30-day calendar months and will be payable on N4arch 1 and September

1 in each year (eac|'an "Jnterest Paymerrt Date"), contmencing on September I ,2A24, and is

4 l 65-3574-94i 1.4

A-1
Page 95

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



payable by clieck, rnailed by first class mail, on each Interest Payment Date to the registered owner

whose nar'e appears on tlie bond legistel nraintained by the Corporate Trust Office (as defined in

the Trust Agreement hereinafter referred to) of U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association

(together with any sllccessor as Trustee under the Trust Agreement hereinafter meutioned, the
;Tr:urr.""; as of ihe close of business on the fifteenth (15th) day of the month preceding such

Interest payment Date (the "Recorcl l)ate"), except with respect to defaulted interest for which a

special record date wili be established; proyided, that in the case of a registered owner of one

*ittior, dollars ($1,000,000) or rnore in aggregate principal amount of Authority Bonds, upon

written request of such registered owner to the Trustee received not later than the Record Date,

such inter.est shall be paiJon the Interest Payment Date in immediately available funds by wire

transfer to an acconnt ln a bank or trust company or savings bank that is a member of the Federal

Reserve Systern and that is located in the continental United States of America. The principal

hereof and the redemption premium hereon, if any, are payable upon presentation and suffender

hereof at the Co,porate Tr-ust Office of the Trustee. Both the interest on and principal of and

redemptio' premium, if any, hereon are payable in lawful money of the United States of America.

Rll capitalir.d t.r-, used herein but not otherwise defined shall have the meanings contained in

the hereinafter mentioned Trust Agreement'

The Author:ity and the Trustee sirall be entitled to conclusively treat the registered

owner of tiris Author.ity Bond as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment

as herein proyided uni fo, all othel purposes, and the Authority and the Trustee shall not be

affected by notice to tlie contrary.

This Authority Bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the Authority

designated as the "Foisom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities

District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series

2024- (the "Authority Bonds") issued in the aggregate principal amount of

dollars ($[Par Amourit]) pursuant to the provisions relating to the joint exercise of powers found

in Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Califomia Government Code, including the Marks-

Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985 (being california Government code Sections 6584-6594)

as amended and supPlemented (the "Act"), and pursuant to a trust agreement executed and entered

into as of January 1,2A24,bY and among the Authority, the City of Folsom Community Facilities

District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the ,.Comrnunity Facilities District") and the Trustee (the "Trust

Agreement"). The AuthoritY Bond s are issued for the purpose of purchasing Local Obligations,

and refereuce is hereby rnade to the Trust Agreetnent (a copy of which is on fi1e at the Colporate

Trust Office of the T'rnstee) and all trust agreements supplemental thereto and to the Act fol a

description of the putposes thereof, of the rights thereunder of the registered owr1er, of tire nature

and extent of the secttrity for the Authority Bonds and of the rights, duties and immuuities of the

Trustee, of the obligations of the Community Facilities District, and of the rights and obligations

of the Ar-rtholity tltet'eunder, to all the provisions of which Trust Agreement the registered o''.vner

of this Authority Bond, by acceptance hereof, assents and agrees

Tlie Ar-rthority Bonds and the interest thereon and any redernption premiums

thereo'r are special, limited obligations of the Authority payable solely from the Trust Estate and

are secur.ecl by the Trust Estate, including amounts held in the accounts and funds (other than the

Rebate Fundj establisled pnrsuant to the Trust Agreement (including proceeds of the sale of the

Authority Bolcls). subject tnly to the provisions of the Trust Agreement perrnitting the application

'l 165-35?4-945 1 .+

A-2
Page 96

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



ther.eof for the puryoses and on the terms and conditions set folth in the Trust Agreement' No

member or officer of the Authority, llor any person executing this Autholity Bond, shall in any

event be subject to any personal liability'oi u".ountability by reason of the issuance of this

Autholity Bond.

THE AUTHORITY BONDS ARE SPECIAL, LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF

THE AUTHORITY, PAYABLE FROM, AND SECURED AS TO THE PAYMENT OF THE

PRINCIPAL OF AND ANY REDEMPTION PREMIUMS ON OR INTEREST ON THE

AUTHORITY BONDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THEIR TERMS AND THE TERMS OF THE

TRUST AGREEMENT, SOLELY FROM THE TRUST ESTATE. THE AUTHORITY BONDS

DO NOT CONSTITUTE A CHARGE AGAINST THE GENERAL CREDIT OF THE

AUTHORITY OR ITS MEMBERS, AND TINDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE

AUTT{ORITY BE OBLIGATED TO PAY PRINCIPAL OF OR ANY REDEMPTION

PREMIUMS ON OR INTEREST ON THE AUTHORITY BONDS EXCEPT FROM THE

TRUST ESTATE. NONE OF THE COMMLINITY FACILITIES DiSTzuCT, THE CITY OF

FOLSOM (THE "CITY"), THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA NOR ANY PUBLIC AGENCY

(oTFIER THAN rHE AurHozurv; NoR AyY-yEMBER oF THE coMMLINITY

FACILITIES DISTzuCT OR THE AUTHORITY IS OBLIGATED TO PAY THE PRINCiPAL

OF OR ANY REDEMPTION PREMIUMS ON OR INTEREST ON TI]E AUTHORITY BONDS'

AND NEITHER THE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE

COMMLINITY FACILITIES DISTRICT, THE CITY, THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR ANY

PUBLIC AGENCY THEREOF OR ANY MEMBER OF THE AUTHORITY (INCLUDING THE

CITY) OR THE COMMTINITY FACILITIES DISTRICT IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT

OF THE PRINCIPAL OF OR ANY REDEMPTION PREMIUMS ON OR INTEREST ON THE

AUTHORITY BONDS, AND NEITHER THE PRINCIPAL OF OR ANY REDEMPTION

PREMIUMS ON OR iNTEREST ON THE AUTHORITY BONDS CONSTITUI'ES A DEBT'

LIABILITY OR OBLIGATION OF THE COMMTII{ITY FACILITIES DISTRICT' THE CITY'

THE STA']:E OF CALIFORNIA OR ANY PUBLIC AGENCY (OTHER THAN THE

AUTHORITY) OR ANY MEMBER OF THE AUTHORITY.

The Authority Bonds are subject to optional redemption by the Authority prior to

their respective maturity dates as a whore oi in part oll any date on or after September 1, 201- 
.1,

fi.om a'y source of available funds other than Minimum Sinking Fund Paymeuts and Special Tax

prepayments, upon rnailed notice as hereinafter provided, at the following redemption prices

(computed upon the principal amount of the Authority Bonds or portions thereof called for

redemption) iogether with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for ledemptiot]:

103% if redeemed on any date on or after September 1, 20[ I

tl'rrough August 31,201 l;

102% if redeemed on any date from September 1.20|. I through

August 31, 20[ ];

rcl% if ledeemed on any date fiom September 1, 20[ ] through

August 31, 20[ ]; and

100%if redeetned on September 1, 201-J and any date thereafter'

4165-3574-945J 4

A-3
Page 97

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



The Authority Bonds are subject to extraordinary redemption by the Attthority prior

to their respective maturity dates, as a whole or in part on any Interest Payment Date on or after

September 1, 201 l, rot.ty from funds derived fiom extraordinary ledemption of Local

Obligations from ffiial Tax Prepayments, at the following redemption prices (computed upon

the piincipal amount of the Authority Bonds or portions thereof called for redernption) together

with accrr,ed interest thereon to the date fixed for redemptiol:

103% if redeemed on any Interest Payrnent Date on or after

September 1,20l. ] thlough March 1,20l ];

102% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on September 1,

zAIJand March t,20[ l;

rc|% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on September 1.

201)and March i,20[ l; and

rcA%if redeerned on September 1, 201 ] and any Interest Payment

Date thereafter'

The Authority Bonds rnaturing on September 1, 201-J, are subject to mandatory

redemption by the Authority prior to their stated maturity date in part ou september 1 of each year

on und- after September 1 ,iai l,to and including September 1, 201 ]; and the Authority Bonds

maturing on September l, Z}lJ, are subject to mandatory redernption by the Authority prior to

their stated maturity date in purt on September I of each year on and after September 1, 20[ ], to

and including September 1, 20[ ], ,rpon mailed notice as hereinafter provided, from (and in the

amount ofl trre Minimum Sinr.i"gfund Puy*.nt due and payable for the Authority Bonds on each

such date, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount theleof plus accrued interest thereon

to the date of redemption, without premium.

Notice of redemption of any Authority Bonds shall be mailed by first class mail, in

a sealed envelope, postage prepaid, at least thirty (30) but not more than sixty (60) days before the

date fixed for redernptioir, io tihe legistered owners of such Authority Bonds (or portions thereof)

so called for redemption, at their respective addresses as the same shall last appear on the Bond

Register rnaintained by the Trustee; ppvidecj, that neither the failure of a registered owner to

receive notice of redemption of authoiity Bonds nor any error in such notice shall affect the

validity of the proceedings for the redemption of Authority Bonds'

Any notice of optional redernption under the Trust Agreement may be rescinded by

written notice given by the Auihority to the Trustee no later than three (3) Business Days prior to

the date speciiecl for redemption. The Trustee shall give notice of rescission of the notice of

optional redemption or non-satisfaction of any condjtions specified'in the notice of optional

redemption u, ioon as practicable to the same parties an<i in the same man11el as the notice of

redempiion was given.

4l (r5-i57,1-9451.4

A-4
Page 98

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



The Author-ity Bonds are issuable as fully registered bonds itl denorninations of five

thousand dollars ($5,000) oi uny inregral rnultiple in excess thereof. This Authority Bond may be

transferred or exchanged by ihe legistered owner hereof, in person or by an attorney duiy

authorized in writilg, but only in the manner, subject to the limitations and upon payment of the

charges, if any, prouid.d in the Trr.rst Agreemellt, and upon surrender and cancellation of this

Auttioriiy gona. Upon such transfer or exchange, a new Authority Bond or Autholity Bonds, of

authorized denominltions, for the same aggregate principal amount, interest rate and maturity will

be issued to the transferee in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Agreement. The Trustee

is 
'ot 

required to register the transfer of, or to exchange, any Authority Bond during the period

established by the irustee for selection of Authority Bonds for redemption or to register the

transfer of, or-to exchange, any Authority Bond which has been selected for redemptiou pursuant

to the Trust Agreement.

The Trust Agreement and the rights and obligations of the Authority and of the

registered owners of the Auihority Bonds may be modified or amended from time to time and at

an"y ti-e (apd in certain cases without the consent of such registered owners) in the manller' to the

extent and upon the terms provided in the Trust Agreement'

The Trust Agreernent contains provisions permitting tlie Authority to make

provisions for the payment of the interest on, and the principal and premium, if any, of, any of the

Authority Boncls sb ttrat such Authority Bonds shall no longer be deerned to be Outstanding under

the terms of the Trust Agreement.

It is hereby certified and recited that any and all conditions, things and acts required

to exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in the issuance of this

Authority Bond do Lrirt, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner

as required by the Constitution and laws of the State of California, including the Act, and that the

amount of this Authority Bond, together with all other indebtedness of the Authority, does not

exceed any limit prescr-iled by the Constitution and laws of the State of Califbrnia, including the

Act, an<i ii not in excess of the amount of Authority Bonds permitted to be issued under the Trust

Agreement.

This Authority Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Tlust Agreement,

or become valid or obligatory for any pulpose, until the certificate of authentication hereon

endorsed shall have been manually signed by an authorized signatory of the Trustee'

4l(r5-3574-9451 4

A-5
Page 99

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Folsom Ranch Financing Autholity has caused this

Authority Bond to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the manual or facsirnile signature

of its Treasurer and attested by the facsimile signature of its Secretary, all as of [Closing Date].

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

By
Treasurer

Aftest:

Secretary

4t65-3574-945t .4

A-6
Page 100

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This is one of the Authority Bonds described in the within-mentioned Trust

Agreement, which has been authentieated on the date below.

Dated: [Closing Date]

U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association
as Trustee

By:
Authorized Signatory

4t63-3374-9451 .4

A-7
Page 101

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



and appoints

FORM OF ASSIGNMENT

Fol value received, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfels unto

this registered Authority Bond and irrevocably constitutes

attomey to transfer the same on the books of the

Trustee, with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:

SIGNATURE GUARANTEED BY:

NOTE Signatures must be guaranteed by an "eligible guarantor institution" meeting the

re{uirements of membership or participation in the Security Transfer Agent

Medallion Program ("STAMP") or such other "signature guarantee program" as

may be determined in substitution for STAMP, all in accordance with the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended'

Social Security Number, Taxpayer Identification Number or other ldentiSing

Number of Assignee:

4165-1574-9451 4

A-8
Page 102

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



ATTACHMENT 4

Page 103

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



OH&S DRAFT
1u2712023

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMLINITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,

as Trustee

INDENTURE

Dated as of January 1,2424

Relating to the

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. 2

Special Tax Bonds

and

4 I 65-6930-3883_5 Page 104

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS; EQUAL SECURITY

Page

2

1s

..15

,,r6

..18

Section 1.01

Section i.02

Section 2.01

Section 2.02

Section 2.03

tions..

alS

ARTICLE II

AUTI]ORIZATION AND ISSUANCE OF BONDS
SE

ditional Bonds: Subolclinate Bonds.

Proc feir the of Adcliti I Bonds..

A ds....

Section 2.04. Date and Matrrritv trl- nncl I rest Rrtes ott nrrd Mininrutn irrlcirrrt

Fund Account P mcrrts for Bonds

Section 2.05

Section 2.06

Interest Pavm Dates of Bonds

Form of Bonds..

Section 2.07. Pay-rl-qI"-AI-IlAld€

Section 2.08. Execution of Boncls

Section 2.09. Transfer and Exchanee a """
Section 2.10.

Section 2.1 1.

Section 2.12.

Section 2.13.

Section 2.14.

Section 2.15

ril or l,

Reqistration of the Bonds.

CUSIP Nurnbers

Section 2.16. Costs of

A lication of of Sale of 20?"1 Boncls...

ized Interest Account

sition and rction Fund.

Fund..

ARTICLE III

REDEMPTION OR EXCHANGE OF BONDS

Redemntiorr Pric rlnd Terms of Bonrls

t(ln

ARTICLE IV

Selectiorr of llo iirr

N tice of Rcd rrrntion crf nds

Partial Red r:tiort ol' onds

Section 3.05. Effect of Re-dsx:lldeqglBqIb

Section 3.01 .

Section 3.02.

Section 3.03.

Section 3.04.

,2s

.21

.27

.28

.28

,)

1

1 I(r5-6930-3IJ83.5

SPECIAL TAX

Page 105

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



TABLE OF CONTENTS
(continued)

Section 4.02. Al cation of

sit of P eeds of S

and Transfer to the Special Tax Fund

the

Section 4.01

Section 5.01

Section 5.02

cl in the rtles

Page

...28

...28

.30

,i0

,.1 I

..i2
"1 .t,,.)-

.. J-

..JJ

Tax Fund

ARTICLE V

COVENANTS OF THE COMMLINITY FACILITIES DISTRICT

tual vment a Performance

Inde cunrbrances

Section 5.03. , ,Against fgelt:ral lnqqt49fa44u.9!

Section 5.04

Section 5.05

Section 5.06

P vment qrf Claims

and S sB

tll'tg Recorcls: Fi nancial Statements arrd Other

Section 5.07.

Section 5.08.

Protection cll' Securi and Ri ol I"l ders

flhalses and Clonrnlinn ce rvith Gove rrental

Reqttkttions

Section 5.09

Section 5.10

arrd Collection of the Snecial Tax..

of Soeci al Tax Liens.....

Section 5.1 1 . Furtber Assura.nces

ARTICLE VI

THE TRUSTEE

Section 6.01

Section 6.02

Section 6.03

Section 6.04

The Trustee

Liabilitv of the Trustee

C nensati n and ln nrnilicat ol the

Notice to the

ARTICLE VII

AMENDMENToFoRSUPPLEMENTToTHEINDENTURE
Section 7.01

Section 7,02

Section 7.03

Section 7.04

Proced,ure lbr A-o,.r:l-ant 
nfirrLll\ltrl!lll vr ^" Qrrnnl

L'I ULI}J'.'T ement to the I

DisoLralified Bonds

or Rep of Bonds A{ier endment or Sunnl enrentAm

Pavrnent of

F losrtre

,...JJ

al
... 'Jt

....1"+

....i-l

.i5

._1t)

a7

ao
.-1O

Ll dorserrienl

Ameudment orS bv Mutual Cousent

ARTICLE VIIi

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES OF HOLDERS

Events o1'De Remedies ui'Section 8.01

Section 8.02

ll

4l 6i-(1930-3883 5

Non-Waivet'.......

40

41

Page 106

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



TABLE OF CONTENTS
(continued)

Section 8.03 Not USIVC

ARTICLE IX

DEFEASANCE

Sectiori 9.01

Section 9.02

ARTICLE X

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 10.01 unl Facili Limited to the

and Other

Section 10.02

Section 10.03

Benefits Limited to n Parties......

S Alt es to

Section 10.04.

Section 10.05.

of Do bv Holders

Deposit and of Monev in unts and Funds ..

Section 10.06.

Section 10.07.

Wai Liabili

Acquisition of Bonds bv Facilities

Section 10.08. Content of Certificates and Reports

Section 10.09. Maintenance of Accourts and Funds

Article and S Gender arid

Page
.....42

Discharge of the Bonds

U r"lev

L)

........43

l'

',,,.',,.,,'....44

'...,.''',,.....44

.',,..........'.44

45

4\

ces-

.,......,46

.........46

.........46

..,,....'47

',.'.','.47

.........47
Section 10.10.

Section 10.11.

Section 10.12.

Section 10.13.

Partial Invaliditv...

Execution in Counteroarts and Electronic Execution

inr: Law

Section 10.14. Notices

Section 10.15. U S.A. Patriot Act ,....

Section 10.16. Force Majqure

Section 10.17. EffectiveDate of the Indenture

EXHIBIT A FORM OF BONDS

...47

,...48

..,.48

dc)

,.......".^......49

..,..,.....,.....49

A-1

.r r65-6930-38tt3 5

ill
Page 107

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



INDENTURE

This Ildenture (the "lndenture"), dated as of January 1,2024, by and between the

City of Folsom Corlmunity Facilities District No, 23 (Folsom Ranch), organized and existing

unj". and by virtue of the iaws of the State of Califolnia (the "Community Facilities District"),

and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, a national banking association duly

organized and existing under and by viltue of the laws ol the United States of America and

authorized to accept and execute trusts oftlie character herein set forth, as trustee (the "Tlustee");

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Folsom (the "City") on May 26,2020,

duly adopted its Resolution No. 10435, establishing the Community Facilities District and

designating various improvement areas therein, including Improvement Area No. 7 (the
.,Improvement Area") foi the pur?ose of providing for the financing of certain public facilities and

certain public services in and for such Comrnunity Facilities District, and also duly adopted its

Resolution No. I 101 i on March 28, 2023, whereby the rate and method of apportionment of the

Special Tax for the Improvement Area was amended; and

WHEREAS, at an election held in the Community Facilities District on May 26,

2020,the qualified electors within the Improvement Area duly authorized the issuance of thirty-

six million dollars ($36,000,000) plincipal amount of special tax bonds for the Improvement Area

for the purpose of financing such public facilities and services; and

WHEREAS, the qualified electors in the Improvement Area at such election

additionally authorized the levy and collection of a special tax to be used for the purpose, among

others, of paying the interest on arrd priricipal of and redemption premiums, if any, on such special

tax bonds; and

WHEREAS , at an electiol held in the Improvement Area on March 28,2A23, the

qgalified electors within the Improvement Area duly approved the amendment of the rate and

method of apportionment and manner of colleclion of the Special Tax for the Improvement Area;

and

WHEREAS, the Community Facilities District has determined to issue

dollars ($[Par Amor"rnt]) principai amount of such special tax bonds for the

Improvement Area (tbe"2024 Bonds" and, together with any Additional Bonds (defined herein),

the "Bonds") pursuant hereto and to secure the

purpose of paying for such public facilities; and

Bonds in the manner provided herein, and for the

WHEREAS, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the "Authority") has agreed

to pulchase the Bonds pursuant to a Local Obligation Purchase Contract between the Authority

and the Commurity Facilities District datecl [Sale Date], with a porlion of the proceeds of the

Authority,s City of Irolsom Commurrity Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Impt'ovement

Area No. 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 (the "Authority Bonds"); and

WI{EREAS, all thilgs necessary to cause the Bonds, when executed by the

Com*runity Facilities District and authenticatecl by the Trustee and delivered as plovided herein,

4 l 65-69-10-3883 5
Page 108

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



to be legal and valid special tax obligations of the Community Facilities District enforceable in

accordance with their t.r,',.Ir, and to constitute the Indenture a valid agreement for the uses and

pslposes herein set forth in accordance with its terms, have been done and taken, and the execution

urrd O.ti.r.ry hereof and the execution and delivery of the Bonds, subject to the terms hereof, have

in all lespects been duly authorized;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE INDENTURE WITNESSETH, thAt iN OTdCT tO SCCUTC

the paymerrt of the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on all Bonds at

unyii*. issued and Outstanding hereunder according to their tenor, and to secure the observance

and perforrnance of all the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms therein and herein set

forth, a1d to declar-e the condiiions and terms upon and subject to which the Bonds are to be issued

and received, and in consideration of the premises and of the mutual agreements and covenants

contained hereil and of the purchase and acceptance of the Bonds by the respective Holders thereof

from time to time, and for other valuable consideration, the receipt whereof is hereby

acknowledged, the Cornmunity Facilities District does hereby agree and covenant with the Trustee,

for the benefit of the respective Holders from time to time of the Bonds, as follows:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS LEOUAL SECURITY

Section 1.01 . Definitions. Unless the context otherwise requires, all terms defined

in this Section shall for utt purpor.r tr"reof and of any Supplemental Indenture and of the Bonds

and of any celtificate, opinion, report, request or other document mentioned herein or therein have

the meanings defined herein, the following definitions to be equally applicable to both the singular

and plural forms of any of the terms defined herein:

2024 Bonds

Accoutrtant's RePot't

,'Accountant's Report" means a report signed by an Independent Certified Public

Accountant.

uisition and Cons

..Acquisition and Construction Fund" means the City of Folsom Community

Facilities Disrricr No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement AreaNo. 2 Special Tax Bonds Acquisition

and Corrstruction Fund established pursuant to Section 2.15.

*2024 Bonds" means the

principal amount of City of Folsom Community Facilities D

iroptou"*.nt Area No. 2 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2024, at any

ur. .*.".,1.d, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the

dollars ($[Par Amount]) aggregate

istrict No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
time Outstanding hereunder that
plovisions hereof.

2
4 I (r5-693(.)--.1 li$3 5

Page 109

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



AdditionalBonds

,,Additional Bonds" mean Bonds other than the 2024 Bonds issued hereundel in

accordance with the provisions of Sections 2.02 and2'43 '

Annual Debt Service

o.Arurual Debt Service" means for each Bond Year, the surn of (a) the interest due

on the O'tstanding Bonds in such Bond Year, assuming that the Bonds are retired as scheduled

(including by r.eason of Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments), and (b) the principal of the

Bonds due in such Bond year (including by reason of Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments).

Authoritv

..Authority" means the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority and its successors and

assigns.

Authority Bonds

,.Authority Bonds" means the Folsorn Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax

Revenue Bonds, Series 2024.

Authoritv Trustee

,.Authority Trustee" means U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as

trustee under the Trust Agreement.

Averas e AnnUal-Dgb!-$g:'vigg

,.Average Annual Debt Service" means the average Debt Service on the Bonds

payable in the .rrrr.rrf Bond Year and in all future Bond Years during which any Bonds are

scheduled to be Outstanding, all as determined by the Community Facilities District under the

Code and specified in writing to the Trustee'

Bond Reserve Account

,,Bond Reserve Account" means each such account within the Bond Reserve Fund

refened to by that name, including the Series 2024Bond Reserve Account.

Bond Reserve Fund

,.Bond Reserve Fund" means the fund within the Special Tax Fturd referred to by

that name established pursuant to Section 4.02.The Bond Reserve Fund wiil be made up solely of

the Bond Reserve Account(s) established therein'

Bonds. Selial Bonds. Term Bonds

"Bonds" means 2024 Bonds and any Additional Bonds

3

4 I 65-(r930-l8ti3 i Page 110

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



..Serial Bonds" means the Bonds fol which no Minimum Sinking Fund Account

Payments are established.

,.Term Bonds,, means the Bonds which are redeemable or payable on or before their'

specified maturity dates from Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments established for the

p'rrrpor" of redeeming or paying such Bonds on or before theil specified rnaturity dates'

Bond Year

,.Bond year,,means the twelve-month period terminating on September 1 of each

year; gryicled, that the first Bond Year shall commence on the date of the execution and initial

delivery of the Bonds'

Business Day

..Business Day" means any day other than (i) a Satulday or a Sl;nday or (ii) a day

on which commercial banks in New York, New York, or the city in which the Corporate Trust

Office of the Trustee is located, are closed'

Capital izgd Interest Accourt

,,Capitalized Interest Account" means the City of Folsom Community Facilities

District No. 23 folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Bonds capitalized Interest

Account established pursuant to Section 2'14'

Certificate of the City

.,Certificate of the City" means an instrument in writing signed by the City Manager

or the Fina'ce Director, or by any otirer officer of the City duly authorized by the City Council for

that purpose.

Sily
,,City', means the City of Folsom, a chafier city and municipal corporation duly

organizecl and exist'ing under and by uittu. of its charter and the Constitution and laws of the State

of California.

City Clerk

Citv Council

Citv Manaqer

"City Clerk" lreans the City Clerk of the City

"City Council" meaus the City Council of the City'

"City Manager" means the City Manager of the City'

4
4l(r5-(1930-38ti3 5

Page 111

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Code

..Code,,rneans the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and the regulations issued

thereunder fi.om time to time, and in this regard reference to any particular section of the code

shail include reference to any successor to such section of the Code'

tV Facilities District

,.Community Facilities District" means the City of Folsom Community Facilities

District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), a community facilities district duly organized and existing in the

City under and by virtue of the Law'

Commurrity Faci I Lti es Fr'rnd

,.Community Facilities Fund" means the City of Folsom Community Facilities

District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Community Facilities Fund established

pursuant to Section 4'02.

eor?orate Trust O t1-t qe

..Corporate Trusl Office" means the office of the Trustee in California designated

in Section 6.01 at *iri.t, at any particular time its corporate trust business shall be administered'

Costs of Issuance

.,Costs of Issuance" means all costs and expenses payable by or reimbursable to the

City or the Community Facilities District that are related to the authorization, sale, execution and

initial delivery of the bondr, including, but not limited to, costs of preparation and reproduction

of documents, rating agency fees, filin! fees, initiai fees and charges of the Trustee (including fees

and expenses of its;oir.rr.i;, legal feeJand charges and fees and charges of other consultants and

professionals, together with all;osts for preparation of the Bonds, aud anyother cost or expense

in connection with the authori zarion, sale, execution and initial delivery of the Bonds'

Costs of Issuance Fund

.,Costs of Issuance Fund" means the City of Folsom Community Faciiities District

No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Bonds Costs of Issuance Fund

estabiished pursuant to Section 2.16.

Debt Service

"Debt Service" lneans, for any Bond Year, the sum of (l) the interest payable

during such Bo'd year. on all Outstanding Bonds, assuming that all Outstandir,g SeIial Bonds ale

retired as scheduled and that all outstanding Term Bonds are redeemed or paid as scheduled at the

times of and in amounts equal to the ,lr* of all Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments- plus

(2) the principal amount of all Outstanding Serial Bonds maturing by their tenns in such Bond

y"ar, pius (j) tne Minimurn Sinking Fund Accouut Payment tequired to be deposited in tlie

Sinking Furd Subaccount in such Bond Year'

5

1 r 65-69i0-38ti3.5
Page 112

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Devel ooed

,,Developed Proper.ty" means ail Taxable Property for which a building permit for

new construction has been issued as of the date of calculation.

E T

.,Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minirnum Facilities Reventle" has the meaning

given to such term in the Rate and Method'

Event of Default

.,Event of Default" means an event described as such in Section 8.01

Facilities

.,Facilities,, means those certain public facilities authorized to be acquired and

constructed in and for the Community Facilities District under and pursuant to the Law at the

special election held in the Community Facilities District on May 26,2A24'

Fncilities Special Tax

.,Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal

year on each Assessor,s parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement

in accordance with the Rate and Method (each as defined in the Rate and Method)'

Federal Securities

.,Federal Securities" means (a) any securities now' ol' hereafter authorized both the

inter.est on and principal of which are guaranteed by the full laitli and credit of the United States

of Amedca, and (b) any of the follow]ng obligations of federal agencies not guaranteed by the

United States of America: (i) participation certificates or seniol debt obligations of the Federal

Home Loan Mortgage Corporutlor',, (2) bonds or debentr-rres of the Fecleral Home Loan Bank Board

established under the Federal Home Loan Bank Act and borrds of any federal home loan bank

established under such act, and (3) stocks, bonds, debentures. participatiot:s and other obligations

of or issued by the Federal National Morlgage Association. the Sludent Loan Marketing

S

Expenses

..Expenses" means all expenses paid or incurred by the City or the Community

Facilities District for the cost of planning and designing the Facilities, including the cost of

environmental evaluations of the Facitities and the costs associated with the creation of the

community Facilities District, the designation of the improvement areas therein, the issuance of

the Bonds, the determination of the amiunt of the Special Tax, the collection of the Special Tax

and the paymelt of the Special Tax, or costs otherwisi incurred in order to cany out the authorized

purposes of the community Facilities District, and any other expenses incidenlal to the acquisition,

construction, completion and inspection of the Facilities; all as determined in accordance with

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles'

6

4 I (:5-(1930-3lifJ3 5

Page 113

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Association, the Gover.rrment National Mortgage Association and the Federal Horne Loan

Mortgage Corporation, as and to the extent that such securities or obligations are eligible for the

legal investment of City ol Conrmulity Facilities District funds.

Finance Director

"Finance Director" means the Finance Director of the City.

Fiscal Year

,'Fiscal Year" means the twelve-month period terrninating on June 30 of each year,

or any other annual accounting period hereafter selected and designated by the Comrnunity

Facilities District as its Fiscal Year in accordance with applicable law.

Fitch

,,Fitch" means Fitch Ratings, Inc., a corporation duly organized and existing under

and by virtue of the laws of the State of New York, and its successors or assigns, except that if
such entity shail be dissolved or iiquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities

rating ug.r,"y, then the term "Fitch" shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized

securities rating agency selected by the Community Facilities District-

Gencrallv Accented ourrtitta Pri rrcinlCS

"Generally Accepted Accounting Principles" means the uniform accounting and

reporting procedures .*i forth in publications of the American Institute of Certified Public

Accountants or its successor, or by any other generally accepted authority on such procedures, and

includes, as applicable, the standards set forth by the Goverrunental Accounting Standards Board

or its successot'.

Holder

"Holder" means any person who shall be the registered owner of any Outstanding

Bond, as shown on the registration books maintained by the Trustee pursuant to Section 2.09.

ent Area

"lmprovement Area" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2, a designated improvement area within the Community

Facilities District.

Indenture

"lndenture" means this Jndentrue and all Supplemental Indentures

Certified ccountant

"lndependent Certified Public Accountanl" means any certified public accountant

or fir-m of such accountants duly licensed and entitled to practice and practicing as such under the

7
4 I 65-(1930-3ti83 i Page 114

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



laws of the State of california, appointed and paid by the community Facilities District, and who,

or eaclr of whonr:

(1) is i' fact independent and not under the dornination of the Community

Facilities District;

(Z) does not have a substantial financial intetest, direct or indirect, in the

operationsoftheCommunityFacilitiesDistrict;and

(3) is not connected with the Community Facilities District as an officer or

employee of the Community Facilities District, but who may be regularly retained to a-udit

the accounting records of and make reports thereon to the Community Facilities District'

I ndependent Conslr I tattt

,.Independent Consultant" means any consultant or firm of consultants selected by

the Community Faciiities District who, or each of wirorn, (a) is generally recognized to be qualified

in the field of special tax or financial consulting, (b) is in fact independent and not under the control

of the community Facilities District, (c) does not have any substantial interest, direct or indirect,

in the Cornmunity Facilities District, oi uny o',ler of real property illh" Community Facilities

District, and (d) is not an officer or emproyee of the community Facilities District, but who may

be reguiarly retained to make reports to the Comrnunity Facilities District'

Law

..Law,' rneans the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended

(being Sections 53311 et seq. of the Government Code of the State of california), and aii laws

amendatory thereof or supplemental thereto'

"Lien" means the aggregate principal amount of all overlapping debt and bonds

(including the Bonds) outstanding ittut ut* secured by a special tax levied pursuant to the Law or

a special assessment levied on property within the Improvement Area, including any overlapping

debt or bonds fbr community faciiities districts or special assessment districts that is reasonably

allocated to property within the Improvement Area'

l,o$al Obli{ration I'urchase Contract

,.Local Obligation Purchase Contract" means the Local Obligation Purchase

Co'tract between rhe Comniupity Facilities District and the Authority providing for the sale of the

2024 Bonds.

Lien

Mayor

"Mayor" fiteans the Mayor of the City

8

4 I 6i-69i0-3stii 5

Page 115

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Maximum Annual Debt Service

"Maximum Annual Debt Service" rreans, as of any date of calculation, the largest

Debt Service in any Bond Year during the period from the date of such calculation through the

final maturity date of any Outstanding Bonds.

Maximum Facili

.,Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Facilities

Special Tax, determined in accordance with the provisions of Section C of the Rate and Method,

which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property (each as

defined in the Rate and Method).

Ivlinimum Sinlcing Fund Account Paynett'E

..Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments" meatls the payments required

hereunder and under all Supplemental Indentures to be deposited in the Sinking Fund Subaccount

for the payment of the Term Bonds.

Moodv's

"Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service Inc., a corporation duly organized

and existing under und by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, and its successors or assigns,

except that if such entity shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perfbrm the functions

of a securities rating ug"n"y, then the term "Moody's" shall be deemed to refer to any other

nationally recognized secutiiies rating agency selected by the Community Facilities District.

Opinion o1'Counsel

.'Opinion of Counsel" means a written opinion of counsel (including, without

lirnitation, the City Attomey of the City) retained by the Community Facilities District.

Oulstandine

,,Outstanding," when used as of any particular time with reference to Bonds, means

(subject to the provisions of Section 7 .A2) all Bonds except:

(a) Bonds delivered to the Trustee for cancellation and destruction pursuant to

Section 10.07;

(b) Bonds paid or deemed to have been paid pursuant to Section 9.01;

(c) Bonds in lieu of or in substitution for which other Bonds shall have been

executed by the Community Facilities Distlict and authenticated and delivered by the Trustee

pursuant to Section 2.10; and

(d) Bonds paid in accordance with the second to last paraglapli Section 2'10.

9
4 1 (15-6930-38ti3 5 Page 116

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



,.permitted Investments" means any of the following investments, as authorized by

applicable law at the tirne of making such investtnent, namely:

(1) FederalSecurities;

(2) participation certificates (excluding stripped mortgage securities which are

purchased at prices exceeding their principal amounts) and_ senior debt obligations of the Federal

Home Loan Mortgage Corporation; consoiidated systen:-wide bonds and notes of the Farm Credit

Systern; senior aebt" oungations and mortgage-backed securities (excluding stripped mortgage-

backed securities which a"re purclrused at piices exceeding their principal amounts) of the Federal

National Mortgage Association; senior debt obligations (excluding securities that have no fixed

par value and/or whose terms do not promise a fixed dollar amount at maturity or call date) of the

Student Loan Marketing Association; debt obligations of the Resolution Funding Corp'; and

REFCORP STRipS (stripped by the Federal Rlserve Bank of New York) (collectively, the

"Agency Obligations");

(3) Direct obligations of any state of the United States of America or any

subdivision or agency thereof whole long-term unssculed general obligation debt is tated "A3" or

better by Moody,s and ,,A-', or bettei by Standard & poor's or any obligation fully and

unconditionally guaranteed by any state or subdivision or agency thereof whose long-term,

unsecured general obligation debt is rated "A3" or better by Moody's and "A-" or better by

Standard & Poor's;

(4) Commercial paper (that matures in not more than three hundred sixty-five

(365) days) rated ..prime-1" or better by Moody's and "A-1" or better by Standard & Poor's;

(5) Deposits, Federal funds or bankers acceptances (that mature in not more

than three hundred sixty-gilo" (365) days) of any domestic bank (ilcluding a bralch office of a

foreign bank which branch office is locaied in tire United States of America, if the Trustee shall

have received a legal opinion or opinions to the effect that full and timely payment of such deposit

or similar obligation is enforceable against the principal office ol'ally branch of such barik), which:

(a) has an unsecured, uninsured and unguaranteed obligation rated

,.prime-1,, or,'Ai" or better by Moody's and "A-1" 01'"A-" or better by Standard & Poor's,

or

(b) is the lead bank of a parent bank holding company with an

uninsuled, .,nsecured and unguaranteed obligation meeting the rating requirements in

paragraPh (a) above;

(6) Deposits in any bank or savings and loan association which has a combined

capital, surplus and undivided profits of not less than ten tnillion dollars ($10,000,000); prqvldgd,

that if such deposits are fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurauce Corporation, the Banking

Insurance Fund or the Savings Associaiion hrsurance Fund, or are ful1y collateraiized by Federal

Securities;

Permitted lnvestments

4 l(>i-(r9i0-3883 5

10 Page 117

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



(7) Investments in a money-market fund rated "Am" ol'"Am-G" or better by

Standard & Poor's, including any such fund rranaged, advised or sponsored by the Trustee or any

of its affiliates but excludilg any such fund with a floating net asset value;

(g) Repurchase agreements with a term of six (6) months or less with any

i'stitution having long-term, .,nr".urid debl rated at least '(AA)' or coffllnercial paper rated "A-l *"

by Standard & Poor's;

(9) Repurchase agreements collateralized by Federal Securities ("Collaterai

Securities,,) with uny ,.gir,.red broker-dealer which is under the jurisdiction of the Securities

Investors protection cofooration or any commercial bank, if such broker-deaier o' bank has

uninsured, unsecured and unguaranteed debt rateci "Prime-1" or "A3" or better by Moody's and

c'A-l" or "A-" or better by Standard & Poor'si prnvidecl, that:

(a) a master repurchase agreement or other specific written repurchase

agreement govems the transaction;

(b) the collateral Securities are held free and clear of any other lien by

the Trustee o,. *'ind.pendent third party acting solely as agent for. the Trustee' so long as

any such third party (A) is (1) a Federal Reserve Bank or (2) a bank which is a member of

the Federal Deposit Inrururr"e Corporation and which has combined capital, surplus and

undivided profit. of not less than twenty-five million dollars ($25,000,000), and (B)

certifies in writing to the Trustee (or delivers to the Trustee a written opinion of counsel to

such third party) ihat such third party holds the Collateral Securities free and clear of any

lien, as agent for the Trustee;

(c) a perfected first security interest under the Uniform Commercial

Code is created'in, o, book-entry procedures prescribed at 31 C.F.R. 306'1 et seq' or 3i

C.F.R. 350.0 et seq. are foilowei with respect to, the Collateral Securities for tire benefit

of the Trustee,

(d) such repurchase agreement has a temr of thiriy (30) days or less;

(e) such repurchase agreement matures at least ten (10) days (or other

appropriate liquidation period) prior to each interest payment date on the Bonds;

(0 the fair market value of the Collateral Securities in relatiotr to the

amount of the repur"hase obligation, including principal and interest, is equal to at least

one hutrdred three percent (103%); and

(g) the Trustee obtains an opinion of counsel to sr-tch br"oker-dealer or

ba'k (whicn opi"nior. shall be addressed to the Community Facilities District) to lhe effect

that such repurchase agreement is a legal, valid,'binding and enforceable agreelnent of such

broker-deal., or. bankland, in the caie of a bank which is a branch of a fbreigll bank, of

such foreign bank) in accordance with its terms;

4 I (r5-(r910-3881 i
l1

Page 118

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



(10) Shares i1the California Asset Management Plogram (establislied put'suant

to Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5 of the Government Code of the State of California) that invests

exclusively in investments pennitted by Section 53635 of the Governtnent Code of the State of

California, as now existing and as it may be amended fi'oni time to time; and

(11) Investments in the Local Agency Investment Fund maintained by lhe

California State Treasurer, which such investments shall only be invested in the special portion of

the Local Agency Investment Fund for bond proceeds that are not subject to arbitrage restrictions.

Priority Adlrrinistrative Expenses

,.priority Administrative Expenses" means an amount equal to (a) for Fiscal Year

2023-24, $20,000, and (b) for any subsequent Fiscal Year, the amount resulting from increasing

the prioiity Administrative Expenses on each July 1, from and including the July I immediately

lbllowing the end of the then current Fiscal Yeal to and including the July 1 in such Fiscal Year

by 2% of the amount in effect for the previous Fiscal Year'

Proceeds fUnd

,.Proceeds Fund" mealls the temporary account referred to by that name established

pursuant to Section 2.13.

Rate and Method

"Rate and Method" means the amended rate and method of apportionment of

special tax for the Improvement Area'

Rebate Fund

..Rebate Fund" mearis the City of Folsom Community F'acilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Bonds Rebate Fund established pursuant to

Section 5.03.

Redemption Account

"Redemption Account" means the account within the Special Tax Fund referred to

by that name established pursuant to Section 4.02.

Required Boncl Resgrve

"Required Bond Reserve" lneans: for each applicable series of Bonds, as of any

date of calculation,ihe least of (a) Maximum Annual Debt Service- (b) one hundred twenty-five

percent (125%) of the Average Annual Debt Service or (c) ten percent (10%) of the original

proceeds'of such series of Bonds; Uq_y_idecl, that the Required Bond Reserve shall be calculated on

the date of issuance of each series of Bonds and shallnot increase thereafter; and ppy-id.9.d-fu$b9l,

that such requirement (or any portion thereof) may be satisfied by the provision of one or more

policies of municipal bond insurance ol surety bonds issued by a municipal bond insurer or by a

letter of credit issuecl by a bank, the obligations insured by whicli insurer or issued by which bank,

4 t65-(>9i0--1883.5

12
Page 119

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



as the case may be, have ratings at the time of issuance of strch policy or surety bond or lettel of

credit equal to .,AA,, or highei (w'ithout regard to qualifier) assigned by Fitch or "Aa" or higher

(withouf r.egard to qualifier) assigned gy Moody's or "AA" or higher (without regard to quaiifier)

assfgned by Standard & Poor's.

ible Of{rcer clf the Trustee

.,Responsible Officer of the Trustee" means arry officer within the corporate trust

division (or a1y u.rt.".ro, group or department of the Trustee) including any vice president,

assistant vice president, assiitant secretary or any other officer or assistant officer ofthe Trustee

customarily performing functions sirnilarlo those performed by the persons who at the time shall

be such officers, r-espectively, with responsibility for the administration of this Indenture'

Series ?0?4 Bond Reserve Ac-count

',Series 2024 Bond Reserve Account" means the account within the Bond Reserve

Fund referred to by that name established pursuant to Section 2.13(a).

Services

.,services" means the "Authorized Services" pursuant to the Rate and Method.

Services Tax

.,services Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal

year on each Assessor's parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services Special Tax Requirement

(each as defined in the Rate and Method).

Sinlcinu Funcl Subaccottt'lt

..Sinking Fund Subaccount" rleans the subaccount in the Redemption Account

referred to by that name established pursuant to Section 2.04.

Special_.I'ax

,,Special Tax" means the special tax authori zed to be levied and collected annually

on all Taxable pr:operty in the Improvement Area under and pursuant to the Law at the special

election held in the Improvernent Area on March 28,2023, including both the Facilities Special

Tax and the Services SPecial Tax.

Special Taxluld
,,Special Tax Fund" means the City of Folsom Community Facilities District

No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Fund established pursuant to

Section 4.01.

4 l (r5-6930-3 8t|i.5

IJ
Page 120

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Standald & Pool's

"standard & Poor's" means S&P Globai Ratings, a business of Standard & Poor's

Financial Ser-vices LLC, and its successors or assigns, except that if such entity shall be dissolved

or liquidated or shall no longer perfbrm the functions of a securities rating agency, then the term
.,staridard & poor's" slrall bL deerned to refer to any other nationally recognized secudties rating

agency selected by the Community Facilities District.

Supplemenlal Indentr.rre

"supplemental Indenture" means any indenture then in fuil force and effect that has

been made a1d enteied into by the Community Faciiities District and the TLustee, amendatory of

or supplemental hereto; but only to the extent that such Supplemental Indentule is specifically

authorized hereunder.

Tax Celtificate

"Tax Cefii{icate" means the certificate or certificates delivered upon the issuance

of any series of the Bonds relating to Section 148 of the Code, or any functionally similar

replacement certifi cate.

Taxable Pronertv

"Taxable Property" means all propelty within the Improvement Area taxable under

the Law in accordance with ihe proceedings for the authorization of the issuance of the Bonds and

the levy and collection of the Special Tax'

Trust Agreenrent

"Trust Agreement" means that certain Trust Agreement, dated as of January 1,

2024, among the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, the Community Facilities District and the

Trustee, as Authority Trustee for the Authority Bonds.

frustee

'"Trustee" means U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, a national

balking association duly organized and existing under and by vifiue of the laws of the United

States of America and authorized to accept and execute trusts of the character helein set forth, at

its Cor-porate Trust Office, and its successors or assigns, or any other bank or trust company having

a designated corporate trust office in California which may at any time be substituted in its place

as provided in Section 6.01.

Value

"Value" means the current assessed valuation of the Taxable Property and/or the

appraised value of the Taxable Property determined by an MAI appraiser'.

uesl ol'

'.Written Request of the Community Facilities Distt'ict" means an instrument in

wriring sigped by the City Manager or the Finance Director', or by any other officer of lhe City

4 1 65-691{)-381t3 5

14
Page 121

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



duly authorized by the city council, as legislative body of tlie community Facilities District, for

that purpose.

Sectiol 1.02. Eqr.ral Security. In consideration of the acceptance of the Bonds by

the Holder.s thereof, th" Ind"rffi*huil b" deemed to be and shall constitute a contract between

the Cornmu'ity Facilities District and the Hoiders fronr tirne to time to secure the full and final

payment of the interest on and principal of and redemption premiunts, if any, on all Bonds which

may from time to time be auihorized, sold, executed, authenticated and delivered hereunder'

subject to the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms contained herein; and ali agreements,

conditions, covenants and terms contained herein required to be observed or performed by or on

behalf of the comrnunity Facilities District shall be for tlie equal and proportionate benefit,

security and protection oi all Holders without distinction, preference or priority as to security or

otherwise of any Bonds ovel any other Bonds by reason ol the number thereof or the time of

execution, authentication or delivery thereof or otherwise for ally cause whatsoeveL, except as

expressly provided herein or therein.

ARTICLE II

U C

Section 2.01. A and P

(a) The City Council, as legislative body of the Community Facilities

District, has reviewed all procledings heretofore taken relative to the authorization of the

Bonds and has found, as a result ofiuch review, and hereby finds and determines that all

acts, conditions and things required by law to exist, happen and be performed precedent to

and in the issuance of tUI gonAs do exist, have happened and have been performed in due

time, form and manner as required by the Law, and the Community Facilities District is

now authorized, pursuant to each ancl evely requirement of the Law and hereof' to issue

the Bonds in one or more series as fiom time to time shall be authorized and established

by the Community Facilities District pursuant to the Lar,v and pursuant hereto and pursuant

to one or mor.e Supplemental Indentures, which selies shall be entitled to the benefit,

protection und ,""ur.ity of the provisions hereof, shall be designated the "City of Folsom

bom*unity Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No' 2 Special

Tax Bonds," together with such further appropriate particular designation added to or

incorporated in the title of the Bonds of each series as the comrnunity Facilities District

may ietermine or as shall be required by the Law, and each Bond shall bear upon its face

the designation so determined for the series to which it belongs. Additionally, the Bonds

.uy .oituin or have endolsed thereon such descriptive provisions, specifications and

*o.d, not incolsistent with the provisions hereof as lnay be desirable or necessary to

comply with custom or the rules of any seculities exchange or commission or brokerage

board or otherwise as may be determin"o ry the Community Facilities District prior to the

deiivery thereof. An initial series of Bonds shall be issued hereunder to be designated the

,,City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsoni Ranch) Improvement Area

No. 2 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2074'"

(b) The purpose fol which the Bonds are to be issued is to provide funds

to pay costs of the acquisition and construction of the Facilities, including the repaymeut

S

f

.l ! 65-(r930-3883,5

15
Page 122

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



of funds advanced by the city ibr the community Facilities Distlict and the t'epayrneut

under any agreemeni of advances of funds or reimbursement for the lesser of the value or

cost of work i1-kind provicled by any person for the Cotnmunity Facilities District, and

i'cluding the paymei-,t of costs incidental to or connected with such acquisition and

construction.

(c) From and aftel the issuance of any series of the Bonds, the findings

and determinations of the city councii, as legislative body of the Comrnunity Facilities

District, ,.sp.lting such series of the Bonds shall be conclusive evidence of the existence

of the facts so found and deterrnined in any action or proceeding in any- court in which the

validity of any Bonds of such seties is atissue, and no bona fide purchaser of any of the

Bonds of such series shall be required to see to the existence of any fact or to the

performance of any condition or to the taking of any proceeding required prior to such

issuance or to the application of the purchase price paid for such series of the Bonds' The

validity of the issuance of the Bonds of any series shall not be dependent on or affected in

any way bv (i) any proceedings taken uy itie city for the acquisition and construction of

any Facilities, or (ii) any contracts made by the city or the community Facilities District

in connection'therewith, or (iii) the failure io complete the acquisition and construction of

a'y Facilities. The recital contained in the Bonds that the Bonds are issued under and

pursuant to the Law and under and pursuant hereto and under and pursriant to a

Supplemental Indenture shall be conclusive evidence of their validity and of the regularity

of their issuance and all Bonds shall be incontestable from and after their issuance' The

g";d;,lr"ll be deemed to be issued, within the meaning hereof, whenever the definitive

Bonds (or any temporary Bonds exchangeable therefor) have been delive|ed to the

purchaser ther-Lof and tlie purchase price thereof received.

Seclion 2.02. Adciitional Boncls; Surborclinate Boncls. The Community Facilities

District may atany time issue addiiionuT Bondipayable from the proceeds of the Special rax net

of priority Admi*istrative Expenses as provided-herein on a parity with all other Bonds and

Additional Bonds theretofore issued or to be issued hereunder, but only subject to the following

conditions, which are hereby made conditions precedent to the issuance of such Additional Bonds:

(a) The issuance of Additional Bolds shall have been authorized

pursuant to the Law and pursuant hereto and shal1 have been provided for by a

bupplemental Indenture which shall specify the following:

(i) The purpose fol which the Additional Bonds are to be issued;

proui.teil, that the pio".eOr of sale of suoh Additional Bonds sha1l be applied

SGfV fot the purpose of financing the acquisition and construction of the

Faciiities, including the repayffrent of funds advanced by the City lor the

Community FaciliJes nistiict and tlre repayment under any agreement of

advances of filnds or reimbulsements fol the lesser of the value ol cost of

work in-kind providecl by any pefsorl for the community Facilities District,

ald includilg the paymenl of costs incidental to ot connected with sr'rch

acquisitio', consti.,ctio' a*d payment, and payment of the Costs of

issuance, or fol the refunding of Outstanding Bonds;

4 I 65-(1910-3883 5

16
Page 123

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



(ii) The plilcipai arlount and designatiop of the Additional

Bonds and the denomination or denominations of the Additional Bonds;

(iii) The date, the rnatulity date or dates, the interest payment

dates and the dates on which Minimum Sinking Fuld Account Payments

are due, if any, fbr such Additional Bonds; providecl, that (i) the Serial

Bonds of such Aclditional Bonds shall be payable as to principal on

september 1 of each year in which principal of such Additional Bonds falis

due, and the Term Bonds of such Additional Bonds shall be subject to

mandatory redemption on September 1 of each year in which Minimum

Sinking Fund Account Payments for such Additional Bonds are due; (ii) the

Additional Bonds shall be payable as to intelest sen:iannually on March 1

and September I of each year, except that the first installment of interest

may be payable on either March I or September 1 and shall be for a period

of not longer than twelve (12) months and the interest shall be payable

thereafter semiannually on March I and September 1, (iii) all the Additional

Bonds of a series of like maturity shall be identical in all r'espects, except as-

to number or denomination, and (iv) serial maturities of Serial Bonds of

such Additional Bonds or Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments for

Term Bonds of such Additional Bonds, or any combination thereof, shall be

established to provide for the redemption or payment of the Additional

Bonds on or before their respective maturity dates;

(iv) The redemption premiums and redemption tems, if any, for

such Additional Bonds;

(v) The form of the Additional Bonds;

(vD The amount, if any, to be deposited from the proceeds of sale

of such Additional Bonds in the Redemption Account, and its use to pay

interest on such Additional Bonds;

(vii) The amount to be deposited from the proceeds of sale of such

Additional Bonds in the applicable Bond Reserve Account; provided, that

the applicable Bond Reserve Account shall eqtral, at the tirne that such

Addiiitnd Bonds become Outstanding, the Required Bond Reserve for

such Additional Bonds, and an amount at least equal to the Required Bond

Reserve for such Additional Bonds shall theleafter be maintained in lire

applicable Bond Reserve Account;

(viii) The amounts to be deposited from the proceeds of sale of

such Additional Bonds in the separate accounts for each series of Additiorral

Bonds to be established in the Acquisition and Constn-rction Fund and in the

Costs of Issuance Fund; and

(ix) Such other provisions tirat are appropriate or necessaty and

are not inconsistent with the provisions hereol

4 I 6r-6q30-iit8i 5

17 Page 124

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



(b) The Comrnunity Facilities District shall be in compliance with all

agreements, .oniitions, covenants and terms contained herein and in all Supplemental

Iidentures r.equired to be observeci or perfonned by it, and no Event of Default hereunder

or undel any dupplemental Indenture shall have occuned arid sliall be then continuing; and

(c) in each year-until the rnaturity date fol the Additional Bonds, the

Maximum Facilities Special Tax for Taxabie Propelty classified as Developed Property,

plus the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue for Taxable Propetly

not classified as Developed Property less Priority Administrative Expenses is estimated to

equal at least one hundred ten percent (1 10%) of the sum of the Annual Debt Service for

"ach 
y"ar on the Bonds, including such Additional Bonds, and the Value of all Taxable

Proper-ty, in aggregate, is at leasi three (3) times the aggregate Lien on such Taxable

Property.

(d) The Community Facilities District may issue one or more series of

Bonds (the ..Refunding Bonds") without cornplying with this Section 2-02(c) if' after the

issuance and delivery lf s,r"h fefunding Bonds, either (i) none of the Bonds theretofore

issued hereunder wiii te outstanding or 1ii; the Debt Service in each Bond Year that begins

after the issuance of such Refunding Bonds is not incleased by reason of the issuance of

such Refunding Bonds'

(e) The Community Faciiities District lnay issue bonds or other

obligations puyJt" from the proceecli of the Special Tax on a basis subordinate to the

Bonds without complying with this Section 2'02(a), (b) and (c)'

Section 2.03. proeedtue for the Issuarrce of Additional Bonds. At any time after

the sale of any Additional Bonds in ;"""tdar* *ittt the Law, the Additional Bonds shall be

executed by the Community Facilities District and shall be delivered to the Trustee and thereupon

shall be authenticated and delivered by the Trustee, but only upon receipt by the Trustee of the

following documents:

(a) An executed copy of the Sgpplemer"rtal Indenture authorizing the

issuance of such Additional Bonds;

(b) A Written Requesr of the Comrnunity Facilities District as to the

delivery of the Additional Bonds;

(c) One or more Opinions of Counsel to the effect that (i) the

Comrnunity Facilities District has the iight and power under the Law to execute the

Indenture and the Supplemental Inclenture, and the Indenture and Supplemental Indenture

have each been dulj and lawfully executed ancl clelivered by the Community Facilities

District and are in full force and effect and ale valicl and binding uporl the Community

Facilities District and enforceable in accoLdance with their terms (except as enforcement

rnay be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency. reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent

conveyance, moratoriu* und other la*'s relating to or affecting creditors' rights, by the

application of equitable principles, by tlie exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate

cases and by the iimitations on legal rernedies against cities in the State of California) and

no other. authorization for the execution thereof is required; arrd (ii) the Additional Bonds

4 I (r5-69i0-3883 5

18 Page 125

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



are valid and binding special tax obligarions of the Community Facilities District payable

frorn the proceeds of tnl Special Tax net of Priority Administrative Expenses and the other

funds provided herein for such payment as provided herein and are enforceable in

accoldance with their terms (except as enforcement may be iimited by bankruptcy'

insolvency, Leorganization, arlangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium and Other

laws relating to or.affecting cr-editors' rights, by the application of equitable principles, by

the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and by the limitations on legal

remedies against cities in the State of California) and the terms of the Law and of the

Indenture and the Supplemental Indenture and the Additional Bonds have been duly and

validly authorized, ,old, .*...rted, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the Law

and with the Indentut'e and the Supplemental Indenture;

(d) A Cerrificate of an Independent Consultant containing such

statements as may be reasonably necessary to show compliance with the requirements of

Section 2.02(c);

(e) A Certificate of the Community Facilities District containing such

statements aS may be reasonably necessaty to show compliance with the requirements of

Section 2.02; and

(0 The proceeds of the sale of such Additional Bonds'

Section 2.

Fund Account P

and shall be numbered consecutively from one (1) uPward in order of issuance. The dates, maturtty

dates, interest rates, and Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments for any Additional Bonds

shail be set forth in the SUPP lemental Indenture relating thereto The 2024 Bonds shall be dated

the date of the deliverY thereof, and shall mature on the dates and in the principal amounts and

shall bear interest at the rates per annum as set forth in the following schedule:

Principal
Payment Date
(September 1)

Principal
Amount

Interest
Rate

$ %

'lernr Bontls

.l l(r5-6930-i883.5

19
Page 126

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Milimum Sinking Fund Account Payments are heleby established for the

mandatory redemption and payrnent of the Term Bonds of the 2024 Bonds, which payments shal1

become due duririg the yeais ending on the dates and in the amounts as set forth in the foilowing

schedr.rle (except that ii any of the Term Bonds of the 2024 Bonds shall have been redeemed

pursuant to Seciion 3.01, the amounts of the Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments shall be

ieduced proportionately by the principal amount of all such Term Bonds of the 2024 Bonds so

redeemed), namely:

Term Bond Maturing SeptembeJ l. 30[ 'l

Year Ending Minimurn Sinking
September I Fund Account Payment

$

Maturitv

Te::In Forid Maturine Seplemher 1.20[ I

Year Ending Minimum Sinking

September 1 Fund Account Payment

$

Maturiry

All such Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments shall be deposited in the

Sinki'g Fund Subaccount, which subaccount is hereby established and which subaccount the

Comrn*unity Facilities District hereby agrees and covenants to cause to be maintained by the

Trustee so long as any of the Term Bonds are Outstanding. All money in the Sinking Fund

Subaccount shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee (upon receipt of a Written Request of the

Community Facilities District) at any time for the purchase of the Term Bonds at public ol private

sales as and when and at such prices (including brokerage and other"charges) as the Community

Facilities District lnay in its diicretion determine, but not to exceed the principal amount of such

Terr' Bonds. All.o,r.y in the Sinking Fund Subaccount on September 1 of each year during the

period beginning on Sepiemb er 1,201], and ending on September 1, 20L1, both dales inclusive,

shall be r,rsed and withdrawn by the Trustee on such Septembel I for tlie mandatory redemption or

payment of the Term Bonds of the 2A24Bonds maturing on September 1,20L1; and all money

in the Sinking Fund Subaccount on September 1 of each year during the period beginning on

Septe'rber t,2011, and ending on September 1,20L-1, both dates inclusive, shall be ttsed and

wiihdrawn by th-i.ustee on such September 1 for the rnandatory ledemption or payment of the

Term Bonds of the 2A24Bonds rnatuiing on September 1,20L-1, and the Community Facilities

District hereby agrees and covenants with the Holders of the Telm Bonds to call aud redeem in

..1 i(r5-{$30-i881 5

20
Page 127

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



accordance with Article Iil or pay the Term Bonds fiorn the Minimurn Sinking Fund Account

Payments deposited in the Sinling Fund Subaccount put'suant to this paragraph whenever on

September I of arry year there is money in the Sinking Fund Subaccount available for such

purpose.

Section 2.05. Interest P Dates of B Interest on the Bonds shall be

computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve (12) 30-day calendar months, and shall be

payable on September 7, 2A24, and semiannually thereafter on September 1 and March 1 in each

year until the PrinciPal sum of the Bonds has been Paid' Tlre Bonds shall bear interest from the

interest payment date next preceding the date ofregistlation there of, unless they are registered on

a day during the Period from the sixteenth ( 16th) day of the month next preceding an interest

payment date to such interest PaYment date, both inclusive, in which event they shall bear interest

fi'om such interest PaYment date, or unless theY are re gistered on a day on or before the fifteenth

(15fi) day of the month next Preceding the first (1't) interest payment date, in which event theY

shall bear interest from their dated date; provicled, that if at the time of registration of anY Bond

interest is then in default on the Outstanding Bonds, such Bond shall bear interest fi'orn the interest

payment date to which interest has previously been paid or made available for payment on the

Outstanding Bonds.

Section 2.06. Form of Boncls. The Bonds and the authentication and registration

endorsement and assignment to upp"uith.r"on shall be substantially in the form appearing in

Exhibit A.

Section 2.07. paJment of Bonds. The interest on and principal of and redemption

premiums, if any, on the Bonds ilail b. puyuUt" in lawful money of the United States of America

ut tt . corporateTrust office of the Trusiee, and the Community Facilities District and the Trustee

shall be entitled to conclusively treat the registered owner of any Bond as the absoiute owner of

such Bond for all purpores hereof, whethei strch Bond shall be overdue oI not, and neither the

community Facilitiesbistrict nor the Trustee shall be affected by any notice or knowledge to the

contrary. payme't of interest on the Bonds due on or before the rnaturily or plior redemption

thereof shall be made only to the person whose name appears in the registration books required to

be kept by the Trustee plrsuantio Section 2.09 as the registered owner thereof at the close of

business as of the fifteenttr (15th) day of the month next preceding each interest payment date'

such interest to be paid by .h*ck inaiied by first class mail on each such interest payment date to

such registered owner at iris or her address as it appears on such books, except that in the case of

a Holder of one million dollars ($1,000,000) or tnore in principal amount of Bonds then

Outstanding, payment shall be made at such Holder's option by wire iransfer on each such interest

payment ai.'oi immecliately availabie funds to an account in a bank or trust company or savings

bank that is a member of theiederal Reserve Systenr and is located in the continental United States

of America according to written instluctions provided by such Hoider io the Trustee at least fifteen

(15) days before ,r"h int.r.st payment date. Payment of the principal of and redemption

premiums, if any, on the Bonds sliatl be made only to the person whose name appears in the

registration books 1equired to be kept by the Tlustee purcuant to Section 2.a9 as the registered

owner thereof, such principal and reiemption premiums. if any, to be paid only on the sutrender

of the Bonds at the borpoiut. Trust Offlrce olthe Trustee at maturity or on redemption prior to

maturity. Ail such payments of interest ancl principal artd redemption premiums, if any, on any

4l (r5-6930-3 883.-5

21
Page 128

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Bond shall be valid ancl effectual to satisfy and dischalge the liability on such Bond to the extent

of the sum or surns so Paid.

Notwithstanding the for-egoing, a Holder of any Bond may, in lieu of surrendering the sarne fbr a

new Bond, endorse o,r ,.r.h Bond a record of partial payment of the principal of such Bond in the

form set forth below (which shall be typed or printed on such Bond):

PAYMBNTS ON ACCOUNT OF PRINCIPAL

Principal Balance of PrinciPal
Amount Paid Amount UnPaid

Signature
of Registered Holder

The Trustee shall maintain a record of each such partial payment made in

accordance with the foregoing agreement and sucir record of the Trustee sha1l be conclusive. Such

parlial payment shall be vaiid upon payment of the amount thereof to the Registered Holder of

such Bbncl, and the Community ra.ititles District and the Trustee shall be fully released and

discharged fi.om all liability to the extent of such payment regardless of whether such endorsement

shall or shall not have been made upon such Bond by the Holder thereof and regardless of any

error or omission in such endorsement.

Payment Date

Section 2.08. Execution of Bonds. The Bonds shall be signed on behalf of the

community Facilities District by tl* -""r"t "t'f"csimile 
signature of the Mayor and countersigned

by the manual or facsimile signature of the City Clerk, and any Bond may be signed on behalf of

the Community Facilities Dislrict by any person who, on the actual date of the execution of such

Bond, shall be the proper officer olthe City and member of the City Council, as legislalive body

of the Community Fu"iliti", District, although on the nominal date of such Bond such per son shall

not have been such officer of the City. In case any such officer, who shall have signed any of the

Bonds, shall cease to be such officer before the Bonds so signed shall have been delivered to the

purchaser by the Trustee, such Bonds may neveftheless be delivered and issued and, upon such

ielivery und irrrun.e, shall be as binding upon the Community Facilities District as though such

officer who signed the same had continued to be such officer until such delivery and issuance.

Only those gonds that bear thereon a certificate of authentication executed by the Trustee shall be

entitlecl to any benefit, protection ol security hereunder or be valid or obligatory fol any purpose,

and such certificate of ihe Trustee shall be conclusive evidence that the Borrds so authenticated

have bee' d'ly authofized,sold, executed, authenticated and delivered hereunder and are entitled

to the benefits hereof.

Section 2.09.

Corpot'ate "I'rust Office sufficient books for the transfer and exchange of the Bonds, wliich books

shall at all tirnes during not'nl al business hours with reasonable prior written notice be open to

inspection by the CommunitY Facilities District or by any Holder'(or his replesentative authorized

in wliting). Any Bond ntaY, in accordance with its terms, be tansferued or exchanged otr such

Transfer and Exchanse IJr:ncls. The Trustee shall keeP at its

:l l(r5-6930-38ti3.5

22
Page 129

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



books by the persol] in whose name it is registered, in person or by his or her duly authorized

attor-ney, Lrpoll payment by the Holder requesting such transfer or exchattge of any tax or other

gou..,r-.nial cSarge requir"ed to be paid with respect to such transfel ot' exchange and upon

iurrender- of such Bond for cancellation accompanied by delivery of a duly executed written

instrument of transfer or exchange in a form approved by the Trustee. Wirenever any Bond ol

Bonds shall be surrendered for lransfer or exchange, the Community Facilities District shall

execute and the Tr.ustee shall authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds of the same series and

maturity date for tl.ie same aggregare principal amount, except that neither the Community

Facilities District nor the Trustee shall be required (i) to transfer or exchange any Bonds during

the fifteen-ciay period prior to the selection of any Bonds for redemption nnder Article III, or (ii)

to tr.ansfer or exchange any Bond which has been selected for redernption in whole or in paft,

except the unrede.*"d portion of such Bond selected fol redemption in pafi, from and after the

day itrat such Bond has been selected for redemption in whole or in part under Alticle III.

Section 2.10 Mutilated. T)estroved- Stolen or Lost Bonds. In case any Bond shall

become mutilated in respect of the body of such Bond or shall be believed by the Community

Facilities District to have been destroyed, stolen or lost, upon proof of ownership satisfactory to

the Community Facilities District and the Trustee and upon the surrender of such mutilated Bond

at the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee, or upon the receipt of evidence satisfactory to the

Cornniuniiy Facilities District and the Trustee of such destruction, theft or loss and upon receipt

of indemnity satisfactory to the Community Facilities District and the Tr"ustee, and also upon

payment of all 
"*p"nr"i 

incurred by the Community Facilities District and the Trustee in the

p..-ir"r and receipt of each of indemnity satisfactory to them, the Community Facilities District

shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver at the Corporate Trust Office a new

Bold or Bonds of the same series and maturity date for the same aggregate plincipal amount of

like tenor an<l date and bearing such numbers and notations as shall be appropriate in exchange

and substitution for and upon cancellation of the mutilated Bond or in lieu of and in substitution

for the Bond so destroyed, stolen or lost.

If any such destroyed, stolen or lost Bond shall have matured or shall have been

called for redemption, payrnent ol the amount due thereon shall be made by the Trttstee, at the

wr-itte' direction of the-Community Facilities District, upon receipt of like proof, indernnity and

payment of expenses.

Any replacement Bonds issued pursuant to this Section shall be entitled to equal

and proportionate benefits with all other Bonds issued hereunder, and the Conrmunity Facilities

Distiict and the Trustee shall not be required to treat both the original Bond and any replacement

Bond as being Outstanding for the purpose of determining the principal amount of Bonds which

may be issued hereunder oi fot the purpose of delermining any percentage of Bonds Outstanding

herlunder, but both the origirial and the replacemenl Bond shall be tleated as one and the same'

Section 2.1 1. Resistration of the Bonds. The Borrds shall be registered i1 tlie

name of the Authority and delivered to the Authority Tlustee upon the issuance thereof in

accordance with the provisions of the Local Obligation Purchase Contract

Section 2 12. CUSIP Numbers. The Cornmuni ty Facilities District in issuing the

Bonds may, but shall not be required to, use "CUSIP" numbers (if then gerrerally in use

,1 165-69.10-3Ii8:i i
/)

), and, if

Page 130

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Llsed, the Trustee shall use "CUSIp" numbers in notices of redemption as a convenience to Flolders;

p.ouid.d that the Trustee shall have no liability fol any defect in the "CUSIP" numbers as they

upp.u, on any Bond, notice or elsewirere, and, provicled further that any such notice may state that

#r"pr"r"*tation is made as to the correctness of such numbers either as printed onthe Bonds or

as contained in any notice of a redenrption and that leliance may be placed only on the other

identification numbers printed on the Bonds, and any such redemplion shall not be affected by any

defect in or omission of such numbers. The Community Facilities District shall promptly notify

the Trustee in writing of any change ir-r "CUSIP" numbers, if any. The Community Facilities

District does not 
"*p."t 

to use "CUSIP" numbers for the 2024 Borrds'

Section 2.13. Application of Proceeds of Sale of 2024 Bond-E, 
_ 
Upon the receipt of

payment of the purchase pri." olfr. 2024 Bondt *h"n lhe 2A24 Bonds shall have been duly sold

ty'the Community Facilities District, the Trustee shall deposit such proceeds of sale of the 2024

Bonds into a temporary account called the Proceeds Fund which tire Trustee shall establish,

rnaintain and hold in trust, and which shall be clisbursed in full on the date of receipt (whereupon

said temporary account shall be closed) in the following order:

(a) The Trustee shall deposit in the Series 2024 Bond Reserve Account

the amount of $;Reserve Fund Deposit], being a suln equal to the Required Bond Resetve'

which such account is hereby created in lhe Bond Reserve Fund;

(b) Tl-re Trustee shall deposit in the Acquisition and Construction Fund

the amount of $fAcquisition Fund Deposit];

(c) The Trustee shall deposit in the Capitalized Interest Account the

amount of $[CaP I DePosit]; and

(d) The Trustee shall deposit in the Costs of Issuance Fund the amount

of $[COI DePosit].

Section 2.14. Capitalized Interest Account. There is hereby established a fund to

beknownastheCityofffiFacilitiesDistrictNo'23(FolsomRanch)
Improvement Area No. Z Special Tax Bonds Capitalized Interest Account' On each of the

foliowing dates, the Trustee shail transfer the respective amounts fi'om the capitahzed Interest

Account to the Redemption Account fol the payment of interest due on the 2024 Bonds:

Date of Transfer Amount

March 1.2024 $

Septerlber I,2024

If at any time the Trustee is required by a Suppiemental Indenture to deposit any

amount of funds therein, the Trustee shall reestablish and maintain a fund to be known as the City

of Folsom Comm*nity Facilities District No. 23 (Folsorn Ranch) hnprovement Area No. 2 Special

Tax Borids Capitalized Interest Account. on each of the dates set forth in any table set forlh in a

Suppleme'tal ir-rdenture, the amouut set iorth shall be transfelred frorn the Capitalized Interest

4 I 65-(;910-3883 5

24
Page 131

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Account to the Redelnption Account for the payment of interest due on the Bonds. The Capitalized

Interest Account will be closed following the last date of transfer.

Section 2.15.
fund to be known as the Ci

isition and There is heleby establislied a

ty of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. 2 SPecial Tax Bonds Acquisition and Construction Fund, to be held and

administered by the Trustee. All money in the Acquisition and Construction Fund shall be used

by the Trustee for payment of the costs of the acquisition and construction of the Facilities,

including the lepayrnent of funds advanced by the City for the Community Facilities District and

the repayment under any agleement of advances of funds or reimbursement for the lesser of the

value or cost of work in'kind plovided by any person for the Community Facilities District, upon

receipt of a Written Request of the Community Facilities District filed with the Trustee, each of
which shall be sequentially numbered and shall state the person to whom payment is to be made,

the amoriut to be paid, the purpose fol which tire obligation was incurred and that such payment is

a pr:oper charge against such fund; providgd, that any remaining amount therein after the

completion of such pulpose (as set forth in a Certificate o f the Community Facilities District so

determining filed with the Trustee) shali be transferred by the Trustee to the Redemption Account.

The Acquisi tion and Construction Fund will be closed following the last date of transfer

Section 2.16 Costs of Issuance Fund. There is hereby established a fund to be

known as the City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo.23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement

Area No. 2 Special Tax Bonds Costs of Issuance Fund, to be held and administered by the Trustee.

All money in the Costs of Issuance Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee to pay the

Costs of Issuance upon receipt of a Written Request of the Community Facilities District filed with

the Trustee, each of which shall be sequentially numbered and shall state the person to whom

payment is to be rnade, the amount to be paid, the purpose for which the obligation was incuned

uni tnut such payment is a proper charge against such fund; provided, that on lJuly 24,2A241, or

upon a prior deter-mination by tlie Community Facilities District that all Costs of Issuance have

U".n puia (as set forth in a Certificare of the Cornrnunity Facilities District so determining filed

with the Trustee), arry balance of money remaining in the Costs of Issuance Fund shali be

withdrawn from the Costs of Issuance Fund by the Trustee and transfen'ed to the Acquisition and

Construction Fund. The Costs of lssuance Fund will be closed following the last date of transfer'

ARTICLE IiI

REDEMPTI ON OR EXCHANGE OF BONDS

Section 3.01. RedernDtron Prices and Terms of Bonds Any Supplemental

Indenture may set forth the provisions for ledemption of any Additional BonCs.

(a) Mandatorv Sinkin s Fund Accolr Redemnti on of the 2024 Bonds.

The 2024 Bolds maturing on September 1, 2ALl, are subject to mandatory redemption

by tlie Comrnunity Facilities District prior to theil maturity date in part on September I in
eaclr of tlre years 20f_] through 2}I_l,both years inclusive; and the 2A24Bands maturing

o1 Septernber 1, 20[ ], are subject to mandatory redemption by the Community Facilities

Disrrict prior. to their tnaturity date in part on September 1 in each of the years 20L-]
tlrr-ongh^201_), botlr years inclusive, in each case solely frorn Minimum Sinking Fund

4 l(ri-6930--ltilii 5

25
Page 132

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Account Payments deposited in the Sinking Futrd Subaccount, upon rnailed notice as

frovided heiein, at a redemptio' price equal to one hundt'ed percent (100%) of the principal

amount thereof called for r-edemption together with accrued interest thereon to the date

fixed for redemPtion.

(b) of the 202 The 2024 Bonds are

subject to optional redemption bY the CommunitY Facilities District prior to their respective

maturity dates as a whole or in Pafi on any date on or after September 1,20[ ], fi'om funds

derived by the CommunitY Facilities District from anY source other than such Minimum

Sinking Fund Account PaYments deposited in the Sinking Fund Subaccount or such

prep ayments of the SPecial Tax, upon mailed notice as Prnvided herein, at the following

redemption prices (cornPuted uPon the principal amount'of the 2024 Bonds or Portions

thereof called for redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for

ledemption:

103%if redeemed on any ddrte on or after September 1, 20L-]
through August 31,20[ l;

rcz%if redeemed on any date fi'om september |,2}L-Jtluough
August 31,201 );

101%if redeemed on any date from September I,20| l thror.rgh

August 3t,20|. l;

100% if redeemed on September 1, 20Ll and any date thereafter

(c) on the 4 "Ihe2024 Bonds are

subj ect to extraordinarY redemPtion by the CommunitY Facilities District prior to their

respective maturitY dates, as a whole or in part on any interest payment date on and after

September 1, 201 l, from funds derived by the Community Facilities District from

plepaymen ts of the Special Tax, upon mailed notice as Provided herein, at the foll0wmg

redernption Prlces (computed upon the princiPal amount of the 2024 Bonds 0r Portlons

thereof called for redemPtion) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for

redemption, to wttl

rc3% if redeemed on any interest payment date on or after

September I , 20[ I through March 1,201];

102% if redeemed on an interest payrnent date on September 1,

20L-l or March l,20ll;
rcl%ifredeemedonaninterestpaymentdateonSeptemberl,
20L-l or March 1, 20[-]; and

rca% if redeemed on September l, 20L-] or any interest payment

date thereafter'

4 l 6i-6910-3s{il 5

1,t)
Page 133

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Section 3.02. Selection sf Bouls fol Reclenrption. If less than all the Outstanding

Bondsaretoberedeemeou,uffiitheSpecialTaxatanyonetime,tlreBonds
shall be ledeemed pro rata by matur-ity.- tfleis than all the outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed

at the option of the Community Faciliiies District at any one time, the Bonds of the latest naturity

date or dates shall be recleenied prior to ol simultaneously with the redemption of the Bonds

maturing priorthereto, and if lessihan all the outstanding Bonds of any one maturity date are io

be redeemed at any one time, the Trustee shaii select the Bonds or the portions thereof of such

maturity date to be redeemed in integral multiples of five thousand dollars ($5,000) in a mauner

that it deems appropriate and fair

Section 3.03. Notice of At the Written Request of and at

the sole cost and exPense of the CommunitY Facilities Distr'ict, received by the Trustee at least ten

(10) days in advance of so sending, srich Written Request to contain the information to be

contained in the notice of redemption to be sent to Holdels, as set forth below, the Tlustee shall

mail at least twenty (20) and not more than sixtY (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemptron,

notice of redemPtion Pursuant to Section 10.14 to the respective Holders of all Bonds selected for

redemption in whole or in part and to all securities depositories and securities inforrnation services

selected by the Comm Facilities District to comply with custom or the rules of any securltlesunlty
exchange or commission or brokerag e board or otherwise as may be determined by the community

Facilities District in its sole discretion, but neither failure to receive any such rnailed notice nor

any immaterial defect contained therein shall affect the sufficiency or the validity of such

proceedings for redemption; p1gYfulec!, that no notice of redemption need be given to the Authority

for any Bonds for which the AuthoritY is the Holder. Such notice shall state the date of such notice,

the Bonds to be redeemed, the date of issue of such Bonds, the redemption date, the redemption

pr1ce, the place of redemPtion (including the name and aPProPriate address of the Trustee), and, if
less than all of any such maturitY, the numbers of the Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed and,

in the case of Bonds to be redeemed in part only, the respective portions of the principal amount

thereof to be redeemed, and shall give notice that further interest on such Bonds or the portions

thereof to be redeemed will not acclue from and after the redemption date, and shall require that

such Bonds be then sunendered for redemption at the address of the Trustee so designated' If any

Bond so chosen for redemption shall not be redeemab le in whole, such notice shall also state that

such Bond is to be redeemed in Part only and that uPon Presentatton of such Bond fol redemPtion

there will be issued in lieu of the uruedeemed portion of princiPal thereof a new Bond or Bonds of

the same series and maturity date equal in agglegate principal amount to such umedeemed portion

In the event of an optional redemption of Bonds, the Trustee shall mail a notice of

redemption, in the same manner as aforesaid, only after receipt of a written Request of the

community Facilities District at least i 0 days prioi to the date on which the Trustee must send

notice to the Holders of the Bonds; pleivictecl, however, if sufficient monies fol the payment of the

redemption price of all Bonds to b"Ed..m"o are not then on deposit witl, the Trustee, such notice

shall state that such redemption shall be conditioned upon the timely deposit of sufficient funds

therefor with the Trustee.

Any notice of optionai redernption rray be rescinded by wlitten notice given by the

comrnunity Facilities District to the Trusteeio later than three (3) Business Days prior to the date

specified for redemption. The Trustee shall give r-rotice of rescission of the notice of optiorral

redemption or no'-satisfaction of any conditions specified in tlie notice of optional redemption as

.i l(r5-(:930-3U83 5

27 Page 134

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



soolt as practicable to the same parties and in the same malrler as the notice of ledernptiolt was

given pursuant to this Section'

Section 3.04. Partial em of Bonds Upon sunendet of anY Bond

redeemed in part only, the Cornrnunity Facilities Distlict sira1l execute

authenticat. und d.li,rer to the registered owner thereof at the expense of the

District a new Bond ot' Bonds of the same series and maturity date equal

and the Trustee sliall
Cornmunity Faciiities
in aggregate principal

amount to the unredeemed portion of the Bond sunendered'

Section 3.05. b,ll'ect ol'Redemption of Bonds. If notice of redemption has been

duly given and not rescincled ur ufor.ruid and money sufhcient for the payment of the principal of

und rid"-ption premiums, if any, on, together with intelest to the redemption date on, the Bonds

or portions theretf so callecl for redemption has been irrevocably deposited with the Trustee, then

orrih. redemption date designated in such notice such Bonds or such portions thereof shall become

irrevocably due and payable, and from and aftel the date so designated interest on the Bonds or'

such portions thereof so called fbr redemption shall cease to accrue and the Holders of such Bonds

shall iave no rights in respect thereof except to receive payment of the principal of such Bonds or

such portions thereof ani the redemption premiums, if any, thereon and the interest accrued

thereon to the redemption date; prqyklgd, that redemption of Bonds other than from Minimum

Sinking Fund Account payments shall be made only frorn and to the extent of funds on deposit

with the Trustee and available fbr such purpose on the date of redemption'

ARTICLE IV

SPECIAL TAX

liofSection 4.01

to the S

of Tax in
Fu The Community Facilities District agrees andT

covenants that it will deposit the Special Tax proceeds in the City of Folsom Community Facilities

District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Cornmunity Facilities Fund (the

"Community Facillties Fund"), which fund is hereby established in the treasury of the City, for'

and on behalf of the Comrnuuity Facilities District, and which fund the Community Facilities

District hereby agrees and covenants to maintain so long as any Bonds are Outstanding hereunder

All money in the CommunitY Facilities Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the Comrnunity

Facilities District solely for the benefit of the Community Facilities District in accordauce with the

Law, including payment of Expenses and Services. The Cornmunity Facilities District agiees and

covenants that, after payment of its Pliority Administrative Expenses, it will transfet'to the Truslee

from the Community Facilities Fund amounts sufficient and in srifficient lime for the Trustee to

make the transfers required by Section 4.02 (less any amounts to be trausferred pursuant to Section

2.14), and the Trustee shail deposit such proceeds as and when received in the City of Folsom

Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Fund,

which firnd the Trustee shall estabiish and maintain so long as Bonds t"emain Outstanding

hereunder, and all money in such fund shall be held by the Trustee in trust hereundet and shall be

disbursed, allocated and applied solely to the uses and putposes hereinafter set forth in this Ar-ticle

Section 4.02. Alloca tion of Monev in the Soecial Tax Fund. All money irr tlie

Special Tax Fuld shall be set aside by the Trustee in the fbllowing respective spect

4 t 65-6930-3833 5

28

al accounts and

Page 135

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



fund within rhe Special Tax Fund (each of which accounts and flnd is hereby created) in the

following order.of priority, and all morrey in each of snch accounts and fund shall be applied, used

and witlidraw' only for tie purposes herei'after authorized i' this Section, namely:

(1) RedemPtion Account; and

(2) Bond Reserve Fund'

(a) Redemption Acgqqnt. On or before September I and March I in
each year, beginning o" S.pt"*b* lJA24,the Trustee shall, from the money in the

Special Tax Find, trlisfer to and deposit in the Redemption Account an amount of money

equal to the aggregate arnount of interest becoming due and payable-on all Outstanding

Bonds on ,u.f,[l*h 1 or September 1, as the case may be, and on or before September I

in each year, beginning on September 1,2024,the Trustee shall, flom the then remaining

money in ttre Sfecial lax Fund, transfer to and deposit in the Redemption Account an

amount of *oney eqgal to the aggregatearnount of principal becoming due and payable on

all outsta'aing's"iiul Bonds i-" ru"h September 1 plus a1l Minimurn Sinking Fund

Account fayn"errts required to be made on such September 1 into the Sinking Fund

Subaccountiprovided, ihut ull of the aforesaid payments shall be made without priority of

any payment over any other payment, and in thi event that rnoney in the Special Tax Fund

on any March I or September I is noi equal to the atnount of interest becoming due on all

Bonds on such date, or in the event that the money in the Special Tax Fund on any

September i is not equal to the amount of principal of the Bonds becoming due on such

date, as the case,ouy^b", then such money shall be applied pro rata in such proportion as

such i'terest and principal and Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments bear to each

other.

No deposit need be made into the Redemption Account if the amount of money

contained theiein is at least equai to the amount required by the terms of the preceding

paragrapir to be deposited therein at the times and in the amounts herein provided.

All money in the Redernption Account shall be used and withdlawn by the Trustee

to pay the interest on the Bonds as it shall become due and payable (including accrued

interest on any Bonds purchased or redeemed prior to maturity) plus the plincipal of and

redemption pr.roi.,.nu, if any, on the Bonds as they shall lnatule or upon the prior

redemption th"reof, except thai any money in the Sinking Fund Subaccount shall be used

oniy to purchase or redeem or letire the Term Bonds as provided herein'

(b) Bond Reserve Fund. On ol before Malch i and September 1 in each

year, beginning on tM"*h 1, 2024Fh. Trustee shall, from the then lemaining lnoney in

the Special tai puna, transfer to and deposit in each Bond Reserve Accoui'tt within tire

Bond Reserve Fund such arnount of money as shall be lequired to restore each such Bond

Reserve Account to a sum equal to tire Required Boncl Reserve for the applicable series o.f

Bonds, pro rata,to the extenl that amounts are available in the Special Tax Fund for such

puryose; and for tliis purpose a1l investments in each Bond Reserve Account shall

(begi'ning on fMarch t,zoz+]lbe valued on Marcli 1 and September 1 of each yeal at the

face value thereof if such inl estrnents mature within twelve (i 2) rnonths from the date of

4 I (ri-69i0-3883.5

29 Page 136

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



valuation, or if such investments mature more than twelve (12) rnonths after the date of

valuation, at the pr.ice at which such investments at'e t'edeemable by the Holder at his or her

option, if so redeemable, or if not so redeemable, at the lesser of (i) the cost of such

investments plus the amorti zation of any premium ol minus the arnortization of any

discount, or 1ii1 the marftet value of such investments. For purposes of allocating rernaining

money in the Special Tax Fund between mole than one Bond Reserve Account, any such

transfers to anddeposits in each Boud Reserve Account shall be made equally and ratably

in proportion to thi Required Bond Reserve for each series of Bonds'

No deposit need be made into a Bond Reserve Account if the value of the

investments cbntained therein is at least equal to the Required Bond Reserve for the

applicable series of Bonds.

All money in each Bond Reserve Account shall be used and withdrawn by the

Trustee solely for the purpose of paying the intel'est on or principal of the corresponding

series of Bonds in the event there is insufficient money in the Redemption Account

available for this purpose; providecl, that if as a result of any of the foregoing valuations or

as a result of any property owner prepayment it is determined that the amount of money in

a Bond Reserve Account exceeds or will exceed the Requiled Bond Reserve for the

applicable series of Bonds, the Trustee shall withdraw the amount of rnoney representing

such excess from sgch fund and shall deposit such amount of money in the Redemption

Account as provided in the last paragrapir of Section 10.05. For the avoidance of doubt,

amou'ts in a Bond Reserve Account are rot available to make up a deficiency for the

payment of principal and interest on any Bonds otirer than the specific series of Bonds to

which the Bond Reserve Account relates'

(c) Surplns Amounts. On or before March 1 and September 1 in each

year, begi'ning on M;il2024hh. Trustee shall, fiom the then remaining money in

iir" Sp.Cut fax f'una, transfer all amounts remaining in the Special Tax Fund after the

tr.ansiers specified in subsections (a) and (b) above to the City for deposit in the comrnunity

Facilities Fund.

ARTICLE V

COVEN AN"IS OF THE C OMM IJNITY FACILITIES DIS CT

Section5.0l. Punctual Payment and Perfor{nance. The Community Facilities

District will punctually pay th" n to=rt or, and plincipal of and redemption premium, if any, to

become due on every'B;"; issued hereunder in strict conformity with the terms of the Law and

hereof and of the Bonds, and wili faithfuliy observe and perform all the agreements, conditions,

covenants and terms coniained helein and in the Boncls required to be observed and performed by

Sectiol5.02. Against Indebtedness and Encumbrances. The Communtty

Facilities District will riot i$*itry *iO.n* of indebtedness payable fi'om the proceeds of the

Special Tax except as provided hellirr, and will not create, nol pet'tnit the creation of, any pledge,

liln, cliarge or other encnrnbrance upolr auy money in the Speciai Tax Fund other than as provided

rt.

416-5-6930-3883 5

30 Page 137

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



herein; pIg-yidgd, that the Community Facilities Distlict may at any time, or fi'om time to time,

ir.u" .ufr.,r.., of indebtedless for any lawful purpose of the Comrnunity Facilities District whicli

are payable fi-on any motley in the Community Facilities Fund as may fi'om tirne to tirne be

deposited therein so long as any payments due thereunder sirall be subordinate in al1 r'espects to

the use of the proceeds of the Special Tax as provided herein.

Section 5.03. A ederal Taxation

(a) To the extent a series of Bonds (the "Tax-Exempt Bonds") are

acq,ir-ed by the Authority using the proceeds of a series of Authority Bonds for which the

Auihor.ity iras obtained an opinion of Bond Counsel that interest on such Authority Bonds

is excluied from gross income for federal income tax purposes (the "Tax-Exempt

Authority Bolds"),1he Community Facilities District will not take any action, or fail to

take any action, if such action or failure to take such action would advelsely affect the

exclusion from gloss income of the interest on the Tax-Exempt Authority Bonds pursuant

to Secrion 103 ;f the Code, and specifically the Community Facilities District will not

directly or indirectly use or make any use of the proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds or any

other funds of the Cornmunity Facilities District or take or omit to take any action that

would cause the Tax-Exempt Authority Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" subject to federal

income taxation by reason of Section 148 of the Code or "private activity bonds" subject

to federal income taxation by reason of Section l4l(a) of the Code or obligations subject

to federal income taxation because they are "federally guaranteed" as provided in Section

149(b) of the Code; and to that end the Community Facilities District, with respect to the

pro"..d, of the Tax-Exernpt Bonds and such other funds, will comply with all requirements

tf such sections of the Code and all regulations of the United States Deparlment of the

Treasury issued thereunder to the extent that such regulations are, at the time, applicable

and i' effect; proviclecl, that if the Community Facilities District shall obtain an opinion of
nationally .*ig"ir.a bond counsel to the effect that any action required under the

provisions of ttre Indenture described in this subsection is no longer required, or to the

"ff."t 
that some further action is required, to maintain the exclusion from gross income of

the inter-est on the Tax-Exempt Authority Bonds pursuant to Section 103 of the Code, the

Community Facilities District may rely conclusively orr such opinion in complying with

the provisions of the Indenture. In the event that at any time the Comrnunity Facilities

District is of the opinion that for purposes of the provisions of the Indenture described in

this subsection it is necessary to restlict or limit the yield on the investment of any money

held by the Finance Director, for and on behalf of the Community Facilities District, under

the Indelture or otherwise, the Comrnunity Facilities District shall so instruct tlie Finance

Director or the Trustee, as the case may be, in writing, and the Finance Director or the

Tlrstee, as the case may be, shall take such action as may be necessary in accordance with

such instruclions.

(b) Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Community

Facilities District wiil pay from time to time all amonnts required to be rebated to the

United States of Amer-ica pursuant to Section l4S(f) of the Code and all regulations of the

United States Departnent of the Treasury issued thereunder to the extent that such

r.egulatior.rs are, at ihe time, applicable and in effect, which obligation shall survive payment

inlull or defeasance of the Bonds, and to that end, there is hereby established in the tl'easury

'l 1 65-69i0-3lis3 5

31
Page 138

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



of the City, for ancl on behalf of the Community Facilities District, a fund to be known as

tlie City of Folro,r, Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsorn Ranch) Inrprovement

Ar.ea No. 2 Special Tax Bonds Rebate Fund to be held in trust and administered by the

Finance Direcior for and on behalf of the Community Facilities District. The Community

Facilities District will comply with the provisions of the Tax Celtificate with respect to

making deposits in the Rebate Fund, and all money held in the Rebate Fund is pledged to

provide payments to the United States of America as provided herein and in the Tax

Certificate and no other person shall have claim to such money except as provided in the

Tax Certificate.

Section 5.04. payrnent qf Clainrs. The Community Facilities Distlict will pay and

discharge any and all lawful 
"fuirot 

*fri.i,, ii"npuid, might become payable from the proceeds of

the Special Tax or any part thereof oI upon any funfs in the hands of the Community Facilities

Districl or the Trustee allocated to the payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption

premiums, if any, on the Bonds, or which might impair the security of the Bonds'

Section 5.05. Expense and Services Budsets. The City Council, as legislative

bodyoftlreCommurrityFacilffinorbeforeJu1y1ineachyear,adoptabudget
setting forth the costs 

-of 
the estimated Expenses and Services for the period from such July 1

through the next succeeding June 30; prouil*d, that any budget adopted in accordance with this

Section may be amended by the City Council at any time'

(a) The Community Facilities District will keep, or in the case of

transactions made by the Trustee it will cause the Trustee to keep, appropriate accounting

records in which complete and correct entries shall be made of all transactions relating to

the receipt, investment, disbursement, allocation and application of the proceeds of the

Special Tax and of the proceeds of the Bonds, which accounting records shali at all times

during business hours *itll. ,.uronable prior written notice. be subiect to the inspeciion of

uny iiold.. (or his or her representative authorized in writing). The Trustee shall furnish

the Community Facilities District periodic cash transaction statements which include detaii

for all investment transactions effected by the Tlustee or brokers selected by the

Community Facilities District. Upon the Community Facilities District's election, such

statements will be delivered via the Trustee's online service and upon electing such service,

paper statements will be provided only upon request. The Community Facilities District

*ui,r., the right to receive blokerage confirmations of security transactions effected by the

Trustee as they occur, to the extent permitted by larv. The Cornrnunity Facilities District

fufiher. u'derstands that trade confirmations for securities transactions effected by the

Trustee will be available upon written request and at no additional cost and other trade

confirrnations may be obtained from the applicable broker.

(b) The Community Facilities District will plepare annually not ntore

rhan two hundred seventy (270) days after the close of each Fiscal Year (commencing with

tlre Fiscal Year ending Jlne IO,ZOZ+1a summary repofi showing in reasonable detaii the

proceeds of the Specia-l Tax levied and collected and the costs of the Expenses and Services

ior the prececlingFiscal Year and containing a general statement of the physical condition

Section 5.06 Accountins Records: Financial Statements and Other Reoorts.

+ t65-69-10-3|t81.5

32 Page 139

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



of the Facilities. The Conmunity Facilities District will furnish a copy of such summary

report without charge to any Holder (or his or her representative authorized in writing) and

to any investment banker, security dealer or other person interested in the Bonds requesting

a copy thereof.

(c) The Comrnunity Facilities Distlict will prepare annually not later

than October. 30 of each year (beginning in 2024) and file with the California Debt and

Investment Advisory Commission by maii, postage prepaid, all necessary infonnation

required to be filed under the Law, including:

(1) The principal amount of the Bonds Outstariding;

(2) The balance in each Bond Reserve Account;

(3) The balance in the Redemption Account constituting capitalized interest, if
any;

(4) The number ofparcels securing the Bonds which are delinquent withrespect

to their Special Tax payments, the amount that each delinquent parcel is delinquent, the

length of time that each delinquent parcel has been delinquent and when foreclosure was

commenced for each delinquent parcel; and

(5) The assessed value of all parcels subject to the levy of the Special Tax to

repay the Bonds, as shown on the most equalized assessment roll of the County of
Sacramento.

Additionally, the Community Facilities District will notifu the Califomia Debt and

Investment Advisory Commission by mail, postage prepaid, within ten (10) days if the Community

Facilities District oithe Trustee fails to pay any interest on or principal of any of the Bonds on any

scheduled payment date, or if fuilds are withdrawn from a Bond Reserve Acoount to pay any

interest on or principal of a series of the Bonds.

Section 5.07 of Ri The Community

Facilities District will preselve and protect the security of the Bonds and the rights of

and will warrant ald defend their rights against all claims and demands of all persons.
the Holders

Section 5.08 Pavment of Governmental Charges and Comoliance with

Governrnental Regulation5 The Community Facilities District w'ill pay and discharge all taxes or

payments in lier,r of taxes, assessments and other governmental charges or liens that may be levied,

assessed or charged r"rpon the Facilities or any pat-t theleof promptly as and when the same shall

become due and payable, except that the Community Facilities Distr-ict shall not be required to pay

any such governmental charges so long as the applica tion or validity thereof shall be contested in

good laith and the Cornmunity Facilities District shall have set aside reserves to cover such

charges. The Cornmunity Facilities District will duly observe and conforrn with all valid

regulations and requirements of any governmental autholi ty relative lo the operation of the

Facilities or any part thereof, except that the Community Faci lities District shall nol be required to

comply with any such regulations or requirements so long a

shall be contested in good faith'

41(r-r-(1930-3l'i83 5

JJ

s the application or validity theleof

Page 140

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Section 5.09. Levy and Collection of the Special Tax. The Cotntnunity Facilities

District,so1ongaSanyeon@arrnual1ylevytheSpecia1Taxagairrstall
Taxable property in tlie Improvement Area and make provision for tire collection of the Special

Tax in amounts wliich *itt t. sulficient, together with the money then on deposit in the

Redemption Accclunt, after making reasonable aliowances for contingencies and erLors in the

estimates, to yield proceeds equal to the amounts required for compliance with the agreements'

conditions, covenants and terms contained herein, and which in any event will be sufficient to pay

the interest on and principal of and Minimum Sinking Fund Account payments for and redemption

premiums, if any, on rh; Bonds as they become dul an{ payable and to replenish each Bond

Reserve Account and to pay all cutrent litp.nr", and Services as they become due and payable in

accordance r.vitli the p.o,ririon, and terms hereof. The Special rax shall be collected in the same

manner as ordinary ad valorem plopelty taxes are collected and, except as otherwise provided i1

Section 5.10 or by the Law, siralf be subject to the same penalties and the same collection

procedure, sale, and lien prio.ity in case oi d"linqu.ncy as is provided for ad valorem property

taxes.

Section5.l0.FQleclosur.egfSpccialTaxLiens.Th:ComnrunityFacilities
Districtsha1]arrnuallyono,u@-"hy"u'leviewthepublicrecordsofthe
county of Sacramento relating to the coilection of the Special Tax in older to determine the arnount

of the Special Tax collected in the prior Fiscal Year, and if the community Facilities District

determines on the basis of such review that the amount so collected is deficient by more tharl five

percent (5%) of the total amount of the Special Tax levied in such Fiscai Year, it will within sixty

(60) days thereafler institute foreclosure ploceedings as authorized by the Law in order to enforce

the lien of the delinquent installment, of th" speciat Tax against each lot or parcel of land in the

Improvement Area, an<J will diligently prosecute and pursue such foreclosure proceedings to

judgment and sale; provide-ct, that inesplciive of the foregoing if the Community Facilities District

determines on the basis of such review that property owned by any single property owner in the

Improvement Area is delinquent by four misied payments with respect to the Special rax due and

payable by such property owner by such delinquency date, then the Community Facilities District

will institute, prosecute and pursue such foreclo.ur. pro.redings in the tirne and mannel provided

herein against such property owner; l:roviclecl furlher- that any actions taken to enfot'ce delinquent

Special Tax liens,tuli u"-tut"n only *irtent with Sections 53356.1 through 53356'7, both

inclusive, of the Government Code of the State of California; and provided furthel, that the

Community Facilities District shall not be obligated to enforce the lien of any delinquent

installmenr of the Special rax for any Fiscal Year in which the community Facilities Distlict shall

have received one hundr-ed percent iroox) of the amount of such installment fi'om the County of

Sacramento putsuant to the so-called "Teeter Plan'"

Section 5.1 1 . Furtlter Assurances' The Community Facilities District will adopt'

deliver, execute, make and file any and all further assurances, insttuments and resolutions as may

be reasonably necessary or proper to carry out the intention ol to facilitate the performance heleof

and for the better urrrri,lg'and confirming unto the Holders of the rights and benefits provided

herein, including w-ithout limitation the filing of all financing statements, agreenents, instruments

or other documents in the {brms and in tlte locations necessary to perfect alld protect, and to

continue the perfection of" tlie pledge of the Special Taxes provided heleitt to the fullest extetrt

possible under applicable law of the State of caiifornia. Fulther, the community Facilities Distlict

covenants to 
'ot 

uppro.r. any amendments, changes or modifications relating to development o1'

4165-(1930-38ii3 5

34 Page 141

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



the property within the hnproven-ient Area that would reduce the atnount of tlie Maximum
paciiities Special Tax less pliority Adrninistrative Expenses to equal less than one hundred ten

perce't (11b%) of the surn of the Annual Debt Service on the Bonds in any year until the maturity

date for the Bonds.

ARTICLE VI

THE TRUSTEE

Seotion 6.01. The U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association at its

Corporate Trust Office in San Francisco, California, is hereby appointed Trustee for the purpose

of receiving ail money which the Community Facilities District is requiled io transfer to it
hereunder and fot'applying and using such money as provided herein for the purpose of paying the

interest on and plincipai of and redemption premiums,

Facilities District agrees that it will at all times maintain

trust office in Los Angeles or San Francisco, Califbrnia'

if any, on the Bonds. The CommunitY
a Trustee having a designated corporate

The Trustee and the Community Facilities District shall, prior to an Event of

Default, and after the curing or waiver of all Events of Default which may have occurred, perform

sgch duties and only such Juties as are specifically set forth in tliis Indenture. The Trustee shali,

during the existence of any Event of Default (which has not been cured or waived), exercise such

of the rights and powers vested in it by this Indenture, and use the same degree of care and skill in

their exercise u, u pn-rdent person would exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of

his or her own affairs.

The Community Facilities District may remove the Trustee initially appointed and

any successor thereto and may appoint a successor or successors thereto by an instrument in

writing; plQ.vidgd, that any such successor shall be a bank or trust company doing business and

havinf uT.rlgrrut.d corporate trust office in Los Angeles or San Francisco, California, having a

combined 
"upitul 

(exclusive of bor"rowed capital) and sr,uplus of at least one hundled million

doilar-s ($100,000,000) and subject to supervision or examination by a federal or state banking

authority. If such bank or trust company publishes a report of condition at least amuaily, pursuant

to law oi to the requirements of any supervising or examining authority above ref'erred to, then for

the purpose of thii Section the combined capitai ancl surplus of such bank or trust company shall

be d-eemed to be its cornbined capital and surplus as set forth in its most recent report of condition

so published. The Trustee may at any time resign by giving writtelr notice of such resignation to

tlie Comrnunity Facilities District and by giving notice of such resignation by mail pursuant to

Section 10.14 to the Holders, and upon receiving such notice of resignation, the Cornmunity

Facilities District shall pr-omptly appoint a successor Trustee by an itrstrument in writing having

the qualifications r-equired hereby. 
-Auy 

resigriatior-r or rerroval of a Trustee and appointment of a

,r"..rro, Trustee sirall becorne effective only upon the acceplance of appointnent by the

successor Trustee. If within thirty (30) days after notice of the removal or lesignation of the

Trustee no successor Tr-ustee shall have been appointed by the Community Facilities District and

shall have accepted such appointment, the removed or resiguing Tmstee rrray pelition, at the

expense of the Community Facilities District, any cour'l of competent julisdiction for the

appointment of a successor Tmstee, which court may thereupon. after such notice. if any, as it rnay

'l I 65-69i0-3883 5

35
Page 142

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



deem pr.oper.and prescribe and as may be required by law, appoint a successot'Trustee having the

qualifi cations required herebY.

Any cornpany into which the Tlustee shall be rnerged or converted or with which

it may be consolidated or any company resulting fi'om any lRerger, convelsation or consolidation

to which it shall be a par-ty or any company to which the Trustee nray sell or trausfer all or

substantially all of its corpor"ate trust burin"tt, so long as such company shali meet the

requiremenis set forth in this Section, shall be the successol'to the Trustee and shall be vested with

all of the trusts, powers, discretions, immunities, privileges and all other matters as was its

predecessor, without the execution or filing of any paper or furlher act, anything herein to the

contrary notwithstanding.

Section 6.02. Liability of the TruStqq. The lecitals of facts, agreements and

covenants contained herein und in tl't. Bo"dr shall be taken as statements, agreements and

covenants of the community Facilities District, and the Trustee shall not assume any responsibility

for the correctness of the iame and does not make any representation as to the sufficiency or

validity hereof or of tire Bonds or of ti're Special l'ax, or as to the financial or technical feasibility

of the acquisition and construction of any of the Facilities, and shall not incur any responsibility

in respecithereof other than in connection with the rights and obligations expressiy assigned to or

imposed upon it herein or in the Bonds, and shail not be liable in connection with the performance

of its duties hereunder except for its own negligence or willful misconduct. The Trustee shall not

be liable for any enor of judgment made in good faith, unless it shall be proved that the Trustee

was negligent in ascertaining-the pertinent facts, and no provision hereof shall require the Trustee

to .xpelrior risk its own nrnas or otherwise incur any liability for the performance of its duties

hereunder, or in the exercise of any of its lights or powelS hereunder'

The Trustee shall not be liable for any error ofjudgment made in good faith by a

Responsible officer unless it shall be proved that the Trustee was negligent in ascertaining the

pertinent facts, and the Trustee shall be entitled to advice of counsel of its selection conceming all

matters of trust and its duties hereunder and the advice of such counsei or any Opinion of Counsel

shall be fuil and complete authorization and protection in respect of any action taken, suffered or

omitted by it hereunder in good faith and in r.liut .. thereon. The Trustee may execute any of the

trusts o' powers set forth ierein and perform the duties required of it hereunder by or through

attorneys, agents or attorneys, and the Trustee shall not be liable for the negligence or misconduct

of any agent, attorney or certified public accountant selected by it with due care'

The Trustee shall, at all rimes, perfoun such duties and only such duties as are

specifically set forth herein, ancl no implied duties or obligations shall be read herein against the

Trustee. At no tirne shall the Trustee be a fiducialy or have fiduciary duties hereunder.

The Trustee shall not be bound to recognize any person as the Holder of a Bond

unless and until such Bond is submitted for inspection, if required, and such Holder's title thereto

is certified to the Trustee in a w'ritten instrument, upon which the Trustee sliall be entitled to

conclusively rely.

The Tnrstee shall lot be liable witl'r lespect to any action taken or omitted to be

taken by it in good faith il accordance with the direction of the Holders of not less than a majority

4 l 65-6930-3litii 5

36 Page 143

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



in aggregate prilcipal amount of the Bonds exercising any trust or power confetred upon the

Trr,rstee hereunder.

The Trustee has no obligation to the Holders and shall incur no liability for the

payment of the interest on, principal of or redemption premiums, if any, with respect to the Bonds

fi"om its own funds. l-he duties and obligations of the Tlustee shall be deterrnined solely by the

express provisions of this Indenture, and the Trustee shall perform such duties and obligations as

ur. ,p""ifi.ally set forth in this Indenture and shall not be liable except for its negligence or wiilful

misconduct, and no implied covenants or obligations shall be read into this Indenture against the

Trustee.

The Trustee shall not be deemed to have knowledge of any Event of Default

hereulder unless and until a Responsible Officer at the Trustee's Corporate Trust Office

responsible for the administr.ation of the Trustee's duties and obligations hereunder shall have

actual knowledge thereof or the Trustee shall have received written notice thereof at its Corporate

Trust Office. The Trustee shall not be bound to ascertain or to inquire as to the performance or

observance of any of the agreements, conditions, covenants or terms herein or of any of the

documents executed in connection with the Bonds, or as to the existence of an Event of Default

hereunder.

No provision hereof shall require the Trustee to expeud or risk its own funds or

otherwise i'cur any financial liability in the performance or exercise of any of its duties hereunder,

or in the exercise of its rights or powers. The Trustee shall be entitled to interest on all amounts

advanced to it hereunder. at its prime rate plus two percent (2%),but not greater than twelve percent

{12%) per annum.

The Trustee shall have no responsibility, opinion or liability with respect to any

information, Staternent or tecital in any offering memorandum or other disciosure material

prepared or distributed witli respect to the issuance of the Bonds.

All rights, privileges, immunities, indemnifications and releases from liability

granted herein to the lrustie shall extend to the directors, employees, officers and agents thereof'

In no evelt sha1l the Trustee be responsible or liable for special, indirect, punltlve

or consequential loss or damage of any kind whatsoever (including, but not limited to, loss of

profit) iriespective of whethei the Trustee has been advised ol the iikelihood of such loss or

danrage and regardless of the forrn of action'

Section 6.03 Comoensation and cation of the "[*r'rrstee. The ComrnunitY

Facilities District agrees 10 pay to the Trustee from time to time, and the Trustee shall recerve

compensatlon for all services rendered by it in the exercrse and performance of any of the duties

and obligati ons of the Trustee hereunder, as mutually and previously agreed upon in writing, and

the ComrnttnitY Facilities District will pay or reimburse the Trustee upon its request for all

expenses, disbursem ts and advances incun'ed or made by the'frustee and its affiliates, directors,en

employees or agents in accordance with any of the provi sions hereof (including the reasonable

compensation and the expenses and disbursements of its counsel and ofall persons not regulally

in its employ) excePt ar:Y such expense, disbursement or advance

4 r 65-6930-iti83 :
37

as may arise from its negligence

Page 144

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



or willful misco'duct. The Community Facilities District, to the extent pelnritted by law, agrees

to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Trustee against any and all loss, datnages, clainrs'

iiability or expense incurled without negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the Trustee

aLisi'g out oi or in connection with (i) ihe exercise or performance of any of its duties or

obligations hereunder, or (ii) any untrue siatement or alleged untrue statement of any material fact

or omission or alleged omission to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in

the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading in any official statement

or oti'er. offering circular utilized in connection with the sale of any of the Bonds, including costs

and expenses (including attorneys' fees and expenses) of defending itself against any claim or

liability in connectior, ]witt ths exercise ol perforrnance of any of its duties and obligations

l.,ereunier. The rights of the Trustee and the obligations of the cornmunity Facilities District under

this section shall survive the discharge of the Bonds and the resignation or lemoval of the Trustee'

Section 6.04. Notice to the Trustee. The Trustee shall be protected in acting upon

any Bond, certificate, 
"ons.rrt, 

noti."3pittion, repolt,- request, resolution or other document or

pup", believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or plesented by the ploper pafiy or

parties. The Trustee may-consult with counsel of its selection, including, without lirnitation,

counsel to the Community Facilities District, with regard to legal questions, and the opinion of

such counsel shall be fuli and complete authori zation and protection with lespect to any action

taken or suffered hereunder in good faith and in accordance therewith'

Whenever in the administration of its rights and obligations hereunder the Trustee

shall deem it necessary or desirable that a matter be established or proved prior to taking or

suffering any action hereunder, such matter (unless other evidence in respect thereof be herein

specificllly prescribed) may, inthe absence of negligence ol willful misconduct on the part of the

Trustee, bl ieemed to'be conclusively established or proved by a certificate of the Community

Facilities District or an Accountant's Report, which shall be full warrant to the Trustee for any

action taken or suffered under the provisions hereof upon the faith thereof, and on which the

Trustee rnay conclusively rely, but ln its reasonable judgment the Trustee may, in lieu thereof,

aceept other evidence of such matter or may require such additional evidence as it may deem

reasonable.

ARTICLE VII

I]MI]NT OF OR SU TO THE IND ]ITE

Section 7.0i Procedure for ofor S lement e Indenture

(a) Amendment or supplement -with coDsent of . Hgldels. The

Indentureandthe'ieh@eConrmunityFacilitiesIJistrictandofthe
Holders may be uro.lnd.d ol- ,.tppl.*ented at any time by the execution and delivery of a

Supplemenial Indenture by thl Community Facilities Distlict and the Trustee, which

S.,ppt"-.ntal Indenture shall become binding when the written consents of the Holders of

,i"iy p"r".nt (60%) or more in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding,

exclusive of Bonds disqualified as providld in Section 7.02, shall have been filed with tlie

Tr.ustee; prgvjdsd, that no such amendrnent or supplement shall (1) extend the rnaturity of

J r 65-6930-i883 5

38 Page 145

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



or reduce the inter-est rate on or otherwise alter ol irnpair the obligation of the Community

Facilities District to pay the intelest on or principal of ol Minimurn Sinking Fund Account
payment for or redeinption premium, if any, on any Bond at the tirne and place and at the

rate and in the currency and from the funds provided herein without the express written

consent ofthe Holder of such Bond, or (2) permit the issuance by the Community Facilities

District of any obligations payable from the proceeds of the Special Tax other than the

Bonds as provided herein, or jeopardize the ability of the Community Facilities District to

levy and iollect the Special Tax, or (3) reduce the percentage of Bonds required for the

written consent to any such amendment or supplement, or (4) modify any rights or

obligations of the Trustee without its prior written assent thereto.

(b) Amqndment or Supplement Without Consent of Holders, The

Indenture and the righii and obligations of the Community Facilities District and of the

Holders may also be amended or supplemented at any time by the execution and delivery

of a Supplemental Indenture by the Community Facilities District and the Trustee, which

Supplemental Indenture shall become binding upon execution without the prior written

conient of any Holders, but only to the extent permitted by law and after receiving an

Opinion of Counsel, stating that the Supplemental Indenture is the valid and binding

obligation of the Community Facilities District, and only for any one or more of the

following pul'poses

(i) To add to the agreements and covenants required herein to

be performed by the Community Facilities District other agreements and

covenalts thereafter to be performed by the Community Facilities District

which shall not (in the opinion of the Community Facilities District)

adversely affect the interests of the Holders, ot to surrender any r^ight or

power reserved herein to or confened herein upon the Community Facilities

birtti"t which shall not (in the opinion ofthe Community Facilities District)

adversely affect the interests of the Holders;

(ii) To make such provisions for the purpose of curing any

arnbiguity or of curing, correcting or supplementing any defective provision

contained herein or in regard to questions arising hereunder which the

Community Facilities District may deern desirable or necessary and not

inconsistent herewith and which shall not (in the opinion of the Community

Facilities Distlict) adversely affect the interests of the Holders;

(iii) To autliorize the issuance of Additional Bonds and to
provide the conditions and tenns under which the Additional Bonds rnay be

issued;

(i") To autholize the issuance under and subject to the Law of
any refuncling bonds for any of the Bonds and to provide the conditions and

terms under u,hich sttch refunding bonds may be issued,

(v) To make sucli additions, deletions or rnodifications as may

be necessary oI applopriate to ensure compliance with Section 148(f) of the

4 I 6.5 -(r930--i 8113.-5

39
Page 146

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Community Facilities District shall not be deemed Outstanding for the purpose

other action or any caleulation of Outstanding Bonds provided for in this Article

and shall not be entitled to consent to or take any other action provided for in

Code relating to the reqtiiled rebate of excess investment earnirigs to the

United Statei of Arnerica, or otherwise as may be necessary to eusut'e the

exclusion fi.om gross inconre for purposes of federal income taxation of the

interest on the Bonds or the exemption of such interest fi'orn State of

California personal income taxes; or

("i) To make such additions, deletions or modifications as may

be necessary or appropriate to maintain any then current rating on the

Bonds.

Section 7.02 Disqua lified Boncls. Bonds owned ol held for the account of the

ofany consent or
ol in Article VIII,
this Article ol in

Afticle VIII

Section 7.03 Endorsement or Reolacement of Bonds After Amendment ot

Suunlenreut. After the effective date of anY action taken as hereinabove provided, the Community

Facilities District may determine that the Bonds may bear a notation by endorsement in fonn

approved by it as to such action, and in that case upon demand of the Holder of any Bond

Outstanding on such effective date and presentation of his or her Bond for such purpose at the

Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee a suitabie notation as to such action shail be made on such

Bond. If the CommunitY Facilities District shall so determine, new Bonds so modified as, in the

opinion of the CommunitY Facilities District, shall be necessary to conform to such action shall be

prepared and executed, and in that case upon demand of the Holder of any Bond Outstanding on

such effective date such

exchanged at the CorPora
then Outstanding.

new Bonds shall, uPon surrender of such Outstanding Bonds, be

te Trust Ofhce of the Trustee, without cost to each Holder, for Bonds

Section 7.04 Amendment or SupPl bv Mutuai Consent The provisions of
or supplement as to anY

s made on such Bonds.
this Arlicle shall not prevent any Holder from accepting any amendment

particular Bonds held by him or her; plovided, that due notation thereof i

ARTICLE VIII

OFD A

Section 8.01 Events of Default and Remedies of Holders. If one or more of the

following events (herein "Events of Defauit") shall happen, that is to say:

(a) if default sliail be made by the Community Facilities District in the

due and pulctuai payment of any interest on or principal of or Minimum Sinking Fund

Account payment for uny of the Bonds when and as the same shall become due and

payable;

(b) if default sliall be made by the Community Facilities District in the

obselvance o, p"iforrlrance of any of the other agleetnents or covenants contained liereirr

required to be observed or perfbrmed by it, and such default shall have cotltinued for a

40
4 165-f)930-3883 i

Page 147

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



period of thir-ty (30) days after the Community Facilities District shall have been given

notice in writing of such default by the Tlustee;

(c) if default shall be made by the Conrmunity Facilities District in the

due ald puuctual payment of any indebtedness on a parity with or senior to the Bonds; or

(d) if the Community Facilities District shall file a petition or arlswer

seeking arrangement or reorganization under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other

applicable law of the United States of America or any state therein, or if a court of

ctmpetent jurisdiction shall approve a petition filed with or without the consent of the

Community Facilities Districl seeking al'rangement or reorganization under the federal

bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of the United States of America or any state

therein, orl if under the provisions of any other" law for the relief or aid of debtors any court

of competent jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the Community Facilities

District or of the whole or any substantial part of its properly;

the' in each and every such case duling the continuance of such Event of Default any Holder shall

have the right for the equal benefit and protection of all Holdels similarly situated:

(a) by mandamus or other suit or proceeding at law or in equity to

enforce his rights against the City Council or the Community Facilities Distlict or any of

the offrce6 oi ,*p'ioyees of the Community Facilities District, and to cornpel tlie City

Co,ncil or the Community Facilities District or any such officels or employees to perform

and carry out their duties under the Law and the agreements and covenants with the Holders

contained herein;

(b) by suit in equity to enjoin any acts ol things which are unlawful or

violate the rights of the Holders; or

(c) by suit in equity upon the nonpayment of the Bonds to require the

City Coulcil or tlie Community Facilities District or its officet's and employees to account

as the trustee ofan exPress trust.

Non-Waiver. Nothing in this Article or in any other provision herein

or impair the obligati on of the Community Facilities District, which is

absolute aud unconditional, to pay the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if
any , on the Bonds to the respective Holders of the Bonds at the respective dates of maturity or

upon redemption pdor to matultty as pro

otirer funds as provided herein, or shall

absolute and unconditional, to institute
embodied helein and in the Bonds.

vided herein from the proceeds of the Special Tax and the

affect or impair the right of such Holders, which is also

snit to enforce such payment by virtue of the contract

A waiver of any Event of Default or breach of duty or contract by any Holder shall

not aflect any subsequent Event of Default or breach of duty or contract and shall not impair any

rights or remedie, on uny such subsequent Event of Default or breacl-r of duty ot' contract. No

dJay or- omission by any Holder to exercise any right or remedy accrtting Llpon any Event of

Default or breach of Outy or contract shall impair any such light or renredy or shall be construed

to be a waiver of any such Event of Default or bleach of duty or contract or an acquiescence

Section 8.02

or in the Bonds shall affect

a l6-5-(,910-38ti-] 5

41
Page 148

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



therein, ald every light and lernedy cont-erled upou the Holders by the Law ol hereby may be

enforced and exercised from tirne to time and as often as shall be deemed expedient by the Holders.

If a1y action, proceeding or suit to enfbrce any right or exercise any remedy is

abandoned or determined advelsely to any Holder, tlie Community Facilities District and such

Holder shall be restored to their former positions, rights and remedies as if such action, proceeding

or suit had not been brought or taken-

Section 8.03. Remedies Not Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or

reserved to the Holders is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and every such remedy

shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to evely other remedy given hereunder or now or

hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise, and may be exercised without

exhausting and without regard to any other remedy conferred by the Law or any other law.

ARTICLE IX

DEFEASANCE

Section 9'01 ' Discharge of tllq llonds'

(a) If the Community Facilities District shall pay or cause to be paid or

there shall otherwise be paid to the Holders of all Outstanding Bonds the interest thereon

and the principal thereof and the redemption premiums, if any, thereon at the times and in

the manner slipulated therein and herein, then all agreements, covenants and other

obligations of the Community Facilities District to the Holders of such Bonds hereunder

shali ther.eupon cease, terminate and become void and be discharged and satisfied. In such

event, the Trustee shall execute and deliver to the Community Facilities District all such

instruments as may be necessaly ol desilable to evidence such discharge and satisfaction,

and the Trustee shall pay over or deliver to the Community Facilities District for deposit

in the Cornmunity Facilities Fund all money ol securities held by it pursuant hereto which

are not required for the payment of the interest on and principal of and ledemption

premiums, if any, on such Bonds.

(b) Any Outstanding Bonds shall on the maturity date or redemption

date thereof be deemed to have been paid within the meaning of and with the effect

explessed in subsection (a) of tiris Section if there shall have been irevocably deposited

with the Trustee money wiiich is sufficient to pay the interest due on such Bonds on such

date and the principal and redei-nptior: premiums, if any, due on such Bonds on such date.

(c) Any Outstanding Bonds shall prior to the maturity date or

redemption date thereof be deemecl to Jtave been paid within the meaning and with the

effectixpressed in subsection (a) of tliis Section if (1) in case any of such Bonds are to be

redeemed on any date prior to their rnaturity date, the Community Facilities District shall

have agreed to mail a notice of redeniption pursuant to Section 10.14 to the respective

Hoideri of all sucl-r Outstanding Bonds and to the securities depositories or securities

information services selectecl by it pursuant to Section 3.03, (2) there shall have been filed

with the Commurrity Facilities District and the Trustee an Opinion of Counsel to the effect

4165-6910-3s83 5

A')-tL
Page 149

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



that the payment of such Bonds has been provided for in the manner set forth herein and

that all obligations of the Community Facilities District with respect to such Bonds have

been discharged and satisfied and there shall have been deposited with an escrow agellt

meeting the iequirements of a successor trustee set forth in Section 6.01 or the Trustee

either 11 mon.y in an amount which shall be sufficient to pay when due tlie interest on and

principal of ani r-edemption premiums, if any, due and to become due on such Bonds on

unO piioL to the date scheduled for redemption or maturity date thereoi as the case may be

and/or (ii) Federal Securities whicli are not subject to redemption except by the holder

thereof prior to maturity (including any Federal Securities issued or held in book-entty

form op the books of the Department of the Treasury of the United States of America), the

interest on and principal of which when paid will provide money which, logether with the

money, if any, d.porit.d with such escrow agent meeting the requirements of a successor

trustee set forth in Section 6.01 or the Trustee at the same time, shall be sufficient to pay

when due the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, due and to

become due on such Bonds on and prior to the date scheduled for redemption or matulity

date thereof, as the case may be, as evidenced by an Accountant's Report on file with the

Commu'ity Facilities District and the Trustee, and (3) in the event such Bonds are not by

their terrns subject to redemption within the next succeeding sixty (60) days, the

Community Facilities District shall have agreed to mail pursuant to Section 10.14 a uotice

to the Holders of such Bonds and to the securities depositories and securities information

services selected by it pursuant to Section 3,03 that the deposit required by clause (2) above

has beep made with such escrow agent meeting the requirements of a successor trustee set

forth in Section 6.01 or the Trustee and that such Bonds are deemed to have beerr paid in

accordance with this Section and stating the maturity dates or redemption dates, as the case

may be, upol which money will be available for the payment of the principal of and

redemption premiums, if any, on such Bonds'

Section 9.02. Unclaimed lyhley. Anything contained herein to the contrary

notwithstalding, any money h.ld by th" Tt"st." in trust for the payment and discharge of any of

the Bonds o. uny inierest thereon which remains unclaimed for two (2) years after the date when

such Bonds or interest thereon have become due and payable, either at their stated maturity dates

or by call for redemption prior to maturity, if such money was held by the Trustee on such date, or

for iwo (2) years after thl date of deposit of such money if deposited with the Trustee after the

date when such Bonds or interest thereon became due and payable, shall be repaid by the Trustee

to the Comrn,niiy Facilities District as its absolute property free from trust for deposit in the

Community Faciiities Fund and for use in accordance with the Law, and the Trustee shall

thereupon te released and discharged with respect thereto and the Holders shall look only to the

Cornmunity Faciiities District fol ihe payment of such Bonds and interest thereon; plqvglgg[, that

before the Trustee shall be required to rrake any such repayment the Community Facilities District

shall mail pursuant to Section 10.14 a notice to the Holders of all Outstanding Bonds and to such

securities depositor-ies and seculities information services selected by it pursuant to Section 3.03

that such money remains unclaimed and that after a date named in such notice, whicli date shall

'ot be less than thirty (30) days after the date of the mailing of such notice, the balance of such

rnoney then *nclaimed will be r.eturned to the Community Facilities District for deposit in the

Community Facilities Fund.

.l r65-6930-38lJ3 5

AAL+J
Page 150

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



ARTICLE X

MIS US

Section 10.01 .

Tax
Cornrnunity Facilities District shall not be required to advance any money delived frorn anY source

of income other than the Proceeds of the Special Tax net of Priority Administrative ExPenses and

the other funds provided herein for
premiums, if anY, on the Bonds.

the payment of the interest on or plincipal of or redemPtion

The Bonds are special tax obligations of the Comrnunity Facilities District and the

interest on and principal of ani redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds are payable solely

fi.om the p.o.".i, oiirt" special rax (including uny prepayments thereof and proceeds frorn the

sale of property collected pursuant to the foreclosure provisions of the_ Indenture for the

delinquency of the Special Tax), net of Priority Administrative Expenses, and amounts in cerlain

funds and accounts established in the Indenture, and the Cornmunity Facilities District is not

obligated to pay the Bonds except from such funds. The General Fund of the city and the funds

of the Community Facilities Diitrict are not liable, and neither the full faith and credit of the

Cornmunity Facilities District nor the City are pledged 
_for 

the payment of the interest on or

principal of o, ,.a".rrption premiums, if any, on ihe Bonds, and no tax or assessment other than

ine speclat Tax shali 
"ve, 

b" levied or collected to pay the interest on or principal of or redemption

pr"*iu.nr, if a1y, on the Bonds. The Bonds are not securecl by a legal or equitable pledge of or

charge, lien or encumbrance upon any property of the community Facilities District or any of its

income or receipts except th. pror".dt of tltt" Special Tax (including any prepayments thereof and

proceeds from tire ,al. of prop"rly collected pursuant.to the foreclosure provisions of the Indenture

for the delinquency ortne speciat Tax), net of Priority Administlative Expenses, and amounts in

certain funds and accounts established in the Indenture, and neither the payment of the interest on

or principal of or redemption premiums, if a1y, o1 the Bonds is a general debt, liability ot'

obligation of the Community Facilities District. The Bonds do not constitute an indebtedness of

the Community Facilities District within the meaning of any constitutional ol statutory debt

limitation or restriction, and neither the city council nor the community Facilities District nor

any officer o,. 
"*ploy*e 

thereof shall be liabie for the payment of the interest on or principal of or

reiemption pr.*iu*r, if any, on the Bonds otherwise than from the proceeds of the Special Tax,

net of priority Administrative Expenses, and such othel funds as provided in the Indenture.

Section 10.02. Benefits of the Indenture Limited to Cefiai! Parties' Nothing

containedlrerein,eXpIeSSo'i@etoanyentityoIpeISonot]rertharitheCity
Council, the Community Facilities District, the Trustee, and the Holdels any right, remedy or claim

under oi by 1..uron hereof, and any agreement or covenant requir-ed herein to b_e perforrned by or

on behalf of the city council or'the community Facilities Distlicl or ariy officer or employee

thereof shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Tt'ustee and the Holders.

Sectiori 10.03. Successor Is Deemed Included in All References.to PredeqEssQt'.

whenever either the city cor*it or th" crn*unity Facilities District or any officer or employee

thereof or of the City is naro"d or refeued to herein, such reference shall be deemed to include the

successor to the po**ru, duties and functions with respect to the administration, control and

4 i65-6930 3833 5

44
Page 151

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



management of the Community Facilities Distlict that are presently vested in the City Council or

the Coriimunity Facilities District or such officer ol employee, and all agreements and covenants

required herein to be perforrned by or on behalf of the City Council or the Cornmunity Facilities

District or any officei or employee theleof shall bind and inure to the benefit of the respective

successors thereofwhether so expressed or not'

Section 10.04. Execution olDocurnents by Flolelers. Any declaration, request or

other instrlment which is permitted or required herein to be executed by Holders may be in one or

more instruments of similar tenor, and may be executed by Holders in person or by their attorneys

duly authorized in writing. The fact and date of the execution by any Holder or his attorney of any

declaration, request or other instrument or of any writing appointing such attorney may be proved

by the certificaie of any notary public or other officer authorized to take acknowledgments of deeds

to be recorded in the state oi territory in which he or she purports to act that the person signing

such declaration, request or other instrument or writing acknowledged to him or her the execution

thereof, or by a1 affidavit of a witness to such execntion duly sworn to before such notary public

or other officer, The ownership of Bonds and the anount, maturity, number and date of holding

the same shall be provided by the registration books required to be kept by the Trustee pursuant to

Section 2.09.

Any declaration, request or othel instrument or writing of the Holder of any Bond

shall bind all future Holders of such Bond with respect to anything done or suffered to be done by

the Community Facilities District in good faith and in accordance therewith'

Section 10.05. Investment il1 and F All

money held by the Trustee in any accounts and funds established helein shall be deposited in time

or demand deposits in any state or nationally chafteled bank or trust company, including the

Trustee, or any state or federal savings and loan association, and shall be secured at all tirnes by

such obligations as are required by law and to the fuliest extent required by law, except such money

that is at the time invested in accordance with tiris Section. Any money in the Acquisition and

Construction Fund and in tlie Special Tax Funrl and iu the Redemption Account shall be invested

by the Trustee pursuant to a Written Request of the Comrnunity Facilities District received by the

Trustee at least three (3) days before making any such investment in those Permitted Investments

specified in such Written Request of the Comtnunity Facilities District that mature not later than

the date on which it is estimated that such money wt li be required to be paid out heteunder, and

any money in a Bond Reserve Account shall be invested by the Trustee pursuant to a Written

Request of the CornrnunitY Facilities District received by the Trustee at least three (3) days before

making any such investmen t in those Pennitted Investments specified in such Written Request of

the Community Facilities D istrict that mature not more than five (5) years from the date of

purchase by the Trustee, or the final maturity date of any Outstanding Bonds, whichever is earlier;

and the Trustee may conclusivelY relY and clelennine that any investment specified in any such

Written Request of the Community Facilities Distlict is a Permitted Investment ot a Federal

Security, as the case may be, heleunder; plqrlggd, that in the absence of written instructions from

the Comrnunity Facilities District regalding such iuvestments, such money shall be held

uninvested. The Trustee (or any affiliate theleof) may act as principal or agent in the making of
any investment hereunder and may impose its customary charges therefor, and shall not be

responsible fol any losses, taxes, fees or other charge sullbre d in connection with any iuvestment,

relnvestment or liquidation of investments made iri acco

4 I 65-(,930-1883 5

45

rdance helewith. Notwithstar-rding

Page 152

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



anything in the Indenture to the contrary, for purposes of any time lirnitation ou the maturity of an

i'vestment of moneys in the funds and accounts held thereunder, such investment shall be deemed

to satisfy such tirrre limitatiorr ii by its ter.ms and within such time limitation, the Conmr'lnity

Facilities District or the Trustee has the right, fol any purpose pennitted or required under the

Indeltur-e, to demand the repurchase, redemption, withdrawal or termination of such iuveslment

and to receive at least the outstanding par amount thereof plus accrued interest, without penalty'

All interest leceived ol1 any such money so deposited or invested which exceeds

the requirements of the account or fund from which such money was deposited or invested shall

(as specified in a Written Request of the Community Facilities District filed with the Tlustee)

isubjfct to rhe requirements oi Section 5.03) be deposited in the Redemption Account, and all

io*.r on any ..,"h *on.y so deposited or invested shall be borne by the account or fund frorn

which the deposit or investment was made.

Section 10.06. Waiver of No member of the City Council or

Community Facilities District, shalloffrcel or employee of the City, acting for and on behalf of the

be individually or personally liable for the payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption

premiurns, if any, on the Bonds, but nothing herein contained shall relieve any membel of the CitY

Council or officer oI employee of the City from the performance

hereby or by the Law or by any other applicable provisions of ]aw.
of any official duty provided

Section 10.07 SI of Bonds un1 Facilities All Bonds

acquired by the Community Facilities District, whether by purchase or gift or otherwise,

surienclered to the Trustee for cancellation and destruction by it, and the Trustee shall
shall be

send the

Community Facilities District a certificate of such destruction.

Section 10.08. Content of Certifi cates and Renorts. Every cerlificate or report with

respect to compliance with an agreement, condition, covenant or term provided herein shall include

(a) a statement that the person or persons making or giving such certificate or report have read

such agreement, condition, covenant or term and the definitions herein relating thereto; (b) a brief

statement as to the nature and scope of the examination or investigation upon which the opinion

contained in such certificate or report is based; (c) a statemen t that, in the opinion of the signers,

they have made or caused to be made such examination or investigation as is necessary to enable

them to express an inforrned opinion as to whether or not such agreement, conditioll, covenant or

term has been complied with; and (d) a statement as to whether, in the opinion of the signers, such

agreement, condition, covenant or term has been complied with'

A1y such celtificate made or given by an officer of the City, for and on behalf of

the Commsnity Facilities District, may be based, insofar as it relates to legal tnatters, Llpon a

representation made in an Opinion of Counsel unless such officer knows that the representation

with r.spect to the matters upon which liis certificate may be based, as aforesaid, is erroneoLls, or

in the exer-cise of reasonable care should have known that the same was effoneous. Ar-ry such

Opinion of Couusel may be based, insofar as it lelates to factual matters inforniation rvith tespect

to which is in the possession of the Cornmunity Facilities District, upon a represelttation by an

officer or officers of the City unless the counsel giving such Opinion of Counsel knou's lhat the

representation with respect to the matters upon which his representation may be based, as

4 l6i-6930-3S83 -5

46
Page 153

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



aforesaid, is erroneous, or in the exercise of reasonabie care should have known that the same was

Section 10.10. cl and The

headings or titles of the several articles and sections hereof and the table of contents aPPended

hereto shall be solely for convenience ofreference and shall not affect the construction, effect or

meaning hereof, and words of any gender shall be deemed and construed to inciude all genders

All references herein to "Articles," "sections" and other subdivisions are to the corresponding

articles, sections or subdivisions hereof; and the words "hel'eby," "hefein," "he eof," "hgretor"

"herewith" and' 'hereunder" and other words of similar import refer to the Indenture as a whole

and not to any particular article, section or subdivision hereof.

Section 10.11. partial Invaliclitv. If any one or more of the agreements, conditions,

covenants or ter-ms o, portions th..*f r"qnired hereby to be observed or performed by the

Community Facilities Dstrict or the Trustee should be contrary to law, then such agreement or

agreementi, such condition or conditions, such covenant ol' covenants or such tetm or terms or

stlch portions thereof shali be null and void and shall be deemed separable from the remaining

agreements, conditions, covenants or terms or portions theleof and shall in no way affect the

,rltiaity hereof or of the Bonds; and the Holders shall retairr all the rights and benefits accorded to

them under the Law or any other applicable provisions of law. The Community Facilities District

hereby declares that it would bave executed the Indenture and each and every other article, section,

paragraph, subdivision, senterlce, clause and phrase hereof and would have authorized the issuance

of the Bonds pursuant hereto irrespective of ihe fact that any one or more of the articles, sections,

paragraphs, ,ubdiuirions, sentencls, clauses or pluases hereof ot the application thereof to any

p..ron or circurnstance may be held to be unconstitutional, unenforceable ol invalid.

Section 10.09. Maintenance o1'Accounts and Fuuds. Any account or fund required

herein to be established ond rrruintuin.a by th.lrustee may be rnaintained by the Trustee in its

accounting lecords in its customaly manner either aS an account or a fund, and may, for the

pulposes if such accounting records, any audits thereof and any financial reports or statements

witir respect thereto, be treaied either as an account or as a fr.rnd; but all such accounting lecords

with respect to all such accornts and funds shall at all times be maintained by the Trustee in

accordance with trust industry standards.

Sectio' 10,12. Execution in Counterparts and Electronie Execution. The Indenture_

may be executecl in several 
"*nt"rpurt., 

r*tr of which shail be deemed an original, and all of

whlch shall constitute but one ancl the same instrument. TJre exchange of copies of the Indenture

and of signature pages by facsimile or PDF transmission shall constitute effective execution and

delivery ortn.lnde-nture-as to the parlies hereto and may be used in lieu of the original Indenture

and signature pages for. all purpor.t. Each party agrees thal the electronic siguatures, whether

digitaior enciypied, of the paities included in this Inclenture are intended to authenticate this

wr-iting and to have the .um. forr. and effect as manual signatures. Electronic signature means

any electronic sound, symbol, or process attached to ol logically associated with a record and

executed a1d adoptej Uy 
" 

paily with the intent to sign such record, inclr-rding l'acsimile or email

effoneous

electronic signatures

4165-(r930-38li.l 5

47
Page 154

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Section 10.13. (iovenrins, l,aw. The Indenture shall be governed by and construed

and interpleted in accordallce with the laws of the State of California'

Section 10.14. Notices. All written notices to be given hereunder shall be given by

mail or electronic means to the piLty errtitled thereto at its address set forlh below, or at such other

address as such party may provide to the other parties in writing from time to time, nanrely:

If to the Commulrity Faciiities District:

City of Folsom
50 Natoma Stleet
Folsom, California 9563 0

Attention: Finance Director
Fax:916-985-0870
Email: financetreasury@folsorl.ca.us

If to the Trustee:

U.S. Bank Trust Compally, National Association

One California Street, Suite 1000

San Francisco, CA 94111
Attention: Global CorPorate Trust
Fax: (41 5) 677-3596
Email: karen.lei@usbank.corn

Each such notice, statement, demand, consent, approval, authorization,

offer, designation, request or other communication hereunder shall be deemed delivered to

the parly io whom it is addressed (a) if personally served or delivered, upon delivery, (b)

if givenby electronic communication, upon the sender's receipt of an appropriate answer

back or olher wr-itten acknowiedgment or confirmation of receipt of the entire notice,

approval, demand, report or other communication, (c) if given by first class mail deposited

with the United States mail postage plepaid, seventy-two (72) hours after suchnotice is

deposited with the United States mail, (d) if given by overnight courier, with courier

charg"s prepaid, twenty-four Q$ hours after delivery to said overnight courier, or (e) if
given Ui any other means, Lrpon delivery at the address specified in this Section.

The Trustee shall have the right to accept and act upon instructions,

including fulds transfer instructions ("Instructions") given pursuant to this Indenture and

delivereJ using Electronic Means ("Electronic Means" shall mean the following

communications methods: e-mail, facsimile transmission, secure electronic transmission

containing applicable autholization codes, passwords andlor authentication keys issued by

the Trustee, or another metl-rod ol system specified by the Trustee as available for use in

connection with its servjces heler-rnder); provided, however, that the Community Facilities

District shall pr-ovide to the Trustee an incumbency certificate listing officers with the

Comrnunjty Facilities District to provide such Instructions and containing specimen

signatnres of such officers, which ircumbency certificate shall be amended by the

Clmmulity Facilities District whenever a per son is to be added or deleted from the listilig'

4 l 65-6930-3Ssi 5

48
Page 155

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



If the Commulity Facilities District elects to give the Trustee Instructious using Electronic

Means and the Trustee in its reasonable judgment elects to act upon such lnstructions, the

Trustee's uncierstandilg of such Instructions shall be deemed controlling. The Community

Facilities District undeistands and agrees that the Trustee cannot detelmine the identity of

the actual sender of such Instructions and that the Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively

presume without liability that dilections that purpofi to have been sent by an officer listed

tn the incumbency certificate provided to the Trustee have been sent by such officer. The

Community Facilities District shall be responsible for ensuring that only officers transmit

such Instructions to the Trustee and that the Community Facilities District and all officers

a1e solely responsible to safeguard the use aud confidentiality of applicable user and

authorization iodes, passwords and/or authentication keys upon receipt by the Community

Facilities District. The Trustee shall not be liabie fot any losses, costs claims, or expenses

arising directly or indirectly from the Trustee's reliance upon and compliance with such

Instr-uctions notwithstanding the fact that such directions conflict or are inconsistent with

a subsequent written instruction. The Community Facilities District agrees: (i) to assume

all r"isks arising out of the use of Electronic Means to submit Instructions to the Trustee,

including without limitation the risk of the Trustee acting on unauthorized Instructions, and

tlie risk of interception and misuse by third parties; (ii) that it is f'ully informed of the

protectiols and risks associated with the various methods of transmitting Instructions to

the Trustee and that there may be more secure methods of transmitting Instructions than

the merhod(s) selected by the Community Facilities District; (iii) that the security

procedures (li unyl to be foliowed in connection with its transmission of Instructions

provide to it a commercially reasonable degree of protection in light of its particular needs

and circunstances; and (iv) to notify the Trustee in writing immediately upon learning of

any compromise or unauthorized use of the security procedures.

Section 10.1 5. U.S A. Patriot Act The parlies hereto acknowledge that rn

accordance with Section326 of the U.S.A. Patriot Act, the Trustee, like all financial institutions

and in order to help fight the funding of terrodsm and rnoney laundering, is required to obtain,

verify, and record ilformation that identifies each person or legal entity that establisires a

relationship or opens an account with the Trustee. The parties to this Indenture agree that they

will provide the trustee with such information as it may request in order for the Trustee to satisfy

the requirements of the U.S.A. Patriot Act.

Section 1 0.16 Force Maieure. In no event shall the Trustee be responsible or iiable

for any failute or delay in the performance of its obligations hereunder arising out of or caused by,

dilectly or indilectly, forces beyond its control, including, without limitation, strikes, wolk

stoppages, accidents, acts of war or terorism, pandemics, epidernics, quarautine restrictions,

recognized public emergencies, civil or military disturbances, nuclear or natural catastrophes or

acts of God, and intelluptions, loss or malfunctions of utilities, communications or conrputer

software ancl hardware) services; it being understood that the Trustee shall use reasonable effofis

which are consistent with accepted practice

soorl as practicable under the circumstances.
s in the banki ng industry to tesume performance as

Section 10.17 Effective Date of the Indenture. The Indenture shall take effect tiom

and aftel its execution and delivery

.l t {'j-6930-3881 5

49
Page 156

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



fRernainder of page intentionally left blank]

,l l6r-69i0--38ti3 5

5i) Page 157

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Folsom Community Facilities District

No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) has caused the Indenture to be signed in its narne by the Finance Director'

of the iity of Folsom and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as Trustee, in token

of its acclptance of the trusts created hereunder, has caused the Indenture to be signed in its

corporate r*rn" by its officer thereunto duly authorized, all as of the date and year first above

written.

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES
DTSTRICT NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH)

B
Finance Director of the of Folsom

U.S, BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION,

as Trustee

By
Authorized Officer

4 I 65-6930-3883-5

Signature Page to lndenture
Page 158

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



EXHIBIT A

IFORM OF BONDS]

LINITED STATES OF AMERICA

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

COLINTY OF SACRAMENTO

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMI.'NITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 2

SPECIAL TAX BOND, SERIES 2024

$No.

Interest
Rate

Maturity
Date

Bond
Date

% September 1, 

- 

[Closing Date]

REGISTERED OWNER: U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, AS

TRUSTE,E FOR THE FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT DOLI-ARS

The City of Folsom Community Faciiities District No. 23 (Folsorn Ranch),

organized and existing under and pursuant to the laws of the State of California (the "Community

Facilities District"), for value received hereby promises to pay (but only out of the proceeds of the

Special Tax hereinafter refened to, net of Priority Adrninistrative Expenses (as defined in the

Indenture hereinafter refeued to), and certain other funds as described herein) to the legistered

owner set forth above on the maturity date set forth above (subject to any right of plior redemption

herei'after provided fbr) the principal amount set forth above, together with intelest thereon

computed o., t6. basis of a 360-day year of twelve (12) 30-day calendar months from the interest

payment date next preceding the date of registration of this Bond (unless this Bond is registered

fna day cluring the period from the sixteenth (1611') day of the rnonth next preceding an interest

puy*.nt date to ,urir int.r.st payment date, both inclusive, in which event it shall bear interest

from such interest payment date, or unless this Bond is registered on a day on or before tlie

fifteenth (15,h) aay otitre month next preceding the first intelest payment date, in which event it

shall bear ilterest fi.om its dated date) until the principal heleof shall have been paid- at the interest

rate per annum set fbrth above, payable on September l, 2024, and semiannually thereafter on

September 1 alcl March l in eacliyear. The interest on and plincipal of and redenrption premium,

4 I (:5-(:930-3883 i
A-1

Page 159

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



if any, on this Bold are payable in lawful lnoney of the United States of America at the Corporate

Tr.,-rst office (as that term is defined in the Indenture hereinalter lefetred to, and herein the

..Corporate Trust Office") of U.S. Bank Trust Conrpany, National Associatiorl, or any other bank

or trust company at its corporate Trust office, which may at any time be substituted in its place

as provided in the Indenture hereinafter described, the Trustee of the Conrmunity Facilities District

foi tt,e Bonds (the ,.Trustee"). The intelest on this Bond due on ol' before the maturity or prior

redemption heieof shall be payable only to the person whose nalne appeals in the registlation

books required to be kept by-the Trustee as the registered owner hereof at the close of business as

of the fifteenth ( 1 5th) auy of *," rnonth next preceding each interest payment date, such interest to

be paid by check mailedby first class mail on each such interest payment date to such registered

owner at his or her addreis as it appears on such books, except that in the case of a registered

owner of one million dollar.s ($t,OOb,oO0) or more in principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding,

payment shall be made at such owner's option by wire transfel on each such interest payment date

of immediately available funds to an acciunt in a bank or trust company or savings bank that is a

member of the Federal Reserve System and that is located in the continental United States of

America according to written instructions provided by such ownel to the f'rustee at least fifteen

(15) days before such interest payment date. The principal of and redemption premium, if any, on

this Bond shall be payable oniy-to the person whose name appears in such registration books as

the register.d owner h.reof, such principal and redemnt]o.n premium, if any, to be paid only on the

surre'der of this Bold at the corporate Trust office of the Trustee at maturity or on redemption

prior 1o maturitY.

Notwithstandilg the foregoing, the Trustee may agree with the Holder of this Bond

that such Holder may, in lieu of sun'endering the same for a new Bond, endorse on this Bond a

record of pafiial payment of the principal of this Bond as foilows:

PAYMENTS ON ACCOUNT OF PRINCIPAL

Principal Balance of PrinciPal

Amount Paid Amount UnPaid
Signature
of HolderPayment Date

This Bond is one of a dulY authorized issue of Bonds in the aggregate principal

amount of dollars ($[Par Amount]) issued by the Cornrlunity Facilities District

located irr the City of Folsom (the "City"), designated the "City of Folsom Community Facilities

District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch ) Inrprovernetrt Area No. 2 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2024" (the

"Bonds"), which Bonds are issued uuder and pursuant to the Mello-Roos CommunttY Facilities

Act of 1982, as ameuded (being Sections 53311 et seq. of the Goverrunent Code of the State of

California), and all iaws amendatory thereof ol supplenrerrtal

4 I 65-6t30-1381 a

A-2

thereto (the "Law") and under and

Page 160

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



pursuant to the provisions of an Inclenttire dated as of January 7,2024 (the "Indenture") betweeu

tlre Comrnunity Faciiities Distr.ict and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as Trustee,

all of like tenor and date (except for such va|iations, if any, as may be required to designate varying

numbers, maturities, inteiest rates or redernption provisions), and all capitalized terms used herein

not otherwise defi1ed shall have the rneanings contained in the indenture. All the Bonds are

equally and ratably secured in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Indenture (copies

of which are on file at the office of the City Clerk of the City and at the Corporate Trust Office of

the Trustee), and reference is hereby made to the Law and to the Indenture and any and all

amendments thereof and supplements thereto for a description of the terms on which the Bonds

are issued and for the rights of tn. registered owners of the Bonds; and all the terms of the Law

and the Indenture are hereby incorporated herein and constitute a contract between the Community

Facilities District and the registered owner from time to time of this Bond, to all the provisions of

which the registered owner of tnit Bond, by his or her acceptance hereof, agrees and consents; and

each taker and subsequent registerecl owner hereof shall have recourse to all the provisions of the

Law and the Indelture and shall be bound by all the terms and conditions thereof-

The Bonds are issued to provide funds to pay costs of the acquisition and

construction of the Facilities. The Bonds aie special tax obligations of the Community Facilities

District and the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds are

payable solely from tire proceedi of the Special Tax, net of Priority Administrative Expenses, and

certain other funds, as provided in the Indenture, and the Community Facilities District is not

obligated to pay them except fi.om the proceeds of the Special Tax, net of Priority Administrative

Explnses,,ia su"6 other funds. The General Fund of the City and the funds of the community

Facilities District are not liable and neither the full faith and credit of the Community Facilities

District nor the City are pledged for the payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption

premiums, if any, on the bondr, and no tax or assessment other than the Special Tax shall ever be

levied or collected to pay the interest on or principal of or redemption premiums, if any, on the

Bonds. The Bonds ur"not secured by a legal ol equitable pledge of or charge, lien or encumbrance

upon any property of the Community Facilities District or any of its income or receipts except the

pio"".a, of t-rr. Special Tax, net of Priority Aclministrative Expenses, and such other funds, and

neither the payment of the interest o:r or principal of or redemption prerniums, if any, on the Bonds

is a generai a.Ut, liability or obligation of the Comrrunity Facilities District.

The Bonds maturing on September 1,201-], are subject to mandatory redemption

by the Comrnulity Facilities District prioi to their rnaturity date in part on September 1 in each of

the years 21l)ilirough 20L_), both years inclusive; and the Bonds maturing on September l,
Z1Ll, are s'bject to ilandatoty redemption by the Community Facilities District prior to their

*ut*-iiy date in part o1 September I in each of the years 20[ ] through 20L-], both years

inclusive, in each case solely fi'orn Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments deposited in the

Sinking Fund Subaccount, upon rnailecl notice as hereinafter provided, at a redemption price of

o'e hundred percent (100%)'of the principal amount thereof called for redemption together with

accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption'

The Bonds ar-e subject to optional redemption by the Community Facilities District

prior to their respective maturity dates as a whole ol in part on any date on or after September 1,

)oL'*-], from funds clerived by the Commnnity Facilities District from any source other than such

Miiim'nr Si*king Funcl Accotrnt Payments deposited in the Sinking Fund Subaccount or such

4 165-(,930-.18lt3 5

A-3
Page 161

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



prepaynellts of the Special Tax, upon mailed notice as hereinafter provided, at the foilowing

r.edemption pdces (computed upon ih" principal amount of the Bonds or portions thereof called

lor r.edemption) togethei with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption, to wit:

rc3% if redeemed on any date on or after September 1, 20L_]
through August 31,2A1 1;

102Vo if redeemed on any date from September 1, 20L-] through

August 31,20[ 
-l;

101% if redeemed on any date from September 1,20f I through

August 31,2011; and

rcA%if redeemed on September l,20LJ and any date thereafter.

The Bonds are subject to extraordinary redemption by the Community Facilities

District prior.to their lespective maturity dates, as a whole or in part on any interest payment date

on and after September l, 201 1, from funds derived by the Community Facilities District from

prepayments oi the Special Ta>! upon mailed notice as hereinafter provided, at the following

iedemption prices (computed upon the principal amount of the Bonds or portions thereof called

for redemption) togethei with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption, to wit:

103% if redeemed on any interest payment date on or after

September 1, 20f I through March 1, 20[-];

102% if redeemed on an interest payment date on Septernber 1,

20|- I or March 1, 20L-l;

10]rh if redeemed on an interest payment date on September l,
201 1or March l, 20[-]; and

100% if redeemed on September 1,20L] or any interest payment

date thereafter.

If less than all the Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed as a result of prepayments

of the Special Tax at any one time, the Bonds shall be redeemed pro rata by maturity. If less than

all the dutstanding Bonds are to be redeemed at the option of the Community Facilities District at

any one time, the Bonds of the latest maturity date or dates shall be redeemed prior to or

si'rultaneously with the redemption of the Bonds maturing prior thereto, and if less than all the

Outstanding Iionds of any one inaturity date are to be redeemed at any one time, the Trustee shall

select the Bolds or the portions thereof of such maturity date to be redeemed in integral multiples

of five thousand dollars ($5,000) in a manner that it deems appropriate and fair.

Notice of r"edemption of this Bond or any portion hereof shall be mailed by the

Trustee to the registered o*n.. hereof and to those securities depositories and securities

infnrmatiol services selected by the Community Facilities District in accordance with the

I'de'ture. but neither.lailure to receive any such mailed notice nor any immaterial defect contained

therein shall affect the sufJiciency or validity of such ploceedings for redemption. Any notice of

4 r 65-6930-3Slii 5

A-4
Page 162

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



optional redemption may be rescinded by wlitten notice given by the Community Facilities District

to tlie Trustee no later than thlee (3) Business Days prior to the date specified for redernption. The

Trustee shall give notice of r-escission of the notice of optional redemption or non-satisfaction of

a'y conditioni specified in the notice of optional redernption as soolt as practicabie to the same

parties and in the same manner as the notice of redernption was given pursuant to the Indenture.

If notice of redemption has been duly given and not rescinded as aforesaid and

money sufficient for the payment of the principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on, together

with interest to the redemption date on, this Bond or portion thereof so called for redemption has

been irrevocably deposited with the Trustee, then this Bond or the por"tion theleof to be ledeemed

shall, on the redemption date designated in such notice, become due and payabie at the above-

described redemption price; and frorn and after the date so designated interest on this Bond or the

portion thereof to be redeemed shall cease to accrue and the registered owner of this Bond shall

iruu" no rights in respect hereof except to receive paymeut of the redemption price of this Bond or

the portiorithereof to be redeemed, and upoll surrender of this Bond if redeemed in parl only, the

Community Facilities District shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver to the

registered o*n", he1eof at the expense of the Community Facilities District a new Bond or Bonds

equal in aggregate principai amount to the unredeetned portion of this Bond so surrendered.

The Comrnunity Facilities District has covenanted that, so long as any Bonds are

Outstalding, it will annually levy the Special Tax against all Taxable Property in the Improvement

Area and.ttuk. provision for the collection of the Special Tax in amounts which will be sufficient,

together with the money then on deposit in the Redemption Account, after making reasonable

allowances for contingencies and errors in the estimates, to yield proceeds equal to the amounts

required for compliance with the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms contained in the

Indenture, and wirich in any event wiil be sufficient to pay the interest on and principal of and

Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments for and redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds as

they becorne due and payable and to replenish each Bond Reserve Account established under the

Indenture and to p*a uil current Expenses and Services as they become due and payable in

accordance with the provisions and terms of the Indenture'

The Bonds are issuable in the fonn of'fully registered bonds. The registered owner

of any Bond or Bonds may surrender the same (together with a written instrument of transfer

satisfactory to the Trustee duly executed by the registered owner or his or her duly authorized

attorney) in exchange for an equal aggregate priricipal amount of Bonds of the same series and

maturiiy date in thekanner, suLject to the conditions and upon payment of the charges provided

in the Indenture.

The registration of this Bond is transferable on the registration books kept by the

Trustee by the registered owner hereof or by liis or ]rer duly authorized attorney upon surrender of
this Bondtogetherwith awritten instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Trustee duly executed

by the registJred owner or his or her duly authorized attolney, and theleupon a new Bond or Bonds

of the same series and maturity date in the same aggregate principal amount will be issued to the

transferee in exchange therefor in the rnanner, subject to the conditions and terms and upon

payme't of the charges pr.ovided in the Indenture. The Community Facilities District and the

Trustee shall be entitled fo conclusively treat the person in wlrose name this Bond is registered as

4I (r-i-6930-18tt3.5

A-5
Page 163

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of, oI on account of, the principal

heleof and redemption premium, if auy, hereon and for aii other purposes'

The rights and obligations of the Cornmunity Facilities District and of the registered

owners of the BondsLay be amended at any time in the marurer, to the extent and upon the terms

provided in the Indentuie, and in certain circumstances without the consent of such registered

o*rr.rr, but no such amendment shall (1) extend the maturity of this Bond or t'educe the intelest

rate hereon or otherwise alter or impair the obligation of the Community Facilities District to pay

the interest heleon or principal hereof or Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payment herefor or

redemption premium, if any, hereon at the time and place and at the rate and in the curency and

from tire funds provided heiein without the express written consent of the registered owner of this

Bond, or (2) pe'mit the issuance by the Community Facilities District of any obligations payable

fromihe pr.oceeds of the Special tax other than as provided in the Indenture, or jeopardizelhe

ability ofitre Community Facilities District to levy and collect the Special Tax, or (3) reduce the

p"r.*tug" of Bonds required for the written consent to an amendment of the Indenture, or (4)

modiff any rights or obligations of the Trustee without its prior written assent thereto; all as more

fully set forth in the Indenture.

The Bonds do not constitute an indebtedness of the Community Facilities District

within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation or restriction, and neither the

City Council of the City nor the Community Facilities District nor any officer or employee thereof

ol. of the City shall be iiable for the payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption

premiums, if any, on the Bonds otherwise than from the proceeds of the Special Tax, net of Priority

Administrative Expenses, and such other funds, as provided in the Indenture.

This Bond shall not be entitled to any benefits under the Indenture or become valid

or obligatory for any pul.pose until the cerlificate of authentication and registration hereon

eldorsed shall have been manually signed by an authorized signatory of the Trustee'

It is hereby certified that all acts, conditions and things required by law to exist, to

have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond do exist'

have trappened and have been peiformed in due time, form and manner as required by law and that

the amount of this Bond, tog.ilr., with all other obligations of the Community Facilities District,

does not exceed any lirnit piescribed by the iaws of the State of california and is not in excess of

the principal amount of the Bonds pelmitted to be issued under the Indenture.

4 I 65-6930-3883 5

A-6
Page 164

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City cf Folsom Community Facilities District

No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) has caused this Bond to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the

manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor of the City and countersigned by the manual or '
facsimile signature of tf,e City Clerk of the City, and has caused this Bond to be dated [Closing

Datel.

City Clerk of the City of Folsom

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES
DTSTRICT NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH)

Mayor of the City of Folsom
By

Countersigned

4 l 6s-6930-3883.5

A-7
Page 165

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



IFORM OF TRUSTEE'S CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION
TO APPEAR ON BONDSI

This is one of the Bonds desclibed in the within-mentioned Indenturc which has

been authenticated on [Closing Date].

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION,

as Trustee

By
Authorized Signatory

tFoRM OF ASSIGNMENT TO APPEAR ON BONDSI

For valge received the undersigned do(es) hereby sell, assign and transfer unto

the within Bond and do(es) hereby irevocably constitute and appoint

attorney to transfer the same on the bond register of the Trustee, with full power

of substitution in the Premises.

Dated:

SIGNATURE GUARANTEED BY:

Note: Signatures must be gualanteed by an "eligible guarantor institution" meeting

the requiiements of membership or participation in the Security Transfer Agent

Medaliion Program ("STAMP") or such other "signature guarantee program" as

may be determlned in substitution for STAMP, all in accordance with the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Social Security Number, Taxpayer Iclentification Number or other identifying

number of Assignee; , 

-
4 l 65-6930-3883 5

A-8
Page 166

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



ATTACHMENT 5

Page 167

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



OH&S DRAFT
llt28l23

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED l-*** *---,1,2023

NEW ISSUE-BOOK-ENTRY ONLY NOT RATED

In the opinion of Orrich Herrington & Sutclffi LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority, based upon an analysis of existing

laws, regulationi, rulrngi and court deciiions, and assuming, among other matters, the accuracy of certain representations and

compliaice with certaii covenants, interest on lhe Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under

Seciion' 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and is exemptfrom State of Caldornia persanal income taxes' In thefurther

opinion of Bind Counsel, interes! on lhe Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual alternative

minimum tax. Bond Counse! observes that interest on the Bonds included in adjusted tinancial statemenl income of certcin

corporations is not excludedfrom the federal corporate alternative minimum tax. Bond Caunsel expresses no opinian regarding

any ather tax consequences ielated to-the ownership or disposttion of, or lhe amount, accrual or receipl ofinterest on' tlte Bonds-

See "TAX MATTERS."

$10,250,000'
FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.23
(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO.2

SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2024

Dated: Date of Delivery Due: September l, as shown on inside front cover

The Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Reienue Bonds, Series 2024 (the "Bonds") are being issued by the Folsom Ranch Financing

Auihorty (the .,Authorityi) to provide funds to finance the purchase of limited obligation special tax bonds (the "Local

obligations;"), issued by tihe'City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "Districf '). The purchase

price"ofthe Local Obligationr *ill be used to finance the acquisition ofcertain,public facilities, fund a debt service reserve account'

iund capitalized intereJt on a portion of the Bonds through September 1, 2024, and pay certain costs of issuance of the Local

Obligations and Bonds.

The Bonds are being issued by the Authority pursuant to a Trust Agreement (the " trust Agreement") among tho Districl"

the Authority, and U.S. BanliTrust Company, National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee") and will be secured by a pledge of

the Trust Esiate, as defined herein. See "SECURITYAND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FORTFIE BONDS'"

The Bonds are special, limited obtigations of the Authority. The Bonds are payable solely from and secured by the Trust

Estate of the Authority pledged under the Trust Agreement, consisting primarily of payments received by the Authority from the

District under the Local Obligations, which payments are secured by a lien of the Special Taxes (defined herein) levied upon

property within Improvement Ir€a No, 2 of thl District (the "lmprovement Area"), as more fully described herein. Payments under

it r t o.ut Obligations are calculated to be sufficient to permit the Authority to pay the principal of, and interest on, the Bonds when

due.

The Local obligations lndenture (defined herein) lor the Local obligations establishes a debt service reserve fund (the
..Local Obligations Reserie Fund") with a debt service reserve account therein for the Local Obligations (the "Local Obligations

Reserve Account"). pursuant to the Local Obligations indenture, a deposit is being made to the Local Obligations Reserve Account

for the Local Obligations. Amounts available from the Local Obligations Reserve Account are not available to make up a

deficiency for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR

THE BONDS-Terms of the Local Obligations-Local Obligations Reserve Account-"'

The Bonds are being issued only as fully registered bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The

Depository Trust Company, N-ew york, NLw York ("DTC") and interest thereon is payable on March I and September I of each

y"*, .o**.ncing Sepiem-ber l, zAZ4, by the Trustee to DTC. DTC will in turn remit principal or redemption price and intots-st_to

irr. brc particip-anb; which will in tum remit such principal or redemption price and interest to the Beneficial owners of the

Bonds, as descrited herein. DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds, Individual purchases will be made in book-entry

only form in the principal amount of g5,000 or integral multiple thereof. Purchasers of the Bonds will not receive instruments

repiesenting their intereit in the Bonds purchased. See APPENDIX F-"DTC AND THE BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYS'|EM'"

The Bonds are subject to optional, extraordinary and mandatory redemption as described herein.' See "THE BONDS-
Redemption Provisions."

NEITI{ER THE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR'IHE TAXING POWER OF THE CTI'Y OF- FOLSOM (THE "CITY''),

THE AUTHOruTY, THE STATE OF CAI,iFORNIA OR ANY OTHER POLITICAL SUBDIVISION TI]EREOF IS PLEDGED

TO THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS. THE AUTHORITY HAS NO TAXING POWER. EXCEPT FORTHE TRUST

ESTATE, NO OTHER REVENUES OR TAXES ARE PLEDCED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS. ]'HE BONDS ARE

t 
Preliminary, subject to change.

Page 168

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



NOT GENERAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY, THE DISTRICT OR THE CITY, BUT ARE LIMITED

OBI.IGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE TRUST ESTATE, DERIVED PRIMARILY FROM

PAYMENT ON THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS FROM THE PAYMENT OF THE SPECIAL TAXES LEVIED WITHIN THE

IMPROVEMENT AREA AS MORE FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN.

The Bonds are not rated by any rating agency. Investment in the Bonds involves a substantial degree of risk that

may not be appropriate for some investors. See "CERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS" for a discussion of special risk

factors that should be considered, in addition to the other mafters set forth herein, in evaluating the investment quality ofthe Bonds.

This cover page contains information for general reference only and it is not a complete summary of the Bonds. Investors

should read the entire O?ficial Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision.

Maturity Schedule, Interest Rates, Prices and CUSIPS
(See inside front cover)

The Bonds are offered when, as and if issued, subject to the approval as to their legality by Onick, Henington & Sutcliffe

LLp, Bond Counsel to the Authority, and cefiain other conditions. Certain legal matters will be passed on for the Authority and the

District by the City Attorney. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriter by Stradiing, Yocca, Carlson & Rau&,

a professional Corporation. It is anticipated that the Bonds in book-entry form will be available for delivery through the facilities of
The Depository Trust Company in New York, New York on or about I 1,2024'

Piper Sandler & Co.

The date of this Official Statement is .2424

Page 169

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



$10,250ooo0.

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.23

(FOLSOM RANCTT) TMPROVEMENT AREA NO- 2

SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BOIIDS
SERIES 2024

MATURITY SCHEDULE,INTEREST RATES, PRICES AND CUSIPS

Maturity
(September l)

Principal
Amount

Interest
Rate Price

CUSIPNo.t
(344414)

s o/o

$ % Term Bond maturing 

-

o/oTerm Bond maturing 

-

1,z}-Price 
-Vo 

(CUSIP No.r 344414-)
l, 20 _Price 

-Yo 
(CUSIP No.t 3444 14J

$

t
Preliminary, subject to change.

CUSIP@ is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Association. CUSIP Global Services (CGS) is managed on

behalf of the American Bankers Association by FactSet Research systems Inc. Copyright@ 2023 CUSIP Global services'

All rights reserved. CUSipcl data herein is irovided by CUSF Global Services. This data is not intended to creat€ a

database and does not serve in -y *uy as a substitute foi the cGS .dryb1;e CUSIP numbers are provided for convenience

of reference only. The Authority, the bistrict, the Underwriter, and the cily take no responsibility lor the accuracy of such

numbers.

Page 170

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the Authority, the District or the

Underwriter to give any information or to make any representations other than as contained in this official

Statement, and if given ir made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as having been^

authorized by any of the foretoing. This official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of

an offer to buy, nor shall ther; be;ny sale of the Bonds by any person, in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for

such person to make such offer, soliiitation or sale. fnisbffrciat Statement is not to be construed as a conffact with

the purchasers of the Bonds. Statements contained in this official statement which involve estimates' forecasts or

maffers of opinion, whether or not expressly so described herein, are intended solely as such and are not to be

construed as representations of fact.

The information set forth herein has been obtained from sources which are believed to be reliable, but such

information is neither guaranteed as to ac'curacy or completeness, nor is it to be constued as a representation of such

by the Authority, the District or the Underwriter. The information and expressions of opinion stated herein are

suUlect to change without notice; and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder

shall, under any circumstances, create any implication thit there has been no change in the affairs of the Authorify,

the District or the propefly owners in theimpiovement Area, or in the condition of the property in the Improvement

Area, since the date hereof-

The summaries and references to the Trust Agreement, the Mello-Roos Act' the Local Obligations

Indenture and to other statutes and documents refered to herein do not purport to be comprehensive or definitive

and are qualified in their entireties by reference to each such statute and document. This Official Statement

including any amendment or supplement hereto is intended to be deposited with one or more depositories'

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement' The

underwriter has reviewed the information in this oirrciat Statement in accordance with, and as part of, their

responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this

transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information'

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVERALLOT OR EFFECT

TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PzuCE OF THE BONDS AT A LEVEL

ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING' IF

COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. THE LINDERWRITER MAY OFFER AND SELL

THE BONDS TO CERTAIN DEALERS AND OTHERS AT PzuCES LOWER THAN THE PUBLIC OFFERING

PRICES SET FORTH ON THE INSIDE FRONT COVER PAGE HEREOF AND SUCH PUBLIC OFFERING

PRICES MAY BE CHANGED FROM TIME TO TIME BY THE UNDERWRITER.

THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECUzuTIES ACT OF 1933' AS

AMENDED, IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS

CONTAINED IN SUCH ACT. THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED OR QUALIFIED UNDER THE

SECUzuTIES LAWS OF ANY STATE.

certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this official Statement constitute forward-

looking statements. such statements are generally identlRable by the terminology used such as 'oplano" "expect,"
,.estimate,,, ,.budgef' or similar words. Tlie achievement of certain results or other expectations contained in such

forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause

actual results, performance or achievements described to be materially different from any future results,

performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements'

Page 171

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



UNSERT REGIONAL AND CITY CONTEXT MAPSI

Page 172

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNTY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCIT)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 2

llnsert aerial photosl

photos taken [ ] ,2023.The approximate boundaries of the Improvement Area have been outlined'

Page 173

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



AUTHORITY GOVERNING BOARD/CITY COUNCIL

Rosario Rodriguez, Chair / MaYor

YK Chalamcherla, Vice Chair / Yice Mayor
Sarah Aquino, Member / Councilmember

Mike Kozlowski, Member / Councilmember
Anna Rohrbaugh, Member / Councilmember

AUTI{ORITY/CITY STAFF

Elaine Andersen, Executive Director / City Manager

Stacey Tamagni, Treasurer / Finance Director
Steven Wang, Esq., General Counsel / City Attorney

Christa Freemantle, Secretary / City Clerk

SPECIAL SERVICES

BOND AND DISCLOSURE COT]NSEL

Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP

TRUSTEE

U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association

APPRAISER

Integta Realty Resources

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR

Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc

SPECIAL TAX CONSULTANT

NBS

Page 174

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



INTRODUCTION.........
General
Authority for Issuance

Purpose......
Security for the Bonds.............
The Improvement Area ......'....

Properly Ownership and

Development Status

Property Values........
Bondholders Risks
Continuing Disclosure..
Summaries Not Definitive........

FOLSOM PLAN AREA ........

General Folsom Plan Area Plan

of Finance..
Public Facilities Financing PIan.......,...
Folsom Plan Area Development ...'."..".

PLAN OF FINANCE..............
Facilities to be Financed.

Description of the Bonds.
Redemption Provisions

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES

OF FUNDS
DEBT SERVTCE SCHEDULE
SECURITY AND SOURCES OF

PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS
General
Flow of Funds ...............
Description of Local
Obligations
Issuance of Local Obligations
Payment of the Local
Obligations........
Local Obligations Flow of

Special Tax Authorization.'.'....
Covenant for Foreclosure......'...'..'.....
No Required Advances from
Available Surplus Funds
Terms of the Local Obligations
Special Tax Analysis'.'...'.."...'.
Special Tax Calculation ............,,,.... "
The Teeter Plan ...........

THE AUTHORITY.......
THE CITY.
THE IMPROVEMENT AREA...........,

General Description and

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

10

14

ls

17

t7

Page

Properly Values........ ..'.'..'38
Value-to-Lien Analysis.....................'.3 8

Estimated Tax Burden on Single
Family Home ...........'.'.'..'40
Overlapping Debt........................'......'4 I
Historical Special Tax Levy ............-'.42

PROPOSED PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT........... .......42

Development Entitlements.................. 42

Properly Ownership .......'.51
Development Plan and Status of
Development.....................................-.5 5

Development Plan of Finance.,......,....60

CERTAIN RISKS TO
BONDHOLDERS ..................61

Levy of the Special Tax.....................'61
Collection of Special Tax 62

Concentration of Ownership ...,........... 63

Payment of the Special Tax is
Not a Personal Obligation of a
Property Owner.........
Potential Early Redemption of
Bonds from Prepaid Special
Taxes.............
Special Tax Delinquencies.................
Teeter Plan Termination
Land Values .................
Appraisal Risks..........
Exempt Properties...
Maximum Special Tax............ .......,.... 66

No Acceleration Provision 66

Loss of Tax Exemption
Parity Taxes and Special
Assessments.................
Future Private Indebtedness...
Disclosures to Future
Purchasers
Bankruptcy
FDIC/Federal Government
Interests in Properties..........................
Zoning and Land Use Decisions.........
Ballot Initiatives and Measures..,........
Shapiro v. San Diego
Recent Changes to Federal
Income Tax Law
Risks of Real Estate Secured

Investments Generally
Current Challenges to the
Homebuilding Industry ..................'.... 7 1

5

6
7
8

8

9
9
9

6

63

64
64

64
64
65

65

66

68

68
70
70
70

7l

7r

19

20
22
z3

24

l8
l8

',,.'.,.,'.'67
.,.,.''..,''67

............67

Location

Page 175

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Increasing Mortgage Interest
Rates and Banking UncertaintY
Failure to Develop.
No Independent Review of
Valuation or Viability of
Completed Projects
Potential Impact of Global
Health Crises or Concerns..
Cybersecurity .......

Geologic, Topographic and

Climatic Conditions
Endangered Species

APPENDIX A -
APPENDIX B -
APPENDIX C -APPENDIX D -APPENDIX E -APPENDIX F -APPENDIX G -

TABLE OF CONTENTS

(continued)

Page

72
naIL

...........73

73
74

74
76

Page

Hazardous Substances.. .......................7 6

Naturally Occurring Asbestos.'... ...'..,.7 7

LEGAL MATTERS .......,",............77
TAX MATTERS.....
NO LITIGATION...
NO RATING...........
MUNICIPAL ADVISOR .......................,........80

I.JNDERWzuTING 80

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE............."......... 8 I
The District 81

The Homebuilders............,...,...... "....... 8 1

MISCELLANEOUS 82

77

.80

.80

AMENDED RATE, METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT AND MANNER OF

COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAX
ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION RELATING TO THE

CITY OF FOLSOM
SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL DOCUMENTS
FORMS OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKINGS
PROPOSED FORM OF OPTNION OF BOND COL|NSEL

DTC AND THE BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM
APPRAISAL

ll
Page 176

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



$1o,250,ooo.
FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTIIORITY

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCIT) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO.2
SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS

SERIES 2024

TNTRODUCTION

The description and summaries of various documents hereinafter set forth do not purport to be

comprehensive or definitive, and reference is made to each document for the complete details of all terms

and londitions. All statements herein are qualified in their entirety by reference to each document' All

capitalized terms used in this Official Statement and not otherwise defined herein have the same meaning

as in the Trust Agreement (defined below) or the Local obligations Indenture (defined below), as

applicable.

General

This Official Statement, including the cover page, the inside cover page and the Appendices

hereto, is provided to furnish certain information in connection with the issuance and sale by the Folsom

Ranch Financing Authority (the "Authority") of $10,250,000' aggregate principal amount of Folsom

Ranch Financing Authority'City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2A24 $he "Bonds")'

Authority for Issuance

The Bonds will be issued pursuant to the provisions of the Trust Agreement (the "Trust

Agreement,,) among the Authority, tire Cify of Folsom Community Facilities District No' 23 (Folsom

Rinch) lthe 
,.District"), and U.S. bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"),

as authoiized pu..uaniio a resolution of the Authority. The Bonds will be issued pursuant to the Marks-

Roos Local Bond pooling Act of 1985, as amended, constituting Article 4 of Chapter 5, Division 7,

Title I of the GovernmeniCod* of the State of California. The Bonds will be issued as fully registered

bonds in book-entry form, in denominations of $5,000 each or any integral multiple thereof and will be

dated the date of ditivery thereof and bear interest at the rates set forth on the inside front cover page

hereof. See "THE BoNDs-Description of the Bonds'"

Purpose

The Bonds are being issued to finance the purchase of the limited obligation special tax bonds

(the ,.Local Obligations,), Issued by the District pursuant to an Indenture (the "Local Obligations

indenture',) between the bistrict und u.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee (the
,.Local Obiigations Trustee'o). The purchase price of the Local Obligations will be used to finance the

acquisition Jf certain public facilities, fund a debt service reserye account, fund capitalized interest on a

ponion of the Bonds through September 1, 2024, and pay certain costs of issuance of the Local

bbligations and Bonds. See ''PLAN OF FINANCE" and "THE IMPROVEMENT AREA."

* Preliminary, subject to change.

Page 177

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



The Local Obligations are authorized pursuant to (i) the provisions of the Mello-Roos

community Facilities Acl of 1982, as amended, constituting section 53311, et seq. of the california

Government code (the ,.Mello-Roos Act"), (ii) a resolution of the city Council of the City of Folsom (the

..City,,) as legislative body of the District'adopted on December 12,2023, and (iii)the Local Obligations

Indenture. The Local obiigations are payable from the special taxes authorized to be levied and collected

annually upon taxabl" ,"uf prop"rty within Improvement Area No. 2 of the District (the "Improvement

Area,,). See 
.,SECURITY ANi SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BOND$-Qsns1nl."

Security for the Bonds

The Bonds are special, limited obligations of the Authority, payable from and secured by the

Trust Estate (as defined herein) received by the Authority consisting primarily of payments received from

the District as debt service payments on the Local obligations.

The Local obligations will be issued with an annual scheduled debt service that results in at least

ll00/o annual debt."rii"" coverage for the Local Obligations from Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenues for Developed Property as of october 19,2023, and Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation Minirnu* Facilities Revenues for the remaining Taxable Property expected to be

generated in the Improvement Area, net of Priority Administrative Expenses (each as defined below).

ittho,rgn the scheduled payments under the Local obligations are sufficient, in the aggregate, toprovide

the Aui-hority with -on"y, to pay the principal of, premium,l! uny, and interest on the Bonds when due

(see ..sECU:RITy AND souRaEs oF PAYMENT FoR THE BONDS"), investment in the Bonds

involves a substantial degree of risk that may not be appropriate for some investors' See "CERTAIN

zuSKS TO BONDHOLDERS" below.

The Local Obligations are secured by a pledge of special taxes (including both the Facilities

Special rax and the Seriices Special rax for ih" Imp.ov"ment Area, each as defined herein) received by

the District (the ,.Special Tax" or the "special Taxes," as the context requires) (including any prepayment

thereof and proceeis from foreclosure sales pursuant to the Local obligations Indenture), net of Priority

Administrative Expenses, and the Local Obligations Reserve Account established for the Local

obligations under tie Local obligations Indenture. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES oF PAYMENT

FOR THE BONDS." The Special Taxes are included on the regular property tax bill sent to the record

owners of taxable properties within the Improvement Area. The District has covenanted in the Local

Obligations Indenture to commence judicial foreclosure proceedings against property with delinquent

SpeJiat Taxes and to diligently pur.u" such proceedings to completion; provided, however, that the

District is not obligated uider the Local obligations Indenture to commence such judicial foreclosure

proceedings on any delinquent installment of the Special Tax for any Fiscal Year in_which the District has

received one hundred percent (100%) of the amount of such installment from the County of Sacramento

(the ,.county,,; pursuant to the Teeter Plan (described below). See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF

PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS-payment of the Local obligations," "-special Tax Authorization,"
('-Qgvglnnt for Foreclosure" and 

((-Jhg Teeter Plan'"

The Special Taxes secure only the Local Obligations. For this reason, a delinquency or default in

the payment oispecial raxes could cause a default in the payments of principal and interest on the Bonds

if moneys in the Local obligations Reserve Account are insufficient to make up the deficit in debt service

for the Local obligations caused by such delinquency or nonpayment.

NEITHER THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE CITY'

THE DISTRICT, THE AUTHOzuTY, THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA (THE "STATE") OR ANY

OTHER POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE

BONDS. THE AUTHORITY HAS NO TAXING POWER. EXCEPT FOR THE TRUST ESTATE' NO

2 Page 178

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



OTHER REVENUES OR TAXES ARE PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS. THE

BONDS ARE NOT GENERAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY, THE DISTRICT OR THE

CITY, BUT ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE

TRUST ESTATE, DERIVED PRIMARILY FROM DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS ON THE LOCAL

OBLIGATIONS FROM THE PAYMENT OF THE SPECIAL TAXES LEVIED WITHTN THE

IMPROVEMENT AREA AS MORE FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN.

The Improvement Area

General. The Improvement Area is located in the southem portion of the City, east of East

Bidwell Street, north of Irriangini parkway and south of U.S. Highway 50 and consists of over 49 total

gross acres, of which approximately 31 acres are subjecttothe Special Tax. Presently, the Improvement

Lrea includes properties in varying stages of development, including finished lots, homes under

construction, and completed homes.-collectively, these properties are planned to include 291 single

family homes. The Improvement Area also includes approximately 5.8 acres that are expected to be

devel,oped into a tsz-unit affordable housing site that will receive a welfare'exemption and be exempt

from the Special Tax.

Formation Proceedings. The District was formed by the City pursuant to the Mello-Roos Act'

The Mello-Roos Act was en-acted by the California legislature to provide an alternative method of

financing certain public capital facilities and services, especially in developing ar€as of the State. Any

locd agJncy (as defined in the Mello-Roos Act) may establish a community facilities district to provide

for and finance the cost of eligible public facilities, development-related fees, and services. Subject to

approval by two-thirds of the votes cast at an election and compliance with the other provisions of the

v"tto-noo. Act, a legislative body of a local agency may issue bonds for a comrnunity facilities district

and may levy and collect a special tax within such district to repay such indebtedness'

pursuant to the Mello-Roos Act, the City Council undertook proceedings to form the District,

initially designating six separate improvement areas therein, including the lmprovement Area, and called

an election to authorize tire incurring of bonded indebtedness and authorize the levy of special taxes

within the District. on May 26,2020, elections were held within the District for each improvement area

therein at which the eligible voters in each improvement area approved the levy of special taxes in

accordance with the respictive Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax for such irnprovement

area. In addition, the etigiUte voters in the Improvement Area authorized the issuance of bonds in an

amount not to exceed $36,000,000 for the Improvement Area. In December 2021, a seventh improvement

area was designated within the District, and in March 2023 change proceedings for the Improvement Area

were held, whereby the eligible voters in the Improvement Area approved an Amended Rate and Method

of Apportionment ior ciry;f Folsom community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement

Area ilJo. 2 (the ,,Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment"). The Amended Rate and Method of

Apportionment is included as APPENDIX A hereto and summarized herein under 'SECURITY AND

SOi;nCeS OF pAYMENT FOR THE BONDS - Special Tax Analysis."

Property Ownership and l)evelopment Status

The properly within the Improvement Area is under development, with homes completed and

sold to individual homeown"rs, homls under construction and being marketed to individual homeowners,

and finished lots. As of October lg,2023,the Taxable Properfy within the Improvement Area was owned

by Tri pointe Homes Holdings, [nc., a Delaware corporation ("Tri Pointe"); AG EHC II (LEN) CA 2,

L.p., u Delaware limited paJnership (the "Landbank"), as land bank for Lennar Homes of Califomia,

LLC, a Califomia limited liability company ("Lennar Homes" and, together with Tri Pointe, the
.,Homebuilders,' and each a "Homebuilder"); and individual homeowners. See "PROPOSED

J Page 179

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



pROpERTY DEVELOPMENT-Property Ownership." At full buildout, the Improvement Area is

expected to include 291 single family homes. To date, final maps have been approved and recorded for

ali Taxable Property within the Improvement Area. Also, Arcadian Improvement Company, LLC (the
,,Original Deveioper") has nearly completed all of the infrastructure development for the Improvement

AreJrequired for the construction and sale of all expected 291 homes within the Improvement Area. The

only remaining required infrastructure is the completion of a traffic signal at the intersection of Mangini

tarkway and Savannah Parkway, which is required to be fully constructed prior to the first home

o..upun"y in Village 4 within the Improvement Area. The Original Developer has commenced

construction on this traffic signal and expects to have it fully constructed and operational by March2024.

The lmprovement Area is being developed in 4 separate villages (each a "Village")' Villages l,
2, and 3 include the lots that are owned and being developed by Tri Pointe. Village 4 includes the lots

that are owned by the Landbank and that expected to be developed by Lennar Homes. Tri Pointe's lots in

the Improve."ni Ar.u are being developed and sold across two separate product lines known as Canterly

at Folsom Ranch (Village l) und Lariaiat Folsom Ranch (Villages 2 and 3). Lennar Homes'lots in the

Improvement Area are being developed and sold across a single product line known as Rockcress lI at

Folsom Ranch.

The Canterly at Folsom Ranch product line is being developed on lots of approximately 3,000

square feet and includes four separate floor plans for two-story homes ranging in size from 1,705 square

feet to 2,239 sqtare feet, each with 3-4 bedrooms and 2.5-3 bathrooms. The Lariat at Folsom Ranch

product iine is being developed on lots.of approximately 3,400 or 4,000 square feet and includes three

separate floor plansTor two-story homes ranging in size from 1,822 square feet to 2,220 sqtare feet, each

with 3-4 bedrooms and 2.5-3 bathrooms. The Rockcress II at Folsom Ranch product line is being

developed on lots of approximately 3,015 square feet and includes 4 separate floor plans for two-story

homes ranging in size-ftrom 1,632 square feet to 2,024 square feet, with 3 to 4 bedrooms and 2.5 to 3

bathrooms.

As of October 79,2023 (the date of value of the Appraisal), the ImprovementArea included 41

completed homes that had closed escrow to individual homeowners, an additional 8 completed homes that

had not yet closed escrow to individual homeowners, 63 homes under construction (including 4 model

homes being constructed by Lennar Homes), and 179 finished lots without vertical home construction'

Homes under contract may not result in closed escrows as sales contracts are subject to cancellation.

Property Values

An appraisal of the Taxable Property (as defined in the Local Obligations Indenture) within the

Improvemenf A..u dated November 20, 2023 (the "Appraisal") was prepared by Integra Realty

Resources, Sacramento, California (the "Appraiser"). The purpose of the appraisal was to estimate the

aggregate value of the fee simple interest, subject to the special tax and based upon a hypothetical

r6nOition, for all of the Taxable Property within the Improvement Area. Subject to the assumptions,

hypothetical condition and limiting conditions contained in the Appraisal, the Appraiser estimated that the

Taxable Property within the Improvement Area had an estimated aggregate value of $84,653,000 as of
october 19,2a23. see "THE IMPROVEMENT AREA-Property Values."

Bondholders Risks

Investment in the Bonds involves a substantial degree of risk that may not be appropriate for

some investors. For a discussion of certain considerations relevant to an investment in the Bonds, in

addition to the other matters set forth herein, see "CERTAIN zuSKS TO BONDHOLDERS." Investors

4 Page 180

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



should read the entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed

investment decision.

Continuing Disclosure

The District will agree to provide certain annual financial information and operating data by not

later than April 1 in each y"u., 
"o..encing 

April i, 2024 (the "Annual Report"), and to provide notices

of the occurrence of certain enumerated events. The Annual Report and notices will be filed with the

Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board's Elecffonic Municipal Market Access database ("EMMA")'

The specific nature of the information to be contained in the Annual Report or the notices of enumerated

events is set forth in APPENDIX D-"FORMS OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE LINDERTAKINGS'"

These covenants have been made in order to assist the Underwriter in complying with S.E'C.

Rule l5c2-12.

Tri pointe and Lennar Homes will each covenant for the benefit of the Bondholders to provide

certain information relating to it and its development within the Improvement Area no later than

March3l and.september 3b in each year, commencing March 31,2024 (collectively, the "Disclosure

Reports,'), and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated events. The Disclosure Reports

anj notices will be filed with EMMA. The specific nature of the information to be contained in the

Disclosure Reports or the notices of enumerated events is set forth in APPENDIX D-"FORMS oF

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE LINDERTAKINGS." The obligations of Tri Pointe and Lennar Homes

will terminate upon the occurrence of certain events as set forth in the applicable Continuing Disclosure

Certificate, including at such time as Tri Pointe and Lennar Homes (and each of their Affiliates (as

defined in the applicible Continuing Disclosure Agreement)) own or have the option to acquire less than

54 of the residential lots within the Improvement Area.

Summaries Not Definitive

Brief descriptions of the Bonds; the Local Obligations; the security for the Bonds; the City, the

District, the Improvement Area; and the status of development within the Improvement Area are included

in this Official Statement together with summaries of certain provisions of the Bonds, the Trust

Agreement, and the Local Obligations Indenture. Such descriptions do not purport to be comprehensive

oid.finitiu". All references herein to the Trust Agreement and the Local Obligations Indenture are

qualified in their entirety by reference to such documents, copies of which are available for inspection at

the office of Trustee.

FOLSOM PLAN AREA

General Folsom Plan Area Plan of Finance

In 2001, the City commenced plans to expand its sphere of influence area to include an area south

of US Route 50. The aiea, known ur ih" Folsom Plan Area is bordered to the west by Prairie City Road,

the east by the Sacramento/El Dorado County boundary line, the north by US Route 50, and the south by

White Rock Road. In November 2004, the citizens of the City adopted Measure W ("Measure W"),

which specified certain requirements for annexing the Folsom Plan Area into the City. In June 2011, the

City adopted its Folsom plan Area Specific Plan (the "Specific Plan"). The Local Agency Formation

Commisiion approved the City's plan to annex the Folsom Plan Area on January 18,2012.

As described below, the Folsom Plan Area is an area of approximately 3,500 acres in the southem

portion of the City that has been approved for development of approximately 11,461 units of residential

ievelopment, plui 214.5 acresof commercial/industrial development (including mixed use development).

5 Page 181

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Over the build out of the propefty, the City has used and anticipates continuing to use community

facilities districts under the Melio-Roos Act to finance a large portion of the public infrastructure required

for the development, plus certain maintenance obligations of public improvements and facilities.

Two community facilities districts formed by the City to finance public infrastructure,

maintenance and services benefiting the Folsom Plan Area include Community Facilities District No. 17

(willow Hill pipeline) (,.cFD 17") and community Facilities District No. 18 (Folsom Plan Area - Area-

Wide Improvements and Service*j1"cFD l8'). cFD 17 encompasses nearly all of the properly within

the Folsom plan Area, excluding approximately 190 acres bordering El Dorado County in the eastern

portion of the City south of US nouie S0. CFD 18 encompasses all of the property within the Folsom

blan Area, overlapping all of CFD l7 and the additional 190 acres bordering El Dorado County. The city

has issued bonds for 6fn 17 in the principal amount of $6,675,000, of which $[5,575,000] are currently

outstanding. CFD 18 is authorized to issue up to $200,000,000 in bonds. The timing of issuance of

bonds for CFD 1g is dependent upon market conditions and development within the Folsom Plan Area.

The city currently anticipates thaf an initial series of CFD 18 bonds will be issued in the second quarter

of Z0Z4 tohelp finance the phase 24 water Facilities (as defined herein). See "PROPOSED PROPERTY

DEVELOpMENT-Development Entitlements-Water Supply Infrastructure." The Improvement t"u
represents approximatety t.iOVrby acres of CFD 17 and approximately 1.58% by acres of CFD 18' The

aliocable portion of bonds previlusly issued for cFD 17 and any bonds to be issued for cFD 18

constitute overlapping debt. See'THE IMPROVEMENT AREA-Overlapping Debt'"

Public Facilities Financing Plan

Measure W, adopted by City of Folsom residents in November 2004, required, among other

things, that residents north of US Route 50 not bear the cost for infrastructure and public facilities serving

the Folsom plan Area. The Cify adopted a Public Facilities Financing Plan ("PFFP") for the Folsom Plan

Area on January 14,2014. The pFFp provides an overview of how the infrastructure required for the

development ofthe Folsom plan Area will be financed and constructed and how various public facilities

will be financed and maintained to ensure that public facilities and infrastructure will be available for the

orderly development of the Folsom plan Area without cost to the residents of the City north of US

Route 50 and without an adverse impact on the service levels provided to future residents of the Folsom

Plan Area.

The pFFp contemplates that the primary sources of funding for the construction of the public

infrastructure and facilities in the Folsom Plan Area are community facilities districts, development

impact fees collected upon permit issuance (including development impact fees of the Folsom Cordova

Unified School District), diiect developer financing, and matching state school grants and other school

funding (including the school facilitiei improvement district described under "THE IMPROVEMENT

AREA]-bverlapplng Debt"). Subdivision improvements are not included as part of the PFFP

On September 8, 2015, the City approved Resolution No. 9641, in which the City Council

adopted a Nexus Study to collect certain impact fees for the Specific Plan to be collected in accordance

wittr City ordinance l.io. 1234. [n addition, on the same date, the City approved Resolution No' 9642, in

which the City Council adopted a Nexus Study for the Specific Plan Infrastructure Fees (the "SPIF") to be

collected for the Specific plan and in accordance with ordinance No. 1235 and Chapter 3.130 of the

Folsom Municipal'Code. Most recently, on January 9,2018, the City of Folsom approved Resolution

No. 10040, amending Resolution No. 9641, to adjust the initial Folsom Plan Area Development Impact

Fees. on the same-date, the City approved Reiolution No. 10059, adopting the Nexus Study Fiscal

year 2017-lg Update for the SplF, and setting the updated infrastructure fees. On July 28,2020' the City

approved Resolution No. 10491, in which th;ciry adopted the Nexus Study Fiscal Year 2a2a-2l update

for the Folsom plan Area SpIF. On this date, the City also introduced and had the first reading for City

6 Page 182

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Ordinance No. 1307, in which the City amended sections 3.130.010(JJ) and 3.130.030(E)(tXc) of the

Folsom Municipal Code pertaining to tire SPIF Set-Aside component of the SPIF. The SPIF SetAside

was amended to include a new SFIF Off-Site Water Set-Aside pomponent to repay the City for water

treatment plant costs the City had previously incurred. On August25,2020' the City conducted the

second reading and approved Ordinance No' 1307'

The estimated remaining cost of the backbone infrastructure and public facilities for the Folsom

plan Area at build-out is $403,4-82,461 (in 2020 dollars), of which the City anticipates that a portion will

be financed through the Folsom plan Area SPIF and the issuance of bonds for CFD 18, the Improvement

Area or other community facilities districts and improvement areas. This estimate is subject to a variety

of construction and *urk.t .irkr. The city and the District can provide no assurances that the overall

costs will not increase, even significantly, in the future'

phasing of Development. For purposes of setting the PFFP costs, the City projected single family

units would be sold and occupied witirin'13 years, mulii-f"amity low density units within 15 years, and

multi-family medium and high density units within 18 years'

Backbone Infrastructure. The PFFP provides for the financing or collection of impact fees for

and the conskuction of the backbone infrastructure required before construction in the Folsom Plan Area

can proceed. Specifically, the PFFP recognizes the need for roadway improvements, on-site water system

i*piou",n"nts, tff-site water system impiovements, recycled water system improvements, sanitary sewer

system improvements, storm drainage system improvements, habitat mitigation, and construction of two

fieeway inierchanges and improvements to an existing freeway interchange'

public Facilities - the Folsom plan Area. The PFFP describes plans for the financing of public

schools, parks, transit services, trails, police and fire facilities and equipment, municipal service center, a

.orpo.utio,, yard, solid waste facilitiis, a library, general capital improvements, transportation, and- a

community and aquatic center. The pFFP anticipates that the land for the public facilities will be

dedicated to the City without cost to the City'

The Folsom plan Area is currently being served by the existing fire resources of the City as well

as other Sacramento County, El Dorado county and Placer County fire agencies through mutual aid

agreements with the City. As noted in the PFFP, the City's goal is to maintain a level of service that

rJpresents a rate of I station per 12,000 population. Jhe _C-i!1 
commenced construction on the first fire

station servicingthe Folsom plan Areaduring September 2022. The City cunently expects construction

of this first fire itation to be completed during the third quafter of 2024.

Development within the Folsom Plan Area, including within the Improvement Area, is dependent

upon completion of certain of the above described infrastructure. For more information on status of

construction of improvements and development necessary for development to occur within the

Improvement Area, see "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT." See also "THE

IMPROVEMENT AREA-Overlappin g Debt'"

Folsom Plan Area DeveloPment

The Folsom plan Area is comprised of approximately 3,500 acres zoned for 11,460 residential

units and 2.g million square feet of commercial, offo" and industrial space. Through multiple acquisitions

beginning in 2072, ufi,liut". of Westland Capital Pafners, L.P. ("Westland") acquired nearly 2,400

acres within the Folsom plan Area, including approximately 8,350 dwelling units, 1'2 million square feet

of commercial, office and industrial space, as-well as several sites for elementary, middle and high

schools.

7 Page 183

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Since development began in May 2017, Westland affiliates have invested more than $250

million into backbone infrastruiture and subdivision improvements to support the development of nearly

3,000 single-family dwelling units, as well as three separate sites for multifamily development. Many of
the regiori,s largest public and private homebuilders have been actively building in the Folsom Plan Area

including Tri Point-e, Lennar Homes, Toll Brothers West, Taylor Morrison, KB HOME Sacramento,

Beazer fro*". Holdings, Meritage Homes, Richmond American, The New Home Company, Signature

Homes, Van Daele Homes, A.G. Spanos Company, and St. Anton Communities'

Other community developments in the Folsom Plan Area include, but are not limited to, Russell

Ranch and White Rock Springs Ranch, which consist of an additional 1,500 units of single-family

housing. Infrastructure investment in these two communities, as of April 2022, was estimated by East

Carpenter Improvement Company ("ECIC"), one of the master developers responsible for the initial

improvement of a portion of ihe District, to have exceeded $200 million since development began in

2A17.

Affiliates of Pacific Coast Capital Partners (*PCCP-), known as the Eagle group of companies

(,,Eagle,,), own a majority of the non-residential land uses in the Folsom Plan Area. In two separate

tians-actions, Eagle roid 4b-u"t" development parcels to Dignity Health and UC Davis Health, two of the

region,s *u;o. f,ealthcare providers, for hospital and medical campus facilities. Development for the

Dignity Heaith campus began in 2A21, and significant investments in land development have been made

thJre. The UC Davis Health property commenced development in August 2023.

Westland affiliates' remaining land holdings include nearly 3,500 dwelling units and 1.2 million

square feet of commercial and office uses. Lennar Homes, PCCP, UC Davis Health, Dignity Health,

gitiott Homes and other landowners control an additional2,50A residential lots and 1 .5 million square feet

of commercial development space. Infrastructure planning, design and engineering is underway to

support the development of these remaining properties and, as of April 2022, was anticipated by ECIC to

exceed $200 million over the next three to five years,

The Folsom Plan Area, including Folsom Ranch and Russell Ranch, is widely considered to be

the premier master-planned community in the Sacramento region. ln 2022 alone, over 780 building

permits were issued in the Folsom Plan Area, and homebuilders have enjoyed sustained demand and

pricing power as they continue to build out some of the most attractive housing in Northern California'

PLAN OF FINANCE

Facilities to be Financed

The Bonds are issued for the purpose of providing funds to purchase the Local Obligations. The

Local Obligations are being issued to finance the acquisition of certain public capital improvements more

particularllidesqibed in G Resolution of Formation adopted by the City Council of the City on May 26,

)OZO. rn. City and Arcadian Improvement Company, LLC (the "Original Developer") have entered into

an acquisition and shortfall agreement (the "Acquisition Agreement") wherein the City has agreed to use

a portion of the proceeds of the Local Obligations to finance the acquisition from the Original Developer

of those facilities set forth in the Acquisition Agreement. Such facilities are expected to consist of certain

transportation improvements, water system improvements, recycled water system improvements, drainage

system improvements, wastewater system improvements, park, parkway and open space improvements,

Specific plan lnfrastructure Fee program improvements and certain Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee

ofligations (collectively, the "Facilities"). Construction of the Facilities is required for development

within the Improvement Area and the District to be completed.

I Page 184

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



proceeds from the Local Obligations are expected to finance some, but not all, of the Facilities

eligible to be financed within the District, and the District expects to issue one or more series of bonds to

fin-ance the acquisition of additional facilities in the future. See "PROPOSED PROPERTY

DEVELOPMENT-Development Plan and Status of Development-status of Development."

THE BONDS

General

The Bonds are secured by a pledge of amounts paid with respect to the Local Obligations' The

Local Obligations are secured by a pledge of Special Taxes (including both the Facilities Special Tax and

the Servic-es Special Tax, each as defined herein), levied against Taxable Property within the

Improvement Aiea, net of Priority Administrative Expenses. See "DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE" and
,,SiCURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS." The Local Obligations are secured

by a pledge of Special Taxes (net of Priority Administrative Expenses) on parity with any Additional

Local Obligations (defined below)'

The Local Obligations Indenture establishes a Local Obligation Reserve Fund and a Local

Obligations Reserve Account therein with respect to the Local Obligations. Amounts available from the

Locai OUtigations Reserve Account are available to pay debt service on the Local Obligations. The Local

Obligations Indenture requires the funding of separate debt service reserve accounts for the Local

Oblilations and any Additional Local obligations, each of which may be used only to pay the principal of
and interest on the related series of special tax bonds issued under the Local Obligations Indenture' There

is no reserve fund with respect to the Bonds. Amounts available from the Local Obligations Reserve

Account are not available to cure a deficiency generally in the Trust Estate to make debt service payments

on the Bonds.

Description of the Bonds

General. The Bonds will be dated their date of delivery and mature on September I, as set forth

on the inside front cover page hereof (each, a "Principal Payment Date"). Interest is payable

semiannually on March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing September l, 2024 (each, an

"lnterest Payment Date").

The Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds, without coupons, in denominations of $5,000,

or any integral multiple thereof. The Bonds will be issued in book-entry only form and will be registered

in the naml of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York

(..DTC"). DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. So long as the Bonds are in book-entry

only forrn, principal of and redemption premium, if any, on the Bonds will be payable to DTC or its

no*in.", wiro wiit in turn remit such payments to DTC Participants for subsequent disbursement to the

Beneficial Owners. See APPENDIX F-"DTC AND THE BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM'"

principal of, and redemption premium, if any, on the Bonds is payable at the corporate trust office

of the Trustee- Interest on the Bonds will be paid only to the registered owners as shown on the Trustee's

books as of the fifteenth day of the calendar month next preceding each Interest Payment Date (the
..Record Date"), except that in the case of an owner of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount

of Bonds outstanding, payment will be made at the owner's option by wire transfer of immediately

available funds to an account in a bank or trust company or savings bank that is a member of the Federal

Reserve System and that is located in the continental United States of America according to instructions

provided 6y such owner to the Trustee and received no later than the Record Date for such lnterest

Payment Date.

9 Page 185

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



The Bonds are special, limited obligations of the Authority. The Bonds are payable solely from

and secured by the Trust Estate of the AuthJri[ pledged under the Trust Agreement, consisting primarily

of payments received by the Authority from the District under the Local Obligations, which payments are

...ur"o by a lien of *re Special Taxes (defined herein) (net of Priority Administrative Expenses) levied

.rpon prop"rty within the improvement Area, as more fully described herein' See "SECURITY AND

SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS'''

payments under the Local Obligations are calculated to be sufficient to permit the Authority to

pay the principal of, and interest on, the Bonds when due. Pursuant to the Local Obligations Indenture, a

Locd obtigatlons Reserve Account is established for the Local obligations. Amounts available from the

Local Oblilations Reserve Account are not available to cure a deficiency in the Trust Estate available to

pay debt ,.i-lni"* of the Bonds. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS-

Terms of the Local Obligations-Local Obligations Reserve Account."

No Additional Bonds under the Trust Agreement. The Trust Agreement does not permit the

Authority to issue any additional bonds on parity with the Bonds. However, subject to certain conditions

contained in the Locat OUtigations Indentuie, the District may at any time issue bonds (the "Additional

Local Obligations',) payabi! from the net proceeds of the Special Tax (after payment of Priority

Administrxive Expenses; on parity with the Local Obligations. See "SECUzuTY AND SOURCES oF
pAyMENT FOR iHE BONDS-Terms of the Local Obligations-Additional Local Obligations;'

Redemption Provisions*

Optional Redemption. The Bonds are subject to optional redemption by the Authority prior to

their respective maturitY dates as a whole or in part on any date on or after 20_, from any

source of available funds other than Minimum Sinking Fund Payments and Special Tax Prepayments, at

the following redemption prices (computed upon the principal amount of the Bonds or portions thereof

called for redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemPtion:

103% if redeemed on any date on or after 
-,24-through 20_;

lO2% if redeemed on any date from ..---...-...-, 20-
through 20.

101% if redeemed on any date from

through ,20-; and

2A

100% if redeemed on 20_ and any date thereafter.

IREMATNDER OF PAGE TNTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

- 
Preliminary" subject to change.

10 Page 186

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Extraordinary Redemption from Prepayment of Special Taxes. The Bonds are subject to

extraordinary redemption by tfie Authority prior to their respective maturity dates, as a whole or in part on

any Interesi payment Date on or after 20. , solely from funds derived from the

exiraordinary redemption of Local outigations rrom Special Tax Prepayments, at the following

redemption prices (computed upon the principal amount of_the Bonds or portions thereof called for

redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

103% if redeemed on any Interest Payment Date on or after

_,20- through , 20-;

102% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on ,20_
and ,20-;

101% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on 2A

and 20-_; and

prepayments from prepaid Special Taxes could be made by any of the owners of any of the

properqy *itttin the Imprwement Area, including the Homebuilders and the Landbank, any other

i"u"top"rr or homebuildLrs owning Taxable Property in the Improvement Area or any individual owner;

and they could also be made from the proceeds ofbonds issued by or on behalfofan overlapping special

assessment district or community facilities district. The resulting redemption of Bonds that were

purchased at a price greater than the applicable redemption price could reduce the otherwise expected

yield on such lionds. See ,,CERTAIN RISKS To BoNDHoLDERS-Potential Early Redemption of

Bonds from Prepaid SpecialTaxes'"

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption of Bonds. The Bonds maturing on September 1, 20- are

subject to mandatory redemption in part on September 1 of each year commencing September 1, 20-, at

a ridemption price equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof called for

redemption together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

100% if redeemed on

thereafter.

20_ and any Interest Payment Date

Bonds
Minimum Sinking Fund

Payment Date
(September 1) Minimum Sinking Fund Payment

$

1 Maturity

IREMATNDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

1l
Page 187

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



The Bonds maturing on September 1,20- are subject to mandatory redemption in part on

September 1 of each y"* 
"J*r"ncing 

September t,20-, at a redemption price equal to one hundred

percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof called for redemption together with accrued interest

thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

Minimum Sinking Fund
Payment Date Bonds

(September 1) Minimum Sinking Fund Payment

$

i MaturitY.

If the Bonds subject to mandatory redemption are redeemed in part prior to their stated maturity

date other than from Minimum Sinking Fund Payments, the Minimum Sinking Fund Payments for such

Bonds shall be reduced proportionately by the principal amount of such Bonds so redeemed.

Redemption Instructions. Upon any prepaymen! of a Local Obligation, the Authority shall

deliver to the Trustee a Written order of the Auihority designating the amounts and maturities of the

Bonds to be redeemed, which shall be in the manner necessary to enable the Authority to deliver a 
-ca9h

Flow Certificate satisffing the requirements described below. In the event only a portion of the

Outstanding Bonds or anv maturity are to be redeemed at any one time, the Trustee shall select the

particular donds of each maturity date to be redeemed in accordance with DTC procedures (which, at the

time of the issuance of the Bonis, would be a redemption by lot) or, if the Bonds are not then in book-

entry, in a manner that it deems appropriate and faii. The Trustee shall redeem Bonds in Authorized

Denominations.

Upon any redemption of a portion but not all of the Outstanding Bonds, the Authority shall

deliver to the Trustee a Cash Flow ienificate to the effect that, assuming all payments are made with

respect to the Local Obligations, (i) the Revenues, together with moneys on deposit in other funds and

accounts held under the irust Agreement, will be sufficient to pay all Principal Installments, Minimum

Sinking Fund payments and interist payments on the Bonds when due; and (ii) the redemption premiums,

if any,"on the Local Obligations, together with other Revenues available to the Trustee for such purpose,

are sufficient to offset un! diff"r.nr" b.t"""n-the interest to accrue on the Bonds to be paid or redeemed

with the proceeds of prepayment of such Local Obligations (plus any redemption premium payable upon

redemption of such rionO*j and the income to be earned on any investment of such proceeds (assured as

of the date of payment thereof, in each case until the date of payment or redemplion of Bonds, such that

in no event *itt th" piepayment of Local obligations cause the Trustee to have insufficient funds to pay

debt service on the Bonds when due'

ln no event shall Bonds be redeemed if upon such redemption the principal amount of the Local

obligations remaining outstanding will be less than the total principal amount of outstanding Bonds.

Such Written order-of the Authority may specifl that optional redemption of the Bonds will be

conditioned upon receipt offunds or other events'

t2
Page 188

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Notice of Redemption. Subject to receipt of the written order of the Authority described under

.,-Redemption Instrucfrons," the Trustee shall give notice of redemption; prsy-ided, that Bold;,

identified by cuSlp numbers, serial numbers and maturity date, have been called for redemption and, in

the case of Bonds to be redeemed in part only, thd portion of the principal amount thereof that has been

called for redemption (or if all the Ouistanding Bonds are to be redeemed, so stating, in which event such

serial numbers may be omitted), that they *itt ur due and payable on the date fixed for redemption

(speciffing such date) upon surender thereof to the Trustee at its Corporate Trust Office, subject to any

conditions to such reiemption specified in the written order of the Authority, at the redemption price

(speciffing such price), together with any accrued interest to such date, and that all interest on the Bonds

ior potiiotit thereof) ,o to f," redeemed will cease to accrue on and after such date and that from and after

such date such Bond (or such portion thereof) shall no longer be entitled to any lien, benefit or security

under the Trust Agreement, and the owner thereof shall have no rights in respect of such redeemed Bond

or such portion except to receive payment from such money of such redemption price plus accrued

interest to the date fixed for redempiion. If sufficient monies for the payment of the redemption price. of

all Bonds to be redeemed are not then on deposit with the Trustee, such notice shall also state that

redemption is conditioned upon the timely deposit of sufficient funds therefor with the Trustee.

Such notice shall be mailed by first class mail, in a sealed envelope, postage prepaid, at- least

thirty (30) but not more than sixty (60j days before the date.fixed for redemption, to the Owners of such

nonir'1o, portions thereof) ro "atia 
for redemption, at their-respective addresses as the same shall last

appear on the Bond Register; provided, that neither the failure of an Owner to receive notice of

redemption of Bonds nor"any."ilr ir-*ch notice shall affect the validity of the proceedings for the

redemption of Bonds.

Any notice of optional redemption may be rescinded by written notice given by the Authority to

the Trustee no later than three Business Days piior to the date specified for redemption. The Trustee shall

give notice of rescission of the notice of optional redemption or non-satisfaction of any conditions

Jpecified in the notice of optional redemption as soon as practicable to the same parties and in the same

manner as the notice of redemption was given'

So long as the Bonds are in book-entry only form, notices of redemption will be given directly by

the Trustee to DTC and not to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds. See APPENDIX F-"DTC AND

THE BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM."

purchase in Lieu of Redemptian. ln lieu of redemption of any Bond, amounts on deposit in the

proceeds Fund, the principal Fund or in the Redemption Fund may be used and withdrawn by the Trustee

at any time prior to a notice of redemption having been delivered, upon a Written order for the purchase

of such Bonds at public or private iale as and when and at such prices as the Authority may in its

discretion determine, but not ir, "*".r, 
of the lower of the highest or then current redemption price thereof

plus accrued interest to the purchase date; and all Bonds so purchased shall be delivered to the Trustee for

cancellation.

payment of Redeemed Bonds. If notice of redemption has been given and not rescinded and if the

conditions to such redemption specified therein, if any, have been satisfied, each as provided in the Trust

Agreement, tt 
" 

gond, or portions thereof called for rldemption will become irrevocably due and payable

on the date fixed for redemption at the redemption price thereof, together with accrued interest to the date

fixed for redemption, upon pr"r"ntation and *rr.nd"t of the Bonds to be redeemed at the office specified

in the notice of redempiion. tf less than the full principal amount of a Bond is called for redemption, the

Authority is required to execute and deliver and ihe Trustee is required to authenticate, upon surrender of

such Bond, and without charge to the Owner thereof, Bonds of like interest rate and maturity in an

IJ Page 189

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the principal amount of the Bonds so

.Jiena".eo in such Authorized Denominations as specified by the owner.

If any Bond or any portion thereof has been duly called for redemption and payment of the

redemption price, togeth". *itt unpaid interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption, has been made or

provided foi uy the Authorify, then interest on such Bond or such portion will cease to accrue from such

iate, and from and after such date such Bond or such portion will no longer be entitled to any lien, benefit

or security under the Trust Agreement, and the ownei thereof will have no rights in respect of such Bond

or such portion except to receive payment of such redemption price, and unpaid interest accrued to the

date fixed for redemPtion.

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to purchase the Local Obligations. -Tl"
proceeds of itre Local obligations in turn will be used to finance construction and acquisition of the

Facilities and pay costs of ilsuance of the Local obligations and Bonds. The following table sets forth

the sources und ut"t ofthe funds as allocated to the Bonds:

Sources of Funds
Principal Amount

I P lu s / Le s s]; [Net] Ori gi nal I ssue [Prem ium/D i scount]

Total Sources

Uses ofFunds
Acquisition and Construction Fund

Underwriter's Discount
Deposit to Local Obligations Reserve Account(l)

Deposit to Local Obligations Capitalized Interest Account(2)

Deposit to Costs of Issuance Fund(3)

Total Uses

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

$

$

$

$

(r) A ponion of the purchase price of the Local obligations will be {?osited into the Local obligations Reserve Account for

the Local Obligations. See "SgCUR1TY AND SOIURCES OF PAYMENT FORTHE BONDS'"
(2) To pay interest on u portion of the Local obligations and, in hrm, a portion of the Bonds' through September 1,2a24'

(3) A portion or tne pulJase price of the Loca'i obligations will be used to pay costs of issuance including lees of Bond

Counsel and the ruf"nl"ipa idui.or, the initial fees ofthe Trustee, noncontingent fees ofthe Appraiser' printing costs and

other miscellaneous exPenses'

14 Page 190

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



DEBT SDRVICE SCIIEDULE

The annual scheduled debt service for the Bonds, assuming no early redemption other than from

mandatory sinking fund installments, is set forth in Table I below. The Local Obligations are sized to

provide tbOX of itre debt service on the Bonds when due and have the same principal amortization as the

Bonds. The Local Obligations will be issued with an annual scheduled debt service that results in at least

l10o^ annual debt.*-'i"" coverage from the revenues of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax (as defined herein) for Developed Property as of October 19, 2023, and the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenues for the remaining Taxable Propefty

expected to be generated in the Improvement Area, net of Priority Administrative Expenses (defined

beiow). The Diitrict expects that Additional Local obligations will be issued on parity with the Local

Obligations as the Improvement Area develops. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT

FOR}HE BONDS-Terms of the Local Obligations-Additional Local Obligations;'

Table I
Folsom Ranch Financing AuthoritY

city of Folsom Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No.2
Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2024

Debt Service Schedule(r)
Period Ending
(September l) PrinciPal

@------$-
2025
2026
2027
2028
2A29
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2435
2036
2037
2038
2039
2040
2041
2042
2A43
2044
2045
2046
2447
2048
2049
2050
2051
2052
2053

lnterest
$

Total Debt
Service

$

TOTAL

Amounts rounded to the nearest dollar.
Debt service on a portion of the Local Obligations capitalized through September 1,2024.

$$$

(r)

(2)

Source: Piper Sandler & Co.

l5 Page 191

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



The following table shows the expected debt service coverage for the Local Obligations for

calendar year 2A25,ta"king into account the debt service on the Local Obligations for that year, based on

the projected Fiscal year 2024-25 revenues from the Maximum Facilities Special Tax for all Taxable

property in the Improvement Area, net of Priority Administrative Expenses in the amount of $20,400'

Table 2
city of Folsom community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No.2
Fiscal Year 2024'25

Debt service and Debt seryice coverage - Local obligations

Priority
Administrative

Expense(2)

2024.25 s658,221 $20,400 $637,821 $576,800 |lo.6v'

ol-*T[; Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates escalate annually at 2o/o. Based on the development status of the Taxable

Property as of October 19,2023.
(2) The prioriry Administrative Expense amount was established at $20,000 for Fiscal Yeu 2023-24 and escalales annually

atZYo.
Source: piper Sandler & Co. for Local Obligations debt sewice figures; NBS for all other amounts.

SECURITYANDSOURCESoFPAYMENTFORTHEBONDS

The Bonds are secured by a lien on and pledge of the Trust Estate, consisting primarily of

payments received by the Authority from the District under the Local Obligations, which payments are

.eiurea by Special Tu*", (net of Priority Administrative Expenses) levied upon property within the

Improvement Area and received by the District'

NEITHER THE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE CITY, THE

DISTRICT, THE AUTHOzuTY, THE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR ANY OTHER POLITICAL

SUBDIVISION THEREOF IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS. THE AUTHORITY

FIAS NO TAXING POWER. EXCEPT FOR THE TRUST ESTATE, NO OTHER REVENUES OR

TAXES ARE PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS. THE BONDS ARE NOT GENERAL

OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHOzuTY, THE DISTRICT OR CITY, BUT ARE LIMITED

OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE TRUST ESTATE'

DERIVED PRIMAzuLY FROM PAYMENTS ON THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS FROM THE

PAYMENT OF THE SPECIAL TAXES LEVIED WITHTN THE IMPROVEMENT AREA AS MORE

FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN.

The Trust Agreement does not permit the Authority to issue any additional bonds on parity with

the Bonds. HowevJr, subject to certa-in conditions contained in the Local Obligations Indenture, the

District may at any time issue Additional Local obligations payable from the net proceeds of the Special

Tax (after payment of priority Administrative Expenses) on parity with the Local Obligations' See

..SECURITY AND SOURCES Or PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS-TETMS Of thc LOCAI ObIigAtiONS-

Additional Local Obligations'"

Fiscal
Year

Maximum
Facilities

Special Tax
Revenue(1)

Net
Maximum
Facilities

Special Tax
Revenue

Local
Obligations

Debt
Service

CFD Debt
Service

Coverage

l6 Page 192

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



General

The Trust Estate consists of the Revenues, the amounts in certain of the funds established and

held under the Trust Agreement, and the Local Obligations. The Revenues consist of amounts received

by the Trustee as the iayment of interest on, or the equivalent thereof, and the payment or return of

principal of, or redempiion premiums, if any, on, or the equivalent thereof, the Local Obligations, whether

as a result of scheduled payments, o. ,"dt.ption premiums, special Tax Prepayments or remedial

proceedings taken in the event of a default thereon, and all investment earnings on any money held in the

Funds held under the Trust Agreement (except the Rebate Fund)'

The principal of and the interest on the Local Obligations are payable from the annual Special

Taxes levied and to be collected on all real properly within the Improvement Area subject to the Special

Taxes and the proceeds, if any, from the sale of such property for delinquency of such Special Taxes,

after payment of priority Administrative Expenses. The Special Taxes securing the Local obligations

include both the Facilities Special Tax and thi Services Special Tax (each as defined herein) levied within

the Improvement Area. Thb Local Obligations are secured by a pledge on the Special Taxes (net of
priority Administrative Expensesy on paiity with the pledge of such Special raxes for any Additional

Local bbligations issued under the Local obligations Indenture. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES oF
pAyMENT FOR THE BONDS-payment of ine Local Obligations" and "SECURITY AND SOURCES

oF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS-Terms of the Local obligations."

The District may not issue indebtedness payable from the Special Taxes except as provided in,the

Local Obligarions Indenture. See APPENDIX C-"SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL DOCUMENTS-

suMMARi oF THE LocAL OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE-Authorization and Issuance of Bonds-

Additional Bonds; Subordinate Bonds." The City has, however, formed CFD l?, which has issued bonds

secured by special taxes with a co-equal lien on property within the Improvement Area and has formed

cFD 1g, which is authorized to issue bonds secured by special taxes with a co-equal lien on properry

within the Improvement Area. See "FOLSOM PLAN AREA.' The Authority, the District and the City

have no contiol over the amount of additional debt payable from taxes or assessments on all or any

portion of the property within the Improvement Area that may be issued in_ the future by other

lovernmental entlties or districts having jurisdiction over all or a portion of the land within the

i*p.or"..nt Area. To the extent such Jebt is payable from other assessments or special taxes levied

puisuant to the applicable law, such assessments or special taxes may have a lien on the property within

ih" I-prou"ment Area on parity with the lien of the Special Taxes.

Flow of Funds

Receipt and Deposit of Revenues. As noted above, Revenues consist of amounts received by the

Trustee as the payment of interest on, or the equivalent there_of,-and the payment or return of principal of,

or redemption pr".iu*s, if any, on, or the equivalent thereof, all Local Obligations, whether as a result of

scheduled payments, ot i"O"-ption-premiums, Special Tax Prepayments or remedial proceedings taken in

the event of a default thereon, and ail investment earnings on any money held under the Trust Agreement

(except the Rebate Fund). All Revenues, other than Revenues derived from the early redemption of Local

duligutlon, from Special Tax prepayments received by the Trustee from the Authority, will be deposited

into ihe Revenue Fund. on each Interest Payment Date and each Principal Payment Date, the Trustee

will transfer Revenues from the Revenue Fund, in the amounts required in the order of priority as set forth

below, with the requirements of each fund being fully satisfied, leaving no deficiencies therein, prior to

any deposit into any fund later in priority:

17 Page 193

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



First: To the Interest Fund, an amount of Revenues which together with amounts on deposit

therein, is equal to the interest due and payable on the Bonds due on such Interest

PaYment Date;

Second: To the Principal Fund (i) on each Principal Payment Date from the Revenue Fund an

amount of Revenues which, together with any amounts then on deposit in the Principal

Fund (other than amounts previously deposited on account of any Bonds which have

matured but which have not been presented for payment) is sufficient to pay the

principal Installments on the Bonds due on such Principal Payment Date and (ii) on

each deptember 1 on which a Minimum Sinking Fund Payment is required to be made_

(for deiosit in the Sinking Fund Account) from the Revenue Fund an amount of
Revenues which is equal to the Minimum Sinking Fund Payment due and payable on

such date. On each Principal Payment Date, the Trustee shall pay the principal or

redemption price due and payable on the Bonds on such date from the Principal Fund.

Following such deposits, any remaining money in the Revenue Fund is required to be transferred

to the Local Obligations Trustee for application under the Local Obligations Indenture. For additional

information ..gurding the Flow of Funds, see "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE

BONDS-Local Obligations Flow of Funds'"

Revenues Derived from Special Tax Prepayments. All Revenues derived from early redemption

of Local obligations from Special Tax Prepayments received by the Trustee will be immediately

deposited into the Redemption Fund to be applied to the extraordinary redemption of Bonds. See "THE

BoNDS-Redemption Provisions-Ex traardinary Redemption from Prepayment of Special Taxes-"

Description of Local Obligations

The District will issue the Local Obligations in the principal amount of $10,250,000.* The Local

Obligations are secured solely by the Special Taxes (net of Priority Administrative Expenses) levied upon

certa]n real properly within the Improvement Area and proceeds of foreclosure sales in the Improvement

Area.

The pledge of Special Taxes (net of Priority Administrative Expenses) levied within the

Improvement'Arei is on parity with the pledge thereof securing any Additional Local Obligations issued

under the Local Obligations Indenture. The District may issue Additional Local Obligations secured on

parity with the pled"ge of the Special Taxes (net of Priority Administrative Expenses) within 
_the

i*piou"*"nt Area oily in u".ordun." with the Local obligations Indenture. See APPENDIX C-
..SUMMARY oF PRiNCIPAL DoCUMENTS-SUMMARY OF THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS

INDENTIJRE-Authorization and Issuance of Bonds-l dditional Bonds; Subordinate Bonds."

A description of the Improvement Area is set forth under the caption, "THE IMPROVEMENT

AREA.''

Issuance of Local Obligations

The Local Obligations are authorized pursuant to the Mello-Roos Act and are issued under a

resolution of the City C-ouncil of the City, as legislative body of the District and the Local Obligations

Indenture. The Mello-Roos Act was enacted by the State Legislature to provide an altemate method of

financing certain essential public capital facilities and services, especially in developing areas of the State'

* 
Preliminary, subject to change.

l8 Page 194

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Subject to approval by a two-thirds vote of qualified electors and compliance with the provisions 
-of 

the

Meilo-Roos'Act, a lelislative body of a locai agency may issue bonds for a community facilities district

and may levy and collect a special tax within such district to repay such indebtedness.

The Local Obligations constitute special tax obligations of the District payable as to both

principal and interest froh tne annual SpeciaiTax (after payment of the District's Priority Administrative

b,*p.nr".; to be levied by the District on land within the Improvement Area, including proceeds frgm tf9

sale of properry within the Improvement Area collected as a result of foreclosure of the lien of the Special

Taxes and'certain funds and accounts held under the Local Obligations Indenture. The District's sole

recourse in the event of a delinquency or failure to pay Special Taxes on a particular parcel is to institute

foreclosure proceedings with respect io that parcel. However, the District is not obligated under the Local

obligations'lndentureito enforce the lien olany delinquent installment of the Special Tax for any Fiscal

year in which the District has received one hundred percent (100%) of the amount of such installment

from the County pursuant to the Teeter Plan. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR

THE BONDS-Covenant for Foreclosure" and *SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE

BONDS-The Teeter Plan" herein.

Payment of the Local Obligations

The Local Obligations constitute the limited obligations of the District payable as to both

principal and interest troir the annual Special Tax (net of Priority Administrative Expenses) levied by the

District on Taxable property within the Improvement Area, including proceeds from the sale of property

within the Improve*"r,t Ai"u collected as a result of foreclosure of the lien on the Special Taxes and

certain funds and accounts held under the Local Obligations Indenture. The District's sole recourse in the

event of a delinquency or failure to pay Special Taxes on a particular parcel is to institute foreclosure

proceedings with respect to that parcel.

The term ,.priority Administrative Expenses'o means an amount equal to (a) for Fiscal

year 2023-24, $20,000, uni 6; for any subsequent Fiscal Year, the amount resulting from increasing the

priority Administrative'Expenses on each July 1, from and including the July I immediately following the

end of the then current Fiscal year to and inciuding the July I in such Fiscal Year by 2% of the amount in

effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS ARE SPECIAL TAX OBLIGATIONS OF THE DISTRICT,

AND THE INTEREST ON AND PRINCIPAL OF AND REDEMPTION PREMIUMS, IF ANY, ON

THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS ARE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE PROCEEDS OF THE SPECIAL

TAX (INCLUDING ANY PREPAYMENTS THEREOF AND PROCEEDS FROM THE SALE OF

PROPERTY COLLECTED PURSUANT TO THE FORECLOSURE PROVISIONS OF THE LOCAL

OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE FOR THE DE,LINQUENCY OF THE SPECIAL TAX)' NET OF

PRIORITY ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, AND AMOI"INTS IN CERTAIN FLTNDS AND

ACCOI.JNTS ESTABLISHED IN THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE, AND THE DISTRICT

IS NOT OBLIGATED TO PAY THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS EXCEPT FROM SUCH FLINDS. THE

GENERAL FTJND OF THE CITY AND THE FLINDS OF THE DISTRICT ARE NOT LIABLE, AND

NEITHER THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE DISTRICT NOR THE CITY ARE PLEDGED

FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE INTEREST ON OR PRINCIPAL OF OR REDEMPTION PREMIUMS'

IF ANY, ON THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS. NO TAX OR ASSESSMENT OTHER THAN THE

SPECIAL TAX SHALL EVER BE LEVIED OR COLLECTED TO PAY THE INTEREST ON OR

PRINCIPAL OF OR REDEMPTION PREMIUMS, IF ANY, ON THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS, THE

LOCAL OBLIGATIONS ARE NOT SECURED BY A LEGAL OR EQUITABLE PLEDGE OF OR

CHARGE, LIEN OR ENCUMBRANCE UPON ANY PROPERTY OF THE DISTRICT OR ANY OF

ITS INCOME OR RECEIPTS EXCEPT THE PROCEEDS OF THE SPECIAL TAX (INCLUDING

19 Page 195

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



ANY PREPAYMENTS THEREOF AND PROCEEDS FROM THE SALE OF PROPERTY

COLLECTED PURSUANT TO THE FORECLOSURE PROVISIONS OF THE LOCAL

OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE FOR THE DELINQUENCY OF THE SPECIAL TAX), NET OF

PRIOzuTY ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, AND AMOLiNTS IN CERTAIN FLJNDS AND

ACCOUNTS ESTABLISHED IN THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS TNDENTURE, AND NEITHER THE

PAYMENT OF THE INTEREST ON OR PRINCIPAL OF OR REDEMPTION PREMIUMS, IF ANY'

ON THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS IS A GENERAL DEBT, LIABILITY OR OBLIGATION OF THE

CITY OR THE DISTzuCT. THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS DO NOT CONSTITUTE AN

INDEBTEDNESS OF THE CITY OR THE DISTRICT WITHTN THE MEANTNG OF ANY

CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY DEBT LIMITATION OR RESTzuCTION, AND NEITHER

THE CITY COLTNCIL NOR THE DISTRICT NOR ANY OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE THEREOF

SHALL BE LIABLE FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE TNTEREST ON OR PRINCIPAL OF OR

REDEMPTION PREMIUMS, IF ANY, ON THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS OTHERWISE THAN

FROM THE PROCEEDS OF THE SPECIAL TAX (INCLUDING ANY PREPAYMENTS THEREOF

AND PROCEEDS FROM THE SALE OF PROPERTY COLLECTED PURSUANT TO THE

FORECLOSURE PROVISIONS OF THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE FOR THE

DELINQUENCY OF THE SPECIAL TAX), NET OF PRIORITY ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES,

AND AMOLTNTS IN CERTAIN FLINDS AND ACCOI.'NTS ESTABLISHED IN THE LOCAL

OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE.

Although the Special Tax will constitute a lien on properly subject to taxation in the Improvement

Area, it will noi constitute a personal indebtedness of the owners of such property. There is no assurance

that the owners will be financially able to pay the annual Special Tax or that they will pay such tax even jf
financially able to do so. The risk of nonpayment by propefty owners is more fully described in
*CERTAiN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS-Collection of Special Tax'"

Local Obligations Flow of Funds

Application of Speciat Tax Fund. Pursuant to the Local Obligations Indenture, the District agrees

and covenants that it wlil oeposit the Special Tax proceeds in the community Facilities Fund, which fund

is established in the treasury of the City. All money in the Community Facilities Fund shall be used and

withdrawn by the District solely for the benefit of the District in accordance with the Mello-Roos Act,

including payment of Expenses and Services. Pursuant to the Local obligations Indenture, the District

further "#". and covenunts that, after payment of Priority Administrative Expenses, it will transfer to

the Local Obligations Trustee from the Community Facilities Fund amounts sufficient and in suffrcient

time for the Local obligations Trustee to make the transfers required by it, and the Local obligations

Trustee shall deposit sulh proceeds as and when received in the Special Tax Fund' All money in the

Special rax Funi is required to be set aside by the Local obligations Trustee in the following respective

special account and fund within the Special rax Fund in the following order of priority, and all money in

each such account and fund shall be applied, used and withdrawn only for the purposes specified in the

Local Obligations Indenture:

(1) RedemPtion Account; and

(2) Local Obligations Reserve Fund.

Redemption Account. On or before March 1 and September 1 in each year, the Local Obligations

Trustee shall, from the money in the Special Tax Fund, transfer to and deposit in the Redemption Account

an amount of money 
"quui 

to the aggregate amount of interest becoming due and payable on all

outstanding Local obligutions and any Additional Local obligations on such March 1 or September 1, as

the case n.,uy b", and orior before September I in each year, the Local obligations Trustee shall' from the

20 Page 196

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



then remaining money in the Special Tax Fund, transfer to and deposit in the Redemption Account an

amount of money equal to the aggregate amount of principal becoming due and payable on all

outstanding seriai Local obligations 
"na 

uny Additional Local obligations on such September I plus all

Minimum Sinting Fund Account payments required to be made on such September I into the Sinking

Fund Subaccount; provided, that all of the aforesaid payments shall be made without priority of any

payment over any'other payment, and in the event that money in the Special Tax Fund on any March I or
'september I is not equal-to the amount of interest becoming due on all Local Obligations and any

Additional Local Obligations on such date, or in the event that the money in the Special Tax Fund on any

September I is not etual to the amount of principal of the Local Obligations and Additional Local

Obligations becoming due on such date, as the case may be, then such money shall be applied pro rata in

suchlroportion as s-uch interest and principal and Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments bear to

each other.

No deposit need be made into the Redemption Account if the amount of money contained therein

is at least.quul to the amount required by the terms of the preceding paragraph to be deposited therein at

the times and in the amounts provided in the Local Obligations Indenture.

All money in the Redemption Account shall be used and withdrawn by the Local Obligations

Trustee to pay the interest on the Local obligations and any Additional Local obligations as it shall

become dui and payable (including accrued inlerest on any Local obligations or any Additional Local

obligations pur"hurld o. i"dee*.Jprior to maturity) plus the principal of and redemption premiums, if
uny,"on the Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations as they shall mature or upon the prior

reiemption thereof, 
"*i"pt 

that any money in the Sinking Fund Subaccount shall be used only to purchase

or redeem or retire the term Locai orligations and any Additional Local obligations as provided in the

Local Obligations Indenture.

Local Obligations Reseme Fund. On or before March 1 and September i in each year, the Local

Obligations Trustee shall, from the then remaining money in the Special Tax Fund, transfer to and deposit

ln "if, Local obligations Reserve Account within the Local Obligations Reserve Fund such amount of

money as shall be required to restore each such Local Obligations Reserve Account to a sum equalto the

Required Bond Reserve (as defined herein) for the applicable series of Local obligations or Additional

Local Obligations, pro rata,to the extent that amounts are available in the Special Tax Fund for such

purpose; un-d to. this purpose all investments in each Local Obligations Reserve Account shall be valued
^on 

tvturch 1 and Septernfer 1 of each year at the face value thereof if such investments mature within

twelve (12) month, fro. the date of valuation, or if such investments mature more than twelve (12)

months after the date of valuation, at the price at which such investments are redeemable by the holder at

his option, if so redeemable, or if not so iedeemable, at the lesser of (i) the cost of such investments plus

the amortization of any premium or minus the amortization of any discount, or (ii) the market value of

such investments. noi purposes of allocating remaining money in the Special Tax Fund between more

than one Local obligations Reserve Account, any such transfers to and deposits in each Local Obligations

Reserve Account shall be made equally and ratably.

No deposit need be made into a Local Obligations Reserve Account if the value of the

investments contained therein is at least equal to the Required Bond Reserve for the applicable series of

Local Obligations or Additional Local Obligations'

Al1 money in each Local Obligations Reserve Account shall be used and withdrawn by the Local

Obligations Trusiee solely for the purpose of paying the interest on or principal of the corresponding

seriei of Local Obligation, o. Additional Local Obligations in the event there is insufficient money in the

Redemption Accouit available for this purpose; provided, that if as a result of any of the foregoing

valuations or due to redemption as a result of pioperty owner prepayments it is determined that the

21 Page 197

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



amount of money in a Local Obligations Reserve Account exceeds or will exceed the Required Bond

Reserve for the applicable series of Local obligations or Additional Local obligations, the Local

Obligations Trustee shall withdraw the amount of money representing such excess from such fund and

shalldeposit such amount of money in the Redemption Account. For the avoidance of doubt, amounts in

a Locaf obligations Reserve Account are not available to make up a deficiency for the payment of
principal andlnterest on any series of Local obligations or Additional Local Obligations, other than the

specific series of Local obligations or Additional Local obligations to which that Local obligations

Reserve Account relates.

Surplus Amounts. On or before March 1 and September I in each year, the Local Obligations

Trustee shall, from the then remaining money in the Special Tax Fund, transfer all amounts remaining in

the Special Tax Fund after the transfeis specified in the immediately preceding paragraphs to the City for

deposit in the Community Facilities Fund.

Special Tax Authorization

The Special Tax is to be levied and collected against all Taxable Property within the

Improvement Area in accordance with the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment. S_":

APPENDIX A-"AMENDED RATE, METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT AND MANNER OF

COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAX." The Special Tax is to be collected in the same manner as ordinary

ad valoremproperly taxes are collected, and, except as otherwise provided in the covenant for foreclosure

and in the Mello-Roos Act, is to be subject to the same penalties and the same procedure, sale and lien

priority in case of delinquency as is provided for ad valorem property taxes' See "SECURITY AND
.souncg,s 

OF PAYMENT FOR THEBONDS-CovENANI fOr FOTECIOSUTE,' ANd 
..CERTATN RISKS TO

BONDHOLDERS-Collection of Special Tax."

The Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment of the Special Tax, subject to the maximum

rates set forth therein, apportions the total debt service requirement (principal, interest, and mandatory

sinking fund payments), restoration of the Required Bond Reserve, current annual expenses, pay as you

go improvement costs and other costs each year among the Taxable Properly in the Improvement Area.

SEE APPENDIX A-.'AMENDED RATE, METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT AND MANNER OF

COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAX.'

pursuant to the Local Obligations Indenture, so long as any Local Obligations or Additional

Local Obligations are Outstanding, ihe District is required annually to levy the Special Tax against all

Taxable property in the Improvernent Area and make provision for the collection of such Special Tax in

amounts which will be sufficient, after making reasonable allowances for contingencies and errors in the

estimates, to yield proceeds equal to the amounts required for compliance with the agreements,

conditions, covenants and terms contained in the Local Obligations Indenture, and which in any event

will be sufficient to pay the interest on and principal of and Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments

for and redemption premiums, if any, on the Local obligations and any Additional Local Obligations as

they becom" du" und payable, to replenish each reserve account within the Local Obligations Reserve

p'und to the RequireO g-onO Reserve and to pay all current Expenses as they become due and payable'

Under the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment, the Facilities Special Tax (as defined

herein) levied in any fiscal year against any Assessor's Parcel (as defined in the Amended Rate and

Method of Apportionment) oiD"u.lop"d Property classifred as ResidentialProperly may not be increased

as a consequence of delinquency or default by the owner or owners of any other parcel or parcels within

the Improvement Area by'more than l0% above the amount that would have been levied against such

Assessbr,s parcel in that fiscal year had there never been any such delinquencies or defaults. Pursuant to

the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment, properly is considered "Residential Property" once a

.", Page 198

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



building permit could be issued for the purposes of constructing one or more Residential Units, including

either si"ingle family detached homes or multi-family attached properties, such as apartments, and properly

is considered ,,Developed property" if a building permit for new construction was issued prior to June 30

of the previous fiscal year. See 
*CERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHoLDERS-Maximum Special Tax."

Covenant for Foreclosure

The Local Obligations Indenture provides that the Special Tax is to be collected in the same

manner as ordinary ai valorem properly taxes are collected and, except as provided in the special

covenant for foreclosure described-beiow and in the Mello-Roos Act, is subject to the same penalties and

the same procedure, sale, and lien priority in case of delinquency as is provided for ad valorem properly

taxes.

pursuant to Section 53356.1 of the Mello-Roos Act, in the event of any delinquency in the

payment of the Special Tax, the District may order the institution of a Superior Court action to foreclose

the lien therefor within specified time limits. In such an action, the real property subject to the unpaid

amount may be sold at u;uAi"iut foreclosure sale. Such judicial foreclosure action is not mandatory.

However, the District has Jovenanted in the Local Obligations Indenture that it will annually on or before

September I of each year review the public records of the County relating to the collection of the Special

Tax in order to determine the amount of the Special Tax collected in the prior Fiscal Year, and if it
determines on the basis of such review that the amount so collected is deficient by more than five percent

(5%) of the total amount of the Special Tax levied in such Fiscal Year within the improvement Area, it

will'within sixty (60) days thereafter institute foreclosure proceedings as authorized by the Mello-Roos

Act in order to enforce the lien of the delinquent installments of the Special Tax against each lot or parcel

of land in the Improvement Area, and will diligently prosecute and pursue such foreclosure proceedings

to judgment and sale; provided, that irrespective of the foregoing if the District determines on the basis of

such .evie* that p.op&ty owi"d by any iingle property owner in the Improvement Area is delinquent by

four missed payments *ith r"tp""i to itr. Special Tax due and payable by such property owner by such

delinquency 
^daie, 

then the Distiict will institute, prosecute and pursue such foreclosure proceedings in the

time and manner provided in the Local obligations Indenture against such property owner, prqvid.94

further, that any u.iion, taken to enforce delinquent Special Tax liens shall be taken only consistent with

Sections 53356.1 through 53356.7,both inclusive, of the Government Code of the State of California; and

provided further, that the District is not obligated under the Local Obligations Indenture to enforce the

ii"n or unv a"rinquent installment of the Special Tax for any Fiscal Year in which the District has

received one hundred percent (100%) of the amount of such installment from the County pursuant to the

Teeter Plan (described herein).

In the event that sales or foreclosures of properly are necessary, there could be a delay in

paymentsto Owners of the Bonds (if the Local Obligations ReserveAccounthas been depleted) pending

su"h .ules or the prosecution of such foreclosure proceedings and receipt by the District ofthe proceeds

of sale. However, within the limits of the Special Tax, the District may adjust the Special Tax levied on

Taxable property in the Improvement Area (subject to the limitation on the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax, defined herein;, to piovide an amount required to pay interest on and principal of the Local

Obligations and any-addiiional obligations payable from.the Special Tax,. and the amount, if any,

n"".ir*y to replenish each subaccount of th"-Local obligations Reserve Fund to an amount equal to the

Requirej BondReserve and to pay all current Expenses for the Improvement Area. There is, however, no

urrurun". that the total amouni of tn. Special Tax that could be levied and collected against Taxable

property (as defined in the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment) in the Improvement Area will

be at all times sufficient to pay the amounts required to be paid by the Local Obligations Indenture, even

if the Special Tax is levied ai the Maximum Facilities Special Tax rates. See "CERTAIN RISKS To

BONDHOLDERS-Maximum Special Tax."

23 Page 199

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



No assurance can be given that the real propefty subject to sale or foreclosure will be sold, or if
sold, that the proceeds of sale will be sufficient to pay any delinquent installments of the Special Tax'

The Mello-Roos Act does not require the District to purchase or otherwise acquire any lot or parcel of
property to be sold if there is no other purchaser at such sale. The Mello-Roos Act and the Local

bUiigation. Indenture do speci$ that the Special Tax will have the same lien priority as for ad valorem

propi.ty taxes in the case of d"linquency. Section 53356.6 of the Mello-Roos Act requires that propefty

witirin ih" I1np.ou"ment Area that is sold pursuant to foreclosure under the Mello-Roos Act be sold for

not less than the amount ofjudgment in the foreclosure action, plus post judgment interest and authorized

costs, unless the consent ofihe owners of at least 75Yo of the Local Obligations and any Additional Local

Obligations issued under the Local Obligations Indenture is obtained.

No Required Advances from Available Surplus Funds

Neither the City nor the District is obligated to advance available surplus funds available from the

City treasury to pay debt service on the Local Obligations or to replenish the Local Obligations Reserve

Account; prauiOeO, that nothing shall affect the right of the District under the Mello-Roos Act to make

advances to cure any deficiencies.

Terms of the Local Obligations

General. The City Council of the City established the District and designated the Improvement

Area therein on May 26,2020. On that same date, the eligible voters of the District in the Improvement

Area authorized the issuance of bonds in an amount not to exceed $36,000,000 for the Improvement Area.

The Local Obligations will be the first issuance of bonds for the Im,provement Area. The Local

Obligations will be issued in the aggregate principal amount of $ 10,250,000* pursuant to the Mello-Roos

Act and the Local Obligations Indenture. The Local Obligations will be dated the date of delivery of the

Bonds. The Local Obligations are secured by a pledge of the Special Taxes (net of Priority

Administrative Expenses) levied within the Improvement Area. The District may issue Additional Local

Obligations on puiity with the Local Obligations in accordance with the Local Obligations Indenture.

Based on the expected Special Tax revenues at build-out, the District expects that, following the issuance

of the Local Obligationi, Additional Local Obligations will be issued to finance the Facilities in the

Improvement Area in a total amount of approximately $ 1 , 1 00,000.' This amount may vary depending on

the timing of the issuance of the Additional Local Obligations, the size of the homes built and resulting

Special Tax revenues, and the applicable interest rates at the time of any such issuance.

Local Obtigations Reserve Account. The Local Obligations Indenture establishes, for this series

of the Local Obliga*tions specifically, a Local Obligations Reserve Account within the Local Obligations

Reserve Fund to be held Uy tne Local Obligations Trustee. The Local Obligations Indenture requires that

there be maintained in thi Local Obligations Reserve Account an amount equal to the Required Bond

Reserve. .'Required Bond Reserve" is defined to mean, for the Local Obligations specifically, as of any

date of calculation, the least ofi (a) the Maximum Annual Debt Service, (b) one hundred twenty-five

percent (lZS%) of the Average Annual Debt Service or (c) ten (10%) percent of the original proceeds of
ihe Local obiigations; p.ouid"d that the Required Bond Reserve shall be calculated on the date of

issuance of the Local Obligations issued under the Local Obligations Indenture and shall not increase

thereafter; and provided further that such requirement (or any portion thereof) may be satisfied by the

provision of one or more policies of municipal bond insurance or surety bonds issued by a municipal

tond insurer or by a letter of credit issued by a bank, the obligations insured by which insurer or issued by

which bank, as the case may be, have ratings at the time of issuance of such policy or surety bond or letter

* 
Preliminary, subject to change.

24 Page 200

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



of credit equal to ooAA" or higher (without regard to qualifier) assigned by Fitch or "Aa" or higher

(without regard to qualifier) assigned by Moody's or "AA" or higher (without regard to qualifier)

assigned by S&P.

The Local Obligations Reserve Account is established specifically for the Local Obligations, and

amounts in the Local Obligations Reserve Account are not available to make up a deficiency for the

payment of principal and interest on any Additional Local Obligations. Pursuant to the Local Obligations

inienture, each reserve account within the Local Obligations Reserve Fund is only available for paying

the interest on or principal of the corresponding series of Local obligations or any Additional Local

Obligations for which it was created.

The Required Bond Reserve with respect to the Local Obligations upon their date of issuance will
be$

All money in the Local Obligations Reserve Account will be used and withdrawn by the Local

Obligations Trustie solely for the purpose of paying the interest on and principal of the Local Obligations

in thi event there is insufficient money available for the purpose; provided. that if as a result of any of the

valuation of a Required Bond Reserve or as a result of any propefi owner prepayment it is determined

that the amount ofmoney in the Local Obligations Reserve Account exceeds the Required Bond Reserve,

the Local Obligations Trustee shall withdraw the amount of money representing such excess from such

fund and shall deposit such amount of money in the Redemption Account. Amounts on deposit in the

Local Obligations Reserve Account are not available to cure a deficiency in Revenues available to pay

debt service on the Bonds.

Additional Local Obligations. The District may at any time, by a supplement to the Local

Obligations Indenture, issue Additional Local Obligations that are payable from the proceeds of the

Speciat Tax (after payment of Priority Administrative Expenses) on parity with the Local Obligations,

subject to the following conditions, which conditions are precedent to the issuance of such Additional

Local Obligations:

(i) The District shall be in compliance with all agreements, conditions, covenants and terms

contained in the Local Obligations Indenture and in all Supplemental Indentures required to be observed

or performed by it, and no Event of Default under the Local Obligations Indenture or under any

Supplemental Indenture shall have occurred and shall be then continuing;

(ii) The District shall establish a separate subaccount of the Local Obligations Reserve Fund

for the payment of such Additional Local Obligations in an amount equal to the Required Bond Reserve;

and

(iii) (a) In each year until the maturity date for the Additional Local Obligations, the

Maximum Facilities Special Tax for Taxable Property classified as Developed Property, plus the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue (as defined in the Amended Rate and Method

of Apportionment) for Taxable Property not classified as Developed Property less Priority Administrative

expenses is estimated to cover at least one hundred ten percent (ll0%) of the sum of the Annual Debt

Service for each year on the Local Obligations and all Additional Local Obligations, including such

Additional Local bbligations to be issued, and (b) the Value of all Taxable Property, in aggregate, is at

least three (3) times the aggregate Lien on such Taxable Property.

"Facilities Special Tax" is the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement in accordance with

25 Page 201

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment (each as defined in the Amended Rate and Method of

Apportionment).

.,Developed propefly" means, for purposes of the requirement described above relating to the

issuance of Rdbitional 
'Local 

Obligations, Taxable Property for which a building permit for new

construction has been issued as ofthe date ofcalculation'

..Maximum Facilities Special Tax" is the total maximum annual Facilities Special Tax,

determined in accordance with the provisions of Section C of the Amended Rate and Method of

Apportionment, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Properly

leatn as defined in the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment).

.,Value,, is defined as the current assessed valuation of the Taxable Prope(y and/or the appraised

value of the Taxable property determined by a MAI appraiser. "Lien" is defined in the Local obligations

Indenture as the aggregate irincipal amount of all overlapping debt and bon-d1 (including the Local

obligations ana any aJaitional Local obligations) outstanding that are secured by a special tax levied

purriunt to the Meilo-Roos Act or a special assessment levied on property within the Improvement Area,

including any overlapping debt or bonds for community facilities districts or special assessment districts

that is reasonably allocated to properfy within the Improvement Area.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the District may issue one or more series of Additional Local

Obligations (the .,Refu"nding Loiat 6bligations") without meeting the requirements summarized in

para!.aph (iii) above if, aftei the issuance and delivery of such Refunding Local obligations, either (i)

none of the Local obiigations and Additional Local obligations theretofore issued under the Local

obligations Indenture *iil b" outstanding or (ii) the Debt Service in each Bond Year that begins after the

issuance of such Refunding Local obligations is not increased by reason of the issuance of such

Refunding Local Obligations.

Redemption of the Local Obligations. The Local Obligations are subject to extraordinary

redemption by the pistrict from funds derived by the District from prepayments 9f the Special Tax, The^

mcal bbliguiion. are also subject to optional ani mandatory redemption by the District. A description of

the redempiion prices and terms of the Local obligations is set forth under APPENDIX C-"SUMMARY

OF PRTN.CIPAL DOCUMENTS-SUMMARY OF THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE-

Redemption of Bonds."

Selection of Local obligations for Redemption. lf less than all the outstanding Local obligations

and any Additionai Local obligltions are to be redeemed as a result of prepayments of the Special Tax at

uny onl time, the Local obligu-tion. and any Additional. Local Obligations shall be redeemed pro rata by

-uturity. If less than all the-outstanding Local obligations and any Additional Local obligations are to

be redeemed at the option of the Districiat any one time, the Local obligations and any Additional Local

obligations of the latest maturity date or daies shall be redeemed prior to or simultaneously with the

redeirption of the Local obligations and any Additional Local obligations maturing prior thereto, and if
less than all the outstanding Lical obligations and any Additional Local obligations of any one maturity

date are to be redeemed at iny one time, the Trustee shall select the Local Obligations and any Additional

Local Obligations or the portion* thereof of such maturity date to be redeemed in integral multiples of

five thousand dollars ($5,000) in a manner that it deems appropriate and fair'

Special Tax AnalYsis

The following is a synopsis of the provisions of the Amended Rate and Method of

Apportionment, which- should bL read in conjunclion with the complete text of the Amended Rate and

26 Page 202

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Method of Apportionment which is attached as APPENDIX A. The definitions of the capitalized terms

used under this caption .,-special Tax Analysis" are as set forth in APPENDIX A. This section provides

only a summary of the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment, and is qualified by more complete

and detailed information contained in the entire Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment attached as

APPENDIX A.

The Special Tax is to be levied and collected against all Taxable Property within the

Improvement Area in accordance with the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment approved by the

landowner electors of the Improvement Area. The total annual levy of the Special Tax is calculated to

.utirry the annual debt service during the ensuing Fiscal Year, to replenish the reserve fund for the Local

Obligations, the allocable portion of administrative expenses, the amount necessary to cure any

deliriquencils or to fund any deficiency of the amount to be available for the payment of principal or

interest on bonds which are expected to occur in the ensuing Fiscal Year, to fund authorized facilities

funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, to fund authorized services expenses and to pay amounts required to

establish or.epienisir c"iain funds related to authorized services, less any available capitalized interest

and earningt on th" funds that may be used to fund the aforementioned costs'

Assignment to Land Use Categories. Each Fiscal Year, all Assessor's Parcels within the

Improvement A..u will be classified as either Taxable Properly or Exempt Property. Taxable Propefty

will be further classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Properly, Permit Ready Multi-

FamilyA.{on-Residential Property, Large Loi Property, or Undeveloped Property and shall be subject to

the levy ofthe annual SPecial Tax.

,,Developed property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building

permit for new construction was issued prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

,,Small Lot Final Map Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a

Small Lot Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

,,permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Propertl/" means an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements have

b""n obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan app-roval,

such that building p..*lt, may be issued without further approvals for the construction of multi-family

Residential Units or non-residential buildings within such Assessor's Parcel. The City shall have sole

discretion, based upon available development information, in classifoing an Assessor's Parcel as Permit

Ready Multi-FamilyAJon-Res idential Propefty'

,olarge Lot property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Large Lot

Map was recirded prioito june 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, excluding any portion(s) thereof classified

as Developed property, small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready MultiFamilyA'lon-Residential
property. Large Lot pioperty also means, foi each Fiscal Year, all raxable Properly classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year'

,,Small Lot Final Map Remcinder Propert)" means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the

subdivision of Large Lot properry by the recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map that has not

yet been mapped ?or final d^"n*iop*"nt approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that

portion of property for which the Small Lol Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does

not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without further

subdivision of such prope(y). Each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final Map

Remainder property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot Propefty.

27 Page 203

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



,,(Jndeveloped Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as

Developed property, Small Lot Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-FamilyA',lon-Residential

Properly or Large Lot ProPertY.

,,Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable

property tor-wtrich a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached

o. atta"-h"d Residential Units with a permiffed density range of ?-12 Residential Units per Acre, which is

more fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2011 and as amended by

the City Council.

,,Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoningl'means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable

properly for-whictr a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more Residential

Uniis. 
-Single-Family 

Detached properly - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-family properly

with a p"ti.titt"d density range of l-4 Residential units per Acre or single-family high density properly

with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully described in the

Folsonr-Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2071 and as amended by the City Council.

,'MMD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building

permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's

irarcel with a permitted density range of 12-20 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully described

in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2011 and as amended by the City Council'

*MHD Mutti-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building

permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's

irurcel with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully

described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2011 and as amended by the City

Council. MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of
an Assessor's Parcel designated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel.

,,Mixed (Ise Residential Parcel' means a mixed use Assessor's Parcel that is designated for

residential land use. lf the mixed use Assessor's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and

non-residential land use, onlythatportion of an Assessor's Parcel designated forresidential land use shall

be classified as a Mixed Use Risidential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the

Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Property.

,,Non-Residential Properqf' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Properly for which a

building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

Maximum Special Tax. The Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment is used to allocate the

amount of the SpecLl Tax required among the Taxable Properfy, based upon land use categories, subject

to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax rate that may be levied against each land use category.

The following table shows the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Special Tax

rates and the Maximum Special Tax rates (for both the Facilities Special Tax and the Services Special

Tax) within the lmprovemlnt Area for all anticipated allocable land use categories in Fiscal Year 2024'

25. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Special Tax rates are the minimum rates for

the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax.

28 Page 204

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Table 3
CitY of Folsom

Communities Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No.2

Maximum Special Tax Rate Categories
Fiscal Ye;ar2024-25

Tax Categora
Residential
Floor Area

Effective
Tax Rate

Evaluation
Minimum
Facilities
Special

Tax Rate(l)

Effective Tax
Rate

Evaluation
Maximum
Facilities

Special Tax
Rate(r)

Maximum
Services
Special

Tax Rate(2)

Maximum
Annual
Special
Tax(3)

Developed Property ($ amounts per residential unit)
Detached Residential:
Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Properly - SF/SFHD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Propertry - MLD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zouing

Developed Property ($ amounts per acre)
MMD MultiFamily Attached Property
MHD Multi-Family Attached Property
Non-Residential Property

Small Lot Final Map ProPertY
($ amounts per residential lot)
Single-Family Detached Properly - SF/SFHD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-FamilyA{on-Residential
Property (S amounts Per acre)

Large Lot Property ($ amounts per acre)

Undeveloped Property ($ amounts per acre)

> 3,600
3,200 - 3,599
2,800 - 3,199
2,400 - 2,799
2,0a0 -2,399

< 2,000
> 3,600

3,240 - 3,599
2,900 - 3,199
2,400 - 2,799
2,000 - 2,399

< 2,000

$2,663
2,663
2,663
2,663
2,663
2,663
2,214
2,ZlA
2,210
2,210
2,210
2,210

s32,473
72,664
12,664

N/A
N/A

NIA

N/A

N/A

$2,663
2,663
2,663
2,663
2,663
2,663
2,663
2,663
2,663
2,663
2,455
2,210

$32,473
12,664
12,664

$2,663
2,210

$31,391

$3 1 ,391

$22s
22s
225
))<
225
225
116

116
116

116
116
1i6

$563
1,126
7,126

s225
116

$ 1,126

$1,126

s2,888
2,888
2,988
2,888
2,888
2,ggg
2,779
2,779
) 1'to

2,779
2,571
2,326

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

s12,664 $1,126 $ 13,790

$33,036
13,790
13,790

$2,888
2,326

$32,516

$32,516

(t) Increases by 2o/o eacb Fiscal Year.
(2) Increases by the annual June consumer price index change for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose are4 not to exceed 4Yo each Fiscal Year'

Available to pay debt service on tbe Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations in the event of a shortfall in the Facilities

Special Tax (as iefined in the Local Obligations Indenture). Estimated to increase by 2Yo for Fiscal Year 2024'25.
(3) tie sum of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax and the Maximum Services Special Tax.

Source: NBS and the District.

29
Page 205

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



The total Special Tax generated by the Improvement Area may change from time to time if there

are amendments or modifications to the development plan. The District covenants in the Local

Obligations Indenture to not approve any amendments, changes or modifications relating to development

of thi property within the Impiove*".,i Ar"u that would reduce the amount of the Maximum Facilities

SpeciaiTax less priority Administrative Expenses to ggual_ less than one hundred ten percent(110%) of

the sum of the Annual bebt service on the Local obligations and any Additional Local obligations in

any year until the maturity date for the Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations.

Tables 4 and 5 under ..-special Tax Calculation" collectively show the estimated maximum and

projected actual amounts of Speciai Tax revenue for Fiscal Year 2024-25 using the development status of

ihe properties as of ocrober ig, zozl (unless otherwise noted). Table 4 shows the Fiscal Year 2024-25

estimated Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenues, based on the

development status of the properties as of october 19,2023 (unless otherwise noted). If changes are

made to development plans flr the Improvement Area, the projected Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Splcial Tax revenues may decrease from the amounts shown in that table, but in no

event will the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenues decrease below

the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Table 5 shows the estimated total

Special Tax levy for Fiscal year 2024-25 based on the properties' development status as of october 19,

zb23 lunless otherwise noted), including both the estimated Facilities special rax levy and the estimated

Services Special Tax levy foi piscal year2024-25, and the percentage of the estimated Special Tax levy

allocable to each of the projected property owners'

Included below are additional relevant defined terms used in the Amended Rate and Method of

Apportionment.

,,Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 IA2 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K of the

Amended Rate and Method of Apportion*"nt. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue, based on planned Development, is set forth in Attachment D of the Amended Rate and Method

of Apportionment.

,,Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum

annual Fac,ilities Special Tax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be

levied in any FiscaLYear on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property'

,,Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of

Residential property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based

upon a prrpur.d price point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property,

based uponthe calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden'

,,Total 
ffiective Tax Rdle" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared

to the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of

Residential ProPerlY.

,,Tolal Estimaled Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping properly taxes anticipated

to be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

point Study and existing properly tax rates for the current Fiscal Year. Existing property tax rates shall

30 Page 206

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



reflect the actual property tax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the Fiscal Year that the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation is comPleted.

Futurelssessor's parcel Changes * After an Efective Tax Rate Evaluation. The Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s)

created from a subdivision, lot line adjuitment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so thatthe

revised sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue is not

less than the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue amount described in the

Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment'

Method of Apportionment - Facilities Special Tax.-.After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation. The

CFD No. 23 IAZ Ad'ministrator shall determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the

Facilities Special rax until the amount of Facilities Special raxes equals the Facilities Special rax

Requiremeni. The Facilities Speeial Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Properly at

a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax in order to satisfr the Facilities special Tax Requirement.

Second: If additional monies are needed to satisfo the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after

the first step has been completed, ihe Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

proportionat"ly on all Small Lot Final Map Properly at a rate up to 100% of the

Effective Tax 
-Rate 

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax' The Facilities Special

Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for the entire portion of the

Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs'

Third: If additional monies are needed to satisfl' the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after

the first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

proportionately on all Permit Ready Multi-FamilyAlon-Residenlial Property at a rate

up io 100% of *t" Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax'

The Facilities Special Tax shatl be levied on Permit Ready Multi-FamilyAlon-

Residential lroperfy for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement,

excluding onlY PaY As You Go Costs'

Fourth: If additional monies are needed to satisfi the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after

the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

proportionately on all Large Lot Properry at arate up to 100% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximuni Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be

levied on Large Lot Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs'

F{th: If additional monies are needed to satisfu the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after

the first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

proportionately on all Undeveloped Property at arate up to 100% of the Effective Tax

RatL Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be

levied on Undeveloped Properry for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs'

3l Page 207

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Method of Apportionment - Serviees Special Tax. The CFD No' 23 IAZ Administrator shall

determine the Services Special Tax Requir"-"ni and levy the Services Special Tax until the amount of

Services Special Taxes eiuals the Services Special Tax Requirement. The Services Special Tax shall be

levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Properly at

a rate up to lbg% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfu the

Services Special Tax Requirement'

Second: If additional monies are needed to satis! the Services Special Tax Requirement after

the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionatiy on all Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100%o ofthe
Maximum Serryices Special Tax in order to satisfu the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

If additional monies are needed to satisff the Services Special Tax Requirement after

the first two steps have been completed, the services Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Permit Ready Multi-FamilyA',lon-Residential Propefi at a rate

up io 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfu the Services

Special Tax Requirement.

If additional monies are needed to satisff the Services Special Tax Requirement after

the first three steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to_100% of the Maximum

Services Special Tax in order to satisff the Services Special Tax Requirement'

Third:

,,Special Tax" meansthe annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in

each Fiscal year on each Assessoros Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement and the Services Special Tax Requirement'

,,Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means that amount of Special Tax revenue required in any

Fiscal year for the Improv"..nt Area to: (i) Pay Facilities Adminishative Expenses in an amount

designated by the City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year

begi"nning in such risll'yeariliii; puy other periodic costs on outstanding Bonds, including but not

liriited to-, credit enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required

to establish or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the Local

Obligations Indeniure; (u) puy for reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the

delinquency rate ioi 
'Sp""iul 

Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming

delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As You Go Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce

the annual Facilities Splcial Tax levy as determined by the CFD No. 23l\z Administrator pursuant

to the Local Obligations Indenture.

,,Authorized Services" means the landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light

maintenance, services, and expenses authorized to be financed by the Improvement Area'

,,services Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's parcel oiTaxable Proper{y to fund the Services Special Tax Requirement'

Fourth:

32 Page 208

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



,,services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required

in any Fiscal year for the Improvement Area to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an amount

aesignated by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to

esta6lish or replenish uny r"puii and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds

related to the Authorized Services expenses; (iu; .ou"t any shortfalls that exist if; in any Fiscal Year, the

levy of the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Propeffy is insufficientto pay

the Facilities Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year (Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls

shall not include pay As you Go Costs), and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services

Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal

y"ar; less (vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined

by the CFD No. 23IAZ Administrator.

In accordance with the flow of Special Tax proceeds under the Local Obligations Indenture, in

the event of a shortfall in the Facilities Special Tax to pay the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, the

proceeds of the Services Special Tax wili be applied to help cover the Facilities Special Tax shortfall

tefore being applied to fu;d Authorized Services. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT

FOR THE gONIS-Local Obligations Flow of Funds'"

Residential property Limitation. Under no circumstances will the Facilities Special Tax levied-in

any fiscal year against any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property be

increased as a consequence of delinquency or default by the owner or owners of any other parcel or

parcels within the Improvement Area by more than 10% above the amount that would have been levied

against such Assessois parcel in that fiscal year had there never been any such delinquencies or defaults.

pursuant to the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment, propefty is considered "Residential

propefty,, once a building permit could be issued for ihe purposes of constructing one or more Residential

Uniis, including either 
"single 

family detached homes or multi-family attached propefties, such. as

apartments, and prope4y is-considered "Developed Property" if a building permit for new construction

was issued priorio jun" :o of the previous fiscal year. See "CERTAIN RISKS To BONDHOLDERS-

Maximum Special Tax."

Special Tax Calculation

The following tables reflect the estimated Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax revenues"for Fiscal year 2024-25 (Table 4) and the estimated total Special Tax levy for

Fiscal year 2024-25 (Table 5), each based on the development status of the properties as of October

19,2023 (unless otherwise noied). The following tables do not necessarily reflect the Special Tax that

will be actually levied in any year.

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

33 Page 209

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Table 4
City of Folsom

Community Facitities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No.2

Estimated 2024-25 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Revenue

Development status as of october 19,2023 (unless otherwise noted)
Fiscal Year 2024-25

Planned
Units

Appraised
Value(l)

Estimated 2024-25
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum
Facilities llsvsnus(2x3)

Percentage of
Estimated 2024-25
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Revenue(a)

29%

29o/"

56Yo

560h

Propertv

Developed Property:
Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Developed ProPertY Total:

Small Lot Final MaP ProPertY:

Single'Family Detached Froperty - MLD Zoning

Small Lot Final MaP ProPertY Total:

83 s24,513,294 $ 193,942

83 524,513,294 $ 193,942

167 $ 36,869,706 $ 369,024

167 S 36,869,706 $ 369,024

Individual Hom eowners:

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Individual Homeowners Total:

Totals:

4t $ 23,270,000 $ 95,254 l4Yo

4l $ 23,270,000 $ 95,254 l4o/o

291 $ 84,653,000 $ 658,221 l00Vo

(l)Appraised value amounts provided by the Appraiser'
(2) Increases by 2o/o each Fiscal Year.
(3rThe 2024-25 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue amount is $?07,619. This includes 564,589 of Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum

Facilities Revenue associated with property that is welfare exempt and not subject to the Special Tax. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

for the taxable 291 single family units is $643,030.
(a) Tohls may not sum due to rounding.

Source: NBS.

34
Page 210

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Table 5
city of Folsom community Facitities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

ImProvement Area No. 2

Estimated 2024'25 Special Tax Levy

Development Status as of october 19,2A23 (unless otherwise noted)

Planned
Units

Estimated
2424-25

Facilities Special
Tax Levv(l)

Estimated
2024-25

Services Special
Tax Levy
$ 464

12.870

Estimated
2024-25

Total Special
Tax Levy

$ 9,548
216.s86

$ 194,018
109,268

$ 303,287

$ 100,008

Percent of
Estimated Total

Special Tax Levy(3)

2%
34%
360/"

3lYo
17o/o

480h

16%

Owner

Lennar
Lennar Homes(z)

Total for Lennar Homes(2):

Tri Pointe
Tri Pointe

Total for Tri Pointe:

Individual Homeowners

Totals:

Development Status

Developed PropertY
Small Lot Final Map ProPertY

Developed PropertY
Small Lot Final MaP ProPertY

Developed ProPertY

4 s 9,084

lll 203 716
115 s 212,800

$ 184,859

- 102.775

4t

$ 287,634

$ 95,254

$ 13,334 S 226,133

79
56

135

$ 9,160
6.493

$ 15,653

(l) Based on estimated debt service requirements for the Bonds plus Priority Administrative Expenses of $20,400' The

capitatized interest on a portion of the Local Obligations and, in tum, a portion of the Bonds, through September 1,2024'

(2) lncludes lots owned by the Landbank'
(3) Totals may not sum due to rounding.

Source: NBS.

29r $ 595,688

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

S4 754

$ 33,740 s 629,427 lO0o/o

estimated levy amount does not reflect thc

35 Page 211

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



The Teeter Plan

In 1949, the State Legislature enacted an alternative method for the distribution of secured

property taxes io local agenc-ies. This method, known as the Teeter Plan, is now set forth in

Sections 4701-4117 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. Upon adoption and implementation of

the Teeter plan by a county board ofsupervisors, local agencies for which the county acts as "bank" and

ceftain other pubiic ug"n"i". and taxing areas located in the county receive annually the full amount of

their share of properry"taxes on the secrired roll, including delinquent property taxes which have yet to be

collected. While a county benefits from the penalties associated with these delinquent taxes when they

are paid, the Teeter plan provides participating local agencies with stable cash flow and the elimination of

collection risk.

To implement a Teeter Plan, the board of supervisors of a county generally must elect to do so by

July 15 of the fiscal year in which it is to apply. The sacramento County Board of Supervisors has

adopted the Teeter plan. once adopted, u 
"ounty'r 

Teeter Plan will remain in effect in perpetuity unless

the board of supervisors orders its iiscontinuance or unless prior to the commencement of a fiscal year a

petition for discontinuance is received and joined in by resolutions of the governing bodies of not less

than two-thirds of the participating districts in the county. An electing county may, however, opt to

discontinue the Teeter plan with respect to any levying agency in the county if the board of supervisors,

by action taken not later than July 15 of a fiscal year, elects to discontinue the procedure with respect to

such levying agency and the ratgof secured tax delinquencies in that agency in any year exceeds 370 
9-f

the total of all taxes and assessments levied on the secured roll by that agency. See "CERTAIN RISKS

TO BONDHOLDERS-Teeter Plan Termination'"

Upon making a Teeter Plan election, a county must initially provide a participating local age[cY

with 95% of the estimated amount of the then accumulated tax delinquencies (excluding penalties) for

that agency. In the case of the initial year distribution of special taxes and assessments (if a county has

elected to include assessments), 100% of the special tax delinquencies (excluding penalties) are to. be

apportioned to the participating local agency *hi.tt levied the special tax. After the initial distribution,

eactr parti"ipating local alen"f receives annually 100% of the secured property tax levies to which it is

otherwise entitleJ, regardless of whether the county has actually collected the levies.

If any tax or assessment which was distributed to a Teeter Plan participant is subsequently

changed by correction, cancellation or refund, a pro rata adjustment for the amount of the change is made

on th-e rectrds of the i."urur", and auditor of the counfy. Such adjustment for a decrease in the tax or

assessment is treated by the County as an interest-free offset against future advances oftax levies under

the Teeter Plan.

The Special Tax for the District will be submitted to the County for direct levy' By submitting

the Special Tax to the County, the District has agreed to allow the District to participate in the County's

Teeter plan. The County annually determines whether to include a particular direct levy and may make

that determination on u iirt.i"t by district basis or a parcel by parcel basis. In addition, the County may

not decide to include a particulariarcel or district tha-t had been included in its Teeter Plan in the previous

year. The District can provide nb urrr.un.e that the County will continue to include the District or any

irprou".. nt areatherein, including the Improvement Area, in the Teeter Plan'

To the extent that the County's Teeter Plan continues in existence and is carried out as adopted,

the County,s Teeter plan may help protect the owners of the Bonds from the risk of delinquencies in

Special Taxes.

36
Page 212

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



THE AUTHORITY

The Authority was created by a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, effective April 20' 2015

(the ,,JpA Agreemeni,), between the city and the city of Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority. The^

JpA Agreement was entered into pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, Chapter 5 of Division 7 of

Title I of the Government Code of the State. The Authority was created for the purpose of facilitating

financing of public improvement facilities within the city south of uS Route 50.

THE CITY

The Improvement Area is located in the City, which is located in the easterly section of the^

Sacramento metropolitan area approximately 22 miles east of the central business district of the City of

Sacramento.

Certain economic and demographic information with respect to the City is contained in

AppENDIX B. This information is presented solely as background information. The Local Obligations

are not general obligations of the City but, rather, aie special tax obligations of the District secured solely

by the special Taxes to be paid uy trre owners of pioperty in the Improvement Area and funds held

pursuant to the Local Obligations Indenture'

THE IMPROVEMENT AREA

General Description and Location

The District is a community facilities district organized by the City Co-uncil as the legislative

body of the District under the Meilo-Roos Act for the purpose of providing for the acquisition and

construction of certain public improvements and the financing of certain services to serve propefy within

the District. The city established the District on May 26,2020,and designated six separate improvement

areas therein, including the Improvement Area. on May 26,202a, elections were held within the District

for each improvemen i ur"u therein at which the eligibie voters in each improvement area approved the

levy of special taxes in accordance with the respective Rate and.Method of Apportionment of Special Tax

for such improvemen t area. In addition, the eligible voters in the Improvement Area authorized the

issuance of bonds in an amount not to exceed $36,000'000 for the Improvement Area' In December 2021'

a seventh improvementareawas designated within the District, and in March 2023 change proceedings

for the lmprovement Area were held, whereby the eligible voters in the lmprovement Area approved the

Amended Rate and Method of Appo(ionment'

The District expeots that such bonds and any bonds issued for the other improvement areas within

the District from time io time will be issued to finance the authorized public facilities for the benefit of

the District. with respect to the Improvement Area, such bonds will be issued only in accordance with

the provisions of the Local obligaiions Indenture. The total bonded indebtedness authorized in the

Improvement Area will be limitedby the requirements-of{he Local obligations Indenture, including the

following.rquir.*"nt, relating to any Additional Local obligations: a 3:1 overlapping value to lien ratio

on all land projected to be subject to the levy of the Special Tax and 1 10%o annual coverage from the

Maximum Facilities Special tai for Taxable Propertry classified as Developed Property (as defined in the

Local obligations lnd'enture), plus the Effective- Tai Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue for

Taxable properfy not classifiei as Developed Property__(as defined in the Local Obligations Indenture)

t"., friority'Administrative Expenses. See "SSCiJRITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE

BONDS- Terms of the Local obligations-Additional Local obligations;'

37 Page 213

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



The lmprovement Area is located in the southern portion of the City, east of East Bidwell Street,

north of Mangini parkway and south of U.S. Highway 50 and consists of over 49 total gross acres, of

which approxlmately 31 acres are subject to the Special Tax. The maps appearing on the inside cover

pages show the general location of the District and the Improvement Area'

presently, the Improvement Area includes properties in varying stages of development, including

finished lots, homes under construction, and completed homes. Collectively, these properties are planned

to include 291 single family homes that are in the process of being constructed and sold by the

Homebuilders. The Improvement Area also includes approximately 5.8 acres that are expected to be

developed into a 152-unit affordable housing site that will receive a welfare exemption and be exempt

from the Special Tax. Construction of the public improvements and backbone infrastructure in the

Improvemept A..u is nearly complete, as more particularly described "PROPOSED PROPERTY

DEVELOpMENT-Development plans of Finance." The only remaining infrastructure required in

connection with the construction and sale of all expected 291 homes within the Improvement Area is the

completion of a traffic signal at the intersection of Mangini Parkway and Savannah Parkway' which is

required to be fully constiucted prior to the first home occupancy in Village 4 within the Improvement

Area. The Original Developer has commenced construction on this traffic signal and expects to have it

fully constructed and operational by March2024.

The Improvement Area is located southwest of a residential community under current

development known as Russell Ranch that is expected to include over 1,000 single family dwellings at

full build-out, is immediately east of Mangini Ranch, a partially developed residential community that is

also expected to includ" ou". 1,000 single family dwelling units at full build-out, and is west of an

additional residential community known as White Rock Springs that is also under development and

expected to include over 420 single family dwellings'

Property Values

An appraisal of the T61<able Property within the Improvement Area has been prepared by the

Appraiser in connection with the issuance of ihe Bonds. The appraisal estimaGs the properfy $ry -T-91
otiober lg,z0Z3 (the,.Appraisal"). The Appraisal is attached to this official Statement as APPENDIX

G.

As of the date of inspection, the Appraiser notes that development of the prope(y is underway'

The subject property was valued based on the hypothetical conditions that proceeds from the Bonds will

be used to reimburse infrastructure improvements completed and/or fees. The Appraisal is based on

property values at the time of inspection'

Subject to the assumptions, hypothetical condition and limiting conditions, the Appraiser

estimated that the value of the 'iaxable rroperry within the Improvement Area, as of October 19,2023, in

aggregate, is $g4,653,000. See .,pRoposgo pRopERTY DEVELOPMENT-Development Plan and

Status of Development" below and APPENDIX G - 
*APPRAISAL'"

Value-to-Lien AnalYsis

The following table sets forth the ratios of the appraised property values of the Taxable Properly

to the total liens on th-e property in the Improvement Area based on the development status of the property

as of October 19,Za2i. ihe-following table shows the value-to-lien ratios for the Improvement Area

based on the development status of tne Taxable Property as of October 19, 2023, for (i) Developed

parcels and Small Lot finat Map parcels, (ii) the four villages within the Improvement Area (Village l,
Village 2, Village 3, and Village 4;, and (iii) the owners of the Taxable Properly (which in some cases

reflects the expected futur" owner). See "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Development

38 Page 214

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Entitlements.,, The following table also shows the estimated Facilities Special Tax levy for Fiscal Year

2024-25 based on the propJrties' current map status as Developed Property and Small Lot Final Map

property. The value-to-lien ratio for the Improvement Area based solely on the Local Obligations and the

app.ais"a value of the land within the Improvement Area is 8.3*:1.0. The overall value to overlapping

dett ratio, including certain overlapping general obligation tax and assessment debt and CFD 17 special

o* d.bt, is7.2':L0"1tr"..-Overlaiping-Debt"). Any bonds secured by special assessments or special

taxes issued from time to time rnuy'h"u" the effect of reducing the value to lien ratio on property within

the Improvement Area.

Table 6
City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

ImProvement Area No.2
Appraised Value-to-Lien Ratios

Development Status as of October 1912023

Planned

Estimated
2024-25

Maximum
Facilities

Units Revenue(r) Tax Levy(2)

ShareofLocal OverlaPPing
Obligationsta)' Debt

Estimated
202425
Facilities
Special Appraised

Value(3)

Local
Obligations

Value to
tri.n(s)'

Overall
Value to
Lien(s)'

By Development Status

Developed

Small Lot Final Map
Total

By Village and Developer:

Villagel-TriPointe
Village2-TriPointe
Village3-TriPointe
Village4-LennarHomes
Total

Bv Ownershio Groun:Gffi--
Tri Pointe

Individual Homeowners
Total

$289, I 96
369,024

$289,196 s47,783,294
306,491 36,869,706

s4,9'.76,203
5,273,797

$ 684,850 9.6 8.4124
167 852,644 7.0 .. 6.0

291 $658,221 $595,688 $84rs3J00 $10,250,000 $1,537n491 8.3 7.2

100
41

35
115

$22s,628
96,969
81,260

254,364

$21 1,399 $31,680,000
95,097 18,012,000

76,393 8,902,000
212,800 26,059,000

$ 512,387 8.7
236,681 I1.0
168,719 6.8

7.6
9.6
6.0

$3,637,538
1,636,329
r,314,489
3,661,645 6t9,704 7.1 6.1

291 $658,221 $595,688 $84,653,000 $10n250,000 $1,537n491 8.3 7.2

ll5
135

4l

$2s4,364
308,603

95,254

$658,221

$3,661,645
4,949,321
t,639,034

$ 619,704
116,994
200,792

7.1

7.1

14.2

6.r
6.2

12.6

$212,800 $26,059,000
287,634 35,324,000
95,254 23,270,000

$595,688 $84,653,000 $10,250,000 $t,5370491 8.3 17
291

' Preliminary, subject to change.
(t) Increases Ly 2% each Fiscil year. The2024-25 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue amount is

$707,61g. This includes $64,5gg of Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue associated with Property that

is weifare exempt and not subject to.the Special Tax. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue for the

taxable 291 single family units is $643'030.
(2) Based on estimated debi service requirements for the Bonds plus Priority Administrative Expenses of $20,400. The e stimaled

levy amount does not reflect the capitalized interest on a portion of the Local Obligations and, in tum, a portion of the Bonds,

through September 1, 2024.
{r) Appriir"d value amounts provided by the Appraiser. See "-Property Values'"
(a) Ailocated based on the projected Fiscal Year 2024-25 Facilities Special Tax levy.
(j) Value io lien ratio is foi ttre Local Obligations. Local Obligations are issued in the same principal amount of the Bonds.

(6) Reflects lots lor which Lennar Homes has an option to purchase'

Source: Except as otherwise noled, NBS'

* 
Preliminary, subject to change.

39 Page 215

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Estimated Tax Burden on Single Family Home'

The following table sets forth the estimated total tax burden on multi-family low density-

residential property 0r4ln) within the Improvement Area, presented as an estimate of the majority of

proposed homes to be 
"onstructed 

in the Improvement Area, based on estimated tax rates for Fiscal Year

2023-24.

Table 7

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
ImProvement Area No.2

Single Family Residential Property Sample Property Tax Bill
Estimated Charges for Fiscal Year 2023'24

MLD

Assessed Value(l)

Less: Homeowner ExemPtion

Net Assessed Value

Ad Valorem(2)
General Purpose Ad Valorem Tax (Proposition l3)
Los Rios College Generai Obligation
Folsom-Cordova Unified School District Improvement Dist' 2

Folsom-Cordova Unified School District Improvement Dist' 3

Total Ad Valorem Taxes

SpeciaVDirect Assessments and Taxes
Folsorn community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) - Imp- Area No. 2(3)

Folsorn conrmunity Facilities District No, 23 (Folsom Ranch) - Imp'-Area No. 2 (a)

Folsom Community Facilities District No. 17 (Willow Hill Pipeline){s)

Folsom Community Facilities District No. l8 (Folsom PIan Area)(6)

Sacramento Area Flood Control(?)

Total Special/Direct Assessments and Taxes

Total Estimated Annual Property Taxes

Effective Tax Rate(8)

s 550,000

,000)

Tax Rate

L0000%
0.0192%
a.0206%
0.2063%

$ 543,000

$ 5,430.00
104.26
r 11.86

t,120.21

l.246lYo S 6,766-32

$ 2,406.60
1t3.67

48.67
794.t1

1.50

$ 3,364.55

$10,130.87
1.8420Vo

(1t- Estimated based upon appraised value amount provided by the Appraiser, for a sample residential unit'
(2) Based upon Fy 2til3-z4'sacramento County ad valorem propeffy tax rates for TRA 04-035.

(3) Fiscal year Z0Z3-24 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Annual Facilities Special Tax for a multi-family low density unit with

residential floor area between 2,000 and 2,399 square feet. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Annual Facilitiss Special Tax

escalates anotallY at 2Yo.

{4) Fiscal year 2023-24 Maximum Annual Services Special Tax for a multi-family low density unit with residential floor area between

2,000 and 2,399 square feet. The Maximum Annuai Services Special Tax escalates annually based upon the annual June cPI change'

for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose are, not to exceed 4%o'

(5) Fiscal year 2023-24 Maximum Annual Special Tax. The Maximum Annual Special Tax escalates ann]ually at20/o.

{6) Fiscal year 2023-Z4Maximum Annual Special Tax. The Maximum Annual Special Tax excludes the Willow Hill Pipeline Special Tax,

which is currently reflected under Folsom community Facilities District No. 17 (willow Hill Pipeline). The Area-wide Special rax

escalates annually at 2vo andthe Maintenance Special rax and rDM Services Special Tax escalate annualiy based upon the annual

June CPI Change, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose are' not to exceed 47o'

(?) Approximate assessmeot for residential lots. Based upon lot size'
(s) Estimate of annual properly taxes does not include uny n.* special_financing district fees, assessments, andlor special taxes imposed by

the state, county, or local agencies that are yet to Le established or uny frture annexation into,existing special financing districts

required by conditions for approval of development or any other imposed requirement. Information contained within is based upon

reiords and official documenti provided by various govemmental agencies and third-parly sources,

40 Page 216

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Overlapping Debt

Set forth below is an overlapping debt table showing the existing authorized indebtedness payable

with respect to property within the'Impiovement Area. Additional indebtedness could be authorized by

other pullic agencies it uny time. Funher, a portion of the overlapping debt shown in the table below is

based on the assessed value of the underlying property, which can be expected to increase over time as

development occurs and the assessed value grows. Thiq table has been prepared by California Municipal

Statistics, Inc. as of Novembe r 1,2023,and is included for general information purposes only' other than-

with respect to cFD 17, the table below allocates overlapping debt based on the assessed value of

properfy and not on taxes paid. The District and the Authority have not reviewed the data for

completeness or accuracy andmake no representations in connection therewith.

The City authorized the issuance of up to $8,000,000_of bonds for CFD 17, of which $6,675,000

has been issued. Further, the City authorized the issuance of up to $200,000,000 in bonds for CFD 18'

The timing of issuance of bonds for CFD 18 is dependent upon market conditions and development

within the Folsom plan Area. The City currently anticipates that an initial series of CFD 18 bonds will be

issued to finance the phase 24 Water Facilities (as defined herein), although the timing and amount of

any CFD 1g bond issuance is not yet known. A portion of any bonds issued for CFD 18 will constitute

ovlrlapping debt. other community facilities districts formed in the Folsom Ranch area will overlap

CFD ili aricl potentially CFD 17 buf are not expected to overlap the Improvement Area. The lien of the

Special Taxes for the i*p.oo"*"nt Area is on parity with the lien of the special taxes for CFD 17 and

cFD 18.

Direct assessments and levies payable with respect to property within the Improvement Area

could potentially include up to $750 
-*iuion 

of general obligation bonds fo1 the School Facilities

Improvement District No.3 of the Folsom Cordova Unified School District ("SFID 3"), approved by

voters on March zj,20a:,. 5FID 3 encompasses approximately 52.6 square miles of land including the

District and additional territory outside of ihe District, including territory in the city of Rancho cordova

and unincorporated Sacramento County. As of November 73, 2023, general obligation bonds jn !h:
aggregate principal amount of approximately $195.6 million.had been issued and approximately $182'2

million were outstanding for Sfffi :. At the-time of the election approving the SFID 3 general obligation

bonds, the ballot ,u*riury indicated the average tax rate per $100,000 assessed valuation would be

$73.61 . For 2023-z4,the actual SFID 3 tax rate per $100,000 was approximately $206'30' The following

table sets forth the ad valorem tax rates for SFID 3 over the past five years. The future tax levy per

property owner in SFID 3 may vary depending on future bond issuance andlor changes in assessed value.

Table 8
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
ImProvement Area No. 2

SFID 3 Ad Valorem Rates

Year Rate(t)

2023-24
2022-23
2021-22
2020-21
2A19-20
2018-19
201'l-18

0.2063%
0.2758%
0.388r%
0.2065%
0.1366%
a.r45l%
0.1878%

(r) 1p,4 94-935
Source: NBS.

41 Page 217

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Table 9
CitY of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
ImProvement Area No. 2

OverlaPPing Debt

?023-24 Local SeoursdA$B$secl-y3luatlgg: $35,094,315 (Land and Improvements)

DITTECI'AND OVERLAPPING TAX AW:
Los Rios Community College District
Folsom-Cordova Unified School District School Facilities Improvement District No. 2

Folsom-cordova unified School District School Facilities Improvement District No. 3

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. l7
City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.23' I'A' 2
TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT

OVERLAPPING GENERAL EUNL DEBI:

Sacramento County General Fund Obligations

Sacramento County Pension Obligation Bonds

Sacramento County Board of Education Certificates of Participation

City of Folsom General Fund Obligations
rbrer- cRoss ovERLAPPING GENERAL FLND DEBT

Less: Sacramento County supported obligations

TOTAL NET OVERLAPP'NG GENSRAL FIJND DEBT

9zo Anpliesbls

0.013%
0.185
0.758
l.s l4

100.

0.0t6%
0.016
0.016
0.1 80

Debt I l/l/23

$ s2,756
18,688

1,381,620
84,421

0(r)

$1,537,491

$ 16,784

68,628
341

l.l 18

$ 86,871

r.752
$ 85,1 19

GROSS COMBINED TOTAL DEBT
NET COMBINED TOTAL DEBT

$1,624,362Q)
$l,622,610

(r) Excludes Mello-Roos Bonds to be sold.
(z) Excludss tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revsnue and non-bonded capital lease obligations'

Ratios to ?023-24 l-ocal Sccurcd Asscsssd Valuntion:

Direct Debt ($0)..'....'........ """""""""""' 0'00%

Total Direct and-Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt"""""""' """""4'38o/o
GROSS Combined Total Debt...'.."..." """4'63%
Net Combined Total Debt,.... """"""""""'4'620/o

Source: Califomia Municipal Statistics, lnc.

Historical Special Tax LevY

The Special Tax (including both the Facilities SpecialTax and the Services Special Tax) was first

levied in the Improvement Area for Fiscal Year2022-23 in the total amount of $11,911.44' The Fiscal

year 2022-2-3 Special Tax was levied upon six parcels. As of November 1, 2023, no parcels in the

Improvement ArLa were currently delinquent. Foi Fiscal Year 2023-24, the Special Tax (including both

the Facilities Special Tax and the Services Special Tax) will be levied on all 291 lots comprising the

Taxable Property in the aggregate amount of $202,515'50'

PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Development Entitlements

Speci{ic plan. On June 28,2011, the City Council approved the Specific Plan for the

deuelopililiii t02t0 residential homes along with commercial, industrial/office park, open space,

public schools, parks, infrastructure and other land uses on the 3,573.4 acre site of the Folsom Plan Area.

42 Page 218

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



At build out, projected to occur over a 2}-year time frame, the_Folsom Plan Area is projected to have a

population of'approxim ately 24,362 persons. Along with the 1,455.6 acres of residential development

ihe adopted sp""ln" plan called for 511.3 acres of 
"otn."."ial, 

office/industrial and mixed-use,309'5

acres of public uno quasi-public use (public and private schools, parks and infrastructure);173-6 acres of

major roads and 1,063 acres ofopen space'

Various property owners have submitted and received approvals of Specific Plan Amendments

(,,SpA,s,,) since ih" ZOf i City Council adoption. These approved SPA's have resulted in various land use

"hung., 
compared to the Specific Plan thai was originally approved in 2011, including an increasein the

total entitled unit count to i l,+61 dwelling units anJ reduction to approximately 2.8 million square feet of

commercial, office/industrial and mixed use'

The Specific plan is designed to guide and regulate the development for the area within the City

south of US Route 50.

Fi"WI.Mapping. To date, final maps have been- approved and recorded for all Taxable Propeffy

within the lmprovemlnt Area. bevelopment within the Improvement Area is entitled for 291 single

family homes. tnesign ,euiew approval, which provides for City review of the home plans, architecture

and conformance to Jertain deveiopment standards, has been completed for all 291 units']

Based on the final subdivision maps and zoning entitlements, the property within the

Improvement Area is entitled to be developid into 291.-multi-family low density units, which the

Homebuilders expect to construct as detached single-family homes. Multi-family low density zoned

properties, including the Taxable Property in the Improvement Area, can include 7 to 12 dwelling units

per gross acre.

Sile Access. External access to the project site will.be provided via Savannah Parkway to the east

una vuffiTirt*ay to the north. pedestiian circulation is provided by a combination of street-

separated- sidewalks," open space trails, park trails and pathway connections' Proposed on-site

improvements incluie: underground utilitiei, drainage improvements, retaining walls, driveways' on-

strlet parking, curbs/gutters, s"idewalks, pathways, trails, fencing, site lighting, site landscaping, and park

enhancements.

Design Guidefilrys. The Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines (of which the

I.prou"ilffiA* is a part) were approved by the city concurrent with the Tentative Map approvals on

June23,2015. The design guidelines provide for the orderly development of the proposed single family

residential subdivision. 
- 

Tf,e primary purpose of these disign guidelines is to articulate the general

architectural and design expfctations- foi the proposed residential neighborhood, the landscapes,

hardscapes, op"n rpu""i fencing, entry features and site lighting. The goal ofthe design guidelines is to

establish a regulatory iru*.*oi[ for the design of individual homes on the residential lots' The final

design details-of th"'hor". are subject to review and approval by the city's Planning commission as part

of a future Design Review application.

Develonment Cenditions/Bttilclina. Pqrnlit Lintitgttions. Certain provisions of the PFFP for the

FolsomPlanArea,visionmapconditions,p1acelimitson.the
number of building p.r i" ,rr" can be iss'ued before certain facilities and/or backbone infrastructure is in

place. These prouirionr/conditions could, but are not expected to, affect build-out of the Improvement

Area.

For example, tentative map conditions require a fire station to be operational prior to the

occupancy of the l,5dOth home in the Folsom Plan ArLa. See "FoLSoM PLAN AREA-Public Facilities

43 Page 219

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Financing plan-public Facilities - the Folsom Plan Area" for details on the City's plans for construction

of the fire station. The City is responsible for building and operating this fire station and would expect to

waive or modi! this condition as it deems necessary to balance development within the Folsom Plan

Area and the increasing fire service needs of the Folsom Plan Area as development progresses' rne 
-c]!

commenced construction on the first fire station servicing the Folsom Plan Area during September 2022'^

The city currently exfects construction of this first fire .tation to be completed during the third quarter of

2024.

phase 2 Water lnfrastructurg. The City estimates the Phase 1 Water Facilities (as defined herein)

have a sustained *uri-i*Juy aorand of up to 2 million gallons. A study prepared by Peterson

Brustad, Inc. in April2019 thenestimated that water usage would equal or exceed a-.sustained maximum

day demand of up to 2 million gallons when approximately 2,800 to 3,300 dwelling units within the

Folsom plan Area had been occui-ied. Certain waier backbone facilities are required to be constructed to

provide expanded water transmission conveyance capabilities_to deliver water from the water treatment

plant to tG Folro* plan Area (collectively, the "Phase 2._Water Facilities"). These water backbone

facilities include a water pipeline (the "Phase 2A Water Facilities") along with water tanks and a booster

pump station (the ..Remaining phase 2 Water Facilities") that will also be needed following the

"ornpt"tion 
of the phase 24 Water Facilities to allow for full buildout of the Folsom Plan Area.

See ..pROposED pROpERTy DEVELOPMENT - Development Entitlements - water supply

Infrastructure,, below for a more detailed discussion of the Phase 2 Water Facilities and their expected

timing and cost.

Developers within the Folsom Plan Area have requested that the Phase 2 Water Facilities be

funded in whole or in partthrough bonds issued for CFD 18 and certain pay-go proceeds from CFD 17

and CFD lg special taxes. See "FoLSoM PLAN AREA-Folsom Plan Area Development" for a

discussion of certain development and investment that has already occurred within the Folsom Plan Area

and additional future development and investment that is anticipated as the Folsom Plan Area continues to

be developed. The timing tf irruun"" of bonds for CFD 18 is dependent upon market conditions and

development within the F:olsom plan Area and there can be no assurance that bond proceeds-will be

available when needed to construct the Phase 2 Water Facilities or to reimburse the developers for costs

expended therefor.

Based on the current stage of planning for the Phase 2A Water Facilities, the Homebuilders and

the District do not believe that these conditions will materially impede developrnent of the lmprovement

Area as currently planned. However, multiple other development projects are underway in the Folsom

plan Area, and ilthere were an unforeseen and significant delay in construction in the Improvement frga
it is possible that other development within the Folsom Plan Area will overtake development of the

Improvement Area, resulting in ttre need for completion of the Phase 2A Water Facilities before all

development could be completed within the Improvement Area.

On May 22, 2014, the U'S. ArmY Corps of Engineers (the
Lg'esments and Sqgtlan |06 Compliqnce'
'USRCOE") issued a Record of Decision ("ROD") for the Folsom South of U S. Highway 50 Specific

Plan Project City of Folsom Backbone Infrastructure. This wetland permit covered the wetland

permitting requirements for the entire backbone infrastructure necessary to serye the Folsom Plan Area'

To the extent backbone infrastructure was required within a properly owner's land, the backbone wetland

permit authorized the fitling of waters of the U S. necessary for such construction. Each landowner

thereafter is requ ired to obtain their own wetland permit for the fill ofjurisdictional wetlands not included

in the footprint of the backbone wetland Permit. As di
required environmental PermitsArea has received all

44

scussed in greater detail below, the Folsom Plan

Page 220

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Development Agreement Through City Ordinance No. 1149, the City approved a Tier l

nru"topr*tTgr-i-"fr u"t**n the city and the property owners within the Folsom Plan Area on

July 12, 2011. The effective date of the ordinance was August ll, 2011. The Tier 1 Development

Agreement vests certain rights of the property owners and of the City and commits each party to the

afreements to subsequent actions before development may proceed within_ the Folsom Plan Area'

SZparate First Amendea and Restated Tier I Develbpment Agreements (the "ARDAs") were entered into

among certain property owners and the City for their applicable properties, as approved by the City

throufh city oidinan"L No. 1211. The aRDls for the property owners comprising the properly within

the Iriprovement Area were recorded in the official records of the County of Sacramento in July 2014.

The City entered into Amendment No. 1 to the ARDA with Carpenter East, which was recorded in the

official records of the County of Sacramento in January 2016. The City also entered into Amendment

Nos. 1 and 2 to the ARDA with Folsom Real Estate South, which were each recorded in the official

records of the County of Sacramento in January 2016. See "PROPOSED PROPERTY

DEVELOPMENT-Property Ownersh ip."

Article 2.5 (commencing with Section 65864), of Chapter 4, Division l, -Title 7 of the State

Government Code, pertaining io development agreements, has the general effect of authorizing

development to continue in accordance with then existing General Plan, Specific Plan, zoning and

subdivision regulations notwithstanding any subsequently enacted conflicting regulations, except for

regulations thJfaiture of which to enact would place the residents in a condition which is dangerous to

their health or safety or both.

Envircnmental pennits and Approval.t The California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"),

"on.tituicResourcesCode(commencingwithSection21000)requiresthat an Environmental Impact Report (an "EIR"), detailing the significant environmental effects of the

project and proposed mitigation measures, be prepared, considered and certified as complete by a public

ug"n"y prioi to'its taking-discretionary action on any project which may have a significant effect on the

environment.

In June 2011, after statutorily required public notice, hearing and comment, the City Council

certified as adequate and complete a nnl EIR/EIS for the Specific Plan for the development of the

Folsom plan Area. The EIR/EIb satisfied both CEQA and the National Environmental Policy Act for the

entirety of the Folsom plan Area. In February2015, the City Council of the City adopted the South of

Highway 50 Backbone lnfrastructure projeci Initial Study/\4itigated Negative Declaration (Backbone

Iniastructure MND), dated December g,ial4. This CEQA project level document satisfied the required

environmental review for the construction of backbone infrastructure for the entire Folsom Plan Area,

including the Improvement Area'

The Folsom Plan Area has received all required environmental permits, including a Section 404

permit for the entire Folsom plan Area pursuant io Section 404 of the federal Clean Water Act' This

permit allows for any necessary fill of jurisdictional wetlands and streambed alterations for the

lonstruction of backbone infrastructure to sirve the entire Folsom Plan Area at build-out' In addition, a

Biological Opinion has been obtained from the US Fish and Wildlife Service for the entire Folsom Plan

Area,iogether with a California Department of Fish and Wildlife Master Streambed Alteration Permit

with conditions for the whole of thi Folsom Plan Area. All of the property in the Improvement Area

subject to the Special Tax has received its Section 404 Permit and a subnotification approval from the

California Department of Fish and Wildlife'

Water Suppllt The City entered into an agreement (the "Water Supply Agreement") with the^

prop"rty- lf,e Folsom Plan Area providing for a water supply for new development south of

US Route 50. The Water Supply Agreement was supported by an addendum to the EIR. The Water

45 Page 221

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Supply Agreement provides adequate water supply for full build out of the Improvement Area and the rest

of the Folsom plan Area (exceptihe portion of the Folsom Plan Area serviced by the El Dorado Inigation

District). The amount of water prouid"d in the Water Supply Agreement to meet the build-out demands

of the Folsom Plan Area project is projected to be 5,600 acre-feet annually.

Water Supply in Folsom Generqlly. The primary water supply source for the City of Folsom is

FolsomersupplyforalloftheCitysouthoftheAmericanRiver'The
City has water rights and contracts for up to 34,000 acre-feet annually ("afa") through three different

contracts with the United States Bureau of Reclamation ("Reclamation"). The surface water supplies

were developed through different circumstances and, as such, are subject to unique conditions and

limitations. These attributes and issues affect the volume of water available under certain conditions.

Surface water supply for the portions of the City north of the American River is obtained through a

contract with the 
-Sin 

luan Water District, and therefore is not a directly owned City supply. The surface

water supplies for the City's water service area are listed below'

, A pre-1914 appropriative water right for 22,000 acre-feet per year (Agreement with

Reclamation)

. A pre-1914 appropriative water right for 5,000 acre-feet per year (Co-Tenancy agreement

with Golden State Water ComPanY)

r d Central Valley Project ("CVP") repayment contract for 7,000 acre-feet per year

The City,s 22,A00 acre-foot entitlement is based on a pre-1914 appropriative right from the South

Fork of the Amlrican River established by the Natoma Water Company ("Natoma") in 1851 . Natoma's

original pre-1914 water right established a maximum diversion rate "to fill a Canal Eight feet wide and

roir feei deep with a cunent running Ten miles per hour." This correlates to a diversion rate of 60 cubic

feet per .""ond and a maximum allccation of 32,000 afa. This right is held with Golden State Water

Company pursuant to a co-tenancy agreement. The City's 5,000 acre-foot entitlement is also based on

Natomais pre-1914 appropriative right from the South Fork of the American River. In November 7994,

the City executed a contract with Southern California Water Company-Folsom Division ("SCWC") under

which 
-tttr 

city acquired the right to lease 5,000 afa (of SCWC's remaining 10,000 afa under the original

Natoma purchase) for an indefinite period. This right is held with Golden State Water Company pursuant

to a co-tenancy agreement. This water right was also formally recognized in the settlement agreement

between Reclamation and the City. As authorized by Public Law No. 101-514, the City was a

subcontractor under Sacramento County Water Agency's (SCWA) CVP water-service contract for 7,000

afa. In 2016, the United States, the City and SCWA completed an assignment of this portion of SCWA's

CVp water-service contract from SCWA to the City. In February 2A2A, the City and Reclamation

executed a contract that converted the CVP water-service contract into a CVP repayment contract as

authorized under the Water Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation Act.

Under the agreements with Reclamation for 22,000 afa and 5,000 afa, Reclamation delivers this

entire water supply without reduction on a perrnanent basis. Under the agreement with Reclamation for

7,000 afa of CVp water, this water supply faces possible reductions pursuant to Reclamation's Municipal

and Industrial Water Shortage policy. ln 1994, the City entered into an agreement with Golden State

Water Company (f/k/a Southern California Water Company, herein "GSWC") to acquire the right to

divert up to'5,000 acre feet of pre-I914 water rights annually (the "GSWC Agreement"), subject to the

terms and conditions of that agreement. Under the GSWC Agreement, the City is required to pay for the

entire 5,000 acre-feet annual water supply regardless of whether the City is able to divert and use that

quantity of water. The City uses the .uppli"r provided in the GSWC Agreement to serve the Folsom Plan

46 Page 222

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Area. The cost of water under the GSWC Agreement is paid for by Folsom Plan Area landowners and

water customers.

Sottrce of Water.lbr the Folsom PIan Area. The City has determined that its Water Systems

opti*i,nofmeteredrateswillprovideadditionalwatersupplies
in an estimated amount Jf o,+so u"r"-f""t per year, which is in addition to the present and forecasted

demands of the City,s existing water users. The City intends to use a portion of this 6,450 acre-feet per

year of available water to meet present and future water demand in the East Area in order to make the

5,000 acre-feet per year of GSWC Agreement water supply available for use in the Folsom Plan Area' on

the terms and conditions of that Agreement. To meet this intent, the City converted the East Area water

supply from the GSWC Agreemeni to the less expensive CVP repayment contract. The City would meet

tne adaitional build-out wier demand of the Folsom Plan Area with approximately 600 acre-feet per year

of water produced by the Water Systems Optimization Review Program that is in excess of the water

demand in the East Area. The water made available under the GSWC Agreement and Water Systems

Optimization Review program will be sufficient to supply the projected water deman! in the Folsom Plan

Area. pursuant to the frovisions of Sections 860 et seq. of the State Code of Civil Procedure and

Government Code Sections 53511 and 53589.5, the city filed a complaint in the Superior court of the

State for the County of Sacramento to validate the agreement. The Superior Court determined that the

agreement: (a) is lawful, valid, enforceable and in the best interests of the City and all persons in any way

interested therein and (b; is consistent with all applicable laws and obligations, including the Measure W

water supply requirement.

The City,s Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Water Facilities and Supply) (the "Water

CFD,') was formed by the City in 2014. The cost of the GSwc Agreement water will initially be paid for

by the Folsom plan irea through special taxes collected for the water CFD on certain property in the

Folsom plan Area, including the Improvement Area. When a building permit has been issued and a

customer billing account hasleen established, the developed parcel is no longer subject to the levy of the

special tax for ih" Wut"r CFD and thereafter pays for water through water rates.

la'uter consencttiotr. The City adopted ordinance_J118, Chapter 13.26 of the Folsom Municipal

Cod" 1,.FMC{ Wafitonservation. 
-Chaper 

13.26 establishes a five stage water conservation program

with conservation goals and water use restrictions. The City Manager is authorized to implement and

enforce whatever conservation measures are deemed necessary to achieve the water reduction

requirements of the declared conservation stage'

Water SAppl!, Inf:agtfActure. Existing water infrastructure and pipelines run to the north side of

US Route 50. ro. tfie fr=t ptru."-f infrastructure, the developers of the Folsom Plan Area constructed

improvements to connect this water supply and extend lvater 
infrastructure pipelines to serve the initial

phase. of development in the Folsom Plan Area (the "Phase I Water Facilities"). In the next phase, the

irhur. 2 Water Facilities will be constructed to provide expanded water transmission conveyance

capabilities to deliver water frbm the water treatment plant to the Folsom Plan Area' ln order for each

individual parcel to access that water supply, the developers of those parcels will need to extend

infrastructure to their sites'

The phase I Water Facilities were completed in August 2018. The City estimates the Phase 1

Water Facilities (as defined herein) have a sustained maximum day demand of up to 2 million gallons. A

study prepared by peterson Brustad, Inc, in April 2019 then estimated that water usage would equalgJ

exceed a sustained maximum day demand of up to 2 million gallons when approximately 2,800 to 3,300

dwelling units within the Folsom plan Area had been occupied. During summer 2021 as a result of high

levels of construction activity, the maximum day water demand exeeeded 2 million gallons for several

days with no service interruption to the water system'

47 Page 223

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



The phase 2 Water Facilities are required to be constructed to provide expanded water

transmission conveyance capabilities to deliver water from the water treatment plant to the Folsom Plan

Area. The phase 2 Water Facilities include the Phase 2A Water Facilities (consisting of a water pipeline)

and the Remaining Phase 2 Water Facilities (consisting of water tanks and a booster pump station)'

Based on a preliminary analysis conducted by certain developers within the Folsom Plan Area and

reviewed uy ihe city, the phase 24 water Facilities are expected to cost approximately $23 million and

take lg months to construct. The City expects to solicit bids for the construction of the Phase 2A Water

Facilities in late 2023 and enter into one or more contracts forthe construction of the Phase 24 Water

Facilities in the first quarter of 2024. The city expects construction to commence in the second quarter of

2024 andfor construction to last approximaiely 18 months. The actual cost of, and the timing for, the

construction of the phase 24 Wat"i Facilities may vary significantly from these estimates based on a

variety of factors.

As of October 3l,Z1z3,final maps had been approved and recorded for 4,451 dwelling units.

Also as of october 31,2)z3,building permits for 3,318 units and2,639 certificates of occupancy had

been issued in the Folsom plan Area for projects underway, which include, but are not limited to, the City

of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 19 (Mangini Ranch) ("CFD 19"), the City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 20 (Russell Ranch) ("CFD 20"), the City of Folsom Community

Facilities District No. 21 (White Rock Springs Ranch) ("CFD 21"), the City of Folsom Community

Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I ("CFD 23 IA1"), the Improvement

Area, the City of Folsom iommunity Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3

(,.CFb 23 lA3.), and the CitV oi Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

i*prou"1n"r,t Area No. 4 ("CFi 23 IA4'). Collectively, CFD 19, CFD 20, CFD 21, cFD 23 IA1, the

Improvement Area, CFD 23 IA3, and CFD IA4 are expected to include 4,961 dwelling units,

approximately 3,339 of which had been issued building permits and approximately 4,259 of which had

received final map approval as of October 37,2023 '

. Following the completion of the Phase 2A Water Facilities, the City expects that the water

facilities servicing the Folsom plan Area will have a maximum day demand of up to 3'0 million gallons.

The City estimates that water usage within the Folsom Plan Area would equal or exceed the increased

maximum day demand of up to gl0 million gallons when approximately 4,200 to 4,900 dwelling units

within the Folsom Plan Area had been occupied'

The timing by which the Remaining Phase 2 Water Facilities will be needed will depend on a

variety of factors, including water demand amounts within the Folsom Plan Area, the amount of

additional water transmission conveyance capability generated by the Phase 2A Water Facilities, any

events impacting the capacity of tne existing water infrastructure, and any other factors that increase

water demand or decreas" *ut", transmission capacity. As a result, the City cannot yet predictty wh:l
the Remaining phase 2 Water Facilities will be needed. The City expects to use the proceeds of CFD 

_18

bonds to finance the Remaining phase 2 Water Facilities. However, the timing of issuance of bonds for

CFD l g is dependent upon *urrk.t conditions and development within the Folsom Plan Area and there

can be no assurance thai bond proceeds will be available when needed to timely construct the Remaining

phase 2 Water Facilities. The City continues to evaluate water usage and needs within the Folsom Plan

Area. See .,PROPOSED pROpERTy DEVELOPMENT-Development Entitlements-water supply

Infrastructure,, below for details on the status of the Phase 2,{ Water Facilities and the current plan for

their construction and financing.

Based on current development plans and discussions with the developers within the Folsom Plan

Area, and subject to variations due to water usage for construction within the Folsom Plan Area, the City

estimates that the phase I Water Facilities will riach their maximum day capacity in the summer of 2024-

An increase in residential water demand, an event impacting the capacity of the Phase 1 Water Facilities,

48 Page 224

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



or other factors that increass water demand or decrease capacity could cause the City to reevaluate this

estimated date and could adversely impact the develop-"nt of properly within the Folsom Plan Area if
water demand is expected to exceed capacity before the Phase 2 Water Facilities are complete'

The City continues to evaluate water usage and needs within the Folsom Plan Area but there can

be no assurance that the construction of the Phase 2A Water Facilities will be completed in time 
-to

prevent delays to residential and commercial development in the Folsom Plan Area. In the event that the

phase 24 Water Facilities are not constructed in a timely manner, future development in the Folsom Plan

Area may be stopped or the City may take other remedial actions, such as implementing water

conservation measures, halting discretionary approvals, or taking other actions. If the Phase 2A Water

Facilities are not con.tru"t"Jin a timely manner, water pressure to the Folsom Plan Area could be

impacted for existing development in thl Folsom Plan Area, which could have a negative impact on

property values, init,rding within the Improvement Area. Additionally, increased residential or

construction water usage aiproaching the maximum capacity of the current water facilities (including if
exacerbated by the phise 2A Water Facilities not being constructed in a timely fashion) or a reduction in

the capacity of *r. current water facilities could caJse the City to consider restricting the continued

development of the Folsom Plan Area, including within the Improvement Area. See "CERTAIN RISKS

TO BONDHOLDERS-Failure to Develop'"

In addition to the Phase 2 Water Facilities, the City anticipates that an additional water tank and

pump station improvement (the "Zone 4 Water Facilities") will need to be built to provide water to

,onr*+, 5 and 6 of the Folsom Plan Area ("Zones 4,5 and 6") when there are approximately [1,600]

occupied dwelling units in Zones 4, 5 and 6. These zones are east of East Bidwell Street and generally

constitute the areas covered by a portion of CFD 19, CFD 20, the Broadstone Estates, CFD 21, a portion

of CFD 23IAl,the Improvement Area, and property expected to be developed by Dignity Health' Zongs

4, 5 and 6 are currentlj planned to inciude atotal of approxirnately [2,950] dwelling units. Accordingly,

homes within the Improvement Area would be included within the estimated number of dwelling units

that would require completion of the Zone 4 Water Facilities to accommodate the increased development'

[As of September 30, )022, for Zones 4, 5 and 6, final maps had been approved and recorded fot 2,121

iwelling units, and i,:ze UultOing permits and 960 certificates of occupancy had been issued'] As of

October 31, z}Z3,for Zones 4, 5 ;d 6, final maps had been approved and recorded for f-l dwelling

units, and L_--_; building permits and I I certificates,of_occupancy had been issued. Also, within

zones 4, 5lu63, the Cifr iuu upprou.i--th" plun. for [152] Mangini Place apartments and 12651 Alder

Creek apartments, [whichLe currently under ievelopment but have not yet been issued building permits]'

fThe City also expects Zones 4,5 and 6to eventually include approximately 530,000 square feet of office

and medi"al spaci for Dignity Health, but site plans for these facilities have not yet been submitted to the

Cityl. Accoriingly, the -ityanticipates additibnal development to occur within the area to be served by

theZone 4 Water Facilities.

The Zone 4 Water Facilities and the Phase 2 Water Facilities are separate water improvements,

and, if needed, the Phase 2 Water Facilities can be constructed and completed separately from the Zo19 a

Water Facilities, thereby allowing development to continue in the Folsom Plan Area generally, including

within the Improve..ni Ar.u. The City has engaged Peterson Brustad, lnc. to evaluate the most efficient

timing and phasing of construction olthe Phase 2 Water Facilities and the Zone 4 water Facilities to

allow development to continue while maintaining the City's standards for delivery of water to its

customers. Tie city continues to evaluate water usage and needs within the Folsom Plan Area but there

can be no assurance that the construction of the Phase 2 water Facilities or the zone 4 water Facilities

*itt u" completed in time to prevent delays to residential and commercial development in the Folsom

Plan Area.

49 Page 225

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Wastewater Treatment The Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District has an existing

wastewater treatment llilI*ith its ongoing and permitted improvement projects projected 
. 
to

accommodate all wastewater from developmeni in th. Folsom Plan Area. Existing sewer transmission

mains are capable of conveying wastewater from the Folsom Plan Area and initial development sites

(including the Improvement Area) to the existing treatment plant.

Flood Zones. According to the Federal Emergency Management Agency flood map, the

Irnp.on"n.,"nt[* i, in zone x, ivhich consists of areas determined to be outside of the 500-year flood

plain.

Fire Zones. The improvement Area is located within an area identified as a moderate fire hazard

severity zone. More information regarding Fire Hazard Severity Zones can be found at the California

Department of Forestry and Fire prot*ection website at https://frap.fire.ca.gov, though such website is not

incorporated herein by reference. The development within the Improvement Area is subject to mitigation

measures set forth in a fuel modification plan approved by the City Fire Department' The mitigation

measures include, arnong others, limitations on it'rt type of vegetation that may-be planted within-fuel

modification zones established in open space areas along certain portions of the perimeter 
-of Jhe

Improvement Area, minimum setback of stiuctures and irrigation requirements of the fuel modification

zones. Maintenance of such zones is expected to initially be the responsibility of th9 property owners but

upon build-out of the Improvement Area and dedication of the open space to the City will be maintained

Uy tn" City from funds piovided through CFD 18. Homeowner's insurance is expected to be available to

prop"rry o*n"r, within the Improvement Area, and the coverage provided UV tl* insurance typically

lr,ru."r-uguinst fire damage, alihough there is no assurance that homeowners within the Improvement

Area will purchase or maintain such insurance.

Dr,tpbl Condirions qnc! Consn'ucJLon Water Ilsage..ln response to drought conditions in2021'

th"Cityionitswatercustomers.Inaddition,useofCity
water for construction pu.por", required City approval. At the time, the City allowed construction within

the Folsom Plan Area to proc"eb, including th" ut" of City water. However, prolonged drought

conditions in2023 or 2924 could result in mandatory reductions in water usage that may adversely impact

the ability of the Homebuilders within the Improvement Area to develop the Improvement Area in the

timeline described in this Official Statement.

To help alleviate the demand on the current water facilities, certain developers within the Folsom

plan Area have made anangements to obtain construction water from the El Dorado Irrigation District

(,,EID,,), an alternativ" *ut"i provider that has existing facilities adjacent to the Fo-lsom Plan Area' For

instance, Lennar Homes has previously received construction water from EID for its Russell Ranch

project in CFD 20. Such arrangements augment, but do not replace, the need for and the use of City

water, which is currently p.ould"d throuih the Phase_ I Water Facilities. Due to such alternative

aftangements for construction water and tle amount of development that has already occurred in the

Folsom plan Area, the City anticipates that the demand for construction water will likely be lower in

summef 2022than it has been in some of the recent past years.

Affordable lIowing. The City and the Original Developer entered into an Inclusionary Housing

Agr.".ffi fo, th" Improvement Area, which is recorded in the official records of the county of

Sacramento and provides for the original Developer's compliance with the City's inclusionary housing

requirement by payment of an in-lieu fee to the City. The Homebuilders are satisffing the City's

inclusionary housing requirement for its properties within the Improvement Area by payment of an in-lieu

fee to the iity 
"on"u.tent 

with their pulling of building permits.

50Page 226

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



(hiliries. All typical urban utility services for finished lots will be extended to the lots' These

utilities include electric po*.r, natural gas, telephone, cable television, water, refuse, and sanitary sewer

and storm water facilities. rne City provides water, sewer, refuse and storm water facilities, and police

and fire services. pacific Gas & 
-glectric 

provides natural gas and the Sacramento Municipal Utility

District (SMUD) provides electric service. Comcast provides cable service'

Specilic plan l4frastrucnn'e Fea Creclits tmd Improveryents' The SPIF i-s administered by the

Cityforthepurpose'areawideimprovementsfortheconstructionof
roadways, water, sewer, drainage,-dry utilities, tecy"l"d water and habitat mitigation in the Folsom Plan

Area. ih. purpore of ihe SptF is to require each landowner to pay its fair share of Folsom Plan Area

area-wide improvements and to be reimbursed for any amount expended in excess of a landowner's fair

share requirement. Under the terms of the SPIF Ordinance adopted by the City,.property owners in the

Folsom plan Area will be eligible to enter into an agreement with the City and receive future

reimbursements (that are convert--ible to fee credits for use within the owner's property) in exchange_for

the construction of eligible SpIF improvements. Based on the amount of improvements eligible for SPIF

reimbursement, all of ihe properties within the Improvement Area are anticipated to fully cover their SPIF

obligations through the conversion of these SPIF reimbursements to SPIF fee credits. After applying the

SpIF reimbursements as SpIF fee credits to all properties in the Improvement Area, all amounts expended

in excess of the project's SpIF obligation are eipected to be reimbursed from the City as other SPIF fees

are collected in the Folsom Plan Area.

Within the Folsom plan Area, initial development will be required to pay a "SPIF Set-Aside"

component to address initial water and sewer facility tosts. This is a loan of SPIF collections to help the

cash flow for the initial water and sewer costs. It will be repaid or equalized to all properties through the

SpIF program as well as through cFD 18. The SPIF Set-Aside will apply to the first 2,500 Folsom Plan

Area dwe-lling units that woulJbe subject to the SPIF. A portion of the SPIF will be required to be paid

regardless of-whether a developer/properry owner has advance-funded eligible SPIF infrastructure and has

ex-ecuted a Fee Reimbursement Agreement through the City. An exception to this rule is that a properly

owner who constructs certain water or sewer infrastructure for which the SPIF Set-Aside is being

collected may take a credit against the SPIF Set-Aside'

In addition, in August 2A20, the City approved an ordinance amending certain provisions ofthe

SpIF ordinance to include a new SPIF - offsiti Water Set-Aside. This new SPIF - offsite Water Set-

Aside will be payable at the building permit stage and will not be eligible to be offset by fee credits'

Property OwnershiP

The information in this section has been provided by Tri Pointe, Lennar Homes, the

Landfrank, the Appraisalo or other sources that the District believes to be reliable. The District and

the Underwriter believe this information to be reliable, but can give no assurances that it is

accurate or complete. There may be material adverse changes in this information after the date of

this Official Statement.

Information in this section is included because it may be considered relevant to some

investors to an informed evaluation and analysis of the taxable property within the Improvement

Area and any existing or future improvements thereon as security for the Bonds. The information

contained in this ,r.tioo does not guarantee that property ownership will not change or that the

current or any subsequent property owners will pay the special Tax when due. In fact' as

described herein, ownership of rn,r"n of the Taxable Property in the Improvement Area will change

prior to, or in connection with, development thereof. The Special Tax will constitute a lien on

parcels subject to taxation within the Improvement Area and not a personal indebtedness of the

51 Page 227

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



owners of property within the Improvement Area. There is no assurance that the present property

owners or any subsequent ownerJwill have the ability to pay the Special Taxes or thato even if they

have the ability, they will choose to pay the Special Taxes. An owner may elect to not pay the

Speciat Taxes when due and cannot be tegally compelled to do so. Neither the District nor any

Bbnd Owner will have the ability at any time to seek payment directly from the owners of property

within the Improvement Area of the Special Tax or the principal or interest on the Local

Obligations, ofth" ability to control who becomes a subsequent owner of any property within the

Improvement Area.

As of October \9,2023, the Taxable Property within the Improvement Area was owned by Tri
pointe, the Landbank, and individual homeowners. At full buildout, the Improvement Area is expected to

include 291 single family homes. Lennar Homes is utilizing a land bank for its properties within the

Improvement Area, as discussed below.

Tri pointe. As of October 19,2023, Tri Pointe owned 135 lots within the Improvement Area. Tri
pointe ir ir, ttt" p.cess of constructing and selling homes located in Village 1, Village 2, and Village 3 of

the Improvement Area to homebuyers. Tri Pointe's Canterly at Folsom Ranch homes are being

constructed and sold within Village 1, and Tri Pointe's Lariat at Folsom Ranch homes are being

constructed and sold within Villages 2 and3'

Tri pointe is Tri Pointe Homes Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation, which is a wholly-owned

subsidiary of Tri Pointe Homes, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Tri Pointe Homes"), a publicly traded

company whose common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol
,,TpH,,. Tri Pointe Homes is engaged in the design, construction and sale of innovative single-family

attached and detached homes in 15 markets across ten states and the District of Columbia.

Tri pointe Homes is subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934, asamended (the "Exchang" R"f'; and, in accordance therewith, files reports, proxy statements' and

other information, including financial statements, with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
*SEC,,). Such filings, set firth, among other things, certain data relative to the consolidated results of

operations und finaicial position of rii Pointe Homes and its consolidated subsidiaries, including Tri
pointe, as of such dates (e.g., see Tri Pointe Homes' Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year

ended December 31,2A2i,* nt.a with the SEC on February 2I,2023,and Tri Pointe Homes' Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,2023, as filed with the SEC on October 26,

2023).

The SEC maintains an Internet web site that contains reports, proxy and information statements

and other information regarding registrants that file electronically with the SEC, including Tri Pointe

Homes. The address of such Iniernet web site is www.sec.gov. All documents filed by Tri Pointe Homes

pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Act after the date of this Official Statement will be

available for inspeciion in such manner as the SEC prescribes. Copies of Tri Pointe Homes' most recent

Annual Report on Form 10-K and each of its other quarterly and current reports, including any

amendments, are available in the "investors" portion of its website atwww.tripointehomes.com.

The foregoing website addresses and references to filings with the SEC are given for reference

and convenirn"t-on$, and the information on suchwebsites and onfile with the SEC does notform a part

of this Official Statimenr and is not incorporated by reference, herein. No representation is made in this

bprut-Statement as to the sccuracy or adequacy of the information contained on such websites' Tri
pointu Homes and Tri pointe are not obligated to advance funds for conslruction or development or to

pay ad valorem property laxes or the Speiiat Tax, and investors should not rely on the information and

fiiancial statemints contained on such iebsites in evaluating whether to buy, hold or sell the Bonds. The

52 Page 228

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



information contained on such websifes may be incomplete or inaccurate and has not been reviewed by

the District or the Underwriter.

Lennar Heug* As of October lg,2023, the Landbank owned all lots in Village 4, and Lennar

Homes h"r 
"" 

.ptt"ft acquire these lots over time pursuant to a takedown schedule. Lennar Homes is

in the process of construciing and selling homes located in village 4 of the Improvement Area to

homebuyers.

General. Lennar Homes is based in lrvine, Califomia and has been in the business of

developing.esid-ential real estate communities in california since 1996. Lennar Homes is wholly-owned

by U.S. H"ome, LLC, aDelaware limited liability company ("U.S.Home"). U.S. Home is wholly-owned

by Lennar Corporation, which is based in Miami, Florida ("Lennar Corporation"), Founded in 1954,

Lennar corporation completed its initial public offering in 1971 and listed its common stock on the New

york Stock Exchange in 1972. Lennar Corporation's Class A and Class B common stock are listed on the

New york Stock Exchange under the symbols "LEN' and "LEN.B." respectively. Lennar Corporation is

one of the largest homebiilders in the United States based on home sales revenuss and net earnings, and

operates undei a number of brand names, including Lennar Homes and U.S. Home' Lennar Homes

primarily develops residential communities both within the Lennar corporation family of builders and

ihrough 
"onsolidated 

and unconsolidated partnerships in which Lennar Homes maintains an interest'

Lennar Corporation is subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act

of l934,as amended, and, in ur"oidun". therewith, files reports, proxy statements, and other information,

including financial statements, with the SEC. Such filings, particularly the Annual Report on Form 10-K

and its most recent euarterly ieport on Form 10-Q, set forth, among other things, certain data relative to

the consolidated results of ope.ations and financial position of Lennar Corporation and its consolidated

subsidiaries, including Lennar Homes, as of such dates'

The SEC maintains a website that contains reports, proxy and other information statements and

other information regarding registrants that file electronically with the SEC, including Lennar

Corporation. The addis oiru"h website is www.sec.gov. All documents filed by Lennar Corporation

pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Act after the date of this official Statement will be

available for inspection in such mannef as the SEC prescribes.

Copies of Lennar Corporation's Annual Report and related f,rnancial statements, prepared in

accordance with generally accepted accounting sta-ndards, are available from Lennar Corporation's

website at www. Iennar. c om.

The foregoing website addresses and references to filings with the S_nC_y1 given for reference

and convenienrr'onlf, and the information on such websites and onfile with the SEC does notform a part

of this Official Statiment and is not incorporated by-reference herein. No representation is msde in this

blp"iot Statement as to the accuracy o, idtquory of the inform^ation contained on suchwebsites. Lennar

iirporotion and Lennar Homes are not obligated to advance funds for construction or development or lo

poy ad valorem property taxes or the Speciil Tm, and investors should not rely on the information and

financial statements contained on suchwebsites in evaluatingwhether to buy, hold or sell the Bonds' The

information contained on such websites may be incomplete or inaccurate and has not been teviewed by

the District or the Underwriter.

The Landbank Silucture. In connection with a land banking transaction, Lennar Homes

transferred all of its flS fots *itfrin ttr" nistrict to the Landbank in July 2a23 $he "Landbank Lots")' In

connection therewith, Lennar Homes and the Landbank entered into that certain Option Agreement, dated

July l g, ZA123 $he "Lennar Option Agreement") whereby Lennar Homes has the option, but not the

53 Page 229

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



obligation, to purchase the Landbank Lots from the Landbank pursuant to a takedown schedule agreed

upon between Lennar Homes and the Landbank'

The Landbank is an affiliate of, and managed by, Angelo Gordon & Co', L.P. ("Angelo

Gordon,,). Angelo Gordon is a privately-held altJrnative investment firm founded in 1988 and

headquartered in-New york, with associated offices across the United States, Europe and Asia. Angelo

Gordon manages approximately $52 billion across a broad range of credit and real estate strategies.

Affiliates of the Landbank havi entered into landbanking arrangements with Lennar Corporation and its

affiliated entities on more than 200 residential development projects as of Septembet 30,2022.

Lennar Homes, option to acquire the Landbank Lots is memorialized by that certain

Memorandum of option Ajreement recorded in the official Records of Sacramento County on July 18,

2023, as Instrument No. 202307180926.

Lennar Homes, planned development of the Landbank Lots includes the construction of 115

single family residential ho.", and the sale of such homes to individual homebuyers. During the term of

the"Lennar Option Agreement, Lennar Hornss is obligated to pay all taxes on the Landbank Lots,

including the Special Tax.

Under the Lennar Option Agreement, the Landbank Lots are anticipated to be acquired pursuant

to the following schedule:

54 Page 230

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Takedown Schedule

Under Lennar Option Agreement - For Landbank Lots

Scheduled
Acquisition Date

Number
of Lots

February 10,2024
March 1A,2024
Aprii 10,2024
May 10,2024
June 10,2024
July 10,2024

August 10,2024
September lA,2A24

October 10,2024
November 10,2024
December 10,2024

January 10,2025
February 10,2025
March 10,2025
April 10,2025
May 10,2025
June 10,2025
July 10, 2025

August 10,2025
September 10,2025
october 10,2025

November 10,2025
December 10,2425
January 10,2026
February 10,2026
March 10,2026
April 10,2026
May 10,2026
June 10,2026

Total:

4
4
4

4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
3

115

Source: Lennar Homes.

In the event that Lennar Homes does not exercise its option on the Landbank Lots or the right to

purchase the Landbank Lots expires or is terminated, the Landbank, being an investor only and not a

iromebuilder, would likely attempt to sell such Landbank Lots to another merchant builder.

Development Plan and Status of l)evelopment

Unless otherwise indicated, the information provided in this section has been provided by

the Homebuilders and has been included because it may be considered relevant to an informed

evaluation and analysis of the Bonds and the Improvement Area. No assurance can be given'

however, that the proposed development of the property within the Improvement Area will occur in

a timely manner oi in the configuration or to the density described herein, or that the

Homebuilders, any owners or affiliates thereof, or any other current or subsequent property

owners, will or wiil not retain ownership of its respective property within the Improvement Area.

The city, the District and the underrvriter can provide no assurances as to the accuracy of the

55 Page 231

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



information in this section. There may be material adverse changes in this information after the

date of this Official Statement.

Development PIan * Tri PoittJg'

The Improvement Area is being developed in 4 separate Villages. Villages 1,2, and 3 include the

lots owned arrd being developed by Trltointe. To date, final maps have been approved and recorded for

all of the Taxable property being devetoped by Tri Pointe within the Improvement Area. Development

within villages l,z, aid3 is entiiled for a total of 176 single family homes at full buildout.

Tri pointe,s lots in the Improvement Area are being developed and sold across two separate

product lines known as Canterly at iolsom Ranch (Village l) and Lariatat Folsom Ranoh (Villages 2 and

b;. rn. Canterly at Folsom Ranch product line is being developed on lots of approximately 3,000 square

feet and includes four separate floor plans for two-story homes ranging in size from 1,705 square feel to

;,;t;;;;;" rr.t, ru"n with 3-4 bedrooms and2.5-3 bathrooms. The Lariat at Folsom Ranch product line

is beingdeveloped on lots of approximately 3,400 or 4,000 square feet and includes three separate fl9or

pfu* fir two-story ho-es ruttging in sizs from 1,822 square feet to 2,220 square feet, each with 3-4

bedrooms and 2.5-3 bathrooms. The following table is a summary of product types within the projects

being developed by Tri Pointe within the Improvement Area'

Table 10

City of Folsom

Communities Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
ImProvement Area No' 3

Summary of Product Types - Tri Pointe

Product Line

Canterly at
Folsom Ranch

3

3-4
3-4
4

2.5
2.5
2.5-3
3

Expected
Units

2l
26
29

-- 176

Living Area
Plan (square feet)

1 I,705
2 1,941

3 1,990

4 2,239

Storics Bedrooms Bathrooms
Garage Estimated

Size Base Price(l)

2 -$t58/042 9s83,421
2 $589,658

$624,400

$598,065
s656,622
$701,079

Total

2
2
2
2

2
2
2

I
2
3

26
22
26
26

Lariat at
Folsom Ranch

1,822
2,033
2,224

2.5
2.5
3

3

3-4
4

2

2

2

r,l gasesalespr"",;asofOctober lg,2023,andaresubjecttochangeatanytimebyTriPointe. Basesalespricesareexclusiveof

any premiurns, options, upg*0"t, incentives, and any reiling.onc.ttions orprice reductions currently being offered'

Source: Tri Pointe.

Tri pointe is actively marketing the homes within Villages 1,2, and 3 of the Improvement Ar91 t9

individual homeowne6 und, as of Ociober 19, 2A23,Tri Pointe had sold and closed 41 homes and had

completed (but not yet closed) an additional 8 homes. Below is a summary of Tri Pointe's anticipated

timing for their sale and delivery of finished homes'

56 Page 232

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Table 1l
City of Folsom

Communities Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

ImProvement Area No.2
Expected Delivery of Finished Homes by Sales Year - Tri Pointe

Product Line 2023 2024 2025

Source: Tri Pointe.

Rockcress II at
Folsom Ranch

Living Area
(square feet)

l9

l9

Estimated
Base Price(l)

--T62t,eeo
$660,e90
5674,99A

$707,990
Total

Expected
Units

115

Developer

Tri Pointe
Tri Pointe
TOTAL

Canterly at Folsom Ranch

LariatatFolsom Ranch
95

JJ

29

62

48
41

No assurance can be given that home construction and sales witl be cawied out on the schedule

and according to the plans oitlined herein, or that the home construction and sale plans or base prices

setforth aboi" wig nit change after the date of this afficial statement. Additionally, homes sold may not

result in closed escrows as sales contracts ale subiect to cancellation' See "CERTAIN NSKS TO

BONDHOLDERS - Failure to Develop," "- Cutent Challenges to the Homebuilding Industry" and "-
Increasing Mor\gage Interest Rates. "

QeveloPment PJan - Lennqr Honles'

Village 4 within the Improvement Area includes the lots owned by the Landbank and expected to

be developed by Lennar Uomes. To date, final maps have been approved and recorded for all of the

Taxable pioperry being developed by Lennar Homes within the Improvement Area. Development within

Village + is entiiled foi a total of I l5 single family homes at full buildout'

Lennar Homes, lots in the Improvement Area are being developed and sold across a single

product line known as Rockcress iI at Folsom Ranch. The Rockcress II at Folsom Ranch product line is

ileing developed on lots of approximately 3,015 square feet and includes 4 separate floor plans for two;

story"homes ianging in size from 1,632 square feet io 2,024 square feet, with 3 to 4 bedrooms and 2.5 to 3

bathrooms. The following table is a summary of product types within the projects being developed by

Lennar Homes within the Improvement Area.

Table 12

City of Folsom

Communities Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
ImProvement Area No. 3

Summary of Product Types - Lennar Homes

Product Line Plan

Garage

Stories Bedrooms Bathrooms Size

2
2

2

2

3

J

4

4

2
2

2

I
2
J

4

r,632
1,821

1,93 5

2,024

2.5
2,5
2.5

3

28
29
29
,o

i;;;" d*;..r'r. u, of November zo,2023,and are subject to change at any time by Lennar Homes. Base sales prices are

exclusive of aly premiums, options, upgrades, incentives, *d uny sellingioncessions or price reductions currently being offered'

Source: Lennar Homes.

57 Page 233

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Lennar Homes is actively marketing the homes within Village 4 of the Improvement Area to

individual homeowners. As of October 19, i023,L"nnar Homes had not yet sold and closed any homes

within Village 4 but had commenced construction on its first 4 homes in Village 4. Below is a summary

of Lennar Homes' anticipated timing for their sale and delivery of finished homes.

Table 13

City of Folsom

Communities Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. 2

Expected Delivery of Finished Homes by Sales Year - Lennar Homes

Developer Product Line

Lennar Homes
TOTAL

Rockcress II at Folsom Ranch

Source : Lennar Homes.

No assurance can be given that home construction and sales wilt be carried out on the schedule

and accoyding to the plans oilined herein, or that the home construction and sale plans or base prices

serforth aboi wig not change after the date of this Official Statewtent. Additionally, homes sold may not

result in closed escrows oi til"t contracts are subject to cancellation' See "CERTAIN R1,S1KS fO
BONDHOLDERS - Failure to Develop," "- Current Chatlenges to the Homebuilding Industry" and "-
Increasing Mortgage Interest Rates. "

Status of DeveloPmenl:

The property within the Improvement Area is under development, with homes completed and

sold to individual homeowners, homes under construction and being marketed to individual homeowners,

and finished lots. As of October 19,2023,41 homes within the Improvement Area had sold and closed to

individual homebuyers. Also as of that date, Tri Pointe had completed (but not closed) an additional 8

homes to individual homebuyers. Homes under contract may not result in closed escrows as sales

contracts are subject to cancellation.

As of October 19, 2023 (the date of value of the Appraisal), as summarized in the table

immediately below, the Improvement Area included 41 completed homes that had closed escrow to

individual homeowner., un udditional 8 completed homes that had not yet closed escrow to individual

homeowners, 63 homes under construction (including 4 model homes being constructed by Lennar

Homes), and 179 finished lots without vertical home construction. Homes under contract may not result

in closed escrows as sales contracts are subject to cancellation.

The followingtable summarizes, as of October 79,2A23,the development status of the residential lots and

homes proposed to be constructed within the Improvement Area'

2013 2024 202s 2026

0 36 48 :x
0364831

58 Page 234

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Table 14

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No.2
I)evelopment Status as of October t9,2A23

Product Line

Homes
Under

Construction

Homes
Completed

But Not
Closed(l)

Homes
Under

ContractG)
Homes
Closed

Building
Permits
Issued

Finished
Lots(3)

Partially
Improved

Lots
Undeveloped

Lots

Total
Proposed

Units(a)

Tri Pointe
Tri Pointe

Lennar Homes(s)

TOTAL

Developer
Canterly at Folsom Ranch

Lariat at Folsom Ranch

Rockcress II at Folsom Ranch
4l

(r) Includes model homes that have not been released for sale.
(2) I{omes under contract may not result in closed escrows as sales contracts are subjectto cancellation by the homebuyers.
(3) Reflects lots for which all conditions to issuance of a building permit have been completed, consisting generaliy of paved lots with streets installed and paved with all utilities and utilities

stubbed to the pad.

Improved Lots" and (vi) "Undeveloped Lots."
(s) Includes lots owned by the Landbank.

Source: The Homebuilders and the Appraisal.

3l
28

4

27
16

0

23

l8
0

4
4
0

62
54

8

0
0
0

42
26

111

0
0

0

100

76
115

63S43 t24ng00291

59
Page 235

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



nearly completed all required backbone infrastructure, offsite improvements' and subdivision

improvements serving the Improvement Area. As of October 17,2023, the Original Developer had

exiended approxim#! $31.8 million for the various site development costs within the Improvement

Area. The only remaining infrastructure required in- connection with the construction and sale of all

expected 291 homes within the Improvement Area is the completion of a traffic signal at the intersection

of Mangini parkway and Savannuh P*k*uy, which is required to be fully constructed prior to the first

home occupancy in Village 4 within the Improvement Area. The original Developer has commenced

construction on this traffic signal and expectsto have it fully constructed and operational by March20,24'

As of octob er 17, z1z3,the 6riginal Developer anticipated that it would spend an additional $2.5 million

lo 
"o-Blete 

its development within the Improve.eniAt.",.which includes approximately $600,000 to

complete the traffic signal at the intersection of Mangini Parkway and savannah Parkway and

approximately $1.9 milliin for various miscellaneous costs and punch-list items'

The infrastructure and subdivision improvements completed by the Original Developer, and for

which the original Developer anticipates ."rling reimbursement from the proceeds of the sale of the

Local Obligations, general includes ioadway impiovements designed to meet the.-needs of development

within the District. iip".in"ully, the origlnal beveloper anticipates these Facilities to include: (i) a

portion of Savanna f'uit*uy ("ortn and so"uth of Mangini Parkway), (ii) a portion of Mangini Parkway'

(iii) various intemal subdivision streets and related unJerground utilities, and (iv) the traffic signal at the

intersection of Mangini parkway and Savannah Parkway. oth". than the traffic signal, the Facilities for

which the Original Developer anticipates seeking reimbursement from the proceeds of the sale of the

Local obligations have all been completed and accepted by the city'l

Development Plan of Finance

Tri pointe: To date, Tri pointe has financed its land acquisition and various site development and

home construction costs related to its properly in the Improvement Area through internally generated

funds (which may include home sales ,"u"no", and funding from its parent company Tri Pointe Homes)'

As of October 19,2023, Tri pointe had expended approximately $52 million on land acquisition, land

development, homebuilding, marketing and salet "otii 
within the Improvement Area' As of such date'

Tri pointe expected to in"ui'upproximitely $34 million on remaining homebuilding, marketing, and sales

costs for its property in the Improvement Area'

Tri pointe expects to use internally generated funding (which may include home sales revenues

and funding from its iarent company Tri f-ointe Homes) to complete its development in the Improvement

Area. Tri pointe believes that it will have sufficient funds available to complete its planned development

in the lmprovement Area in accordance with the development schedule des$ibed in this official

Statement.

Notwithstanding the belief of Tri Pointe that it will have sufficient funds to complete its planned-

land acquisition ani dZrebp*eit in the Improvement Area, no assurance can be given that sources of

financiig available to Tri plointe will be stfficient to complete the development and home construction as

currently anticipated. While Tri Pointe his made such internal financing available-in the past, there can

be no assurance whatsoever of its willingness or ability to do so in the future. Neltler Tri Pointe nor any

of its ffitiates has any legal obligation of any kind to make any suchfunds available or to obtain loans'

Other than pointing iut thu williigness i7 fri fointt to^provide internal financing in the past, Tri Pointe

has not ,"p)rt"nt"d in any wqt that it will do so in the future'

If and to the exlent that internal financing anrJ 
-home 

sales revenues are inodequate to pay the

costs to camplete Tri pointe's planned divelopmint and home conslruction in the Improvemenl Area as

Page 236

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



currently anticipated and other financing by Tri Pointe is not put into place, tlzere could be a shortfall in

the funds required to complete the proposed tand acquisition, development and home construction by Tri

Pointe and portions of the project may not be developed'

Lennar FJome;: To date, Lennar Homes has financed its land acquisition and various site

development and hornebuilding costs related to its property in the Improvement Area through internally

generated funds. Lennar Homis expects to use home sales revenues and internal funding to complete its

Eeuelop-ent within the Improvement Area and believes that it will have sufficient funds available to

compl"te its planned development as described in this Official Statement'

Atthough Lennay Homes expects to have sfficient funds available to complete its development in

the Improveminr Area as described tn this Official Statemen-t, there can be no assurance that amounts

,r""riory to finance the development costs *iit te available from Lennar Homes, Lennar Corporation or

any othi^olr"u when needed. Neither Lennar corporation, nor any of its subsidiaries or related entities

are under any legal obligation of any kind to expind funds for the development of and construction of

homes on its property 7n the 
-Improvement 

Aiea. Any contributions by Lennar Homes or Lennar

Corporation to'fuid the costs of such development are entirely voluntary'

If and to the extent that internal funding, including ,but not limited to home sales revenues, are

inadequate to pay the costs to compiete thl planned-development by Lennar, Homes within the

Improvement Area and other financing is not pit into place, there could be a shortfall in the funds

required to complete the plannLd development by Lennar Homes in the Improvement Area'

This section provides a general overview of certain risk factors which should be considered, in

addition to the other matters set firth in this Offrcial Statement, in evaluating an investment in the Bonds'

This section is not meant to be a comprehensive or definitive discussion of the risks associated with an

investment in the Bonds, and the ordei in which this information is presented does not necessarily reflect

the relative importance of various risks. Potential investors in the Bonds are advised to consider the

following factors, among others, and to review this entire official Statement to obtain information

essential to the making of"an informed investment decision. Any one or more of the risk factors discussed

below, among others, could lead to a decrease in the market value andlor in the marketability of the

Bonds. There can be no assurance that other risk factors not discussed herein will not become material in

the future.

Levy of the SPecial Tax

CERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS

The principal source of payment of debt service on the Local Obligations, from which funds for

the payment trthe gonds are d"rivea, is the proceeds of the annual levy and collection of the Special Tax

uguinrt propefi in the Improvement Area. The annual levy of the Special Tax is subject to the Maximum

Facilities Special Ta* .#s authorized within the Improvement Area. The levies cannot be made at

higher rates even if the failure to do so means that the eitimated proceeds of the levy and collection of the

Special Tax, together with other available moneys, will not be sufficient_to pay debt service on the Local

o|tigutior,r. oin", funds which might be availalle include funds derived from the payment of delinquent

speJiat rax and funds derived from the tax sale or foreclosure and sale of related Taxable Property on

which levies of the Special Tax are delinquent'

The levy of the Special Tax will rarely, if ever, result in a uniform relationship between the value

of particular Taxable property and the u*ouni of the levy of the Special Tax against such parcels' Thus,

61 Page 237

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



there will rarely, if ever, be a uniform relationship between the value of such parcels and the

proportionate share of debt service on the Local Obligations, and certainly not a direct relationship'

The Special Tax levied in any particular tax year on a Taxable Property is based upon the revenue

needs and application of the Amendid Rate and Method of Apportionment. Application of the Amended

Rate and Metnoa of Apportionment will, in turn, be dependent upon certain development factors with

respect to each Taxable property by comparison with sirnilar development factors with respect to the

other Taxable property in thi Improvement Area. Thus, in addition to annual variations of the revenue

needs from the Special Tax, the following are some of the factors which might cause the levy of the

Special Tax on any particular Taxable Pr-perty to vary from the Special Tax that might otherwise be

expected:

. Reduction in the amount of Taxable Property for such reasons as acquisition of Taxable

property by the federal government or an agency thereof, asserting immunity (however,

see ,,Exempt Properties" below) from taxation, thereby resulting in an increased tax

burden on the remaining Taxable Property'

. Failure of the related owners of Taxable Property to pay the Special Tax and delays in the

collection of or inability to collect the Special Tax by tax sale or foreolosure and sale of
the delinquent parcels, thereby resulting in an increased tax burden on the remaining

parcels, subject to the related Maximum Facilities special Tax.

Collection of Special Tax

In order for the District to pay debt service on the Local Obligations, from which funds for the

payment of the Bonds are derived, it is necessary that the Special Tax levied against land in the

i*p.ou"..nt Area be paid in a timely manner. The District has established the Local obligations

Reserve Account under the Local Obligations Indenture in the amount of the Required Bond Reserve to

pay debt service on the Local Obligations, in the event that a portion of the Special Taxes for the Local

Obligations are not paid on time-

The Local Obligations Indenture provides that the Special Tax is to be collected in the same

manner as ordinary ai ralorem property taxes are collected and, except as provided in the special

covenant for foreclosure describedbelbw and in the Mello-Roos Act, is to be subject to the same penalties

and the same procedure, sale and lien priority in case of delinquency as is provided for ad valorem

property taxes. Pursuani to these proc"dur"t, if taxes are unpaid for a period of five years or more, the

property is deeded to the State and then is subject to sale by the County.

pursuant to the Mello-Roos Act, in the event of any delinquency in the payment of the Special

Tax, the District may order the institution of a Superior Court action to foreclose the lien therefor within

,p""ifi"d time limits. ln such an action, the real property subject to the unpaid amount may be sold at

.luOiciat foreclosure sale. Such judicial foreclosure action is not mandatory. However, the District has

covenanted that it will annually on or before September 1 of each year review the public records of the

County of Sacramento relatingio the collection of the Special Tax in order to determine the amount of the

Special Tax collected in the prior Fiscal Year, and if it determines on the basis of such review that the

amount so collected is deficient by more than 5o/o of the total amount of the Special Tax levied in such

Fiscal year, it will within 60 daysihereafter institute foreclosure proceedings as authorized by the Mello-

Roos Act in order to snforce the lien of the delinquent installments of the Special Tax against each lot or

parcel of land in the Improvement Area, and will diligently prosecute and pursue such foreclosure

proceedings to judgment and sale; ptqyidgd, that irrespective of the foregoing if the District determines on

the basis of such review that property owned by any single property owner in the Improvement Area is

62 Page 238

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



delinquent by four missed payments with respect to the Special Tax due and payable by such property

o*n"i by sucn delinquency date, then the Diitrict will institute, prosecute and pursue such foreclosure

pro"""ding, in the time uni *"*rn", provided herein against such properly owner; provided further, that

any actions taken to enforce delinquent special Tax liens shall be taken only consistent with Sections

53356.lthrough 53356.T,bothinclusive,oftheMello-RoosAct;andprov-idedryfl"tthattheDistrictis
not obligated under the Local obligations Indenture to enforce the lien of any delinquent installment of
the Spec"ial rax for uny Eir.ut yeaiin which the District has received one hundred percent (100%) of the

amount of such installment from the County pursuant to the Teeter Plan'

In the event that sales or foreclosures of property are necessarY, there could be a delay in

payments to Owners of the Bonds pending such sales ollht.ptot.cution of foreclosure proceedings a1d

receipt by the District of th" pro"""d, of sile if the Local obligations Reserve Account with respect to the

to"ui Ottigations is depletei. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES oF PAYMENT FoR THE BONDS-

Covenant for Foreclosure."

The District may be unable to make full or timely payment of debt service on the Local

obligations if property oinn"r, in the Improvement Area fail to pay installments of the special rax when

due, if the Local Obiigations Reserve Account is depleted, or if the District is unable to sell related

foreclosed parcels for atounts sufficient to cover the delinquent installments of the Special Tax.

Conccntration of OwnershiP

Currently, a large portion of the Taxable Propefy in the Improvement Area is owned by the

Homebuilders (includinf the Landbank), and consequently, a large portion of the Special Tax within the

Improvement Area wilibe paid by the Homebuilders until the homes are completed and sold' See

*PNOPOS BD PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-PTOPETtY OWNCTShiP,,'

The Homebuilders are each in the process of building and selling completed homes to individual

homeowners. No assurance can be given that the properly sales will close when anticipated' See

,,pRoposED pRopERTy DEVELOpMENT-Property ownership." Generally, the risk of delinquency

or nonpayment of sp"ciai Taxes at levels which ao not permit the timely payment of principal of and

interest on the BondJ is inversely correlated to the diversity of ownership of raxable Property within the

Improvement Area. The fact that a substantial porticn of the property providing the ultimate security for

the payment of Local Obligations is controlled by only a few, owners means that timely payment of the

respective Special Tax and]therefore, the Bonds, will depend initially upon the willingness and ability of

these few owners to pay the Special Tax when due. The only assets of the Homebuilders that constitute

security for the t o"ui OUtigations are their real properly holdings located within the Improvement Area'

There can be no assurance that the remaining partially developed property within the

Improvement Area will be fully developed and that property ownership will be further diversified as a

result. See "GERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS-Failure to Develop'"

Payment of the special Tax is Not a Personal obligation of a Property owner

A PROPERTY OWNER IS NOT PERSONALLY OBLIGATED TO PAY THE SPECIAL TAX'

RATHER, THE SPECIAL TAXES ARE OBLIGATIONS ONLY AGATNST THE PROPERTY' IF THE

VALUE OF THE PARCELS OF PROPERTY IS NOT SUFFICIENT, TAKING INTO ACCOTINT

OTHER OBLIGATIONS ALSO PAYABLE THEREBY, TO FULLY DISCHARGE THE SPECIAL

TAX, THE DISTRICT WILL HAVE NO RECOURSE AGAINST THE PROPERTY OWNER'

63 Page 239

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Potential Early Redemption of Bonds from Prepaid Special Taxes

Property owners within the Improvement Area are permitted to prepay their Special Taxes at any

time. Such prepayments could also be made from the proceeds of bonds issued by or on behalf of an

overlapping ipecial assessment district or community facilities district. Such payments will result in a
redempiion of the Bonds on the Interest Payment Date for which timely notice may be given under the

Trust Agreement following the receipt of the prepayment. The resulting redemption of Bonds purchased

at a price greater than par could reduce the otherwise expected yield on such Bonds. See "THE

BoNDs-Redemption Provisions-Extraordinary Redemptionfrom Prepayment of Special Tmes."

Special Tax Delinquencies

The Special Taxes are billed to the properties within the lmprovement Area on the ad valorem

property tax bills sent to owners of such properties. Such Special Tax installments are due and payable,

and bear the same penalties and interest for non-payment, as do ad valorem properly tax installments' In

each year the County includes the Improvement Area in the Teeter Plan, the County will be obligated to

pay the District 100% of the amount of the Special Taxes actually levied in the Improvement Area,

iegardless of any delinquencies. However, the County is required to terminate the Teeter Plan if trryo-

thirds of the participants so petition the Board of Supervisors and may discontinue the Teeter Plan as to

the Improvement Area if the delinquency rate in the Improvement Area exceeds 3%. Moreover, the

County determines annually whether to include a particular district in the Teeter Plan. $gs c(-fssfsl

Plan Termination" and "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS-The Teeter

Plan.'o Significant delinquencies in the payment of annual Special Tax installments, or delays in the

prosecution of foreclosure proceedings to collect such Special Taxes, could result in a default in the

payment of the debt service on the Bonds. $gs (c-Bsnkruptcy" and "-FDIC/Federal Government

inierests in Properties" below, for a discussion of the limitations on the District's ability to foreclose on

the lien of the Special Taxes in certain circumstances and the policy of the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation regarding the payment of special taxes.

Teeter Plan Termination

The County has implemented its Teeter Plan as an alternate procedure for the distribution of
certain property tax and assessment levies on the secured roll. The County determines annually which

special iaxis and assessment levies to include in the Teeter Plan. Pursuant to its Teeter Plan, once the

County determines to include special taxes and assessment levies in the Teeter Plan, the County provides

the local agency and taxing area with full tax and assessment levies instead of actual tax and assessment

collections. In retum, the County is entitled to retain all delinquent tax and assessment payments,

penalties and interest. Thus, the County's Teeter Plan may help protect Owners from the risk of
delinquencies in the payment of Special Taxes. However, the County is entitled, and under certain

circumstances could be required. to terminate its Teeter Plan with respect to all or part of the local

agencies and taxing areas covered thereby. In addition, the County may decide not to include certain

special taxes and assessment levies, including the Improvement Area, in the Teeter Plan in any fiscal

year. Any termination of the Teeter Plan with respect to the Improvement Area would eliminate such

protection from delinquent Special Taxes. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FORTHE

BONDS-The Teeter Plan."

Land Values

If a properfy owner defaults in the payment of the Special Tax, from which funds for the payment

of the Bonds are derived, the District's only remedy is to foreclose on the delinquent property in an

attempt to obtain funds with which to pay the delinquent Special Tax. The value of taxable property in

64 Page 240

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



the Improvement Area is therefore an important consideration in evaluating the security for the Bonds'

Land values could be adversely affected by economic factors beyond the District's control, such as

relocation of employers out of the area, stricter land use regulations, the absence of water, or destruction

of property caused- by, among other eventualities, earthquake, flood or other natural disaster, or by

environmental pollution or contamination'

Appraisal Risks

The Appraiser has estimated the market value of the property in the Improvement Area on the

basis of certain assumptions which the Appraiser believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. See

the Appraisal includei in AppENDIX G hereto. However, certain of the assumptions made by the

Appraiser may prove to be untrue.

Although the District believes that the Appraiser's methodology and assumptions are reasonable

under the circumstances, the Appraiser's aggregate value conclusions are expressions of professional

opinion only. No assurance can b" given that the aggregate values of property in the Improvement Area

aie equal to or greater than the Appiaiser's estimated values, nor can any assurance be given that such

aggregate values will not decline auring the period of time the Bonds are Outstanding. The values of the

p-p""y in the Improvement Area can be adversely affected by a variety of factors, including, but not

ii-it"d-to, the occurrence of one or more of the special risk events discussed herein. A decline in the

value of a parcel in the Improvement Area could lower the ability or willingness of the owner of such

parcel to pay Special Taxes when due and would decrease the amount recoverable at a foreclosure sale of

such parcel.

See ,.THE IMPROVEMENT AREA-Properlry Values" for a further discussion of estimated

property values in the Improvement Area.

Exempt Properties

Certain propefties within the Improvement Area are or may become exempt from the Special Tax

in accordance with-the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment. In addition, the Mello-Roos Act

provides that properties or entities of the state, federal or local government are exempt from Special Tax;

provided, howevir, that property acquired by a public entity through a negotiated transaction or by gift or

bevise, which is not otherwise exempt from the Special Tax, will continue to be subject to the Special

Tax. in addition, the Mello-Roos Act provides that if property subject to Special rax is acquired by a

public entity through eminent domain proceedings, the obligation to pay Special Tax with respect to that

properry is to be ireated as if it were a special assessment. Further, properties receiving a welfare

Lxe*ption under subsection (g) of Section 2I4 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code are exempt

from ihe Special Tax unless debt is outstanding and the property was subject to the Special Tax prior to

receiving t-he exemption. Currently, the Improvement Area includes approximately 5.8 acres that are

expected"to be deveioped into a 152-unit affordable housing site that will receive a welfare exemption and

be exempt from the Special Tax. The constitutionality and operation of these provisions of the Mello-

Roos Act have not been tested.

In particular, insofar as the Mello-Roos Act requires payment of a special tax by a federal entity

acquiring prope*y within the community facilities district, it may be unconstitutional. If for any reason

prop"try"*ithin tlie Improvement Area becomes exempt from taxation, then, subject to the Amended Rate

ana UetnoA of Apportionment, including the limitation on the maximum special tax rates set out in the

Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment, the special tax will be reallocated to the remaining taxable

properties within the Improve."nt area. This would result in the owners of such property payilg_ a

g."ut.. amount of the Siecial Tax and could have an adverse impact upon the timely payment of the

65 Page 241

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Special Tax. Moreover, if a substantial portion of land within the Improvement Area becomes exempt

from the Special Tax because of public ownership, or otherwife, the maximum rate that could be levied

upon the remaining property mignt not be sufficiint to pay principal of and interest on the related Local

Obligations u'd co=uid aau".r"tf uffect the ability of the District to pay principal of and interest on the

Bonds when due.

Maximum Special Tax

Within the limits of the Special Tax, the District may adjust the Special Tax on all prope(y in the

Improvement Area to provide an amount required to pay interest on, principal of, Minimum Sinking Fund

payments for and redemption premiums, if uny, on the Local Obligations, and the arnount, if any,

n"""rruty to cure delinquencies and replenish the Local Obligations Reserve Account to an amount equal

to the Required Bond Reserve, and to pay all current Expenses'

Although the Maximum Facilities Special Tax is designed to provide Special Tax revenues on an

annual basis, tf,ere is no assurance that the Maximum Facilities Special Tal o1 the property in the

Improvement Area will be sufficient to pay the amounts required to be paid by the Local Obligations

lndenture at all times, from which funds for the payment of the Bonds are derived. See "SECUNTY

AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS-special Tax Authorization" and APPENDIX A-
..AMENDED RATE, METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT AND MANNER OF COLLECTION OF

SPECIAL TAX.''

Under the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment, the Facilities Special Tax levied in any

fiscal year against any Assessor's parcel (as definedin the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment)

of Developed property classified as Reiidential Property may not be increased as a consequence of

delinquency or deiauli by the owner or owners of any other parcel or parcels within the Improvement

Area Ly more than l0% above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in

that fiscal year had there never been any such delinquencies or defaults. Pursuant to the Amended Rate

and Method of Appofiionment, property is considered "Residential Properly" once a building permit

could be issued for the purposes'of constructing one or more Residential Units, including either single

family detached homes oi multi-family attached properties, such as apartments, and property is

consiiered .,DevelopeJproperty" if a buiiding permit for new construction was issued prior to June 30 of

the previous fiscal year.

No Acceleration Provision

The Local Obligations Indenture does not contain a provision allowing for the acceleration of the

Bonds in the event of a payment default or other default under the terms thereof'

Loss of Tax ExemPtion

As discussed under ..TAX MATTERS," interest on the Bonds could become includable in gross

income for purposes of federal income taxation retroactive to the date of issuance, as a result of acts or

omissions of the District subsequentto the issuance of the Bonds in violation of the District's covenants

with respect to the Bonds. stroutd interest become includable in gross income, the Bonds are not subject

to redemption by reason thereof and will remain outstanding until maturity or unless earlier redeemed

pursuant to optional or mandatory redemption'

66 Page 242

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Parity Taxes and Special Assessments

The ability or willingness of a properfy owner in the Improvement Area to pay the Special Tax,

from which funds for the payment of the Bonds are derived, could be affected by the existence of other

taxes and assessments imposed upon the property either eurrently existing or imposed in the future. The

assessments and any p"nulti". thereon constitute a lien against the lots and parcels of land on which they

have been levied untiithey are paid. Such lien is on parity with all special taxes and special assessments

levied by other agencies and ii co-equal to and independent of the lien for general properly taxes and

other special assessments regardless oiwhen they are imposed upon the same property. The Special T11

has priority over all existing and future private liens imposed on the property' In addition, other public

ugencies *hor. boundaries bverlap those of the Improvement Area could, with or in some circumstances

without the consent of the owners of the land in the Improvement Area, impose additional taxes or

assessment liens on the properly in the ImprovementArea in order to finance public improvements to be

located inside or outside of the Improvement Area.

Although the District has covenanted not to impose additional special taxes or assessments on

property within'the Improvement Area except in accordance with the Local Obligations Indenture, the

nuihority and the Disirict have no control over the ability of other entities and districts to issue

indebtedness secured by special taxes or assessments payable from allor a portion of the property in the

Improvement Area. The imposition of additional liens on parity with the assessments could reduce the

a6iiity or willingness of the owners of parcels in the Improvement Area to pay the Special Tax and

increases the possibility that foreclosure proceeds will not be adequate to pay delinquent Special Taxes or

the principal lr and interest on the Local obligations when due. As described under "FoLSoM PLAN

AREA-public Facilities Financing Plan," and "THE IMPROVEMENT AREA-Overlapping Debt" the

City plans to issue additional obligations secured by special taxes from time to time to finance backbone

infraitructure and public improvements within the Folsom Plan Area and the boundaries of the

Improvement Area. For example, CFD 18 authorized the issuance of up to $200,000,000 in obligations.

ThL special taxes securing ru"li additional obligations would be payable on parity with the Special Taxes,

and the City cunently anticipates that an initial series of CFD l8 bonds will be issued to finance a portion

of the phase 2A Water Facilities, although the timing and amount of any CFD 18 bond issuance is not yet

known. In addition, property owners may choose to participate in a residential PACE program (a

mechanism for financing in"tgy efficiency and renewable energy improvements on private property),

consenting to assessments on their parcels that would be on a parity with the Special Taxes'

tr'uture Private Indebted ness

At the present time, the Improvement Area includes properties that are undergoing development

or are developed. In order to develop any improvements on that undeveloped land, the properly owners

will need to construct private improvements, the cost of which may increase the private debt for which the

land in the Improvemlnt Area o] other land or collateral owned by the property owners is security over

that contemplated by the Local Obligations, and such incrcased debt could reduce the ability or desire of
the property owners to pay the Special Tax secured by the land in the Improvement Area. It should be

noted however, that the- lien of any private financing secured by the land within the Improvement Area

would be subordinate to the lien of the Special Tax.

Disclosures to Future Purchasers

The District has recorded notice of the Special Tax Lien in the Office of the County Recorder of
the County of Sacramento. While title companies normally refer to such notices in title reports, there can

be no guaiantee that such reference will be made or, if made, that a prospective purchaser or lender will

consider such Special Tax obligation in the purchase of a parcel of land, a home or a commercial or

6'7 Page 243

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



industrial facility in the Improvement Area or the lending of money thereon. The Mello-Roos Act

requires the subjivider (or its agent or representative) of a subdivision to notifu a prospective purchaser or

long-term lessor of uny lot, p-urcel, or unit subject to a Mello-Roos special tax of the existence and

maximum amount of ru"ir 
'special 

tax using a statutorily prescribed form. State Civil Code

Section ll0z.6b requires that in the case of transfers other than those covered by the above requirement,

the seller must at least make a good faith effort to notifli the prospective purchaser of the special tax lien

in a format prescribed by staiute. Failure by an owner of the property to comply with the above

requirements, or failure by a purchaser or lessor to consider or understand the nature and existence ofthe

Special Tax, could adveisely affect the willingness and ability of the purchaser or lessor to pay the

Special Tax, from which funds for the payment of the Bonds are derived, when due'

Bankruptcy

The payment of the Special Tax and the ability of the Dishict to foreclose the lien of a delinquent

unpaid tax, as iiscussed in ,,SECUBJTY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS," may be

limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or other laws generally affecting creditors' rights or by the laws of the

State relating to;"aiciaf foreclosure. In addition, the prosecution ofa foreclosure action could be delayed

due to crowded local court calendars or delays in the legal process. The various legal opinions to be

delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds (including Bond Counsel's approving legal

opinion) will be quuiifi"d as to the enforceability of the various legal instruments by bankruptcy,

insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors' rights, by the

application of equitable principles and by the exercise ofjudicial discretion in appropriate cases.

Although bankruptcy proceedings would not cause the lien of the Special Tax to become

extinguished, b*ankruptcy^ oi u'property owner could result in a delay in prosecuting superior court

foreciosure proceedinls. rn" feaeiat bankruptcy laws provide for an automatic stay of foreclosure and

sale oftax rul, pro"""iings, thereby delaying iuch proceedings perhaps for an extended period' Any such

delays would increase th; likelihood of a delay or default in payment of the principal of and interest on

the bonds and the possibility of delinquent tax installments not being paid in fuIl. To the extent that

property in the Improu"rn.ni Area coniinues to be owned by a limited number of property owners, the

chances are increased that the Local Obligations Reserve Fund could be fully depleted during any such

delay in obtaining payment of delinqueni Special Taxes. As a result, sufficient moneys would not be

available in the Locat Obtigations R"t"*" Account to make up shortfalls resulting from delinquent

payments of the Special Taiandthereby to pay principal of and interest on the Local obligations on a

iimely basis. The payment of the Special Tax and the ability of the District to foreclose the lien of a

delinquent unpaid tax could be delayed by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or other

similar laws affecting rights of creditori generally or by the laws of the State relating to judicial

foreclosure. Further, shoJld remedies be exercised under the federal bankruptcy laws against parcels in

the Improvement Area, payment of the Special Tax may be subordinated to bankruptcy law priorities.

Thus, certain claims may have priority over the Special Tax in a bankruptcy proceeding even though they

would not outside of a bankuptcy proceeding'

FDIC/Federal Government Interests in Properties

The ability of the District to foreclose the lien of delinquent unpaid Special Tax installments may

be limited with regard to properties in which the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the "FDIC"), the

Drug Enforc"*"n1 Agency,- the Internal Revenue Service, or other federal agency has or obtains an

interest.

Under the Supremacy Clause of the United States Constitution, unless Congress has otherwise

provided, if a federai governmental entity owns a parcel that is subject to Special Taxes within the

68 Page 244

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Improvement Area but does not pay taxes and assessments levied on the parcel (including Special Taxes),

the applicable state and local governments cannot foreclose on the parcel to collect the delinquent taxes

and aisessments. Moreover, unless Congress has otherwise provided, if the federal government has a

mortgage interest in the parcel and the District wishes to foreclose on the parcel as a result of delinquent

Special Taxes, the property cannot be sold at a foreclosure sale unless it can be sold for an amount

sufficient to pay delinquent taxes and assessments on parity with the Special Taxes and preserve the

federal government's mortgage interest. In Rzs/ v. Johnson,597 F.2d 174 (1979), the United States Court

of Appial, Ninth Circuit held that the Federal National Mortgage Association ("FNMA") is a federal

instrumentality for purposes of this doctrine, and not a private entity, and that, as a result, an exercise of
state power over a mortgage interest held by FNMA constitutes an exercise of state power over property

of the United States.

Neither the Authority nor the District have undertaken to determine whether any federal

governmental entity currently has, or is likely to acquire, any interest (including a mortgage interest) in

any of the parcels subject to the Special Taxes within the Improvement Area, and therefore expresses no

viiw concerning the likelihood that the risks described above will materialize while the Bonds are

outstanding.

In the event that any financial institution making any loan which is secured by real properly

within the Improvement Area is taken over by the FDIC, and prior thereto or thereafter the loan or loans

go into default, then the ability of the Authority to collect interest and penalties specified by State law and

to foreclose the lien of delinquent unpaid Special Taxes may be limited.

The FDIC's policy statement regarding the payment of state and local real property taxes (the

"Policy Statement") provides that properly owned by the FDIC is subject to state and local real property

taxes onty if those taxes are assessed according to the property's value, and that the FDIC is immune from

real property taxes assessed on any basis other than property value. According to the Policy Statement,

tne fUb will pay its property tax obligations when they become due and payable and will pay claims for

delinquent property taxes as promptly as is consistent with sound business practice and the orderly

administrati,on of the institution's affairs, unless abandonment of the FDIC's interest in the properly is

appropriate. The FDIC will pay claims for interest on delinquent property taxes owed at the rate provided

under state law, to the extent the interest payment obligation is secured by a valid lien. The FDIC will not

pay any amounts in the nature of fines or penalties and will not pay nor recognize liens for such amounts.

if uny property taxes (including interest) on FDIC-owned propelty are secured by a valid lien (in effect

before the property became owned by the FDIC), the FDIC will pay those claims. The Policy Statement

further provides that no property of the FDIC is subject to levy, attachment, garnishment, foreclosure or

sale without the FDIC's consent. In addition, the FDIC will not permit a lien or security interest held by

the FDIC to be eliminated by foreclosure without the FDIC's consent.

The Policy Statement states that the FDIC generally will not pay non-ad valorem taxes, including

special assessments, on property in which it has a fee interest unless the amount of tax is fixed at the time

that the FDIC acquires its fee interest in the property, nor will it recognize the validity of any lien to the

extent it purports to secure the payment of any such amounts. Special taxes imposed under the Mello-

Roos Aci and a special tax formula which determines the special tax due each year are specifically

identified in the Policy Statement as being imposed each year and therefore covered by the FDIC's

federal immunity. The Ninth Circuit has issued a ruling on August 28,2001, in which it determined that

the FDIC, as a federal agency, is exempt from Mello-Roos special taxes. According to information

available from the Sacramento County assessment roll, the FDIC does not currently own any of the

property in the Improvement Area.

69 Page 245

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



The Authority and the District are unable to predict what effect the application of the Policy

Statement would hurne in the event of a delinquency in the payment of Special Taxes on a parcel within

the Improvement Area in which the FDIC has or obtains an interest, although prohibiting the lien of the

FDIC io be foreclosed out at a judicial foreclosure sale could reduce or eliminate the number of persons

willing to purchase a parcel ai foreclosure sale. Such an outcome could cause a draw on the reserve

account for the l-ocal Obligations and perhaps, ultimately, if enough property were to become owned by

the FDIC, a default in payment on the Local Obligations and the Bonds.

Zoningand Land Use Decisions

The Special Taxes, from which funds for the payment of the Bonds are derived, are to be levied

annually basei upon the land use categories in effect for the properlry. Decisions made by the Ctty

Councii, which has control over zoning and land use decisions for property in the City, will affect the

prorpr"iin. use of the property and, theiefore, the tax base for the Special Tax. The Amended Rate and

ivtettroO of Apportionr"nt does not permit land use changes to reduce the tax base to below the Special

Tax Requirement.

Ballot Initiatives and Measures

From time to time constitutional initiatives or other initiative measures may be adopted by State

voters or voters of the City. For example, Measure W, adopted by City residents in November 2004,

required, among other things, that residents north of State Highway 50 not bear the cost for infrastructure

und puuiic facifities s"*inf tit" Folsom Plan Area. The adoption of any such initiative in the future might

place limitations on tfre au-ility of the State or any political subdivisions thereof, including the Authority

or the City, to increase ,"n"nu", or to increase appropriations, the ability of the landowners to complete

their deveiopments, or the ability of the District to collect the Special Tax'

Shapiro v. San Diego

On August 1,2014, the California Court of Appeal, Fourth Appellate District, Division One,

issued its opinion in'shapiro v. san Diego City Councif, ttl cal. Rptr. 2d 631,96 CaL App. +e 90+

(2002). The case involved a Convention benter Facilities District (the "CCFD") established by the City

of sun Diego, much like a community facilities district established under the provisions of the Mello-

Roos Act. 1f," CCf'n is comprised of all of the real property in all of the City of San Diego. However,

the special tax to be levied within the CCFD was to be levied only on hotel properties.

At the election to authorize such special tax, the electorate was limited to owners of hotel

properties and lessees of certain of such hotel properties. Thus, the election was a landowner election

limited to owners and lessees of properties on which the special tax would be levied, and not a registered

voter election. Such approach to determining who would constitute the qualified electors of the CCFD

was based on Section iizzo(")of the Mello-R.oo. Act, which generally provides that, if a special tax will

not be apportioned in any tax year on residential property, the legislative body may provide that the vote

shall be by the landownerr of the proposed district whose property would be_ subject to the special tax'

The Court held that the CCFD rp..iul tax election was invalid under the California Constitution because

Article XIII A, Section 4 thereof and Ar.ticle XIII C, Section 2 thereof require that the electors in such an

election be the registered voters within the dishict.

In the case of the CCFD, at the time of the election there were many, many registered voters

within the CCFD (viz., all of the registered voters in the City of San Diego). There were no registered

voters within the Improvement Area at the time of the election to authorize the Special Tax. In City of

San Diego, the Court expressly stated that it was not addressing the validity of landowner voting to

70 Page 246

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



impose special taxes pursuant to the Mello-Roos Act in situations where there are fewer than 12

."jirt"r"d uoters. Thus, by its terms, the Court's holding does not apply to the Special Tax election in the

Imlprovement Area. Mofuover, Section 53341 of the Mello-Roos Act provides that any "action or

proceeding to attack, review, set aside, void or annul the levy of a special tax...shall be commenced

within 301ays after the ,p..iut tax is approved by the voteqs." The Special Tax with respect to the

ImprovemeniA."u *., upp.oued by the uot".r on May 26,2020. Based on Section 53341 of the Mello-

Roos Act and its analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and court decisions, the District does not

believe that a challenge to the Special Tax may now be brought'

Recent Changes to Federal Income Tax Law

H.R. I of the 1 l5th U.S. Congress was enacted into law on December 22, 2017 (the "Tax Acf').

The Tax Act makes significant changes to many aspects of the Code. The District, the City, the Authority

and the Homebuilders"cannot prediclthe effecithat the Tax Act may have on the cost of home ownership,

the price of homes in the Improvement Area, the rate at which homes in the Improvement Area are sold to

individual homeowners by ihe Homebuilders, the ability or willingness of homeowners to pay Special

Tax or property taxes on Taxable Properly within the Improvement Area, or the values contained in this

Official Statement or in the Appraisal.

Risks of Real Estate Secured Investments Generally

The owners of the Bonds will be subject to the risks generally incident to an investment secured

by real estate, including, without limitation, (i) adverse changes in local market conditions, such as

"iung". 
in the market 

*value 
of real property in !h9 vicinity of Improvement Area, the supply of or

demalnd for competitive properties in such aria, and the market value of residential property or buildings

and/or sites in the event of sale or foreclosure, including as a result of tax reform; (ii) changes in real

estate tax rates and other operating expenses, governmental rules (including, without limitation, zoning

laws and laws relating to endange[d species and hazardous materials) and fiscal policies; (iii) increased

construction costs, w-orkforce shortages, supply chain disruptions or other similar factors affecting the

development, financing or marketing capaUitities of the Developer; (iv) federal, state and local

regulations, including 
"envirorrrnental, land use, zoning and building requirements; and (v) natural

diJasters (including, 
-without 

limitation, earthquakes, fires and floods), which may result in uninsured

losses. There can be no assurance that land d-evelopment operations within the Improvement Area will

not be adversely affected by these risks'

No assurance can be given that the Homebuilders or any other current or future homeowners

within the Improvement Area i,itt puy the Special Tax in the_ future or that they will be able to pay such

Special Tax on a timely basis. See "-Bankruptcy" below, for a discussion of certain limitations on the

District's ability to pursue judicial proceedings with respect to delinquent parcels. Further, many homes

within the Improvement Aiea will have a higher-than-average price point as compared to other homes in

the region, *lii"n may impact the absorption of the residential units within the Improvement Area'

Current Challenges to the Homebuilding Industry

The pace of homebuilding in the Improvement Area may be adversely affected by a variety -of
factors, including changes in ecJnomi" 

"onditions, 
interest rates, water shortages, and other similar

factors, and recently inJluaing workforce shortages and supply chain disruptions. For example, obtaining

ga.,,,ge doors and *i1do*. Iiave recently been challenging for home builders generally. Additionally,

some California municipalities have been experiencing supply chain disruptions for the electrical

transformers and water meters needed for new development, having been advised in some cases of up to a

2-year delay for new electrical transformer orders. [The lots in Villages 1,2, and 4 are fully energized,

71 Page 247

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



and Tri pointe anticipates that the remaining lots in Village 3 will be energized during December 2023,-l

The Homebuilders are not currently aware of any anticipated supply chain disruptions for the

development within the Improvement Area. Additionally, the City has taken steps to prevent a water

meter supply chain disruption. The City has made alrangements with a supplier to have approximately

[i,000] new water meters set aside for its future use. Also, City staff have obtained authorization from

it" city,r City Council to purchase additional new water meters as needed for new development in the

city so that such purchases can be made expeditiously and without the need for further City Council

action. However, no assurance can be given that supply chain disruptions for the materials needed to

complete development within the Improvement Area will not occur.

Increasing Mortgage Interest Rates and Banking Uncertainty

Most of the purchasers of the Homebuilders' homes finance their acquisitions with mortgage

financing. As such, rising interest rates, decreased availability of mortgage financing or of certain

mortgagl programs, irigh", do*n payment requirements, or increased monthly mortgage costs could. have

u n.g-"tiu" impact on tf," estimated absorption rates of the Homebuilders' planned for-sale homes in the

Imprivement Area. Further, a combination of higher mortgage rates, delays in construction stemming

from delays in the supply chain, homebuyers' inability to sell their existing homes and adverse changes in

local, regionut or national economic 
"ondition., 

among other factors, could contribute to an increase in

the rate If ho*" order cancellations for the Homebuilders. An increase in the level of such cancellations

could similarly have a negative impact on the estimated absorption rates of the Homebuilders' planned

for-sale homes in the Improvement Area.

Failure to l)eveloP

Land development operations are subject to comprehensive federal, State and local regulations'

Approval is required fro- lruiiou, agencies in ionnection with the layout and design of developments, the

nature and extent of improvementr, construction activity, land use, zoning, school and health

requirements, as well as numerous other matters. It is possible that the approvals necessary to complete

development of all taxable property within the Improvement Area are not obtained on a timely basis or

that litigation could be filed."gu.ding approvals. Failure to obtain any such agency approval or satisfli

"ny 
,u"h government requirement or any litigation concerning such agency approval or government

requirernen=t could adveriely affect land development operations. In addition, current and future

governmental restrictions, including, but not limited to, govemmental policies restricting or controlling

ievelopment within the Improve*"lnt A."u, could be enacted, and future land use initiatives approved by

the voters in the City could add more restrictions and requirements on development within the

Improvement Area, which restrictions may increase the cost to develop the Improvement Area. One such

govemmental restriction is the requiremint to install rooftop photovoltaic solar systems for residential

[uildings underthree stories constiucted starting in2020. Costs associated with the installation of solar

to the homebuilders may reduce the willingness of homebuilders to construct homes and increased costs

of those homes may decrease the willingness of homeowners to buy such homes'

Moreover, there can be no assurance that the means and incentive to conduct land development

operations within ih" I*p.on"ment Area will not be adversely affected by a deterioration of the real estate

market or economic.oniitiorr. generally, future local, State and federal governmental policies relating to

real estate development, the income tax treatment of real property ownership, acts of war or terrorism' or

other factors.

A portion of the Taxable Property in the Improvement Area is presently being developed.

Undeveloped property is less valuable per u".* than developed property, especially if there are no plans to

develop such-property or if there ur. ."u"t" restrictions on the development of such propefly, and

72 Page 248

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



therefore provides less security to the owners of the Bonds should it be necessary for the District to

foreclose due to the nonpaym*t otthe Special Taxes. Delays in any property owner's ability to obtain

discretionary approvals lin"tuaing any delays caused by litigation) would in turn delay the construction of

improvements ana deveiop*ent of tn. Taxable Property within the Improvement Area. Furthermore, an

inatitity to develop the la-nd within the Improvement Area as currently proposed would result in slower

rates of diversification oi prop"ny ownership within the Improvement Area. Concentration of ownership

increases the risk of a failure io collect sufhcient Special Taxes to pay debt service on the Bonds, all other

things being equal. The timely payment of Special Taxes levied on undeveloped properly depends

pri,rr-arity uf,on'the abilify and wittingness of own".t of such property to pay such taxes when due'

certain infrastructure improvements are required before development in t!r9 
-lmprovement 

A11--i1

complete. Also, the Phase 2 Water Facilities described under the heading "PROPOSED PROPERTY

DEVELOpMENT-Development Entitlements-Water Supply- are expected to be needed before the full

development of the Folsom Flan Area. A slowdown in or cessation of the development of land within the

Improvement Area could reduce the ability and willingness of such owners to make Special Tax

payments, and could greatly reduce the value of such properly in the event it has to be foreclosed upon to

collect delinquent .pJ.iut taxes. See "-s4nftpptcy" above for a discussion of certain limitations on the

ability of the District to pursue judicial foreclosure proceedings with respect to taxpayers with delinquent

Special Taxes.

No Independent Review of Valuation or Viabilify of Completed Projects

property within the Improvement Area is comprised of separate and distinct projects as described

above. payment of Speciaf Taxes are inherently dependent upon the development within th9

Improvement Area, and, with respect to residential properties, the ability of the buyers of completed

ho*es to pay. The Authority, the District, and the Underwriter have not reviewed any business plan for

continued ownership, development and/or operation of the property within the 
-Improvement 

Area'

Similarty, the Authority, the Di*t.i"t and the Underwiter have not conducted any independent evaluation

of the e*isting or projicted economic viability or profitability of any of the plans for development,

including review andl"or evaluation of financial statements of any owner or developer of any parcel

subject tlo the special rax. The information contained herein regarding the proposed development and the

owners of the parcels within the Improvement Area has been supplied by such owners and the

Underwriter has not independently verified, makes no representation regarding, and does not accept any

responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of such information.

In the event an owner or developer experiences financial difficulties, including difficulties

resulting from construction or operation of the development within the Improvement Area, the value of

the affeited parcel within the Improvement Area may decline and/or such owner or developer may elect

to refrain from payment of future Special Taxes for such parcel. See also "-Failure to Develop'"

Potential Impact of Global Health Crises or Concerns

The ability or willingness of property owners to develop property in the Improvement Area, the-

speed at which properly o*n-"r, deveiop property in the Improvement Area, the ability or willingness of

properfy owners to seliproperty in the'Imprbvement Area., the speed at which property owners are able

,"ti prop".ty in the Improvement Area, the ability or willingness of property owners to pay the Special

Tax on prop"rry in the improvement Area when due, the value of the property in the Improvement Area,

or the ability of tn" District to collect delinquent Special Taxes through judicial foreclosure could be

adversely afiected by a global, national or localized outbreak of an infectious disease, such as covlD-19,

or by the fear of ,u"rr*un outbreak. The construction industry in the united_states relies heavily on

intemational trade for myriad construction materials. A global, national or localized outbreak could

impact the availabilify of workers in countries producing construction materials, potentially resulting in

73 Page 249

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



supply chain shutdowns, which may result in substantial construction delays and project cost ovenuns'
purin!., the spread of COVID-I9 and the response to its spread has altered the behavior of businesses and

people in a manner that has had a lasting, negative impact on global and local economies. These events

and other factors resulting from such an outbreak in the future, and the lingering effects from the COVID-

19 outbreak, particularly if prolonged, could result in, or increase the likelihood of, the occurrence of
certain of the other potential adverse effects described in this Official Statement, including those relating

to declines in the value of property, the failure to complete the development of property, the inability to

sell property, the inability br unwillingness to pay the Special Tax, and delays in (or insufficient funds

,"".iu"i f.omy ttte colleciion of delinquent Special Taxes through judicial foreclosure. A future outbreak

of COVID-19 or another infectious disease or the fear of any such outbreak could have similar or

additional adverse effects. The Authority cannot predict the ultimate effects of the COVID-19 outbreak

or any future outbreak or potential future outbreak of an infectious disease, or whether any such effects

wouli have a material adverse effect on the ability to develop the Improvement Area as planned, the

ability or willingness of property owners to pay Special Taxes when due, or the ability of the Authority to

pay debt service on the Bonds when due'

Cybersecurity

The City, like other public and private entities, relies on a large and complex technology

environment to conduct its operations, and consequently faces the threat of cybersecurity incidents. The

City and its departments could face cybersecurity threats including, but not limited to, hacking, viruses,

malware and other attacks on computers and other sensitive digital networks and systems. Such

cybersecurity incidents could result from unintentional events, or from deliberate attacks by unauthorized

entities or 
'individuals 

attempting to gain access to the City's information technology systems to

misappropriate assets and/or 
- 
information or to cause operational disruption and damage. The City

maintains insurance to cover cybersecurity incidents, has cybersecurity risk management policies and

procedures and periodically trains its employees on cybersecurity risks. The City, in addition to

conducting regular internal reviews, also hires external auditors to perform quarterly and annual reviews

of its cybersecurity program.

While the City conducts periodic tests and reviews of its networks, no assurances can be given

that such security and operational control measures will be successful in guarding against all cyber threats

and attacks. New tectrnical cyber vulnerabilities are frequently discovered in the United States. In

addition, cyber attacks have become more sophisticated and increasingly are capable of impacting

municipal control systems and components. The techniques used to obtain unauthorized access to, or to

disablo or degrade, electronic networks, computers, systems and solutions are rapidly evolving and have

become incriasingly complex and sophisticated. The results of any attack on the computer and

information technology uyrt"*. could have a material adverse impact on the operations of the City and

damage the digital net*orks and systems. The City cannot predict the outcome of any such attack, nor

the effect on the operations and finances of the City'

Geologic, Topographic and Climatic Conditions

The value of the property in the Improvement Area in the future can be adversely affected by a

variety of additional faitors, particularly those which may affect infrastructure and other public

imp.ovements and private improvements on property and the continued habitability and enjoyment of
such private improvements. Such additional factors include, without limitation, geologic conditions such

as earthquak"r, topogruphic conditions such as earth movements, landslides and floods and climatic

conditions such as droughts and wildfire.

74 Page 250

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



The occurrence of seismic activity in the Improvement Area could result in substantial damage to

properties in the Improvement Area which, in turn, could substantially reduce the value of such properties

and could affect the ability or willingness of the properly owners to pay the Special Tax on their properly-

The Improvement Area is not located in any existing special study zone delineated by the Chief of the

Division of Mines and Geology of the State of California as an area of known active faults and is not

otherwise known to be located within an area of any significant seismic activity. However, it may be

expected that one or more of such conditions may occur and may result in damage to improvements of
varying seriousness, that the damage may entail significant repair or replacement costs and that repair or

,"piu""*"nt may never occur either because of the cost or because repair or replacement will not facilitate

traUitafitity or other use, or because other considerations preclude such repair or replacement. Under any

of these circumstances, the value of the property may decline.

In recent years, wildfires have caused extensive damage throughout the State. In some instances,

entire neighborhotds have been destroyed. Several ofthe fires that occurred in recent years damaged or

destroyed property in areas that were not previously considered to be at risk from such events. Some

commentators believe that climate change will lead to even more frequent and more damaging wildfires

in the future. In general, property damage due to wildfire could result in a significant decrease in the

market value of property in the Improvement Area and in the ability or willingness of properly owners to

pay Special Taxes.

The Improvement Area is located within an area identified as a moderate fire hazard severity

zone. More information regarding Fire Hazard Severity Zones can be found at the California Department

of Forestry and Fire Protection website at https://frap.fire.ca.gov, though such website is not incorporated

herein by reference. The development within the Improvement Area is subject to mitigation measures set

forth in a fuel modification plan approved by the City Fire Department. The mitigation measures include,

among others, limitations on the type of vegetation that may be planted within fuel modification zones

established in open space areas along certain portions of the perimeter of the Improvement Area,

minimum setbaci< of structures and irrigation requirements of the fuel modification zones. Maintenance

of such zones is expected to initially be the responsibility of the property owners but upon build-out of the

Improvement Area and dedication of the open space to the City will be maintained by the City from funds

provided through CFD 18. Homeowner's insurance is expected to be available to property owners within

ih" I*p.ouement Area, and the coverage provided by such insurance typically insures against fire

damage, although there is no assurance that homeowners within the Improvement Area will purchase or

maintain such insurance.

In the event of a wildfire, flood or other natural disaster, there may be significant damage to both

property and infrastructure in the Improvement Area. As a result, a substantial portion of the property
-o*n"6-*uy 

be unable or unwilling to pay the Special Taxes when due. In addition, the value of land in

the Improvement Area could be diminished in the aftermath of such a natural disaster, reducing the

resulting proceeds of foreclosure sales in the event of delinquencies in the payment of the Special Taxes.

Folsom Dam, located on the American River within the jurisdictional boundaries of the City, was

built in 1955 by the United States Army Corps of Engineers and is owned by the United States Bureau of
Reclamation. An auxiliary spillway to enable the dam to more easily release water as it nears capacity

was completed by the Army Corps of Engineers in October 2011 . The City, together with the County and

other local ug.n"i"r, have established a hazard mitigation plan in the event of adam failure' Geologic,

topographic and climatic conditions, if severe, could result in damage to the dam which could further

"uur" 
du*uge to the surrounding region and may limit water supply for the City and the Improvement

Area.

75 Page 251

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Endangered Species

During recent years, there has been an increase in activity at the State of California and federal

level related to the posiUl" listing of certain plant and animal species found in California as endangered

species. An increase in the numbir of endangered species is expected to curtail development in a number

of areas. The properfy within the Improvement Area contains protected habitat and species, including but

not limited to-swainson,s hawk and tri-colored blackbird foraging habitats and wetlands regulated by

state and federal agencies. Foraging habitat mitigation credits have been satisfied by the original

Developer for all backbone projects and all Improvement Area project phases. At present, the property

within ih" I*prou"ment Area is not known to be inhabited by any other plant or animal species listed as

threatened or endangered under either the State or federal endangered species acts or which either the

California Fish and 6u*" Commission or the United States Fish and Wildlife Service has proposed for

addition to the respective endangered species list. Notwithstanding this fact, new species are proposed to

be added to the State and federal proticted lists on a regular basis. Any action by the State or federal

governments to protect species tocated on or adjacent to undeveloped property could negatively affect the

Ieveloper's ability to complete development as planned. This, in turn, could reduce the likelihood of

timely payment oithe Speciat Tax, from which funds for the payment of the Bonds is derived, and would

likely reduce the value of the land and the potential revenues available at a foreclosure sale for delinquent

speciat Taxes. See "GERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS-Land Values."

Hazardous Substances

While governmental taxes, assessments, and charges are a common claim against the value of a

parcel, other lis common claims may be relevant. one of the most serious in terms of the potential

reduction in the value of a parcel in the Improvement Area is a claim with regard to a hazardous

substance. In general, the owners and operators of a parcel may be required by law to remedy conditions

of the parcel relating to releases oi threatened releases of hazardous substances. The federal

Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of i980, sometimes referred to

as ..CERCLA', or the "superfund Act," is the most well-known and widely applicable of these laws, but

laws with regard to hazardous substances are also stringent and similar. Under many of these laws, the

owner (or op*erator) is obligated to remedy a hazardous substance condition of prope*y whether or nol_the

owner (or operator; nas anyttring to do with creating or handling the hazardous substance. The effect,

therefoie, should any of the parcels in the Improvement Area be affected by ahazardous substance is to

reduce the marketability and value of the parcel by the costs of remedying the condition, because the

purchaser, upon becoming owner, will become obligated to remedy the condition just as is the seller.

hurther, *.6 liubitities rn-ay arise not simply from the existence of a hazardous substance but from the

methodof handling it. All of these possibilities could significantly affect the financial and legal liability

of a property o*n", to develop the affected parcel or other parcels, as well as the value of the property

that is realizable upon a delinquency and foreclosure.

The appraised value of properly in the Improvement Area does not take into account the possible

reduction in mirketability and value of any of the parcels by reason of the possible liability of the owner

(or operator) for the rernedy of a hazardous substance condition of the parcel. While the District is not

aware that the owner (or operator) of any of parcels has such a current liability with respect to any of the

parcels, it is possible that such liabilities do currently exist and that the District is not aware of them.

Further, it is possible that liabilities may arise in the future with respect to any of the parcels

resulting from the existence, currently, on the parcel of a substance presently classified as hazardous but

which has not been released or the release of which is not presently threatened, or may arise in the future

resulting from the existence, currently, on the parcel of a substance not presently classified as hazardous

but whlh may in the future be so ilassified. Further, such liabilities may arise not simply from the

76 Page 252

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



existence of a hazardous substance but from the method of handling it. All of these possibilities could

significantly affect the value of a parcel within the Improvement Area that is realizable upon a

delinquency.

Naturally Occurring Asbestos

California Air Resource Board ("CARB") adopted the Airborne Toxic Control Measure

("ATCM') for Construction, Grading, Quarrying and Surface Mining Operations. This statewide

regulation is applicable to grading or any other projects disturbing soil in areas of California where

asbestos may exist, as determined by the Califomia Geological Survey ("CGS"). The ATCM applies to
any size construction project although there are additional notification requirements for projects that

exceed one acre. Areas and parcels moderately likely to contain naturally occurring asbestos are located

in the eastern parts of Sacramento County, including in the City,

Natural weathering or human disturbance can break the asbestiform minerals down to
microscopic fibers, which are easily suspended in air. There is no health threat if asbestos fibers in soil

remain undisturbed and do not become airborne. When inhaled, these thin fibers initate tissues and resist

the body's natural defenses. Asbestos causes cancers of the lung (such as mesothelioma) and the lining of
internal organs, asbestosis, and other diseases that inhibit lung function. Scientists consider certain types

of asbestos fibers (i.e., tremolite fibers and similarly structured amphibole asbestos particles) that are

frequently identified in the City to be more potent than other types in causing mesothelioma.

The EIR for the Folsom Plan Area required all new development to undertake a site investigation

to determine the presence of naturally occurring asbestos and, if necessary, prepare and implement an

asbestos dust control plan. The Original Developer has undertaken an asbestos dust control plan with
respect to development within the Improvement Area.

The health concerns associated with the presence of naturally occurring asbestos in the

Improvement Area may adversely affect the marketability of property in the area.

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the Bonds, the Local Obligations and certain other legal matters are subject to the

approving legal opinion of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority ("Bond

Counsel"). Bond Counsel has not undertaken any responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or
fairness of this Official Statement and expresses no opinion as to the matters set forth herein. Certain

legal matters will be passed upon for the District and the Authority by the City Attomey. Certain legal

matters relating to the Local Obligations will be passed upon by Orrick, Henington & Sutcliffe LLP, as

bond counsel to the District. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriter by its counsel,

Stradling, Yocca, Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation. The fees of Bond Counsel, Disclosure

Counsel, and counsel to the Underwriter are contingent upon the issuance of the Bonds.

TAX MATTERS

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, based upon an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and

court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, the accuracy of certain representations and

compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal

income tax purposes under Section 1 03 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code") and is exempt

from State of California personal income taxes. Bond Counsel is of the further opinion that interest on

the Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual altemative minimum tax.

Bond Counsel observes that interest on the Bonds included in adjusted financial statement income of

77 Page 253

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



certain corporations is not excluded from the federal corporate alternative minimum tax. Bond Counsel

expresses no opinion regarding any other tax consequences related to the ownership or disposition of, or

thi amount, a-crual, or receipt of interest on, the Bonds. A complete copy of the proposed form of
opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth as APPENDIX E hereto.

To the extent the issue price of any maturity of the Bonds is less than the amount to be paid at

maturity of such Bonds (excluding amounts stated to be interest and payable at least annually over the

term of such Bonds), the difference constitutes "original issue discount," the accrual of which, to the

extent properly allocable to each Beneficial Owner thereof, is treated as interest on the Bonds which is

excludid fto* grors income for federal income tax purposes and exempt from State of California

personal income taxes. For this purpose, the issue price of a particular maturity of the Bonds is the first
price at which a substantial amount of such maturity of the Bonds is sold to the public (excluding bond

hous"s, brokers, or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement

agents or wholesalers). The original issue discount with respect to any maturity of the Bonds accrues

diily over the term to maturity of such Bonds on the basis of a constant interest rate compounded

semiannually (with straight-line interpolations between compounding dates). The accruing original issue

discount is added to the adjusted basis of such Bonds to determine taxable gain or loss upon disposition

(including sale, redemption, or payment on maturity) of such Bonds. Beneficial Owners of the Bonds

should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of ownership of Bonds with

original issue discount, including the treatment of Beneficial Owners who do not purchase sueh Bonds in

the original offering to the public at the first price at which a substantial amount of such Bonds is sold to

the public.

Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherwise, for an amount higher than their

principal amount payable at maturity (or, in some cases, at their earlier call date) ("Premium Bonds") will
Le treated as having amortizable bond premium. No deduction is allowable for the amortizable bond

premium in the case of bonds, like the Premium Bonds, the interest on which is excluded from gloss

incom" for federal income tax purposes. However, the amount of tax-exempt interest received, and a

Beneficial Owner's basis in a Premium Bond, will be reduced by the amount of amortizable bond

premium properly allocable to such Beneficial Owner. Beneficial Owners of Premium Bonds should

tonsult their own tax advisors with respect to the proper treatment of amortizable bond premium in their

particular circumstances.

The Code imposes various restrictions, conditions and requirements relating to the exclusion from

gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on obligations such as the Bonds' The

Authority, the City and the District have made certain representations and covenanted to comply with

certain restrictions, conditions and requirements designed to ensure that interest on the Bonds will not be

included in federal gross income. Inaccuracy of these representations or failure to comply with these

covenants may result in interest on the Bonds being included in gross income for federal income tax

purposes, possibly from the date of original issuance of the Bonds. The opinion of Bond Counsel

ar*um". the accuracy of these representations and compliance with these covenants. Bond Counsel has

not undertaken to determine (or to inform any person) whether any actions taken (or not taken), or events

occurring (or not occurring), or any other matters coming to Bond Counsel's attention after the date of
issuance of the Bonds may adversely affect the value of, or the tax status of interest on, the Bonds.

Accordingly, the opinion of Bond Counsel is not intended too and may not, be relied upon in connection

with any such actions, events or matters'

Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross

income for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from State of California personal income taxes, the

ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of amounts treated as interest on, the Bonds may

otherwise affect a Beneficial Owner's federal, state or local tax liability. The nature and extent of these

78 Page 254

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



other tax consequences depends upon the particular tax status- of the Beneficial Owner or the Beneficial

Owner,s other items of income oi deduction. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such

other tax consequonces.

Current and future legislative proposals, if enacted into law, clarification of the Code or court

decisions may cause interest 
-on 

the B-onds to be subject, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part to

federal income taxation or to be subject to or exempted from state income taxation, or otherwise prevent

Beneficial Owners from realizing the full cunent benefit of the tax status of such interest. The

introduction or enactment of any s=uch legislative proposals or clarification of the Code or court decisions

may also affect, perhaps significantly, the markei price for, or marketability of, the Bonds. Prospective

puichasers of thi gonas sf,ould consult their own tax advisors regarding the potential impact of any

pending or proposed federal or state tax legislation, regulations or litigation, as to which Bond Counsel

expresses no opinion.

The opinion of Bond Counsel is based on cuffent legal authority, covers certain matters not

directly addressed by such authorities, and represents Bond Counsel's judgment as to the proper treatment

of the Bonds for federal income tax purposer. tt ir not binding on the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS")

or the courts. Furthermore, Bond counsel cannot give and has not given any opinion or assurance about

the future activities of the Authority, the city or the District, or about the effect of future changes in the

Code, the applicable regulations, the interprltution thereof or the enforcement thereof by the IRS' The

Authority, tire City and-the District have covenanted, however, to comply with the requirements of the

Code.

Bond Counsel,s engagement with respect to the Bonds ends with the issuance of the Bonds, and,

unless separately engaged, EoiO coutrsel is not obligated to defend the Authority, the City, the District or

the Beneficial ownerJregarding the tax-exempt status of the Bonds in the event of an audit examination

by the IRS. Under "ur# 
proJ.dur.r, Beneficial Owners would have little, if any, right to participate in

the audit examination pro""r.. Moreover, because achieving judiciat review in connection with an audit

examination or ta*-"*!.pt bonds is difficult, obtaining an independent review of IRS positions with

which the Authority, ttle City or the District legitimately disagrees, may not be practicable. Any action of

the IRS, including but not limited to selection ortn" Bonds for audit, or the course or result of such audit,

or an audit of bonds presenting similar tax issues may affect the market price for, or the marketability of,

the Bonds, unA *ay .uup ih. Authority, the City, the District or the Beneficial Owners to incur

significant expense.

payrnents on the Bonds generally will be subject to U.S. information reporting and possibly to

.,backup withholding.,, Under Seition 3406 of the Code and applicable U.S' Treasury Regulations issued

thereunder, u non-"i.porate Beneficial Owner of Bonds may be subject to backup withholding with

respect to ;.reportabfr puyr"ntr," which include interest paid on the Bonds and the gross proceeds of a

sale, exchange, redemption, retirement or other disposition of the Bonds' The payor will be required to

deduct and withhold the prescribed amounts if (i) the payee fails to furnish a u's. taxpayer identification

number (,,TfN,,) to the payor in the manner requiredo (iD_th9 IRS notifies the payor that the TIN furnished

by the pay€e i, in"o,1i"i, (iii) there has been a "notified payee underreporting' described in Section

g+oO(")oittre Code or (ivj ih"puy". fails to certifl under penalty of perjury tha] tlrg payee is not subject

to withholding under'section i+oo(uxtxc) oi the code. Amounts withheld under the backup

withholding rules may be refunded or 
"redii"d 

against aBeneficial owner's federal income tax liability, if
any, prouiied that the required information is iimely furnished to the tRS. Certain Beneficial owners

(including among others, corporations and certain tax-exempt organizations) are not subject to backup

withholding. The fuitur" to comply with the backup withholOing rules may result in the imposition of

penalties by the IRS.

79
Page 255

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



NO LITIGATION

At the time of delivery of and payment for the Bonds and the Local Obligations, the Authority

and/or the District, as applicable, wifl tertif, that there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or

investigation, at law or in'equity, before or by any court or regulatory agency' public board or body

pendin! or threatened againsi the.Authority or the District affecting their existence, or the titles of their

i"rp."tlu. officers, or sJeking to restrain or to enjoin the issuance, sale or delivery of the Bonds or the

Local Obligations, the applica"tion of the proceeds thereof in accordance with the Trust Agreement, or the

collection J. bny of the Special raxes to pay the principal of and interest on the Local obligations, or in

any way contesting or affecting the validity L. 
"nforr"ubility 

of the Local obligations and the Bonds, the

t*rt ,o.g...ment, ihe Local O-bligations Indenture, the Bond Purchase Contract entered into among the

Authorifi, the District and the lJnderwriter or any other applicable agreements or any action of the

Authority or the District contemplated by any of said documents, or in any way contesting the

completeness or accuracy of this Official Statement or any amendment or supplement thereto, or

contesting the powers of ine Authority or the District or their authority with respect to the Bonds or the

Local Obligations or any action of tne Authority or the District contemplated by any of said documents,

nor, to the knowledge of the Authority, is there any basis therefor'

NO RATING

The Authority has not made, and does not contemplate making, application to any rating agency

for the assignment ofi rating to the ionds. The absence of a rating may significantly adversely affect the

ability of the owner of Bonds to sell such Bonds.

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR

Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc. has acted as Municipal Advisor (the *Municipal Advisor")

to the District in con;unction with the issuance of the Bonds. The Municipal Advisor has assisted in

matters related to the ilanning, structuring, execution, and delivery of the Bonds. The Municipal Advisor

will receive compensation contingent uponthe sale and delivery of the Bonds. The Municipal Advisor has

not audited, authenticated, or otlierwisl indepetrdently verified the information set forth in this Official

Statement, or any other related information availabie, with respect to accuracy and completeness of

disclosure of such information. Because of this limited participation, the Municipal Advisor makes no

guaranty, warranty, or other representation with respect to the accuracy or completeness of this Official

Starcment, or any other matter related to this Official Statement.

UNDERWRITING

The Bonds are being purchased by Piper Sandler & Co. (the "Underwriter") pursuant to a Bond

Purchase Contract (the "Purchase Contract"), by and among the Authority, the District and the

Underwriter. Pursuant to the Purchase Contract, the Underwriter has agreed to purchase all of the Bonds

from the Authority at a purchase price of$ being the aggregate principal amount of the

Bonds of $ Iplus/less] a [net] original issue [premium/discount I of $=- and less

an Underwriter' s discount of $ The Underwriter may offer and sell the Bonds to certain

dealers and others at prices tower than the public offering prices set forth on the inside front cover page

hereof,

80
Page 256

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The District

The District has covenanted for the benefit of the owners to provide certain financial information

and operating data ,"tuiing to the Bonds by not later than nine months following the end of the District's

fis"ul'yea. lrinicr, nr""t y""ur currently enis June 30) commencing with the report for the 2022-23 Fiscal

year (the,.Annual n.po.t'), which is due April 1, 2024, and to provide notices of the occurrence of

certain enumerated events. 
-The 

Annual Report and the notices of enumerated events will be filed with

EMMA, and the first Annual Report may include the filing of or reference to this Official Statement' The

specific nature of the informatibn to be contained in thi Annual Report or the notices of enumerated

EVENTS iS CONtAiNEd WithiN APPENDIX D-"FORMS OF CONTINUING DTSCLOSURE

LTNDERTAKINGS.,, These covenants have been made in order to assist the Underwriter in complying

with S.E.C. Rule l5c2-12(bxs)'

The District is committed to complete and accurate continuing disclosure in accordance with its

continuing disclosure obligations under the federal securities laws, including rules and regulations

p.omulgaLd by the SEC and the MSRB, as those rules may be amended from time to time' Further, the

biry t ui policies and procedures in place in order to achieve compliance with its continuing disclosure

undertakings and those of its related entities. within the last five years, the city and its related entities

(includingihe oistrict) have complied in all material respects with their respective continuing disclosure

obligations under S.E'C. Rule 15c2-12(bX5)'

The Homebuilders

pursuant to Continuing Disclosure Certificates to be executed by each of the Homebuilders in

connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the Homebuilders will each covenant for the benefit of the

Bondholders to provide certain information relating to it and its development within the Improvement

Area no later than March3l and September 30 in each year, commencing March 31,2024 (the

..Disclosure Reports"), and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated events until the

obligation to so'provide such information, data and notices is otherwise terminated in accordance with the

provisions of such continuing Disclosure certificate. A form of the continuing Disclosure certificate for

the Homebuilders is included in APPENDIX D-*FORMS oF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

LTNDERTAKINGS." The Disclosure Reports are to be filed with EMMA'

The Authority and the District have not considered, or reached any conclusion as to, whether or

not either Homebuilder is an obligated person under the Rule. The Authority takes no responsibility fo-r

the form or content or for the adequacy of the applicable continuing Disclosure certificate for each

Homebuilder for its intended purpose.

The obligations of the Homebuilders will terminate upon the occurence of certain events as set

forth in each Homebuilder's Continuing Disclosure Certificate, including at such time as such

Homebuilder and its Affiliates (as defineJ in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement), in the aggregate'

own or has the option to purchasL less than 54 of the residential lots within the Improvement Area subject

to the Special Tax.

Disclas Tri Pointe represents that, to its actual

knowledge, Tri Pointe has not failed in anY material respect to comP ly with any previous undertaking by

it to provide periodic continuing disclosure reports or notices of material events with resPect to

in northern California within the past five years.
community fac ilities districts or assessment districts

81
Page 257

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Prior conlinuing Disq!:ls.ure conwlidrrce - Lpnnpr H-omes. To the actual knowledge of Lennar

Homes,otherthan"'astfiveyears'LennarHomeshasnotfailedto
comply in any material respect with its previous continuing disclosure, -undertakings, 

specifically-

regarding its requirem"nt to provide develoier periodic r-eports or to provide notice of occurrence of

enumerated events with respect to community facilities districts or assessment districts in California'

However, (i) in connection with the $16,780,000 C"tifornia Municipal Finance Authority Special Tax

Revenue Bonds BoLt program series 2ozaB,Lennar Homes inadvertently failed to file the initial semi-

Annual Report by the due iate of May 1,20;1, but filed a curative report on May 21, 2021; and (ii) in

connection with the $j,iqs,ooo ciry;f Rancho cordova Grantline 208 community Facilities District

No. 201g-1 Special Tax'Bonds, series 2021B,Lennar Homes inadvertently failed to file the initial annual

report by the due date of April 1,2a22, but filed a curative report on september 21,2022'

This Offrcial Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreemenl amolg the Authority, the

District and the purchasers of the Bonds. Any statements made in this Offrcial Statement involving

matters of opinion or of estimates, whether or not so expressly stated, are set forth as such and not as

representations of fact, and no representation is made that any of the estimates will be realized' The

information and e*pressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and neither the

delivery of the official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any

implication that there- has been no changl in the affairs of the Authority, the Cify or the District since the

date hereof.

References are made herein to certain documents and reports which are brief summaries thereof

which do not purport tl be complete or definitive and reference is made to such documents and reports for

full and complete statements of the contents thereof. Copies of such documents and reports are available

for inspection at the office of the Finance Director, City of Folsom, City Hall, 50 Natoma Street, Folsom,

California 95630.

The execution and delivery of the Official Statement by the Authority and the District has been

duly authorized by the Board of Directors of the Authority and the City Council, respectively'

MISCELLANEOUS

F'OLSOM RANCH FINAIICING AUTHORITY

Treasurer

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNTTY FACILITIES
DTSTRICT NO.23 (FOLSOM RANCII)

By:

82

City of Folsom Finance Director

Page 258

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



APPENDIX A

AIWENDED RATE, METIIOD OF APPORTIONMENT AND MANNER OF
COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAX

A-1
Page 259

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



OH&S DRAFT
rll29l23

APPENDIX B

ECoNOMICANDDEMoGRAPHICINFORMATIONRELATINGToTHBCITYoFFoLSoM

This Appendix contains ccrtain ecottontic anr) demographic infornnlion relalittg to lhe Citlt'

Neitltcr the faith ancl Uedit nor the taxittg pottter of the qi!', '!" 
Authority' the State of California or any

political subdivisiort thereaf is pteclgect ,i ini poy,,itr* of tie !9nds' 
Except for the Trust Estote' tto other

rel,erlues or tuxes are predged to rhe paynttrf"irn, noids. Trte Bontrs aie not general obligations of the

Authority, the District or-the City iur are liniited obligations of the Authority-payable solely from tlte

TrustEstate,derivedprintarily.fi"onlpalltnenlsonlhe{ocalobligationsfronzthepaymentoftheSpecial
Taxes levied v,ithin the District, o, nroru.Tully described.in the.officiat stslement to which this Appendix

is appende;. The i,fuirntation set forth hiet'ein rhat has been obtiined frow sources other than the City is

ber.ieverr to be reriabre, hut sttch infor,tariou is ttot guaranteed as ro accuracy or contpleteness'

Statentenls contained hereitt thaf invlolve eslimoles, forecasls, or n'totters of opinion' whether or not

expressly so described hereitt, are itztended solely as' ir,rh and are not to be construed as representations

of facts. htformalion contaitted in lhis Appenctii B is presente4 as general background data' The laxing

power of the City, the srare of cotifo,irio, ot" any potitical sttbdivision thereof is not pledged to the

paytlxent of the Bonds.

General

rurenbers are:

The City is located in tlre eastern poftion of Sacramento Couttty (the "County"), approximately

110 
'rires 

nortrreast of san Fra'cisco arid 20 mires east of Sacramento. The city is located alo'g the

eastern end of the Highway 50 corridor in an area of tlre Sacramento valley that has experienced

considerable growth over the past 30 years'

City Government

The City was incorporated irr 1946 ardchartered in 1990. The city's primary governing body is

the city council, composed of five members who are elected at large and who serve four-year terms' The

council members clroose a mayor aud vice lnayor from among iheir nrernbers' Current City Council

Mernber Term Expires

Rosalio Rodri guez (MaYor)

YK Chalanrclrerla (Vice MaYor)

Sarah Aquino
Mike Kozlowski
Anna Rohrbough

1v2024
1U2024
1112026
1112026
1U2026

TheCityopemtesunderaCoLrrrcil.Managerfornrofgovernment..TheCityManagerts
responsibre for dairy adrninistration of city uffuir.. iluin" Arderien rras served as city Manager since

201B. ThecityManagerisappointedbyundr.ru".atthewill ofthecitycou'cil' ThecityManageris

responsibre for inprJmentation of ciry coLrncir poricy, enforcerne't of city raws and ordina'ces,

appointme't and disciprine of city officer.s arrd erriproyees, oversigrrt of city departments, preparation

and subrnission of the-iity blrdget io the City Council, and otlier related functions'

B-1
Page 260

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



City Buclget Pt'ocess

TlreCity,satrtlltalbr'tdgetisadoptedbytlreCityCouncilorrorbeforetlte-lastworkirrgdayof
June. lf rhe City c".",.ii'frilr?o uaopt;il;; uy 

'u"t' 
aute'the budget proposed bv the Ciry Managet'

srrall be dee'red uoopt"o. Trie Ciry Mrr;;;;rj transfer.,ro,*y, bjween deparrr'errrs and divisions'

and prograr's a.d :;""",riJ;iri' ;;pfi;""tJ rtta oiui'ionJ"iui o"rv the citv courrcil niav bv

resol'tion transler ,t;;;;;;"*een funds and from u"-upp'op'iated bala'ces or fund balances to any

fund or appropriatio;;::"fi:"il; c-y i"r"rii "o"pt"o'tn" 
nirrur v"ut zan-24 budget on Ju'e 8'

2023.

Budget infbrrnatiorr is adopted on an al.lnual basis for tlre General Fund, special revenue furrds and

debt service funds. T,e budget l, uaopilO on u pro3""t l""gth ;;ti; for capiial projects fu*ds' The

fo'owing procedures "r" 
r"'"ri,"o i" "u"uiirr,i'g 

itr" uuog"tu ri iutureflected in the financial statements:

A.DepafirrrentheadsprepareabudgetrequestbasedupontheprevioLrsyear'sexpenditur.es.

B'Meetingsar.elreldbetweenthedepartmentlreads,tlreClriefFinarrcialofficerandCiry
Manager for tlre p;;t:;iteviewing and prioritizing budget requests'

C.TheCityManagersubmitstheproposedcitybudgettotheCiryCorrnci.l,wltotnakes
decisious regard ing departrnent bud gets'

D.TransfersbetweenfundsandclrangesinthetotalbudgetmustbeapprovedbytlieCity
Council.

BudgetinformationispresentedfortheGeneralFund,SuccessortotlreRedevelopmentAgency,
Special Revenue u""1., i"pitat rr.oiects;il;, proprietary r""J. ".a 

Internar service Fund as required

supplementur, ,nro,]*"iio".' in" b;dg;;formation l' p'"'"n*a on a basis consistent with generally

accepted accolrntrng principres. Appropriatlons, except "*';;Giappropriations 
and unexpended

;;#;;t'"p'lutio"s] tuptt ut the end of each fiscal year'

Reverrrres and expenditures relating to the city's general governmental operatiotrs are budgeted

and accounted for in the city,s c"'.rui'ilir"n; ilrt+ piciJ ."i"ry, rrighways and streets' and cultr'rre

and recreation. General taxes uno r""r'*ip"n ,""r, oi rr.r"'u"ii"lri.r. itt" iity't Fiscal Year 2023-24

adopted b,dget ;;;i;;; "; 
er $2a6.2 iitiion in "*p"naitt*' 

u"'o" all f'rids' of this amount'

approxirnarety $10;.;';;lion was allocateJto the Gerreial Fund of the ciry'

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

B-2
Page 261

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Population
The historic population of the city, tlie counfy and the State is shown in the following table'

Citv of Folsom, Sacramento County and State of California

PoPulation Bstimates
(As of JanuarY l)

W.
1990 

(')

2000 (r)

2010 {t)

2Ar6
2017
201 8

2019
2020
2021
2022
2AZ3

Cilv o! Folsttttr

29,798
51,884
72,243
16,260
77,a50
'7'7,598

78,666
82,943
83,008
84,438
85,498

Sacrnnrcnlo Counly

1,066,789
1,223,499
1,418,788
1,495,620
1,51 1,390
1,525,099
1 ,53 8,054
1,585,055
1,579,1 86

1,513,366
1,5'72,453

Stntc of Cnllfornin

29,811,421
33,8',71,648

3'7,253,956
39,1 03,587
39,352,398
39,5t9,535
39,605,361
39,538,223
39,286,510
39,A18,674
38,940,231

2A20

(t) Based on

Source: State
United States Census

of California, DePartment
Bureau data as of APril

of Finance. E-J
I in such Year
Populatiott Eslinrctes for Cities, Cotmlies and tlrc 'S/ale' Sacramento'

California May 2023'

table
BUILDING PERMITS AND VALUATIONS

CitY of Folsom

12017-20211

2017 2018 2019

Permit Valu

Building ActivitY

Residential buirding activity for the past five carendar years for the city is shswn i' the forlowing

2021

New Single-FarnilY

New Multi-FamilY
Res. Alterations/Additions
Res. Other

Total Residential 
(r)

s49,8',76,243
44,567,106
9,213,464

$133,853,629
18,535,990

8,634,352
24,467,8'71

$ 168,004,023
i 5,533,653
10,055,289
26,531,2"14

$181,531,127
ll,039,625
11,214,031
34,630,6'13

$351,482,252
6,621,585

n,20a,936
43,832,114

$125,5i1,5 10 $ i 85,491 , 842
21,854,701

$23 8,4 I 5,456

$230,698

$4 1 5,1 36, 887
s220,130,239

$ I ,3 84,87 I
$s70,9s4

New Commercial
New lndustrial
Comnr./lnd.

A lterati ons/Add itions

Other Cornm./lnd'

Total Non-Residential 
(1)

s|,44A,277
3,314,395

21,432,333

$73 s,936

19,013,485

9,171,4A4

26,361,404

14,185,636

1A,1n.261

2,Al |,881

11,622,914

9,611,894
14,023,180

540,2',10,1 85 s28,92A,825

(l) Totals may not add to sum because

Source: CitY of Folsort

of lounding.

B-3

$41 ,931 ,907 $12,359,846 $21 ,805,758

Page 262

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



EmploYment

The table berow reflects recent ernproyment iuforrnation for trre city's largest employers for the

fiscal Year ended Juue 30'2023
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYBRS

CitY of Folsom

Fiscal YearZA22-23

Na

Percent of Total
Entnlovment

11.16%
3.7 8

2.79
2.33
2.02
1.70
I .15

0,9'7

0.90
0.65

21.46%

e
Number ofilqP-lof-qes

4 476
1"514
1,1 l7

935
812
683
463

- 390
361
264

1 1,01 1

40,100

Intel CorPoratton
California State Prison

ili*J";;;;a unifi ed School District 
(r)

Folsom State Prison

Mercv HosPital of Folsom

Curirot" iu independent System operator

Ciw of Folsom
SR'f'g Credit Union (2)

Costco Wholesale

Folsom Lake coilege 
Total rop Employers

Total Labor Force 
(3) 100,00%

fficlassified emplol'ees in Folsom only'(i) lncludcs both certtlteo
(z) Includcs both the corporate and Folsonrlranch'
(l)TotalFolsomruru,roo.p,ouio.ouyeooLaborForceData.
;;,;;;;' M;;ii.'u;"", t-iii eu'nu I n ii ghrs & Analvtics

Theunemploymentrateirr,l.:Sacrametrto-Roseville-Arden-Arcade,CAMetropolitan
statistical Area (,,s#;#;;; rr;s;,;i, wrriclr includes Sacrameuiolpr""*, El Dorado' and Yolo counties'

was approximately ,i;i'n"za:it;;;*" i.,",r* io21 estimate of upproxi'naterv 6.2Vo. This compares

with an unadjusted unemproyment r.ate of-4";;);{"rcalifornia a"ai.ot" for the nation during the same

period. The unempro'v-,^r,Jni"u,e was l',i""ir'rgi oo'uoo d;"t" 3ly' in ptu""r county' 3'9% in

Sacramento Cornty, unJ 4'0% inYolo County fot 2022'

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

B-4
Page 263

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



The table berow provides infor'ration about employnrent rates aud etnploynrent by industty type

for the Sacramento USA'fo' calendar years 2018 through 2022'

Sacramento-Roseville-Arclen-Arcad"' 
Ct Metropolitan Statistical Area

LaborForce'nmptoym""ionOUn"mploymeniYearlyAverage(t)

1,088,300
i,046,900

41,500
3.8%

20!?

I ,1 00,800
1,060,300

40,500
33%

2A20

I ,091,700
994,000

97,700
9.0%

1,10?,800
1,036,700

7.l,100
6.4%

I , I 24,500
1,082,s00

42,000
3;7%

2021 2022
201 I

Civilian Labor Force (?)

EmPloYment
UnemPloYment
UnemPloYrnent Rate

iv t*.'r," i iuutt-gt+tntoout 
tt'

Total Farm
Mining and Logging

Construction
Manufacturing
Wholesale Trade

Retail Trade
il;p;t*rt"n, Warehousing and Utilities

Infonnation
Finance and Insurance

n.uLgrtut" and Rental and Leasing

ptoi*tionuf and Business Services

fOucationat and Health Services

Leisure and HosPitaliry

Other Services

Federal Governlnent
State Government
Local Governrnent
Total, All Industries 

(a)

9,100
500

64,500
36,000
28,400

102,000
29,500
12,440
36,',|A0

16,800
136,000
159,800
106,200
34,200
14,100

120,400
103.500

8,700
500

69,400
36,800
28,600

100,500
32,200
I 1,900

35,200
17,300

137,200
166,600
109,600
35,400
14,200

121,900
105,300

#
1,031 .300

8,300
600

70,200
36,1 00

26,500
95,200
34,300
10,200
34,800
16,900

1 32,500
164,000

83,900
3 1,000

14,800
121,700
98,900

9-19,700

9,000
700

74,100
37,500
26,404

101,100
37, I 00

i 0,000
34,300
17,400

136,700
168,400
92,800
32,600
14,500

I 26,800
98,000

I,0i 7,200

8,600
500

76,800
40,300
28,300

100,800
40,500
10,500
T,2A0
1 9,1 00

147,500
i 75,400
108,700

36,1 00

14,300

128,700
102 900

1,Q72,3 00
1,009,900

3 il;:i?:11Xx;: 't$TillJri?'"'ia'n'"; 
incrudes serf-emproved individuals' unpaid famii'v

(3) ;";lrfi 3l,dpil;'ffillJ;ll'i;.. or rvo'k: excrudes selr-ernploved individuars' unpaid ranrirl'

*ort *,i, and u'orkel's on strike'

(4) no,o t"oy not acld riue to rounding.

Source: Stale of Califo'nl g*pi"y"tint Development l)epaftnlent'

rvotkers. household domestic

rvorkers, household domestic

Retirement Programs

Genernr. The city contributes to two prans in. trre california public Ernproyees' Reti'enrent

System (,.catpERS'1. rt.," iafety ptun "oulrr';il 
;il; ci$'s fttli:;il; swo'' unifon'ned fire employees'

sworn unifor'ed pori"e ernproyles, una "ri"ii"is 
in both d;p",r,*;;;. ih" *ir..'aneor"rs pran covers all

rerlaiuin g eli gib le ernployees'

As of June 30, 2a22,thedate.of tlre most recent actuarial strrdy report, the safety plarr arrd the

miscella*eous pran *"r" o r .3% funded a' i'il sv"funded" r"*#;;i;]'For',h"'uufetv plari' t'e actuarial

accrued riabiriry was approxiTut:r{ $25g';iii;,' nnJ ,rr" irrarket varue of assets was app'oxirnately $ I 58

nrillior, resurting in a' unfu'ded actual:,"i""."r".0 riuuttv'tl'i-lner-,") ol,.$r00 nrilliori' For tlte

miscellaneou, ptun,'lrl;";,;;;;;r u"",u",r liabirity was ap_proxir),.ty $286 nrillion a'd the t'arket value

of assers was approxinrately $ I 82 rnillio,r,;:;;;i;;;t 
'rr-a 

uAAL of approxirnate lv $ I 04 niillion'

B-5
Page 264

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



FortheyearendedJune30,2023,theCity'sr:rrauditedatrnltalpensioncostof$9,789,430fortlie
safefy pran and sro,g;622+ for tlre rniscelraneoris plan wer.e equar to trre ciry's.requi.ed contributions'

The three-year trend information for the safety and niiscellaneons plans combined is as follows:

Fiscal Year
Bnded

Annual
Pension

Cost ("APC")

Percentage
ofAPC

Contributed

Net
Pension

Obligation

613012021

613012022

6BU2A23

$ 18,281,774
18,902,039
20,675,7A5

100%
r 00%
100%

otllerPost-EmploynrcntBenefils.ln2004.theGovernllentAccountingStandardsBoard
(,,GASB,,) issued StutJ,n"nt No, 45, Accou,rting and Financial Reporting by Ernployers for Post-

Employme't Benefits other Than r"nrion, 1;cAS"g +5'), 9ASB 
45 requires governmental agencies to

clrangetheiraccounti,u.r.,otherPosrEmploymentBenefits(..OPEB,')fronrapay-as-you-gotoan
accruai basis. The city has implern"rt"ilil;luirernents of GASB 45, including fina'cial staternent

reporting a'd disclosurJ."!uir*rents. Among otlier things, employers that pafiicipate in sirrgle-employer

or agent rnultiple_empr"v"i J"n"ed benefit o"pgg plans are reqr,riied to measure a'd disclose a'amouut

for annuar opEB 
"ori 

on the accruar basis of accounti'g. Annuar opEB cost is equal to the employer's

annuar required 
"oniiiuu,ion 

to the pla', with certain adjustments. The annuar required contribution

represents a level of iunJlng that, if paid on un ongoing baiis' is projected to cov€r normal cost each year

and amorliz" uny uniunJ"o-u"tuuriui liubiliti", (or"fu'ding "*."*9 
Lo"t u period not to exceed 30 years'

A' ernployer,s net cjpen 
"urigation 

is d"i;;"d'"r the cuirulative difference betrveen annual .PEB cost

and the employer's contributions to a plan'

The city sponsors and adrninisters a single-employer defined beneflt post-employment healthcare

pla' (tlie ,,Healthcare ;i""f ," pr-ovide ;;"ia6rr inirrrn"" benefits to eligible retired employees and

their depe'dents. Thi bitv pr"-ru,rds the Hearthcare pran trrough a Futuris p'utic Entity Investment Trust

a'd a Retirernent Board of Authority made up of the Mayol.one at rarge city councir rnember, the city

Manager, the pinance-birector, and the Hr,tun Resources Director' tire Reiirement Board of Authority

delegated authority of the trust to the Benefit Trust company'.. Tlre.required-contribtttion is based on

projected pay-as-you-go financing req,uirenrents, with an additional amount to prefuud benefits as

deternrined annuary by the city councir. ro. Fiscal year z023,the city contribr.rted $500,000 to tlre plarr

for cnrrent p."*i.,m..'For Fiscal V"u, Zo)i,ifr. C;ty'as br,rdgeted to ;olltribute anot'er $500'000 to the

plan.

FornroreinforrnatioliregardingtlreCity,sOPEBliabilities,seetrotel2totlreCity,sAnnual
Comprelrensive Finarrcial Repott lor the fiscal year errded Jvne 30'2072'

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONAL,I-Y LEFT BLANKI

B-6
Page 265

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Capital Improvement Program

The City,s Capital Ilnproverneut Progranr ("ClP") is a.nrulti-year plan that forecasts spending for

all anticipated capital projects arrd is consiiered'to be tlie link between the city's development and

financi'g planni,g pro."ri. CIP f'nding corlles rnainly fiom impact fees and a number of otlrer special

revenue funds, as well as grants a1d loarrs. Within eaclr program category, the City identifies resources

that ir will comrni, ,o piioiiry capital projects. clP costs include botlr one-tirne expenses and recttrring

expenses related to capital rehabilitation. The city's cIP for Fiscal Year 2024 is approved at $70'0

rnillion, which is approxinrately I 0.0olo 
'-rore 

than the city's approved cIP for Fiscal Y ear 2023 of $63 '6

rnillion.

Investment PolicY

The City,s Invest'ent policy is codified in Section 3.30.030 of the City of Folsom Municipal

Code and is set for1lr below:

It is the primary duty of the city officers having responsibilify for investing city moneys to

protect, preserve and rnaintain cash and investrnents placed in iheir trust on behalf of the citizens of the

city. To that end, those investment officet's shall 
"otoply 

with the following guidelines and procedures:

A. Interest yield o1 investments shall be secondary to the basic requiretnents of safety and

liquiditY of moneYs'

B. The city investment porlfolio shall be designed to equal or exceed the rate of retum of the

state,s local agency investnrent fund (LAiF) throughout budgetary and economic cycles,

takinf lnro urJorni the city's risk constraints, cash flow characteristics of the investment

portfolio, this chapter, this code and state law'

C. The city investment portfolio shall be diversified to minirnize risks regarding specific

security types or individual financial institutions'

D. All city investment officers shall adhere to the guidance provided by the "prudent

investor standarcl" as set olrt in the Califomia Government Code Section 53600'3'

E. All participants in the investment process shall act as custodians of the pr'rblic trust'

lrrvestnrent officers shall recogn izi that the investment portfolio is subject to public

review and evaluation'

F. The city,s chjef iuvestnrent officer shall quarterly subrnit an investment repoft to the city

"oun.ii 
which repon shall irrclude all iequired elements as prescribed by California

Governrne,t Cocle Section 53646. The ciry's clrief investment officer sliall rnontlily

subnrit a repoft of transactions to the city council as prescribed in C_alifornia Government

Code Section 53607. In both instances the city chieiinvestment officer may include such

otlier inforrnation as deemed appropriate'

G. T.he finance clirector shall develop a systenl of intenlal controls over investments, wlriclt

.ortrot systetl shall be docunrented in writing according to California Debt and

Invest,.,.,ent Advisory Conrmission guidelines. The system shall be designed to prevent

losses of pLrblic pro;reys arising fi'oln fraud, employee error, lnisrepresentation by third

parties, uuanlicipated changei in finauciai markets, or irnprudent actions by city

etnPloYees or officers'

B-1

Page 266

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



H. Financial institutions in whichthe city has inveslnrents shall be monitored as to fillancial

corrditio' ,L,'*;h.; ihe period in which the city has moneys deposited or itrvested' to

assllrethattlreconditionoftlreirrstitutiondoesnotmateriallydeterioratesoaStoriskthe
citY's investments'

l. A statemeut of investnrent policy slrall be developed, and changes to the policy subrrritted

to tlie city council as needed'

J.securitypurchasesandholdingsshallbernaintainedwitlrintlrelirnitsperrnittedbythe
ciry charter;";;;-"futer and the california Government code, whichever is the ntost

restrictive botlr as to percentages of the total investment portfolio which nright be

invested in the variotls types of securities and as to the maximum lengtlt of maturity'

The followirrg table shows the type of investments and other information on the porlfolio as of

Jttne30,2022
CITY OF FOLSOM

PORTFOLIO SUMMARY
As ofJune 30'2022

Investments bY Fair Value Level

City Pooled Investments
Certificate of DePosit

Commercial PaPer

Cor-porate Notes

Mun icipal Obligations (Ciry)

Municipal Obligations (FMA)
MuniciPal Obligations (FPFA)

Federaf Falm Credit Bank (FFCB)

Federal Hotne Loan Bank (FHLB)

FederalHome Loan Mortgage (FHLMC)

Federal National Mortgage (FNMA)

US Treasury Note

lnvestments Not Measured at Fair Value or Subject

to Fair Value HierarchY
Local AgencY Investment Funds

MoneY Market Mrttual Funds

Total Investments Not Measured at Fair Value or

Subject to Fair Value HierarchY

Total CitY's Pooled Investments

Investments Held with Fiscal Agent Not Measured at

Fair Value
JPA (CAMP)
Money Market Mutual Funds

lnvestments Held with Fiscal Agent by Fair Value Level

OPEB Plan lnvestments - Mutual Funds

Total Investments Held with Fiscal Agents

Total Investlnents

Balance

$9,718,847
34,696,418
21,763,197
50,912,247

106,208,595
36,647,882

8,826,930
15,275,162
5,430,339
1,826,451
1,910,9'7'l

67,542,544
3. 980^374

71522 918

364.139.963

203,809
2s9\L613

1,814,210
33.995.637

Source: City ol'Folsom,

B-8

$398.735.599

Page 267

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Insurance, Risk Pooling and Joint Powers Arrangements

TlreCityparticipatesirrpooledittsuratrceprograllsofferedbytheNoflhernCaIiforniaCitiesSelf
Insurance Fund ("NCCSIF"), a joint po*"r, agenc/tlat.provides the Cify wit6 a sliared r"isk layer of

coverage above its self-insureo $ioo,obo retentiin for liauifity and workers' cotnpensation, NCCSIF also

;;";iJ;, clairns servicing to the city for its banking rayer, which rcpresents the City's self-insurance.

NCCSIF consists of 1g mernber cities, ali located"*ithln california' and is governed by a board of

directors appointed by the member cities. It provides p_o.ored craims processing administrative services,

risk rnanagement services, and actuarial studies. The City's deposit ioi JL" !t-tl year ended June 30'

2A22, was $2,g42,482,and for the fiscal year ended June j0, 20i1, was $2,852,642' For tlte Fiscal Year

ended June 30, 2022, NCCSIF had net assets of $24,401,660 and a net itrcome of $422'604'

Sales Taxes

The following table slrows taxable transactions in tlre city during caletldar years 2016 through

2A21 andthlough the second quafier of2023

TAXABLE SALES
Cify of Folsom

2016-202r
(in Thousands)

Retail
Permils

Retail and Food
Tnxable

Trnnsoctions Total Permits

Total Outlets
Tuxnble

Transactiotts
Year

2016
2A17
201 8
'2A19

2020
2021
2022
2023t1)

1,588
1,614
1,593
1,616
1,652
7,457
1,523
1,481

2,404
2,459
2,501
2,602
2,141
2,418
2,546
2,536

$1,595,641
I,663,432
l,'721,452
1,7 4r,7 55

1,579,786
1,917 ,045
2,009,992

969,345

$ 1,828,059
L,944,041
1,983,791
2,093,417
1,795,390
2,134,222
2,253,326
1,a97 ,448

{1) Data lhrough June 30,

Sour'ce: City of Folsom.
2023.

Community Facilities

The four-county Sacrarlento Metropolitan Area offers rnLlltiple parks, playgrounds, theaters and

golf courses. Recreational activities offered along the American and Sacranrento Rivers irtclude fishing'

swimming, boating, u;t i,rg, horseback riding u|ta nim,tg. varied cultural opporl'nities include ar1

galleries and museumr, t*J',oa;or symphoniei, thr"e ballei compatties, scores of movie theaters showing

first run filrrrs and many theater grollps offe'ing live stage plays' In February 20ll' tlre $50 rnillion

perfonning arts complex Har-ris center- Three s-tages at Folsoni Lake college opened- The state of the

alt facility is one of the targest college perforrning a-rts centers in the state and hosts theatre, synplionies,

and ballets.

Media outlets in the four-counfy area cousist of rrrore than 30 newspapers, nine television stations

(four network, four independent, one public) and 30 radio statiolts'

B-9

Page 268

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



The Folsom_cordova Unified School District operates schools botb in the city and in the

Sacrame'to sub,rb of Ra'cho Cordova, *i.,ltft U"'t"" il.tt Ciry to the west' In tlre City' the school

district uow has three high schools, two mrddle schools, and ten elementary schools'

Institutio's of rrigher learni'g situated in the Sacrarnento area i'clude califor'ia State Unive'sity'

sacramento, and the university of catifo.niJ"r'ouuir, which inJuJ". a medical school and raw school'

private universities, such as William J",;;p-U;;""i'y' the University of Sacramento' and National

U'iversity also lrave campu-se-s in the S'"iu'*"* '"gion' 
Other insiitutions include t5e McGeorge

School of Law (university of trre pa"in"),lnJ-"*t"nr;oi. and satellites of sclioors such as the U'iversity

of souther' california, university or sun-rruncisco, Golde' Gate university, a'd Drexel university

among others. rn"r" ur" u nun,,u"i or co,o,,,u,Jf c.ri"ggt in the region, includi'g Forsom Lake college'

In addition to the main campus located *i;ri"'r* c;av,irr" Folsomiake college operates tlie El Dorado

and Rancho Cordova centers and enrolls more tlran S'000 students'

Utilities

TlreCity,swatertreatmentplantproducesanddelivershigh-qrralitydrinkingwater,supplying
water to the porrion of the ciry south ii ,"#;,;;*"1" ni*r. "Tlie water Division of the city's

Environmental and water Resoulces o"p",-"r.",-i,rrp".tu und maintuins, as of December 31' 2021' tlre

376 miles of water mains, 23,186,"*i""-tt'n"ctions and :'g00 fire hydra'ts' The city also provides

sewage colrection ;;;;; for the entire ;il.- il; s"*", ol,ri.ion or the citv's Environmental a'd

waterResources Department inspects una *ulntuins, as of Del.*utt 31,2A22,the282 miles of sanitary

sewers, 17 purnp;i;#;,';;;';;;t8 r;rui." "onn"ctions' 
sewage treahnent is provided bv the

Sulrurn"nto iregionat County San itati orl D istrict'

TheCityalsoprovidessolidwasteco^lleclionservices.TheSolidWasteDivisiolroftlreCity,s
public works o"o#rlJl;;;J;;";.e1 of solid waste vehicles for collection, as well as providing

recycling, household hazardous *ur," pJft'-'p una Ji'po'uf ' "nJ ""lgftborhood 
clean-up services for the

Education

entire CitY.

IREMAINDER OF PAGE ]NTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

B-t 0
Page 269

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



APPENDIX C

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL DOCUMENTS

c-1

Page 270

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



APPENDIX D

FORMS OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKINGS

DISTRICT CONTII\ruING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

THIS DISTzuCT CONTINUiNG DISCLOSURE CERTIFTCATE (this "Disclosure Certifi cate"),

dated as of 2024, is executed and delivered bY the CitY of Fo lsom CommunitY Facilities

District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "District") re lative to the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the

atAuthority") in connection with the issuance bY the AuthoritY of the Folsom Ranch Financing AuthoritY

City of Folsom CommunitY Facil ities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special

Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 (the "Bonds") The Bonds are being issued Pursuant to a Trust
Tax
Agreement (the "Trust Agreement") , among the Disffict, the AuthoritY and U.S. Bank Trust ComPanY'

National Association (the "Trustee") The District covenants and agrees as follows'

SECTION ' The Disclosure Certificate is being executed

anddeliveredbythe',$t"tf",th.1"n,#;ffisandBeneficialOwnersoftheBondsandin
order to assist the participating underwrite;in "o*prvmg 

with s.E.c' Rule l5c2-12(bX5)'

SECTI.N 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Trust Agreement, which

apply to any capitali'"ffiffi; t" ffi.ilit::;;i!"ilT*:"nless otherwise defined in this Section'

,iJi"ri"*itg capitalized terms shall have the following meanrngs:

..AnnualReport"meansanyAnnualReportprovidedbytheDistrictpursuantto'andasdescribed

in, Sections 3 and 4 hereof'

,,Annual Report Date" means the date in each year that is nine months after the end of the

District,s fir"ul y"ur, ihi"h dut., as of the date of this Disclosure certificate' is April 1'

..Dissemination Agent" shall mean NBS, or any successor Dissemination Agent designated in

writing by the oistriri aJ"*rrirt has filed with the District a written acceptance of such designation'

..EMMASystem,,meanstheMSRB,sElectronicMunicipalMarketAccesssystem,orsuchother

electronic system designated by the MSRB'

.,Financialobligation"means'forpurposes.oftheListedEventssetoutinsection5(a)(10)and

section 5(bx7), a (i) dei't obrigation; (ii) deiivative instrument entered into in connection with, or pledged

as security or a source of payment ror, rn-"*iriing or ptan'ea Jebt obligation; or (iii) guarantee of (i) or

(ii). The term ,,Finailia bntigution, ,rruiinoiin""rroJ Municipat Secuities (as defined in the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) ^ i" 
*rtirrr a nn* om.iui statemenr (as defined in the Rule) has

U.""p.I"iaed to the MSRB consistent with the Rule'

.,ListedEvents"meansanyoftheeventslistedinsubsection(a)ofSection5hereof'

.,MSRB,, means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, or any successor thereto'

"Official Statement" means the Official Statement' dated 2}24,relating to the Bonds

,.participating underwriter,, means the original underwriter of the Bonds required to comply with

theRuleinconnectionwiththeofferingoftheBonds.

D-l
Page 271

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the

be amended from time to time'

SECTION 3. Provision of Annual Rqports'

(a) The District shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, provide to the MSRB

through the EMMA System, in an electronic format and accompanied by identi$ing information all as

prescribed by the MSii;, an Annual Report which is consistent *itn tn. requirements_of section 4 hereof,

not later than the Annual Report out", .o-^fncing with the report fgr the 2a22-23 Fiscal Year' The

Annual Report ,nu' U. ,rU.itt.d u, a single documint t 1t tgn-e documents comprising a package'

and may include uy ."f"*n.. other info#ation us provided-in Section 4 hereof; provided, however, that

the audited financial statements of the pir:t i"t *lv be submitted separately from the balance of the

Annual Report, and later than the O*t. ,"q"i*;;b"t; for the filing of the Annual Report if not available

by that date. If the District's fiscal v.u. "rtung"" 
it tt'utt'.or shall instruct the Dissemination Agent to'

give notice of such change in the ."T".*;;-ut fo' a Listed Event under subsection (e) of Section 5

hereof. The first A";;;i"FLp;J,nuy include the filing of or reference to rhe official statement'

(b)Notlaterthanl5businessdayspriorto.thl|atespecifiedinsubsection(a)ofthisSection
for the providing of the Annual Report * ,r,J trisRg, the Districi shail provide the Annual Report to the

Dissemination Agent'

(c)IftheDisseminationAgentisotherthantheDistrict,thennotlaterthanfrfteen(15)
Business nuy, prlo, to said date, tire nisirici shall provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent'

If the District is unable to provide the AnJ Report to tle M'RB by the Ann.ual Report Date, the

District shall send 
" 
,"ii"" ,.i the MSRB in r"urtmtiully the form attached as Exhibit A to the Disclosure

Certificate'

(d) The Dissemination Agent shall:

(DprovideanyAnnualReportreceivedbyittotheMSRB,asprovidedherein;and

(ii)fileareportwith-theDistrictcertiflingthattheAnnuall:p:nhasbeenprovided
pursuant to this oir.lor*" certificate and stating the date it was so provided'

"Rule" means Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may

SECTION 4. Content of Anrrual Reports'

incorporate by reference the following:

(b) The following information:

The District's Annual Report shall contaln or

(a) The District,s audited financial statements, if any, prepared in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles as promulgated to apply to governmental entities from time to time by the

Governmental Accounting Standards Board. If thobistrici's audited financiar statements' if any, are not

available by the ti..';;;;;;al Report lt t"q"i*o to be filed pursuant to subsection (a) of Section 3

hereof, the Annual Report shat _contar- ""lilit"d 
financial statements, and the audited financial

statements, if any, shail be filed in the same manner as the Annual Report when-they become available' If

the District,s financial statement is incroaeJoi consolidated with the financial statement for the city of

Folsom (the,'City"),,fr"t?" pistrict shallfilethe City's audited financial statements as its own'

(i)TheprincipalaryolniofBondsandanybondssecuredbyAdditionalLocal
obligations (as d"fineJ"iri irr" official staiementl Outstanding as of the December 31 next

preceding the Annual;i.o* o* uro'g *il, J.tt service schedu-les for the Bonds and any bonds

D-2
Page 272

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



secured by Additional Locar obligations (as defined in the official Statement) outstanding as of

such date;

(ii)ThebalanceineachreserveaccountfortheLocalobligations,andastatementof
the required uona reserve amount, as of the December 31 next preceding the Annual Report Date;

(iii)Thetotalassessedvalueofallparcels*-']hilthelmprovementAreaonwhichthe
Special Taxes a.e leniC u, ,no*n on the urr"Js*"nt roll of the Saciamento County Assessor last

equalized prior to the December 3l next ;;;ilt the. Annual Report Date' and a statement of

assessed value-to-lien ratios therefor based on 
-special tax and assessment debt, either by

irOi"iat"f parcel o, Uy 
"ut"gories 

(e'g'' "below 3:1"'"3:7 to 4:1" etc');

(iv)TheSpecialTaxdetinquencyrateforthelmprovementAreaasoftheDecember
3l next preceding the'Annual Report n"t"; itt" number-of parcels within the lmprovement Area

delinquent in paymerrt of special iu*", u, or,n" December 31 next preceding the Annual Report

Date; the amount of each delinquencyl tft" i*g,ft of time delinquent and the date on which

foreclosure was commenced, or similar info*rmation pertaining to delinquencies deemed

appropriate by the ;;*tJt ;.wided,. ho*"u.r, that partels with aggregate delinquencies of

g1,000 or less t.*"r.iOing p.riurii", and interest) may be grouped together and such information

may be provided bY category;

(v)Thestatusofforeclosureproceedingsandasummaryoftheresultsofany
foreclosure sales in the Improvement AreJas of the"December 31 next preceding the Annual

Repoft Date;

(vi)Theidentityofany_properlyowner'representingmorethan5YooftheSpecial
Tax levy, delinquent-iir-pu'**t oi.pr"iuf taxes as of tttt December 31 next preceding the

Annual RePort Date;

(vii) All tentative and final maps approved and/or recorded within the Improvement

Area, describing the gross acres, the planned comme'ciul acres and the number and type of

planned residential dwelling units;

(viii) The number of new building permits. issued and a description of the purpose of

such permits (e.g., new.ingt"-family, ne* m-ulti-family, new commercial' new industrial);

(ix)AlandownershipSummarylistingthetoptenSpecialTaxpayersforthe
Improvement Area, as shown on the uar"rr*.nt 'Jtt 

of the Sacramento County Assessor last

equalizedpriortotheDecember3lnextprecedingtheAnnualReportDate;and

(x) For the current Fiscal Year, the amount of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities special rax, the rriJi*r1n Facilities Special la1,-the. actual Facilities

special Tax levied witirin the lmprovement Area and the actual Special Tax levied within the

Improvement Area, with such amounts r"p"J.a lepalafelv 
for Developed Property, Small Lot

Final Map property unJ Urg" Lot Propeiy; provided, howevet, that once all Taxable Property

within the lmprovement Area-i. o"u"top.J',lrJp..ty, q*_naaximum Facilities Special rax and the

actual Facilities Sp""iuf Tax and the actual 
^Special 

Tax levied may each be shown on an

aggregate basis in tr," Rnnuut Report. F;; th" p'utpot"t of.this subparagraph (x)' all capitalized

terms used uut not oit 
"rwise 

defined herein 
't'uti 

ttuut the meanings ascribed thereto in the

AmendedRateandMethodofApportionmentforthelmprovementArea.

D-3

Page 273

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Inadditiontoanyoftheinformationexpresslyrequiredtobeprovidedunderthissection'asset
forth above, the District stratt provide "u.f 

iuJt'"t iniormation' if any' as may te 
-necessary 

to make the

specifically ,"quir"a'Jtui"-",i,r, in th. i;t{-ot tt'" circumstances under which they are made' not

misleading.

Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other documents'

including officiar staternents of debt issues of itr" District o, retatea public entities, which have been

submitted to the MSRB through ttre puMe;d;. The District shali clearly identiff each such other

document so included by reference'

SECTION 5. Beporting of Significant Events'

(a)PursuanttotheprovisionsofthisSection,theDistrictshallgivenotice,orcausenoticeto
be given, not less ttran ten Business Days after the occurrence of any of the following events with respect

to the Bonds:

(i) Principal and interest payment delinquencies'

(ii)Unscheduleddrawsondebtservicereservesreflectingfinancialdifficulties.

(iii)Unscheduleddrawsoncreditenhancementsreflectingfinancialdifficulties'

(iv)Substitutionofcreditorliquidityproviders,ortheirfailuretoperform.

(v)Adversetaxopinions,theissuanc_ebythelnternalRevenueserviceofproposed
orfinaldeterminationsoftaxabiri,v,Noti."sofProposedlssuelRSForm5T0lTEB)orother
material notices or determinatiorrs-'wi*r respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material

events affecting the tax-exempt status of the security'

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Defeasances'

Tender offers

Bankruptcy,insolvency,receivershiporsimilareventoftheobligatedperson.

Note:Forthepurposesoftheeventidentifiedinsubparagraph(ix),theeventis
considered to occur;; ;;y of the following o"",.rt, the appointment of a

receiver, trustee or similar ofdc"r for an obligated person.in a proceeding under

the U.S. Bankruptcy CoJ" or in any other priceeding under state or federal law

inwhichacourto,-gon.*,nentalauthorityhasassumedjurisdictionover
substantially all of tielssets or business of th. obligated person' or if such

jurisdictionf,urU"rouut",""Obyleavingtheexisting-9:::Tl""talbodyand
officials or officers i" p"*..ri"n but suuiect to the supervision and orders of a

court or governmental authority, or the entry of un oid"t confirming a plan of

reorganization, ur.unili"nioriiquidation by a court or governmental authority

having supervision oi jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business

of the obligated Person'

(ix) Rating changes'

D-4

Page 274

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



(x) Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms or other

similar events under the terms of a financiai Obligation of the District, any of which reflect

financial difficulties.

(b) The District shall give notice, or cause notice to be given, not less than ten Business Days

after the occurrence of any of the flllowing events with respect to the Bonds, if material:

(i) Modifications to rights of Bond holders'

(ii) Bond calls'

(iii) Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds'

(iv) Non-paymentrelateddefaults'

(v) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an

obligated person or the sale of all or substantiJly all of the assets of the obligated person, other

than in ttre orainary 
"ou.r" 

of business, the entryinto a definitive agreement to undertake such an

action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than

pursuant to its terms.

(vi) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a

trustee.

(vii) Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the District, or agreement to covenants'

events of default, ,"medie., priority rights, or similar terms of a Financial obligation of the District' any

of which affect Bondholders.

(c) Whenever the District obtains knowledge of the occuffence of a Listed Event described

in subsection (b) above, the District shall determine iisuch event would be material under applicable

federal securities laws.

(d) If the District learns of the occurrence of a Listed Event described in subsection (a) of

this section, o. deter-ines that knowledge of a Listed Event described in subsection (b) of this Section

would be material unJe. uppticable fedJral securities laws, the District shall notifo the Dissemination

Agent thereof in *riiing iriJ instruct the Dissemination Agent to report the occurrence pursuant to

subsection (e) of this seJtion. If in response to a request under subsection (b) of this section, the District

determines that the Listed Event would not be material under applicable 
-Federal 

securities law' the

District shall so notify the Dissemination Agent in writing and instruct the Dissemination Agent not to

report the occurrence pursuant to subsection (e) ofthis Section'

(e) If the Dissemination Agent has been instructed by the District to.report the occurrence of

a Listed Event, the Dissemination Agent shall file a notice of such occuffence with the MSRB through the

EMMA System. Not*ittrrtuoding tf,e for"going, 
-notice 

of Listed Events described in paragraph (vii) of

subsection (a) ofthis Section and purag.upli(iii;subsection (b) ofthis Section need not be given under

this subsection any earlierthan the noti.. tii"ny) of the undeirying event is given to holders of affected

Bonds pursuant to the Trust Agreement'

SECTION O. teEqination of Reporting ' The District's obligations '10:-t lhi:
DisclosureCertificateshallterminat"up@e,priorredemptionorpaymentinfull.of.alI
of the Bonds. If such termination o."ur. prior tlo the final maturity of the Bonds, the District shall give

D-5

Page 275

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



notice of such termination in the same *unnt . as for a Listed Event under subsection (e) of section 5

hereof.

SECTIONT. Dissemination Agent. The n]{rict.may' *om time to time' appoint or engage a

Dissemination Agent ti *Gt t i" *ffi'out its obligations under this Disclosure certificate, and may

discharge any such Dissemination Agent,"with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent.

The Dissemination Agent sha[ not be responsible in any manne. for the content of any notice or report

pr.put.a by the Distriit pursuant to the Disclosure Celtificate'

SECTION 8. Amendmelu waiver. NotwithstanlJne any other provision of this Disclosure

certificate, the District may amend this=bisclosure certificat", und any provision of this Disclosure

certificate may be *;;;;"vided that the following conditions are satisfied:

(a) if the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of subsection (a) of Section 3 hereof'

section 4 hereof or subsections (a) and oi'"r s..ti"n 5 hereol it may only be made in connection with a

change in circumstances that arises from u 
"t 

ung' in legal requirementt' ihung" in law' or change in the

identity, nature or status of an obligated p".*" t'ii,ft resiect toihe Bonds' or type of business conducted;

(b) the undertakings herein, as proposed to'be. amended or waived, would, in the opinion of

nationally .ecognirJ bond coJns.r, rruu" 
"i*plied 

with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the

primary offering ortie nonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule' as

well as any change in circumstances; and

(c) the proposed amendment or waiver (i) is approved by owners of the Bonds in the manner

provided in the TruJt Agreement for.amendments to the Trust Agreement with the consent of owners' or

(ii) does not, in the opinion of nationally t"."g.ir"d bond colnsel, materially impair the interests of

b*rr"r, or Beneficial Owners of the Bonds'

If the annual financial information or operating data to be provided in the Annual Report is

amended pursuant to the provisions ir*r"of, tfr"'*nuui-financial infbrmation containing the amended

operating data or financiai information .fruti 
"*ptuin, 

in narrative form' the reasons for the amendment

and the impact of the change in the typ. ;;;p;[ing iutu or financial information being provided'

If an amendment is made to the undertaking speciffing lhe accounting principles to be followed

in preparing financial statements, the annual finanliai informiion for the year in which the change is

made shall present a comparison between the financial statements or information prepared on the basis of

the new accounting principles und thor.'pr.o* "l tht lTit of the former accounting principles' The

comparison ,t att ii""tuae i qualitativ. oiLurri* of the differences in the accounting principles and the

impact of the .h";;" l; irr".1."9u1tting frinciples on the presentation of the financial statements or

information, in order to provide inform"ation to investors to enabre them to evaluate the ability of the

District to meet its obligations. To tt. 
"*t.nlr"asonably 

feasible, the comparison shall be quantitative' A

notice of the change in the accounting p;ci'pres shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed Event

under subsection (e) ofSection 5 hereof'

SECTION 9. Additional Infqlgaliqq. *9tn* in.this Disclosure certificate shall be deemed to

prevent the Districtfi". dG"*i*ting *v:*rr", irforination, using the means of dissemination set forth

in this Disclosure certificate or any ott r. ir"un, of communication]or including anv other information in

any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed gu"nr, i" uidition to thaiwhich is required by this

Disclosure certificate. If the Distri"t .hoor". to incrude any information in any Annual Report or notice

of occunence of a Listed Event in ua;ition to that whicir is specifically required by this Discrosure

D-6

Page 276

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Certificate,theDistrictshallhavenoobligationunder.thisDisclosureCertificatetoupdatesuch
information or include it in any future ennuuti'"port or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event'

SECTIONl0.Default'IntheeventofafailureoftheDistrictortheDisseminationAgentto
comply with any prooir-rl ,t-tis pisclosure certificate, any Holder or Beneficial owner of outstanding

Bonds may take such actions as may r. n.**.y unJ upproptiate, including seeking mandate or specific

performanc" by "ourt*;;r, 
lo 

"uur, 
ar," prriii", to compiy wiitr its obrigations under the Disclosure

certificate. A defaurt under the niscrosuretertificate shali not be deemed Jn Event of Default under the

Trust Agreement, and it " 
,ot" remedy una". ,n" Disclosure certificate in the event of any failure of the

District to comply *itrrir,* Disclosure certificate shall be an action to compel performance'

SECTIONl2.Beneficiaries'ThisDisclosureCertificateshallinuresolelytothebenefitofthe
District, the Disseminati,on Ag"nt, the Paftic;;;ng U"Ot*titer and Owners and Beneficial Owners from

time to time of the Bonds, and shall create norights in any other person or entity'

SECTION13'Counterparts.ThisDisclosureCertificatemaybeexecutedinseveral
counterparts, each of *ni"tlhili Ue u" ";i;i"JunJuff 

of which shall constitute but one and the same

The Dissemination
SECTION 1I.

and limitations from liability afforded to the Trustee under the
Agent shall be entitled to the protections

Trust Agreement. The Dissemination Agent shall not be resPonsible for the form or content of anY

Annual RePort or notice of Listed Event' The Dissemination Agent shall receive reasonable

compensation for its services Provided under this Disclosure Certificate' The Dissemination Agent shall

have only such duties as are specificallY set forth in this Disclosure Certificate, and the District agrees to

indemniff and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, directors, emPloYees and agents, harmless

against anY loss, expense and tiabilities which it may incur arising out of or in the exercise or

performance of its Powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and exPenses (including attorneYs'

fees) of defending against anY claim of liabilitY, but excluding liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent's

negligence or willful misconduct. The obligations of the District under this Section shall survive

resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent and PaYment of the Bonds.

instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Disffict has executed this Disclosure certificate as of the date first

above written.

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMT'NITY
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCTT)

By

D-7
Page 277

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



EXHIBIT A

NOTICE OF FAILURE TO FILE ANIIUAL REPORT

Name of Issuer:

Name of Issue:

Folsom Ranch Financing AuthoritY

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority city of Folsom community Facilities

Dstrict No. 23 (Folsori Ranch) improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax

Revenue Bonds, Series 2024

Date of lssuance: 2024

NOTICE IS HEREBY GMN that the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No' 23

(Folsom Ranch) (the "District") has not provided an Annual RePort with respect to the above-named

Bonds as required bY Section 3 of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, dated 2024,

executed bY the District for the benefit of the Holders and Beneficial Owners of the

bonds. [The District anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed by .--'l

Dated:

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCTT)

By:
Finance Director of the CitY of Folsom

D-8

Page 278

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE _ I{OME BUILDER

sEcrloNl ,ffi[",?*fffi"ff[itffit;er1;jiil:
ffiJj:'##:ffi:l :JJ||ffi:I"ifi,r," i,,u", and the ni,oi,lr.,uue undertaken no responsibilitv

with respect to any ,"o",t.l""tic"sir Oi"fo'u* provided or required underlhis Disclosure Certificate'

and has no liab'ity,jt"ffil#ilili;ffi;"nJiJi"t u"neficiar owner of the Bonds, with respect to

this Disclosure Certifi cate'

SEcTloN2.Definitions.InadditiontothedefinitionssetforthintheTrustAgreement,which
applytoanycapitali""ffiu,"ai'.ht'il;;l';..:':f";;unlessotherwisedefinedherein,the
;;fi;*i;g capitaiized terms shall have the following meanrngs:

..Affiliate' shall mean, with respect to the Developer, any person directly (or indirectly through

one or more intermediaries) that exercises manageriut "ontroi'o'uer 
the Deveroper or that is under

managerial control 
"rr'ir'J^o"i"iof"r, 

una J;;;; information could be materiar to potential investors

in their investment decision regarding ,h" ;;;;;'i'i*iuJing without rimitation information relevant to the

proposed development of the Properry, J;; 
'h" 

Developer's aUitity to pay the applicable Special Tax

;6;i;" leviedon the Property owned by it when due)'

..AssumptionAgreemenf,meansanagreementcontainingtermssubstantiallvsimilartothis

Disclosure Certificate, whereby a Major Develofer agrees 16 p'""iJJ Semi-Annual Reports and notices of

sisnificant events with respect to the portion of tftt Property "*"ta 
by such Major Developer and its

Aifiliates, and with resplct to lh: improvements 
-or 

payments necessary to cause the Planned

Development Stage to Ui ."u"nea tt 
"t 

t'u; Major ptu"fop"t' o' un Affiliate thereof intends or is

obligated (contractuall"y oi otherwise) to make or cause to be made'

..Bonds,,meansthe$--FolsomRanchFinancingAuthorityCityofFolsom
community Facilities DiJi"t No. B ceorso*^nur"trl Improvement Area No. 2 Special rax Revenue

Bonds, Series 2024'

..Developer"means[TriPointeHomesHoldings'lnc''aDelawarecorporation]fl.ennarHomesof

California, LLC) aCali fornia I imited I iabil ity companyl'

..DevelopmentPlan,,meanswithrespecttoaMajorDeveloper,thesPecificimprovementssuch

Major Developer intends to make, o, .uu'"lJi" *udt' in o'O"ifot tile ilanned Development Stage to be

reached, and the ,i,,n" rrurn" in which such improvements^are intended to be made; the Developer's

Development ptun, ur-oirt 
" 

aur" t "r"of,ll 
a"r"ifu"a in tt e Oil,ciul Stuttn'"nt under the caption lFor Tri

pointe:*pRoposE; pnopgnrv DEVELO'MENT - Development pran and !!{us of Development -

Development ptan I iri point"li ro, in1,*o''ii*"t "pRopose'D PR9PERTY DEVELSPMENT -

Development plan and iiutus of ilevelopment - Development Plan - Lennar Homesl'

D-9

Page 279

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



..Disclosure certificate" means this Disclosure certificate as the same may be amended from time

to time.

..Dissemination Agent" means initially, the DevelopT, and any successor Dissemination Agent

designated in writing by the Developer unJ*t i"tt has fired with the oistrict a written acceptance of such

designation.

..District,, means the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), as the

same may be modifieJ by the city council of the city from time to time.

,,Event of Bankruptcy" means, with respect t9 I Person, that such Person files a petition or

institutes a proceeding under any act ". ";i., 
.iui. ot federal, dealing with or relating to the subject or

subjects of bankruptcy or insolvency, or onJ., uny amendment of such act or acts' either as a bankupt or

as an insolvent, or as a debtor, or in any ti"tii; Japacity, wherein or whereby such Person asks or seeks

or prays to be adjudicated a bankrupt, otlti" U" discharged from any or all ofsuch Person's debts or

obligations, or offers to such Persofs creditors to effect a composition or.extension of time to pay such

Person,s debts or asks, seeks or prays for reorganizatio.n or toeffect a plan of reorganization' or for a

readjustment of ,u"h F"rson's deLts, o, fo, anf other tlTtJ* retief, or iiany such petition or any such

proceedings of the same or similar kind or chaiacter is filed or instituted or taken against such Person, or

if a receiver of the business or of the pr"p;ny;; assets^of such Person is appointed by any court, or if

such Person makes 
""g"r"."r 

assignment for the benefit of such Person's creditors'

.,Financing Plan" means, with respect to a- Major Dweloper' the method by which such Major

Developer intends io fi'un"" its Develoit"* ptun, including specific 
-sourc:s 

of funding for such

Development Plan; irt" u"n"rop".'. ni*,i"ing .un, at-ot-tle iate hereof is described in the official

Statement under the caption [For Tri P"ointe: *PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT -
Development Plan of rinao"" - Tri PointellFor Lennsr Homes: "PROPOSED PROPERTY

DEVELOPMENT-DevelopmentPlanofFinance_LennarHomes].',

'olmprovement Area" means Improvement Area No' 2 of the District'

..ListedEvent,,meansanyoftheeventslistedinSection5hereof.

..Major Developer,, means' as of any date of determination, any owner of]and (which owns itself

or through any Afhliates), who o*r,, orhl."t'" opii"n to purchase 5+ ot tnot" of the residential lots in the

ImprovernentArea subject to the Special Tax'

.,MSRB" shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board or any other entity designated

or authorized by the Securities una r,"it urrg" commission as a'repository of discrosure information'

until otherwise designated by the MSRB or"th" Securities and Exchange commission, filings with the

MSRB are to be made through the Electtni" tvtuni"ipal Market Access (EMMA) website of the MSRB'

currently located at http ://emma'm srb'org'

"official Statement" means the final, executed official statement relating to the Bonds'

..Participating Underwriter,, shall mean Piper Sandler & Co., the original underwriter of the

Bonds.

..person,, means an individual, a corporation, a partnership, an lso9i1tio1' a joint stock company'

a trust, any unincorporated organization of agovernment or political subdivision thereof'

D-I0

Page 280

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



.,Flanned Development Stage" means the stage of development to which the Developer intends to

develop the Properly, as iescribed in the Official Stat-ement, which is the construction of finished homes'

.,proper[/,, means, as of the date of determination, collectively, the Taxable Properly within the

boundaries of the tmprovement Area that (i) is owned 9v trtg Developer or any Affiliate thereof (including

Taxable properry for which the Develop", i, uny Affiliale thereof has the option to purchase) and (ii) the

Developer or any Affrliate thereof has-solJ to a Major Developer who has not assumed the obligations

under this Disclosure certificate pursuant to an Assumption Agreement' Properly as of any date of

determination does not include real property within the boundaries of the Improvement Area that has been

conveyed to individual homeownerc o. 
"ny 

,.ul properly that is the subject of an Assumption Agreement'

.,semiannual Report,, shall mean any Semiannual Report provided by jhe Developer on or prior to

March 3 I and Septembei 30 of each y.ur, 
"Lt-encing 

with the Semiannual Report due March 31' 2024'

fuiruunt to, and as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate'

,.Special Taxes,, means the special taxes levied on the Taxable Property within the Improvement

Area.

"State" shall mean the State of California'

..Taxable property,, means the real property within the boundaries of the Improvement Area that

is not exempt from thi Special Taxes authorized to be levied in the Improvement Area'

.,Trust Agreement" means the Trust Agreement, dated as of January 7, 2024, among the Issuer'

the District and the Trustee, and as further amended and supplemented from time to time'

.,Trustee,, mcans U.S. Bank Trust company, National Association, as trustee under the Trust

Agreement, or any successor as trustee'

SECTION 3. PJo-Yision of semianrrual -Repo.rts. - 
So long as the Developer's obligations

hereunder have not been terminut"d puEffi6-56tion 7, the Developer shall, or shall cause the

Dissemination Agent iir irr" bissemination Agent is other than the Deveroper) to, provide to the MSRB a

Semiannual Report *iri"1r is consistent with ihe requir"ments of Section 4, not later than March 3l and

September 30 of each year, commencing trlar"h zt,)ozq' If, in any year, March 31 or September 30 falls

on a saturday, sunday or holiday, such deadline shall be extended to the next following business day'

The Semiannua n"iort *u.t b" .uunritt.a in electronic format, accompanied by such identiffing

information u, i, prl'rrribed by the MSRB, and may be- submitted as a single document or as separate

documents co.priring a packale, uno muy include by reference other information as provided in Sections

4 or 5 hereof.

SECTION 4. content of semiannual Rgpqrtg. The Developer's Semiannual Report shall

contain or incorporate ty."f"ten"e the following information:

(a) If information regarding such Major Developer has not previously been included in the

official Statement or a more recently filed Semiannual Report, the Development Plan and Financing Plan

of such Major Developer or, if information regarding such^Major Developer has previously been included

in the official Statement or a more ,"""niiy irled SJmiannual Report, a description of the progrcss made^

in the Development plan of such Major n.'""iopl. since the date bf such information and a description of

any significant changes in such Development pjan and the Financing Plan and the causes or rationale for

such changes.

D-I1

Page 281

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



(b) Identification of the conveyance by the Developer of any portion of the Properly to an

entity that is not an eii,ri"t, 
"r 

the Develof", ii" Lrrrt of which conveyance is to cause such transferee

to become a Major DeveloPer'

(c)ThenumberofbuildingpermitsissuedwithrespecttotheProperty'

(d) The number of residential lots within the Property that. have^not reached the Planned

Development stage ano sord (closed .rr.o*; uy the Develop.t.iin". the date of the official statement or

a more recent semiannual Report, and, if any ,i"r, io,r were sold to a Major Developer, the identity of the

Major DeveloPer'

(e) The number of finished homes within the Property sold and conveyed to individual

homeowners bY the DeveloPer'

(0AnymaterialamendmentstolanduseentitlementsfortheProperty,ifsuchamendments
would prevent or significantly delay th"l;;i;ent{i91 of the Developer's Development Plan as

described in the Official Statement or a more recently filed Semiannual Report'

The Developer's semiannual Reports required to be provided under section 4 hereof must be

filed in accordance with Section 3'

SEcTloN5.ReportingofSignificantEvents.PursuanttotheprovisionsofthisSection5,the
Developer shall promptly give, o, ,uur"Jo6fr6i, notice of the occurrence of any of the following

events with respect to the Developer:

(a)AnyfailureoftheDeveloper,oranyAffiliateoftheDeveloperowninganyProperty'to
pay prior to delinquency any property t"; ;; assessments due with respect to the Properry (to the extent

the responsibility of the Deveiope, o, unfr*i-Rif,tiu,"1, to the extent iuch failure is not promptly cured

upon discovery thereof'

(b)Anydenialorterminationofcredit,anydenialorterminationof'ordefaultunder'any
rine of credit or loan or any other loss of u sourc" of funds that could have a material adverse effect on the

Developer'smostrecentlydisclosedEi"u"'ingPlanorDevelopmentPlan^orontheabilit'yofthe
Developero or any ;iili# of the n.u"tof", ooining any Prope(y, to puy the Special raxes with respect

to the properry prior to derinquency (to tt. "*t*t the responsibil8-of the Developer or any such

Affiliate).

(c)TheoccurrenceofanEventofBankruptcywithrespecttotheDeleloper,oranyAffiliate
owning any Property, that could *."t-*"UiV b" 

"*p""itd 
to have a material adverse effect on the

Developer's most"r;;tly disclosed fi"""Ji"g Plan or Development Pl?n T on the ability of the

Developer, or any Affiliate of the O.u"lop", oining Lt:ltn', to qay Special Taxes with respect to the

property prior to delinquency (to the exteniifre respoisibility of tne Oeveloper or any such Affiliate)'

(d) Any previously undisclosed governmentally-imposed preconditions to commencement or

continuation of development on th" pr;;;rty: if sgcfr preconditions would prevent or significantly delay

the Developer,s Development ptun ur'J"r*ibed in the official Statement or a more recently filed

Semiannual RePort.

(e) Any previously undisclosed legislative, administrative or judicial challenges to

development on thl ploperty, if such ch-all"ng., 
"*outd 

prevent or significantly delay the Developer's

Development ptun us a"scribei in the official statement or a more recently filed Semiannual Report'

D-12

Page 282

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



whenevertheDeveloperobtainsknowledgeoflhgocculrenceofaListedEvent'theDeveloper
shall as soon as porriur" a"tlr*in. if such eventlvould be material under applicable federal securities

laws. If the Developer determines that knowledge of the oc-currence of a Listed Event would be material

under applicatle feOeruir""*.i i.. laws, the b"i"toptt shall promptly file a-notice.of the occunence of

such Listed Event with the MSRB in electronic format, u""on'puni"dby such identif,ing information as

is prescribed bY the MSRB'

SECTION6.Assur:r!!!gLof-8b]i@ia-$.Ifany'portionoftheProperlyownedbythe
Deve1oper,ofanyAffilffiy.y:dsuchthat,uponsuchconveyance,suchnew
owner wilr be a Major Developer, the obli'i":t^i'ons "i,l".p."""loper 

undei this Disclosure certifioate with

respect to the p.op"rtv t un;f;"i by the 6"n"top"t shall be assumed by such Major Developer pursuant

to an AssumPtion Agreement'

3ECTION 7. TerminatiOn-gt Reporrine obligalion. All of the Developer's obligati"T T--t:
thisDisclosureCertific"tooccurof(a)thelegaldefeasance,prtor
redemption o. puy*"n, in full of all the 

-ilil;, 
o) the date on which (i) the Deveroper is no longer a

Major Developer, or (i) all of the n"o.top"r', ontigution'.are assumed under one or more Assumption

Agreements entered into pursuant to Secti'on o tr"r"6e, or (iii) the date on which all Special raxes levied

on the property owned by the nevetoplr and its iffitiates are paid or prepaid, in full' Upon the

occurrence of any such termination prior to itr" finat maturity of ine B9nds, ihe Developer shall give

notice of such termination in the same manner as for a Listed Event under section 5 hereof'

SECTION 8. Amendment: Waiver N{wiflstanding any other provision hereof' the

Developer may amend flrwisionsof this ffioru* Certificate uni uny-ptovision hereof may be waived'

p*uiA"a that ihe following conditions are satisfied:

(a)IftheamendmentorwaiverrelatestotheprovisionsofSections3,4or5hereof,itmay
be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements'

change in law; and

(b)Theproposedamendmentorwaivereither(i)isapprovedbyholdersoftheBondsinthe
manner provided in the Trust Agreement for amendments to the Trust Agreement with the consent of

holders, or (ii) does not, in the opinion or uona counsel approved by the Ditttitt' materially impair the

i"i....tt of ttt. notO"rs or beneficial owners of the Bonds'

SECTIONg.Additionallnformatiqn.NothinginthisDisclosureCertificateshallbedeemed
to prevent the Developei from.dirr",ninffio:ny other iriformation, using the means of dissemination set

forth in this Disclosure Certificat" o, u'iy oth"' *"uns of communication' or including any other

information in any semiannual Report o, noti." of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which

is required by this Oir"ior,rr" Certificate' If the Developer chooses to include any information in any

Semiannual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically

required by this Disclosure cenificate,-'irt" o"u"r"per.shall have no obligation under this Disclosure

certificate to updui" such information or include it in any future semiannual Report or notice of

occulrence of a Listed Event'

SECTION 10. Dissemination Agqnt' The Developer may' from !ir.nel9 
time' appoint or engage

a Dissemination Agent to assist it in cffing out.its orftgations under this Disclosure certificate, and

may discharg. uny such Disseminution"ig"i, *i,tt. o.r, r,iithout appointing a.successor Dissemination

Agent. The Dissemination Agent *"V ,"rig?Ly provjding 30 days'^ written notice to the Developer' The

Developer rh"ll d;;;;o*iUi. fo,. puyingfi" feei and expenses of the Dissemination Agent'

D-13

Page 283

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



sEcTIoN r t. Default. In the event of a failure of the Developer to comply with any provlslon

of this Disclosure c.rtiffut", uny holder ";;;ffiio*n", 
of the gonas may take such actions as may

be necessary and appropriate, includi*. r1"ti"e mandag.orlpecific performance by court order' to cause

the Developer to comily with rts obligatio;il;r this niscios,rrl-c"rtin"ate' A default under this

Discrosure certificate stratt not u" d""-"a"un"g"""i "r 
oerurrrt-,rnd"r the Trust Agreement' and the sole

remedy under this p-.i*"r. c"rtiR"ut" r"iir, .""", or"ny ru'"i" orthe Developer to comply with this

Disclosure Certificate sttuit U" an action to compel performance'

'ECTI.N 
12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure certificate sha'inure sotely to the benefit of the

Developer, the participuiing und"r*rrr"1, ii" rii*ict ano rrora"* unJieneficial owners from time to time

;f ,h" f;"as, and ,huil ""ut" 
no rights in any other Person'

SECTION13'Notices.AnynoticesorcommunicationstotheDeveloperandtheotherparties
described herein ,nuy t" gin*-us set iorthin B*t iuit A hereto 

"t 
r".i ",rt* 

address that shall be specified

by the Developer "rtrr."oinlr;;i;; 
described herein from time to time'

SECTION 14. Governine Law' This Disclosure Certificate and any dispute arising hereunder

shall be govemed by and-interpreted in u""oiJun" with the laws of the State of California'

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Discrosure certificate as of the day

and year written above'

[Tri Pointe Homes Holdings' Inc' a-.Delaware

Eorpor"tionl [Lennar llories of C alifornia' LLC' t
iriitotni" timiteA fiability companyl

By:

D-14
Page 284

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



E)CIIBIT A TO CONTINTIING DISCLOST]RE' CERTIF'ICATE _ HOME BUILDER

AnynoticesorcommunicationstotheDeveloper.ortheotherpartiesdescribedintheContinuing
Disclosure-certificate - Home Builder may be given as follows:

To the DeveloPer: [Tri Pointe Homes Holdings, Inc'][Lennar Homes of California' LLC]

To the Issuer:

Attention:
Email:
Phone:

To the Dissemination
Agent:

Attention:
Email:
Phone:

To the ParticiPating
Underwriter:

Attention
Email:
Phone

D-I5

Page 285

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



APPENDIX E

PROPOSBD FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL

Folsom Ranch Financing AuthoritY

Folsom, California

Folsom

City of Folsom CommunitY

Ranch Financing AuthoritY

Facilities District No' 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. 2
2

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Wehaveactedasbondcounseltotherorsol.\11;]rFinancingAythgria(the..Issuer'')in
connection with the issuance of $ ' - ' 

aggreglie pti";ip;i ;;"-"t ?{ folsom 
Ranch Financing

Authority ciry of r"i;;;;;ffit ;*r-rt,* o;i.i"iNo. z:.ii'hr"- n""ch) rlnlovement AreaNo' 2

Soecial rax Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 i;il;il;i.ti issued pursuant to a trust agreement' dated as of

.tanuary 1,2024(the 
,,Trust Agreement'),"u*one the Issuer' iil';;t ;'Folsom community Facilities

DistrictNo.23 (Folsom Ranch) ttt" "corri,n*niL'i'1"'i,iq"District') and u'S' Bank rrust company'

National Association, as trustee (th" *rrurirJrf." it , r.urt Agr;;;; proviae.t that the Bonds are issued

for the stated purpor" of enabling tf'e ftsu""tt acquire **"1";;;;i'ui tu* bonds'to be issued by'the

community Facilities-disrri.i. c"pir"rir"ii"r,nrlo-, o,t "*ise 
defined herein shall have the meantngs

utt.ibeA thereto in the Trust Agreement'

Insuchconnection,wehavereviewedtheTrustAgreement;theTaxCertificate,datedthedate
hereof (the ..tu* c"rtificate,,), .*r"ot"drnJ oliv"."a by the-Isire;;;e",o,nunity Facilities District and

the city of Folsom; opinioni "ry*r::llo*,i, 
ir.u"r, tt'," co-*unity Facilities District and the Trustee;

certificates of the Isiuer, the commu"iv"e""irl i"s oistri"t,^;;;"it;.,"e an$ others; and such other

documents, opinions andmatters t" th"""*i#;;;;;Jil;.r"ry; render the opinions set forth

herein.

Theopinionsexpressedhereinarebasedonananalysisofexistinglaws,-regulations,rulingsand
court decisions and cover certain .utt*rr-r,lt Jir""Uy uAO'"','"0 by 

'u"h 
Juthorities' Such opinions may

be affected by actions taken or omitted.or ;;;;;;*ing utriolrigi*ia"tiu.ry.of the Bonds on the date

hereof. We have not undertak"n'o a'i"it-ini o'to inio"-unyi"tton' whelher anv such actions are

taken or omitted or events do occur or any other maner, "orJil 
5;; "-;*ilr;;4* 

originat delivery of

the Bonds on the date hereof. a"*rainei; dil;;;"k;;;;"; "rli. 
J"* and is norintended to' and

may not, be retieiripon o,. otr,"r*ir" ,ir# il";;.;il*iir'?ni"*"tt uttionl:"tu"no or matters' we

disclaim uny ouugulion to update this letter. we have assumed the genuinen^ess of all documents and

signatures pronioi,i';;"# il a*. 
"nJ 

r"gar execution #;[""ty thereof by- and validitv against'

any parties ottrer ttran the Issuer. w:i;;;";;;ed, without .ia"n"ii"g to verito' the accuracy of the

factual matters represented, *urunt"i*o, "",tiir"o'in 
th" ;;;;;*ir,"*o of itre legal conclusions

contained in the opinion., referred ao in,t" second *l*"on i"t*r 
'Furthelo'"' *t have assumed

compriance *itt, uit covenants und ugr""*"nt, ,""t"ir"o in tfi" Trust Agreemglt.and the Tax certificate'

including (without limitation) "on"nu"o 
and agreements.compliun"" *ith which is necessary to assure

that future actions, omissions o, 
"u"r,il 

;'l;? "au.e 
int"r'Jrt * att" Bonds to be included in gross

(Final OPinion)

income for federal income tax purposes

E-1

Page 286

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Wecallattentiontothefactthattherightsandobligations under the Bonds, the Trust Agreement

and the Tax Certificate and their enforceability may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership'

conveyance, moratorium and other laws relating to or affecting
reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent-

creditors' rights, to the application of equitable princiPles, to the exercise of judicial discretion in

appropriate cases and to the limitations on legal remedies against governmental entities such as the Issuer

and the CommunitY Facilities District in the State of California. We express no opinion with respect to

any indemnification, contribution, liquidated damages, penalty (including any remedY deemed to

constitute or to have the effect ofa penalty), right of set-off, arbitration , judicial reference, choice of law,

choice of forum, choice of venue, non-exclusivity of remedies, waiver or severability provisions

contained in the foregoing documents, nor do we exPre ss any opinion with respect to the state or quality

of titte to or interest in anY ofthe assets described in or as subj ect to the lien of the Trust Agreement or

the accuracy or sufficiency of the description contained therein of, or the remedies available to enforce

liens on, any such assets. We also express no opinion regarding the Plans, sPecificati ons, maps, financial

reports or other engineering or financial details of the proceedings, or upon the Amended Rate and

Method of APPortionment for the Improvement Area or the validitY of the Special Tax levied uPon any

individual parcel. Our services did not include financ ial or other non-legal advice. Finally, we undertake

no responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the Official Statement, dated

2024, or other offering material relating to the Bonds and express no opinion or conclusion with respect

thereto.

Based on and subject to the foregoing, and in reliance thereon, as of the date hereof, we are of the

following opinions:

1. The Bonds constitute the valid and binding special, limited obligations of the Issuer'

2. The Trust Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by, and constitutes the valid

and binding obligation "i tr,! Issuer. The Trust Agreement creates a valid predge, to secure the payment

of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, of tf,e Trust Estate, subject to the provisions of the Trust

Agreement permitting the application thereof ior the purposes and on th,e terms and conditions set forth in

the Trust Agreement.

3. Interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes

under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue code of 1986 ;d is exempt from,state of california personal

income taxes. Interest on the Bonds ir noi a specific preference item for purposes of the federal

individual alternative minimum tax. we observe that interest on the Bonds included in adjusted financial

statement income or"""rtuin corporations is not excluded from the federal corporate alternative minimum

tax. We express no opinion regarding other tax consequences related to the ownership or disposition of' or

the amount, accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds'

Faithfully yours,

ORzuCK, HERRINGTON & SUTCLIFFE LLP

per

E-2
Page 287

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



The description that fottows af the procedures and recordkeeping with respect to beneficial

ownership interesti in the Boids, payment of principat of, premium, tf any, and interest on the Bonds to

participants or Benefcial owneis,'confirmation ind transfer of beneficial ownership interests iy the-

Bonds, and other relited transactions by and between DTC, Psrticipants and Beneficial owners, is based

on ffirmation furnished by DTC which the Authority believes to be reliable, but the Authority does not

take responsibtitty for the iompleteness or accuracy thereof. The Authority cannol and does not give any

assu/ances that DTC, DTC pirticipants or Indirect Participants witl distribute to the Beneficial owners

either (a) payments of principal, piemium, ,f any, and interest with respect to the Bonds or (b) certificates

,rprrr'ertirg orrrrr'hrp inteiests'in or athei confirmation of ownership interests in the Bonds, or that they

*ju ,o do in a timely basis oy that DTC, DTC Participants or DTC Indirect Participants will act in the

manner described in this Official Statement. The currint "Rules" applicable to DTC are on fle with the

Securities and Exchange Commission and the current "Procedures" of DTC to be followed in dealing

with DTC Participants are onfile with DTC'

The Depository Company ("DTC"), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for

the Bonds, The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co.

(DTC,s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of

brc. on" fully-registered bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds in the aggregate

principal u*ount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC. If, however, the aggregate principal

amount of any maturity e*ceeds $soo -ittion, one certificate will be issued with respect to each $500

million of principal ariount, and an additional certificate will be issued with respect to any remaining

principal amount of such maturity.

DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company orgallzef

under the New york natrkin! Ltw, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York

Banking Law, amember of the Federal Reserve Systim, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of

the New york uniform Commercial Code, and a'iclearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions

of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over

3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S, equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money

market instruments (from over 100 countries; itrat DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with

DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other

securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and^

pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of

securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers,

banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations' DTC is a wholly-owned

subsidiary of The Depository Tiust & clearing corporation (*DTCC'). DTcc is the holding company

for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation' all of which

are regisiered clearing agencies. DTdc is bwned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries' Access to the

DTC iystem is also uuuituut" to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealerso

banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship

with a Direct participant, either dir-ectly or indirectly ("lndirect Participants")' DTC has a Standard &
poor,s rating of AAi. The DTC Rules applicable t-o its Participants are on file with the Securities and

Exchange C6mmission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com.

APPENDIX F

DTC AND THf, BOOK.ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM

F-1
Page 288

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



PurchasesoftheBondsundertheDTCsystemmusttemadebyorthroughDirectParticipants,
which will receive u'"."ai, io. the Bonds on pfc,. records. 

'itt" 
o*n".ship interest of each actual

purchaser of each B";;A;t' Benefrcial b*ry, 'l 
1t ]l li: to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect

Participants' records. Beneficial owners will not receive *'itt"n confirmation from DTC of their

purchase. Beneficial owners are, however, 
".p"1i"9 P I"r."iy. 

*itt"n confirmations providing details of

the transaction, as we' as periodic .tut.,nlntJ of tr,"i, hordings, from the Direct or rndirect participant

through which the Beneficial owner "nt"rJirrto 
the transaction. rrunrters of ownership interests in the

Bonds are to be accomplished by entries ,n"i.'"" lrt. books of Direct and rndirect participants acting on

behalf of Beneficial li#;;:"fi"ili"L O*""r, *ilI not receive cerrificates representing their ownership

interests in Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued'

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are

registered in the name of bTc',, p"n*rlnip ^;:tFtb"d"L-Lo', 
or such other name as may be

requested by an *;il;;t representati""-"? nrc' rr'e aeposir 9i t1" 
'nond1 

with DTc and their

resistration in the name of ceae &, a".ir, *"', ott.. DTi nominee) do not effect any change in

be.-neficial ownership. DTC has no tno*Llg.""i,rr. actual Beneficiar owners of the Bonds; DTc's

records reflect onty'it" ia"ntity of the Direciparticipants a" *rr".. accounts such Bonds are credited,

which may or *uv n*; ;h; gr""n"i"i-o*""rr- 'The pirect and Indirect pa*icipants wilr remain

responsible for teepinj u"*ont of their holdings on behalf of their customers'

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct

participants to tnoirect runi"ipurr*, uni'uy-ni.""i rurriripu*it.1na Indirect participants to Beneficial

owners will be governed by u*ung"rn"'nts among them, subje.t t9- any statutory or regulatory

requirement, u, n",#u"'i" "rr.i 
rro,n tl..1o"ii*". BJneficial o*n.tr of Bonis mav wish to take certain

steps to augment th'" ;;;;;i;; ; ,h;"f n*i.", or significant events with respect to the Bonds' such

as redemptions, tenders, defaults 
"na 

pr"pored am.endl.nt' lo the Bond documents' For example'

Beneficiar owners of Bonds may wish ioL""nuin that the no*in." holding the Bonds for their benefit

has agreed to obtain-and trun.*iinotices to Beneficiar owners. In the altemative' Beneficial owners may

wish to provide *r",. name, and address", ,o ,t," regisrar uni ,"qu"ra that copies of notices be provided

RedemptionnoticesshallbesenttoDTC.IflessthanalloftheBondswithinamaturityarebeing
redeemed, DTC,s d;;;1, to determin. b; i;; ti"'u*oun, or tne interest of each Direct participant in

such maturitY to be redeemed'

NeitherDTCnorCede&Co.(noranyother.DTCnominee)willconsentolvotewithrespectto
the Bonds unless authorized by a Direct p"niirp""iin u"cordu*" *i,ir DTc'sr{MI procedures' Under

its usual procedures,;ie;"ir- un o-r,iilur;.-y to tt" Authority as soon as possibre after the record

date. The omnibus proxy assigns cede & Co.,s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to

whose accounts the Bonis are credited on irr" ,""ord date lidentifi"i itiu listing attached to the omnibus

directly to them.

Proxy).

,Principal,redemptionprice,andinterestpaym.eltswithrespecttotheBondswillbemadeto

Cede & Co., or such other nominee u. *uy U' t"qti"'t"O Ulan authorized representative of DTC' DTC?s

practice is to credit nir""t participants, u..o-onrr^upon Dic,s r;;;ipi of funds and corresponding detail

information from the Authority on u puyubi; ;;" in accordance witir their respective holdings shown on

DTC records. payments by participants.tg Beneficial owners will be gou"*"d by standing instructions

and customary practices, u, i, th" cas-e with '"'u'i'i"t 
held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or

registered in "street tiu.ti,'l-una will be th;;;;tibility "r 
t""tt Participant and not of DTC or its

nominee,theTrustee,ortheAuthority-subjecttoulvstatutoryorregulatoryrequirementsasmaybein
effect from time to time. payment orprinfipui,redemption prrc" un'a inteiest io cede & co' (or such

F-2Page 289

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility 911!"
Authority or the T*rjtee, disbursemeni of such payments to Drlect Participants shall be the responsibility

of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to ihe Beneficial owners shall be the responsibility of Direct

and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time

by giving ,"uronubl" notice to tte Authority or the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a

,u.-"rr.* depository is not obtained, bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The Authority may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through

DTC (or a successor ,r"uriti". depository). In that event, bond certificates will be printed and delivered

to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained

from sources that the Authority deems reliable, but the Authority takes no responsibility for the accuracy

thereof.

THE TRUSTEE, AS LONG AS A BOOK.ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM TS USED FOR THE

BONDS, WILL SEND ANY NOTICE OF REDEMPTION OR OTHER NOTICES ONLY TO CEDE &

Co., oil. ITS SUCCESSOR AS DTC'S PARTNERSHIP NOMINEE. ANY FAILURE OF CEDE &

CO., OR ITS SUCCESSOR AS DTC'S PARTNERSHIP NOMINEE TO ADVISE ANY
pni.ncIpnNT, oR oF ANY PARTICIPANT TO NOTIFY ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY

NOTICE AND ITS CONTENT OR EFFECT WILL NOT AFFECT THE VALIDITY OR

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PROCEEDINGS RELATING TO THE REDEMPTION OF THE BONDS

CALLED FOR REDEMPTION OR OF ANY OTHER ACTION PREMISED ON SUCH NOTICE'

F-3
Page 290

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



APPENDIX G

APPRAISAL

G-1Page 291

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



ATTACHMENT 6

Page 292

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



OH&S DRAFT
nn712023

CITYoFFoLSoMCOMMUNITYFACILITIESDISTRICTNo.23
(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO' 2

SPECIAL TAX BONDS, SERIES 2024

LOCAL OBLIGATION PURCHASE CONTRACT

[Sale Date]

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No' 23

(Folsom Ranch)
City of Folsom, CitY Hall

50 Natoma Street

Folsom, California 95630

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersig'ed Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the "A-uthority") offers to

enter into this Local obligatio' purchase contract (the ;Local obligation Purchase contract")

with you, the city of Folsom community Facilities District No. 23 (Forsom Ra'ch)

(the..Community Facilities District,,), which, upon. acceptance, will be binding upon the

community Facilities District and the'Authority;-ancl except as otherwise provided hefein, al1

capitalized terms used herei' srrat have the meanings attributed to them in the Indenture, dated

as of fJanuary] i ,2X24 (the "lnden*""i, U"i*een"the.Community Facilities District and U'S'

BankTtustcon'punv,NationalAssociation,aStrustee(the..Trustee'').

Sale and of bli

(a)Subjecttothetermsandconditionsandinrelianceuponthe
representations and ugr.-#"rrr, set for.th h.;.i;, the Authority hereby agrees to purchase fi'om the

community FacilitieJDistrict, and the co**unity Facilities District hereby agrees to sell to the

Authority, all (but * l.r, than all) oitrr. Sipur Amo-unt] aggregateprincipal amount of the city

of Folsom community Facilities District illo. 23 (poliori-na"chj Improvement Area No' 2

Special rax Bonds,'I.ri", 2024 (the..io"ul obligations") issued under the Indenture, dated the

date of their initial derivery, bearing interest puyuur" on the crates and at the inte'est rates, a'd

maturingonthedatesandirltheamounts.andsubjecttotheoptional,extraordinar.yand
mandatory redernption provisions, as set forth in gxiiUlt A attached hereto and incor"porated

Thepur.clrasepdcefortheLocalobligatiorisshallbe$fPurchasePrice],wlrich
purchase price shall u. paic fi-om the prn"..ds of sare of the Forsom Ranch Financing Ar"rtliority

city of Folsom co**,inity Facilities-District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No' 2

Special Tax Revenu" gonar, Series Zaiq, issued under the Trust Agreement' dated as of

herein

4t52-2732-12t I

Page 293

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



iJanuary] I,2A24,by and among.the Authority' the commu'ity Facilities'District and U'S' Bank

irust Conrpan), Nu:tr"r"r Assoiiation,-'*r-,*i.e (trre "rr.,ti igree'rent"), which bo'ds issued

undet.tlre Tr.r.tst eg*",'*'are referred to }'.,"in as the ..Autlrot.ity Bonds'''

TheLocalobligatior-rsslrallbesubstantiallyintheforrndescr.ibedin,slrallbe
iss'ed and secured u'der the provision' oi, and shall be payabte as provided irr the Indenture'

or date as shall be agleed bY the CommunitY Faci lities District and the AutholitY (such time

and date being herein referred to as the "Closing Date"), the CommunttY Facilities District will
(b) At 8:30 a.m.' California time' on fClosing Datei, or at such eallier or later

tlme

California (or such other location as maY be designated bY the AuthoritY and apPloveddeliver to the AuthoritY at the offices of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcli ffe LLP, Sacrantento,
by the

CommunitY Facilities District) the I.ocal Obligations in defin itive folms, dulY executed by the

CommunttY Facilities District and authenticated bY the Trttstee' and will deliver to the AuthoritY

the other documents het'ein mentioned ; and the AuthoritY will accePt such deliverY and PaY the

total Purchase Prlce of the Local Obligation s as set forth ln paragraPh (a) oi this section as

plovided in the Indenture (such deliverY and Payment being herein referred to as the "Closing")

the
2.

The CommunitY Facilities District represents to and agrees with the AutholitY that

(a)TheCommunityFacilitiesDistrictisandwillbeattheClosingDateduly
organized and existing ", "-"o*-.,nity 

iu.ili,i., district uoi", and by virtue of the laws of the

State of califor'ia, *itr, trtt power and authority to issue the Local obiigations and to carry out

and consummate the transaciion, .""';;;i;;{tr trtt Local obligatio's' this Local obligation

purchase Contract, the I'dentur"- u"J'ttte Trust Ag"t*ent icollectively' the "Financing

Documents,,), and 
',1r. 

Fi'un"ing oocJm.nr, ot. u"a *ili'i" ui 
'ttt 

Closing Date valid and

binding obligations oi'ftt Community Facilities District;

(b)WhendeliveredtoandpaidforbytlreAuthor.ityattheClosingin
accor.dance with the provisions of this r.ocar outigation purchas. contract, the Local obligations

will liave been duly authorized, """.,ii"-J, 
;*-d ur,,a a.ti.,.red and will constitute valid and

binding obrigarions of the community-ruliti,i", Disrrict ir, .onrot*ity with, and entitled to the

benefifand security oi the Indenture;

(c)Byofficial.actionoftheCommunityFacilitiesDistrict,priortoor
concurrently with the acceptan". rr.r.Ji, ,rr" con *.,nrtv.-ru"irities Disrrict has authorized and

approvecl the executio'uni clelivery ;i;'h. Financing Documents' and autirorized and approved

the performun.. b;ll; co**.r'itv e""irni., DistriJt or tn. orugarions o' irs part conrained in

the Fir.rancing ol.ffi;;;;;"ir;'lffiJ:1_,"f_ ,upp'ou'd 
the. consunrmalion bv the

comm'nity Facilities District of at other tfa.sactions .Ji*pruted by this Local obligation

Pr:rchase Contract;

(d)Tlrereisnoactiott,Suit,proceeding',irrquiryorirrvestigatiott,atlawortn
equity, before or by any court, goo.r,rn .niui'ug.n"y, p.turit to*o or bocly' pending or' to the

knowleclge of the bo-,,-,rr',ity Facilities DistriJt, thr.*t"n.J ug"inu the comnr.'ity Facilities

District or its pr.operties or opelatrons (i) seeking 
'o '*tuii't 

or enioin tl-re issuance' sale'

2

I t5t-27.i2-i2l I

Page 294

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



exec*tion or deliver.y of the Local obligatio's. (ii) in any way contesting or affecting the vaiidity

or enfolceability of any of the Financing Documellts, ?trY proceedings of the community

Facilities District taken concerning tire issn"rance or sale of the Local obligations, the collection

of the special ,u" ,."uring the LoJar obligatio's (the "special rax") or the existence of powers

of the cornmunity Faciliies Districr r.laring to ih" issuance of the Local obligations or (iii)

which, if determin"d udu"rr"ly ro the com'rrlnity Facilities District or its interests, would have a

rnaterial and adverse effect on the consummation of the transactions contemplated by-gt tl'

'alidity 
of the Financing Documents or on trre ope'ations of the commu'ity Facilities District

with respect to the Local Obligations;

(e) The execution and deliverT of the Financing Documents' and the

consummation of the transactio's therein and herein co'templated, and-the fulfillment of or

compliance with the terms and conditio's thereof a'd hereof, wili not conflict with or constitute

a violation or breach of or default (with due notice or the passage of tirne or both) under any

applicabie iaw or administrative rule or regulatioll' or any applicable court or administrative

deCree or Order, or any indenture, mOrtgage, deed of ttust, loan agreement' lease' cOnttact or

other agreement or insirument to which tlh."com*unity Facilities District is a party or by which

it or its properties are otherwise subject or bound, or lesult in the creation or imposition of any

prohibited lien, charge or encumbtance of any nature whatsoevel upon any of the propefty or

assets of the co**uiity Facilities District, which conflict, violation, breach, default, lien, charge

or encumbrance might have cons.qu"n"., that would rnaterialy and adversely affect the

consummation of the transactions coni"*fru,"o by the Financing Documents or the operations of

the community Facilities District with l'espect to the Local obligations;

(0 The Community Facilities District is not in breach of or default under any

applicable law or administrative reguiation of the State of california or the united States or any

applicable judgment or decree or any loan agreement, indenture, bond' note' resolution'

agreemenr or other instrument to whilh the cJrnmunity Facilities -District 
is a party or is

otherwise subject, which breach or default may have .onttqr]tn"es that would materially and

adverseiy affect the consummatio' of the transactions contemplatecr by the Financing

Documents, and no event has occurred and is continuing which, with the passage of time or the

giving of notice, or both, would constitute such a breach or defauit under any such instrument;

(g) All approvals, consents, autholizations, certifications and other orders of

any governmental authority, boa.d, ;t";;.y or commission having jurisdiction, and all filings

with any such entities, which would Jonriit.n. co'ditiolis precedent to or the failure to obtain

which would materially adversely affect the perfot'rnance by the community Facilities District of

its obligations under the Financing Docum"nt, l,uu. been duly obtained, and no further consent'

approval, authorizatioll oI othel action or filing with or by a1y govefnmental or regulatory

authority having jurisdiction ou"r th" communiti Facilities Ditttitt is or will be required for the

issue and sale of the Local obligatio's or. the cousummation by the community Facilities

District of the other transactions described in the Financing Documents;

(h) The Special Tax constituting the security for the Local Obligations has

bee' duly ancl lawfully author.ized under and pursnant to the Melio-Roos community Facilities

District Act of 19g2 (the..Act,') witiri'rmprovement Area No. 2 of the com'runity Facilities

Districr (the "improvement Area") and sr'rch Special Tax is secured by a valid and legally

a
J

41j2-2732-321I

Page 295

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



binding contintiing lien on the land subject to the special Tax as provided in tire Act;

(i)TlreCityCouncil,aslegislativebodyoftheCommunityFacilitiesDistrict,
has authorized ar-rd *rit unnuuily levy uJ".ott."t the. Special Tax, in addition to amounts

necessary ro pay a"u, ..r"i." onilr" J"-;;ilu,to"g, i,, an amount sufficient (subject to any

maximum special tax permitt{. by l"*l 
.-a "pay tt'e Expenses arising directly from the

administration or enforcement of the Local Obligations'

TheexecutiorranddeliveryofthisLocalobligationPurchaseCorrtractbytiie
Community pacilities birrri", shall constitute a 

"p'""ntutiJ" 
UV the Community Facilities

District to the A,thority that the ,.pr"o.tutions and agreements contained in this Section 2 are

true as of trre date rrereof; provicred, th* 
", 

," all matteri oiiu* ,rr" community Facilities District

is relying on the uaui""'oT *r,tr.t t" iftt Co**""ity Fu"ilitit' District; and n'oulIl'd further'

that no member of the city coun"it, ur l"girlative utol oi the community Fac*ities District'

shali be individ,aily liable for rhe urru"t, of-any representation, warranty or agreement coutained

herein.

additional conditions :

(a)AttheClosingDate,theFinancingDocumentsshallbeinfullforceand
effecr in the ro.o lt"r"iofore subrniutl'it the Autho'itt -und lh:tt .thul] Tt" 

been taken in

connection with tr.,e isruunr" of the Locar obligations and with the transactio*s contemplated

thereby and by thi;;;;;i Obligation Purchase bontract' utl su"h actions as' in the opinion of

Orrick, Herri'gton /su,.ilrr. r-ip ('go;J-Co"n'"t")' shall be necessary and appropriate;

(b)AttlieClosingDate,theFinancingDocumentsshallnothavebeen
amended, 

'rodified 
or supplemented, .*;;;t;ay have bein agretd to by the Author-ity;

(c)AtorpriortotheClosingDate,th^eAuthorityandtheTrusteeshallhave
received tlie forowing docum.ntr, ,,i .u"r, ."ur. ,utisractow in form and substance to the

AuthoritY:

(1) An executed copy of each of the Financing Documents;

(2) An unqualified approvilg:!inio" of Bond Counsel' dated the

ciosing Date and address.d to tr-re coro*.r;v'fr.'itiJr District, as to the validity of the Local

Obligations;

(3) An opinion of the City Attorney' dated the Ciosing Date and

4

4r52-27-12-:i2ll

Page 296

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



(4)Suchadditionallegalopinions'-certificates'proceedings'
instruments and othel documents as the Authority or goni Counsel may reasonably request to

evidence compliance by the community r""iriti.r Dislrict with legal requi'ements, the truth and

accuracy, as of arrr-clo.ing Dat1, or irr" representations of the bornmunity Facilities District

co'tained herein, and the due performun"" o, satisfaction by the community Facilities District at

or prior to such tirne of all agreem""" th"; to be pe'form"d and all conditions then to be

rxitn.a by the Community Facilities Distlict'

If the community Facilities District shall be unable to satisff the sonditions to the

Authority's oUtiguiior* contained in lit' Local Obligatio' Purchase Contract' this Local

obligation purchase contract sha[ terminate a'd neither the Authority 'or 
the community

pu"itlri", District shall have any further obligation hereunder.

4.Expeuses.AllexpensesandcostsoftheCommunityFacilitiesDistrict
a'd the Authority incident to the authorization, issuance and sale of the Locar obligations and

the Authority Bonds, incruding r.., uno 
"rpenses 

of consurtants, the Trustee, the appraiser, Bond

counser and counsel for the commir"iiy eu.*ities- District and the underwriting fees and

expenses incu'ed by the Authority.io .orrn."tion with the sale of the Autho'ity Bonds shall be

paid by the community Fac'ities DistriJor the city on its behalf, and the community Facilities

District aglees that it will pay ,,,"t' 
-"*p",'s"s 

und costs from the proceeds of the Local

addressed to the community Facilities District and the Autirority, in s,bsta'tially the form

attached hereto as Exhibit B; and

Obligations

District

This Local Obligation Purchase

5. Notices' Any notice or other communication to be given to the

community Facilities ffii", under-this Local obligation purchase contract may be given by

deliveri'g the same ln writing at the community Ficilities District's address set forth above,

Attention: Finance Director, and any such notice or other communications required to be given

to the Authority may be given uv derivering-the same in writing to the Authority at 50 Natoma

Street, Foisom, Catitornila 95630, Attentioi: Treasurer' The approval of the Authority when

required hereunder or-it . a.r.rmination of their satisfaction as- to any document referred to

her.ein shali be in writing signed uv trre Authority and delivered to the comrnunity Facilities

Contract is made solelY for the benefit of the CommunttY Facilities District, the Authority and

the Trttstee and no other Persons, partnershiP, association or corporatl on shall acquire or have

arry right hereunder ol bY virtue hereof. This Local Obligation Purchase Coutract shall be

governed by the laws of the State of California'

6 P

T.Pledge:Assignment'Th.e9o.-*::ityFacilitiesDistricthelebyapproves
the pledge a'd assignment of all tle {u-tnority's 

right, titre ;nd i'terest in rhe Local obligations

to the T'ustee .rno"r'it . Indenture for the' uen"fit oflhe owners of the Atrthority Bo'ds'

8'LirrritatiorronLiability.Th*Authorityshallincurrioliabilityhereunderor
byreasotrhereofo,u@ctionscontemplatedhereby,ands1rallbeunderno

5

4l5l-17i2-ll1 I

Page 297

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



obligation to pulchase the Locai obligations hereunder, except fiom proceeds of the Authority

Bonds available therefor held by ,r,. rr,rr* undeL, and subject to.t11: conditions set forth in' the

Indenture. The community Facilities District shall incur no liability hereunder or by reason

hereof or arising oui or rrr" iransaction, "ont**ptated 
hereunder, except as otherwise provided in

Sections 4 and 5 hereof, or be obligated to make uny fuy*"nts with. re,spect to the Local

Obligationr, ,*..pt-irorn'u*orrrrts pledged to the puV*"^ni of tht Local Obligations (including

the Special rax leviJ and collected in if;.1*ptouor,"r,t Area) pursuant to the terms thereof'

o

4t52-2732-i21 1

Page 298

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



g. Cou'terparts. This Local Obligation Purchase Contract may be signed in

two or. more count.rpuru; Jt ilf, counterparts, when signed by all parties, shall constitute but

one single agreement.

By

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO:

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)

By
StaceY Tamagni

Finance Director of the City of Folsom

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

Stacey Tamagni
Treasurer

7

4152-7't32-32t I

Page 299

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Exhibit A

Local Obligations Maturity Schedule and Redemption Provisions

Maturitv Schedule

Maturity Date
(september l) Principnl Anrount Interest Rate

%$

* Term Bonds

Bedernption Provisiotts

Extraordinary Redemption. The Local Obligations are subject to extraotdinary

,"d"*p@niiyFacilitiesDistrictpriortotheirrespectivematuritydates,asa
whole or in parl on any inteiest payment date on or after September 1, 201 .. 1, from funds

derived by the Com*unity Facilitiis birtri.t from prepayments of the Special Tax, upon mailed

notice as provided in the Indenture, at the following redernption prices (computed upon the

principal amount of the Local Obligations or portions thereof called for redemption) together

with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption' to wit:

rc3oh if redeemed on an interest payment date on ol after September' 1, 20L]
through March 1, 20[--];

l0Z% if redeemed on an interest payment date on September 1, 20L-] or March

1, 20[_];

l0l% if redeemed o1 an interest payment date on September 1, 20L-] or March

1,20f l; and

rc1% if redeemed on September 1, 20L-] or any interest payment date thereafter.

4 t5?-2732-3211

A-1 Page 300

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



optionalReclenrplqn'Th.Localobligatiorrsar.esubjecttooptional.r.edemptionbythe
cornrrunity rucititifffiilt prior to their-respective maturity dates as a whole or in part on any

date on or after September 1, 20L-], n.ont i'"Ot derived Uy tltt Community Facilities District

from any source ";t;;1il" 
,.,"n-rutini*u,.'., ilni.ing Fund iscount Payments deposited in the

SinkingFundSubaccountorsuchpttp"y"*"'::-i"lTSpecialTax'uponmailednoticeas
provided in the f"a.rurr., at the following redemption- fti"tt (computid upon the principal

amount of the Local obligation, o, poriionrih"r"of called io, ,eo"*ption) together with accrued

interest thereon to the date fixed for redernptiotr:

|03%if redeemed on any date on or after September. 1,20L] throughAugust

31,20[ l;

t02%ifredeenredonanydatefr.omseptemberl,20[lthroughAugust3l,
20i l;

|[T%ifredeemedonanydatefl.onrSeptemberl,20[]throughAugust3l,
20[ l; and

100%if redeemed on September 1, 20L_] a'd any date thereafter.

The Local
Fund Accoun

obligatto ns maturmg on September 1, 20L-1, are subj ect to mandatory redemption bY the

CommurutY Facilities District prior to the ir maturitY date in Part on September 1 in each of the

years 20[-] through 20L--1, both Years inclusive; and the Local Obligations maturing on

September 1, 20f l, are subj ect to mandatorY ledenrption bY the Communt ty Facilities District

prror to their maturitY date in Part on SePtem ber 1 in each of the Years 20L-] through 20L-1,

both Years inciusive, in each case soielY from Minimum Sinking Fund Account PaYments

deposited in the Sinking Fund Subaccount, uPon mailed notice as provided in the Indenlure, at a

redemption price equal to one hundred Percent (1 00%) of the PrinciPal amount thereof called for

redemption together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemPtion'

Minimum sinking Fund Account payments are estabrished for the mandatory redemption

and payment of the ioclt oUtigations described in the paragraph above' rlhich payments shall

become due during the years ending o,rirr. dales and in fhe uioorntr as set forth in the following

schedules (except that if any of rn. ro.ui oltigatio,rs shail have been optionally redeemed or

redeemed from property owner prepayments, the lmoynts 
of the Minimum Sinking Fund

Account payments;rrri be reduced ptJp".ii"r",ely by the principal amount of all such Local

Obligations so recleemed), namelY:

t

41i2-213)-3)l I

A.-2Page 301

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



ri Maturity

Year
Ending

September I

Minimum
Sinking Fund

Apcourlt BayurE.ut
$

Minimum
Sinking Fund

Accounj Payment
$

Local Oblieation Matur:ing Sqoternbgr l' 20L-J

Year
Endittg

Seotember I

* Maturity

4152-2732-32tt

A-3Page 302

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Exhibit B

[Forrn of CitY AttorneY OPinion]

[cLosING DATE]

Folsom Ranch Financing AuthoritY

Folsom, California

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No' 23

(Folsom Ranch)
Folsom, California

Piper Sandler & Co.

S acramento, California

U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association

Los Angeles, California

Ladies and Gentlemen:

City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo' 23

(Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No' 2

Sp Tax Bonds. Series 2024

I have served as counsel to the city of Folsom (the "city")-in connection with the

issuance, sale and delivery of the ubou"-r.i.renced securities (collectively' the 'olocal

obligations,,) by trre city of Folsom co*-unitv Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

(the.,community lacilitils Distri"t"), anJ this letter is being deliveled- pursuant to the Local

Obligation Purchase Contract dated as of [Sale Date] (ht "Lotul Obligation Purchase

Contract,,), by and between the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the *Authority',) and the

community Facilities District, and all capitarized terms not otherwise defined he'ein have the

;;;;i;g, ascribed thereto in the Local obligation Purchase contract.

As such counsel, I have examined and am familiar with (i) those documents

relating to the "*ir*.", 
organization and operation _of 

trre comrnunity Facirities District,

inclnding Resolution No. t$a."ls, aurv-uiopted'by the city on May 26,2020' establishing the

cornmunity ra"itiiie, District una a.Jgnlttrg u*ious improvement areas therein, including

rmprovement Area No. 2 (the .,Improu.mint Ar"ea"), a'd Resolution No. 1 101 1, duly adopted by

the city on March 2s,20)3,wheieby ihe rate and method of apporlionment of the Special Tax

for the improvemeut Area *u' u**nded; (ii) Resolution No' L-l of tlie city council

approving the issuance of the f-o."i'OUiigutionr, the. issuance o1 the Authority Bonds' the

Financi'g po.u*"nt, and the official Stalme't (such resolurions referenced in (i) and (ii),

together the "Re;iuliorrr";; (iii) all necessary documentatio' of the Community Facilities

District r.elating to the authorization, execution and delivery of the Local obligations and all of

rhe Financing Documents; (iv) trr. prJi*inary official Stateme't, dated [PoS Date] (the

4ti2-2732-3211

B-1Page 303

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



.,preliminary official staternent,,) r-elati'g 1o the -Authority 
Bouds; (v) the official Statement'

dated [Sale Date] (the ,,officiar State-r-nznt,,) relaring to the Authority Bo'ds; a'd (vi) the

continuing rir.torur" cer.tificate of the commr:nity Facilities District, dated the date hereof

(the,.contin,ing ur"ior.,r" celtificate") relating to the Ar-rthority Bonds'

Based on the foregoing' I arn of the opinion that:

i.TheCommunityFacilitiesDistrictisacommunityfacilitiesdistrictduly
organized and existing pulsuant to th; Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982' as

amended (the "Act"), being Chapter Z^i-,p*t 1, Division 2' Title 5 of the Government Code of

the State of California'

2.TheResolutiorrshavebeendulyadoptedalmeeJingsoftheCityCouncil,
acting as the legislative lody of trr" co**unity Facllities District, which were called and heid

pursuant to law unJ *i*f, ali public ";,i* 
t"dred by- law and at which a quorum was present

andactingthroughout,andtheResolution,^u,"infullforceandeffectandhavenotbeen
modified, amended, rescinded or repealed since the date of their respective adoption'

3. The community Facilities District has the full legal right, power and

authority ro execute, deliver "19 girmt;'* Jligations and duties under the Financing

Documents and the continuing nir"r"r"r" cer-tificate, iucluding the riglrt and power under the

Act to execute the Indenture

4. The community Facilities District has complied with-the provisions of

applicable law in all matters relating ; 
'n:- 

transactions cont|mplated by the Financing

Iio"r*"nt, and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate'

5'TheFinancingDocuments;theContinuingDisclosureCertificate;the
Letter of Representations of the-d;;rtrv'tlJrltl:t District, dated fSale Date] (the

..CommunityFacilitiesDistrictLetterofRepresenlations"and'togetherwiththeFinancing

Documents and the continuing Disclosure certificate, the "community Facilities District

Documents,,) and the official Statement have eaclr been duly and lawfully authorized, executed

and delivered by the community Facilities District, are lach in full force and effect and'

assumingau.auttorinatlon,executionanddeliverybytheotherpartiesthereto'eachconstitutes
a legal, varid and binding agreement oii*,. commu'ity Fac'ities Dist'ict enforceable against it

in accordance with its terms, subject to tu*, relating tt bankruptcy, insolvency' r'eorganizalion'

anangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratoriu,'' u,,d other similu. lu''' relating to or affecting

the enforcement of creditot's' rights g.t.t^riv ul9 t9 the application of equitable principles if

equitable remedies are sought, to the ;;;;.tr; of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and to

the rimitations on regar r.emedi", uguin.i "o**uniiy 
facilities districts in tire state of califor'ia'

6'TlrelndentureandtheLocalobligatiorrshalebeendulyandvalidly
authorized, sold, executed, authenticated and delivered' as ipplicable' in accordance with the Act

and with the Indenture

7'Noappr.oval,consentorauthorizationofanygovernmelltalorpublic
agency, authority o. f.rro,i is. required for the execution and deiivery by the Community

Facilitiss District of tt. Financing Documents oI the continuing Disclosure certificate or: the

4t52-2732-32t1

R-2Page 304

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



peffolmancebytlreConrnrunityFacilitiesDistr.ictofitsrespectiveobligationsthet.eutrder.

8'Tlreexecutionanddeliver.yoftheFinancirrgDocuntenlsandthe
continuing Disclosure cer.tificate uv trr"^Co-rn'niry l'acilities District, and cornplia'ce witl'r the

provisions thereof, will rrot conflict witlr or constitute a breach of, or defar"rlt utrder, any

instrument relating to the organization, existence or operation of the Community Facilities

District, or any comnitment, agreement or other instrument to which the comrnu'ity Facilities

District is a party or by which it or- ir, p;;p*rty is bound o' affected, or any ruri'g, regulation,

ordinance, resolution, judgment, ora.. J,. a..r". to which the cornmunity Facilities District (or

any of its officers iniir.iri"rpective T;;i;;t as such) is subject or any pro-vision of the laws of

the State of califomia relating to the community Facilities District and its affairs'

g.TheLocalobligationsarevalidandbindingspecialtaxobligationsoftlre
community Facilities Distr.ict puvuurL-i** fro"."as of the speciat Tax and rhe other funds

provided in tlre Indentule for such puy*.n, u,'d u.. enforceablg in accordance with tlreir terms,

subject to bankruptcy, insolveniy, r'eorganization'- alTangement' fiaudulent conveyallce'

moratorium and other.similar. laws relating I or affecting "r"Iitorr' 
rights, to the application of

equitable prirrcipres where equitaut" ,."*"iies ars sought,'to the exercise of judicial discretion i.

appropriate cases and io ,rr. limitations on iegal remed-ies against community facilities districts in

tlreStateofCalifornia,andtlreternsoftheActandoftheindenture.

10. Based upon my review of the Preliminary officiai statement' and without

havi'g undertaken to determine independ-tly.tlt accuracy' completeness or fairness of the

statements contained in the preli*rinaly of{icial Statement, nothi'g has come to *y attentron

which would lead me to believe rtru, ,# er"ti*irruqy officiai Staternent (excluding rherefrom the

financial statements and the statisticai i ah andthe information concerning The Depository Trust

Company, the book-entry syste* unJ the appendices the'eto' as to which 'o opinion is

expressed) u. or ii, aute and u, or *," aate of the tocat obligation purchase contract coi.rtained

any untrue statement of a material fact with respect to thJ com*runity Facilities District or

omitted or omits to state any materiar fact with respect to the community Facilities District

necessary to make the statement, t'.r.in, in light ofine circumstances under which they were

ll,Basecluponmyreviewoftheofficialstatement'andwithouthaving
undertaken to determine independently the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the statements

contained in the Official Statement, nothing has come tl *V attention which would lead me to

believe that trre officiar Statement r.r"iro*g, therefi'orn the financiai statements and the

statistical data and the information concerni,rg ihe Depository T'ust compa'y, the book-e'try

system and the appe.dices thereto, u, .o *f';!f' no opinion is expressed) as of its date aud the

datehereofcontainedorcontainsanyuntruestatementofamaterial.factwitlrrespecttothe
cornmunity ra.ititi.s District or.omiitecl or omits to state any material fact with respect to the

community Facilities Distr-ict necessa,'y to rnake the staiements therein, in lighr of the

circumstances uncler which they were made, not misleading'

lz. Except as may be stated in the Official Statement, there is no actiou' st-tit'

proceeding or i'vestigation befo'e ";;;;"y 
courl' public board o'body pendi'g ('otice of

wrrich has been served on the city or tt-," co-*unity Faciriries District) or. to n'y ktrorvledge'

made, not misleading'

4152-2737-321 |

B-3Page 305

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



threatened wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or fir'rdirg would: (a) affect the creatron,

organization, existenle o. fo*"r, of the City or the Commu*ityiacilities. District' or the titles of

their members and officers to their 
'"rp"oiu. 

offrces; or (b) afie.t th-e 
-validity,of 

the community

Facilities District po"un .*, or restrain or enjoin tl'e 
'epuyment 

of.tire. Llal Obligations or in

arly way contest or affect the validity oitt* community Futititi.r District Documents or contest

the authority of tt. iom**nitv Facilities District to enter into or perfo'rn its obligations under

anyoftheComm,,,'ityru"iiitiesDistrictDocumentsorunderwhichadeterminationadverseto
the city or the com;rnity Facilities District would have a material adverse effect upon the

finaneial condition or the revenues ortn" city or the community Facilities District, questions the

right of the cornmrinitv euciliti", urtri"t il use the Special rax revied within the Improvement

Area for the repaym# or the Local OUligutrons or afiects in any manner the right or ability of

the Community Facilities District to-.Jtt"", or pledge the dpecial Tax levied within the

Improvement Area for the repayment of the Local Obligations'

Very trulY Yollrs'

City AttorneY

4152-2732-321 I

B-4Page 306

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



ATTACHMENT 7

Page 307

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Sn'crdling Yocca Carlson & Rauth

Dra/i q/'t I/29/23

$

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIE S DISTRICT NO.23

(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMBNT AREA NO. 2

SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2024

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT

,2A24

Folsom Ranch Financing AuthoritY

50 Natoma Street,

Folsom, California 95630

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Piper Sandler & Co., as underwriter (the "Underwriter"), acting not as a fiduciary or agent

for you, but on behalf of itself, offers to enter into this Bond Purchase Agreement (this "Purchase

Agreement") with the Folsom .Ranch Financing Authority (the "Autho rity"), which uPon

acceptance wilI be binding upon the Underwriter and the AuthoritY' The agreement of the

Ilnderwriter to purchase the Bonds (as here inafter defined) is contingent upon the AuthoritY

purchasing from the CitY of Folsom CommunitY Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the

"CommunitY Facilities Districf') the Communtty Facilities District's Improvement Area No. 2

I Tax Bonds, Series 2A24 (the "SPecial Tax Bonds") in the aggregate PrinciPal am ount of
Specia

and uPon the AuthoritY and the CommunitY Facilities District satisfYing all of the

$
obligations imPosed upon them under this Purchase Agreement' This offer is made subject to the

AuthoritY's acceptance by the executton of this Purchase Agreement and its deliverY to the

Underwriter at or before 8:00 P.M., California time, on the date hereof, and, if not so accePted, will

be subj ect to withdrawal bY the Underwriter uPon notice delivered to the Authority at any time Prior

to the acceptance hereof bY the AuthoritY. Al1 caPital ized terms used herein, which are not otherwise

defined, shall have the meantng provided for such terms in the Trust Agreem ent, dated as of

January 7,2A24 $he "Trust Agreement"), bY and among the AuthoritY, U.S. Bank Trust ComPanY,

National Association , as trustee (the "Trustee") and the Comm unity Facilities District. The Special

Tax Bonds are being issued Pursuant to an Indentut'e dated as of JanuarY 1,2024 |the "District

Indenture"), bY and between the ComrnunitY Facilities Disttict and U.S. Bank Trust ComPanY,

National Associati on, as trustee (the "District Trustee")

d of the

Subjecttothetermsandconditionsandinrelianceupontherepresentations'warrantiesand
agreements set fortlr herein, the Underwriter hereby agrees to purchase from- the Authority and the

Authority hereby "g*", 
,"'sell to the Underwtit"i att (but not less than all) of the $ 

'
aggregate principal itount of the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Colnmuntty

Facilities Disrrict No. 23 (Folsom nun"ij irprou.-.nt Aiea No. 2 Special rax Revenue Bonds'

481 8-9829 -4 67 | v3 I 024 667'0 | 4 |

Page 308

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Series 2024 (the.oBonds,,), dated the.closing Date (as rrereinafter defi.ed), bearing interest at the

rates and maturlng on the dates and in *t i'intlpai amounts set fotth in Exhibit A hereto' The

purclrase price for,f.l" fi""at shall be $- ' (being rc}% of the aggregale principal amount

thereof [plus/less] [net] original issue 1p..e''rru''tldfio"tttt if S - " 
-and 

less an Underwriter's

discount of $--. From,rr" pr""."6, of trre gonds, th" A;thority_agrees to purchase the

Special rax Bonds f** rhe commr"iC e*ilities nistrict pursuant to. th; te'rns of the Local

obligation purchase contfact (the ,,Locaiolilg"ii"n Purchase contract"), dated 

-,2024' 

by

andbetweenthecommunityracilitiesDistrictandtheAuthority.

TheBondsshallbesubstantiallyintheformdescribedin,shallbeissuedandsecuredunder
the provisions of, ,"0 ,r,"ir u. puyuut. from the Revenues as provided in the Trust Agreetnent' the

Official Statemerrt (as hereinaft", O"tin"i), *a ift" Marks-Rooi Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985' as

amended, being Article 4, Chapter S, pi'uirion T,Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of

California (the "Bond Law"). the issuance of the Bonds has been duly authorized by the Authority

pursuant to Resoluti;" N;. 

--Folsom 

Runch FA (the "Authority Resolution") adopted by the

Governing Board on D""",r'tb", l2 ,zazz. itt"net proceeds of the gonas will be used to purchase the

Special Tax Bonds.

TheSpecialTaxBondsshallbesubstantiallyintheformdescribedin,shallbeissuedand
secured under the provisions of, uno ,nuii ile payuble from Special rax (as defined in the District

indenture) as provided in the District Indenture'

TheSpecial"faxBondsareissuedundertheMello-RoosCommunityFacilitiesActofl9S2,
as amended, being chapter 2.5,Partl, Division 2,Titles of the Government code of the State of

carifornia (the ,,community Fac'ities oistrict Act"). The issuance of the Special rax Bonds' the

preparation und disiri-bution orthe preliminary officiul.stut"*.nt and the Local obligation Purchase

contract have been duly authorized by,rr.'ci*v c"uncir_of the city of Folsom (the "city council")

acting as the r"g;r;;;i;. body for'the community Fac'ities District, pursuant to Resolution

No.- (the..Community Facilities District Resolution,'). The net proceeds of the Special Tax

Bonds will be used, as indicated in the oiriri"t Indenture, forihe following purposes: (r) finance the

acquisition of ceftain public facilities; iz) fund a debt service reserve account; (3) fund capitalized

interestto Septemb er r,2024;and (4) iv *-i"r,.' costs of issuance of the Bonds and the Special rax

PriortotheacceptanceofthisPurchaseAgreenrentuv.l*I|-"]jl,::.1,.n"'ityshallhave
caused to be deliv"r.J',o ,n" Underwriter: (i)"the Letter.of Representations. of the Community

Facirities District (the ,.District Letter oi n"ir"."ntations") in substuntially the form set forth in

Exhibit B hereto; (i!) a Letter of Representution. of Tri Pointe Homes Holdings, Inc', a Delaware

corporation 1.,r.i rJiit;t i" ruurt*tiuily-rr.r" iorr_ot fortt', in Exhibit c herito; (iii) a Letter of

Representarions of ;;;;, Homes of cariforn ia, LLC, a california limited riabirity company

(,Lennar,,) in substantially the fonn.set rortrl in r*iiuit D hereto; (iv) a Letter of Representations of

AG EHC Ir (LEN) cAz,L.p., a p.tu*u.l'ir*ii"o partnership ("Ai Essentiar") in substantially the

forrr set forth in E;;;# E, L,"r"ro; ."d"1;i ; Letter of Re^piesentations of Arcadian Improvenrent

Company, LLC, aCuiiiorniu linrited f itU'iliy "otpuny 
("Arcadian") in substantially the form set

Bonds

forth in Exhibit N hereto

A'TheAuthorityacknowledgesthattheUnderwriterisenteringintothis
purchase Agreemenr in reliance on the r"pr"r""*i1n3 u1o agreeT)nTll*:I-lte Authority herein

and by the community Facirities District in the District Letter of Representations. and the Authority

2

4 87 8 -9 829 - 4 61 | v 3 I 024 667'0 I 4 1

Page 309

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



sha' take ail actio, necessary to enforce its rights hereunder for the benefit of the Underwriter and

shall imrnediately ";;;fy;;'Underwriter 
if it becomes aware that any representation or agreement

*.0. UV ,fre Authority herein is incorrect in any material respect'

TheAuthorityackrrowledgesandagreesthat:(i).thepurchaseandsaleoftheBondspursuant
to this pur"chase agr".-rnt is an lrrn,s-r""-gtr. "or*.iiiur 

transaction between the Authority a'd the

Underwriter; (ii) in-connection therewiii,""no with the discussions, undertakings and procedures

leading up to the consuryrmation of .u"r-, trunruction, the Underwriter is and has been acting solely as

principal and is noll",ing as a Municipri aou;."r (as defined in Section 158 of the Securities

Exchange Act of l9i;,;r;r"ended) (iiii;;tUnO"'*'it"'has not assumed an advisory orfiduciary

responsibility in favor of the Authority, iir. Co,n-rnity Facilities District or the city of Folsom (the

..City,,) witlr respect to the offering "ont"*pruted 
hereby or the discussions, undertakings and

procedures leading ihereto (irrespective of whether the Underwriter has provided other services or is

currently providing other services to the Authority, the Community Facilities District or the City on

other marters); and (iv) the Authority, the commrnity Facilities District and the city have consulted

their own legal, finan.i"i una other advisors to the exient that they have deemed appropriate'

B. pursuant to the authorization of the Authority, the Underwriter has distributed

copies of the preliminary official .Statement 
dated _-,207.i, relating to the Bonds' which'

together with the-;;;.;'page, inside to".t pugt *d uppendices thereto is herein called the

,,preliminary official stateinent.,, ey-it, u1""i1unq" oritrir purchase Agreement, the Authority

hereby ratifies ,rr" i,r. uv ,t 
" 

underwriter of the'preliminary official Statement, and the Authority

agrees to execute a final official statement relating to the Bonds (including any- supplements andlor

amendments thereto, the ,,official staiement") which will consist of the Preliminary official

Statement with such changes as may U" -ua" ihereto, witir the approvai of Orrick Herrington &

Sutcriffe LLp, the community Faciriiies District's and the Ar"rt-hority's Bond counsel ("Bond

Counsel,,) and Disclosure Counsel (..Disclosure Counsel,'), and the Underwriter, and to provide

copies thereof to the underwriter as set forth in Section 3.N hlreof. The Authority hereby authorizes

the Underwriter to use and promptly Oi.i.ifut., in connection with the offer and sale of the Bonds'

the preliminary official Statement, ih" offi.iut Statement and any supplement or amendment thereto'

The Authority further authorizes the underwriter to use and distribute, in connection with the offer

and sale of the Bonds, the Trust Agreernent, the District Indenture, trris purchase Agreement, the

Local obrigation purchase contract and ail information contained herein, and ail other documents,

certificates and statements fu'risrred by;; ;" beharf of.the Authority, rrre community Facilities

District or the city to the underwrit", in connection with the transactions conternpiated by this

C.ToassisttheUnderwriterinconrplyingwithSecuritiesandExchange
commission Rule l5c2-12(b)(5) (the ,.Rui.;), the community racitities.District wiil 

'nderlake 
for

and on beharf of the Authority pul.suant to the conti'uing Disciosure ceftificate, in the form attached

to trre official Statement as Appendix D (the "contiiuing Discrosure certificate"), to provide

annual reports and notices of certain 
"nu,n.rut"d 

events. A discription of this undertaking is set lorth

in the prelirninary Oificial Statement ancl will also be set forth in the Official Statement'

D.ExceptastheUnderwriterandtlreArrtlroritynayot}terwiseagree,the
Ar.rthority will deliver a ,t'r" Underwriter, uitn. offices of Bond Counsel in Sacramettto' California'

or at such other location as rnay be rnutually agreed upon by the Underwriter, the Community

Facilities District and the Authority, the docurnents hereinaftei rnentioned; and the Authority will

deliver to the underwriter through the facilities of The Depository Trr:st Cornpany ("'DTC") in New

Purchase Agreement'

3

48't8-9829-467 1v31024667 -01 4l

Page 310

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



york, New York, the Bonds, in definitive forn-r (all Bonds bearing cuslP numbers)' duly exectrted

by the Authority and authenticated by the Trustee in the rnanner provided for in the Trust Agreement

and the Bond Law at g:00 a.m. california time, on 

-, 

2024 (the "Closing Date"), and the

Underwriter will accept such delivery and pay th" pur"hus. ptice of the Bonds as set forth in the first

paragraph of this S..ion by wire tiansf.r, ioyuUi" in federal or other immediately available funds

(such delivery and payment being herein ,.i"rr.a to as the "Closing")' The.Bonds shall be in fully

registered book-entry?orm lwhict tuy be typewritten) and shallbe registered in the name of Cede &

Co., as nominee of DTC

ishment I2

A. The Underwriter agrees to make a bona fide public offering of all of the

Bonds initiany ar the pubric offering pri"'es (or yields) set fortrr in Exhibit A attached hereto and

incorpol.ated herein by'referenc". srbsequent to ihe i'itial.pubric offering, the underwriter reserves

the right to crrange the public offeri'g pti'""r (or yields) as ii deems necessary in connection with the

marketing of the Bonds, provided that the Unde.writer shall not change the interest rates set forlh in

Exhibit A. The Bonds rnay be offered and sold to cefiain dealers ai prices lower than such initial

offering prices.

B. The Underwriter agrees to assist the Authority in establishing the issue.price

of the Bonds and shall execute and delivZr to the Authority at closing an "issue price" or similar

certificate, together with the supporting pricing wires or equivalent communications' substantially in

the form attached hereto as Pxnibit M, with such modifications as may be appropriate or necessary'

in the reasonable judgrnent of the Underwriter, the Authority and Bond counsel, to accurately reflect,

as applicable, the salls price or prices or the initial offering price or prices to the public of the Bonds'

All actions to be taken by the Authority under this section to establish the issue price of-the lgnd:
may be taken on beharf or rn" Authority by Fierdman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc. (the "Municipal

Advisor,,) and any notice or report to be'piovided to the Authority rnay be provided to the Municipal

Advisor.

C. Except as otherwise set forth in Exhibit A, the Authority will treat the first

price at which l0% ofeach maturity of the Bonds (the "107o test") is sold to the public as the issue

price of that maturity (if different inierest rates apply within a maturity, each separate CUSIP number

within that maturity will be subject to the rox'test). At or promptly.after the execution of this

purchase Agreement, the Underwriter shall report to the Authoiity the price or prices at which it has

sold to the public 
"urt', 

*utrrity of the Bonds' If at that time the 10% test has not been satisfied as to

any maturity of the Bonds, the Urrderwriter agrees to promptly..t"poi,'o. the Ar'rthority the prices at

which it seils the unsold Bonds of that ,',uirrity to the puuri".- That reporting obligation shall

continue, whether or not the Closing Date has occurred, until the l0% test has been satisfied as to the

Bonds of that maturity or until all B"onds of that maturity have been sold to the public'

D. The Underwriter confirms that it has offered the Bonds to the public on- or

before the date of this purchase Agreement at the offering price or prices (the "initial offering

price,,), or at the corresponding yield ol yields, set.forth.i' g*niUit A' except as otherwise set fofth

therein. Exhibit A also sets forth" identified undel the column "Hold the offering Price Rule used"'

as of the date of this Purchase Agr..,",',.nt, the maturities, if any, of the Bonds for which th'e I 0% test

has not been satisfied and for rvhich the Autholity and the Underwriter agree that the restrictions set

forth in rhe next sentence shall apply, which will allow the Authority to treat the initial offering price

to the public of each such matuiity as of the sale date as the issue price of that maturity (the "hold-

4

48'1 8-9829 - 4 67 | v 3 I 024667 -{\ I 4 |

Page 311

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



the-offering-price rule"). So long as the hold-the-offering-price rule remains applicable to any

maturity of th" Bonds, tlre Underwriter will neither offer nor sell unsold Bonds of that maturity to

uny p"i.on at a price that is higher than the initial offering price to the public during the period

starting on the sale date and ending on the earlier of the following:

l. the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the sale date; ot'

2. the date on which the Underwriter has sold at least 10% of that

maturity of the Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the

public.

The Underwriter shall promptly advise the Authority when it has sold 10% of that maturity of

the Boncls to the public at a piice that is no higher than the initial offering price to the public, if that

occurs prior to the close of the nfth (5th) business day after the sale date'

E. The Underwriter confirms that any seliing group agreement and any retail

distribution agreement relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related

pricing wires, contains or williontain language obligating each dealer who is a member of the selling

grorplnd each broker-dealer that is a party to such retail distribution agreement, as applicable, to:

it; report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Bonds of each maturity allotted to it

until it is notified by the Underwriter that either the l0% test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of

that maturity or all Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public; and (2) comply with the hold-

the-offering-price rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as directed by the Underwriter'

The AuthJrity acknowledges that, in making the representation set forth in this subsection, the

Underwriter will rely on: iA) in the event that a selling group has been created in connection with the

initial sale of the Bonds to the public, the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling

group to colrply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, as set forth in a selling group

agreemerit and the related pricing wires; and (B) in the event that a retail distribution agreement was

elrployed in connection *ith the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, the agreement of each broker-

dealer that is a party to such agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable,

as set forth in the retail distribution agreement and the related pricing wires. The Authority further

acknowledges that the Underwriter shall not be liable for the failure of any dealer who is a nrembet'

of a sellinggroup, or of any broker-dealer that is a party to a retail distribr"rtion agreement, to cornply

with its conespbnding agreement regarding the hold-the-offering-price rule as applicable to the

Bonds.

F. The Underwriter acknowledges that sales of any Bonds to any person that is a

related party to the Underwriter shall not constitute sales to the public for purposes of this section'

Further, for purposes of this section:

I . "public" lleans any person Other than an underwriter Or a related

parly;

2. ,,underwriter" lreans: (A) any pelson that agrees pursuant to a

written contract with the Authority (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate)

to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public; and (B) any person that agrees pursuant to

a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (A) to participate in the

initial sale of the Bonds io the public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail

distributiol agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public);

5

4117 8 -9 829 - 4 67 t 
"- 

3 I 024 667 -(t | 4 |

Page 312

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



3.apurchaserofanyoftheBondsisa..relatedparty',toan
underwriter if the underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly' to: (A) at least

50% common ou,nership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both entities are

corporations (including iirect ownership by one corporation.of another); (ii) more than 50o/o common

ownership of their capital interests or-profit, inteiests, if both entities are partnerships (including

direct ownership by ;;; fartnership of another); or (iii) more thatr 507o common ownership of the

value of the outstanding stock of ihe corporation orl the capital interests or profit interests of the

partnership, u, uppli.uil", if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership

(including direct owiership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other); and

4. ,.sale date" means the date of execution of this Purchase Agreement

by all parties.

an The AuthoritY rePresents and

covenants to the Underwriter that:

A. The Authority is a joint exercise of powers authority, duly organized and

existing under the Constitution and laws of ihe State of California (the "State"), and formed pursuant

to Articles 1 through 4 (commencing with Section 6500) of chapter 5, Division ?, Title 1 of the

Government code 1ir," 
:,rra Act,,), with fulr right, powet and authority: (i) to enter into this

purchase Agreemeni, iiii a enter into the Trust Agreement; (iii) to adopt the Authority Resolution

authorizing the issuanci of the Bonds and entry into this Purchase Agreement and the Trust

Agreement and to take all other actions on the part of the Authority relating thereto (the "Authority

proceedings,,); (iv) to issue, sell and deliver the Bonds to the underwriter as provided herein; (v) to

purchase the Special Tax Bonds; and (vi) to carry out and consummate the transactions on ils part

iontemplated by this Purchase Agreement, the Trust Agreement and the Official Statement'

The Trust Agreement, the Bonds, the Local obligation Purchase Contract and this Purchase

Agreement are colleJtively reierred to herein as the "Authorify Documents'"

B. By all necessary official action of the Authority, the Authority has duly

authorized and approvedir,e execution and derivery by the Authority of, and the performance by the

Authority of the obligations on its part contained in, the Authority Documents, and has approved the

use by the underwritir of the preliminary official Statement and the official Statement and, as of the

date hereoi such authorizations and upprouals are, in full force and eflbct and have not been

amended, modified or rescinded. when'&ecuted and delivered by the parties thereto' the Authority

Documents wiu constitute the regally varid and binding obrigations of the Authority enforceable

upon the Authority in accordan.. *iti', their respective teims, except as enforcement may be limited

by bankruptcy, insoi.rency, reorg anizalion, moratorium or similar laws or equitable principles

relating to or affecting creditors' riglrts generally' The Authority has complied' and wiJl at the

crosing Date be in .oipliunce in arr resp"ects, with the tenns of the Authority Docurnents that are

applicable to the AuthoritY.

C. The information in the Preliminary Official Sratement and in the Official

Statement relating to the Authority and the Bonds (other than statements pefiaining to the book-entry

system, as to which no view is expressed), does noi contain any untrue statement of a material f'act or

onrit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances

under which they were made, not misleacling; and, upon delivery and up to and inciuding 25 days

afterthe End of the Underwriiing period (as defined in paragraph (D) below), the o{ficial Staternent

J

6

187 8 -9 829 - 4 67 t v3 I 024 667'0 1 4 |

Page 313

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



will be alnerrded and supplemented so as to contain no misstatement of any material fact or omission

of any statement n"".rrury to make the staternents contained tlierein, in the light of the circutnstances

in wliich such statements were made, not misleading'

D. Up ro and including 25 days after the End of the Underwriting Period (as

defined below), the Authority will advise"the Underwriter promptly of any proposal to amend or

supplement tt" Ofn"iul Staiement and will not effect or consent to any such amendment or

supplement without the consent of the Underwriter, which consent will not be unreasonably

withheld. The Authority will advise the underwriter promptly of the institutiol of any proceedings

known to it by any governmental agency prohibiting or otherwise materially affecting the use of the

official Statement in connection with the fffering, Jl" o, distribution of the Bonds' As used herein'

the term ,,End of the Underwriting Period" ,i.un, the later of such time as: (i) the Bonds 
-are

delivered to the underwriter; or (ii) the underwriter does not retain, directly or as a member of an

underwriting syndicate, un 
'unroli 

bulun". of the Bonds for sate to the public' Unless the

Underwriter gives notice to the contrary, the End of the Underwriting Period shall be deemed to be

the Closing nate. Any notice delivered pufsuant to.this provision shall be a written notice delivered

to the Authority and the city at or prior io the closing Date, and shall specify a date (other than the

Closing Date) io be deemed th" "End of the Underwriting Period."

E, As of the time of acceptance hereof and as of the closing Date, except as

otherwise disclosed in the Official Statement, the Authority is not, and as of the Closing Date' wiil

not be, in breach of or in default under any applicable consiitutional provision, law or administrative

rule or regulation of the State or the United States, or any applicable judgment or decree or any trust

agreement, lOan agreement, bond, note, resolution, Ordinance, agre€ment or other instrument tO

which the Authority is u purty o1^ is otherwise subject; and no event has occurred and is continuing

which, with the pu..ug" oitirn. or the giving of noiic", or both, would constitute a default or evsnt of

default under uny ,u"f, instrument; wnicn brreach, default or event could have an adverse effect on the

Authority,sabilitytoperformitsobligationsundertheAuthorityDocuments;and,asofsuchtimes,
except as disclosed in the Official Statement, the authorization, execution and delivery of the

Authority Documents and compliance by the Authority with the provisions of each of such

agreements or instruments does not and will not conflict with or constitute a breach of or defar-rlt

under any applicable constitutional provision, law or administrative rule orregulation of the State or

the United States, or any applicable judgment, decree, license, permit' trust agreement' loan

agreement, bond, note, ,"*lrtion, ordinance, agreement or other instrument to which the Authority

(or any of its officers in their respective 
"upu"lti", 

as such) is subject, or by which it or any of its

properties is bound; nor will any such authorization, execution, delivery or compliance result in the

creation or imposition of any lien, charge or other sec.urity interest or encumbrance of any nature

whatsoever upon any of its assets or priperties or ynd3r the tenns of any such law, regulation or

instrument, except as may be provided by the Authority Documents'

F. At the time of acceptance hereof there is, and as of the Closing Date, there

will be no action, suit, proceeding, inqui.y or ipvestigation, at law or in equity, before or by any

court, government agency, public board ortody (collectively and individually, an "Action") pending

(notice of which has"been's".ved on the authoriiy; orto thi knowledge of theAuthority threatened,

in which any such Action: (i) in any way questions the corporate existence of the Authority or the

titles of the officers of the Authority to tlieir respective offices; (ii) affects, contests or seeks to

prohibit, restrain or enjoin the issuance or detivery of any of the Bonds, or the payment or collection

of Revenues (as defined in the Trust Agreernent) or any amounts pledged orto be pledged to pay the

principal of and interest on the Bonds, or in any way contests or affects the validity of the Authority

7

48'l 8-9829 -4 67 1 v 3 / 024 667 -0 I 4 1

Page 314

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Docunrents or the cousumntation of the tlarrsactions on the part 9f Jht. 
Autlrority """::ll1l::

thereby; (iii) contest, G"*"tu.ion of t1.," int.r.rt orr tlre Bor'rds irom federal or stare inconre taxatron

or contests the powe*s of the Authority ;ili; ''''uy 
tt"lt in any nraterial adverse change relating to

the fina'cial condition of the Authority; or (ivj contests the cornpreteness or accuracy of the

preriminary officiar siat".*t or the officiar statement 01 any supprernent or amendment thereto or

asserrs that the Preliminary official l;;;"i or the,ojfrcial Statement contained any untrue

statement or u *u,.ri;i i;", or omitted to state any material fact required to be stated therein or

necessary to make ,ft. ,i*.."nts therein' m tftt tiiht of the circumstances under which they were

made, not misleading; and, as of the time'ot att"ptln"" hereof' there is' and as of the Closing Date'

there wilr be no t no-wn basis for uny *"ii*,-suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation of the nature

described in clauses (i) through (iv) of tliis sentence'

G.TheAuthoritywillfurnishsuchinformation,executesuchinstrumentsand
take such other action in cooperation with the underwriter and at the expense of the Underwriter as

the Underwriter may reasonabry ,."qu"., in ;;d";, (i) to qualifv the Bonds for offer and sare under rhe

Blue Sky or other r'"*riti". laws and r.grl^iio", of ru"i',,rtut"s and other jurisdictions of the United

states as the Underwriter may o"rrgnu't.; and (iD to determine the erigibility of the Bonds for

investment under the laws of such ,tui.r'ona oit"r jurisdictions, and wili use its best efforts to

continue such qualifications in effect r;]o";;u 'eq'itld 
rottt''" distribution of the Bonds' provided;

however, that the Authority will not be reqr-Ired.to execute.a special or general consent to service of

processorquaiifyasaforeigncorporationinconnectionwithanysuchqualificationinany

H.TheAuthorityDocumentsconformastoformandtenortothedescriptions
thereof contained in the Official Stut"mtnt' The Authority represents that'the Bonds' when issued'

executed and delivered in accordance with the Trust Agreement a'd sold to the underwriter as

provided herein, *ilil; u"iiOfy issued unJ'orironding of,ligations of 1!9 {'lhotity' entitled to the

benefits of the Trust Agreement. The Trust Agreement creates a valid pledge of the moneys ln

ce(ain funds and u""ount, established pursuantlo the Trust Agreemgn]'.uu.i""t in all cases to the

provisions of the Trusr Agreement p"r"ri;t,"g ihe application ihereof for the purposes and on the

i"r*. and conditions set forth therein'

l'TheAuthorityhasnotbeennotifiedofanylistingor.proposedlistingbythe
Internar Revenue Service to the "rr*"ir-,ut 

the Authority is a bond issuer wrrose arbitrage

certifications may not be relied upon'

j.AnycertificatesignedbyTyauthorizedofficeroftheAuthorityand
delivered to the Underwriter in connectioriwith the issuance and sare of the Bonds sliall be deemed

to be a representation uno covenant uy'ir," Authority to the Underw'iter as to the statements nrade

tirereirr.

K.TheAuthoritywillapplytheproceedsoftheBondsinaccordancewiththe
Trust Agreement.

L.BetweenthedateofthisPurchaseAgreementandtlreClosingDate,tlre
Authority win not offer or issue any 

^t"nar, 
notes or other Lbrigations for borrowed morrey 'ot

previously disclosed to the Underwriter'

jurisdiction.

8

48'7 8-9829'4 6'7 t v 3 I {\24(t6"7 -0 1 4 |

Page 315

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



M.Untilsuchtimeasmoneyslraveb^een.setasideinanamountsufficienttopay
a' then outstanding Bo'ds at maturity ". 

i" .tr. date of rede'ptiorr if redeemed prior to maturity,

plus unpaid interest tie*on 
"no 

praniu''t, if any, to rnaturiiy or to the date of r-edemption if

redeemed prior to rnaturity, the Authoritf'witi taitt"trutry perfonn and abide by all of the covenants'

,nJ".tut ings and provisions contained in the Trust Agreement'

N,ThePreliminaryofficiaistaternentwasdeemedfinalbyadulyauthorized
officer of the Authority prior to its del;;t to ttre.Underwriter' except for ihe omission of such

infomration as is permitted to be omitteJ in u..ordunce with purugrupl1 (b)(l) of the Rule' The

Authority hereby covenants and agrees tf,ut, *i'r'i" seven (?) business iays from the date hereof' or

uponreasonablewrittennoticefro,ottttUnderwriterwithinsufficienttimetoaccompanyany
confirmation requesting payment t o. uni ***"tt.of the Underwriter' the Authority shall cause a

finar printed form of th'ooffrcial Statementto be derivered to the underwriter in sufficientquantity

to comply with paragraph (b)(a) of the nuie unO Rules G-l2' G-l 5' G-32 and G-36 of the Municipal

Securities Rulemaking Board'

TheAuthorityherebyapprovesthepreparationanddistributionoftheoffrcialstatement,
consisting of the p..ii*i*ry oificial stat.,n.nt *iti'r such changes as are noted thereon and as may

be made thereto, with the approval of got; Counsel' Disclosure Counsel and the Underwriter' from

time to time prior to the Closing Date'

TheAuthorityherebyratifiesanyprior.useofandauthorizesthefutureusebythe
underwriter, in connection with tt," ofi#ni una ,ut" or in" Bonds, of the Preliminary official

Statement, the Official Statement, this Purchaie Agreement and all infoirnation contained herein' and

all other documents, certificates uno *rittrn-rtur"r"an,, furnished by the Authority to the underwriter

in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Purchase Agreement'

TheexecutionanddeliveryofthisPurclraseAgreementbytheAutlrorityshallconstitutea
representati6n to,rr. unJ".*ritert-hatthe rep.esentationi contained in this Section 3 are true as of the

date hereof

4.
The obligation of the Underwriter

to accept deliverY ofand pay for the Bonds on the Closi ng Date shall be subj ect, atthe oPtion ofthe

Underwriter, to the accuracy in all rlaterial respects of the rePresentatton s on the Part of the

Authority contained herein and of the CommunitY Facilities District in the District Letter of

Representations, to the accuracy in all material resPects of the statements of the officers and other

officials of the AuthoritY made in any certificates or otlrer documents furnish ed pursuant to the

provisi ons hereof, to the Performance bY the AuthoritY of its obligations to be performed hereunder

at or Prt or to the Closing Date and, to the following additional conditions :

A.AttheClosingDate,theAutlrority.Resolution,theComnunityFacilities
District Resorution, the Authority Documenis und this pu.chase Agreement, the District Indenture'

the Local Obligation purchase conrract, ,n, ip..irr rax Bonds, the bistrict Letter.of Representations

and the continuing Discrosure certificate ,t,ltt u" in fu' force and effect, and shall not have been

amended, modified or supplemented, ."..p, as may have been agreed to in writing by the

Underwriter, and there shall have been tJ"" ln 
"onn"r,ion 

therewith, w]th the issuance of the Bonds

and with ttre speciai iu* gondr, und *ith the transactions contemplated thereby, a'd by this

Purchase Agreetnent, all such actions u', in'n" opilion of.Bond Counsel' shall be necessary and

appropriate. The r*ri agr.el"nent, ttre District Indenture, the Locat obligation Purchase contract'

9

487 8 -9 829 - 4 6'l I t' 3 I Q2 4 661 -0 | 4 |

Page 316

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



the Special Tax Bonds, the Distr-ict Letter of Representations and the continuing Disclosule

Certidcate are herein referred to collectively as the "District Documents."

B. At the Closing Date, except as was described in the Preliminary Official

Statement, the Author.ity shall not be,ln any respect rnaterial to the transactions refeffed to herein or

contemplated hereby, in breach of or in default under, any law or administrative rule or regulation of

the State of California, the United States of America, or of any department, division, agency or

instrumentality of either thereof, or under any applicable court or administrative decree or order, or

under any loan agreement, note, resolution, indenture, contract, agreement or other instrument to

which the Authoriiy is a party or is otherwise subject or bound, and the performance by the Authority

of its obligations unde, t[e Authority Docunrents, the Authority Resolution and any other

instruments contemplated by any of ,u"h dotu-ents, and compliance with the provisions of each

thereof, will not conflict with or constitute a breach of or default under any applicable law or

administrative rule or regulation of the State of California, the United States of America, or of any

department, division, ugln.y or instrumentality of either thereof, or under any applicable couft or

administrative decree o-, ordar, or under any loan agreenrent, note, resolution, indenture, contract,

agreement or other instrument to which the Authority is a party or is otherwise subject or bound,.in

any manner that would materially and adversely affect the performance by the Authority of its

obiigations under the Autholity Docurnents or the Authority Resolution'

C. At the Closing Date, except as described in the Official Statement, the

Community Facilities District shall not be, in any respect material to the transactions referred to in

the District Letter of Representations or contemplated therein, in breach of or in default under, any

law or administrative rule or regulation of the State of California, the United States of America, or of

any department, division , ug"nJy or instrumentality of either thereof, or under any applicable court or

administrative decree oa oid"r,-or under any loan agreement, note, resolution, indenture, contract,

agreement or other instrument to which the community Facilities District is a party or is otherwise

subject or bound, and the performance by the community Facilities District of its obligations under

the Community Facilities District Resoiution, the District Documents, and any other instruments

contemplated by any of such documents, and compliance with the provisions of each thereof, orthe

perfor*unc" oi tn. conditions precedent to be perfonned hereunder, will not conflict with or

constitute a breach of or default under any applicable law or administrative rule or regulation of the

State of California, the Urrited States of America, or of any department, division, agency or

instrumentality of elth.r thereof, or under any applicable court or administrative decree or order, or

under any loan agreement, note, resolution, indenture, contract, agreement or other instrument to

which the Community Facillties District is a party or is otherwise subject or bound, in any manner

that would materially and adversely affect the peiformance by the community.Facilities District of

its obligations undeithe Communiiy Facilitier birtri.t Resolution and the District Documents or the

pe.fornlance of the conditions precedent to be performed by the community Facilities District under

ih" Co*-unity Facilities District Resolution and tlre District Documents.

D. The infornration contained in the Official Statement is, as of the Closing Date

and as of the date of any supplement or amendnrent tliereto pursuant hereto, true and correct in all

rnaterial respects and does not, as of the Closing Date or as of the date of any supplement or

amendment thereto, contain any untrue slatement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact

required to be stated therein or tiecessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the

circumstances under which they were Inade, not misleading'

481 8-9 829 -467 I't 3 / A24 667 -0 I 4 |

l0 Page 317

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



E.BetweenthedatehereofandtheClosingDate,-themarketpriceor
nrarketability, at tlre initial offering prices set forth on the tou"'pugt-of the official Statement' of the

Bonds shall not have been r'aterially adve.sely affected, iri the judgment of the Underwriter

(evidenced by a written notice to the Authority terminating the obligation of the underwriter to

accept deliveiy of u,ra puy fo. the Bonds), by reason of any of the followir-rg:

l. Legislation introduced in or enacted (or resolution passed) by^ the

Congress of the United States of lqmerica or recommended to the Congress by the President of the

United States, the Department of tn" rieazury, the Internal Revenue Service' or any member of

Congress, or favorably reporled for passage to-either Hou.s9 of Congress by any committee of such

House to which ,u.r-,l.giiution had L".n i.f"rr"d for consideration, or a decision rendered by a coutt

established under Article III of the conrtiiuiion of the United states of America or by the Tax court

of the United States of America, of an orJ"r, ruling, regulation (final' temporary or proposed)' press

rerease or other form of notice issued *,n"a. uio. In behalf of the Treasury Department of the

United states of America or the Internal Revenue Service, with the purpose or effect' directly or

indirectly, of imposing federal income iaxation upon such interest as would be received by any

owners of the Bonds beyond the extent to which such interest is subiect to taxation as of the date

2. Legislation introduced in or enacted (or resolution passed) by the

Congress or an order, decr"e or inJunction issued by any court of competent jurisdiction' or an order'

rulilg, regulation (final, temporary or proposed;, piess ielease or othei form of notice issued or nrade

by or on behalf of the securities uno r*tttunge co*toitsion, or any other governmental agency

having jurisdiction of the subject matter,-t; ;he 
"effect 

that obligations of the general character of the

Bonds or the Special Tax Bonds, including uny ot all underlying uttung"tents' are not exempt froln

registration under or other requirements oFtne Securities Act of 1933, as amended' or that the Trust

Agreement or the District Indenture ur" ,r-J "*.-pt 
from qualification under or other requirements of

the Trust Agreement Act of 1g3g, as u*"na"a, oi that the issuance, offering or sare of obrigations of

the general character of the Bonds ot ift" Special,Tax 
^Bonds, 

including any or ali underlying

arrangements, as contemplated hereby o. by the offrcial Statement or otherwise is or would be in

violationofthefederalsecuritieslawsasamendedandthenineffect;

3.AgeneralsuspensionoftradinginsecuritiesontheNewYorkStock
Exchange, or a general banking moratorium declared by Feleral' State of New York or State of

California olficials authorized to do so;

4,Theintroduction,proposalorenactmentofanyamendmenttothe
Federal or california constitution o, unyuction'by any.Federal or california court' legislative body'

regulatory body or other authority mutiriuiiy uOu"tt*ly affecting the tax status of t6e Bonds' the

Authority or the Co*,'tunity Facilities District, their property' income.' securities (or inte'est

thereon), the varidity or enforceability of the Speciar r1x, or the ability of the Autlrority to purchase

unySp..iutTaxBondsascontemplatedbytheOfficialStatement;

5'Anyeventoccurring,orinfonnationbecomingknownwhich,inthe
judgme't of the Underwriter, ,ouk., un,ru" in atiy material respect any statement or inforrnation

contained in the pr.erirninary officiar stui.*"nt or in the officiar 3tatement, or has the effect that the

preliminary Officiat Stater;ent or the Official Statement contains any untrue statement of a material

fact or omits to state a rnaterial fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statetlents

tlrerein, in tlre ligfit of the circurnstances under which they were made' not rnisleading;

hereof;

4878-91i29-467 1 v 3 1024 66'7'(\1 4 |

1lPage 318

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



6. Any national securities exclrange, the comptroller of the currency, or

any other governmental authority, ,hull itpos. as to the Rondi, the Special Tax Bonds or obligations

of the general character of the Iionds or the Special Tax Bonds, any material restrictions not now in

force, or increase rnaterially those now in force, with respect to the extension of credit by' or the

charge to the net capital requirements of, the Underwriter;

7. There shall have occurred any material outbreak or escalation of

hostilities or other 
"ulurity 

or crisis the effect of which on the financial markets of the united states

is such as to make i,'i*pi".il"able, in the judgment of the Underwriter, following consultation with

the AuthoritY, to sell the Bonds;

8. The filing or threat of an Action described section 3'F hereof or

Section M of the District Letter of Representations; or

g.Anyproceedingshallhavebeencomnrencedorbethreatenedin
writilg by the Securities and Exchange Commission against the City or the Authority'

F. At or prior to the Closing Date, the Underwriter shall have received a

counterpart original or lertified copy of the follow-ing documents, in each case satisfactory in form

and substance to the Underwriter:

l. The Official Statement, executed on behalf of the Authority by its

Treasurer or other authorized officer;

2. The Authority Documents, duly executed and delivered by all parties

thereto;

3. The Authority Resolution, together with a certificate of the Secretary

of the Authority, dated as of the closing Date, to the effectthat such resolution is a true, correct and

complete "opytttn" 
resolution duly ad6pted by the Governing Board of the Authority;

4. The community Facilities District Resolution, together with. a

certificate dated as of the Closing Date of tfie City Clerk, acting on behalf of the Community

Facilities District to the effect that the community Fatilities District Resoh-rtion is a true, correct and

complete copy of the one duly adopted by the bity Corn"il, acting as the legislative body of the

Community Facilities District;

5. The District Documents duly executed and delivered by all parties

thereto;

6. An unqualified approving opinion for the Bonds, dated the closing

Date and addressed to the Authority, of Bond couniel, in substantiaily the form included as

Appendix E to the Official Statement, together with a letter addressed to the Trustee to the effect that

such opinion may be relied upon by the-Trustee to the same extent as if such opinion was addressed

to the Trustee;

T.Asupplementalopinionoropinions'datedtheClosingDateand
addressed to tlre Underwriter, of Bond Counsel, in substantially the form attached hereto as

Exhibit K;

48"1 8 -9829 -461 1 v3 I 024667 -0 I 4 |

12 Page 319

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



S.Acertificate,datedtheClosirrgDateandsignedbytheTreasurer.of
trre A*thority or other authorized officer, to the effect that: [) the representations of trre Authority

contained herein are true and correct in ail mate'iar respects on and ai of the closing Date with the

same effect as if made on the Closing Uut.; iii) to the Lest knowledge of such officer' no event has

occurred since the date of the officiai statement which shourd be disclosed in the official Statement

for the purpose for which it is to be used or which it is necessaly to.disclose 
]hereln 

in orderto make

the statements and information therein not misleading in any material respect; and (iii) the Authority

has compried with ail the agreements a'd satisfied ail the conditions on its part to be performed or

satisfied under the Authority Docurnents and the Authority Resorution at or prior to the closing Date;

g,AcertiflcatedatedtheClosingDateandsignedbyanauthorized
representative of the commu'ity Facirities District or an authorized designee, on behalf of the

community Facirities District to the effect that: (i) the representations made by the community

Facilities District contained in the District Letter of Representations are true and correct in a]l

material respects on and as of the Closing Date with^t* :tT" effect as if made on the Closing Date'

provided that any ,"f.r"n"., as to the ni.ii*inury official Statement shall be deemed to be to the

officiar statement; iiil a in" best knowreate or such officer, no event has occurred since the date of

the official statement which should u" Ji.Jtor"d in the offrcial statement for the purpose for which

it is to be used or which it is necess"il; dir.lor. therein in order to make the statements and

information therein not misleading in any material respect; and (iii) the community Facilities District

has complied with all the agreements and satisfied ali the conditions on its part to be satisfied under

the Distiict Documents prior to the Closing Date;

l0.AnopinionoftheCityAttorneyoftheCity,ascounseltothe
Authority, dated the dale of closing and addressed to the underwriter, the Authority' the comrnunity

Facilities District, the Trustee and the District Trustee, to the effect that:

(i) 'the Authority is a public body' corporate and politic' duly

organized and validry existirrg asaloint fowers authtrity under the raws of the state of california;

(ii)TheAuthorityhasfulllegalpowerandlawfulauthorityto
enter into the Authority Documents a'ld to carry out the transactions contemplated under the

AuthoritY Documents;

(iii)TheAuthorityResolutionwasdulyadoptedataregula'r
meeting of the governing body of the Authority, wnith was called and held pursuant to law and with

allpublicnoticerequiredbylarlandatwhichaquorumwaspresentandactingthroughout'andthe
Authority Resolution is in full force and effect and has not been modified, amended' rescinded or

repealed since the date of its adoption;

(iv)TheAuthorityDocumentshavebeendulyauthorized,
executed and delivered by the Ruinority'and constitu;.the legal, valid and binding obligations of the

Authority "nfor..Jt".uguinrt 
the Authority in accorgul:t with their terms' subiect to bankruptcy'

insolvency, reorganization, moratoriu* and other similar laws affecting creditors' rights' to the

application of equitable principles wy,".. equitable renredies are sought and to the exercise ofjudicial

discretion in aPProPriate cases;

(v)Totlrebestknowleclgeofsuchco.unsel,theexecutionand
delivery of the Authority Documents and the offlcial Statement and cornpliance with the provisions

48'l 8-9829'467 I't3 I 024667 -0 I 4 1

13Page 320

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



thereof under the circumstances conternplated trrereby: (a) do not in any rnateriar respect conf'lict

with or constitute on the part of the nutilo.ity u Ut"u"f-,.Jf gt default under any agreement or other

instrument to which the Authority is a p;;;;;. by which it is bound; and (b) do not and will not iri

any *aterial respect or constitutgon the p"it 
"f 

ihe Authority a violation' breach of or default under

anycourtorderorconsentdecreetowhichtheAuthorityissubject;

(vi)TheAuthorityDocumentsandtheoff-icialstatementhave
been duly authorized by the Governing Board of it're Authority and executed on its behalf by an

authorized officer of the Authority;

(vii)ExceptasmaybestatedintheofficialStatement'thereisno
action, suit, proceedilg or investigation before or by any court' public.board or body pending (notice

of which has been ,.ri"J on rhe,{utrroriivj or, to tie city ettorney's knowledge, threatened wherein

an unfavorable decision, ruling or finoirii would: (u) {f* the creation ' organizarion' existence or

powers of the Arth;;t;;rit,.iitt".of it-s"membe.r'und officers to their respective offices; (b) enjoin

or restrain the issuance, sale and deliver' "f 
ift" Bonds, the collection of the Revenues or the pledge

thereof; (c) in any way question or uriri "nv 
of the rights, powers, d,ties or obligatio's of the

Authority with respectio it'," Revenues * ,t 
" 

*onty' anJassets pledged or to be pledged to pay the

principal ol pl.*-i,*' if any, or int"rest on the Bonds; (d) in any way que.stion or affect any

aurhority for the irruun." of ii,e Bonds, or the varidity or enforceability of the Bonds; or (e) in any

way question o. affect the Authority Docurnents or the transactions contemprated by the Authority

Documents, the official staternent, or any activify regarding the Bonds;

1 1 . An opinion of the City Attorney of the 
.9.i1v' t1*d the date of Closing

and addressed to the Underwriter, the Authority, the Community Facilities District, the Trustee and

the District Trustee to the effect that:

(i)TheCommunityFacilitiesDistrictisacomtnunityfacilities
districtorganizedandexistingpursuanttotheMeilo-RoosComnrurrityFaci]itiesActofl9S2,as
amended, being chapter 2.5,Part 1, Division2, Title 5 of the Government code of the State of

California;

(ii) The cornmunity Facilities District Resolution has been dr"rly

adopted at a rneeting of the c11v !.ounciil.;"g 
as th;_legislative body of the community Facilities

Districr, which wasiafied and held prrrr""iioiaw and w]tn ail pubricnorice.required by law and at

which a quorum was present and acting throughout, and the conmunity Facirities District Resorution

is in fuil force and efiect and has not uJen *#ified, amended, rescinded or repeared since the date of

its adoption;

(iii)TheDistrictDocumentsandtheofflcialstatenrenlhavebeen
duly and lawfully authorized, executed and delivered by the Community Facilities District ald the

District Documenrs constitute ttr. tegJ, nalid and binding obligations of the.community Facilities

District enforceable against the cornmu;itt Facilities Distiict in accordance with their terms' subject

to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement' fraudulent conveyance' moratorium and

other simirar raws relating to or affecting 
"reditorl' 

rights, to the apprication of equitable principles

where equitable r-emedieire sought, to in" exercise oi;uoi.iul discietion in appropriate cases and to

the rimitations on regar remedies uguinrt 
"o,n,r,unity 

facilities districts in the State of califorrria;

48'7 8-9829 -46'1 | t3 I o24667'0 1 4 I

l4Page 321

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



(iv)TheCommurrityFacilitiesDistricthastherightandpower
under the cornmunity Faciriti., prrt.ict Act to execute trie District rndenture a'd no other

authorization for the executior.r thereof is requir-ed, and the District rndenture is in full force and

eff'ect;

(v) The Special Tax Bonds are valid and binding special tax

obrigations of the community lacirities'niriri"t payabre fiom proceeds of the Special rax and the

other funds provideJ in the Dirtrirt Indenture foi such puyt"nt and are enforceable in accordance

with their terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization' arrangement' fraudulent

conveyance, moratorium und other similu. tu*. relat'ing to or affecting creditors' rights' to the

application of equitable principles_ ttt"r" "quitable 
remeJies are sought, to the exercise of judicial

discretion in appropriate cases and to the limitations on regar remedies against community facilities

districts in the state of california, and the terms of the community Facirities District Act and of the

District Indenture;

(vi)TheDistrictlndentureandtheSpecialTaxBondshavebeen
duly and validly authorized, ,old, 

"*."uted, 
authenticated and delivered in accordance with the

Con,'*unity Facllities District Act and with the District Indentlrre;

(vii) Except as may be stated in the official Statement, there is no

action, suit, proceeding or investigation before or by any court' public board or body pending (notice

of which has been served on the City or the Community ru"itlties District) or, to such counsel's

knowledge, threatened wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would: (a) affect the

creation, organization, existenc. o, po*"rs of the City or the Community Facilities District' or the

titles of its members and officers to their-respective offices; or (b) affect the validity of the District

Documents or restrain or enjoin the repayment of the special rax Bonds or in any way contest or

affect the validity of the District Documents or contesf the authority of the community Facilities

District to enter i*" 
". 

p.nrm its oUligutiont underany.of the District Documents or under which a

determination adverse to the city or the'com*unity Fa;ilities District wourd have a material adverse

affect upon the financiar condition or the ,."u"nu", of the city o. the conrmrnity Facilities District,

questions the right of the community Facilities District to use the Special Tax levied within the

Improvement Area for the repayment ofltn" special Tax Bonds or affects in any fnanner the right or

ability of the cornmunity pu"ii;ties Disrrict t'o coilect or predge the Speciar rax levied within the

Improv",nent Area for the repayment of the Special Tax Bonds;

12. A transcript of all proceedings relating to the authorizatiot'I, issuance'

sare and delivery of the Bonds and the-'speciar rax Bonds, including copies of the signed rrust

Agreement and the District rndenture and certified copies of an resorutions of the city and the

Authority relating thereto ;

13. A certificate dated the closing Date from NBs addressed to the

Authority, the community Faciliti"s Dirt.i.t arrd the underwrriter to the effect that: (i) the special

Tax (after puyr* of pi.iority Administrative Expenses) if cotected in the maximum amounts

permitted pursuant to the Rate and Method of Apportionment of special Taxes would generate at

least ll0% of the annual debt service payable wiih respect to the Special Tax Bonds in each year'

based on such assumptions and qualifications as shall be acceptable to the Underwriter; and (ii) the

statements in the prelirninary official Statement and the offi"iut Statetnent provided uv \Bl
concerningthe Special tax and the Rate and Method of Appoltionment of the Special Taxes and all

information supplied by it for ,r" in the Prelirninu,y Cif;"ial Stater'etrt, as of the date of the

48'7 8-9829 -4 6'l t v3 I 0246ffi -A I 4 |

15Page 322

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



prelinrinary official statement, and iri the officiar Statement, as of the date of the offrcial Statement

and as of the closi'g Date, did not and do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omtt

to state a material fu"t ne"essury in order.to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances

under which they were made' not misleading;;

l4.CertifiedcopiesofthegeneralresolutionoftheTrusteeandDistrict
Trustee authorizing th" .*""ution 

^"d 
dt;;:;""i "in"i""11utnents 

by certain officers of the Trustee

and District Trustee, which resorr-rtion authoiizes the executi"" J,rrr Trust Agreement, the District

Indenture and the 
""ft""ti""'ion 

of the gonat and the Special Tax Bonds;

15.AcertificateoftheTrustee'addressedtotheUnderwriter'the
Authority and the comiiunity raciritieJlstri"t dat"o,rr" crorlng Date,.to the effect that: (i)the

Trustee is authorized to carry out corporate trust powers, uno rt"uo. full power and authority to

nerform their respective duties under the Trust Agreement and the District Indenture; (ii) the Trustee

is duly authorized ;; ;;;" and deliver trre Trust Agreement and the Disrrict Indenture, to accept

the obligations created by the trus e$e;""i.""0 Tt," piriti"t Indenture and to authenticate the

Bonds and the special rax Bonds purluant to trre terms of the Trust Agreement and the District

Indenture, respectively; (iii) no r",ri.rr, ,Opr*"i "rtfror'utln'ot 
oi,,t utiion bv anv sovernmental

or regulatory uutr.,ority'b#ng jurisdiction'over the Trustee tir'at-t""r* been ob'tainliit ot will be

required for the "J;J;#;?;i;; 
ri"ra, ", 

th" sp""iul iu* nonar or the consummation bv the

Trustee of the other transactions .ont"nffiJ ro g1, p"rro*"J ty the Trustee in connection with the

authentication of the Bonds and the sd;;i Tax Bonds unJ,tr"',u..eptance and nerformance of the

obligations created by the. Tru.st ng"t'''*t una 
'r''" 

piu'li'i"J"niu"; and (ivi to the best of its

knowledge, compliante with tt'," t"'t' of the Trust eg"t'*ni ""J 
tftt District Indenture will not

conflict with, or resurr in a violatio, ";;;;h 
or o. ,o-nrtilut. u default under, any loan agreement,

trust agreem"nt, uond, not., ,""olution or any other agreement or instrument to which the Trustee ls a

party or by which it is bound, o,. uny"lu*-t, uny rile, regulation' order or decree of any court or

governmental ageniy"";-;;& having-jurisdiction ou.. th" Trustee or any of its activities or

properties; 
16. An opinion of counsel to the Trustee, dated the closing Date'

addressed to the Underwriter, tt," Rut',oiiiy anO,tt'," C"***itt Facilities District to the effect that

the Trusree is a national banking association dury organir.J"tio "triJly 
existing under the laws of

the U'ited Stares having full powei;;;-;-;;; quu'tie"J to enter inio' acceot and agree to the

provisions of the Trust Agreement unolr.,. pisi'i.i lno"nti,r", *a ,nu, each of'such documents has

been duly authorized, executed "rd;;il;;ed 
by the T;ste; und' u's"ing due execution and

delivery by rhe other parries thereto, cJn-sii,rr", the regal, nuiia una binding obrigation of the Trustee

enforceable in accoidance with its-;;rms' subjeci to bankruptcy' insolvency' reorganlzatlon'

moratorium and other laws affecti"g,;;';;f".".*"n, of creditors' iightr in general and except as

such enforceabirity may be rimited by;; uifri.urron orrqrirJr" prinJiples if equitable remedies are

sought;

tT. A certificate of the Authority dated the Closing Date' in a form

acceptable ro Bond co.-rr.,ser and the una".r*rit"r, that the BJnJs are not arbitrage bonds within the

meaning of Section r+g 
"i,1 

. Internal Riu.nu. code of 1986, as amended;

18. An opinion of Stradling Ygcca Carlson & Rauth' counsel to the

underwriter (,,underwriter,s Coun.er,'i'i",.a tir" JrtJor cioring and addressed to the Underwriter

in form and sttbstance acceptable to the Underwriter;

487 8-9829 -467 I v3 /024667-0 I 4 1

l6Page 323

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



l g. A closing certificate of Tri Pointe dated the closing Date,

sr-rbstantially in the form attached as Exhibit F hereto;

20. A continr-ring disclosure certificate of Tri Pointe in the fonn attached

as Appendix D to the official statement lthe "Tri Pointe continuing Disclosure certificate").

21. An opinion of counsel to Tri Pointe, dated the closing Date and

addressed to the Althority and the underwriter, substantially in the form attached as Exhibit I hereto;

22. A closing certificate of Lennar dated the Closing Date, substantially

in the form attached as Exhibit G hereto;

23. A continuing disclosure certificate of Lennar in the fonn attached as

Appendix D to the official Statement (the'l,ennar continuing Disclosure certificate")'

24. An opinion of counsel to Lennar, dated the closing Date and

addressed to the Authority and the underwriter, substantially in the form attached as Exhibit J hereto;

25. A closing certificate of AG Essential dated the Closing Date,

substantially in the form attached as Exhibit H hereto;

26. A closing certificate of Arcadian dated the Closing I)ate, substantially

in the form attached hereto as Exhibit O;

27. A certificate of the Appraiser, substantially in the form attached

hereto as Exhibit L; and

28. Such additional legal opinions, certificates, instruments and other

documents as the underwriter may reasonably request to evidence the truth and accuracy, as of the

date hereof and as of the closing Date, of the rnaterial representations of the Authority contained

herein, and of the statements and information contained in the Official Staternent and the due

performance or satisfaction by the Authority and the community Facilities District at or prior to the

closirrg of all agreements then to be peiformed. and all conditions then to be satisfied by the

cornmunity Facilities District and the Authority in connection with the transactions contemplated

hereby uni by the District Indenture, the Trust Agreement, and the Official Statement'

If the Authoriry shall be unable to sarisfy the conditions to the obligations of the Underwriter

to purchase, accept deiivery of and pay forthe Ilonds contained in this Purchase Agreement, or if the

obligations of the Underwriter to purchase, accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds shall be

terminated for any reason perrnittei by this Purcirase Agreenrent, this Purchase Agreement shall

tenninate and neither. the Authority nor the Underwrite; shall be under any furlher obligation

hereunder, except that the respective obligations of the underwriter and the Authority set forth in

Section 6 hereof shall continue in full force and effect'

ditions to obl Auth5

A. The obligations of the Authority shall be subject to the satisfaction of the

conditions contained i1 Section 4 of this Purchase Agreement'

487 B-9 829 -4 67 t v 3 / 024 667 -0 I 4 |

17 Page 324

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



B. If the Authority shall be unable ro satisfy the conditions to the obligations of

the Authority to purchase, accept deliverf of and qly ?t the Special Tax Bonds contained in the

Local obligation purchase contract, or if the obligations of the Authority to purchase, accept

delivery of and pay for the Special Tax Bonds shall be terminated for any reason pemritted by this

purchase Agreement, this purchase Agreement shalr terminate and neither the Authority nor the

comrnunity Facirities District shail be under any further obrigation hereunder, except that the

obligations of the Authority set forth in Section 6 hereof shail continue in fuil force and eft-ect.

6. Expgnses. Whether or not the transactions contemplated by this Purchase Agreement

are consummated, theTnderwriter shall be under no obligation to pay, and the. Authority shall pay

onry from the proceeds of the Bonds, or cause the community Facilities District to pay out of the

proceeds of the Special Tax Bonds o. uny other legally available funds of the city' the cornmunity

Facilities District or the Authority, but onry as th; Authority and such other party providing such

services may agfee, all expenses and 
"osi. 

of the Authority incident to the perfonnance of its

obligations in connection with the authorization, execution, sale and delivery of the Bonds to the

Underwriter, in"troinf-*i,t o* limitation, printing "9rf,.initial 
fees of the Trustee' including fees

and disbursements of their counsel, if any, fees 
-and 

disbursements of Bond co,nsel' Disclosure

Counsel and other p-i.rrionul advisors employed by.the Authority, costs of preparation, printing'

signing, transportation, delivery and safekeeping of-the-Bonds and for expenses (included in the

expense .o*pon"n,- of the spread) incurred b"y the Underwriter on behalf of the Authority's

employees which are incidentai to implementing ihi. Pur"hase Agreement, including' but not limited

to, meals, transportation, lodging, and entertainirent of those employees' The Underwriter shall pay

all out-of-po.t.t "*frnr* 
oi tn'" Underwriter, including, without limitation, advertising expenses'

the California Debt and Investment Advisory Cornmisiion fee, CUSIP Services Bureau charges'

regulatory fees imposed on new securities issuers and any and all other expenses incurred by the

underwriter in connection with the public offering and distiibution of the Bonds, including fees of its

counsel.

7. Notices. Any notice of other communication to be given to the City or the Authority

under this purchar"]gr".-ent may b" giu"n by delivering the same. in writirrg to the City.of

Folsom, 50 Natoma Stieet, Folsom, CA, i5630, Attention: linun"t Director; any notice or other

communication to f" giv"n to the Underwriter under this purchase Agreement nray be given by

delivering the same in ivriting to Piper Sandler & Co, 3626 Fair Oaks Blvd', Suite 100' Sacramento'

California 95864,Attention: Dennis McGuire'

g. parties In Interest. This Purchase Agreement is rnade solely for the benefit of the

Authority and Underwriter (including any successors or assignees of the Underwriter) and no other

personshallacquireorlraveanyrighthereunderorbyviftuehereof.

9. Survival of' Represerrtatir;ns. Th: representations of the Authority under this

Pur.chaseag.eemffihavebeendischarged,satisfiedorotherwiserendered
void by reason of the closing and regardless of any investigutiont made by or on behalf of the

underwriter (or statements aslo the resirlts of such investigations) concerning such representations

and statements of the Authority and regardless of delivery of and payment for the Bonds'

10. Execution in Counterpqtls. This Purchase Agreement nray be executed by the parties

hereto in separate counterparts, each o|itni.n when so executed and delivered shall be an original'

but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument'

487 8-9829' 4 67 1 v3 I 024 667'A | 4 I

t8 Page 325

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



I l. Effective' This Purchase Agre-ement shall become effective and binding upon the

respective parties he6 upon the execution-of the accepaun.r i.r.or by the Authority and shalr be

;dlfi;;iorc.ubt" as of the time of such acceptance'

T2.NoFriorAgreenrgnts''ThisPurchaseAgreementsupersedesandreplacesallprior
neeotiationr, "gr...66?nd 

understan;il; ;;;;-ir'" iunitt ;;t"to in relation to the sale of the

nJnas bY the AuthoritY'

13'GoverninqLaw.ThisPurchaseAgreementshallbegovernedbythelawsoftheState
of California.

481 8-g82g -461 | v3 I 02466'1 -o t 4 I

t9Page 326

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



14. Effective Date' This Purchase Agreement shall become effective and binding upon

the respectin" p.rti"i-ilffiipon the execution of tt,, u"".p,*"" hereof by the Authority and shall

il. *f ii and enforceable as of the time of such acceptance'

VerY trulY Yours'

PIPER SANDLER & CO,

By:
Its: Authorized Officer

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING
AUTHORITY

By:
Its: Treasurer

481 8-9 829 -4 61 | I fi24667'0 I 4 I

s-1Page 327

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



EXHIBIT A

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

CITY oF FoLSoM AbMMNNITYT.ACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

ool,soM naNcnl IMPROVEMENT AREA No' 2

sPidiel' r'lx nBvENUE BoNDs
SERIES 2024

schedule of Bond Maturities, principal Amounts,lnterest Rates, Yields and rnitial offering

Prices

Maturi$
Dde

(Septenfier l)
PrirtciPnl
Amount

Initial
Offerirtg

Price

10% Test

Used

Hold the
Pfice

Offering Rule
Used

Inlerest Rsle Yield

Term Bonds
c Priced to the SePtember l' 20_ oPtional redemPtion date, al 

-'
cc Priced to the SePtember i 

'
20- oPtion al redemPtion date, at 

-oplionnlRedemption..TheBondsaresubjecttooptionalredemptionbytheAuthorityprtor
to their respective maturity dates as a.whole or in part on-uny'du," on olafter september 1' 2a-'

from any source "f "".ii"'Uf" 
funds "th"; 

tht; Mini*ut Sinllng Fund Payments and Special Tax

prepayments, ar the ;;il;;;; ,.or*ption ;;i;;r i;.;.put.o up{he principal amount of the Bonds

or portions thereof ""]iio 
r".-r"d".piionj tig.tt,., *iti., a""ru"d interest thereon to the date fixed for

redemption:

103%ifredeemedonanydateonoraftelSeptemberT,20-throughAugust3T,2a-;

102%ifredeemedonanydatefromseptember:-,za-tlrroughAugust3l'20-;

|01%ifrecleemedonanydatefl.omsepternberl,z}-throughAugust3l,20-;and

100% if redeemed on Septemb er 7 'ZA--and 
any date thereafter'

ExtraordinaryRedemptionfromPrepuymen.to.fSpecialTaxes'TlreBondsaresubjectto
extraordina.y ,"demption by the Authorirv pi", to theii r*o..ii"r nraturity dates' as a whole or in

paft on any Inrerest payment Dare on ;; ;il': [March l, 20;;i' t;lely from ftrnds derived frorn the

extraordinary redemption of l-o"ut oUil;;;o* fiom Speciui Tu* Prepayments' at the following

48'7 8 -g82g - 46"1 1 I ft24 667'0 1 4 |

A-1Page 328

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



redenrption prices (computed upon. the principal amount of the Bonds or portions thereof called for'

redemption) together *iih accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

n3%ifredeemedonanlnterestPayrnentDateonorafterSeptemberl,2024througlrMarch
1,20-;

102%if redeerned on an Interest Payment Date on September 7,20-and March 7'20-;

l|l%if redeemed on an Interest Payrnent Date on September I'20-and March l'20-;
and

100%if redeerned on Septemb er 1,20_and any Interest Payment Date thereafter'

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption of Bonds' The Bonds maturing on September 1'

Z0_ aresubject,o,nunJuiory redemption in puriUy lot on September I of each year commencing

september 1,20- , at u ,.dooption price equal to- one hundied percent (100%) of the principal

amount thereof called for redemption together with accrued interist thereon to the date fixed for

redemption:

t Maturity.

The Bonds maturing on Septernber 1,2}-are subject to mandatory redemption in part on

September t of .ur6'-y.ur""o,r,*en"ing September 1,-20--.. , at a redemption price equal to one

hundred percent (r 00%) of the principar u*olnt thereof .uil.a for redemption together with accrued

interest tirereon to the date fixed for redemption:

Minimum Sinking Fund
PaYment Date
(sePtember 1)

Minimum Sinking Fund
Payment Dute
(SePtember 1)

Bonds
Minimum Sinking Fund PuYment

Bonds
Minimum Sinking Fund PaYment

T Maturity.

Tlre Bonds rnaturing on septernber 1,20-are subject to mandatory redemption in part on

September I of each y.ur""onrnlencing September 1,20 , at a redemption price equal to one

4 8'l 8-9829 -467 | fi I A2466'7 -0 I 4 1

A-2Page 329

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



hundr.ed percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof called for redemption together with accrued

interest thereon to the date fixed for redernption:

Minimumsinking Fund
PaYment Date
(September 1)

Bonds
Minimum Sinking Fund PaYment

t Maturity.

If the Bonds subject to mandatory redemption are redeemed in part prior to their stated

maturity date other than from Minimum Sinking Fund Paymentso the, Minirnum Sinking Fund

Payments for such Bonds shall be reduced proportionately by the principal amount of such Bonds so

redeemed.

4s7 8-9 829 -4 67 18 I A24667 -0 I 4 |

A-3Page 330

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



EXHIBIT B

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORIT\
CITYoFFoLSoMCOMMUNITYFACILITIESDISTRICTNo,23

(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO' 2

SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2024

LETTER OF REPRESENTATIONS OF THB DISTRICT

,2423

Re: City of Fotsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement

Area 
"No' 

2 Special Tax Bonds' Series 2a24

Ladies and Gentlemen:

In connection with the proposed offer and sale of the above-referenced bonds (the "Special

Tax Bonds,,), the city of Folsom community Facilities District No' 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the

,,community Facititi", Dirt.i.t") hereby represents and covenants to Piper sandler & co'' as

underwriter (the "UnJerwriter") of the fotso- Financing Authority City of Folsom Community

Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No' 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds'

Series 2A24 $he "Bonds"), as follows:

A. The City of Folsom (the "City") is duly.organizedand validly existing as a municipal

corporation unO 
"t",urt", 

city under the.Constiiution and laws of the State of California and the Charter

and the community Facilities District is a community facilities clistrict organized and existing

pursuant to the M"ilo-Roos Community Facilities l:i:f 1982, as amended' being Chapter 2'5'

ira* 1, Division 2, Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California'

B. The City has duly authorized the formation of the Comrnunity Facilities District and

the establishment of Improvement Area No. 2 therein (the "Improvement Area") and undertaken

certain change proceedings relating to the improvement Area pursuant to resolutions and an

ordinance dury adoptea f,y the cit councir (coilectively, the "community Facilities District

Formation and Cirange Proceedings Resolutions" and, together with Resolution No'

authorizing the issuancJ und sale of the Special Tax Bonds, the "Communify Facilities District

Resolutions") and the Comrnunity Faciliti.i Dirtri,t Act' The City Council' acting*as Ll: ltg:luliy:

body of the Community Facilities District has d'ly adopted the Cornmunity Facilities District

Resolutions, and has caused to be recorded iri the real proper-ty records of the-Courlty of Sacramento'

an amended notice orspecial tax rien (the "Amended irotice Lf speciar rax Lien") (the cornmunity

Facilities District Formation and change proceedings Resolutions and Amended Notice of Special

Tax Lien being collectively referred io herein as tlre "Formation Documents")' Each of the

Piper Sandler & Co.

3 626 F air Oaks Boulevard
Sacramento, California 95864

48'7 8-9829 -467 I v 3 I 024667 -0 | 4 I

B-lPage 331

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Formation Docunrents rernains in full force and effect as of the date hereof and has not been

amended.

C. The Cornmunity Facilities District has, and at the Closing Date will have' as the case

may be, full legal right, power and authotii,, fil to execute, deliver and perfonn its obligations under

the District rndenture, the Trust Agr..,r.,o.rt, ihe contin'ing Discrosure certificate and the Local

obligation purchase contract, und to carry out ail transa-ctions conternplated by each of such

documents; (ii) to issue, sell and deliver its Special Tax Bonds to the Authority; and (iii) to cany out'

give effect to and consummate the transu.,ion, contemplated by the Formation Documents' the

District Indenture, trre Trust Agr.",r.ni, tn" Lo"ul obligation purchase contract, the Special rax

Bonds, this Letter of Representations, the Continuinf Disclosure Cedificate and the Official

Statement.

ThisLetterofRepresentations,theTrustAgreement,theDistrictlndenture,theLocal
Obligation purchase Contract, the Special Tax Bonds and the Continuing Disclosure Ceftificate are

colle"ctively referred to herein as the "District Documents'"

D. The Comrnunity Facilities District has complied, and will at the Closing Date be in

compliance in utt mut"riut ,.rp.",r, with the Formation Documents and the District Documents' and

immaterial noncompliance by the community racilities District, if any, will not irnpair the ability of

the Community Facilities District t" ;;i out, giv.e effect to or consummate the transactions

contemplated by the foregoing. From and in"t it " 
date of issuance of its Special Tax Bonds' the

Community Facilities pi-strlct will continue to comply with the covenants of the Community

Facilities ditttitt contained in the District Documents'

E. Except as described in the Preliminary official Statement, the Community Facilities

District is not, in uni respect material to the transactions referred to herein or contemplated hereby,

in breach of or in default under, uny Lo* or adrninistrative rule or regulation of the State of

California, the United States of America, or of any department, division' agency or instrumentality of

either thereof, or under any appricable court or-administrative decree or order' or under any loan

agreement, note, resolution, indenture, contract, agreement or Other inStrument to Which the

community Facilities District is a party or is otheiwis=e subject or" bound,.and the performance of its

obiigations under the District Documents and compliance with the provisions of each thereof, or the

performanceoftheconditionsprecedenttobeperforrnedbytheCommunityFacilitiesDistrict
pursuant to trre District Documents, wirl not confllct with or constitute a breach of or default under

any applicable law or administrative rri" o, regulation {tt State' the United States of America' or

of any department, division, agency or instrunrJntality of either thereoi or under any applicable coutl

or adrninistrative decree or order, or under any loan agreement, note, resolution, indenture, contract'

agreement or othei instrument to which the iommunity Facilities District is a party or is otherwise

subject or bound, in any tllanner that would rnaterially and adversely affect the performance by the

community Facilities district oi its ouiig;tions unde, the District Documents or the performance of

the conditions precedent to be perfonried by the comrnunity Facirities District pursuant 1o the

District Documents.

F. Except as nlay be reclr.rired under the "blue sky" or other securities laws of any

jurisdiction, all approvals, consents,.ar.ithorizations, elections and orders of' oL filings or registraiions

with, any gou"rn,i-,"ntal authority, board, agency or comrnission having ju'isdictioll which would

constitute a co'dition precedent to, or thl Jur.n". of which would matelially adversely affect, the

performanc" uy tte community Facilities District of its obligations under the District Docutnents'

48'7 8-9829 -467 1 v3 I 024667 -01 4 I

B-2Page 332

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



have been or will be obtained at the closing Date and are or will be in full fbrce and effect at the

Closing Date.

G'TheDistrictDocumentsconformastoformandtenortothedescriptionstlrereof
contained in the Preliminary Official Statement'

H.TheSpecialTaxBondsarepayablefro'm'thespecialTax'assetforlhirrtheDistrict
rndenture, the levy of *Hi.t, rras been il; anJ vuiidly auihorized pursuanr ro the community

Facilities District Act and the Special rax within the Improv.r"* Area will be fixed and levied in

an amount which, togerher with other ""ril;;i; 
ilnds, is iequired for the paymenr.of the principal of'

and interest on, the Special Tax Bonds'*tl"n due'and payable' all as provided in the District

Indenrure. The community Fac'ities.District has covenunt"iio lause the Special rax to be levied

and collected at the ;;;i;" and in ttre same manner as ordinary ad valorem property taxes'

I.TheDistrictlndenturecreatesavalidpledgeof'firstlienuponandsecurityinterest
in, the Speciai Tax, and in the moneys ffi; sptciat Tu*lE*a established pursuant to the District

Indenture, on the,.r*.1"0 conditions set forth in the District Indenture'

J.ExceptasdisclosedinthePreliminaryofficialstatement,thereare,tothebestofthe
community ru"'iti"! 6ilt;;;;il*r.ag., "";",ft';: 

with outstanding assessment liens against any

of the properlies within the Improv"-.niRr." or which are senior to or on a parity with the special

iut r"i.tt.d to in paragraph (H) hereof'

K.TheinformationcontainedinthePreliminaryofficialStatement(otherthan
statements therein pertaining to the A",h;r.,,y;;TC and its book-entry systern and under the caption

,,pRoposEn pnopnnry DEVEL.*MET.IT -- property o*n"rrrrip," "-_D_welopnrent Plan and

Status of Development"' 
((- Develop*tnlpiun of Finanie'i and "CONTINUING DISCLOSURE -

The Homebuilders," as to which ,ro u-i*'i' "*p'"s'eo; 
does not and shall not contain any untrue or

misleading statemeni-of-a material fact or omit to state any material fact,necessary to make the

statements therein, in light of the "i,"u*'ontl' 
uno"' *r'itt t*'tJ *ttt mad'et not misleading; and'

upon derivery and up tn-*a including iiJ"v, 
^r,:_r 1h. 

gnJ oitrr" U'derwriting period (as defined

i' paragraph (L) bJlp";i,ilr: .diiiiui"srur.-"nt 
wi' be amended and supplernented so as to contarn

no :'isstatement of any materiar iu"t.rl.;;;;" ol1:y,:,u,.ment necessary to make the statements

contained therein, in the light of the circumstances in which such statements were made' not

rnisleading'

L'Uptoandincluding.25daysaftertheEndoftheUnderwritirrgPeriod,the
Communiry fu.iliti"-, Oi.iC., *ilf adnir. iir. UnO"r*rit., p,o'"ptly of any proposal to amend or

supprement the official Statement and will not effect or consent to any such amendfire't or

supplement *ith;;;-1h" .onr"n, of ti" Underwriter, *',i.n consent wili riot be unreasonably

withheld. The community Faciliti", olstriri *itt uouire the Underwriter prornptly of the institution

of any proceedings known t9.ilbY *';!;;f;*::llli:;* prohibiting or otherwise mateliallv

affecting the use or*,. officiar Statement-in connectio" t'liin rn. offering,lare or disrribr-riion of the

Bonds. As used herein, trre tenn ..nni'oiirre underwriting period" meins tlre rater of such time as:

(i) the Bonds "r, 
J;li;;r;d to t'e u"d";;;"r; or (ii) the uiderwriter does not retain' directly or as a

member of a' underwriting syndicate, an u*sold balance ;iil" Bonds for sale to the pLrbric' U'ress

tlre Underwriter gives notice to the #;;;;; il ";;t 
unat'*'iti'g Periocl shall be deemed'to

be the crosing Date. Any notice deliveied pursuant to this provision shat be a writterr notrce

4 87 8 -L)829 - 4 6'7 I't 3 I l)24 667 -l) I 4 |

B-3Page 333

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



deliver.ed to the city at or prior to the closing Date, and.shall specify a date (other than the closing

nui"lto be deemed the ,,Eid of the Urrderwriting Pe'iod."

M. There is no action pending (notice of-which has been served on the cornmunity

Facilities District or the city) or to the" best knowredge of the cornmunity Facilities District

threatened, in which any such action: (i) in any way questions the existence of the community

Facilities District or the titres of the oificers of the- city to their respective offices; (ii) affects'

contestsorseekstoprohibit,restrainorenjointheissuanceordeliveryoftheBondsortheSpecial
Tax Bonds or the payment or collection ofihe Special Tax.or any amounts ple.dged or to be pledged

to pay the principat of anO interest on the Speciai Tax Bonds or the Bonds' or in any way contests or

affects the validity of the Formation Doc#ents or the District Documents or the consummation of

t'e transactions on the part of the co,n,nunity Facirities.Dstrict contemplated thereby; (iii) contests

the exemption of i;i;;ri on the nonar ot ih* sp"cial Tax Bonds from federal or State income

taxation,asapplicable,orconteststhepowersoftheCityortheComtnunityFacilitiesDistrictwhich
may result in any *ur"riut adverse .hung" relating to the financial condition of the Community

Facilities District; or (iv) contests the compreteness or accuracy of the Preliminary official statement

or any supplement or'umendment thereto ir asserts that the prcliminary officiar statement contained

any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state any material .fact 
required to be stated

therein or necessary to make the statemants therein, in the rigiit of the circumstances under which

they were made, not -isl"ading; and there is no basis for any action' suit' proceeding' inquiry or

investigation of the;atu.e descr*ibed in clauses (i) through (iv) of this sentence'

N. Any certificate signed on behalf of the community Facilities District by any officer

or ernployee of the city authorized to do so shail be deerned a representation by the community

Facilities District to the Authority and the Underwriter on behari of itself and the community

Facilities District as to the statements made therein'

o'AtorpriortotheClosing,theC.otnmunityFacjlitiesDistrictwillhaveduly
authorized, executed und d"liurred the co,rtinuing Disclosure certificate in substantially the fonn

attached u, epp"noix D to the official Staternent. Except as discrosed in the preliminary official

Statement,thecityhasnotfailedtocomplyinallrespectswithanypreviousunderlakingswith
regard to the Rule io fiouia. annual reports'or notices of mareriar events in the last five years'

P.TheCommunityFacilitiesDistrictwillapplytheproceedsofitsSpecialTaxBondsin

a.BetweenthedateofthePurchaseAgreementanclthedateofClosing,theCommunity
Facilities District wiil not offer or issue any bondi notes or other obligations for borrowed money

not previously disclosed to the Underwriter

accordance with the District Indenture'

48'7 8 -g 829 -46'1 I v 3 I 02 4 667 -0 | 4 I

B-4Page 334

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the

Bond Purchase Agreement by and between the Authority and the underwriter'

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES

DISTRICT NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH)

By:
Finance Director of the City of Folsom

48'1 8-9829 -467 | v 3 1024667 -0 | 4 I

B-5Page 335

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



EXHIBIT C

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

CITYoFFoLSoMCOMMUNITYFACILITIESDISTRICTNo.23
(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO' 2

SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2024

LETTER OF RBPRESENTATIONS OF TRI POINTE HOMES HOLDINGS' INC'

,2023

Folsonr Ranch Financing Authority

50 Natoma Sneet

Folsorn, California 95630

City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo' 23

(Folsom Ranch)
50 Natoma Street

Folsom, California 95630

Piper Sandler & Co.

ZSZAPaiT Oaks Boulevard, Suite 100

Sacramento, California 95864

Ladies and Gentlemen:

ReferenceismadetotheFolsomRanchFinancingAuthorityCityofFolsomCommunity
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom nun.f1; lmprovement Area No' 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds'

series 2024 (the"Bonds") and to the Bond Purchase Agreement to be entered into in connection

therewith (the "Purchase Agre.*"nt;;. This Letter. of R"ptttentations of Tri Pointe Homes

Holdings, Inc. (the "Letter of R"prerentations") is delivered pursuant to the Purchase Agreement'

Capitalized terms used and not otirerwise definei herein have ihe meanings ascribed to them in the

Purchase Agreement.

Each of the undersigned certifies that he or she is familiar with the facts herein certified and

is authorized and qualified to certify the sanre as an authorized officer or representative of rri Pointe

Homes Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Developer")' and each of the undersigned' on

behalf of the Developer further ceftifies as follows:

L The Developer is a validly existing corporation and in good standing Delaware' is

duly registered to transact intrastate business as a foreign corporalion and in good stariding under the

laws of the State of California, and ftut ot *if f have allitquisit" corporate 
'ight' 

power and authority:

(i) to execute and d"liue. this Letter of n"pr"r.ntations; (ii). execute and deliver at the Closing the Tri

poinre continuing biscrosure certificatef and (iii) to undertake ail of rhe transactions on its part

described in the Preliminary Official Statement'

4 8 78-9829-46 7 | v3 I 02466'l -0 | 4 |

c-1Page 336

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



2. As set forth in the prelirninar.y official Statement, the Developer owns certaln

property (herein, tt'r" ;'rrop"rty") within Ilnprovellent Area No' 2 (the "Improvement Area") of

city of Forsom co,nmunity paciiiti"s Districi No. 23 (Folsorr Ranch) (the "community Facilities

District,,). The undersigned, on behalf of the Developer, makes the representations herein with

respect to all such ProPertY'

3. Except as disclosed in tlre Preliminary official Statement, to the Actual Knowledge

of the Undersignedr, (a) the Developer:."Jitt Rffiiiut"" are not in breach of or in default under

any applicable judgment or decree or any loan agreellent, option agreement' development

agreement, indentuie, fiscal agent ug.."*"r'1, boni or note (collectively' the "Material

Agreements,,) to which the Devefop., oJit, Affiliates are a pafty or otherwise subject, which breach

or default could reasonably be expected to muteriatty and adveriely affect the Developer's ability to

comprete the deverof*rni or the property as described in the preriminary official Statement or to

pay the Special r"* ;;;. proper-ty tto trre extent the responsibility of the Developer or its Affiliates)

priorto derinquency unJ oi no.u.nt.nus occurred and is continuingthatwith the passage of time or

;il;g of notice, oiboth' would constitute such a breach or default'

4.TotheActualKnowledgeoftheundersigned,neithertheDeveloper'norTy.?.filt
Affiliates is in default on any obligation'to r"puy bo"o*"i.*onty' which default.is reasonably likely

to materially and adversely afTect ,ft"'O#foper's ability to complete the development of the

Property as described in the Preliminary official Statement or to pay the Special Tax on the Property

i* i1.," extent the responsibility of the Developer) prior to delinquency.

5. Except as set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement' no action' Suit' proceeding'

inquiry or investigation * tu* o, ln 
"qrity, 

before oi by u.ny court, regulatory agency' public board or

body is pending against the Develop., (ri'itt't proper seryic.e of proceis to the Developer having been

accornplished) or, to the Actual Knowledge "i t:. 
Undersigned' is pending against any current

Affiliate (with proper service of process to Juch Affiliate having been aicomplished) or to the Actual

Knowledge of the undersigned is threatened in writing againsl the Developer or any such Affiliate

whicir if successful, is reasonabry likery to materiaily ind udu.rr"ly affect trre Developer's ability to

I As used in this Letter of Repr'esenlations' the phrase "Actual Knowledge of the Undcrsig ncd" sball mean, as ofthe date of

this Letter of RePresenlations, the actual (as oPPosed to constructive) knorvleclge that the undersigned has or has obtained fi'om

obtained from (i) interviews with such current of{icers and responsible cnplo)'ees of the DeveloPer as the undersigned has

determincd are likely, in thc ordinary course of theit' resPecl ive dulies. to hav e knowledge of lhe malters set for-th in this Lettcr of

Representations, and/or (ii) a revierv of such docu ments as the unclersigned determined wel'e reasonably necessary to obtain

knorvledge of the matters set forth in this Letter of Representattons' The undersigncd has not cor-rducled any extraotdirrarY

inspection or inquirY otlrer llran such inspections or inquiries as are Prud ent and customary jn connection tvith the ordinary coursc

of the Dev eloper's current business and operations. The undersigned has not conlacted indi viduals who are no longer enlployed

by the DeveloPer
2 ,,Affilirt.', mcans, rvitlr respect to thc Developer. irny other Pcrson: (i) rvho directll'' ol indirectl'v through one or more

inlermediaries" is cur|ently controlling. cont|olled by or uncler t:llllt:..^t""'rol rvith the Dcveloper' and (ii) fot' whom

informalion, inclrrding financiar inrormition or r:perating data, concerning suc-h pe|son is nraterial 10 potentiar in'esrors in their

evaluation of the l'provenrent Area ono inu"rrr.,rr-d..irion rcgarcliag the Bontls (i.e.. inlbrnlation relevant to: (a) the

Developer,s,evelopment plans rvitrr respect to its properly and the paynrent.of its Speciai Tax on the proper"ty (to tbe extcnt the

responsibility ottrr" u"uilofer) frior io c.tnqu.nJi,-"i lul u,.h.p.,*on" asseri or funds rhal rvould niareria,l' affect rhe

Developer,s abirity to o.*iJp iir'properry as a.r.,iiu.a in iti. prerinrinarl,official Sratemenr or ro pay irs Special 'l'ax on lhe

Property(totheextenttlreresponsibilit-r,oftheoeu"tup.,;prior.todelinquency)'..Person..meansanindividual.acorpot.ation.a
oarinership- a limited liability company. on-orro.,^ion,'n.ioin, stocli iompany' a trust' anl'uninco'poraled organization or a

governnrent or. political ,iiiloiui.ion thcLeof. Fo,:-purpori, he'eor,. th.,t.ri'ri "contror'' iincl,ding the terms "controlling'''

.,controlled by,, or ..under ao*,r,on control with',) -'.oni, *" possession. direct or indirect, ol the porver to dilect or cause llic

direcrion of rhe management and policics "f 
. p;;;;;;, ruheihe, th'ough lhe ori''ership o1' voting securities' Lry cortract of

olherrr'ise.

c-2
481 8 -9829 -4 (t'l I v3 l{)24667 -01 4 I

Page 337

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



complete the developnrent of the properly as described in the Prelirninaly official Statement ot' to

pay the Special fu*'o, uO valorem tax obiigations on its Property (to the t*t"nt the responsibility of

ihe Developer) prior to delinquency'

6' As of the Date of tlie Prelinrinary official Statement, to the Actual Knowledge of the

Undersigned, the information contaitred therein solely as such information describes the Developer'

its Affiliates, ownership of the Property, tt',. Developer's deveiopment p]a.n' the Developer's

financing plan, the Developer's lenders, jf ai'ty, und contractual arrangements of the Developer or any

Affiriates (incruding, if material to the Deveioper's deveropment pran or the,Developer's financing

plan, loans of such Affiliates) as set forit, under the captlons "PROPOSED PROPERTY

DEVEL''MENT,, and ,,GONTINUING DISCLosuRE-The Homebuird ers-prior Cantinting

Disclosttre contpliance - Tt,i pointn" 1.*"tuoing therefrorn in all cases (a) any information regarding

any other property owner or the p'operty o*n"l by a property owner other than the Developer' (b)

any information on appraised and market values, and annual special tax rates and ratios' including

information regarding the Appraisar Report (as slcl term. is defined in the preliminary olficial

Staternent), and (c) any information whiih is identified as having been provided by a source other

than the Developer) is true and corect in all material respects and did not contain any untrue

statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statenrents therein,

i" ifr. light of tire circumstances under which they were made' not misleading'

7. The Developer covenants that, while the Bonds or any refunding obligations related

ther.eto are outstanding, the Deveroper and its Affiliates which it contrors will not bring any action,

suit, proceeAing, inqr?ry o' investiiation at law or in equity, before any court' regulatory agency'

public board or body, that in any way seeks to challenge or overturn the formation of the Community

Facilities District or the Impl'ovement 4..u, to challerige the adoption of Ordinance No' 

- 

of the

city levying the Special rax witrrin the Improv...rriA."u, to invaridate the community Facilities

District, the Improvement Area or any of the Bonds or any refunding bonds related thereto' or to

invaridate the speciar tax liens imposed under Section rtis.s of the streets and Highways code

based on recordation of the amended notice of special tax rien rerating thereto. The foregoing

covenant shall not prevent the Develop". ot uny efitiate i-n any way from bringing any other action'

suit or proceeding i.,.ruJing, without'ti*;tution, (a) an action or suit contending that the Special rax

has not been levied in accordan"" *ith the meihodologies corrtained in the comrnunity Facilities

District,s Rate and Method of Apportionment of Speciar raxes for the rmprovement Area pursuant to

which the Special Tax is levied, (b) an action or suit with respect to the application or use of t6e

Special rax levied and coilected, or (.t;.nror". the obrigations of the Authority, the city, and/or

the District under any agreements amo'g the Develo-p", und its Affiliates' the Authority' the city'

and/or the District o'. io .,it.,i.t., the Develfrer or its Affiliates is a party or beneficiary'

g. Except as disclosed in the Prelinrinary official Statement, to the Actual Knowledge

of the Undersigned, the Developer is ttot aware that any other public debt secured by a tax or

assessment on the properly exists or is in the process of being auth-orized or any assessment districts

or community facilities districts have been o, ur" in t6e p'otttt of being fonned that include any

9. The Developer has been developing o1 h?., been involved in tlre development of

numerous projects ou* un 
"*,.nd.d 

period of time.- tt is likely that the Developer and its Affiliates

has been delinquent at one time or another in the paytnent if oa vabrem ploperty taxes' special

assessments or special taxes. However, except as disclosedin the Preliminary official Statet'ent' to

the Actual Knowledge of the undersignei, neither the Developer nor any current Affiliate is

portion of the ProPertY

487 8-9829 -4 67 I Y 3 I 024 667 4 t 4 t

c-3Page 338

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



currently in default ili, or in the last fir,e (5) years has ever defaulted to atry material extent in the

payment of any ad t,alorent property tu", ,p".iul assessment or special tax on-property owned by the

Developer or any ,u"r", nrhriate within-ihe boundaries of a comrrurlity lacilities dis*ict or an

assessment district ,ri,t'tin California tha1 (a) caused a draw on a reserve fund relating to such

assessment district or community facilities district financing or (b) resulted in a foreclosure action

being conrmenced in a court of law against the delinquent Developer or Affiliate'

l0.TheDeveloperintendstocomplywiththeprovisionoftheMello-RoosComnrunity
Facilities District Acr of 1gg2, as un,.nc"Jl relating to ihe Notice of Speciar rax described in

Gover'ment code Sectiorr 5334r.5 in connection wittr ttre sale of the property, or po'tions thereof'

1L To the Actual Knowledge of the undersigned, the Developer is able to pay its bills as

they becom. ou" uJn" l"g.r pro"e"ding, ur" p*alng iguinrt the Developer (with proper service of

process to the il;i;p;; having beJn accomptistt"J; o', to the Actual Knowledge of the

Undersigned, threatenei in writifi in which the Developer may Ot 1di{lllted 
as bankrupt or

discharged from any arrd all of its debts or obligations' 9r granted an extension of tirne to pay its

debts or obrigations, or be allowed a ,"".gr"iz"e or.readjuit its debts, or be sr'rbject to control or

,up.*ition olthe Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation'

12'TotheActualKnowledgeoftheUndersigned,AffiliatesoftheDeveloperareableto
pay their birs as they become dueand no i"gut proceedings are pending againsr any Affiliates of the

Developer (with proper service of pro"..."to such Affiliate having bt"''t u"totplished) or to the

Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned, ihr"aten"d in writing in which the Affiliates of the Developer

may be adjudicated * Uunt .upt oiAi."f',u.;Jft"; arly or il of thtit debts or obligations' or granted

an extensio' of time to pay their debts oiottlgationr, o' be allowed to reorganize or readjust their

debts or obligations, or be subject to contri or supervision of the Federal Deposit Insurance

13. If between the date hereof and the closing Date any event relating to or affecting the

Developer, its Affrliates, owncrsnip oi tf't. Property,- the Developer's development plan' the

Developer's fina'cing plan, the O"u.toi".;, trndttt, if uny, and contractual arrangements of the

Deveroper or any airiru,., (includingiii materiar io the-Deveroper's deveropme't plan or the

Developer,s financing plan, loans of ,u"h Affiliates) shall occur of which the undersigned lras actual

knowredge ano whicfrtire undersigned believes would cause the information r-rnder the sections of the

preliminary Official Statement indicated in rurugrupt' 6 hereof (and subject to the limitations and

exclusions contained in paragraph 6 of the Letter of Representatio's), to contain an untrue statement

of a material fact or to omit to state a materiar fact necessary to nrake the statements therein, in the

light of the cir.cumstances under which they were made, not misleading, the uridersigned shall notify

the city and the unJerwriter and if in the opiniorr of counsel to the city or the Underwriter such

event requires the preparation and pubiication of a supplement or amendment to the Prelirninary

officia| Statement, the Developer shall reasonably cooperate with the City in the preparation of an

amendment o, ,uppi"*ent to *" pr"timinary official 
-statement 

in forrn and substance reasonably

satisfactory to counsel to the City and to the Underwriter'

l4.TheDeveloperagreestodeliveraClosingCertificatedatedthedateofissuatrceofthe
Bonds at the time of issrun"e Jt tt.,. Bonds in substaniia'y the fonn atrached as Exhibit F to the

Corporation

Purchase Agreement

4878-9829-16 7 t I N2466'7 -0 t 4 |

c-4Page 339

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



l5.TheDeveloperagreestodelivertheTriPointeContinuingDisclosureCertificateat
trre time of issuance orrn. Bonds"in substantiaily the fo'n attached as Appendix D to the Preliminary

Official Statement.

16. On behalf of the Developer, I have reviewed the contents of this Letter of

Representations and have met *itt, .ounJ"l io the Developer for the purpose of discussing the

meaning of its contents'

TheundersignedhasexecutedthisLetterofRepresentationssolelyinhisorhercapacityas
an officer or authorized representatin" orinl;;;"r"p"i and he or she will have no personal liability

arising from or relating to this Letter of Representattons'

TRI POINTE HOMES HOLDINGS,INC.
a Delaware corPoration

By

48'7 8 -9829 -467 1 v3 I 024 66'l -0 1 4 )

c-5Page 340

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



EXHIBIT D

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

CITYoFFoLSovTcovTiuTUNITYFACILITIESDISTRICTNo.23
(FOLSOM RANCH) TMPROVEMENT AREA NO' 2

SPECTAL TAX REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2024

LETTER0FREPRESENTATIONSoFLENNARH0MESoFCALIF0RNIA,LLC

_,2023

Folsorn Ranch Financing Authority

50 Natoma Street

Folsom, California 95630

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No' 23

(Folsom Ranch)
50 Natoma Street

Folsom, California 95630

Piper Sandler & Co'
ZOZOPaiT Oaks Boulevard, Suite 100

Sacramento, California 95864

Ladies and Gentlemen

ReferenceismadetotheFolsomRarrchFinancingAuthorityCityoflolsomCommunity
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsonr Rancn;-tmprovement Area No' 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds'

series 2024 (the..Bonds,,) and to the Bond iurchase Agreement to be entered into in connection

therewith (the "Purchase Agreement"f tni, ttttt.if Rtp'"'entations of Lennar Homes of

california, LLC (the "Letter of R"pr"s"ntations") is delivered pursuant to the Purchase Agreement'

Capitalized terms used and not otherwise iefined herein have tite meanings ascribed to them in the

Purchase Agreement.

Each of the undersigned certifies that he or she is familiar with the facts herein certified and

is authorized and quarified to certify the same as an authorized officer or representative of Lennar

Honres of californi a,LLC,a California limited liability company (the "Developer")' and each of the

u*J.rrign.d, on behalf of the Developer furlher certifies as follows:

i. The Developer is a validly existing ljm.ited liability company in good standing under

trre raws of the State of california, and has o. *itt have alr requisite corporate right, power and

authority: (i) to execut. und deliver this Letter of Representations; (ii) execute and deliver at the

Closing the Lennar Continuing nlr"torul C.,ltificate; and (iii) to undertake all of the transactions on

its paridescribed in the Prelirninary Official Statement'

4s78-9829-467 I v31024667-0 I "l t

D-1Page 341

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Z. As set forth in the preliniinary Official Staternetrt, the Developer owrls or has atr

oprion to purchase certain property (herein, the "Property") within lrnprovement Area No' 2 (the

,,Improvement Area,,) of city of Folsom commuriity Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the

o,Community Facilities Disirict"). The unde'signed, o' behalf of the Developer, makes the

representations herein with respect to all such Property'

3. Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Ofhcial Statement, to the Actual Knowledge

of tlre uno"rrig".Jt, (a) the Developer and its Affiliatesa are not in breach of or in default under

any applicable judgment or decree or any loan agreement, option agreen'lent' development

agreement, indentr.rie, fiscal agent agreement, UonA or note (collectively' the "Material

Agreements,,) to which the Develop., o,iit, Affiliates are a party or otherwise subject, wliich breach

or default could reasonably be expected to materially and adversely affect the Developer's ability to

complete the develop*eni of thaProperty as described in the Prelirninary Official Statement or to

pay the Special ta* in the propertv (to tr.te extent the responsibility of the Developer or its Affiliates)

prior to delinquency and (b) no 
"u"ni.ttus 

occurred and is continuing that with the passage of time or

iiuing of notice, or both, would constitute such a breach or defatrlt'

4. To the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned, neither the Developer' nor ?ly.:.f ilt

Affiliates is in default on any obligationl rcpay borrowed money, which def'ault-is reasonably likely

to materially and adversely affect the Developer's ability to complete the development of the

Property as described in the Preliminary Official Statement or to pay the Special Tax on the Property

(to it,e extent the responsibility of the Developer) prior to delinquency

5. Except as set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement, no action, suit, proceeding,

inquiry or investigation at law or in equity, before oi by u.ny court, regulatory agency'? public board or

body is pending against the Developer (with proper seryice of process to the Developer having been

accolnplished) or, to the Actual Knowledge of 1!? Undersigned, is pending.against any curent

Affiliate (with proper service of process to Juch Affiliate having been accomplished) or to the Actual

I(nowledge of the undersigned is tbreatened in writing againsi the Developer or any such Affiliate

which if successfut, i, 1..urinubly likely to materially und uau"rsely affect the Developer's ability to

3 As used in this Letler of Representations, the phrase "Actual Knowledge of the Untlersigned" shall mean. as of the date of

this Letter ol RePresentations, the actual (as oPPosed to con structive) knorvledge that the undersigned has or has obtained from

obtained from (i) inlerviervs rvith sr-rch current officers and responsible employees of the Developer as the undersigned has

determined are likely, in the ordinary course of their resPective dulies, to have knowledge of the matters set forth in this Letter of

Rep resentations, and/or (ii) a review of such documents as the undersigned detel'nrined wel'e reason abl1, n...ttot, to oblain

knorvledge of the matters set forth in this Letter of RePresentati ons. The undersigned has not cond ucted any extraordinarl'

inspection or inquirY oiher than such inspections or inqu iries as are prudent and cuslomarl' in connection rvith the ordinary course

ol thc Developer's current business and oPerations' The undersigned has not contacted indiv iduals rvho are no lon-qer employed

by thc Developet'
+'.,orr,.o,...'means, rvith respect to the Developer, any othel Person: (i) rvho directly' or indirectll'throrrgh one or lrore

inter.mediaries. is currcntly connolling, controlled by or under common control with the Developer'- and (ii) for rvhom

inibrmation. including financial inlbrmition o, op.ro,ing data, concerning such Pelson is rnaterial to potential itlvestors in their

evaluation of tlre lmprovement Area and i'vestment-d..irion regarding the Bonrls (i.c.- infolmation relevant to: (a) the

Dc'eloper's clevelopmenl plans rvith respect to its Property and the.PaYment.of its special rax on the Propcrtl'(to the cxtent the

responsibility of the Developer) prior to detinquencj; oi tul s'cb. Ferson's assel; or funcls that rvould matet'ially affect the

De*eloper's ability to develop its property as described in irre preliminary official Statenrenl or to pay its special 'lax on thc

Propg{y (to the extent the responsibi}jty of th9 Developer) prior to deljnquency). ..':'::."' T:i::l.1'^:11i\i,0,ai. 
a corporalion' a

partner.ship. a limited liability company- an associalion-'o.ioint stock iompanlr- 0 tlust' any unincolporated olganizalion or a

go'ern,nerlt or political ,ruaiuirion tl.,.reof. rol. purpor., hereof'. the 
.term 

"control" (including the tet'ms "controlling-"

..co,lrolled b),., or.,unde,l"o'r,n,on control with") rr,!a,is th. porrr.iion. dircc! or indilect. of the porvcr to direct or cause 1hc

clir.ection of the nranagelncut and policies of a person, \,heiher through the orvnership ol'voling secu|ilits" b)' corrtracl or

otherrvise.

4 8 78-9829-46 7 1 t' 3 I 024667 -0 1 4 1

D-2Page 342

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



complete the deveropment or the properry as described in trre prerirninary official statement or to

pay the Special Tax or ad valorem tax obiigations on its Property (to the extent tlte responsibility of

the Developer) prior to delinquency'

6. As of the Date of the preliminary Official Statement, to the Actual Knowledge of the

undersigned, the information contained therein solely as such information describes the Developer'

its Affiliates, ownership of the Property, the Developer's development pJan, the Developer''s

financing plan, the n"uriop".'s lenderi, if uny, and contractual arrangements of the Developer or any

Affiliates (including, if material to the D.u.iop"r's development ptan or the Developer's financing

plan, loans of ,uci Affiliates) as set forin under the captions "PROPOSED PROPERTY

DEVELOPMENT" ANd ..CONTINUING DISCLOSURE-ThC HONTCbUiIdCTS-PTiOT CONtiNUiNg

Disclosure Contpliance - Lennay Honles" (excluding therefrom in all cases (a) any information

regarding any other property owner or the property owned by a properly owner other than the

Developer, (b) any infoirnation on appraised and market values, and annual special tax rates and

ratios, including iniormation regarding the Appraisal Re.port (as such term is defined in the

preriminary official statement), and (c) uny ;nror*ution whiclr is identified as having been provided

by a source other than the Develop..) i, true and correct in all material respects and did not contain

any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not rnisleading'

7. The Developer covenants that, while the Bonds or any refunding obligations related

thereto are outstanding, the Developer and its Affiliates which it controls will not bring any action,

suit, proceeAing, inquT.y or inveSigation at law or in equity, before any court' regulatory agency'

pubric board or body, that in any way seeks to chailenge or overturn the formation of trre community

Facilities District o, i6" Improv"ment Area, to challe{e the adoption of Ordinance No' 
-- 

of the

city levying the Special rax within the Improv...niAr"u, to invalidate the community Facilities

District, the Improvement Area or any of the Bonds or any refunding bonds related thereto' or to

invalidate the special tax liens imposed under Section 3115.5 of the Streets and Highways code

based on recordation of the amended notice of special tax lien relating thereto' The foregoing

covenant shall not prevent the Developer or any Afiliate in any way fiom bringing any otheraction,

suit or proceeding inrtualng, without ii*itution, (a) an action or suit contending that the Special Tax

has not been levied in accordance with the methodologies contained in the cornmunity Facilities

District's Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special raxes for the lmprovement Area pursuant to

which the Speciar Tax is levied,-1b; an action oisuit with respect to the apprication or use of the

special Tax levied and collected, or (c) to enforce the obligations of the Authority' the city' and/or

the District under any agreements among the Developer and its Affiliates, the Authority, the city,

and/or the District or to which the Developer or its Affiliates is a party or beneficiary'

g. Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Olficial Statement, to the Actual Knowledge

of the UndersigneOl*" Developer is not aware tlrat any other public debt secured by a tax or

assessment on the property exists or is in the process of being authorized or any assessment districts

or community facilities districts have been oi ur" in the process of being formed that include a'y

portion of the ProPedY.

g. The Developer has been developing or h1s been involved in the development of

numerous projects over an extended period of time.- It is likely that the Developer and its Affiliates

has been delinquent at one time or another in the paynrent of oa valoretn property taxes, special

assessrn€nts or special taxes. However, except as disclosed in the Prelilninary official statement' to

the Actual 1qno*t.Jg. of the Undersigned, neither the Developer nor any current Affiliate is

487 8 -9 829 - 4 6'7 t v 3 I 024 6(t7 -0 | 4 I

D-3Page 343

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



currentry in def.ault in, or in the rast five (5) years has ever defaurted to any materiar extent in the

payment of any ad t,alorent property tax, special assessmentcr special tax on property owned by the

Developer or any ,u"r, nrhriate withi' i6e boundaries of a cornmunity facilities district or an

assessment district witlrin california that (a) caused a draw on a reserve fund relating to such

assessment district or corrlmunity facilities district financing or (b) resulted in a foreclosure action

being colnnrenced in a court of law against the delinquent Developer or Affiliate'

10. The Developer intends to cornply with the provision of the ir4ello-Roos Community

Facilities District Act of 1982, as amended, ,lluting to th" Notice of Special Tax described i.

Government code section 5334L5 in conrrection with-the sale of the property, or portio's thereof'

1 l. To the Actual Knowledge of the undersigned, the Developer is able to pay its bills as

they becom" du" o.rJno f.gul pro.".din!t "." 
p*Ai"g igainst the Developer (with proper service of

process to the O"u"iop"i having b"Jn u""otplisheJ; or, to the Actual Knowledge of the

Undersigned, threatenea in w.iting in wl]i"tr the Deveioper may be adjudicated as bankrupt or

dischargedfi.omanyandallofits-debtsorobligations'orgrantedanextensionoftimetopayits
debts or obligations, or be allowed to ,"orguniz! or.readjuit its debts, or be subject to control or

supervision oithe Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation'

rz. To the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned, Affiliates of the Developer are able.to

pay their bills as tt,.y U""o*e due and io i"guf proceedii.gs are pending against any Affiliates of the

Deveroper (with proper service of process io ,u.h Affiriate having been accomplished) or to the

Actual Knowledge oith. Undersigned, threatened in writing in which trre Affiliates of the Developer

may be adjudicated * uunt .up, or-air.#g.Jrr"* any or it of th.ir debts or obrigations, or granted

an extension of time to pay their debts or-olfigution., o, be ailowed to reorganize or readjust their

debts or obligations, or be subject to contro'i or supervision of the Federar Deposit Insurance

13. If between the date hereof and the Closing Date any event relating to or affecting the

Developer, its Affiliates, ownersftip of if't" Property,- the Developer's development plan' the

Developer,s financing plan, the Oru.top.i;, l*nd.rr, ii uny, and contractual arrangements of the

Developer or any aifJiur", (includingi if material to the Developer's development plan or the

Developer,s financing plan, loans of srch Affiliates) shall occur of which the undersigned has actual

knowredge and which"tie undersigned berieves wourd cause the infornration under the sections of tlie

preriminary official Staternent indicated-in paragraph 6 hereof (and subjecr to rhe rimitations and

exclusions contained in-rurugruph 6 of the Letter of Representations), to contain an untrue staiement

of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein' i' the

right of the circunrstances under which they were made, not misreading, the undersigned shall notify

the city and the U'derwriter and if in the opinior of counser to the city or the underwriter suclr

event sequires the preparation unO pubii"ution of a supplement ot amendment to tlte Preliririnary

official statement, the Developer slrall reasonably cooperate with the city in the preparation of an

amendment o. ,rppi.rent to ihe prerirninary officiar 
'staternent 

irr form and substance reasonably

satisfactory to counsel to the City and to the Underwriter'

14. The Developer agrees to deliver a Closing Cerlificate dated the date of issuance olthe

Bo'ds at the tirne of issuance of the Bonds in substanliaily the form attached as Exhibit F to the

Corporation

Purchase Agreement.

487 8 -9829 -461 1 v 3 I 024667'0 | 4 |

D-4Page 344

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



l5.TheDeveloperagreestodelivertheTriPointeContinuingDisclosureCerlificateat
tlre time of issuance of the Bonds in substantia'y the form attached as Appendix D to the Preliminary

16. On behalf of the Developer, I have reviewed the contents of this Letter of

Representations and have met with counser io the Developer for the purpose of discussing the

meaning of its contents.

The undersigned has executed this Letter of Representations solely in his or her capacity as

an officer or autl-rorized representative ofine o.u.rop"iand he or she will have no personal liability

"riri"g 
ft"t" or relating to ihis Letter of Representations'

LENNAR HOMES OF CALIFORNIA' LLC
a California limited liability company

Official Statement.

By

4 81 8 -9829 -467 1 v 3 I 024667 -0 | 4 |

D-5Page 345

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



EXHIBIT E

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

CITYoFFoLSoMCOMMUNITYFACILITIESDISTRICTNo.23
(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO' 2

SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS
SBRIES 2024

LETTERoFREPRESENTATIONSoFAGEHCII(LEN)CA2'L.P.

,2023

Folsom Ranch Financing AuthoritY

50 Natoma Street
Folsom, California 95630

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No' 23

(Folsom Ranch)
50 Natoma Street

Folsom, California 95630

Piper Sandler & Co.

36ZAPair Oaks Boulevard, Suite 100

Sacramento, California 95864

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Official Statement.

ReferenceismadetotheFolsomRanchFinancingAuthorityCityofFolsomCommunity
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No' 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds'

Series 2024 (the,,Bonds") and tO the Bond Purchase Agreement to be entered into in connection

therewith (the ,,purchase Agreement"). This Letter of Representations of AG EHc II (LEN) cA 2'

L,p. (the "Letter oi n"[r".entatio.ns") is delivered. pursuant to the Purchase Agreement'

capitalized terms ,r"a una not otherwise defined herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the

Purchase Agreement.

The undersigned certifies that he or she is farniliar with the facts herein certified and is

authorized and qualified to certify the same as the manager of an authorized agent of AG EHC II

(LEN) CA 2, LP., a Delaware iimited fa,tnership (the "Landowner")' and the undersigned' on

behulf of the Landowner, further ceftifies as follows:

l.TheLarrdownerisalimitedpartnershipvalidlyexistingandin.goodstanding.asa
rimited partnership under the raws of the state of Derawarc and is dury registered to transact business

in the state of carifornia as a foreign tinriteo parlnership and is iri good standing in the State of

California and has all requisite right, power and authority: (i) to execute and deliver this Letter of

Represerrtations; unoiiijio uno.rLke ail of the rransacriorls on its part described in the Preliminary

z. As ser forth in the preliminary official Statement, certain property ryjti"
Irnprovemerrt Area No. 2 (trre ,,Improre*ent ArLa") of trre city of Forsom community Facilities

48i 8-9829 -467 | I I A24 667 4 1 4 |

E-lPage 346

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



I

District No. 23 (Forso'r Ranch) (rhe ,,c_ommunity Fac'ities District") is rrerd in the name of the

Landowner (herein tlre ..Property,,). 
'.I,e unoersigned, on. behalf of the Landowner, makes the

representation, t.,"r.in *itt, r"ip".ito all such Property owned by Landowner'

3.Asofthedatethereof,thePreliminaryofficialStatement'solelywithrespectto
information contained therein *ittt '"spttt 

to the Landowner and ownership of the Property by

Landowner as set r*1t'rnar. tlie captionllpRopOSpD PR9PERTY DEVELOPMENT-Property

ownership_ rn, Li-iu"*i stru"turu" ir't.u"lnJ correct in an material respects and did not contatn

any untrue rru,"'',,.ni'oi a rnaterial fact or omit to state a material faci necessary to make the

statements there in, in the light of tire 
";."u,n"*"es 

under which they were made' not misleading'

4. The Landowner covenants that, while the Bonds or any refunding obligations related

thereto are outstanding, the Landowner wili not bring any action' suit'. proceeding' inquiry or

investigation at law or-in equity, befo.e any-"oura, r"gut-utory ug"n"y, public board or body' that in

any way seeks to challenge o,. o.,n.,tr.i'if',.-iottutlon of tnJ Colnmunity Facilities District' to

cha'enge the adoption oiordinun".'No.'- 
- 

of th.e city levying Special Taxes within the

Community racirities oiriri.t, to invalidate the dmmunity Fa;ilities District or any of the Bonds or

any refunding uonas related thereto, or to invalidate the special tax liens imposed under

section31l5.5 0f rhe Streets and Highwl;r-a"J; based.on r""*dution of the amended notice of

special tax lien ,"t";;;g ,h;r"a. 
''," 

f;;;g",;g tovenant shall not prevent the Landowner in any way

from bringing any oitti, u.t;on, suit or p-t'?*L?l"g including' witntut limitatio.n' (a) an action or suit

contending that the Special T1*".:.hale not bJen levied'in ac"o'dance with the methodologies

contained i' the cornin*nity Facilities District's Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special

Taxes pursuant to which the,special T^*t' are levied' ot iUj an action oiiu;t with respect to the

application or use oitn" Speciaf Taxes levied and collected'

5,Exceptas,disc]osedinthePreliminaryofficialstatement,theLandownerisnot
aware that any other public debt secured by a tax or assessment on the property exists or is in the

process of being authorized or any assessnrent districts or community facilities districts have been or

are in the process "iU.lng 
formei that include any portion of the Property'

6'Totheurrdersigned,sactualknowledge,theLandownerhasnotbeendelinquentto
any nrateriat .*t"nt'in ,n* puy,i"nt of any ad valorem property tax, special assessment or special tax

on properry owned by rhe L1!9o*.n.r *r,rri, iir" u"""o.ii.r tr a community facirities districr or an

assessment district within carifornia that fa) wourd-have caused a draw on a reserve fund relating to

such assessmenr district or commrni,i'r)7iriii. ar.tri"t financing or (b) resulted in a foreclosure

action being cornnrenced against the Landowner'

TheundersignedhasexecutedthisLetterofRepresentationssolelyinhisorhercapacityas
the rnanager of rhe i'thorized agent of the Landowner and he or she will have no personal liability

arising f}om or relating to tliis Letter of Representations'

AG EHC II (LEN) CAL,L'P'' a Delaware limited

PartnershiP

By

4878-9829-46? I v3/0246(17-0 I 4 i

E-2Page 347

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



EXHIBIT F

FOLSOM RANCH FTNANCING AUTHORITY

CITYoFFoLSovTcoTnTuUNITYFACILITIESDISTRICTNo.23
(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO' 2

SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2024

CLOSINGCERTIFICATEoFTRIPOINTHOMESHOLDINGS'INC.

2024)

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority

50 Natoma Street

Folsom, CA,95630

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No' 23

(Folsom Ranch)
50 Natoma Street

Folsom, CA, 95630

Piper Sandler & Co.

Z AZ6 P air Oaks Boulevard
Sacramento, California 95864

Ladies and Gentlemen:

ReferenceismadetotheFolsomRanchFinancingAuthorityCityofFolsomComnrunity
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom nun"rrl-irprovement Area No. 2 special Tax Revenue Bonds'

Series 2024 $he"Bonds") and to the Boni Puichase Agreement' dated 7 2024 (the "Purchase

Agreement";, enterJ into in ,onn.ction iherewith' this Closing Cerlificate of Tri Pointe Homes

Holdings, Inc. (the ';Cloring Certificaie;;; i, a*liuered by Tri Pointe Homes Holdings' Inc'' a

Delaware corporation (the ,,Deverop_".;j-pursuant to the purchase Agreement. capitalized tenns

used herein and not otherwise definei iuue the meanings ascribel to them in the Letter of

Representations of iri poi'te Homes ffoiaingr, Inc. (the "Letler of Representations")' dated ---'
20i3,delivered bY the DeveloPer'

Eachoftheundersignedcertifiesthatheorsheisfamiliarwiththefactshereincenifiedand
is aurhorized and quarified to certify the same as an authorized officer or representative of the

Developer, unO "u.tioith" 
und"rrign"O,-on behalf of the Developer' further certifies as follows:

1 ' The Developer has received the final official Statement dated 
-- '2024 

relating to

the Bonds (the ,,officiat dtatement"). Each statement, repl'esentation and warranty made in the

Letter of Representution, is true and correct in at materiar respects on and as of the date hereof with

the same effect as if made on the out" trereof, except that ali references therein to the Prelirninary

official Statenrent shail be deemed to be references to the final official Statement'

2.TotheActr.ralKnowledgeoftheundersigned'noeventhasoccurredsincethedateof
trre prerirninury orii"iur Statement affelting the statements and infor'ration described in Paragraph 6

F-i

48'7 8'g 829 -467 lY 3 I A2466'l -0j 4 |

Page 348

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



of the Letter of Representations relating to the Developer' its Affiliates' ownership of the Propefty'

the Developer's development plan, the g*"top.r,s financing plan' th-e D.ev.eloper's lenders' if any'

and coniractual arra'gernents of the neuetoper or-any eifl'tlut"s (including' if material to the

Developer,. C"n.toi,n?nl ifun or the O.u"tJp"t'' financing plan' 1o.ans of such Affiliates) (and

subject to the tiritaiions and exclusions contained in paragripir o of the L"I:r. of Representatio.s)

which should be disclosed in the official statement for the purpg_r.1 for whiclr it is to be used in

order to make such statements and infonnation contained in the offi"iut Staternent not misleading irt

3. For the period through 25 days after the "End of the underwriting Period" as

defined in the Purchase Agreement (frovided the. Developer may assume the End of the

Underwriting period is the Ciosing O*Ji.r defined i1 tle. Bond Puichase Agreement)' unless it

receives written notice from the unor.*rit.r that the End of the underwriting period is rater than the

Closing Date), if tne undelsigned ftu* u"iuui knowledge of any event relating to or affecting the

Developer, its affiiiat",, otin.rrhip "i;; 
eropt'ti' the Developer's development plan' the

Developer,s financing plan, the nru..toi"i;, lend.ers, if uny, and contractual arrangements of the

Deveroper or any aTr,iiu,", (includingiif material to rhe Developer's development plan or the

Developer,s financing plan, loans of such Affiliates), to cause tlre information under the sections of

the official Statement indicated in paragraph 6 of lrr"ytt.j of Representations (and subject to the

limitations and exclusions contained in ffirupn o of the I.etter of Representations) to contain an

untrue statement of a material fact or to omit io itut. a material fact necessary to make the statements

therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading' the undersigned

shall notify the city anJ the Underwrrt.r-uni if in the opinion of trre u'derwriter or counsel to the

City, it is necessary io u*"na or supplement the Official Statement in order to make the Official

statement not misreading in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, the

Developer shall reasonably cooperate with the city and the underwriter in the preparation of an

amendment o, *uppl.*entio tne offic;at statement in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to

the underwriter and Disclosure counr.i-*,ich will amend or supplement the ofircial statement so

that it wil not contain an untrue statemsnt of a material fact or o'rit to state a mate'ial fact necessary

in order to make the statements therein, in ttr. light of trre circumstances under which they were

any material resPect

made, not misleading

4 The Developer has duly and validly executsd and delivered the Tri Pointe continuing

Disclosure Certificate

or relating to this Closing Certificate'

TRI POINTE HOMES HOLDINGS,INC.
a Delaware corPoration

Each of the undersigned has executed this closing certificate solely in his or her capacity as

an officer o, ,rpr.r.n,*ioe 
-of 

the o.u.rof., ^"i 
n. or shJwiil have no personal liability arising frorn

By

48'7 8 -9829 - 467 | v 3 I 024 661 -0 1 4 I

F-2Page 349

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



EXHIBIT G

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

cITy oF FOLSOTVT iortlrnruNlTy FACILTTIES DISTRTCT NO. 23

GOLSOM nqNCrD IMPRO-VEMENT AREA NO' 2

SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2024

CLOSINGCERTIFICATEoFLENNARHOMESoFCALIFORNIA'LLC

,2023

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority

50 Natoma Street

Folsom, CA,95630

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No' 23

(Folsom Ranch)
50 Natoma Street

Folsom, CA,95630

Piper Sandler & Co.

Z OZA P air Oaks Boulevard

Sacramento, Cal ifornia 95 864

Ladies and Gentlemen

ReferenceismadetotheFolsomRanchFinancingAuthorityCityofFolsomCommunity
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom nr""iri-i.proveffient .{rea No' 2 Special rax Revenue Bonds'

Series 2024 (the"Bonds") and to the Boni Puichase Agreement' dated )2024 (the "Purchase

Agreernent"), entered into in connection it ","*lt',' 
if i' Clouing Certificate of Lennar Homes of

California, LLC (the,,Closing Certificate;;j i* O"tiu"red.by Leniar Homes of California'LLC' a

California limited liability company (it'l "'U*n"loper") 
pursuant to the Purchase Agreement'

capitarizedterms used heiein and not oth"r*i." defined have the meanings ascribed to them in the

Letter of Represenruiion, of Lennar uo*", of californ ia, LLc lthe "Letier of Representations")'

dut.d 

-',2A23, 

delivered by the Developer'

Each of the undersigned certifies that he or she is famiriar with trre facts hereirr certified and

is authorized and qualified to certify th. .u,r.," as an authorized officer or representative of the

Developer, uno 
"u"il 

oiihe undersign.o, on behalf of the Developer' further certifies as fbllows:

l.TheDeveloperhasreceivedthefina!olficialStaterrentdated__-,2024relatingto
the Bonds (the "Official dtatement")' Each statement' representation and warranty 

'rade 
in the

Letter of Representations is true and correct in alr materiar 
'espects 

on and as of the date hereof with

the same effect as if made on the date hereof, except that ali references therein to the Preliminary

official Statement ,hart be deemed to be references to the final official Statement'

2. To the Actual Knowledge of the undersigned' no event has occurred since the date of

the preriminary orficiat Statement affeJting the statements and inforrnation described i' Paragraph 6

48'7 8-9829 -46'1 | v 3 I 024667 -r 1 4 t

G-lPage 350

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



or.trre Letter of Representations relating to trre Deveroper, its Affiriates, ownership of the Property'

the Developer's development plan, the o*"iop"t's financing plan' the Developer's lenders' if any'

and contractual arrangements of the o*"iopt' or-any eifitiutet (i'cluding' if 'raterial 
to the

Developer's development plan oI the o"o"top"''' financing plan' loans of such Affiliates) (and

subject to the ti,ritulion, and exclusions contained in Parag'Ipi' O of trc Leter.of Representations)

which should be discrosed in the official sru,",',"n, for trre pu.po.", for which it is to be used in

order to make such statements and information "ontuined 
in the official statement not misleading in

3,Fortheperiodthrough25daysafterthe..EndoftheUnderwritingPeriod''as
defined in the Purchase Agreement iot""*{ the. Developer may assume the End of the

underwriting period is the ciosing o"|,'t". J.irned in the Bond puichase Agreement), unress it

receives written notice from the uno.r*itJrinur,n. End of the underwriting period is later than the

Closing Date), if th" unJersigned fr", "tt'"i-tno*ttagt 
of any event r-elaiing to or affecting the

Developer, its erntiai.r, oJn.rrhip ;i;; rroperti, the Developer's development plan' the

Developer,s financing plan, th.e 9"y..1"n".;, 
t.na."rr, if uny, and contractual arrangements of the

Deveioper or any a?f,iiu,., (includineiii -ut"'iul to the beveloper's development plan or the

Developer'sfinancingplan,loansofsu"hAffiliates),tocausetheinformationunderthesectionsof
the Official Statemenl indicated in faragrupt O of !n"::ot'of Representations !t"1:"bi::tl:-t:
limitations uno ,""i*ion, "o,rtuinrd 

i" F;i"graph 6 of the Letter of Rep.esentations) to contarn an

untrue staternent of a material fact or ," "*,,?" 
J*e a materiar fact necessary to make the statements

therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misisading, the undersigned

sha, notify the city and the underwritel uni ;r in the opinion or ine Underrvriter or counsel to the

City, it is necessary to amend o, ,rppi",otnt tt.," Official Statement in order to make the Official

Statement n", -,ili#':,n".il, rilti "r rhe circumstances under which thev were made, the

Developer shall reasonab-iy coope.11" *i,-'' ihe city and the underwriter in the preparation of an

amendment o, ,upfi*"niro ttre orficiat statement-in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to

the Underwriter and Discrosure counrJ'*nich wi'amend or supprernent the officiar statement so

that it wi, not contain an untrue statement of a materiar fact or omit to state a material fact necessary

in order to make ai.-.*,n"nt, tn"r.in,'ir ir.," light of the circumstanoes under which they were

any material resPect'

rurade, not misleading

4 The Developer has duly and validly executed and delivered the Lennar continuing

Disclosure Certificate

By

EaclroftheundersignedhasexecutedthisClosingCertificatesolelyinhisorhercapacityas
an olficer o, ..p."r.nrurio" if rf',. o"u"loi"'l; ;t;t she"will have no personal liability arising from

or relating to this Closing Certificate

LENNAR HOMES OF CALIFORNIA' LLC

a California limited liability company

48'/ 8-9829 -4 6'1 1 v3 I 02466-l -0 1 4 I

G-2Page 351

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



EXHIBIT H

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

CITYoFFoLSoMCOMMUNITYFACILITIESDISTRICTNo.23
(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVBMENT AREA NO' 2

SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS

SDRIES 2024

CLOSINGCERTIFICATEoFAGEHCII(LEN)CAZ'L.P.

_,2A24

Folsom Ranch Financing AuthoritY

50 Natorna Street
Folsom, CA,95630

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No' 23

(Folsom Ranch)
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA,95630

Piper Sandler & Co.

lOZ6 F air Oal<s Boulevard
Sacramento, Cal ifornia 95 864

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Reference is made to the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community

Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom nun.fl) Improvement Area No' Z Special Tax Revenue Bonds'

Series 2024 (theo'Bonds") and to the Bond Puichase Agreement' dated 

-' 

2024 (the "Purchase

Agreement"), ente.eJ into in connection therewith' Tf,is Closing Certificate of AG EHC II (LEN)

cA z,L.P. (the "closing Certificate") is delivered by AG EHC rI GEN) CA Z' L'P'' a Delaware

limited partnership (the "Landowner").pur.uant to the P.urchase Agreement' capitalized terms used

herein and not otherwise defined nuu" tri. r"uning. ascribed to them in the Letter of Representations

ofAGEHCII(LEN)CA2,L.P.(the"LetterofRepresentations")',dated'2A23'deliveredby
the Landowner'

Each of the undersigned certifies that he or she is fanriliar with the facts herein certified and

is authorized and qualified to certify the same as an authorized officer or representative of the

Landowner, and each of the undersignecl, on behalf of the Landowner, further certifies as follows:

l. The Lanclowner has received the final official statement dated '- ' 2a24 jelating

to the Bonds (the ,,officiar statement,,), Each statement, representation-and warranty made in the

Letter of Representations is true and cor-ect in a'materiar respects on and as of the date hereof with

the same effect as if nrade on the date rrereof, except that ali ref'eretrces therein to the Preliminary

official Statement shall be deemed to be referetlces to the final official Statement'

2. To the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned, no event has occurred since the date of

the preli'rinary offlciar Staternent affelting the statements and information described in Paragraph 3

48'7 8 -9829 -467 | v 3 I 024 667 -01 4 |

H-1Page 352

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



of the Letter. of Representations rerating to the Landowner and its ownership of the property whiclr

should be disclosed in the official Statemeltt for the purposes for which it is to be used in order to

make such statements and information contuined in ih" offi.iur State'rent not rnisleading in any

3. For the period through 25 days after. the "End of the underwriter Period" as

definedinthepurchaseAgreement,ifanyeventrelatingtooraffectingtheLandownerorthe
ownership of the property by the Landowner shall occur as a resurt of which it is necessary, in the

opinion of the Unaeiwrite, *.ornr.f a ift" CitV, to amend-or supplement the Official Statement in

order to make the official Statement not *isl"uding in the light of ttre circumstalces existing at the

time it is delivered to a purchaser, the Landowner ihull ,.ur6nably cooperate 
-with 

the City and the

Underwriter in trre preparation of an amendment or supplement to it'r. oir"iut Statement in form and

substance reasonabry iuii.iu",orv to the underwriter'and Discrosure counsel which will amend or'

supprement trre ornliai;;;.#, ,o tt,utlt wiil not contain an untrue statement of a material fact or

omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the Iight of the

circumstanc., 
"*irting*ur 

,t. ,i*" the bfficiul Statement is delivered to a purchaser, not misleading'

Each of the undersigned has executed this closing certificate solely in his or her capacity as

an officer o,. ,"pr.r.nr"tive-of the fandowner and he oishe will have no personal liability arising

from or relating to this Closing Certificate'

material resPect.

AG ESSENTIAL HOUSING CA?,L.P., A

Delaware limited ParlnershiP

By:

48'1 8-9829-4 6'7 I r'3/024667-0 I 4 I

H-2Page 353

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



EXHIBIT I

FORM OF OPINION OF COUNSEL TO TRI POINTE HOMES HOLDINGS' INC'

[Closing Date]

Folsom Ranch Financing AuthoritY

50 Natoma Street

Folsom, California 95630

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No' 23

(Folsom Ranch)
50 Natoma Street

Folsom, Calilornia 95630

Piper Sandler & Co.
3626Fair Oaks Boulevard, Suite 100

Sacramento, Cal ifornia 95 864

Re: $_ Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Cily of Folsom community

F*ltltl^ Dlttrict No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No' 2 Special Tax

Revenue Bonds Series 2024

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as special counsel to Tri Pointe Homes Holdings, lnc., a Delaware corporation

(the ,,Developer',), in connection with the issuance of the above-referenced bonds (the "2024

Bonds,,) by the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the "Authority"). All real property located

within Improvement Area No. 2 (the "improvement Area") of the City of Folsom Community

Facilities District No. 23 (Folsorn Ranch) (the "Community Facilities District") and owned by the

Developer is ref-erred to herein as the,.property." The2024 Bonds are being sold to Piper Sandler &

co., as underwriter (the "underwriter"). This opinion letter is being delivered lo you pursuant to

Section 4(FX2l) of the Bond Purchase Agreerrent,dated 

-,2024,belween 

the Authority and the

Underwriter (the "Purchase Agreement")'

In the course of acting as special counsel to the Developer as herein described, we

have examined the following documents:

(a) Preliminary official Statement, dut.d 
-,_,,2?2:, 

prepared in conjunction

with the issuance and sale of the i02+Bonas (the "Preliminary Official Statement");

(b) official Statement, dated 

-, 

2024, prepared in conjunction with the

issuance and sale of the 2024Bonds (the "official Statement");

(c) Continuing Disclosure Certificate-Homebuilder, dated as of , 2024

(the ,lcontinuingDisclosure Document"), executed by the Developer;

487 8-9829 -46'l I vi 1024667 -0 | 4 I

I- I
Page 354

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



(d) Letter of Representarions of Tri Pointe Homes I-loldings, Inc. dated 

-,2a23, and closing certificate of rri Pointe Homes Holdings' Inc" dated 

-) 

2024' each

executed by the Developer (collectively, the "Developer certificates");

(e) certificate of Incorporation of lre Developer, filed with the Delaware

Secretary of State, as amended, and Byiaws of the Developer, as anrended (collectively' the

"Developer Formation Documents");

cate of Good Standing of the Developer from the Delaware Secretaty

2024, and Certificate of Stutut of the Developer from the Caliiornia
(0

of State dated

Certifi

Secretary of State dated _-,2024; and

(g)Suchotheragreements,contractsanddocumentsaswedeernedrelevantfor
the purposes of this oPinion.

In addition, we have made such factual and other inquiries and examinations as we

deemed necessary for the purposes of this opinion letter'

We call to your attention the fact that we are not general counsel to the Developer

and do not represent the Developer on a continuing basis. Rather, we are representing the Developer

solely in connection with its in;eractions with the-Authority, the community Facilities District and

the iity of Folsom (the "City") in connection with the issuance of the 2024 Bonds'

Whenever we have indicated in this opinion letter that the existence or absence of

facts is based on our knowledge, it is intended to signiiy that during the course of our replesentation

of the Developer as herein described, no information has come to the attention of the lawyers in our

firm actively representing the Developer in the matterc described herein which would give them

current actual knowledge"of the existence or absence of such facts. PJease be advised that only John

P. Yeager and Sandra A. Galle have been so involved'

Except to the extent expressly set forth herein, we have not undedaken any

independent investig'ations to determine the existence or absence of such facts' and no inference as to

ourknowledge of tie existence or absence of such facts should be drawn from our representation of

the Developer. We have made no examination of, and express no opinion as to, title to the Property,

the ability of the Deveroper to deverop the properly (except as specifically set forth in paragraph 6

below), or the viability of the development of the Properly by the Developer as described in the

Offrcial Statement.

As to certain factual matters (which we have not independently established or

verified), including, without lirnitation, the siatus of the development of the Property by the

Developer and existing developrnent eniitlernents and future development entitlenrents which must

be obtained in order 6r tne Developer to cornplete the development and sale of the Property, we

have relied upon statements, certificates and other assurancei of public officials and of certain

officers and agents of the Developer, as well as employees and/or consultants of the Developer'

In expressing the opinions below, we have assumed, without inquiry or investigation,

(i) the genuineness of all silnatures, the autlrenticity of all docurnents sr,rbnritted to us as originals,

the confonnity to original documents of documents submitted lo us as copies or as exhibits, arrd the

487 8-9829 -4 67 | v3 I 024 66'l -0 t 4 I

t-2 Page 355

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



authenticity of such originals of suclr latter docurnents; (ii) that there are no orar or written tern'ls or

conditions agreed to by the Authority, trre commu'ity Facirities District, the city, a'd/or the

Developer which would have an effect on the opinions rendered herein; (iii) that there has not been

any mutual mistake of fact or nrisunderstanding which would have an effect on the opiniorrs rendered

herein; and (iv) that all parties have complieJwith any req.uirement of good faith and fair dealing'

noncorirpliance with wtrictr wor-tld have an effect on the opinions rendered herein'

Based solely upon and subject to the foregoing as well as to the qualifrcations'

lirnitatlons, exclusions, exceptions, urru,1-|piions and other matters set forth herein' we are of the

The Developer is a corporation, duly incorporated, validly existing and in good

standing under the laws or in" State of b.r"*"r", uni i. registered to transact business as a foreign

corporation in the Stut. of California and is in good standing under the laws of the State of

opinion that:

California

2. The Developer has tl,e corporate power and corporate authority to execute'

deliver and perform its obligations under the continuing Disclosure Document'

3. The execution and delivery by the Developer of the Continuing Disclosure

Document and the performance by the n"u"top". oi itt outigations thereunder. (i) have been duly

authorized by ail necessary corporate u.ri* onih" part of the Developer and (ii) will not result in a

niotution of, a breach of, or. a default under the Developer Formation Documents'

4. The continuing Disclosure Document has been duly executed and delivered

by the Developer and constitutes the f"gufly valid and binding obligation of the Developer'

enforceable against the Developer in accordance with its terms'

5. To our knowledge, there is ll0 action, suit, proceeding, irtquiry ?'

investigation, by or before any coLirt, gonJrn*.ntal agency, public board or body' pendirrg or overtly

threatened against the Deveroper which (A) seeks to prohibit, restrain or enjoin the proposed

development by ttre Deu.lop"r of the p."p"ov as d.esciibed in the official Staternent; oL (B) if

determined adversery to the Developer is .eusonabry likely to have a material adverse effect on the

Developer,s abitity (i) to comply with. its-Jligation. ,nd"ithe Continuing Disclosure Document' (ii)

to develop the Property as described-in the official staternent or (iii) to pay special taxes or ad

valorem property taxes related to the rrop"*y when due;^o,r (c) seeks to cause the Developer to be

adjudicated u, uunr.rupr or discharged from uny ot all of its debts or obligations; or (D) grants or

seeks to grant an extension of time to puy *" Deveroper's debts or seeksto effect a reorga*ization or

a readjustmer,t of the Developer's debts'

6. Witbout having undertaken to determine independently tlre accurac.y'

completeness, or fainress of tl.re staternlnts contained in the preriminary official statenrent a'd the

official Statenrent, but based solely on (i) our limited ca.pacity as special counsel to the Developer'

(ii) the representations of the Developei and/o, its employees and/or consultatrts, and oLtr reliance

thereon, and (iii) our 
'eview 

of rhe Prelinrinary official statement arid the official Statetnent' no

facts lrad or 
'ave 

come to our attention during the course of our represerrtation of ihe Developer as

described irerein which caused us to believ, ihu, the information describing Developmenr Matters

(defined berow) .onoin.o in the neteount Sections (defined berow) of the p'erir'inary offlcial

48'] 8 -9829 -467 | v3 / 024661 -0 I 4 |

I-3Page 356

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Statenrent as of its date ( ,2023)or as of the date of the Purchase Agreenrent L-' 2024)' ot

the Relevant Sections of the Official Statement as of its date ( 'ZO.i+1or 
as of the date hereof'

contained or contains any untrue ,tut.*"ni of a material fact o*i omitted or omits to state a material

fact necessary to *"f" ii,t rtatements 'ft*ti", 
i" light of tlre circumstances under which they were

made, not misleading; provided, however, in each case' we express no belief or conclusion as to (a)

any financial statemJnts and other financiut, ttutlttitaf, e-c1l3ttlic or engineering information' data or

forecasts, numbers, charts, estimates, projections, assumptions or expressions of opinion' (b) any

inforrnation about valuation, opprulJr, absorption or environmetrtal matters (other than

environmental permitting) included ot'ltf",=nttO therein' including' without limitation' any

information describing or summariting utt o' uny part of the Appraisal (ai such term is defined in the

officiai Statement), and (c) uny infor,n.tion *rri.rt is identifie-d as having been provided by a source

other than the Developer). For purpor"r-oithis paragraph: tl.llnl."nelllan..sections" means the

sections of the preliminary official stui",n"nt'and-the official Statement entitled "PRoPosED

PROPERTY DEV;'OP],AENT" UNA.ICONTINUING DI S CLOSURE-ThC HOMEbUiIdETS-

Prior continuing orrrtoruru Complrance - Tri Pointe" and the term "Development Matters"

meanstheDeveloper,itsAffiliateslasoefinedintheDeveloper.Ceftificates),ownershipofthe
Property, the Developer's devefopt"nt"plun, 

'f''t 
Developer's financi'rg plan' the Developer's

lenders, if any, and contractual arrangemeit' or the Develofer or any of its. ntfitiates (including' if

rnaterial to the Developer's developme;; ;il or the Dttl"lop""' financing plan' loans of such

ouropinionssetforthinthisopinionletteraresubjecttothefollowing"'.ii1l:::,
exceptions, qualifications, limitations and .""Iu'ion', in addition to those assutnptions' excepttons'

qrutin.utions, limitations and exclusions set forth above:

A.Theforegoingopinionsarequalifiedtotheextentthat(i)thelegality,
validity, binding nature and enfoiceauitti'ortrre contin,ing Disclosure Document may be limited by

and subject to bankruptcy, insolven.y, ,"o.gu,' ization,moratorium or otlrer sinrilar laws affecting the

rights of creditorS "; ;; hereafter i" "ff;;, 
(incruding, without lirniration, any raw pertaining to

preferential or fraudulent transfers;, o. ,r,uf ue timited by and subject to legal or general principles of

equity (whether such enforceability is considered in a pioceeding in equity ol' at law)'

conscionability, reasonableness, good faith or iair dealing' wliether relating to creditors' rights or

otherwise, and (ii) any remedy or.p..ii,, performanct uno. injunctive and other lorms of equitable

relief are sr.rbject to c.ertain equitable olr.,rr", and to the discretion of the court before which any

proceeding therefor may be brought'

B.WeexpressnoopinionaSto(i)anynratters.relatedtoarclritecture,
construction, engineering, or the seismic or environtnental condition of the Properly (except as

specifically set fbrth ln plrugruph 6 above), including' withorrt limitation' anv matters relating to the

handling, storage, transportation or disposal of hazard-ous. or toxic nraterials' (ii) any laws' rules or

regutations relating thereto, and/or rilli ."v other scientific or proibssional field as such opinion

wluld be beyond the scope of any opinion expressed herein'

c. we express no opinion on the enforceability under certain circumstances of

provisions to the effect that rights or remedies are not excrr"rsive, that rights or remedies'ray be

exercised withont notice, that every right or remedy is cumurative and rnay be exercised in addition

to or with any other right or renredy, ihut tt," ereciior-, of a particr"rrar rernedy or remedies does not

Affiliates).

4 8 78-9829-46'7 | v 3 I (\24661 -0 1 4 1

l-4Page 357

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



preclude recourse to one or lrofe other remedies, or that the failure to exercise or delay in exercrsrng

rightsorremedieswillnotopefateasawaiver.ofartysuchrightorrelnedy.

D.Weexpressnoopinionasto(i)anyrightsofset-off!oll':'thanasprovided
by section 3054 of the caiifoinia ciuli 6oJ., as interpreted by applicable judicial decisions); (ii)the

enfbrceabirity of any provision pro.,icting io, ina.rr,,rification foi clainis, losses or liabilities to the

extenr such indemnification is prohibiteiby applicable taw or contrary to public policy; or (iii) the

enforceability of any provisions or ug'"tt"n'designating a party as an agent or attorney-in-fact'

except where un ug.nr'o,. attorney_in-ru"i l*..r,.0 ttr. conlinui'rg bit"rosure Document on beharf of

E'WeexpressnoopinionaStothe.legality,validity,bindingnatureor
enforceability (whether in accordun". *iit, its terms or otherwise) of any provision insofar as it

provides for the payment or reimburseurent of costs and expenses in excess of a reasonable alnount

determined by any court of other tribur*i (f"'fl"'' we wish to bring to your attention that to the

extent any such provisio' provides for the payrnent of attorneys' fees in litigation, under california

law such attorneys' fees may be granted only L the prevailing party and such provisions are deemed

to extend to both parties, notwithstanoing trr"t such piovisions by their express terms benefit only one

the DeveloPer

pafty).

other jurisdiction'

such matier

F'Weexpressnoopinionregarding,anylawsorregulationsinvolvingtaxes,
including without rimitation, we express io opi"ion'as tolhe excrusion from gross income for fede'al

incorne tax purposes of the inte.eri on the 2024 Bonds' or the exemption of the interest on lhe 2021

Bonds from the State of California personal inconre taxes'

G'Exceptasspecificallysetforthinparagraph6above,weexpressnoopinion
as to (i) compliance wittr tne anti-iraud proul'ionu of-appii"abte iederal 

i"-1 ::T 
securities or other

raws, rules or regurations or (ii) trre appricabirity or effect on the subject transaction of the securities

laws of the State of carifornia, the United s,u,., of America, including but 'ot limited to the

Securities Act of 1933, as amended' and any other jurisdiction'

H.WearelicerrsedtopracticelaworrlyinthestateofCalifornia.Accordingly,
we are opining onry as to tlie internal raws qexcruding rawsrelatingto conflicts of laws) of the State

of California, the federal laws of the Unitecl Stut"s of Ameiica' and the Delaware General

corporation Law, and assume no responsibility as to the applicability or effect of the laws of any

I,Wheneverwehavestatedthatwehaveassunredanymatteroffact,itis
intended to indicate that we have assumed such matter without rnaking any factuar, regal or other

inquiry or investigation, and without expressing atry opinion or conclusion of any kind concerning

J.Thisopinionletterisfurnishedtoyouspecificallyinconnectionwiththe
issuance of the 2a24 Ronds pursuant to tlre ternrs of the Purchase Agfeement, and solely for your

inforrnation and benefit. lt rriay not be utilized, relied on, quoted or distributed to any other person

by you in any other connectioi, and lt ,'t',uy not be utilized' relied on or quoted by any other person

48'., 8-9829 -467 I v lil024(r(r? -0 I 4 I

l-5Page 358

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



for any purpose, without in each instance our express prior written consent; provided' however' a

copy may be includJ in the transcript of the proceedings for the 2024 Bonds'

K'Tlreopinionsexpressedhereinaregivenonthedatehereofandarebasedon
thefacts(asweknow,believeorhaveu..rmedthemtobe)andlawasineffectonthedatehereof'
we undeftake neither to supplement or upour. this opinion letter nor 

""d:::11:,:: 
advise you of any

other party if there is a change in law- or facts or new facts come to our attention subsequent to the

date hereof which may affect the opinion,-t*p"""d above and/or which may cause us to amend any

portion of this opinioi ietter in furi or in p# If future.acts ar omissions of the parties may serve to

modify, alter or change the circum.tuni", under which the opinions herein were rendered' our

opinions set forth t;*?;opinion letter shariremain as if such future acts or omissions did not occur'

Also,actions,conductoromissionsbyap-ar.tyT.aytT?lta^situationofwaiver'estoppelornovation
*ni.ft would supplant the opinions set forth in this opinion letter'

Very Truly Yours,

4 878-9829-46 7 | v3 I 024 661 -0 | 4 |

I-6Page 359

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



EXHIBIT J

FORMoFOPINIONoFCOUNSELToLENNARHOMESoFCALIFORNIA'LLC

[Closing Date]

Folsom Ranch Financing AuthoritY

50 Natoma Street

Folsom, California 95 630

City of Folsom Commnnity Facilities DistrictNo' 23

(Folsom Ranch)
50 Natorrra Street

Folsom, Califolnia 9563 0

Piper Sandler & Co.

ZAZAPaiT Oaks Boulevard, Suite 100

Sacramento, California 95864

Re:$-FolsomRanchFinancingAuthorityCityofFolsomCommunity
ra"itffiffitiii;N-;. il ln"mt" nanJtrl Improvement Area No. 2 special rax

Revenue Bonds, Series 2024

Ladies and Gentlemen:

we have acted as counsel to Lennar Hornes of californ ia, LLC, a California limited liability

company (the,,Devei;n*;t in connection with the issuance and sale by the Folsom Ranch Financing

Authority (the "Issuer") of $ ,= , fol,o*. Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No7: Ipotsom Ranch) Improvement Area No' 2 Special Tax Revenue

Bonds, Series 2024 {the,,Bonds,,) to provide fundi to finance the purchase of rimited obrigation

speciar tax bonds ithe 
,.ctro 23 Locar cinirg*r"rs"), iss,ed by the city of Folsorn (tlre "city") for

the benefit of the city of Forsom comm"unrty Facilities Dlstrict No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the

"District"). This opinion is rendered pursuant to ttte Bond Purchase Agreement dated 

-' 

2A24

(the ,.Bond pu..rrus" Agreement"), entered into in connection therewith' capitalized terms used

herein without definition-shall have ihe rneanings set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement'

Inrenderingtheopinionssetforthherein,wehavereviewedandexanrinedsuchdocuments
as we have determined to fe appropriate, including the following documents:

l. The Bond Purchase Agreement;

2. The preliminary official Statement and the Final official Statenrent (together, the

"Off,rcial Statement");

3. Lennar HOmeS continuing Disclosure c-ertificate dated *-' 2024' executed by

Developer (the "Developer Disclosure Certificate"); and

4878-9829-46 7 I v 3 1024667 -01 4 |

J-lPage 360

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



4. Letter of Representations of Lennar Homes of California, LLC, dated _--,2023,

and the closing certificate of Ltrtnu' uo''l"' or california' LLC' dated _-__'2024'both as required

pursuant to the Bond Purchase Agreement (collectively, the "Developer certificate")'

Withrespecttofactualmaltersunderlyingouropinionsherein,wehavemadenoindeperident
investigation or inquiry and have r"li"d.;;i;ii ;;"" Lennar Homes' Certificate' We advise you that

thephrase..toourk;;;i;Jg","as.usedherein,,n"un'thatnofactshavecometoourattention'based
upon an inquiry or uii"rffi in this frnn who devote substantive regal attention to Developer, or as a

resurt of our examination of Lennar Hor.r, certificate, that indicite to us anything contrary to tlre

statement to which the phrase relates. r*""pt as e.xpressly set forth above, the phrase does not mean

that we have conducted any investigation-;ifi;y or plrformed any other examination or review'

we have no reason ,;;"ii;"; that any factual matters or assumptions relied upon by us are not true,

correct and comPlete.

ouropinionshereinarelimitedtotheinternallawsoftheStateofCaliforniaandthefederal
laws of the united States of America w; ;;p;.ss no opinion whatsoever with respect to the laws of

any other jurisdiction and assume no responsif ility fot the applicability of such laws'

In rendering our opinions herein, we have assumed the following' with your approval:

i.Tlregenuinenessandauthenticityofallsignaturesonoriginaldocuments
submitted ro us (other than d;i;"ilr", o,', tehalf of ieveloper); the authenticitv and

completeness of all documents ,ru-iu"o to us as originals; the conformity to originals of all

documents subrritted to us as 
""pi.r;-rrr"reany 

signiture, other than any signature on behalf

of Developer purports to have b"e,, mude in a corporate, governmental, fiduciary or other

capaciry, the person who affixed such signature had ihe full power and authority to do so;

ii.Tlredueauthorization,executionanddeliveryoftheapplicableagreements
by the parties thereto, other than the Developer, and the legaiity' validity' binding effect and

enforceabilltv "g"i"ti 
tuct purties of their respective obligations under such agreements;

iii. The truth, accuracy and completeness of all factual representations and

warranties of all parties unde r ,n. J'.r""..nts described in paragraphs I through 4, above;

iv. The constitutionality or validity of a relevant statute' rule' regulation or

agency action is not in irrr. ,]t.,, ' reportld decision in the State of California lras

specificallyaddressedbutnotresolved,orhasestablished,itsunconstitutionalityor
invaliditY; and

V'AllofficialpubliclecordsrelieduporrbyuSareaccurateandcomplete.

Basedupontheforegoingandinreliancethereon,andbased0nourexaminationofsuclr
questions of law as we have deemeo upfropriute under the circumstances, and subject to any further

assumptions, conrnents, exceptio^r, ;;;lif;;uiion. and linritations set forth below, as of the date

lrereof, it is oul oPinion that:

1'Developerisalimitedliabilitycolnpanyvalidly.}':.i:garrdingoodstarrdirrg
as a limited liability company under rhe laws oi ,n! state of califolnia and is in good

4 8'7 8 -9 tl29 - 4 67 | v 3 I 02 4 667 -0 I 4 1

J-2Page 361

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



standing in the State of califolnia, and has full power arrd authority to enter into the

Developer Disclosure Certifi cate'

2,DeveloperhasdulyandvalidlyexecutedanddeliveredtlreDeveloper.
Disclosur.e Certificate, and the Developer Oi"lo'u" Certificate constitutes the legal' valid

and binding obligation of Develop.r, .nfo"tuble against Developer in accot'dance with its

terms.

3'Toourknowledge,theexecutionanddeliverybyDeveloperoftheDeveloper
Disclosure certificate and the p.rfor*un". or ir. obligationi thereunder do not arrd will not

result in a violation of any provision of, ot in dJfault under any agreement or other

instrunrent to which Developer is a party'

4,Toourknowledge,Developerisnotinviolationofanyprovisiorroforin
default under, its organizational documents or any agreement or other instrunrent' violation or

default under which would materiafiy uno uon"6Jy affe"t the business, properties' assets,

liabilities or conditions (financial o,. otn"j oi o*u"ioper with respect to Developer's ability

to develop ,"ur prop",tl;;; by Developer within the Improvement Area'

5.Toourknowledge,exceptassetforthintlreofficialStatement,thereisno
titigation pending ";;i;;;";"lio:r iwith service of process to Developer havi'g been duly

given and .on.'pt"t.l6J-'o.- on".tty'th.eat"neo against Developer which would materially and

adversely affect tfr"'uuliOity o, "nfor.;il;y 
of the-Developer Disclosure Certificate'

Developer,s ability to complete the d*;i6r"nt of its property located within the

Improvement Area u, propot"a in the official Statement or to pay the special Taxes'

6.Withouthavingundertakentodetermineindependentlytheaccuracy,
completeness or t-airness of thi ,,u,"*"nt' contained in the Offrcial Statetnent under the

captions .,pRol,ospn pROpERTt DEVELOPMENT" and "CONTINUING

DISCL'SURE-TheHomebuild"rr-PriorContinuingDisclo.sm'eCompliance-Lennar
Hanles,,(exceptthatnoopinionorbeliefneedtobeexpressedastoarryinformatiorrrelating
to The Depository Trust company, or 

""v 
itr"t"tation relating to GUSIP numbers' or with

respect to any financial, statistical 
"t. ""gi""*i:? :ll::t:1tion' 

data or forecasts' numbers'

charts, estimates, projections, assunrptlons or expressions of opinion' assessed valuations or

appraised values, o," ,o any informuti* *h;ch is attributable to a sollrce otl-rer than

Developer, "onru,n"d 
in the"official Statement), no facts came to our attention during the

colrrse of our rrpr"r"n,urion of O"u.tofl'ift"i *""fa lead us to believe that the inforrnation

under said caption; ;i the official'Stut"-"nt relating to Developer and Developer's

organizations, uctiuliies, properties ana finan"ial condition' and its pLoposed development of

the property (u, O"i,n"a'in',tr" n"u.tof"t Certificate)', contains atry ttntrue staternent of a

material fact or omits apy material fu.ilt"*"ury in oide' to make tlre statements therein' in

thelightofthe"i'."u*,tun.esunderwhichtheyweremade,notmisleading.

ln addition, all of our opinions expressed hereinabove are specifically surbject to arrd linrited

by the following:

a)Weexpressnoop-inionaStomattersgovernedbyanylawsotherthantlresubstantive
laws of carifornia which are in effect as of the date hereof, and we urrrrn. no obligation to modify or

suppletnerrtthisopiriionwithrespecttochangesinsuchlawsafterthedatelrereof'

J-3

481 8-9829 - 46'7 | t 3 I 024667 -0 I 4 |

Page 362

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



b) As counsel to Developer irr this matter, we lrave not rendered financial advice to the

Developer and do no, ,.fr"r.nt, by ihis opiniorr or otherwise, that we have reviewed or made any

assessment about, nor do we offer uny opinion about, the financial conditio* of the Developer, past,

present or futnre, including any financial infonnation co'tai'ed in the Deveroper Disclosure

certificate; nor have *...ui."n.0 trr" nnun.iar feasibirity of this transaction or those matters which

the proceeds of the Bonds will fund or any of it components and' accordingly' we offer no opinion

whaisoever legarding such financial feasibility'

c) The effect of laws ol- court decisions relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent

conveyance, equitable subordination, reorganization, arrangelnent' nroratorium or other laws or court

decisions relating to or affecting creditors' rights generally'

d) Limitations imposed by California or federal law or equitable principles upon the

availability of the remedy of specific f".fo.,rrun"e of any of the remedies' covenants or other

provisions of any document o, ugr""*"nt and upon the availability of injunctive relief or other

equitable remedies.

In addition, we express no opinion as to the title of the property within the District or any

entitlements, permits, approvals or other assets relating to the Developer's development of its

;6".y located within tirl pistrict as proposed in the Official Statement'

we express no opinion as to any mattel- other than as expressly set forlh above' and' in

conjunction therewith, specifically "tpr"., 
no opinion concerning the application of or compliance

with any federal ,".uritie, law, intludlng, but not li*it.d to, the Sicurities Act of 1933, as amended'

and the Trust Indenture Act of 1g3g, JJ amended, any state securities or "Brue Sky" law, or any

federal, state or local tax law, as respecting the Bonds'

This letter is intended solely for your use in relation to the Bond Purchase Agreement and

may not be reprodu."J o,- filed puUliciy or relied upon for any other purpose by you or for any

purpose wlratsoever by any other party without the express written consent of the undersigned except

that this opinion may be copied and distributed as part of a closing book of the bond transaction

documents, provided that such distribution shall not exparrd in any way the permitted uses of this

letter.

We assume no responsibility for the effect of any fact or circumstance occurring subsequent

to the date of this letter, including, without linritation, legislative or other changes in the law'

Further, we assume no responsibility to advise you of uny fu"tt or circu^mstances of which we

become aware after the date hereof, regardless of whether o, not they rnay affect our opinions herein'

This opinion is given as of tlre date hereof, and we assulle no obligation to update our opinions

herein after the date hereof.

Very trulY Yours,

48'7 8-9829 -4 67 t v 3 t 024667 -0 I 4 |

t-4Page 363

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



BXHIBIT K

SUPPLEMENTAL OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL

2024)

Piper Sandler & Co', as Undetwriter

Sacramento, Cal i forni a

Folso

CitY of Folsom Comrr
rn Ranch Financing AuthoritY

unity Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lnprovenlent Area No. 2I
Speci alTax Reven Bonds. Series

(Supplemental OPini on)

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This letter is addressed to you, as Underwriter, pursuant to section 4'F '7 ' of the Bond

purchase Agreement, dated 

-,2Q24 

(the "Purchase Agreement"), between you and the Folsom

Ranch Financing Authority (the "Authorii"), providing pi ltre 
purchase of $.- aggregate

principar amount oi rolro,o Ranch einln"ing A,thJrity^ city of Folsom -community Facilities

District No, 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement irea No. 2 Special rax Revenue Bonds, series 2024

(the,,Bonds,,). The Bonds are being i;;;J pursuant to a Trust Agreement' dated as of January 1'

2AZ4 (he "Trust Agreement"), attlong'it. Autftority, the City o1 Folsom Community Facilities

District No. 23 (Forsorn Ranch) 1t1.,. 
;co-*unity Facilities District") and U.S. Bank Trust

company, National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee")' capitalized terms not otherwise defined

herein shail have the meanings ascribed,rr".",o in the Trust Agieernent or, if not defined in the Trust

Agreement, in the Purchase Agreetnent'

we have delivered our flnal legal opinion (the "Bond opinion"). as bond counsel to the

Authority concerning the validity of the-Bonds and ceftain other matters' dated the date hereof and

addressed to the Authority. you may ,Jy on such opinion as tliough the same were addressed to

you.

InconnectionwithourroleasborrdcounseltotheAuthority,wehavereviewedthePurchase
Agreement; the Trust Agreement; tlre l-ocat obligations Indenture; th. Tu* Certificate, dated the date

hereof (the ,,Tax Ce,tifi-cate,,), of the Aurhoriry:the community Facilities District and the city of

Folsom (the ,,city,,); cerlain poftions 
"i.15" 

0".r.9 pl:]ilinary official statement of the Authority'

dated 

-- 
, 2A23, with respect to th; non.rr (the "Prelirninary official Statement") and of the

posted official statenrent of the Authority, dated 2Q2i, with respect to the Bonds (the

.,official Statement,,); opinions of .ounr"iio the Auth-ority, the cornmunity Facilities District, the

Trustee, Tri Pointe Honres Holdings, in". ('rti Pointe") and Lennar Homes of california' LLC

(,,Lennar,,); cerlificates of the nutt..'oriiy, the Comrnunity Facilities District, the Trustee' Integra

Realty Resources (the "Appraiset'"), Ngd (tl'," "special Tax Consultant")' Tri Poi'te' Lennar' AG

Essential Housing CA ,,L.P., and otlrers;.and such other docutnents, opinions and matters to the

extent we deemed n.".*urv to render the opiliions and conclusions set forth herein'

Theopinionsandconclusionsexpressedhereinarebasedonananalysisofexistinglaws,
regulations, ,utings and court decisions and cover cefiain matters not directly addressed by such

ar.rthorities'Suchopinionsorconclu,ion,maybeaffectedbyactionstakenoronrittedorevents

48'1 8'9829 -4(t7 | v 3 I 024667 -A I 4 l

K-lPage 364

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



occurring afier t|e original delivery of the Bonds on the date hereof' We have not undertaken to

determine, or to infbr#any person, whether any such actions are taken or omitted or events do occur

or any other matte.r.onr. to our attention afteithe original delivery of the Bonds on the date hereof'

we have assumed tlie genuineness of all docunrents and signatures provided to us and the due and

legal execution and deiuery thereof by, and validity against, any parties othet' than the Authority'

We have assurned, withoui undertalcing to verify, the accuracy of tlre factual matters represented,

warranted or certifled in the documents, and oi the legal conclusions contained in the opinions,

referred to in the third paragraph hereof. We have further assurned compliance with all covenants

and agreements contain.o in .u"tr documents. In addition, we call attention to the fact that the rights

and Jbligations under the Bonds, the Trust Agreement, the Local Obligations Indenture, the Tax

certificate arrd the pur.chase Agreement and iheir enforceability rnay be subject to bankruptcy,

insolvency, reorganization, receiiership, arrangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium and other

laws relating to or-affecting creditors' iigl'rtr, to the application of equitable principles' to the exercise

of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and io ttre limitations on legal remedies against

gou'..n,,n.ntal entities srctr us thl Authority and the community Facilities District in the state of

califorrria. w. .*ir.rr no opinion with iespect to any indemnification, contribution, liquidated

damages, penalty (inclgding any remedy deemed to constitute or to have the effect of a penalty)'

right if ,.i-off, arbitration, iuOicial reference, choice of law, choice of forum, choice of venue, non-

ex-clusivity of remedies, *uiu". or severability provisions contained in the foregoing documents, nor

do we express any opinions with respect to the state or quality of title to or interest in any assets

described in or as .uuj""t to the lien oithe Trust Agreement or the Local obligations Indenture or the

accuracy or sufficiency of the description contained therein of, or the remedies available to enforce

liens on, any such urr"ir. We also express no opinion regarding plans, specifications' lnaps, financial

repofts or other engineering o,. financiul details of the ploceedings, or upon the Amended Rate and

Method of Apportionment for Improvement Area No. 2 of the Community Facilities District or the

validity of the 
-special 

Tax levied upon any individual parcel.

Based on and subject to the foregoing, and in reliance thereon, as of the date hereof, we are

of the following opinions and conclusions:

L The Bonds are not subject to the registration requirements of the Securities Act of

1933, as amended, and the Trust Agieement is exempt from qualification pursuant to the Trust

Indenture Act of 1939, as amended.

Z. The purchase Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by, and constitutes a

valid arrd binding obligation of, the Authority'

3. Tlre statements contained in the Official Statement under the captions "TI-IE

BONDS," "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS'' (CXCIUdiNg thCTEfTOIN

the information under the headings "-special Tax Analysis", "-special Tax Calculation" and "-The

Teeter Plan"), and "TAX MATTERS'," and in APPENDIX C-"SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL

DOCUMENTS," excluding any material that may be treated as included under such captions by

cross-ref'erence or reference to other documents or sources, insofar as such statenrents expressly

summarize certain provisions of the Local obligations Indenture and the Trust Agreelrent, or set out

the content of our Bond Opinion, are accurate in all material respects'

4. We are not passing upon and do not assume any responsibility for the accuracy,

conrpleteness or lairness of any ofltre-statements contained in the Preliminary official Statement or

lexcept as explicitly stated in paragraph 3 above) in the Official Statement and make no

representation that we have independJntiy verified the accuracy, completeness or fairness of any

48'7 8 -9 829 -4 6'7 I v 3 I 024 667 -0 | 4 t

K-2Page 365

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



such statements. In our capacity as bond counsel to the Authority in connection with issuance of the

Bonds, we participur"J in.onfer.n"", with your representatives, your counsel' lepresentatives of the

comrnunity Facilities District, the city, in. nutt'tority, their cou'sel, representatives of rri Pointe'

Lenrrar, and their respective counsel, the Apprais"', iht Special Tax Consultant and others' during

which the contents orthe preliminary official'statement or the official statement and related matters

were discussed. Based on 
'ur 

participation in the above-mentioned co'ferences (whicrr, with respect

to the preriminary ori,ciar Statlrnent, did not extend beyond the date of the purchase Agreement, and

with respect to the official Statement oio not extend beyond its date), and in reliance thereon' on oral

and written statements and representations of the Authority, the comrnunity Facilities District' and

others and on the records, documents, ceJificates, opinions and matters herein mentioned' subject to

the iimitations on our rore as bond counsel to the Auihority, we advise you as a matter of fact and not

opinion that (a) no facts had come ,o ,t't" attention of the attorneyi in our firm rendering legal

services with respect to the Preliminary official statement which caused us to believe as of the date

of the purchase Agreement, based on the documents, drafts and facts in existence and reviewed as of

that date that the preliminary official statement contained any untrue statement of a rnaterial fact or

omitted to state a material fa"t nec"ss".v ," make. the..siatements therein, in the light of the

circumstances under which they were-*ud", not misleading (except any.information marked as

preliminary or subject to change-,^any information permitt-ed to te ornitted by Securities and

Exchange commisiion Rule l5c-12 or ottr"rwise lefi blank and any other differences with the

information in the Official Statement), unJ0) no facts had come to the attention of the attorneys in

our firm rendering i"g"l ,.r"i"" *itn-.erfeci io the official statement wrrich caused us to believe as

of the date of the official Statement and as of the date hereof that the official Statement contained or

contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted or omits to state any material fact

necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were

made, not misleading; provided that, *"'"*p..ttly" exclude from the scope of this paragraph and

express no opinion oT 
"onrturion, 

with *tpi" to both the Prelirninary Official Statement and the

Official Statement, about any CUSP 
-nult'U"", 

financial' accortnting' statistical or economic'

engineering or demographic data or.for..a.tr, numbers, chatts, tables' graphs' estimates' projections'

assumptions or expressions of opinion, any information about feasibility' valuation' appraisals'

absorption, real esiate or environmentai'maiters, litigation, any statements about compliance with

prior continuing Oisctosure undertuf.in[t,-ot unV'info-t1u1ion atout book-entry' DTC' Cede & Co"

ratings, rating agencies, underwriterr, ,i',d.r*,iting, and the infonnation contained in Appendices A'

B, D, F and G includei or referred to therein o. oiritt.d therefrom' No responsibility is undertaken

or conclusion expressed with respect to any other disciosure document, materials or activity, or as to

any information from another do"ut.nt o, ,ou.." referred to by o. incorporated by reference in the

PrelinrinaryofficialstatementortheofficialStatement.

This retter is furnished by us as bond counsel to the Authority. No attorney-crient

relationship has existed or exists between our firm and you in connection with the Bonds or by virtue

of this retter. we discraim any obligation to update ihir l.tt.r. This retter is derivered to you as

Underwriter of the Bonds, is solely io,. four benefit as. such Underwriter in connection with the

originaldelivelyoftheBondsonthedatehereof,andisnottobeused'circulated'quotedor
otlrerwise referred to or relied upon for any other purpose or by any other person' This letter is not

intended to, and may not, be relied ,pon Uy o*nt" oi the Bonds oi by uny other party to whom it is

not specifi callY addressed'

Very truly Yours,

ORRICK, HERRINGTON & SUTCLIFFE t-t-p

4878-9829-46 1 | v 3 I 02466'l -0 | 4 I

K-3Page 366

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



EXHIBIT L

Folsom Ranch Financing AuthoritY

50 Natoma Street,

Folsom, CA,95630

City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo' 23

(Folsom Ranch)

50 Natoma Street'

Folsom, CA,95630

Piper Sandler & Co'

z[iieut oaks Boulevard' Suite 2oo

Sa"ramento, California 95 864

Appraisal

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

CITY OF FOLSOM;.OMMNNITY-F"ILITIES 
DISTRICT NO' 23

FoLSoM t;i;D tMPRovEMENT AREA No' 2

sPiCiai rax nnvENUE BoNDs
SERIES 2024

CERTIFTCATE OF APPRAISER

The undersigned hereby states and certifies:

l.Thatheisanauthorizedprinciparo|inteel1}ealtrResources(the..Appraiser',)and
as such is farniliar #; ;;i"rts herein "rnin.o 

and is authorized and qualified to certify the same'

2.ThattheAppraiserh-asprepared?nupryui'llreport'datedNovember20'2023(the
,,Appraisat n"port,,j,'l; ilJh;li of the tiiv "r Folsom-C"*t;;i; Facilities District No' 23 (Folsom

Ranch) (rhe ,,com#il;;.iii,i". oiii*r'i'""J fr'^{ 1"i;;; R^".h Financina Authoritv (the

,.Authority,,; in .onn.ction with ,h" ;;li;inary officiti"lt"tt""nt' dated ' 2023 (the

..preliminary Official Statement'i t",o ln"' 'orntlur .Sta;ement 
dated 'Tz+ ("official

statement,,), for ,#F;;; nun"'t', Fi;";;i";ult!"t{iitv "r 
roltotn c-o*mu'itv Facilities

District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) r.prou",i.ri'f,r". No. z-sp"".ilr ru* R"urnu" Bonds' Series 2024

(the "Bonds")' 
, -- +L^ ;e of the Appraisal

3. That the Appraiser hereby consents to the reproduction and us

Reporl appended,," il; priii,tinurv o,ili.r"s'#** ""a 
tlre official Statement' The Appratser

also consents to the ,*f"r"n"", to the appr"i*' ""0 
tt'tt epp';;';;;" in the Preliminary official

itut"*.n, and the Official Statement'

4.tntheopinionoftheAppraisert]ie.lsumRtionsmadeintheAppraisalReportare
reasonable. Since the date of value of ,.n'. nppruiral Report, t'e Appraiser is not aware of any tacts

that would cause its opinion of varue'ottt,e ta*uule properly in'rrnprovement Area No' 2 (the

,,Improvement Area,,j of the cor-uiity'r""iriii", oi*Ii.i'to"b. ro*",. than the value in the

4R7 8-g82g -46'7 1 v3 I 024667 -01 4 I

L-l
Page 367

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



5.Eachoftlreparcelsappraisedby^the^Appraiseris.enconrpassedwitlrintlre
Improvement Area as set forth in the Uou,iAuty *up of tht Community Facilities District'

6. That, as of the date of the Preliminary official statement' as of the date of the

officiar state'nent "J ; of the oat" hereor the Appraisal Report appended to the Preliminary

official Starement and the official stut.r.ni io the best o-f1ny knowledge and belief itl :*j:t:j:
a1 of the hyporheticai conditions set forth in ihe epprai:i1-1:?T, did T' 11 

does not contarn anv

untrue statement of a nraterial fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the

statements contained therein, in the light- of the circunrs:alces under which they were made' not

rlisleading, and no events or occurrences have been ascertained by us or have come to our attention

that wourd substantially change the estimaieJ nalues stated in the Appraisar Report' However' we

have not perfornred any proced.,r", sin"" the date of the Appraisal iGport to obtain knowledge of

such events o, o"rurr"-n'"a, no, are we obligated to do So in the future'

T.TheCommunityFacilitiesDistrict,theAuthorityandtheUnderwriter,PiperSandler
& Co., are entitled to rely on the Certificate'

Dated: 

-,2024

INTEGRA REALTY RESOURCES

By:
Authorized RePresentatlve

n a7a oa?q-Ilrt t vi/024667-0 I 4 I

L-2

Page 368

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



EXHIBIT M

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

CITY OF FOLSOTNT iOT'TUUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO' 23

GoLSoM nlNCul IMPRovEMENT AREA No' 2

sPECIAL ie'x nsvENUE BoNDS
SERIES 2024

FORM OF ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE

Theundersigned,onbehalfofPiperSandler&:::.Ilh".,PSc,'),herebycertifiesassetforlh
below with respec,,o,n" sale and issuance of the above-captioned bonds (the "Bonds")'

l.SaleoftheGeneralRuleMgturities,Asofthedateofthiscertificate'foreach
Maturity of the c"n.iur-nule Maturitie; il?;; ;r,.,".o which at least 10% of such Maturity was

sold to the Public i, tt " 
tttp"ctive price listed in ScheduleA'

2.InitiatafferingPricerl.ftheHolclahe-offering-PriceMatuyilies'

(a)PSCofferedtheHold.the-offering-PriceM-aturitiestothePublicforpurchaseatthe
respective initial 

"rr"rirg 
prrces listed r" s.r.,-!,,r* + ittre "rnitial offering prices") on or before the

sare Date. A copy of the pricing *ir" orEilGGni .orn*uni.urion for the Bonds is attached to this

(b)AssetforthintheBondPurchaseAgreement,dated2024'byandbetween
psc and the Issuer, psc has agreed i" *;iri;; that: [i) ro. .u.t'r rr,'uturitv or the Hold-the-offering-

price Maturities, it *ortc neithlr orr",. nor'r"iiuny oi ir.,. Bonds of such Maturity to any person at a

price that is higher irr"" ,rr. r"itial offerin;;;; i* 
'ut*' 

vuiutity during the Holding Period for

such Maturity (the 
-ilhold-*re-offering-pr?"*' ,ut""), and (ii) any selling g.roup agreement shall

contain the agreem"nt oi-.u.', dealer *ho'i, u mernberiof ,rr" u.iring group'-.und any retail distribution

agreement srra, contain the agreement of'each broker-deur"r"*r'rolJu putty to the retail distribution

agreement, ,o .o*p"ir' ;n! i., hold-the-offering-price rule' Pursuant to such agreement' no

underwriter (as defined berow) t,u, orr","o- o. .;d any Maturiry of the Hor<i+he-offering-Price

Marurities ar a price that is higher tr.,an tr,'. i"rf""tiv" tnitiat oir"ring price for rhat Maturity of the

Bonds during the Holding Period'

3- Defined Terms'

certificate as Schedu leB

(a)

hereto as the

(b)Holdahe-o.fferinsPrl:3.Matt'ririesn,leallsthoseMaturitiesoftheBondslistedin
Scheclu!e A herero u, ir]" ifi o ta-t"rle-offeri n g-Pri ce M aturities."

(c)HotdingPerioclm.eans,withrespectroaHold-the.offering-PriceMaturity,theperiod
starting on trre Sale Da-te and ending on it . .uili., of (i) the .lor" of ttre fifttr busirress day after the

,2024 (ther."r. Or[i, o,. i;i)it',. d;;; ;; which i[. U'Jt*riter lras sotd at least l0% of such

GeneralRuleMatt'trlriasmeansttroseMaturitiesoftheBondslistedinScheduleA
"General Rule Maturities'"

,r e"a oQ?q-ullr? 1vi1024(r67-0 l 4l

M-l

Page 369

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Hold-the_offering-price Marurity to the pubric at prices rhat are no higher than the Initial offering

;,t;;; i;r such H Jd +he- offeri n g-Price Maturitv'

(d) Issuermeans the Folsorn Ranch Financing Authority'

(e)MaturiD)nrea-ns.Bondswiththesarnecre.ditandpaymentterms.Bondswithdifferent
maturity dates, or tsonds with the ,u,,,t tutu'i'; d"tt but differeni stated interest rates' are treated as

separate nraturities.

(DPubliclT}eansanyperson(including.anindividual,trust,estate,partnership,
association, company, or corporation; ottrer than un underwriter or a related party to an Underwriter'

The te'n ,,related party,, for purpose, of ,t,i, certificate generally means any two or more persons

whohavegreaterthan50percent"o.*onownership,directlyorindirectly'

(g)SaleDatemeansthefirstdayon.whichthereisabindingcontractinwritingforthe
sale of a Maturity "f 

rf* e""Os. The S^it but* of the Bonds is 

-'2A24'(h)Underwritermeans](i)anypersollth.atagreespulsuanttoawrittencontractwiththe
Issuer (or with the.lead underwrirer ,o-iJ'|, un una.r*iitingivnor"ut")_,"^ lllt.toate 

in the initial

sale of the Bonds io the public; and (ii) uny p"rron that agre Js pursuant to. a. written contract directly

or indir.ectly with a person described i;;i;r;. (i) of this.prr"griprr t" participare in the initial sale of

the Bonds to the puu'c (including. u n.,.*u"r'of a selling froug 9t a party to a retail distribution

agreement pu,ti"ipJig-i,r'in" i"iti"'f sale of the Bonds to the Public)'

The representatiot,ls set forth in this ceftificate are lirnited to factual matters only. Nothing in

this certificate represents pSC's int"rp'.tuti* of any 1"*r,';;;l"ding specifrcally sections 103 and

14g of the Internal Revenue coo" or iqgi, u, urn"noeo,.anJttre Tr'.uiuty Regulations thereunder'

The undersigned understands that the i;;;t tnf.orTati:; *itt ut 
'elied 

upo-n by the Issuer with

respect to certain of the representati""'""tiorth in the Tax Certificate and with respect to

compliance witrr ihe federal income'tu*-rot", affecting tn. gonar, and by orrick He.ington &

Sutcliffe LLP, in connection w;th teniii;;^l;t opinion"t#'rtt in"tttt on tht Bonds is excluded

from gross income for federal in"o,*iu* f"u,po9"r, ,h" pt;;;tion of the Internal Revenue service

Form g03g-G, and other federrt inron',Jiu-l-JOui""'tft*it-i"V give to the Issuer from time to tirne

relating to the Bonds'

PIPER SANDLER & CO

By
Name:

Dated: ,2024

n a"a oQ.rQ-zI/r? I r,'11024(r(r7-() I 4 I

M-2

Page 370

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



SCHEDULE A

(Anache$

iIx?11-oR ?()-J6? I v3/t)246(17-0 I I I

M-3

Page 371

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



SCHEDULE B

PRICING WIRE

(Attachetl

i oao ()Q.o t r-'t t,'11t.], 1667 -(\1 41

M-4

Page 372

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



EXHIBIT N

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

CITYoFFoLSoMCOMMUNITYFACILITIBSDISTRICTNo.23
(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO' 2

SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2024

LETTER OF REPRESENTATIONS OF ARCADIAN IMPROVEMENT COMPANY' LLC

,2023

Folsom Ranch Financing AuthoritY

50 Natoma Street

Folsom, California 95630

City of Folsom Courmunity Facilities District No' 23

(Folsorn Ranch)
50 Natoma Street

Folsom, California 95 630

Piper Sandler & Co'
lSZ6pair Oaks Boulevatd, Suite 100

Sacramento, Californla 9 5864

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Reference is made to the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of lolsom Community

Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ran.t',; Improvement Area No' 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds'

Series 2a24 $he',Bonds") and to the Bond Purchase Agreement to be entered into in connection

therewith (the ,,purchu.u igr""*ent,,). This Letter of Representations of Arcadian lnrprovement

company, LLC (the "Letter of Representations") is delivered pursuant to the Purchase Agreement'

capitaiized terms used and not otherwise defined herein have tire meanings ascribed to them in the

Purchase Agreement'

The undersigned certifies that he or she is familiar with the facts herein certified and is

authorized uno quuiitied to certify the same as an authorized officer of Arcadian Improvement

Company, LLC, a California limited liability company (the "Master Developer")' and the

,"C"i:r;g"!0, on Lehalf of the Master Developer, further certifies as follows:

l. The Master Developer is a limited liability company validly.existing and in good

standing as a limited liability company under the laws of the State of california and has all requisite

right, power and authority: ii; to execute and deliver this Letter of Representations; and (ii) to

undertake all of thetransactions on its parl described in the Prelirninary official Statenrent'

2. As set lorth in the preliminary Official Statenrent, the MasterDeveloper is cun'ently

constructing, or. is expected to constrllct, certain public iufiastructure improvements required for the

development of the properly wit6in L'trpiovemeni Ar"u No' 2 (the "Improvement Area") of the City

d R ?,r-gR? O-4(r? I v 1 I 024661 -0 1 4 |

N-l

Page 373

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



of Folsom Co'rnrunity Facilities District No. 23 (Folsonr Ranch) (the "Community Facilities

District").

3. As of the date thereof, the Preliminary Official Staternent, solely with respect to

infbrnration contained therein with respect to the IVlaster Developer and its activity within the

Improvemeut Ar.ea, as set forth under the captions "INTRODUCTION-Property ownership and

Development Status," "PLAN OF FINANCE-Facilities to be Financed," "THE IMPROVEMENT

AREA-GeneralDescriptionandLocation,""PROPOSEDPROPERTYDEVELOPMENT-
Development Entitlem enis-A.ffordable Hausing," "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-

Deveropnrent pran and status oio"v"top^"nt-Borkbone and offsite Infrastructru'e and subdivision

Intproventeirfs," "GERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS-Endangered Species" and "cERTAIN

RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS-Naturalry occurring Asbestos," and with respect to the information

contained under the caption ,.FoLSoM pr.aN AREA - Forsom plan Area Development" is true.and

correct in all materi"r i"rf."t, and did not contain any untrue statement of a materiar fact or omit to

state a material ru"t n"c.ssury to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under

which they were made, not misleading'

The undersigned has executed this Letter of Representations solely in his or her capacity as

the manager of theluthorized agent of the Master Developer and he or she will have no personal

liability uiiring from or relating to this Letter of Representations.

ARCADIAN IMPROVEMENT COMPANY, LLC,

a Caliibrnia limited liability company

By

.-tll7Il-Q1i?t)-211r'l I't \ 1O24661 -A | 41

N-2

Page 374

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Folsorn Ranch Financing Authority
50 Natoma Street

Folsom, CA,95630

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No' 23

(Folsom Ranch)
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA, 95630

Piper Sandler & Co.

3626 F air Oaks Boulevard
Sacramento, California 95 864

Ladies and Gentlemen:

ReferenceismadetotheFolsomRanchFirrancingAutlrorityCityofFolsorrCommunity
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom nun"f",) Improvement Area No' 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds'

series 2024 (the"Bonds") and to the Bond Puichase Agreement' dated 

-'2a24 

$he "Purchase

Agreement"), entered into in connection therewith' This Closing Certificate of Arcadian

Improvement company, LLC (the .,crosing certificate,') is derivered by Arcadian Improvement

Company, LLC, aburiiorniu limited l;;iA cornpany (tire "Master Developer") pursuant to the

purchase Agreement . capitalized terms ur.i 1,.r.ln and not otherwise defined have the meanings

ascribed to them in the Letter of Representations of Arcadian Improvement company, LLC (the

,,Letter of Representations"), dated ,2023,delivered by the Master Developer'

Each of the undersigned certifies that he or she is farniliar with the facts herein certified and

is authorized and quarified to certify the sar'e as an autrrorized officer of the Master Developer, and

each of the unO..ri'gn"J, or', befraff of the Master Developer' fufiher certifies as follows:

l. The Master Developer has received the fi'al official Statement dated 

-,2024rerating to the Bonds (the ,.officiar statement,,). Eacrr staten']ent, representation and warranty made

in the Letter of Representations is true and correct in all material resplcts on and as of tlie date hereof

with the same effect as if nrade on the clate hereof, except tlrat atl .references 
therein to the

Preliminary official Statement shall be deemed to be leferences to the final official Statement'

2' To the Actual Knowledge of tlre UncJersigrred, no event has occurred since the date of

the prelirninary official Statement affelting rhe statenrents and inforrnation described in Paragraph 3

EXHIBIT O

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

CITYoFFoLSoMCOMMUNITYFACILITIBSDISTRICTNo.23
(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMBNT ARBA NO' 2

SPECIAL TAX REVBNUE BONDS
SERIES 2024

CLOSINGCERTIFICATEoFARCADIANIMPROVEMENTCOMPANY,LLC

,2024

.ltrf R-qR?q-467 I v11824(t67 -{\141

o-l

Page 375

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



of the Letter of Representations relating to the ]ftltl Developer and its activities in the

Improvenrent Area *nl"n should be discloJed in the official Statement for the purposes for which it

is to be used in order to nrake such statements and information contained in the official statement

not misleading in any material respect'

3. For the period through 25 days after the "End of the underwriter Period" as

defined in the purcrrase Agreenrent, if any event reratin-g to or affecting the Master Developer or the

ownership of tlre Properry by the Master beveloper shaf occur us u t"sult of which it is necessary' in

the opinion of the Underwritelorcounsel to the City, to amend or supplementthe Official Staternent

in order to make the official Statement not misleaiing in the light of the circumstances existing at

the time it is delivered to a purchaser, the MasterDeveloper shalf reasonably cooperate with the City

and the Underwriter in the preparation of an amendment or supplemTJ t9 the Official Statement in

form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Underwritei and Disclosure counsel which will

amend or supplement the official State#nt so that it wiil not contain an untrue statement of a

material fact or omit to state a material iu., n.""rrury in order to make the statements therein' in the

light of the circumstances existing at the time the official Statement is delivered to a purchaser, not

misleading.

Each of the undersignecl has executed this Closing Certificate solely in his or her capacity as

an officer or representative*of the tvturte,- Developer un! h" or she will have no personal liability

arising from ol relating to this Closing Certificate'

ARCADIAN IMPROVEMENT COMPANY, LLC'
a California limited Iiability company

By

d ri?5t-9Rf 9-4(r 1 | t 3 ll)24661 -A | 4 1

o-2

Page 376

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



ATTACHMENT 8

Page 377

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



DISTRICT CONTINUING DISCLOSURB CERTIFICATE

TRICT CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE (tlris "Disc losure Certificate"),THIS DIS
dated as of 2424, is executed and delivered by the City of Folsom Conrmunity Facilities

District No. 23 (Folsorn Ranch) (the "District") relative to the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the

"Authority") in connection with the issuance by the Authority of the Fo lsorn Ranch Finatrcing Authority

City of Folsoni Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsorn Ranch) In't provement Area No. 2 SPecial

Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2A24 $he "Bouds") The Bonds are being issued pursuant to a Trust Agreement

(the "Trust Agreetnent"), among the District, tlre Authority and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National

Association (the "Trustee")' Tlre District covel'l ants at:d agrces as fcrllows

SECTION 1. purpose qf the Discl-osurgCertilicatc. The Disclosure Ceftificate is being executed

and delivered by the Dirm for th" b"n"nt 
"rtir., 

Hora*r and Beneficiai owners of the Bonds and in order

to assist the Participating Underwriter in cornplying with S'E'C' Rule l5c2-12(b)(5)'

SECTION 2. Definitions. hi addition to the definitiorrs set forth in the Trust Agreement, which

apply to any capitalizJG.nr ,,."4 in this Disclosure Certifrcate unless otherwise defined in this Section'

the iollowing capitalized terrns shall have the following meatrings:

,,Annual Report,'mealts any Annual Report provided by the District pursllant to, and as described

in, Sections 3 and 4 hereof.

,.Annual Reporl Date,, lneans the date in each year that is nine months after the end of the District's

fiscal year, which date, as of the date of this Disclosure Cerlificate, is April 1'

.,Dissemination Agent" shall mean NBS, or any successor Dissetnination Agent designated in

writing by the District and-which has filed with the District a written acceptance of such designation.

.,EMMA SysteDr,'means the MSRB's Electronic Municipal Mar-ket Access system, or sucb other

electronic system designated by the MSRB'

..Financial Obligation,,means, for purposes of tlie Listed Events set out in Section 5(a)(10) and

Section 5(bX7), a (i) deb't obligation;1ii; Aeiivative instrument entered into in connection with, or pledged

as security or a source of paynient for,'an existing or planned debt obligation; or (iii) guarantee of (i) or (ii)'

The term ,,Financial obiigation" shall not include Municipal Securities (as defined in the securities

Exchange Act of 1934, asJmended) as to which a final official statement (as defined in the Rule) lias been

provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rirle'

..Listed Events" means any of the events listed in sttbsection (a) of Section 5 heleof'

,.MSRB,, means the Municipal SecLrrities Rulerraking Board, or any successor tltereto.

"Official Statement" lneans the Official Staternent, dated 2024, relating to the Bonds

,,pafiicipating Underwriter" rreans the original underwriter of the Bonds required to coniply with

the Rule in connection with the offering of the Bonds'

..Rltle" lneans Rule l5c2'12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exclrange cournrissiott underthe

Sectrrities Exchange Act of 1934, astlte sanre nray be amended ft'om tinre to tirne'

SECTION 3. Provision of AnnrrallSepgflS'

1.

Page 378

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



(a) The District shall, or shall cause the Dissernitration Agent to, provide to the MSRB tlrrough

1he EMMA System, in a. electroni" forn,uiond u""o*punied by identif ing information all as prescribed

by the MSRB, u" nn''rili R;;;* *ni"n is consistent with the requirements of Sectiou 4 hereof, not later

tlrantheAnnualReportDate,cornnrerc*rgwittrtlrereportforthez02z-z3Fiscalyear. 
TlreAnnualReport

may be sub'iitted as a si'gle docunrent or'.as separate docurnents courprising a package, aud may include

by reference otlr". intorn uiion as provided in Sectio' 4 hereof; provided, however' tlrat the audited financial

staterneills of t5e District may be subrniteJ ,"p"*t"rv rron,'il'," balance of the A'nual Repofi, a'd later

tha' trre date required above for the nring oflne Rnnuui Report if not available by that date' If tlre District's

fiscal year changes, it sliall, or shall instiuct the Dissernination Agent to' give notice of such change in the

sa'e manrer as for a Listecl Event under subsection (e) of Sectiorr 5 hereof. The first Antrual Report may

include tlie filing of or referetrce to the Official Staternent'

(b) Not latertl.ran 15 business days priorto.the date specified in subsection (a) of this Section

for tlre pr.oviding of trre An'ual Report ,o ir.r" rrrisnn, the Districi srran provide the Annual Repofi to the

Disserninatiorr Agertt.

(c) If the Dissemination Agent is other than the District, then not later than fifteen (15)

Business Days prior to said date, trre Di.il;; Jail provide the Annuar Report to the Dissemirratior Agent,

If the District is u'able to provide tn" nnnrut ["p"tt t" the MSRB by the Annual Report Date' the District

shall send a notice to the NiSRB in substantiJty tlie to* attached as Exhibit A to the Disclosure certificate'

(d) The Dissernination Agent shall:

(i) provide any Annual Report received by it to the MSRB, as provided lrerein; arid

(ii) file a report with rhe District certifying tliat the Annual Report has been provided

pursuallt to this Disclosure certificate and stating the date it was so provided'

SECTION 4 Co ol' nual The District's Annual Report shall contatn or

incorporate by reference the following:

(a) The District,s audited firrarrcial Statemettts, if any, prepared in accordance witlr

generally accepted accouuting pr;n"iff"t as prgmul.eated to apply to governmental entities frorn

time to tirne by tlre Governrrental aciounting Standirds gourd. If the District's audited fi'ancial

staternellts, ii;;, are rtot available by the tirie the A11ual Report is required to be filed pursuant

tosubsection(a)ofsection3lrereoitheAnntralRepoftshallcontainurlauditedfinancial
statelxerts, and the a'dited firrancial staternents, if any, shall be filed in the sane lnallller as tlle

Annual Report when they b""o,rl" uuuilable. li ttre uistrict's finaucial stateneltt is included or

consolidated with the financial statement for the City of Folsorn (the "City"), then the District shall

file the City's audited financial statemetlts as its own'

(b) The following ilrfornratiotr:

(i) The principal anrount of Bonds and any bonds secured by Additiorial Local

obligations(asdefinedirrtlreofficialstaternerrt)outstandingasoftheDecenrber3lnext
precedi'g the Annual Report nu,. oro,rg with debt servi"e schedules for the Bonds and atiy bonds

secured by Additional Local ourig"iiorir (as defi'ed i' the official statenrent) o'tstanding as of

suclr date;

(ii) T5e balance in each reserve account for the Local Obligatious, and a slatemettt of

the required bond reserv" u,rount. us of the December 3l next precedirrg the Annual Report Datel

2
Page 379

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



(iii) Tlre total assessed value of all parcels within tlte lnprovettlerlt Area orr whiclt the

Special raxes are levied, as shown on tl-re assessnreut roll of the Sacratrletrto coutrty Assessor last

equalized prior to the December 31 next preceding the Annual Report Date' and a statement of

assessed varue-to-rien ratios therefor based or sp""iur tax and assessrirent debt, eitrrer by individual

parcel or by categories (e'g', "below 3:1"' "3:1 to 4:1" etc');

(iv) Tlie Special Tax delinquency rate for the lmprovemetrt A|ea as of the December

3 I next precedi'g the Annual n.pott-irt.; ihe number of parcets within the lnprovement Area

delinqrrentinpaymentofspecialtaxesasortu"December3lrrextprecedingtlreArrnualReport
Date; the u,r,ount of each a"tinqu.n"f the length of tirne delinquent and the date on which

foreclosure was comme'ced, o, ,i*ilur inforrnation pefiaining to delinquencies deemed

appropriate uv tire nisi*"t; provided, ho**u",", that parcels with aggregate delinque'cies of $1'000

or less (excluding penalties unO int"orq ,r,ui u" grouped togetlrer and such information may be

provided bY category;

(v)Thestatusofforeclosureproceedingsandasulnn.lalyoftlreresultsofany
foreclosure sales in the Improvelnent Area as of the December 3 1 next precedirig tlre Anttual Repofi

Date;

(vi) The identity of any properry owner, repfesenting morc than 5% of the special Tax

levy, deliuquerrt in payrnent of special taxes as of tlre Decernber 3l next preceding the Annual

Report Date;

(vii)Alltentativearrdfirralmapsapproved.and/orrecordedwithirrthelmprovement
Area, describing the gross acres, th" ;;;";J commercial acres and tlte nttmber arid type of pla,ned

residential dwelling units;

(viii) The nurnber of new building permits issued and a description of the purpose of

such pemrits (e.g., new single-family, n"* nt"uttl-rt:nily, new coniniercial' new industrial);

(ix)AlandownerslripSummalylistingthetopterrSpecialTaxpayersfortlre
Improvement Area, as shown On tl.le assesJment ,ott or the Sacramento county Assessor last

equalized prior to the December 31 next preceding tlre Annual Reporl Date; and

(x) For the current Fiscal year, the amoLrnt of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maxirnurn Facilities Special Tax, the Maxirnum Facilities Special Tax' the actual Facilities special

Tax levied witlrin the Improvement Area and tlre actual Special rax levied witlrin the Improvement

Area,withsuchamountsreportedseparatelyforDevelopedProperty'smallLotFinalMapProperty
and Large L";p;;;*y;provided, hl*"u"i tbat once ail Taxable Property within the Ir'provement

Area is Developed property, the Maximurn Facilities Special rax and the actual Facilities Speciai

Tax and the actual Special ru* r"ui"J nray each be shown on an aggregate basis in the Annual

Report. For the purposes of this ,ulpuroituph (x), all capitalized ternts t"tsed but not otherwise

defi'ed 5erein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Amended Rate and Metliod of

Appotlionment for the Improvement Area'

lrradditiontoatryoftlleinformationexpresslyreqLriredtobeprovidedunderthisSection,aSset
forlh above, the District shall provide ,u.l-, fu,tli"l. information, if any, as lllay be necessary to nrake tlre

specifically .equired 
-rOi.,',',.,itr, 

in the Iight of the circttmstauces urrcler which they are tnade' trot

nr isleading.

3
Page 380

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Arryoralloftheitenrslistedabovenraybeincludedbyspecificreferetrcetootlrerdoculrretrts,
i'cluding officiar statements of clebt issues of itre District or i"laied p'bric entities, which have been

sub'ritted to the MSRB tSrough the EMMA syr,",n. The District shali clearly identify each such other

document so included by reference'

SECTION 5 Reportirr sofSi tciln

(a) pursuant to the provisions of this Section, the District slrall give notice, or cause notice to

be given, uot less than ten Business Duy. Jer the occurretrce of a'y of the following events with respect

to the Bonds:

(i) Plincipal and interest payrnent delinquencies'

(ii) U'scheduled draws orr debt service reseryes reflecting financial difficulties'

(iii) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties'

(iv) Substitutiorr of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform'

(v) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or

final deteilninations of taxability, Noii.", of Proposei Issue IRS Form 5?01 TEB) or other material

notices or detenninations witlr r.espect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material events

affecting tlte tax-exempt status of tlre securiry'

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Defeasances.

Tender offers

Bankruptcy,insolvency,receiverslriporsinrilareventoftlreobligatedperson'

Note: For the purposes of tlre event identified in subparagraph (ix), the event is

considered to occllr *t"n uny of trre foilowing occur: the appointment of a

receiver, trustee or similar ofdcer for an obligat-d persor in a proceeding under

the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in auy other proiedirrg under state or federal law in

which a coutt or gou.,n'''"ntul authority has allumef jurisdiction over

substantially all of tlie assets or busiress of tl'," obligated person, or if such

jurisdiction has been assunred by leaving the existing govemmental body and

officials or officers i',lott.ttio,i but ,ubJ.ct to the supervision and orders of a

couft or govefnmelltal authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of

reorgat.lization,u,,u''g",,.,"n.o."liquidatio.nbyacourtorgovernmentalauthority
lraving supervision o,:pritai"tion over substalrtially all of the assets or business of

the obligated Person,

(ix) Ratirrg clranges'

(x) Default, evettt of acceleration, ternrinatioll evettt, modification of terms or other

similar everts under the tenns of a ti,*n"iul obligation of the District, arly of which reflect financial

difflculties.

(b)TlreDistrictslrallgivettotice,ofcatlsenoticetobegivetr,notlessthantenBusinessDays
after the occurrence of arty of tlre fillowing events with respect to the Bonds' if material:

4
Page 381

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



(i) Modifications to rights of Bond holders'

(ii) Bond calls'

(iii) Release, substitutiott or sale of property securing repayment of tlre Bonds'

(iv) Non-paymentrelateddefaults'

(v) The cousummation of a merger, consolidatiou, or acquisition involviug an

obligated persor or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the obligated person, other

than in ttt" ordi,tary course of busirress, the entry into a definitive agreement to undeftake such an

action or the tennination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than

pursuant to its tenns.

(vi) Appointrnent of a successor or additional trustee or the clrange of name of a

trustee.

(vii) Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the District, or agreemellt to covenants,

eveuts of defa'lt, remedies, priolity rights, or similar terms of a Financial Obligation of the District' any of

whiclr affect Bondholder s-

(c) Whenever the District obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event described in

subsection (b) above, the District shall determine if sucir event would be rnaterial under applicable federal

securities laws.

(d) If the District learns of the occurrence of a Listed Event described in sr'rbsection (a) of this

Section, or determines that knowledge of a Listed Event described in subsection (b) of this Sectiol would

be material r"rnder applicable federJ securities laws, the District shall notif,r the Dissemination Agent

thereof in writi'g and instruct the Dissemination Agent to report the occurrence pursuant to subsection (e)

of ttris Section. If in response to a request under su6section 1-u; ortnls Section, tlie District determines that

tlre Listed Event would not be material unJer applicable Fed'eral securities law, the District shall so notify

the Dissemination Ag"nf in writing and instruit the Dissemination Agent not to repo( the occnrreuce

pursllant to sr-tbsection (e) of this Section'

(e) If ihe Dissemination Agent has been instrr:cted by the District to report the occurrence of

a Listed Event, tlre Dissernination Agent shall file a notice of such occurrence with the MsRB through the

EMMA Systern. Notwithstanding tle foregoing, notice of Listed Events described in paragraph (vii) of

subsection (a) of this Section and paragraprr'<iiiorsubsection (b) of this section need not be given under

this subsection any earlier than the notice (iianv) of the underlying event is given to holders of affected

Bonds pursuallt to the Tn"rst Agreemetrt'

SECTI ON 6. Ternrin of The District's obligations under tlris

Disclosr:re Certificate shall ternrinate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all

of the Borrds. If such terrli natiott occtlrs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, tlre District shall give

notice of sLrch ternrination in the sanre ntallller as for a Listed Event under subsection (e) ofsection 5 hereof

SECTION 7. Dj:$gqrination A[ent. The District may, fronr time to time' appotllt or engage a

Disseniinatio' Agent t;r*[t l out its obligations underthis DisclosLrre ceftificate' a'd may

disclrarge any suclr Disseminatio'Agent, *itl, ot without appointing a successor Dissenrinatiott Agent'

The Disserniration Agent shall not be respousible in any rylanner for tbe colltent of any ltotice or report

prepared by the Distriit ptrrsrtallt to the Disclosure Certificate'

5
Page 382

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



SECTION B. Amerrdment, Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provisiori of tlris Disclosnre

Certificate,tt.,"oi,t,.i"@isclosureCertificate,andanyprovisionofthisDisclosure
Certificate may be waived, provided that the following conditions ale satisfied:

(a) if the arnendment or waiver relates to the provisions of zubsection (a) of Section 3

hereof, Section 4 hereof or subsections (a) and (b) of Section 5 hereof, it rnay only be rnade in

col,rection with a change in circumstarrces tlrat arises from a change in legal t'equirenrents, change

in law, or change in the identity, nature or status of an obligated person witlr respect to the Bonds,

or tYPe ofbusiness conducted;

(b) the undertakings herein, as proposed to be amended or waived, would, in the

opinion of nationally recognizei bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at

the tirne of ttr" prirnury iffering of the Bonds, after taking into account any amelldments or

interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change iu circumstauces; and

(c) the proposed amendment or waiver (i) is approved by Owners of the Bonds in the

manner provided in ihe Trust Agreement for amendments to the Trust Agreement with the consent

of Owners, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond cotlnsel, materially impair

the interests of owners or Beneficial owners of the Bonds.

If tbe annual filancial information or operating data to be provided in the Annual Repoft is amended

prr.suant to t6e provisions hereof, the annual dnun"iul infonnation containing the amended operating data

or financial ipformation shall explain, in narrative form, the reasons for the amendment and the impact of

the change in the type of operating data or financial information being provided'

If an amendmetrt is made to the undeftaking speci$'ing the accounting principles to be followed in

preparing figancial statements, the annual financial information for the year in whiclt the change is made

shall prese't a comparison between the financial statements or infornration prepared on the basis of the new

accounting principles and those prepared on the basjs of the former accounting principles. The comparison

shall include a qualirative discussion of the differences in the accounting principles and the impact of tire

cSarrge in the acconnting principles on the presentation of the-financial statenrents or information, in order

to provide information to investors to eiable them to evaluaie the ability of the District to meet its

obligations. To the extent reasonably feasible, the comparison shall be quantitative. A notice of the change

in the accounting principles shall be given in the same mallrler as for a Listed Event under subsection (e) of

Section 5 hereof.

SECTION 9. Additional Inforrnation. Nothing in this Disclosule Cerlificate shall be deemed to

prevent the District rrrn air*.in-otinfunyith.t information, using the meaus of dissemination set forth

in tlris Disclosure cedificate or any other means of communication, or including any other information in

a'y Annual Report or notice of occurreuce of a Listed Event, in addition to that wliich is required by this

Disclosure Certificate, If the District chooses to include any informatiotr irr any Annual Report or notice

of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure

Cerlificate, the District slrall have no obligation under this Disclosure certificate to Ltpdate such information

or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurtence of a Listed Event'

SECTION 10. Defar,llt. In the event of a failure of the District or the Dissemination Agent to

cornply with a1y pronirion of this Disclosure Certificate, any Holder or Beneficial Owner of outstanding

Bo,ds may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, includirrg seeking mandate or specific

perl.onnance by court order, to cause the District to comply with its obligations under the Disclosttre

Cerlificate. A default underthe Disclosure Cerlificate shall not be deenred an Evettt of Default underthe

6
Page 383

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Trust Agreement, and the sole rerr-redy under the Disclosure Certificate in tlre event of any failure of the

District to comply with tlre Disclosure Certificate slrall be an action to compel perfonnance.

SECTION 1I Duties. Immunities and Liabil ities of Dissernination Asent. The Dissemination

Agent shall be entitled to the protections and limitations from liability afforded to the Trustee under the

Trust Agreement. The Dissenrination Agent shall not be respolsible for the form or content of any Annual
Report or notice of Listed Event. The Dissemination Agent shall receive reasonable compensation for its
services provided under this Disclosure Certificate. The Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties

as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Ceftificate, and the District agrees to indernnifli and save tlre

Dissemination Agent, its officers, directors, employees and agents, hannless against any loss, expense and

liabilities which it may incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties

hereunder, includingthe costs and expenses (including attorneys' fees) of defending against any clairn of
liability, but excluding liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent's negligence or willful misconduct. The

obligations of the District under tlris Section shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination

Agent and payment of the Bonds.

SECTION 12. Beneficiaries This Disclosure Ce*ificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the

District, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriter and Owners and Beneficial Owners from
time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other persotr or entity.

SECTION 13. Counterpafts. This Disclosure Certificate may be executed in several counterparts,

each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the District has executed this Disclosure Certificate as of the date first
above written.

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(r'oLSoM RANCTT)

By;

7
Page 384

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Nanre of Issner:

Name of Issue:

EXHIBIT A

NOTICE OF FAILURA TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsonr Corrrrlunity Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax
Reveuue Bonds, Series 2024

Date of Issuance ,2024

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsorn Ranch) (the "District") lras not provided an Annual Report with respect to the above-named Bonds
as required by Section 3 of the Continuing Disclosule Certificate, dated 2024, exectrted by
the District for the benefit of the Holders and Beneficial Owners of the above-referenced bonds. [The
District anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed by .l

Dated:

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCTT)

Finance Director of the City of Folsom

I
Page 385

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



ATTACHMENT 9

Page 386

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
City of Folsom CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No. 2

SpecialTax Revenue Bonds, Series 2024

SB 450 Summary / Government Code 5852.1*

Total Estimated Par Amount
Total Estimated Net Premium or (Net Original Discount)
Total Estimated Bond Proceeds

A. True lnterest Cost (TlC) of the Bonds

B. Sum of all fees and charges paid to 3rd parties

Cost of lssuance

Underwriter's Discount
Additional Proceeds

Bond lnsurance

Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety

C. Bond Proceeds Net of Reserves, Capitalized lnterest and 3rd
Party Fees and Charges

Bond proceeds

Less Reserve Fund

Less Sum of all fees and charges paid to 3rd parties

Less Capitalized lnterest

D. Total Payment Amount
Total Principal and lnterestto Maturity**

Special Tax Admin. /Continuing Disclosure Fee

Fiscal Agent Fee

Arbitrage /Rebate Fee

County Col lection Charge

$10,390,000
($17s,s46)

$10,2'14,454

5.47"/o 1

$374,680
250,000 1

124,6801

01

01
01

$8,819,774
10,214,4541

(828,138) 1

(374,68q1
(1e1 ,8641

$22,314,873
21,587 3731

585,000 2

105,000 3

22,500 4

15,000 s

:
= FIELDMAN IROLAPP

5 & ASgrCrr\TES

*Summary reflects good faith estimates as of 11/30/23 and all costs associated with the financing; subject to
changebasedoninterestrates.marketconditions,andotherfactors. Estimatesdonotimposeany
limitations or constraints upon authorized parameters, which differ from the estimates above
** Less Capitalized lnterest, if any

Sources:
1 Preliminary Cash Flows from Piper Sandler with market rates as of 11/30/23 plus 25 bps
2 Per NBS - estimated 30 years at $19,500 per year
3 Per US Bank - estimated 30 years at $3,500 per year
a Per NBS - estimated 30 years at $750 per year
s Per NBS - estimated 30 years at $500 per year

Page 387

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



City of Folsom CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No. 2
SpecialTax Bonds, Series 2024

SB 450 Summary / Government Code 5852.1*

Total Estimated Par Amount
Total Estimated Net Premium or (Net Original Discount)
Total Estimated Bond Proceeds

A. True Interest Cost (TlC) of the Bonds

B. Sum of all fees and charges paid to 3rd parties

Cost of lssuance

Underwriter's Discount

Additional Proceeds

Bond lnsurance

Debt Service Reserve Fund Surety

C. Bond Proceeds Net of Reserves, Capitalized lnterest and 3rd
Party Fees and Charges

Bond proceeds

Less Reserve Fund

Less Sum of all fees and charges paid to 3rd parties

Less Capitalized lnterest

D. Total Payment Amount
Total Principal and lnterestto Maturity**

Special Tax Admin. /Continuing Disclosure Fee

Fiscal Agent Fee

Arbitrage /Rebate Fee

County Collection Charge

$10,390,000
($175,546)

$10,214,454

5.47"/o 1

$374,680
2s0,000 1

12.4,6801

01
01
01

$8,819,774
10,214,4541

(828,138) 1

(374,68q1
(191 ,8641

s22,275,873
21,587 3731

585,000 2

66,000 3

22,500 4

15,000 s

*Summary reflects good faith estimates as of 11/30/23 and all costs associated with the financing; subjectto
change based on interest rates. market conditions, and other factors. Estimates do not impose any
limitations or constraints upon authorized parameters, which differ from the estimates above
** Less Capitalized lnterest, if any

Sources:
1 PreliminaryCash Flowsfrom PiperSandlerwith marketratesas of 11/30/23 plus25 bps
2 Per NBS - estimated 30 years at $19,500 per year
3 Per US Bank - estimated 30 years at $2,200 per year
a Per NBS - estimated 30 years at $750 per year
s Per NBS - estimated 30 years at $500 per year

FIELDMAN IROLAPP
& ASXICIATTS

Page 388

12/12/2023 Item No.2.



Page 389

12/12/2023 Item No.3.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank  

to facilitate double-sided printing.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 390

12/12/2023 Item No.3.



17yHEREAS , in tggz,Worcester Wreath Company owner, Morrill Worcester, with the aid of
tvtaine Senator Olympia Snowe, arranged to donate, transport,-and piace Maine balsam fir
wreaths on the g.u""'r of the falien heies at Arlington National Cemetery each December in
honor of our fallen veterans; and

WHEREAS, the tribute each holiday season to honor each branch of the military, service men

and women, continued annually, and in zoo5 nationai interest inspired and prompted the

formation of Wreaths Across America project; and.

WHEREAS, in z006, with the help of the Civil Air Patrol and other civic organizations,
simultaneorr, *""uih-layrng ."r.-o-ni"s were held at over 15o locations around the country;
and

WHEREAS , in 2oo7,the Worcester family, along with veterans, and other groups and

individuals who heffi with the annual wreath cerLmony at Arlington, fo_rmed wreaths Across

America, u ,ron-proiii Sor(c)g organization with the mission of: Remember our fallen
;t.*;;; rr"r"* th;; *tro I"*"", and Teach our chiidren the value of freedom; and

WHEREAS, through the hard work and generosity of the people involved in the Wreaths Across

America, hundreds olthousands of wreaths have been sent to cemeteries and veterans' memorials

annually for wreath-la5,T ng on the second or third Saturday in December; and

WHEREAS, on December 13, zooS the U.S. Congress unanimouslyvoted this day as Wreaths

Across America DaY; and

WHEREAS, Wreaths Across America has chosen "Serve And Succeed," as its zoz3 theme to
;";;;"g" y;"th involvement in communities to serve in even small ways that can make a big
impact; and

WHEREAS, Saturd.ay, December L6, 2o2g, has been designated by the Wreaths Across
America organization as the date for this year's wreath-laying ceremonies to occur'

NOW, THEREFORE, I, ROSARIO RODRIGUF;Z,MayoT of the_city of Folsom, do hereby
p.o"fui* necember L6, zo2gas Wre-aths Across America Day iq the City of Folsom and
'"rr"orrrug" our citizens'to "S6rve And Succeed" in joining Wreaths Across America volunteers
ana otfr"", patriotic, community, and veteran organizations to participate in the Wreaths Across

America Day ceremonies and ilien wreath-lur"g activities at the Lakeside Memorial Lawn

Cemetery and the Mormon Island Relocation Cemetery'

PROCI-AIMED this rzth day of December zoz3

PROCI,AMATION
OF THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM

PROCLAIMING DBCEMBER t6, zoz3 AS
\,\rREATHS ACROSS A]VIERICA DAY

Rosario Rodriguez, MaYor

Page 391

12/12/2023 Item No.4.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank  

to facilitate double-sided printing.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 392

12/12/2023 Item No.4.



DECLARATION OF THE FOLSOM CITY COUNCIL
REAFFIRMING ITS COMMITMENT

TO PROMOTINGAN
INCLUSIVE, SAFE ENVIRONMENT FORALL

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom unequivocally condemns violence
against innocent civilians in both Israel and Palestine, and calls on
the world's leaders to pursue means to urgently cease violence against
civilians and ensure safe, humanitarian conditions not just
temporarily, but permanentlY;

WHEREAS, all human life is precious, and the targeting of innocent
civilians, no matter their faith or race, is horrifying and unacceptable
and must stop;

WHEREAS, according to a Novemb et 29, 2o2g report from the
United Nations Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs,
over L,2oo human beings in Israel (source: Israeli Prime Minister's
Office) and over 14,ooo human beings in Palestine (source: Gaza
Health Ministry) have lost their lives since October 7,2023;

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom grieves and mourns alongside
innocent, civilian victims and their loved ones caught in the crossfire
of violence in regions in conflict worldwide;

WHEREAS' our region is home to people from many different
backgrounds, including those with familial, cultural, and/or religious
ties to countries and regions in conflict; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom recognizes that people in our own
Folsom community may be deeply affected by current events, even if
they are taking place thousands of miles away; and

Page 393

12/12/2023 Item No.5.



WHEREAS, the City of Folsom recognizes that people in our own
Folsom community may feel and endure extreme anxiety and concern
about their own personal safety and that of their friends and family
members, particularly during these times of violence, instability, and
uncertainty; and

WHEREAS, the city of Folsom recognizes with high concern that
there is a d,ramatic rise in anti-semitism and Islamophobia
nationwide, and some have expressed fear that a similar rise could
happen in Folsom;

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom denounces hate crimes of any VPe,
and seeks to ensure that every resident feels acknowledged, seen,

heard, protected, included, supported, and safe in our community;
and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT DECLARED by the city council of
the City of Folsom that:

The City of Folsom reaffirms its commitment to promoting an
inclusive, safe environment where all people can live

in harmony, respect, and understanding'

DECLARED this rzth day of December 2023'

Rosario Rodriguez, MaYor

Page 394

12/12/2023 Item No.5.



 

 

Folsom City Council 
Staff Report 

  
 

1 
 

MEETING DATE: 

 

12/12/2023 

AGENDA SECTION: 

 

Consent Calendar 

SUBJECT: Receive and File SB-165 Annual Reports for Community 
Facilities Districts No. 13, No. 14, No. 2013-1, No. 16, No. 17, 
No. 18, No. 19, No. 20, No. 21, No. 22, and No. 23 to Comply 
with the Local Agency Special Tax Bond and Accountability Act 
 

FROM: Finance Department 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

 
It is recommended that the City Council receive and file SB-165 Annual Reports for 
Community Facilities Districts No. 13, No. 14, No. 2013-1, No. 16, No. 17, No. 18, No. 19, 
No. 20, No. 21, No. 22, and No. 23 to Comply with the Local Agency Special Tax Bond and 
Accountability Act. 
 
BACKGROUND / ISSUE 

 
The Local Agency Special Tax Bond and Accountability Act (the “Act”), enacted by Senate 
Bill 165, is codified in California Government Code Sections 50075 through 50077 and 53410 
through 53412. The Act requires: 
 

 that any local special tax measure subject to voter approval contain a statement 
indicating the specific single purpose of the special tax 

 that the proceeds of the special tax be applied to that purpose 

 the creation of an account into which the proceeds shall be deposited 

 an annual report containing specified information concerning the use of the proceeds. 
 
The Act imposes similar accountability requirements with respect to any local bond measure 
that is subject to voter approval that would provide for the sale of bonds by a local agency. 
These requirements only apply to local agencies that have imposed special taxes or issued bond 
measures subject to voter approval after January 1, 2001. 
 

Page 395

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



 2

The City currently has 18 districts which have imposed special taxes or issued bond measures 
subject to voter approval after January 1, 2001. These districts are: 
 

 Community Facilities District No. 13 (American River Canyon North Maintenance 
District) 

 Community Facilities District No. 14 (Parkway II) 

 Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Water Facilities and Supply) 

 Community Facilities District No. 16 (The Islands at Parkshore) Improvement Area 1 

 Community Facilities District No. 16 (The Islands at Parkshore) Improvement Area 2 

 Community Facilities District No. 17 (Willow Hill Pipeline) 

 Community Facilities District No. 18 (Folsom Plan Area – Area-Wide Improvements 
and Services) 

 Community Facilities District No. 19 (Mangini Ranch) 

 Community Facilities District No. 20 (Russell Ranch) 

 Community Facilities District No. 21 (White Rock Springs Ranch) 

 Community Facilities District No. 22 (Folsom Heights) 

 Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area 1 

 Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area 2 

 Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area 3 

 Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area 4 

 Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area 5 

 Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area 6 

 Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area 7 
 

The Chief Fiscal Officer of these 18 districts hereby submits the annual reports for each of 
these districts. 
 

POLICY / RULE 

 

1. California Government Code, Section 50075.3 states the chief fiscal officer of the 
levying local agency shall file a report with its governing body no later than January 1, 
2002 and at least once a year thereafter.  The annual report shall contain both the 
following: (a)  The amount of funds collected and expended; and (b)  the status of any 
project required or authorized to be funded as identified in Section 50075.1(a). 
 

2. California Government Code, Section 53411 states the chief fiscal officer of the issuing 
local agency shall file a report with its governing body no later than January 1, 2002 
and at least once a year thereafter.  The annual report shall contain both the following: 
(a)  The amount of funds collected and expended; and (b)  the status of any project 
required or authorized to be funded as identified in Section 53410(a). 
 

3. California Government Code, Section 50075.1(a) requires a statement indicating the 
specific purposes of the special tax. 
 

Page 396

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



 3

4. California Government Code, Section 53410(a) requires a statement indicating the 
specific purposes of the bond. 
 

ANALYSIS 

 
Community Facilities District No. 13, American River Canyon North Maintenance District, 
was established July 24, 2001, primarily to fund the maintenance of landscape areas in 
American River Canyon North, as well as collecting for other authorized services.  In fiscal 
year 2023, the district collected $115,893 and expended $158,685. The cash balance at year 
end was $41,751 and the status of the district is on-going. 
 
Community Facilities District No. 14, Parkway II, was established September 25, 2001, to 
finance the acquisition and construction of certain public facilities within the district. 
$18,200,000 in bonds were issued May 9, 2002, and partially advance refunded July 19, 2007. 
In fiscal year 2018, additional bonds were issued. The 2007 bonds were refunded on July 11, 
2017, and with the final maturity for the bonds in this district remaining at September 1, 2032. 
In fiscal year 2023, the district had $54,582 in collections and expended $11,667 from the 
acquisition and construction fund, leaving a balance of $2,053,275 remaining, and the status 
of the district is on-going. 
 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1, Water Facilities and Supply, was established 
January 14, 2014 to fund all or a portion of the water treatment and storage and distribution 
facilities, water supply costs, and other costs pursuant to the Water Supply and Facilities Plan 
and Agreement. In fiscal year 2023, the district collected $2,013,068 and expended $1,972,277. 
The cash balance at year end was $1,039,149, and the status of the district is on-going. 
 
Community Facilities District No. 16, The Islands at Parkshore, was established March 10, 
2015 to finance the acquisition and construction of certain public facilities within the district, 
and to fund ongoing maintenance of the improvements within the district.  In fiscal year 2023, 
Improvement Area 1 had no collections nor expenses for the project fund, leaving a remaining 
balance of $0. The debt service reserve account for Improvement Area 1 had a balance of 
$428,622. On July 18, 2019, bonds were issued for Improvement Area 2. In fiscal year 2023, 
Improvement Area 2 had $5,842 in collections and no expenses for the project fund, leaving a 
balance of $180,711 remaining. The debt service reserve account for Improvement Area 2 had 
a balance of $237,090. In fiscal year 2023, the district collected an amount of $229,883 and 
expended $90,319 for maintenance. The cash balance at year end was $659,749, and the status 
of the district is on-going. 
   
Community Facilities District No. 17, Willow Hill Pipeline, was established March 24, 2015 
to finance water facilities, including the Willow Hill Transmission Pipeline construction and 
rehabilitation project, within or in the vicinity of CFD No. 17.  In fiscal year 2023, the district 
had no collections nor expenses for the project fund, leaving a balance of $0. The debt service 
reserve account for CFD No. 17 had a balance of $405,979. The status of the district is on-
going. 
 

Page 397

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



 4

Community Facilities District No. 18, Folsom Plan Area – Area-Wide Improvements and 
Services, was established December 8, 2015 to finance the Willow Hill Pipeline facilities, 
offsite water facilities, sanitary sewer system, aquatic center phase 1 and 2, quarry road, water 
infrastructure, interchanges, selected trails and roadway widenings, and other backbone 
facilities to serve the Folsom Plan Area. In addition, the planned services to be financed include 
the maintenance of parks, trails, landscape corridors, medians and open spaces; streets, street 
light and safety light maintenance; and storm drainage facilities maintenance. In fiscal year 
2023, the district collected $1,582,552 and expended $963,817. The cash balance at year end 
was $2,244,558, and the status of the district is on-going. 
 
Community Facilities District No. 19, Mangini Ranch, was established January 12, 2016 to 
finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system, recycled water 
system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space improvements; 
Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; and other expenses.  Additionally, the authorized 
services to be funded from the levy include open space improvements, operations, and 
management; landscape corridor maintenance; street light, median, storm water, and 
community amenities maintenance; and miscellaneous costs related to any of the items 
described above. $28,530,000 in bonds were issued August 10, 2017. In fiscal year 2020, an 
additional $14,040,000 in bonds were issued. In fiscal year 2023, the district had no collections 
nor expenses for the project fund, leaving a balance of $0. The debt service reserve account for 
CFD No. 19 had a balance of $3,231,456. In fiscal year 2023, the district collected $226,023 
and expended $91,248 in the maintenance account. The cash balance at year end was $751,387, 
and the status of the district is on-going. 
 
Community Facilities District No. 20, Russell Ranch, was established November 14, 2017 to 
finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system, recycled water 
system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space improvements; 
Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; and other expenses. $13,255,000 in bonds were 
issued June 5, 2018. In fiscal year 2023, an additional $11,225,000 in bonds were issued. In 
fiscal year 2023, the district had collections of $9,580,008 and no expenditures from bond 
proceeds, leaving a balance of $9,580,008 in the project fund. The debt service reserve account 
had a balance of $1,861,612 and capitalized interest account had collections of $412,166 and 
expended $122,801, leaving a balance of $289,365. The status of the district is on-going. 
 
Community Facilities District No. 21, White Rock Springs Ranch, was established February 
13, 2018 to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system, 
recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space 
improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; and other expenses. On 
December 5, 2019 $9,695,000 in bonds were issued. On April 21, 2021, an additional 
$11,815,000 in bonds were issued. In fiscal year 2023, the district had no collections nor 
expenses for the project fund, leaving a balance of $0. The debt service reserve account for 
CFD No. 21 had a balance of $1,543,457. The status of the district is on-going. 
 
Community Facilities District No. 22, Folsom Heights, was established November 27, 2018 to 
finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system, recycled water 

Page 398

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



 5

system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space improvements; 
Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized 
services to be funded from the levy include landscape corridor maintenance; open space 
improvements, street light maintenance; and miscellaneous costs related to any of the items 
described above, As of June 30, 2023 the district had no collections nor expenses.  The status 
of the district is on-going. 
 
Community Facilities District No. 23, Folsom Ranch Improvement Area 1, was established 
May 26, 2020 to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system, 
recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space 
improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; Special Plan Infrastructure Fee 
Obligation; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized services to be funded from the 
levy include open space improvements; landscape corridor maintenance; street light 
maintenance; median and entry maintenance; neighborhood park maintenance; community 
amenities; storm water management; and miscellaneous costs related to any of the items 
described above. $12,925,000 in bonds were issued on October 30, 2020. On April 27, 2022, 
an additional $11,855,000 in bonds were issued. In fiscal year 2023, the district had collections 
of $152,857 and expended $8,897,147 from bond proceeds, leaving a balance of $3,674,875 
in the project fund. The debt service reserve account had a balance of $1,766,987. The 
capitalized interest account had no collections and expended $179,921, leaving a balance of 
$0. In fiscal year 2023, the district collected $106,181 and expended $28,754 in the 
maintenance account. The cash balance at year end was $227,343, and the status of the district 
is on-going. 
 
Community Facilities District No. 23, Folsom Ranch Improvement Area 2, was established 
May 26, 2020 to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system, 
recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space 
improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; Special Plan Infrastructure Fee 
Obligation; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized services to be funded from the 
levy include open space improvements; landscape corridor maintenance; street light 
maintenance; median and entry maintenance; neighborhood park maintenance; community 
amenities; storm water management; and miscellaneous costs related to any of the items 
described above. In fiscal year 2023, the district collected $663 and had no expenses in the 
maintenance account. The cash balance at year end was $663, and the status of the district is 
on-going. 
 
Community Facilities District No. 23, Folsom Ranch Improvement Area 3, was established 
May 26, 2020 to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system, 
recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space 
improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; Special Plan Infrastructure Fee 
Obligation; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized services to be funded from the 
levy include open space improvements; landscape corridor maintenance; street light 
maintenance; median and entry maintenance; neighborhood park maintenance; community 
amenities; storm water management; and miscellaneous costs related to any of the items 
described above. $9,430,000 in bonds were issued August 10, 2022. The district had 

Page 399

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



 6

collections of $8,093,030 and no expenditures from bond proceeds, leaving a balance of 
$8,093,030 in the project fund. The debt service reserve account had a balance of $716,648 
and the capitalized interest account had collections of $468,690 and expended $236,257, 
leaving a balance of $232,433. In fiscal year 2023, the district collected $182,477 and 
expended $185 in the maintenance account. The cash balance at year end was $183,323, and 
the status of the district is on-going. 
 
Community Facilities District No. 23, Folsom Ranch Improvement Area 4, was established 
May 26, 2020 to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system, 
recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space 
improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; Special Plan Infrastructure Fee 
Obligation; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized services to be funded from the 
levy include open space improvements; landscape corridor maintenance; street light 
maintenance; median and entry maintenance; neighborhood park maintenance; community 
amenities; storm water management; and miscellaneous costs related to any of the items 
described above. As of June 30, 2023 the district had no collections nor expenses.  The status 
of the district is on-going. 
 
Community Facilities District No. 23, Folsom Ranch Improvement Area 5, was established 
May 26, 2020 to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system, 
recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space 
improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; Special Plan Infrastructure Fee 
Obligation; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized services to be funded from the 
levy include open space improvements; landscape corridor maintenance; street light 
maintenance; median and entry maintenance; neighborhood park maintenance; community 
amenities; storm water management; and miscellaneous costs related to any of the items 
described above. As of June 30, 2023 the district had no collections nor expenses.  The status 
of the district is on-going. 
 
Community Facilities District No. 23, Folsom Ranch Improvement Area 6, was established 
May 26, 2020 to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system, 
recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space 
improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; Special Plan Infrastructure Fee 
Obligation; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized services to be funded from the 
levy include open space improvements; landscape corridor maintenance; street light 
maintenance; median and entry maintenance; neighborhood park maintenance; community 
amenities; storm water management; and miscellaneous costs related to any of the items 
described above. As of June 30, 2023 the district had no collections nor expenses.  The status 
of the district is on-going. 
 
Community Facilities District No. 23, Folsom Ranch Improvement Area 7, was established 
December 14, 2021 to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water 
system, recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open 
space improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; Special Plan Infrastructure 
Fee Obligation; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized services to be funded from 

Page 400

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



 7

the levy include open space improvements; landscape corridor maintenance; street light 
maintenance; median and entry maintenance; neighborhood park maintenance; community 
amenities; storm water management; and miscellaneous costs related to any of the items 
described above. As of June 30, 2023 the district had no collections nor expenses.  The status 
of the district is on-going. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

There is no discernable financial impact on the City of Folsom.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

 
This action is exempt from environmental review pursuant to CEQA Guidelines §15061(b)(3).   
  
ATTACHMENT 

 
1. SB-165 Annual Report for Community Facilities Districts 

 
Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Stacey Tamagni  
Finance Director 

Page 401

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 1 

Page 402

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



1 

SENATE BILL 165 

 

Senate Bill 165, filed with the Secretary of State on September 19, 2000, enacted the Local Agency 

Special Tax and Bond Accountability Act.  This Act requires that any local special tax or local bond 

measure subject to voter approval contain a statement indicating the specific purposes of the special 

tax, require that the proceeds of the special tax be applied to those purposes, require the creation of an 

account into which the proceeds shall be deposited, and require an annual report containing specified 

information concerning the use of the proceeds.  The Act only applies to any local special tax measure or 

local bond measure adopted on or after January 1, 2001 in accordance with Section 50075.1 or Section 

53410 of the California Government Code. 

 

Some of the requirements of the Act are handled at the formation of the Special Tax District and others 

are handled through annual reports.  This Section of this report intends to comply with Section 50075.3 

or Section 53411 of the California Government Code that states: 

 

“The chief fiscal officer of the issuing local agency shall file a report with its governing body no later than 

January 1, 2002, and at least once a year thereafter.  The annual report shall contain all of the following: 

(a) The amount of funds collected and expended. 

(b) The status of any project required or authorized to be funded as identified in subdivision (a) of 

Section 50075.1 or Section 53410.” 

 

The requirements of the Act apply to the funds for the following Districts: 

 

Community Facilities District No. 13, American River Canyon North 

Established July 24, 2001 

 

Purpose of Special Tax 

 

Community Facilities District No. 13, American River Canyon North (“CFD”) primarily funds the 

maintenance of landscape areas of American River Canyon North included within the boundaries of the 

CFD.  In addition to the maintenance costs, the CFD also provides funding for costs associated with 

collecting and administering the special taxes and annually administering the CFD.  The special tax funds 

levied may pay for any authorized service.  The City may also accumulate funds for authorized services.  

The CFD’s authorized services include the following: 

1. The repair and maintenance of parkways, landscaping, open space, greenbelts, bikeways, 

irrigation facilities, soundwalls, street lights on arterial parkways, monuments and signs, and other 

appurtenance within and along public right-of-way.  

2. Cost of scheduled inspections of the maintenance of landscaped areas. 

3. Utility bills associated with the maintenance of landscaped areas. 

4. CFD formation and annual administration costs. 

5. Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering, 

legal, and administration. 

 

  

Page 403

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



2 

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Collections & Expenditures 

 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Amount 

Collected 

Expended 

Amount 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Service 

Status 

$84,543 $115,893 $158,685 $41,751 On-going 

  

 

 
  

CFD #13 Detail

June 30, 2022 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance: 84,543$        

Revenues:

American River Canyon North Direct Levy 114,311$      

Interest Earned 1,583           

Total Revenues: 115,893$      

Expenses:

Water & Utilities 25,302$        

Monthly Landscape Maintenance

Repairs & Replacement 105,294        

Departmental Charges -               

Project Construction -               

CFD Admin 6,376           

Other Expenses 339              

Transfers Out 24,493          

Total Expenses: 161,804$      

Change in Receivables/Liabilities 3,119           

June 30, 2023 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance: 41,751$        

Page 404

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



3 

City of Folsom 

Community Facilities District No. 14 (Parkway Phase II) 

Established September 25, 2001 

 

Purpose of Special Tax   

 

Community Facilities District No. 14 (Parkway Phase II) (“CFD”) provided funds to finance the acquisition 

and construction of certain public facilities and the payment of certain fees relating to public facilities 

generally described as the construction of portions of Blue Ravine Road, Parkway Drive, East Natoma 

Street and the Oak Avenue Parkway/Blue Ravine Road Intersection, together with street lights, 

soundwalls and landscaping and hardscape improvements, the construction of drainage improvements 

within Humbug/Willow Creek Parkway, improvements to the existing sewer lift station at Willow Creek 

Parkway and related force mains and the construction of fire facilities and parks within the CFD.   

 

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Collections & Expenditures 

 

Series 2017 Special Tax Refunding Bonds 

Bonds Issued July 11, 2017 

$14,640,000 

 

Fund 

Initial 

Deposit 

Prior Years 

Additions / 

Interest 

Prior Years 

Expenses 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Current Year 

Additions / 

Interest 

Current Year 

Expenses 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Refunding  

Escrow 

Deposit 

$15,240,765 $0 $15,240,764 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Project Fund 1,790,000 2,019,806 9,445 2,010,361 54,582 11,667 2,053,275 

Cost of 

Issuance 
88,992 88,992 0 0 0 0 0 

Bond 

Proceeds 
389 389 0 0 0 0    0 

 

CFD #14 Detail

June 30, 2022 Acquisition & Construction Fund Cash Balance: 2,010,361$      

Revenues:

Proceeds from Series 2017 Refunding Bonds -$                

Interest Earned 54,582            

Transfers In -                  

Total Revenues: 54,582$           

Expenses:

Construction -$                

Transfers Out -                  

Total Expenses: -$                

Change in Receivables/Liabilities (11,667)           

June 30, 2023 Acquisition & Construction Fund Cash Balance: 2,053,275$      

Page 405

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



4 

City of Folsom 

Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Water Facilities and Supply) 

Established January 14, 2014 

 

Purpose of Special Tax 

 

Water Treatment, Storage and Distribution Facilities 

Generally, all work and improvements to design, construct, install and upgrade the public water 

treatment, storage and distribution facilities described below, all to be located on public property 

(whether the dedicated road right-of-way, dedicated easements, or publicly-owned land), including but 

not limited to mobilization, clearing, grubbing, tree removal, protective fencing and erosion control, 

dewatering, lime treatment, trenching, and related appurtenant work and facilities, together with the 

costs and expense of engineering design, plan review, construction-related surety bonds or like security 

instruments, construction staking and management, inspection, permitting costs, and any like fees and 

costs incidental to such construction and installation for the following items: 

 Water Systems Optimization Review Program costs including: 

o Costs for engineering, tests and studies, legal and other professional services and 

project administration 

o Willow Hill pipeline lining improvement costs 

 Water treatment, pumping and conveyance facilities required to treat, pump and convey water 

from the City's water treatment plant to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan including:  

o Water treatment plant upgrades 

o Pump station, booster pumps and related appurtenances 

o Additional water conveyance facilities and connections 

Water Supply Costs 

Annual water supply costs to the City pursuant to the Water Supply and Facilities Plan and Agreement 

between the City of Folsom and Certain Landowners in the Folsom Plan Area recorded on January 24, 

2013. 

 

Other Costs 

In addition to the above facilities, other incidental expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos 

Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing the 

facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation and environmental remediation); engineering 

and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction 

of the public facilities; costs of project/construction management; costs (including the costs of legal 

services) associated with the formation of the district; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the 

amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing 

reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out 

the authorized purposes of the district; and any other expenses incidental to the formation and 

implementation of the district and to the construction, completion, inspection and acquisition of the 

authorized facilities. 

 

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Collections & Expenditures 

 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Amount 

Collected 

Expended 

Amount 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Status 

$998,358 $2,013,068 $1,972,277 $1,039,149 On-going 

Page 406

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



5 

 

 

 

 

 

CFD #2013-1 Detail

June 30, 2022 Fund Cash Balance: 998,358$         

Revenues:

CFD 2013-1 Water Facilities & Supply Direct Levy 1,926,039$      

Prepayment 39,219            

Interest Earned 47,810            

Total Revenues: 2,013,068$      

Expenses:

Water System Optimization Repayment (9 of 10) 179,813$         

Water Supply 1,700,253        

CFD Admin 19,814            

Transfers Out 30,770            

Total Expenses: 1,930,649$      

Change in Receivables/Liabilities (41,628)           

June 30, 2023 Fund Cash Balance: 1,039,149$      

Page 407

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



6 

City of Folsom 

Community Facilities District No. 16 (The Islands at Parkshore) 

Improvement Area No. 1 and Improvement Area No. 2 

Established March 10, 2015 

Improvement Area No. 1 Bonds Issued March 15, 2018 

Improvement Area No. 2 Bonds Issued July 18, 2019 

 

 

Purpose of Special Tax 

 

Facilities 

The planned public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 16 (The Islands at Parkshore) (“CFD”) 

include the following: construction of sanitary sewers (including gravity sewers, manholes and 

appurtenances), storm drains (including inlets, outlets, channels, structures, junctions, manholes and 

catch basins), water facilities (including distribution mains and appurtenances), power, telephone and 

gas utilities, street improvements (including curbs, gutters, sidewalks, landscaping and striping, traffic 

signals and street lights), bridge improvements, park improvements, landscaping and slope planting, all 

within or in the vicinity of the CFD. The public facilities shall include all related clearing and grubbing, 

grading and appurtenances, and any removal or temporary signage or markings related thereto. 

 

All street and bridge improvements include widening, paving and/or re-paving, striping, and/or re-

striping, pedestrian sidewalks or other related improvements or appurtenances, and utilities are located 

within the public right of way. 

 

All facilities and related costs eligible to be funded include all City development impact fees, sewer 

connection fees, water connection fees, drainage fees, traffic mitigation fees, park fees, and other City 

fees related to facilities. 

 

All public facilities shall include attributed costs of engineering, design, planning, construction staking, 

materials testing and coordination of the public facilities.  The public facilities should be constructed 

pursuant to plans and specifications approved by the City (or other governmental entity that will own 

and operate the same). 

 

The foregoing description of the types of facilities eligible to be financed is general in nature and 

includes any appurtenant work and incidental expenses relating to the facilities.  The final nature and 

location of the facilities will be determined upon the preparation of final plans and specifications for 

such facilities. 
 

Services 

It is intended that the CFD will be eligible to fund all or a portion of the costs of construction, operation, 

maintenance, repair, and servicing of parks, landscaping and irrigation improvements, street and 

landscape lighting, fencing and/or walls, sidewalks, trails, pathways, water quality/drainage basins, 

wetlands, and appurtenant facilities within or adjacent to the CFD. 

 

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above: 

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or 

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to 

be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of personnel necessary or convenient to provide the 

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements and for 

the future provision of services. It is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with 

Page 408

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



7 

its own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof.  The CFD may also fund 

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD. 

 

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Collections & Expenditures 

 

Improvement Area 1 Facilities 

 

Fund 

Initial 

Deposit 

Prior Years 

Additions / 

Interest 

Prior Years 

Expenses 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Current Year 

Additions / 

Interest 

Current Year 

Expenses 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Fund 
$4,932,775 $4,932,775 $4,932,775 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Cost of 

Issuance 
333,096 333,096 333,096 0 0 0 0 

Reserve 

Fund 
430,680 431,046 0 431,046 0 2,424 428,622 

 

 

Improvement Area 2 Facilities 

 

Fund 

Initial 

Deposit 

Prior Years 

Additions / 

Interest 

Prior Years 

Expenses 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Current Year 

Additions / 

Interest 

Current Year 

Expenses 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Fund 
$2,798,453 $2,798,607 $2,623,738 $174,870 $5,842 $0 $180,711 

Cost of 

Issuance 
251,582 251,582 251,582 0 0 0    0 

Reserve 

Fund 
237,773 947 745 237,975 0 885 237,090 

 

 
 

  

CFD #16 IA2 Fund Detail

June 30, 2022 Acquisition and Construction Fund Cash Balance: 174,870$      

Revenues:

Proceeds from Series 2019 Bonds -$             

Interest Earned 5,842$          

Total Revenues: 5,842$          

Expenses:

Progress Payment #1 to Lewis Land Developers, LLC -$             

Total Expenses: -$             

Change in Receivables/Liabilities -               

June 30, 2023 Acquisition and Construction Fund Cash Balance: 180,711$      

Page 409

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



8 

Services 

 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Amount 

Collected 

Expended 

Amount 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Status 

$520,185 $229,883 $90,319 $659,749 On-going 

 

 

CFD #16 Maintenance Fund Detail

June 30, 2022 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance: 520,185$     

Revenues:

CFD #16 (IA1) Services Direct Levy 101,162$     

CFD #16 (IA2) Services Direct Levy 115,667       

Interest Earned 13,053         

Total Revenues: 229,883$     

Expenses:

Water & Utilities 10,147$       

Monthly Landscape Maintenance 54,548         

Repairs & Replacement 2,339           

Departmental Charges -              

Project Construction -              

CFD Admin -              

Other Expenses -              

Transfers Out 17,752         

Total Expenses: 84,786$       

Change in Receivables/Liabilities (5,533)          

June 30, 2023 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance: 659,749$     

Page 410

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



9 

City of Folsom 

Community Facilities District No. 17 (Willow Hill Pipeline) 

Established March 24, 2015 

 

Purpose of Special Tax 

 

The planned public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 17 (Willow Hill Pipeline) (“CFD”) include 

the following: water facilities (including the Willow Hill Transmission Pipeline construction and 

rehabilitation project, and all ancillary work necessary or appropriate related thereto), all within or in 

the vicinity of the CFD.  The public facilities shall include all related clearing and grubbing, grading and 

appurtenances, and any removal or temporary signage or markings related thereto. 

 

CFD bond proceeds may not be used to pay, or reimburse previously-paid, development related fees, 

including, but not limited to, development impact fees, City community services fee, development 

processing fees, school fees, sewer connection fees, water connection fees, drainage fees, traffic 

mitigation fees, and other City fees related to facilities. 

 

All public facilities shall include attributed costs of engineering, design, planning, construction staking, 

materials testing and coordination of the public facilities. The public facilities should be constructed 

pursuant to plans and specifications approved by the City (or other governmental entity that will own 

and operate the same). 

 

The foregoing description of the types of facilities eligible to be financed is general in nature and 

includes any appurtenant work and incidental expenses relating to the facilities. The final nature and 

location of the facilities will be determined upon the preparation of final plans and specifications for 

such facilities. 

 

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Collections & Expenditures 

Fund 

Initial 

Deposit 

Prior Years 

Additions / 

Interest 

Prior Years 

Expenses 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Current Year 

Additions / 

Interest 

Current 

Year 

Expenses 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Acquisition and 

Construction Fund 
$5,700,000 $5,700,000 $5,700,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Reserve Account 408,381 414,066 5,338 408,728 0 2,749 405,979 

Underwriter’s 

Discount 
96,254 96,254 96,254 0 0 0 0 

Cost of Issuance 327,195 346,289 308,132 0 0 0 0 

 

 

 

  

Page 411

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



10 

City of Folsom 

Community Facilities District No. 18 

(Folsom Plan Area – Area-Wide Improvements and Services) 

Established December 8, 2015 

 

Purpose of Special Tax 

 

Facilities 

The planned public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 18 (Folsom Plan Area – Area-Wide 

Improvements and Services) (“CFD”) include the following:  

 

Willow Hill Pipeline Facilities – These facilities consist of water facilities (including the Willow Hill 

Transmission Pipeline construction and rehabilitation project, and all ancillary work necessary or 

appropriate related thereto), all within or in the vicinity of the CFD. The improvements shall include all 

related clearing and grubbing, grading and appurtenances, and any removal or temporary signage or 

markings related thereto. 

 

Off-site Water Facilities – These facilities consist of existing and new facilities such as a water treatment 

plant, a pump station and expansion thereof, transmission pipelines, reservoirs, and the distribution 

system to serve the Folsom Plan Area.   

 

Sanitary Sewer System – These facilities include a series of transmission pipelines, pump stations, and 

force mains, to serve the Folsom Plan Area.  

 

Aquatic Center Phase 1 – These facilities include a competitive swimming pool, a recreation activity 

pool, and related support pool-related buildings and structures, such as maintenance and locker room 

facilities, which will serve the Folsom Plan Area. 

 

Quarry Road – These facilities include the special road design along Prairie City Road from U.S. Highway 

50 to White Rock Road or alternative route to accommodate heavy truck traffic to and from potential 

future aggregate quarry sites south of the Folsom Plan Area as identified in the City’s Truck 

Management Plan approved by the City Council on December 6, 2011 via Resolution 8933.   

 

Water Infrastructure – These facilities include the development of water pipelines, booster pump 

stations, pressure regulating stations, water treatment plant, water reservoirs, land costs, off-site 

capacity building, and systems optimization efforts throughout the CFD.  

 

Aquatic Center Phase 2 – These facilities include a community center, gymnasium, multi-purpose 

classrooms, a senior center, teen activity rooms which will serve the Folsom Plan Area. 

 

Selected Trails – These facilities consist of a portion of the 30 miles of trails proposed to be built in the 

Folsom Plan Area.  The comprehensive bike system consists of Class I paths and Class II bike lanes 

connecting residential neighborhoods with schools, parks, and other major destinations.  The plan costs 

include trails, intersection protection, trail bridges, undercrossings, and design fees. 

 

Interchanges – These facilities include the modifications to existing interchanges and the construction of 

new Highway 50 interchange improvements including the acquisition of land.  

 

Selected Roadway Widenings – These facilities include the necessary infrastructure improvements to 

widen the Oak Avenue, Empire Ranch Road, and Prairie City Road from two to four lanes. 

Page 412

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



11 

 

Other Backbone Facilities – These consist of additional backbone public facilities needed to serve the 

Folsom Plan Area.  The additional backbone public facilities include parks, transit services, fire facilities 

and equipment, police facilities and equipment, municipal service center, corporation yard, solid waste, 

branch library, and transportation. 

 

All facilities shall include attributed costs of engineering, design, planning, construction staking, 

materials testing and coordination of the facilities.  The facilities should be constructed pursuant to 

plans and specifications approved by the City (or other governmental entity that will own and operate 

the same). 

 

The foregoing description of the types of facilities eligible to be financed is general in nature and 

includes any appurtenant work and incidental expenses relating to the facilities.  The final nature and 

location of the facilities will be determined upon the preparation of final plans and specifications for 

such facilities. 

 

Services 

The planned services to be financed by the CFD include the following: park, trail, landscape corridor, 

median, and open space maintenance; street, street light and safety light maintenance; and storm 

drainage facilities maintenance. 

 

The CFD annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance 

and servicing of turf, ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, drainage facilities and drainage 

systems, street lighting, fencing, soundwalls, sidewalks, monuments, statuary, fountains, water quality 

ponds, park facilities, open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the open space 

areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other buffer areas between 

the open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, drainage swales and other ornamental 

structures and facilities, entry signage, street pavers, art work, and monuments and all necessary 

appurtenances, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and equipment, 

as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City.  Annual maintenance costs include an 

allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements. 

  

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above: 

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or 

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to 

be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the 

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the 

future provision of services.  It is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its 

own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof.  The CFD may also fund 

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD. 

 

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Collections & Expenditures 

 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Amount 

Collected 

Expended 

Amount 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Status 

$1,625,823 $1,582,552 $963,817 $2,244,558 On-going 

 

 

Page 413

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



12 

 
  

CFD #18 Detail

June 30, 2022 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance: 1,625,823$    

Revenues:

Area-Wide Maintenance Direct Levy 1,548,078$    

Reimbursements -$              

Interest Earned 34,474          

Total Revenues: 1,582,552$    

Expenses:

Water & Utilities 150,433$       

Monthly Landscape Maintenance 304,784        

Repairs & Replacement 456,711        

Departmental Charges -               

Project Construction 54,430          

CFD Admin -               

Other Expenses -               

Transfers Out 109,303        

Total Expenses: 1,075,662$    

Change in Receivables/Liabilities 111,846        

June 30, 2023 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance: 2,244,558$    

Page 414

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



13 

City of Folsom 

Community Facilities District No. 19 (Mangini Ranch) 

Established January 12, 2016 

Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 Issued August 23, 2017 

Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2019 Issued August 7, 2019 

 

Purpose of Special Tax 

 

Facilities 

The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 19 (Mangini Ranch) (“CFD”) include the 

following:  

 

Transportation Improvements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to: 

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and culverts; 

clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry seal), and 

decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground utilities and 

undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bike trails 

(including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street lights, signalization, and 

traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion control; median and parkway 

landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus Rapid Transit improvements 

including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; masonry walls; traffic control and 

agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible improvements for the roads listed above 

also include any and all necessary underground potable and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm 

drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities include the following transportation 

improvements: 

 Scott Road. 

 Easton Valley Parkway—from Scott Road to Placerville Road. 

 Street "A"—from Scott Road to Placerville Road. 

 Street "B"—from Scott Road to White Rock Road. 

 White Rock Road—at selected intersections. 

 Other public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the 

CFD, including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities. 

 

Water System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet 

the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to: water 

storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves, 

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as 

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; site 

lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and 

fencing; and striping and signage. 

 

Recycled Water System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system 

facilities designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but may 

not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances, gate 

valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto - 

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; 

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and 

fencing; and striping and signage. 

 

Page 415

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



14 

Drainage System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain 

improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but 

may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and water quality 

measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage ways/channels, pump 

stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping and signage and other 

improvements related thereto. 

 

Wastewater System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities 

designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be 

limited to pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main line; force mains; 

lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related thereto; and related sewer system 

improvements. 

 

Park, Parkway and Open Space Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to 

parks, parkways and open space required for development within the CFD. These facilities include, but 

may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting, drainage, 

sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including 

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for 

authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized 

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access 

easements required for development within the CFD. 

 

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Infrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements 

that are included in the Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on 

September 8, 2015, including any future amendments thereto. 

  

Other Expenses: In addition to the above facilities, other incidental expenses as authorized by the Mello-

Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing 

the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, remediation and mitigation); engineering 

and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction 

of the public facilities; costs of project/construction management; costs (including the costs of legal 

services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination 

of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing 

reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out 

the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses incidental to the formation and 

implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, inspection and acquisition of the 

authorized facilities. 

 

Services 

The authorized services to be funded from the levy and collection of annual special taxes include those 

set forth below in addition to the costs associated with collecting and administering the special taxes 

and annual administering the CFD. The CFD will be eligible to fund all or a portion of the costs of 

reconstruction and/or rehabilitation, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement, and servicing of 

the following items not otherwise subject to funding from the City of Folsom Community Facilities 

District No. 18 (Folsom Plan Area – Area-Wide Improvements and Services): 

 

Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including general 

maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and bike trails and 

their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions] within open space), creation 

and maintenance of fire breaks, permits, vandalism/graffiti, flood conveyance (vegetation/tree 

Page 416

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



15 

removals), beaver dam removals, outfall/drainage swale maintenance, erosion control/bank 

stabilization, native planting/replanting, pre and post emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 

404 permit, and open space overarching maintenance & management plan and repair and replacement 

of facilities within open space areas in the project area. 

 

The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within the CFD, 

including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs. 

 

The maintenance of street lights, including any utility costs related thereto. 

 

The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation. 

 

Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse. 

 

Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales constructed 

between storm drain facilities and receiving waters. 

 

Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering, GIS, 

legal, and city and county administration costs. 

 

The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs, reconstruction or 

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry 

monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities maintained 

by the CFD as determined by the administrator. 

 

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above: 

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, rehabilitating, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, 

apparatus or facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or 

fixtures in areas to be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of personnel necessary or convenient 

to provide the services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and 

replacements and for the future provision of services. It is expected that the services will be provided by 

the City, either with its own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. 

 

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Collections & Expenditures 
 

Facilities 
 

Fund 

Initial 

Deposit 

Prior Years 

Additions / 

Interest 

Prior Years 

Expenses 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Current Year 

Additions / 

Interest 

Current Year 

Expenses 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Fund 
$41,050,500 $41,072,408 $41,072,408 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Underwriter’s 

Discount 
408,799 408,799 408,799 0 0 0 0 

Cost of 

Issuance 
685,000 685,000 685,000 0 0 0 0 

Reserve 

Fund 
3,180,625 3,297,357 43,675 3,253,682 0 22,226 3,231,456 

Capitalized 

Interest 
1,487,509 1,487,509 1,487,509 0 0 0    0 

 

Page 417

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



16 

Services 

 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Amount 

Collected 

Expended 

Amount 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Status 

$616,612 $226,023 $91,248 $751,387 On-going 

 

 

CFD #19 Detail

June 30, 2022 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance: 616,612$       

Revenues:

Mangini Ranch Maintenance Direct Levy 210,048$       

Reimbursements -               

Interest Earned 15,975          

Total Revenues: 226,023$       

Expenses:

Water & Utilities 11,632$        

Monthly Landscape Maintenance 102,517        

Repairs & Replacement 130               

Departmental Charges -               

Project Construction -               

CFD Admin -               

Other Expenses -               

Transfers Out 2,531            

Total Expenses: 116,810$       

Change in Receivables/Liabilities 25,562          

June 30, 2023 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance: 751,387$       

Page 418

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



17 

City of Folsom 

Community Facilities District No. 20 (Russell Ranch) 

Established November 14, 2017 

Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2018 Issued June 5, 2018 

Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 Issued December 8, 2022 

 

Purpose of Special Tax 

 

The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 20 (Russell Ranch) (“CFD”) include any and all 

improvements that are included in the Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City 

Council on September 8, 2015, including any future amendments thereto. These facilities, include, but 

are not limited to: 

 Zone 4/5 Booster Pump Station; 

 Zone 5 Water Tank and Zone 6 Booster Pump Station; 

 Highway 50 Water Transmission Line; 

 Alder Creek Parkway Improvements; and 

 Grand Prairie Improvements. 

 

Transportation Improvements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to: 

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and culverts; 

clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry seal), and 

decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground utilities and 

undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bike trails 

(including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street lights, signalization, and 

traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion control; median and parkway 

landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus Rapid Transit improvements 

including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; masonry walls; traffic control and 

agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible improvements for the roads listed above 

also include any and all necessary underground potable and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm 

drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities include the following transportation 

improvements: 

 Placerville Road—from Highway 50 to White Rock Road. 

 Alder Creek Parkway—from Scott Road to the Empire Ranch Road. 

 Grand Prairie Road—from Alder Creek Parkway to Placerville Road. 

 Scott Road—from Alder Creek Parkway to Street “A”. 

 Empire Ranch Road—from property line to White Rock Road. 

 Other public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the 

CFD, including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities. 

 

Potable and Non-Potable Water System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all on- and 

off-site backbone water and recycled (or non-potable water facilities) designed to meet the needs of 

development within the CFD. These facilities include, but are not limited to, potable and non-potable 

mains, valves, pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related 

thereto such as site clearing, grading, and paving; services, and appurtenances; wells; water treatment, 

distribution, and storage facilities; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; site 

lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates and 

fencing; and striping and signage. 

 

Drainage System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain 

improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but 

Page 419

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



18 

may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls, and water quality 

measures; detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage ways/channels, pump 

stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates and fencing; and striping and signage and other 

improvements related thereto. 

 

Wastewater System Improvements: Authorized facilities include all wastewater facilities designed to 

meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to, 

pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main line; force mains; lift stations; 

odor-control facilities; and permitting related thereto; and related sewer system improvements. 

 

Park, Parkway, Open Space and Preserve Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all 

improvements to parks, parkways, and open space required for development within the CFD. These 

facilities include, but may not be limited to grading; turf, shrubs and trees; landscaping irrigation; site 

lighting; drainage; sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing 

(including soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges; public art; active and passive park and open space 

improvements (including respites and overlooks); related monumentation and signage; storm drain 

crossings; environmental mitigation for wetlands, hawk, and other species for infrastructure under the 

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Program and authorized facilities herein; access gates and fencing; and 

related park, open space and preserve improvements. 

 

Other Incidental Expenses and Bond Issuance Costs: In addition to the above facilities, other incidental 

expenses as authorized by the Act, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing the 

facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, remediation and mitigation); engineering and 

surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction of 

the public facilities; costs of project/construction management; costs (including the costs of legal 

services) associated with the formation of the District; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the 

amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing 

reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out 

the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses incidental to the formation and 

implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, inspection and acquisition of the 

authorized facilities. 

 

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Collections & Expenditures 

 

Fund 

Initial 

Deposit 

Prior Years 

Additions / 

Interest 

Prior Years 

Expenses 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Current Year 

Additions / 

Interest 

Current Year 

Expenses 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Fund 
$21,567,465 $12,019,371 $12,019,371 $0 $9,580,008 $0 $9,580,008 

Underwriter’s 

Discount 
135,864 135,864 135,864 0 0 0 0 

Cost of 

Issuance 
689,921 318,236 318,236 0 371,685 0 0 

Reserve 

Fund 
1,853,081 1,023,174 312 1,022,862 838,750 0 1,861,612 

Capitalized 

Interest 
1,217,134 804,968 804,968 0 412,166 122,801 289,365 

 

Page 420

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



19 

 
  

CFD #20 Fund Detail

June 30, 2022 Acquisition and Construction Fund Cash Balance: -$                

Revenues:

Proceeds from Series 2022 Bonds 9,567,465$      

Interest Earned 12,543$          

Total Revenues: 9,580,008$      

Expenses:

Progress Payment #4 TNHC Russell Ranch LLC -                 

Total Expenses: -$                

Change in Receivables/Liabilities -                 

June 30, 2023 Acquisition and Construction Fund Cash Balance: 9,580,008$      

Page 421

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



20 

City of Folsom 

Community Facilities District No. 21 (White Rock Springs Ranch) 

Established February 13, 2018 

Special Tax Bonds, Series 2019 Issued December 5, 2019 

Special Tax Bonds, Series 2021 Issued April 8, 2021 

 

Purpose of Special Tax 

 

The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 21 (White Rock Springs Ranch) (“CFD”) include 

any and all improvements that are included in the Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Program adopted by 

the City Council on September 8, 2015, including any future amendments thereto. These facilities, 

include, but are not limited to: 

 Zone 4/5 Booster Pump Station; 

 Zone 5 Water Tank and Zone 6 Booster Pump Station; 

 Highway 50 Water Transmission Line; 

 Street “A” Improvements; 

 Alder Creek Parkway Improvements; and 

 Grand Prairie Road Improvements. 

 

Transportation Improvements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to: 

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and culverts; 

clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry seal), and 

decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground utilities and 

undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bike trails 

(including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street lights, signalization, and 

traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion control; median and parkway 

landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus Rapid Transit improvements 

including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; masonry walls; traffic control and 

agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible improvements for the roads listed herein 

also include any and all necessary underground potable and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm 

drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities include the following transportation 

improvements: 

 Placerville Road—from Highway 50 to White Rock Road. 

 Grand Prairie Road—from Alder Creek Parkway to Placerville Road. 

 Scott Road—from Alder Creek Parkway to Street “A”. 

 Street “A” —from Placerville Road to Empire Ranch Road. 

 Sycamore Creek Crossing. 

 Rock Springs Ranch Road. 

 Other public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the 

CFD, including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities. 

 

Potable and Non-Potable Water System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all on- and 

off-site backbone water and recycled (or non-potable water facilities) designed to meet the needs of 

development within the CFD. These facilities include, but are not limited to, potable and non-potable 

mains, valves, pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related 

thereto such as site clearing, grading, and paving; services, and appurtenances; wells; water treatment, 

distribution, and storage facilities; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; site 

lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates and 

fencing; and striping and signage. 

Page 422

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



21 

 

Drainage System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain 

improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but 

may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls, and water quality 

measures; detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage ways/channels, pump 

stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates and fencing; and striping and signage and other 

improvements related thereto. 

 

Wastewater System Improvements: Authorized facilities include all wastewater facilities designed to 

meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to, 

pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force mains; lift 

stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related thereto; and related sewer system 

improvements. 

 

Park, Parkway, Open Space and Preserve Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all 

improvements to parks, parkways, and open space required for development within the CFD. These 

facilities include, but may not be limited to grading; turf, shrubs and trees; landscaping irrigation; site 

lighting; drainage; sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing 

(including soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges; public art; active and passive park and open space 

improvements (including respites and overlooks); related monumentation and signage; storm drain 

crossings; environmental mitigation for wetlands, hawk, and other species for infrastructure under the 

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Program and authorized facilities herein; access gates and fencing; and 

related park, open space and preserve improvements. 

 

Payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Program (“SPIF”) Obligation: Authorized facilities include 

payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF obligations 

within the entire CFD: 

 SPIF Infrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component); 

 SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component; 

 SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component; and 

 SPIF Administrative Fee. 

 

Other Incidental Expenses and Bond Issuance Costs: In addition to the above facilities, other incidental 

expenses as authorized by the Act, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing the 

facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, remediation and mitigation); engineering and 

surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction of 

the public facilities; costs of project/construction management; costs (including the costs of legal 

services) associated with the formation of the CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the 

amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing 

reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out 

the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses incidental to the formation and 

implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, inspection and acquisition of the 

authorized facilities. 

 

  

Page 423

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



22 

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Collections & Expenditures 

 

Fund 

Initial 

Deposit 

Prior Years 

Additions / 

Interest 

Prior Years 

Expenses 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Current Year 

Additions / 

Interest 

Current Year 

Expenses 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Fund 
$21,106,647 $21,210,474 $21,210,474 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Underwriter’s 

Discount 
230,285 230,285 230,285 0 0 0 0 

Cost of 

Issuance 
650,000 650,000 650,000 0 0 0 0 

Reserve 

Fund 
1,550,000 1,551,233 0 1,551,233 0 7,776 1,543,457 

Capitalized 

Interest 
505,560 505,660 505,660 0 0 0    0 

 

  

 

  

Page 424

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



23 

City of Folsom 

Community Facilities District No. 22 (Folsom Heights) 

Established November 27, 2018 

 

Purpose of Special Tax 

 

Facilities 

The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 22 (Folsom Heights) (“CFD”) include the 

following:  

 

Transportation Improvements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to: 

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and culverts; 

clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry seal), and 

decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground utilities and 

undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bike trails 

(including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street lights, signalization, and 

traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion control; median and parkway 

landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus Rapid Transit improvements 

including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; masonry walls; traffic control and 

agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible improvements for the roads listed herein 

also include any and all necessary underground potable and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm 

drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities include the following transportation 

improvements: 

 Summit Street 

 Prima Drive 

 Empire Ranch Road 

 Alder Creek Parkway 

 Folsom Heights Drive 

 Other public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property 

within the CFD, including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities. 

 

Water System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities, including those 

expected to be owned or managed by the City and/or the El Dorado Irrigation District, designed to meet 

the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to: 

water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves, 

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as 

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by 

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access 

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage. 

 

Recycled Water System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system 

facilities, including those expected to be owned or managed by the City and/or the El Dorado Irrigation 

District, designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, 

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances, 

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto 

- such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by 

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access 

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage. 

 

Page 425

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



24 

Drainage System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain 

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities 

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and 

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage 

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping 

and signage and other improvements related thereto. 

 

Wastewater System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities, 

including those expected to be owned or managed by the City and/or the El Dorado Irrigation District, 

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but 

may not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; 

force mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related 

thereto; and related sewer system improvements. 

 

Park, Parkway and Open Space Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to 

parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities 

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting, 

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including 

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for 

authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized 

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access 

easements required for development of property within the CFD. 

 

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Infrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements 

that are included in the Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on 

September 8, 2015, including any future amendments thereto. 

 

Other Incidental Expenses and Bond Issuance Costs: In addition to the above facilities, other incidental 

expenses as authorized by the Act, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing the 

facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, remediation and mitigation); engineering and 

surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction of 

the public facilities; costs of project/construction management; costs (including the costs of legal 

services) associated with the formation of the CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the 

amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing 

reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out 

the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses incidental to the formation and 

implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, inspection and acquisition of the 

authorized facilities. 

 

Services 

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following: 

 Landscape corridor and enhanced open space maintenance; and 

 Street light maintenance. 

 

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and 

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls, 

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the 

enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other 

buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry 

signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and 

Page 426

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



25 

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City.  Annual maintenance costs 

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements. 

 

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above: 

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or 

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to 

be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the 

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the 

future provision of services.  It is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its 

own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund 

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD. 

 

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Collections & Expenditures 

 

Facilities 

 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Amount 

Collected 

Expended 

Amount 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Status 

$0 $0 $0 $0 On-going 

 

Services 

 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Amount 

Collected 

Expended 

Amount 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Status 

$0 $0 $0 $0 On-going 

 

  

Page 427

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



26 

City of Folsom 

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 

Improvement Area 1 

Established May 26, 2020 

Special Tax Bonds, Series 2020 Issued October 30, 2020 

Special Tax Bonds, Series 2021 Issued April 27, 2022 

 

 

Purpose of Special Tax 

 

Facilities 

The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (“CFD”) include the 

following:  

 

Transportation Improvements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to: 

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and 

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry 

seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground 

utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, 

sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street 

lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion 

control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus 

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; 

masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto.  Eligible 

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable 

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities 

include the following transportation improvements: 

 All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD, 

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities. 

Water System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet 

the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, but may not be limited to: 

water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves, 

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as 

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by 

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access 

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.  

Recycled Water System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system 

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, 

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances, 

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto - 

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; 

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and 

fencing; and striping and signage. 

Drainage System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain 

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities 

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and 

Page 428

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



27 

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage 

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping 

and signage and other improvements related thereto. 

Wastewater System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities 

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, but may 

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force 

mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related 

thereto; and related sewer system improvements. 

Park, Parkway and Open Space Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to 

parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD.  These facilities 

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting, 

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including 

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for 

authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements.  Authorized 

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access 

easements required for development of property within the CFD. 

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Infrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements 

that are included in the Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on 

September 8, 2015, including any future amendments thereto. 

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities 

include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF 

obligations within the entire CFD: 

• SPIF Infrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component) 

• SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component 

• SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component 

• SPIF Administrative Fee. 

Other Incidental Expenses and Bond Issuance Costs: In addition to the above facilities, other incidental 

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to, 

the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, 

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and 

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction 

management; costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos 

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of 

taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs 

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses 

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, 

inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities. 

Services 

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following: 

 Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including 

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and 

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions] 

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood 

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale 

Page 429

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



28 

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post 

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management 

Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June 9, 2017, and repair and 

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area. 

 The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within 

the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs. 

 The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto. 

 The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation. 

 Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement. 

 Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse. 

 Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales 

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters. 

 Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering, 

GIS, legal, and city and county administration costs. 

 The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or 

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry 

monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities 

maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator. 

 

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and 

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls, 

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the 

enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other 

buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry 

signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and 

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City.  Annual maintenance costs 

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements. 

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above: 

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or 

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to 

be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the 

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the 

future provision of services.  It is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its 

own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof.  The CFD may also fund 

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 430

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



29 

 

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Collections & Expenditures 

 

Facilities 

 

Fund 

Initial 

Deposit 

Prior Years 

Additions / 

Interest 

Prior Years 

Expenses 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Current Year 

Additions / 

Interest 

Current Year 

Expenses 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Fund 
$22,554,233 $22,569,015 $10,149,849 $12,419,165 $152,857 $8,897,147 $3,674,875 

Underwriter’s 

Discount 
279,649 279,649 279,649 0 0 0 0 

Cost of 

Issuance 
510,000 510,000 510,000 0 0 0 0 

Reserve 

Fund 
1,774,000 1,774,993 0 1,774,993 0 8,006 1,766,987 

Capitalized 

Interest 
606,308 606,379 426,458 179,921 0 179,921    0 

 

 

Services 

 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Amount 

Collected 

Expended 

Amount 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Status 

$149,916 $106,181 $28,754 $227,343 On-going 

CFD #23, IA1 Fund Detail

June 30, 2022 Acquisition and Construction Fund Cash Balance: 12,419,165$       

Revenues:

Proceeds from Series 2022 Bonds -$                   

Interest Earned 152,857              

Total Revenues: 152,857$            

Expenses:

Progress Payment #4 East Carpenter Imp. Co., LLC 1,368,894$         

Progress Payment #4 CMB Improvement, LLC 6,773,708           

Progress Payment #5 East Carpenter Imp. Co., LLC 118,982              

Progress Payment #5 CMB Improvement, LLC 635,563              

Total Expenses: 8,897,147$         

Change in Receivables/Liabilities -                     

June 30, 2023 Acquisition and Construction Fund Cash Balance: 3,674,875$         

Page 431

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



30 

 
 

 

 

  

CFD #23, IA1 Detail

June 30, 2022 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance: 149,916$       

Revenues:

Mangini Ranch Maintenance Direct Levy 102,032$       

Reimbursements -               

Interest Earned 4,149            

Total Revenues: 106,181$       

Expenses:

Water & Utilities 3,159$          

Monthly Landscape Maintenance 387               

Repairs & Replacement 9,739            

Departmental Charges -               

Project Construction -               

CFD Admin -               

Other Expenses 17                

Transfers Out 14,710          

Total Expenses: 28,013$        

Change in Receivables/Liabilities (742)              

June 30, 2023 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance: 227,343$       

Page 432

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



31 

City of Folsom 

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 

Improvement Area 2 

Established May 26, 2020 

 

Purpose of Special Tax 

 

Facilities 

The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (“CFD”) include the 

following:  

 

Transportation Improvements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to: 

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and 

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry 

seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground 

utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, 

sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street 

lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion 

control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus 

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; 

masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto.  Eligible 

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable 

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities 

include the following transportation improvements: 

 All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD, 

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities. 

Water System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet 

the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, but may not be limited to: 

water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves, 

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as 

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by 

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access 

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.  

Recycled Water System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system 

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, 

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances, 

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto - 

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; 

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and 

fencing; and striping and signage. 

Drainage System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain 

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities 

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and 

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage 

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping 

and signage and other improvements related thereto. 

Page 433

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



32 

Wastewater System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities 

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, but may 

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force 

mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related 

thereto; and related sewer system improvements. 

Park, Parkway and Open Space Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to 

parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD.  These facilities 

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting, 

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including 

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for 

authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements.  Authorized 

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access 

easements required for development of property within the CFD. 

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Infrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements 

that are included in the Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on 

September 8, 2015, including any future amendments thereto. 

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities 

include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF 

obligations within the entire CFD: 

• SPIF Infrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component) 

• SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component 

• SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component 

• SPIF Administrative Fee. 

Other Incidental Expenses and Bond Issuance Costs: In addition to the above facilities, other incidental 

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to, 

the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, 

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and 

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction 

management; costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos 

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of 

taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs 

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses 

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, 

inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities. 

Services 

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following: 

 Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including 

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and 

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions] 

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood 

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale 

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post 

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management 

Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June 9, 2017, and repair and 

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area. 

Page 434

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



33 

 The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within 

the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs. 

 The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto. 

 The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation. 

 Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement. 

 Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse. 

 Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales 

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters. 

 Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering, 

GIS, legal, and city and county administration costs. 

 The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or 

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry 

monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities 

maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator. 

 

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and 

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls, 

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the 

enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other 

buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry 

signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and 

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City.  Annual maintenance costs 

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements. 

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above: 

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or 

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to 

be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the 

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the 

future provision of services.  It is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its 

own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof.  The CFD may also fund 

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.   

 

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Collections & Expenditures 

 

Facilities 

 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Amount 

Collected 

Expended 

Amount 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Status 

$0 $0 $0 $0 On-going 

 

Services 

 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Amount 

Collected 

Expended 

Amount 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Status 

$0 $663 $0 $663 On-going 

 

Page 435

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



34 

 
  

CFD #23, IA2 Detail

June 30, 2022 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance: -$              

Revenues:

Mangini Ranch Maintenance Direct Levy 663$             

Reimbursements -               

Interest Earned -               

Total Revenues: 663$             

Expenses:

Water & Utilities -$              

Monthly Landscape Maintenance -               

Repairs & Replacement -               

Departmental Charges -               

Project Construction -               

CFD Admin -               

Other Expenses -               

Transfers Out -               

Total Expenses: -$              

Change in Receivables/Liabilities -               

June 30, 2023 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance: 663$             

Page 436

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



35 

City of Folsom 

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 

Improvement Area 3 

Established May 26, 2020 

Special Tax Bonds, Series 2022 Issued August 10, 2022 

 

Purpose of Special Tax 

 

Facilities 

The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (“CFD”) include the 

following:  

 

Transportation Improvements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to: 

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and 

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry 

seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground 

utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, 

sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street 

lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion 

control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus 

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; 

masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto.  Eligible 

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable 

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities 

include the following transportation improvements: 

 All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD, 

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities. 

Water System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet 

the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, but may not be limited to: 

water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves, 

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as 

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by 

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access 

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.  

Recycled Water System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system 

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, 

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances, 

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto - 

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; 

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and 

fencing; and striping and signage. 

Drainage System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain 

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities 

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and 

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage 

Page 437

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



36 

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping 

and signage and other improvements related thereto. 

Wastewater System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities 

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, but may 

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force 

mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related 

thereto; and related sewer system improvements. 

Park, Parkway and Open Space Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to 

parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD.  These facilities 

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting, 

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including 

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for 

authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements.  Authorized 

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access 

easements required for development of property within the CFD. 

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Infrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements 

that are included in the Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on 

September 8, 2015, including any future amendments thereto. 

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities 

include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF 

obligations within the entire CFD: 

• SPIF Infrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component) 

• SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component 

• SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component 

• SPIF Administrative Fee. 

Other Incidental Expenses and Bond Issuance Costs: In addition to the above facilities, other incidental 

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to, 

the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, 

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and 

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction 

management; costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos 

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of 

taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs 

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses 

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, 

inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities. 

Services 

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following: 

 Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including 

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and 

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions] 

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood 

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale 

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post 

Page 438

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



37 

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management 

Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June 9, 2017, and repair and 

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area. 

 The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within 

the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs. 

 The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto. 

 The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation. 

 Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement. 

 Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse. 

 Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales 

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters. 

 Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering, 

GIS, legal, and city and county administration costs. 

 The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or 

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry 

monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities 

maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator. 

 

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and 

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls, 

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the 

enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other 

buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry 

signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and 

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City.  Annual maintenance costs 

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements. 

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above: 

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or 

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to 

be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the 

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the 

future provision of services.  It is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its 

own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof.  The CFD may also fund 

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.   

 

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Collections & Expenditures 

 

Facilities 

 

Fund 

Initial 

Deposit 

Prior Years 

Additions / 

Interest 

Prior Years 

Expenses 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Current Year 

Additions / 

Interest 

Current Year 

Expenses 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Fund 
$7,846,603 $0 $0 $0 $8,093,030 $0 $8,093,030 

Underwriter’s 

Discount 
101,165 0 0 0 101,165 101,165 0 

Cost of 

Issuance 
300,000 0 0 0 300,000 300,000 0 

Page 439

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



38 

Reserve 

Fund 
717,500 0 0 0 717,500 852 716,648 

Capitalized 

Interest 
468,690 0 0 0 468,690 236,257 232,433 

 

Services 

 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Amount 

Collected 

Expended 

Amount 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Status 

$1,032 $182,477 $185 $183,323 On-going 

 

 

 

  

CFD #23, IA3 Detail

June 30, 2022 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance: 1,032$          

Revenues:

Mangini Ranch Maintenance Direct Levy 181,927$       

Reimbursements -               

Interest Earned 550               

Total Revenues: 182,477$       

Expenses:

Water & Utilities -$              

Monthly Landscape Maintenance -               

Repairs & Replacement -               

Departmental Charges -               

Project Construction -               

CFD Admin -               

Other Expenses -               

Transfers Out -               

Total Expenses: -$              

Change in Receivables/Liabilities (185)              

June 30, 2023 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance: 183,323$       

Page 440

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



39 

City of Folsom 

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 

Improvement Area 4 

Established May 26, 2020 

 

Purpose of Special Tax 

 

Facilities 

The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (“CFD”) include the 

following:  

 

Transportation Improvements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to: 

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and 

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry 

seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground 

utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, 

sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street 

lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion 

control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus 

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; 

masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto.  Eligible 

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable 

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities 

include the following transportation improvements: 

 All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD, 

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities. 

Water System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet 

the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, but may not be limited to: 

water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves, 

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as 

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by 

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access 

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.  

Recycled Water System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system 

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, 

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances, 

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto - 

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; 

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and 

fencing; and striping and signage. 

Drainage System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain 

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities 

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and 

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage 

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping 

and signage and other improvements related thereto. 

Page 441

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



40 

Wastewater System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities 

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, but may 

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force 

mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related 

thereto; and related sewer system improvements. 

Park, Parkway and Open Space Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to 

parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD.  These facilities 

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting, 

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including 

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for 

authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements.  Authorized 

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access 

easements required for development of property within the CFD. 

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Infrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements 

that are included in the Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on 

September 8, 2015, including any future amendments thereto. 

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities 

include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF 

obligations within the entire CFD: 

• SPIF Infrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component) 

• SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component 

• SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component 

• SPIF Administrative Fee. 

Other Incidental Expenses and Bond Issuance Costs: In addition to the above facilities, other incidental 

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to, 

the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, 

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and 

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction 

management; costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos 

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of 

taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs 

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses 

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, 

inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities. 

Services 

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following: 

 Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including 

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and 

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions] 

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood 

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale 

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post 

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management 

Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June 9, 2017, and repair and 

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area. 

Page 442

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



41 

 The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within 

the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs. 

 The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto. 

 The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation. 

 Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement. 

 Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse. 

 Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales 

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters. 

 Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering, 

GIS, legal, and city and county administration costs. 

 The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or 

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry 

monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities 

maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator. 

 

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and 

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls, 

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the 

enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other 

buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry 

signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and 

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City.  Annual maintenance costs 

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements. 

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above: 

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or 

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to 

be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the 

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the 

future provision of services.  It is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its 

own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof.  The CFD may also fund 

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.   

 

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Collections & Expenditures 

 

Facilities 

 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Amount 

Collected 

Expended 

Amount 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Status 

$0 $0 $0 $0 On-going 

 

Services 

 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Amount 

Collected 

Expended 

Amount 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Status 

$0 $0 $0 $0 On-going 

 

  

Page 443

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



42 

City of Folsom 

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 

Improvement Area 5 

Established May 26, 2020 

 

Purpose of Special Tax 

 

Facilities 

The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (“CFD”) include the 

following:  

 

Transportation Improvements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to: 

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and 

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry 

seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground 

utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, 

sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street 

lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion 

control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus 

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; 

masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto.  Eligible 

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable 

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities 

include the following transportation improvements: 

 All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD, 

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities. 

Water System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet 

the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, but may not be limited to: 

water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves, 

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as 

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by 

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access 

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.  

Recycled Water System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system 

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, 

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances, 

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto - 

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; 

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and 

fencing; and striping and signage. 

Drainage System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain 

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities 

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and 

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage 

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping 

and signage and other improvements related thereto. 

Page 444

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



43 

Wastewater System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities 

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, but may 

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force 

mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related 

thereto; and related sewer system improvements. 

Park, Parkway and Open Space Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to 

parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD.  These facilities 

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting, 

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including 

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for 

authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements.  Authorized 

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access 

easements required for development of property within the CFD. 

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Infrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements 

that are included in the Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on 

September 8, 2015, including any future amendments thereto. 

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities 

include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF 

obligations within the entire CFD: 

• SPIF Infrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component) 

• SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component 

• SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component 

• SPIF Administrative Fee. 

Other Incidental Expenses and Bond Issuance Costs: In addition to the above facilities, other incidental 

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to, 

the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, 

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and 

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction 

management; costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos 

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of 

taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs 

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses 

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, 

inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities. 

Services 

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following: 

 Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including 

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and 

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions] 

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood 

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale 

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post 

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management 

Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June 9, 2017, and repair and 

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area. 

Page 445

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



44 

 The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within 

the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs. 

 The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto. 

 The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation. 

 Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement. 

 Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse. 

 Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales 

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters. 

 Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering, 

GIS, legal, and city and county administration costs. 

 The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or 

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry 

monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities 

maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator. 

 

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and 

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls, 

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the 

enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other 

buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry 

signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and 

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City.  Annual maintenance costs 

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements. 

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above: 

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or 

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to 

be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the 

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the 

future provision of services.  It is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its 

own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof.  The CFD may also fund 

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.   

 

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Collections & Expenditures 

 

Facilities 

 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Amount 

Collected 

Expended 

Amount 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Status 

$0 $0 $0 $0 On-going 

 

Services 

 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Amount 

Collected 

Expended 

Amount 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Status 

$0 $0 $0 $0 On-going 

 

  

Page 446

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



45 

City of Folsom 

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 

Improvement Area 6 

Established May 26, 2020 

 

Purpose of Special Tax 

 

Facilities 

The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (“CFD”) include the 

following:  

 

Transportation Improvements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to: 

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and 

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry 

seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground 

utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, 

sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street 

lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion 

control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus 

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; 

masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto.  Eligible 

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable 

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities 

include the following transportation improvements: 

 All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD, 

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities. 

Water System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet 

the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, but may not be limited to: 

water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves, 

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as 

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by 

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access 

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.  

Recycled Water System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system 

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, 

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances, 

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto - 

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; 

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and 

fencing; and striping and signage. 

Drainage System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain 

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities 

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and 

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage 

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping 

and signage and other improvements related thereto. 

Page 447

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



46 

Wastewater System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities 

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, but may 

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force 

mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related 

thereto; and related sewer system improvements. 

Park, Parkway and Open Space Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to 

parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD.  These facilities 

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting, 

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including 

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for 

authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements.  Authorized 

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access 

easements required for development of property within the CFD. 

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Infrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements 

that are included in the Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on 

September 8, 2015, including any future amendments thereto. 

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities 

include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF 

obligations within the entire CFD: 

• SPIF Infrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component) 

• SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component 

• SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component 

• SPIF Administrative Fee. 

Other Incidental Expenses and Bond Issuance Costs: In addition to the above facilities, other incidental 

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to, 

the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, 

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and 

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction 

management; costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos 

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of 

taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs 

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses 

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, 

inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities. 

Services 

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following: 

 Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including 

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and 

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions] 

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood 

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale 

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post 

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management 

Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June 9, 2017, and repair and 

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area. 

Page 448

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



47 

 

 The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within 

the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs. 

 The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto. 

 The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation. 

 Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement. 

 Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse. 

 Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales 

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters. 

 Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering, 

GIS, legal, and city and county administration costs. 

 The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or 

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry 

monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities 

maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator. 

 

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and 

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls, 

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the 

enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other 

buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry 

signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and 

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City.  Annual maintenance costs 

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements. 

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above: 

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or 

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to 

be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the 

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the 

future provision of services.  It is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its 

own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof.  The CFD may also fund 

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.   

 

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Collections & Expenditures 

 

Facilities 

 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Amount 

Collected 

Expended 

Amount 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Status 

$0 $0 $0 $0 On-going 

 

Services 

 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Amount 

Collected 

Expended 

Amount 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Status 

$0 $0 $0 $0 On-going 

  

Page 449

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



48 

City of Folsom 

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 

Improvement Area 7 

Established December 14, 2021 

 

Purpose of Special Tax 

 

Facilities 

The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (“CFD”) include the 

following:  

 

Transportation Improvements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to: 

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and 

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry 

seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground 

utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, 

sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street 

lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion 

control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus 

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; 

masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto.  Eligible 

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable 

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities 

include the following transportation improvements: 

 All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD, 

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities. 

Water System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet 

the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, but may not be limited to: 

water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves, 

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as 

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by 

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access 

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.  

Recycled Water System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system 

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, 

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances, 

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto - 

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; 

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and 

fencing; and striping and signage. 

Drainage System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain 

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities 

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and 

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage 

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping 

and signage and other improvements related thereto. 

Page 450

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



49 

Wastewater System Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities 

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD.  These facilities include, but may 

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force 

mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related 

thereto; and related sewer system improvements. 

Park, Parkway and Open Space Improvements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to 

parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD.  These facilities 

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting, 

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including 

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for 

authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements.  Authorized 

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access 

easements required for development of property within the CFD. 

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Infrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements 

that are included in the Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on 

September 8, 2015, including any future amendments thereto. 

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities 

include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF 

obligations within the entire CFD: 

• SPIF Infrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component) 

• SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component 

• SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component 

• SPIF Administrative Fee. 

Other Incidental Expenses and Bond Issuance Costs: In addition to the above facilities, other incidental 

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to, 

the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, 

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and 

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction 

management; costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos 

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of 

taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs 

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses 

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, 

inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities. 

Services 

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following: 

 Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including 

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and 

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions] 

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood 

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale 

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post 

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management 

Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June 9, 2017, and repair and 

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area. 

Page 451

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



50 

 

 The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within 

the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs. 

 The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto. 

 The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation. 

 Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement. 

 Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse. 

 Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales 

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters. 

 Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering, 

GIS, legal, and city and county administration costs. 

 The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or 

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry 

monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities 

maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator. 

 

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and 

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls, 

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the 

enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other 

buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry 

signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and 

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City.  Annual maintenance costs 

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements. 

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above: 

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or 

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to 

be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the 

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the 

future provision of services.  It is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its 

own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof.  The CFD may also fund 

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.   

 

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Collections & Expenditures 

 

Facilities 

 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Amount 

Collected 

Expended 

Amount 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Status 

$0 $0 $0 $0 On-going 

 

Services 

 

6/30/2022 

Balance 

Amount 

Collected 

Expended 

Amount 

6/30/2023 

Balance 

Project 

Status 

$0 $0 $0 $0 On-going 

 

Page 452

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



SENATE BILL 765

Senate Bill 165, filed with the Secretary of State on September 19, 2000, enacted the Local Agency

Special Tax and Bond Accountability Act. This Act requires that any local special tax or local bond

measure subject to voter approval contain a statement indicating the specific purposes of the special

tax, require that the proceeds of the special tax be applied to those purposes, require the creation of an

account into which the proceeds shall be deposited, and require an annual report containing specified

information concerning the use of the proceeds. The Act only applies to any local special tax measure or

local bond measure adopted on or after January I,2OOt in accordance with Section 50075.1 or Section

53410 of the California Government Code.

Some of the requirements of the Act are handled at the formation of the Special Tax District and others

are handled through annual reports. This Section of this report intends to comply with Section 50075.3

or Section 53411 of the California Government Code that states:

"The chief fiscal officer of the issuing local agency shall file a report with its governing body no later than

January !,2002, and at least once a year thereafter. The annual report shall contain all of the following:

(a) The amount of funds collected and expended.
(b) The status of any project required or authorized to be funded as identified in subdivision (a) of

Section 50075.1 or Section 53410."

The requirements of the Act apply to the funds for the following Districts

Community Facilities District No. 13, American River Canyon North
Established lulV 24, 2OOL

Purpose of Special Tax

Community Facilities District No. 1"3, American River Canyon North ("CFD") primarily funds the

maintenance of landscape areas of American River Canyon North included within the boundaries of the

CFD. ln addition to the maintenance costs, the CFD also provides funding for costs associated with

collecting and administering the special taxes and annually administering the CFD. The special tax funds

levied may pay for any authorized service. The City may also accumulate funds for authorized services.

The CFD's authorized services include the following:

L The repair and maintenance of parkways, landscaping, open space, greenbelts, bikeways,

irrigation facilities, soundwalls, street lights on arterial parkways, monuments and signs, and other

appurtenance within and along public right-of-way.

2. Cost of scheduled inspections of the maintenance of landscaped areas'

3. Utility bills associated with the maintenance of landscaped areas.

4. CFD formation and annual administration costs.

5. Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

legal, and administration.

t

Page 453

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



Fiscal Year 2022123 Collections & Expenditures

CFD #13 Detail

June 30, 2022Mainlenance District Fund Caslr Balance

Revenues:
American Rirer Canyon North Direct Lely
lnterest Eamed

Total Rercnues

Expenses:
Water & Utilities
Monthly Landscape Maintenance
Repairs & Replacement
Departmental Charges
Project Construction
CFD Admin
Other Expenses
Transfers Out

Total Expenses:

Change in Receiwbles/Liabilities

June 30, 2023 Maintenance Dis{rict Fund Cash Balance:

$ a4,s+e

$ 114,311

1,583

$ 115,893

$ 25,302

105,294

6,376
339

24,493

$ 161,804

3,'119

$ 41,751

6l3ol2022
Balance

Amount
Collected

Expended
Amount

5l30l2023
Balance

Service
Status

s84,543 s115,893 S158,685 547,751 On-going

2

Page 454

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 14 (Parkway Phase ll)
Established September 25, 2OOL

Purpose of Special Tax

Community Facilities District No. 14 (Parkway Phase ll) ("CFD") provided funds to finance the acquisition

and construction of certain public facilities and the payment of certain fees relating to public facilities

generally described as the construction of portions of Blue Ravine Road, Parkway Drive, East Natoma

Street and the Oak Avenue Parkway/Blue Ravine Road lntersection, together with street lights,

soundwalls and landscaping and hardscape improvements, the construction of drainage improvements

within Humbug/Willow Creek Parkway, improvements to the existing sewer lift station at Willow Creek

Parkway and related force mains and the construction of fire facilities and parks within the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2022l23 Collections & Expenditures

Series 201.7 SpecialTax Refunding Bonds

Bonds lssued July LL,2OI7
s14,640,000

CFD #14 Detail

June 30, 2022 Acquisition & Consiruction Fund Gash Balance: $ 2,010,361

Revenues:
Proceeds fom Series 2017 Refunding Bonds

lnterest Earned
Transfers ln

54,582

Total Rewnues: $ 54,582

Expenses:
Construction
Transfers Out

$

$

Total Expenses:

Change in Receirables/Liabilities

June 30, 2023 Acquisition & Gonslruction Fund Gash Balance:

3

$-

(1 1,667)

$ 2,053,275

Fund

lnitial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

6l30l2022
Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

6l30l2023
Balance

Refunding

Escrow

Deposit

S$,zqoJas so 5r5,240,764 so so so So

Project Fund 1,790,000 2,019,806 9,445 2,OrO,36I 54,582 rr,667 2,053,275

Cost of

lssua nce
88,992 88,992 0 0 0 0 0

Bond

Proceeds
389 389 0 0 0 0 0

Page 455

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Water Facilities and Supply)

Established January t4, 2Ot4

Purpose of Special Tax

Water Treatment, Storage and Distribution Facilities

Generally, all work and improvements to design, construct, install and upgrade the public water
treatment, storage and distribution facilities described below, all to be located on public property
(whether the dedicated road right-of-way, dedicated easements, or publicly-owned land), including but
not limited to mobilization, clearing, grubbing, tree removal, protective fencing and erosion control,
dewatering, lime treatment, trenching, and related appurtenant work and facilities, together with the
costs and expense of engineering design, plan review, construction-related surety bonds or like security
instruments, construction staking and management, inspection, permitting costs, and any like fees and

costs incidental to such construction and installation for the following items:
o Water Systems Optimization Review Program costs including:

o Costs for engineering, tests and studies, legal and other professional services and
project adm inistration

o Willow Hill pipeline lining improvement costs
o Water treatment, pumping and conveyance facilities required to treat, pump and convey water

from the City's water treatment plant to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan including:

o Water treatment plant upgrades

o Pump station, booster pumps and related appurtenances
o Additional water conveyance facilities and connections

Water Supplv Costs

Annual water supply costs to the City pursuant to the Water Supply and Facilities Plan and Agreement
between the City of Folsom and Certain Landowners in the Folsom Plan Area recorded on January 24,

2073.

Other Costs

ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos

Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing the
facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation and environmental remediation); engineering
and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction
of the public facilities; costs of project/construction managemen! costs (including the costs of legal

services) associated with the formation of the district; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the
amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing

reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out
the authorized purposes of the districU and any other expenses incidental to the formation and

implementation of the district and to the construction, completion, inspection and acquisition of the
authorized facilities.

Fiscal Year 2022123 Collections & Exoenditures

6l30l2022
Balance

Amount
Collected

Expended
Amount

6l30l2023
Balance

Project
Status

S998,358 S2,013,068 51,972,277 S1,039,149 On-going

4

Page 456

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



CFD #2013-1 Detail

June 30, 2022Fund Caslr Balance:

Revenues:
CFD 2013-1 Water Facilities & Supply Direct Lery
Prepayment
lnterest Eamed

Total Rercnues:

Expenses:
Water System Optimization Repayment (9 of 10)

Water Supply
CFD Admin
Transfers Out

Total Expenses

Change in Receirables/Liabilities

June 30, 2023 Fund Gaslr Balance:

$ 998,358

$ 1,926,039
39,219
47,810

$ 2,013,068

$ 179,813
1,700253

19,814
30,770

$ 1,930,649

(41,628)

$ 1,039,149

5

Page 457

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 16 {The lslands at Parkshore)

lmprovement Area No. 1 and lmprovement Area No. 2

Established March tO, 20ts
lmprovement Area No. 1 Bonds lssued March 15, 2018

lmprovement Area No. 2 Bonds lssued July 18, 2019

Purpose of Soecial Tax

Facilities
The planned public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 16 (The lslands at Parkshore) ("CFD")

include the following: construction of sanitary sewers (including gravity sewers, manholes and

appurtenances), storm drains (including inlets, outlets, channels, structures, junctions, manholes and

catch basins), water facilities (including distribution mains and appurtenances), power, telephone and

gas utilities, street improvements (including curbs, gutters, sidewalks, landscaping and striping, traffic

signals and street lights), bridge improvements, park improvements, landscaping and slope planting, all

within or in the vicinity of the CFD. The public facilities shall include all related clearing and grubbing,

grading and appurtenarices, and any removal or temporary signage or markings related thereto.

All street and bridge improvements include widening, paving and/or re-paving, striping, and/or re-

striping, pedestrian sidewalks or other related improvements or appurtenances, and utilities are located

within the public right of way.

All facilities and related costs eligible to be funded include all City development impact fees, sewer

connection fees, water connection fees, drainage fees, traffic mitigation fees, park fees, and other City

fees related to facilities.

All public facilities shall include attributed costs of engineering, design, planning, construction staking,

materials testing and coordination of the public facilities. The public facilities should be constructed

pursuant to plans and specifications approved by the City (or other governmental entity that will own

and operate the same).

The foregoing description of the types of facilities eligible to be financed is general in nature and

includes any appurtenant work and incidental expenses relating to the facilities. The final nature and

location of the facilities will be determined upon the preparation of final plans and specifications for

such facilities.

Services

It is intended that the CFD will be eligible to fund allor a portion of the costs of construction, operation,

maintenance, repair, and servicing of parks, landscaping and irrigation improvements, street and

landscape lighting, fencing and/or walls, sidewalks, trails, pathways, water quality/drainage basins,

wetlands, and appurtenant facilities within or adjacent to the CFD.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to

be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of personnel necessary or convenient to provide the

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements and for

the future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with

6

Page 458

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



its own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD'

Fiscal Year 2022123 Collections & Expenditures

lmprovement Area 1 Facilities

Fund

lnitial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

6l30l2022
Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

6l30l2023
Balance

Project

Fund
54,932,775 54,932,775 54,932,775 So So So So

Cost of

lssuance
333,095 333,096 333,096 0 0 0 0

Reserve

Fund
430,680 437,046 0 43t,046 0 2,424 428,622

lmprovement Area 2 Facilities

CFD #161A2 Fund Detail

June 30, 2022 Acquisition and Gonstruction Fund Cash Balance: $ 174'870

Revenues:
Proceeds from Series 2019 Bonds

lnterest Earned 5,842
Total Rerenues $ s,a+z

Expenses:
Progress Payment #1 to Lewis Land Derclopers, LLC

Total ExPenses:

Change in Receiwbles/Liabilities

June 30, 2023 Acquisition and Construction Fund Gash Balance

$

$

$

$

7

Fund

lnitial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

6l30l2022
Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

6l30l2023
Balance

Project

Fund
s2,798,4s3 52,798,607 52,623,738 st74,870 Ss,sqz So s180,711

Cost of
Issuance

257,582 25r,582 25r,582 0 0 0 0

Reserve

Fund
237,773 947 745 237,975 0 885 237,090

$ 180,711

Page 459

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



Services

5l30l2022
Balance

Amount
Collected

Expended
Amount

6l30l2023
Balance

Project
Status

s520,185 s22e,883 sso,319 $659,749 On-going

CFD #16 Maintenance Fund Detail

June 30, 2022 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance:

Revenues:
CFD #16 (lAl) Services Direct LevY

CFD #16 (lA2) Services Direct LevY

lnterest Earned
Total Rewnues:

Expenses:
Water & Utilities
Monthly Landscape Maintenance
Repairs & RePlacement
Departmental Charges

Project Construction
CFD Admin
Other Expenses
Transfers Out

Total Expenses:

Change in Receirables/Liabilities

June 30, 2023 Maintenance District Fund Gash Balance

$ 520,185

$ 101,162

115,667
13,053

$ 229,883

$ 10,147

54,548
2,339

17,752-5- 84,780

(5,s33)

$ 659,749

8

Page 460

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 17 (Willow Hill Pipeline)

Established March 24, zOLs

Purpose of Special Tax

The planned public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 17 (Willow Hill Pipeline) ("CFD") include

the following: water facilities (including the Willow Hill Transmission Pipeline construction and

rehabilitation project, and all ancillary work necessary or appropriate related thereto), all within or in
the vicinity of the CFD. The public facilities shall include all related clearing and grubbing, grading and

appurtenances, and any removal or temporary signage or markings related thereto.

CFD bond proceeds may not be used to pay, or reimburse previously-paid, development related fees,

including, but not limited to, development impact fees, City community services fee, development
processing fees, school fees, sewer connection fees, water connection fees, drainage fees, traffic
mitigation fees, and other City fees related to facilities.

All public facilities shall include attributed costs of engineering, design, planning, construction staking,

materials testing and coordination of the public facilities. The public facilities should be constructed
pursuant to plans and specifications approved by the City (or other governmental entity that will own
and operate the same). -

The foregoing description of the types of facilities eligible to be financed is general in nature and

includes any appurtenant work and incidental expenses relating to the facilities. The final nature and

location of the facilities will be determined upon the preparation of final plans and specifications for
such facilities.

Fiscal Year 2022123 Collections & Expenditures

Fund

lnitial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

6l30l2022
Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current

Year

Expenses

6l30l2023
Balance

Acquisition and

Construction Fund
Ss,Too,ooo Ss,Too,ooo Ss,zoo,ooo So So $o So

Reserve Account 408,381 4t4,066 5,338 408,728 0 2,749 405,979

Underwriter's

Discount
96,254 96,254 96,254 0 0 0 0

Cost of lssuance 327,195 346,289 308,132 0 0 0 0

9

Page 461

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 18

(Folsom Plan Area - Area-Wide tmprovements and Services)

Established December 8, 2015

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The planned public facilities for Community Facilities District No. L8 (Folsom Plan Area - Area-Wide

lmprovements and Services) ("CFD") include the following:

Willow Hill Pipeline Facilities - These facilities consist of water facilities (including the Willow Hill

Transmission Pipeline construction and rehabilitation project, and all ancillary work necessary or

appropriate related thereto), all within or in the vicinity of the CFD. The improvements shall include all

related clearing and grubbing, grading and appurtenances, and any removal or temporary signage or

markings related thereto.

Off-site Water Facilities - These facilities consist of existing and new facilities such as a water treatment

plant, a pump station and expansion thereof, transmission pipelines, reservoirs, and the distribution

system to serve the Folsom Plan Area.

Sanitary Sewer System - These facilities include a series of transmission pipelines, PUmP stations, and

force mains, to serve the Folsom Plan Area'

Aquatic Center Phase 1 - These facilities include a competitive swimming pool, a recreation activity

pool, and related support pool-related buildings and structures, such as maintenance and locker room

facilities, which will serve the Folsom Plan Area'

euarry Road - These facilities include the special road design along Prairie City Road from U'S. Highway

50 to White Rock Road or alternative route to accommodate heavy truck traffic to and from potential

future aggregate quarry sites south of the Folsom Plan Area as identified in the City's Truck

Management Plan approved by the City Council on Decembe r 6,2O17 via Resolution 8933.

Water lnfrastructure - These facilities include the development of water pipelines, booster pump

stations, pressure regulating stations, water treatment plant, water reservoirs, land costs, off-site

capacity building, and systems optimization efforts throughout the CFD.

Aquatic Center Phase 2 - These facilities include a community center, gymnasium, multi-purpose

classrooms, a senior center, teen activity rooms which will serve the Folsom Plan Area.

Selected Trails - These facilities consist of a portion of the 30 miles of trails proposed to be built in the

Folsom Plan Area. The comprehensive bike system consists of Class I paths and Class ll bike lanes

connecting residential neighborhoods with schools, parks, and other major destinations' The plan costs

include trails, intersection protection, trail bridges, undercrossings, and design fees.

lnterchanges -These facilities include the modifications to existing interchanges and the construction of

new Highway 50 interchange improvements including the acquisition of land.

Selected Roadway Widenings - These facilities include the necessary infrastructure improvements to

widen the Oak Avenue, Empire Ranch Road, and Prairie City Road from two to four lanes.

10

Page 462

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



Other Backbone Facilities - These consist of additional backbone public facilities needed to serve the
Folsom Plan Area. The additional backbone public facilities include parks, transit services, fire facilities

and equipment, police facilities and equipment, municipal service center, corporation yard, solid waste,

branch library, and transportation.

All facilities shall include attributed costs of engineering, design, planning, construction staking,

materials testing and coordination of the facilities. The facilities should be constructed pursuant to
plans and specifications approved by the City (or other governmental entity that will own and operate

the same).

The foregoing description of the types of facilities eligible to be financed is general in nature and

includes any appurtenant work and incidental expenses relating to the facilities. The final nature and

location of the facilities will be determined upon the preparation of final plans and specifications for
such facilities.

Services

The planned services to be financed by the CFD include the following: park, trail, landscape corridor,

median, and open space maintenance; street, street light and safety light maintenance; and storm

drainage facilities maintenance.

The CFD annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance

and servicing of turf, ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, drainage facilities and drainage

systems, street lighting, fencing, soundwalls, sidewalks, monuments, statuary, fountains, water quality

ponds, park facilities, open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the open space

areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other buffer areas between

the open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, drainage swales and other ornamental

structures and facilities, entry signage, street pavers, art work, and monuments and all necessary

appurtenances, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and equipment,

as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs include an

allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to
be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the
future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its
own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2022l23 Collections & Expenditures

6l30/2022
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

6l30l2023
Balance

Project

Status

51,62s,823 S1,582,552 S963,817 52,244,s58 On-going

1.L

Page 463

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



CFD #18 Detail

June 30, 2022Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance

Revenues:
Area-Wide Maintenance Direct Levy

Reimbursements
lnterest Earned

Total Rerenues

Expenses:
Water & Utilities
Monthly Landscape Maintenance
Repairs & Replacement
Departmental Charges
Project Construction
CFD Admin
Other Expenses
Transfers Out

Total Expenses:

Change in Receiwbles/Liabilities

June 30, 2023 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance

$
$

$ 1,625,823

1,548,078

34,474

$ 1,582,552

$ 150,433
304,784
456,711

54,430

109,303

$ 1,075,662

111,846

$ 2,244,558

L2

Page 464

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 19 (Mangini Ranch)

Established JanuarY L2, ZOLG

Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 lssued August 23,2OL7

Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2019 lssued August 7,2Ot9

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 19 (Mangini Ranch) ("CFD") include the

following:

Transportation lmprovements; Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project managemenU bridge crossings and culverts;

clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry seal), and

decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground utilities and

undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bike trails

(including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street lights, signalization, and

traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion control; median and parkway

landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus Rapid Transit improvements

including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; masonry walls; traffic control and

agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible improvements for the roads listed above

also include any and all necessary underground potable and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm

drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities include the following transportation

improvements:
r Scott Road.

o Easton Valley Parkway-from Scott Road to Placerville Road.

o Street "A"-from Scott Road to Placerville Road'

o Street "B"-from Scott Road to White Rock Road.

e White Rock Road-at selected intersections.
o Other public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the

CFD, including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet

the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to: water

storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; site

lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances, gate

valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

13

Page 465

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



Drainage System lmprovements; Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD, These facilities include, but

may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and water quality

measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage ways/channels, pump

stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping and signage and other

improvements related thereto.

Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities

designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be

limited to pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main line; force mains;

lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related thereto; and related sewer system

improvements.

Park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to
parks, parkways and open space required for development within the CFD. These facilities include, but

may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting, drainage,

sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for
authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements

that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,20L5, including any future amendments thereto.

Other Expenses: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental expenses as authorized by the Mello-

Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing

the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, remediation and mitigation); engineering

and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction

of the public facilities; costs of project/construction management; costs (including the costs of legal

services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination

of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing

reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out

the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses incidental to the formation and

implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, inspection and acquisition of the
authorized facilities.

Services
The authorized services to be funded from the levy and collection of annual special taxes inciude those

set forth below in addition to the costs associated with collecting and administering the special taxes

and annual administering the CFD. The CFD will be eligible to fund all or a portion of the costs of

reconstruction and/or rehabilitation, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement, and servicing of

the following items not otherwise subject to funding from the City of Folsom Community Facilities

District No. 1-8 (Folsom Plan Area - Area-Wide lmprovements and Services):

Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including general

maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and bike trails and

their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions] within open space), creation

and maintenance of fire breaks, permits, vandalism/graffiti, flood conveyance (vegetation/tree

14

Page 466

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



removals), beaver dam removals, outfall/drainage swale maintenance, erosion control/bank

stabilization, native planting/replanting, pre and post emergent, maintenance activities as required by a

404 permit, and open space overarching maintenance & management plan and repair and replacement

of facilities within open space areas in the project area.

The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within the CFD,

including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

The maintenance of street lights, including any utility costs related thereto.

The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation

Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.

Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales constructed

between storm drain facilities and receiving waters'

Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering, GlS,

legal, and city and county administration costs'

The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs, reconstruction or

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry

monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities maintained

by the CFD as determined by the administrator.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, rehabilitating, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment,

apparatus or facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or

fixtures in areas to be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of personnel necessary or convenient

to provide the services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and

replacements and for the future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by

the City, either with its own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof'

Fiscal Year 2022123 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Fund

lnitial

Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

6l30l2022
Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

6l30l2023
Balance

Project

Fund
s41,os0,soo s4!,072,408 541,072,408 So 5o 5o So

Underwriter's

Discount
408,799 408,799 408,799 0 0 0 0

Cost of

lssuance
685,000 685,000 685,000 0 0 0 0

Reserve

Fund
3,180,625 3,297,357 43,675 3,253,682 0 22,226 3,237,456

Capitalized

I nterest
7,487,509 1,487,5O9 1,487,509 0 0 0 0

15

Page 467

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



Services

6l30l2022
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

6l30l2023
Balance

Project

Status

s6t6,6!2 5226,023 597,248 s7sr,387 On-going

CFD #19 Detail

June 30, 2022Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance:

Revenues:
Mangini Ranch Maintenance Direct Levy

Reimbumements
lnterest Earned

Total Rewnues

Expenses:
Water & Utilities
Monthly Landscape Maintenance
Repairs & Replacement
Depaftmental Charges
Project Construction
CFD Admin
Other Expenses
Transfers Out

Total Expenses:

Change in Receirables/Liabilities

June 30, 2023 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance:

$ 616,612

$ 210,048

15,975

$

$ 226,023

11,632
102,517

130

2,531
116,810

25,562

751,387

$

$

15

Page 468

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 20 (Russell Ranch)

Established November L4, 2OL7

Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2018 lssued June 5, 2018

Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 lssued December 8,2022

Purpose of Special Tax

The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 20 (Russell Ranch) ("CFD") include any and all

improvements that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City

Council on September 8, 2015, including any future amendments thereto. These facilities, include, but

are not limited to:
o Zone 4/5 Booster Pump Station;
o Zone 5 Water Tank and Zone 6 Booster Pump Station;

o Highway 50 Water Transmission Line;

o Alder Creek Parkway lmprovements; and

o Grand Prairie lmprovements.

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and culverts;

clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry seal), and

decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground utilities and

undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bike trails

(including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street lights, signalization, and

traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion control; median and parkway

landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus Rapid Transit improvements

including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; masonry walls; traffic control and

agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible improvements for the roads listed above

also include any and all necessary underground potable and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm

drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities include the following transportation

improvements:
. Placerville Road-from Highway 50 to White Rock Road.

. Alder Creek Parkway-from Scott Road to the Empire Ranch Road.

o Grand Prairie Road-from Alder Creek Parkway to Placerville Road.

o Scott Road-from Alder Creek Parkway to Street "A".
e Empire Ranch Road-from property line to White Rock Road.

o Other public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the

CFD, including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Potable and Non-Potable Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all on- and

off-site backbone water and recycled (or non-potable water facilities) designed to meet the needs of

development within the CFD. These facilities include, but are not limited to, potable and non-potable

mains, valves, pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related

thereto such as site clearing, grading, and paving; services, and appurtenances; wells; water treatment,

distribution, and storage facilities; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; site

lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but

77

Page 469

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls, and water quality

measures; detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage ways/channels, pump

stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates and fencing; and striping and signage and other

im provements related thereto.

Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include all wastewater facilities designed to

meet the needs of development within the CFD, These facilities include, but may not be limited to,

pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main line; force mains; lift stations;

odor-control facilities; and permitting related thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

park, parkway, Open Space and Preserve lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all

improvements to parks, parkways, and open space required for development within the CFD. These

facilities include, but may not be limited to grading; turf, shrubs and trees; landscaping irrigation; site

lighting; drainage; sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing

(including soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges; public ar| active and passive park and open space

improvements (including respites and overlooks); related monumentation and signage; storm drain

crossings; environmental mitigation for wetlands, hawk, and other species for infrastructure under the

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program and authorized facilities herein; access gates and fencing; and

related park, open space and preserve improvements.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Act, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing the

facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, remediation and mitigation); engineering and

surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction of

the public facilities; costs of project/construction management; costs (including the costs of legal

services) associated with the formation of the DistricU issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the

amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing

reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out

the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses incidental to the formation and

implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, inspection and acquisition of the

authorized facilities.

Fiscal Year 2022l23 Collections & Expenditures

Fund

lnitial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

6l30l2022
Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

6l30l2023
Balance

Project

Fund
521,567,465 5r2,oL9,371 5r2,019,371 So s9,580,008 So S9,s8o,oo8

Underwriter's

Discount
135,864 135,864 135,864 0 0 0 0

Cost of

lssuance
689,92r 318,236 318,236 0 37r,685 0 0

Reserve

Fund
1,853,081 r,o23,r74 372 7,022,862 838,750 0 t,867,672

Capitalized

lnterest
t,2t7,134 904,968 804,968 0 472,166 122,801 289,365

L8

Page 470

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



CFD #20 Fund Detail

June 30, 2022 Acquisition and Construction Fund Cadr Balance: $

Revenues:
Proceeds from Series 2022 Bonds
lnterest Eamed

Total Rewnues

Expenses:
Progress Payment #4 TNHC Russell Ranch LLC

Total Expenses:

Change in Receiwbles/Liabilities

June 30, 2023 Acquisition and Gonstruction Fund Cash Balance

$ 9,567,465

$ 12,u3
$ 9,580,008

$ 9,580,008

$

19

Page 471

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 21 (White Rock Springs Ranch)

Established FebruarY 13, 2018

Special Tax Bonds, Series 2019 lssued December 5' 2OL9

Special Tax Bonds, Series 2021 lssued Aprtl S' 2O2l

Puroose of Soecial Tax

The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 21 (White Rock Springs Ranch) ("cFD") include

any and all improvements that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by

the City Council on September 8, 201-5, including any future amendments thereto. These facilities,

include, but are not limited to:
r Zone 4/5 Booster PumP Station;
o Zone 5 Water Tank and Zone 6 Booster Pump Station;

. Highway 50 Water Transmission Line;

o Street "A" lmprovements;
. Alder Creek Parkway lmprovements; and

r Grand Prairie Road lmprovements.

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and culverts;

clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry seal), and

decorative/enhanced pavement concrete andlor pavers; joint trenches, underground utilities and

undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bike trails

(incluJing onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street lights, signalization, and

traffic silnal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion control; median and parkway

landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus Rapid Transit improvements

including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; masonry walls; traffic control and

agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible improvements for the roads listed herein

also include any and all necessary underground potable and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm

drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities include the following transportation

improvements:
o Placerville Road-from Highway 50 to White Rock Road'

o Grand Prairie Road-from Alder creek Parkway to Placerville Road.

. Scott Road-from Alder Creek Parkway to Street "A"'
r Street "A" -from Placerville Road to Empire Ranch Road'

r Sycamore Creek Crossing.

r Rock Springs Ranch Road.

o Other public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the

CFD, including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities'

potable and Non-potable Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all on- and

off-site backbone water and recycled (or non-potable water facilities) designed to meet the needs of

development within the CFD. These facilities include, but are not limited to, potable and non-potable

mains, valves, pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related

thereto such as site clearing, grading, and paving; services, and appurtenances; wells; water treatment,

distribution, and storage facilities; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; site

lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates and

fencing; and striping and signage.

20

Page 472

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but
may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls, and water quality

measures; detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage ways/channels, pump

stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates and fencing; and striping and signage and other
improvements related thereto.

Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include all wastewater facilities designed to
meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to,
pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force mains; lift
stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related thereto; and related sewer system

improvements.

Park, Parkway, Open Space and Preserve lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all

improvements to parks, parkways, and open space required for development within the CFD. These

facilities include, but may not be limited to grading; turf, shrubs and trees; landscaping irrigation; site

lighting; drainage; sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing
(including soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges; public art; active and passive park and open space

improvements (including respites and overlooks); related monumentation and signage; storm drain

crossings; environmental mitigation for wetlands, hawk, and other species for infrastructure under the
Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program and authorized facilities herein; access gates and fencing; and

related park, open space and preserve improvements.

Payment of Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program ("SPlF") Obligation: Authorized facilities include
payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF obligations
within the entire CFD:

r SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component);
o SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component;
o SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component; and

o SPIF Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental
expenses as authorized by the Act, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing the
facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, remediation and mitigation); engineering and

surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction of
the public facilities; costs of project/construction managemen! costs (including the costs of legal

services) associated with the formation of the CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the
amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing

reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out
the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses incidental to the formation and

implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, inspection and acquisition of the
authorized facilities.

21

Page 473

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



Fiscat Year 2022123 Collections & Expenditures

Fund

lnitial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

6l30l2022
Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

6l30l2023
Balance

Project

Fund
521,t06,647 s2r,2t0,474 $2L,2t0,474 so So So So

Underwriter's

Discount
230,285 230,285 230,285 0 0 0 0

Cost of

lssuance
650,000 650,000 650,000 0 0 0 0

Reserve

Fund
1,550,000 L,55r,233 0 !,55t,233 0 7,776 1,543,457

Capitalized

lnterest
505,560 505,660 505,560 0 0 0 0

22

Page 474

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



CitY of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 22 (Folsom Heights)

Established November 27, 2OL8

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 22 (Folsom Heights) ("CFD") include the

following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project managemenU bridge crossings and culverts;

clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry seal), and

decorative/enhanced pavement concrete andlor pavers; joint trenches, underground utilities and

undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs; gutters, sidewalks, bike trails

(including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street lights, signalization, and

traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion control; median and parkway

landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus Rapid Transit improvements

including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; masonry walls; traffic control and

agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible improvements for the roads listed herein

also include any and all necessary underground potable and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm

drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities include the following transportation

improvements:
o Summit Street
o Prima Drive
o Empire Ranch Road

o Alder Creek Parkway
o Folsom Heights Drive
o Other public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property

within the CFD, including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities, including those

expected to be owned or managed by the City and/or the El Dorado lrrigation District, designed to meet

the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:

water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities, including those expected to be owned or managed by the City and/or the El Dorado lrrigation

District, designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto

- such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

23

Page 475

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping

and signage and other improvements related thereto'

Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities,

including those expected to be owned or managed by the City and/or the El Dorado lrrigation District,

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but

may not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines;

force mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

park, parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to

parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for

authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements

that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,2015, including any future amendments thereto'

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Act, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing the

facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, remediation and mitigation); engineering and

surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction of

the public facilities; costs of project/construction managemen! costs (including the costs of legal

services) associated with the formation of the CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the

amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing

reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out

the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses incidental to the formation and

implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, inspection and acquisition of the

authorized facilities.

Services

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:
r Landscape corridor and enhanced open space maintenance; and

r Street light maintenance'

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the

enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other

buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry

signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and

24

Page 476

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to

be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the

future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its

own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD'

Fiscal Year 2022l23 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Services

6130l2022

Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

6l30l2023
Balance

Project

Status

so so So So On-going

6l30l2022
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

6l30l2023
Balance

Project

Status

So So so So On-going

25

Page 477

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmProvement Area 1

Established MaY 26, 2O20

Special Tax Bonds, Series 2020 lssued October 30'2O2O

SpecialTax Bonds, Series 2021 lssued April2T'2022

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD") include the

following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project managemenU bridge crossings and

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry

seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground

utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters,

sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street

lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion

control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements;

masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto' Eligible

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities

include the following transportation improvements:

o All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet

the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:

water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

26

Page 478

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping

and signage and other improvements related thereto.

Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force

mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

Park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to
parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for

authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements

that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,2015, including any future amendments thereto.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities

include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF

obligations within the entire CFD:

SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component)
SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component
SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component
SPIF Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to,

the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation,

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction

management; costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of
taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion,

inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities.

Services

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:
o Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions]

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale

I

o

a

27

Page 479

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management
plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June9, 2O!7, and repair and

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area.

o The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within

the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

r The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.

o The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation'
. Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement'

o Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.

r Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.

o Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs'

r The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry

monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities

maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the

enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other

buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry

signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to

be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the

future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its

own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD'

28

Page 480

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



Fiscal Year 2022123 Collections & Expenditures

CFD #23, lAl Fund Detail

June 30, 2022 Acquisition and Gons{ruction Fund Caslr Balance: $ 12,419,165

Revenuesl
Proceeds ftom Series 2022 Bonds
lnterest Eamed

Total Rerrenues

152,857

$ 1s2,857

Facilities

Services

$

Expenses:
Progress Payment #4 East Carpenter lmp. Co., LLC

Progress Payment #4 CMB lmprowment, LLC

Progress Payment #5 East Carpenter lmp. Co., LLC

Progress Payment #5 CMB lmprowment, LLC
Total Expenses:

Change in Receiwbles/Liabilities

June 30, 2023 Acquisition and Construction Fund Cash Balance

$ 1,368,894

6,773,708
1 18,982
635,563

$ 8,897,147

$ 3,674,875

Fund

lnitial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

6l30l2022
Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

613012023

Balance

Project

Fund
522,5s4,233 S22,569,015 S10,149,849 5t2,4r9,LGs s1s2,8s7 Se,agt,Mt 53,674,87s

Underwriter's

Discount
279,649 279,649 279,649 0 0 0 0

Cost of

lssuance
510,000 510,000 510,000 0 0 0 0

Reserve

Fund
t,774,OOO 1,774,993 0 7,774,993 0 8,006 r,766,987

Capitalized

I nterest
605,308 606,379 426,458 rtg,92t 0 r79,927 0

613012022

Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

6l30l2023
Balance

Project

Status

s149,916 Sros, rsr 528,7s4 5227,343 On-going

29

Page 481

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



GFD #23, lA1 Detail

June 30, 2D22Maintenance Dis{rict Fund Gash Balance:

Revenues:
Mangini Ranch Maintenance Direct Lely
Reimbursements
lnterest Eamed

Total Rerenues:

Expenses:
Water & Utilities
Monthly LandscaPe Maintenance

Repairs & RePlacement
Departmental Charges

Project Construction
CFD Admin
Other Expenses
Transfers Out

Total ExPenses:

Change in Receirables/Liabilities

June 30, 2023 Maintenance Dis{rict Fund Cash Balance:

$

$ 149,916

$ 102,032

4,149
$ 106,181

3,159
387

9,739

17

14,710

$ 28,013

(742)

$ 227,343

30

Page 482

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2
Established May 26, 2O2O

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD") include the
following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:
acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry
seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground

utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters,

sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street
lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion

control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements;
masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities
include the following transportation improvements:

All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.
a

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet

the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:
water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -
such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities
include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping

and signage and other improvements related thereto.

31

Page 483

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force

mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

park, parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to

parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for

authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements' Authorized

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements

that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,2O!5, including any future amendments thereto'

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities

include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF

obligations within the entire CFD:

SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component)

SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component

SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component

SPIF Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to,

the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation,

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction

managemenU costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of

taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion,

inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities.

Services

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:
o Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions]

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management
plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June9, 2O!7, and repair and

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area.

32

a

a

a

a

Page 484

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



. The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within
the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

r The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.
. The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.
o Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.
o Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.
o Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.
o Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs.

r The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or
replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry
monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities
maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and
servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,
sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the
enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other
buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry
signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and
equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs
include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:
obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or
facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to
be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the
services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the
future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its
own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund
administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2022123 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Services

6l30l2022
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

6l30l2023
Balance

Project

Status

$o So So So On-going

613012022

Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

6l30l2023
Balance

Project

Status

so Soos So Soes On-going

33

Page 485

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



CFD #23,lA2 Detail

June 30, 2022[aintenance District Fund Gash Balance:

Revenues:
Mangini Ranch Maintenance Direct Levy

Reimbursements
lnterest Eamed

Total Rewnues:

Expenses:
Water & Utilities
Monthly LandscaPe Maintenance

Repairs & Replacement
Departmental Charges

Project Construction
CFD Admin
Other Expenses
Transfers Out

Total ExPenses:

Change in Receirables/Liabilities

June 30, 2023 Maintenance Dis{rict Fund Gash Balance:

663

$

$

$

$

663

$

$ 663

34

Page 486

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmProvement Area 3
Established MaV 26, 2O2O

SpecialTax Bonds, Series 2022 lssued August tO,2022

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD") include the

following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project managemenU bridge crossings and

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry

seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground

utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters,

sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street

lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion

control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements;

masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities

include the following transportation improvements:

. All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet

the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:

water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage

35

Page 487

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping

and signage and other improvements related thereto'

Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force

mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to
parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for

authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements

that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,20L5, including any future amendments thereto.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities

include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF

obligations within the entire CFD:

SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component)

SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component

SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component
SPI F Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to,

the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation,

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction

managemenq costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of

taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion,

inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities.

Services
The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:

. Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions]

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post

a

a

a

a

36

Page 488

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 4O4 permit and Operations and Management

Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June 9, 2QI7, and repair and

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area,

. The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within
the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

o The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.
o The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.
c Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.
r Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.
o Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.
o Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs.

o The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry

monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities

maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the
enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other
buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry

signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to
be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the
services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the
future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its
own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2022123 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Fund

lnitial

Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

6l30l2022
Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

6l30l2023
Balance

Project

Fund
s7,846,603 So So So S8,093,030 So S8,093,030

Underwriter's

Discount
101,165 0 0 0 101,165 101,165 0

Cost of
Issuance

300,000 0 0 0 30o,ooo 300,000 0

37

Page 489

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



Reserve

Fund
7r7,500 0 0 0 777,500 852 7L6,648

Capitalized

I nterest
468,690 0 0 o 468,590 236,257 232,433

Services

5130l2022
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

6l30l2023
Balance

Project

Status

Sr,osz Staz,qtt s18s s183,323 On-going

CFD#23,1A3 Detail

June 30, 2022Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance:

Revenues:
Mangini Ranch Maintenance Direct Ler,y

Reimbursements
lnterest Eamed

Total Rewnues

Expenses:
Water & Utilities
Monthly LandscaPe Maintenance

Repairs & RePlacement
Departmental Charges
Project Construction
CFD Admin
Other Expenses
Transfers Out

Total ExPenses:

Change in Receirables/Liabilities

June 30, 2023 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance:

$

$ 1,032

181,927

550

$ 182,477

$

$

$

(185)

183,323

38

Page 490

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

Established May 26, 202O

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD") include the

following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project managemenU bridge crossings and

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry
seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground

utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters,

sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street
lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion

control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentationi bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements;

masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto, Eligible

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities
include the following transportation improvements:

. All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet

the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:

water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping

and signage and other improvements related thereto.

39

Page 491

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force

mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

park, parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to

parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD' These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for

authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements' Authorized

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD'

Specific plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements

that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,20L5, including any future amendments thereto.

Specific plan lnfrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities

include payment of the following SptF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF

obligations within the entire CFD:

. SplF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component)

. SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component

. SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component

. SPIF Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to,

the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation,

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction

management; costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of

taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion,

inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities'

Services
The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:

o Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions]

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 4O4 permit and Operations and Management

plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June9, 2017, and repair and

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area.

40

Page 492

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



o The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within
the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

r The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.
o The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.
o Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.
r Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.

o Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.
e Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs.
. The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry
monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities

maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the
enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other
buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry

signage, street pavers, and labor, rnaterials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and

equipment, es applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to
be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the
services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the
future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its
own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2022123 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Services

6l30l2022
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

6l30l2023
Balance

Project

Status

5o 5o So So On-going

6l30l2022
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

6l30l2023
Balance

Project

Status

So So So So On-going

4t

Page 493

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 {Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5
Established MaY 26, 2O2O

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No

following:

23 (Folsom Ranch) ('CFD") include the

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry

seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground

utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters,

sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street

lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion

control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements;

masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities

include the following transportation improvements:

. All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet

the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:

water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping

and signage and other improvements related thereto.

42

Page 494

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities
designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force

mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

Park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to
parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities
include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for
authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized
facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements
that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,2015, including any future amendments thereto.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities

include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF

obligations within the entire CFD:

SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component)
SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component
SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component
SPI F Administrative Fee,

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to,

the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation,

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction

management; costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of
taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion,

inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities.

Services

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:
o Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions]

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 4O4 permit and Operations and Management
Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June9, 2OI7, and repair and

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area.

a

a

43

Page 495

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



. The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within

the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

r The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.
o The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.
o Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.
r Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse'
o Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.

o Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs.

o The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry

monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities

maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the

enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other

buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry

signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or

facilities related to providing the services andlor equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to

be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the

future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its

own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD'

Fiscal Year 2022123 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Services

6l30l2022
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

6l30l2O2t
Balance

Project

Status

So 5o So So On-going

6l30l2022
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

6l30l2023
Balance

Project

Status

$o so $o So On-going

44

Page 496

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
Established May 26, 2O2O

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD") include the
following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:
acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project managemenU bridge crossings and

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry
seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground
utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters,
sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street
lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion
control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements;
masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities
include the following transportation improvements:

All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet
the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:
water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,
gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -
such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities
include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping
and signage and other improvements related thereto.

a

45

Page 497

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force

mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements'

park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to

parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for

authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements

that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,2O!5, including any future amendments thereto.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities

include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF

obligations within the entire CFD:

. SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component)

. SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component

. SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component

. SPIF Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to,

the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation,

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction

managemenU costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of

taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion,

inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities.

Services

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:
o Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions]

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management
plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June 9, 2OI7, and repair and

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area.

46

Page 498

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



. The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within
the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

r The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.
o The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.
r Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.
e Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.
r Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.
o Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs.
o The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry
monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities
maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and
servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,
sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the
enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other
buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry
signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and
equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs
include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:
obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or
facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to
be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the
services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the
future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its
own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund
administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2022l23 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Services

6l30l2022
Balance

Amount

€ollected

Expended

Amount

6l30l2023
Balance

Project

Status

So So So So On-going

6l30l2022
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

6l30l2023
Balance

Project

Status

So $o So So On-going

47

Page 499

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 7
Established December L4, 2O2L

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for community Facirities District No
following:

23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD") include the

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings andculverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurryseal)' and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, undergroundutilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utiiities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters,sidewalks' bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; streetlights' signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosioncontrol; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, BusRapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements;masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligibleimprovements for the roads listed herein also include any and ail necessary underground potableand recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilitiesinclude the following transportation improvements:

r All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the cFD,including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

water system lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meetthe needs of development of property within the cFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenrn."r, gate valves,pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such assite clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-bygenerators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; accessgates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled water system lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water systemfacilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the cFD. These facilities include,but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution faciiities incruding pipelines and appurtenances,gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, andfencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage system lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drainimprovements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the cFD. These facilitiesinclude, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls andwater quality measures, detention/retention basins, Jrainage pretreatment facilities, drainageways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; r.."rr-rords, gates, and fencing; and stripingand signage and other improvements related thereto.

48

Page 500

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



wastewater system lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilitiesdesigned to meet the needs of development of property within the cFD. These facilities include, but maynot be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manhores; tie-in to existing main lines; forcemains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting relatedthereto; and related sewer system improvements.

Park, Parkway and open space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements toparks' parkways and open space required for development of property within the cFD. These facilitiesinclude' but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protictivl fencing (includingsoundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation forauthorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorizedfacilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public accesseasements required for development of property within the CFD.

specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvementsthat are included in the specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee program adopted by the city council onSeptember 8,2015, including any future amendments thereto.

specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee obligation: subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilitiesinclude payment of the following sPlF obligations for all development that would be subject to splFobligations within the entire CFD:

' sPlF lnfrastructure Fee (incruding the sprF set-Aside component). SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component. SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Componentr SPIF Administrative Fee.

other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidentalexpenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos community Facilities Act of i.9g2, including, but not limited to,the cost of planning and designing the facilities iincluding the cost of environmental evaluation,remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; cJnstruction staking; utility relocation anddemolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction
management; costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-RooscFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment oftaxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costsotherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expensesincidental to the formation and implementation of the cFD and to the constructjon, completion,inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities.

Services
The services to be financed by the CFD include the following;r open space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (includinggeneral maintenance, signage, city owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, andbike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions]within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Floodconveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, outfall/drainage swalemaintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, pre and postemergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and operations ano ManagementPlan-conservation and Passive Recreation open space, dated Juneg, 2017, and repair andreplacement of facirities within open space areas in the project Area.

49

Page 501

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within
the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.
The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.
The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.
Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.
Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.
Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales
constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.
Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,
GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs.
The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or
replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry
monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities
maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and
servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,
sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the
enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other
buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry
signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and
equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs
include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:
obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or
facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to
be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the
services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the
future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its
own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund
administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2022123 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Services

a

a

a

a

a

a

6l30l2022
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount
6l30l2023

Balance

Project

Status

So so So So On-going

6l30l2022
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount
6l30l2023

Balance

Project

Status

so so So So On-going

50

Page 502

12/12/2023 Item No.6.



[. {'* ! ,Fi _} ill
e-,!!l{a:.rl ;t' d.ir liJ

Folsom City Council
Staff rt

MEETING DATE: t211212023

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 1 II34 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute Sewer Easement and Maintenance
Agreements between the Property Owners of 115 Natoma Street,
210 Natoma Street, 216 Natoma Street, 308 Natoma Street, 310
Natoma Street, and3l2 Natoma Street and the City of Folsom for
the Construction of the Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and
Replacement Project and Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

ATION / CITY COUN

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends that the City Council pass and

adopt Resolution No. 11134 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Sewer

Easement and Maintenance Agreements between the Property Owners of 115 Natoma Street, 210

Natoma Street, 216 Natoma Street, 308 Natoma Street, 310 Natomd Street, and3l2 Natoma Street

and the City of Folsom for the Construction of the Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and Replacement
Project and Appropriation of Funds.

BACKG / ISSI]E

The Environmental and Water Resources Department (EWR) identifies sewer infrastructure
rehabilitation and replacement projects through sewer master plans and ongoing sewer condition
assessment programs. As a condition of the City's State permit for its wastewater collection
system, EWR is required to perform ongoing condition assessments on the wastewater system and

correct any defects/deficiencies identified through this process.

Through these efforts, portions of the wastewater system in the City have been identified as

needing rehabilitation or replacement (R&R). A comprehensive plan has been developed for the

R&R of these aging or failing systems and much of this work has been completed in recent years.

The next phase of the R&R program includes the replacement and relocation of sewer lines within

I
Page 503

12/12/2023 Item No.7.



Natoma Street and the Persifer and Mormon Alleys, between Stafford Street and Coloma Street,

known as the Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and Replacement Project.

This project will rehabilitate and replace approximately 5,000 feet of sewer infrastructure,

including relocating private sewer laterals. Through the City's sewer condition assessment

program, City staff has had to perform continual maintenance in this area in order to sustain

operations of these systems. These pipes are beyond their serviceable life and require rehabilitation
and replacement.

Part of the construction for this project has already been completed. In order to finish the

construction for this project, the City needs to acquire six (6) sewer easements totaling

approximately 7,284 square feet. The City worked with the property owners of all six properties

and came to agreements on the valuation for each individual easement. The City will enter into

sewer easement and maintenance agreements with each property owner for the easements.

This Resolution will Authorize the City Manager to Execute Sewer Easement and Maintenance

Agreements between the Property Owners of 115 Natoma Street, 210 Natoma Street, 216 Natoma

Street, 308 Natoma Street, 310 Natoma Street, and372 Natoma Street and the City of Folsom for
the Construction of the Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and Replacement Project and Appropriation

ofFunds.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code" supplies, equipment, services,

and construction with a value of $70,952 or greater shall be awarded by City Council

Acquisition of property rights by the City of Folsom requires City Council approval. Resolution

No. 2435, adopted on July 18, 1988, authorizes the City Manager to execute an Easement Deed.

ANALYSIS

The Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and Replacement Project will replace and rehabilitate portions

of the sewer systems in the older areas of the City that are encountering ongoing maintenance

problems. The Project consists of reconnecting sanitary sewer laterals, replacing property line

cleanouts, and replacing existing sewer mains, some on private property.

During the design phase of the new sewer system, it was determined that the best design option

would be to construct multiple portions of the sewer mainline on six (6) separate parcels of private
property. If a sewer mainline is located within private properfy, a Right of Way Easement is

required which gives the City permission to access the private property to install and maintain the

mainline.

The City contracted with Bender Rosenthal, Inc. (BRD to prepare the necessary surveying and

documentation to obtain the right of way easements, including plat and legal descriptions, title
reports, and appraisals. BRI also determined the fair market value of each easement, which was

included in the appraisal reports. In addition to the fair market value included in the appraisal

2 Page 504

12/12/2023 Item No.7.



reports, City staff also discussed other potential property related impacts with the properly owners

that are not included in an appraisal report. This includes disruption to residents or businesses,

removal of trees, impacts to access the property during construction, or other property related

impacts.

Per the direction from City Council during a Closed Session Meeting on September 12,2023, City
staff (Environmental and Water Resources Director and Associate Civil Engineer) met with each

property owner to discuss the valuation for the easements. The initial offer presented by the City
to the owners matched the fair market value of the easements as determined by BRI. The City
negotiated with the owners and a final offer was agreed to between both parties, as summarizedrn
Table I below. The total amount for the easements offered to the property owners by the City is

$166,100.

Pursuant to Civil Code of Procedure Section 1263.025, the property owners had the choice to

obtain an independent appraisal, of which the City would pay for the actual reasonable costs up to

$5,000. All the property owners, except the owner of 115 Natoma Street, declined to obtain an

independent appraisal. The property owner of 115 Natoma Street elected to obtain an independent

appraisal prepared by Commercial Valuation, Inc. (CVD. Based on the appraisal report completed

by CVI, the appraised fair market value offered to the owner by the City is $67,000.

During negotiations between the City and the owners of 308 Natoma Street, 310 Natoma Street,

and3l2Natoma Street, the owners accepted the fair market value as determined by BRL FoT 216

Natoma Street, the agreement includes an additional $5,000 for the avoided cost of an appraisal

and impacts to their driveway for access to their school during construction and property

restoration activities due to the proposed alignment of the new sewer line on their property for a

total value of $29,900.

During conversations with the owner of 210 Natoma Street, several potential impacts were

concerning to the property owner. These impacts included disruption to residents, loss of a tree, a

new sewer line in the backyards of four rental units and potential challenges with renting these

four units with a new sewer line in the backyard. The agreed upon offer for this property is $43,000.

Construction of the Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and Replacement Project cannot continue without
approval of this Resolution.

This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute Sewer Easement and Maintenance

Agreements between the Property Owners of 115 Natoma Street, 210 Natoma Street, 216 Natoma

Street, 308 Natoma Street, 310 Natoma Street, and312 Natoma Street and the City of Folsom for
the Construction of the Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and Replacement Project in the amount of
$166,100.

of Easement Offers

a
-t

Easement Area
(tr2)

Easement Offer
Accepted by Owner

Easement
Address

$67.0002,389115 Natoma Street
$43,0001,501210 Natoma Street
$29,900216 Natoma Street 1,654

Table 1:

Page 505

12/12/2023 Item No.7.



308 Natoma Street 531 $8,000

310 Natoma Street 850 $ 12,800

312 Natoma Street 359 $s.400
Total $166.100

FINAN

The City shall pay not to exceed sums of $67,000 for the 1 15 Natoma Street Sewer Easement,

$43,000 for the 210 Natoma Street Sewer Easement, $29,900 for the 216 Natoma Street Sewer

Easement, $8,000 for the 308 Natoma Street Sewer Easement, $12,800 for the 310 Natoma Street

Sewer Easement, and $5,400 for the 3 12 Natoma Street Sewer Easement, totaling $ 166,100.

The Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and Replacement Project is included in the FY 2023-24 Capital

Improvement Plan with a total project budget of $5,145,000. Staff is requesting an appropriation

of $166,100 in the Wastewater Operating Fund (Fund 530) for the cost of the Sewer Easement and

Maintenance Agreements. Once authorized, the appropriationwill increase the total projectbudget

to $5,311,100. Funds are currently available in the Wastewater Operating Fund (Fund 530) for
the appropriation.

ENVIRO AI, REVIEW

This project is a replacement andlor improvement of existing infrastructure with negligible or no

expansion of use and therefore is categorically exempt from environmental review under the

California Environmental Quality Act as noted in Title 14 - California Code of Regulations,

Chapter 3 - Guidelines for Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Article
19 - Categorical Exemptions, Sections 15301 (Existing Facilities), 15302 (Replacement or

Reconstruction), and/or 15304 (Minor Alterations to Land)'

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 11134 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Sewer

Easement and Maintenance Agreements between the Property Owners of 115 Natoma

Street, 210 Natoma Street, 216 Natoma Street, 308 Natoma Street, 3 I 0 Natoma Street, and

312 Natoma Street and the City of Folsom for the Construction of the Natoma Alley
Rehabilitation and Replacement Project and Appropriation of Funds

2. Signed Offer Letter for 115 Natoma Street

3. Signed Offer Letter for 210 Natoma Street

4. Signed Offer Letter for 216 Natoma Street

5. Signed Offer Letter for 308 Natoma Street

6. Signed Offer Letter for 310 Natoma Street

7. Signed Offer Letter for 312 Natoma Street

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

4
Page 506

12/12/2023 Item No.7.



Attachment 1

Page 507

12/12/2023 Item No.7.



RESOLUTION NO. III34

A RE,SOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE SEWER
EASEMENT AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE PROPERTY

owNERS OF 115 NATOMA STREET,210 NATOMA STREET,2I6 NATOMA
STREET,308 NATOMA STREET,310 NATOMA STREET, AND 312 NATOMA
STREET AND THE CITY OF FOLSOM FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE
NATOMA ALLEY REHABILITATION AND REPLACEMENT PROJECT AND

APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

WHEREAS, to comply with the State's Waste Discharge Requirements Order, the City is

currently implementing its Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) which consists of condition

assessment, as well as operation and system improvements; and

WHEREAS, the City has identified this project as a priority to maintain integrity and

operation of the sanitary sewer collection system; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom desires to obtain easements at 115 Natoma Street,2l0

Natoma Street, 216 Natoma Street, 308 Natoma Street, 310 Natoma Street, and3I2 Natoma Street

which are required for construction of the Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and Replacement Project;

and

WHEREAS, the City negotiated with the owners of each easement property and came to

an agreement on the valuation of each easement; and

WHEREAS, the City shall pay $67,000 to the owner of 115 Natoma Street, $43,000 to the

owner of 210 Natoma Street, $29,900 to the owner of 216 Natoma Street, $8,000 to the owner of
308 Natoma Street, $12,800 to the owner of 310 Natoma Street, and $5,400 to the owner of 3I2
Natoma Street; and

WHEREAS, the Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and Replacement Project is included in the

FY 2023-24 Capital Improvement Plan with a total project budget of $5,145,000; and

WHEREAS, an additional appropriation of funds in the amount of $166,100 in the

Wastewater Operating Fund (Fund 530) will increase the total project budget to $5,31 1,000; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are currently available in the Wastewater Operating Fund

(Fund 530) for the appropriation; and

WHEREAS, the easement deeds and agreements will be in a form acceptable to the City

Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the City Manager to execute Sewer Easement and Maintenance Agreements between

the Property Owners of 115 Natoma Street,210 Natoma Street,2l6 Natoma Street,308 Natoma

Street, 310 Nuto-a Street, and3l2 Natoma Street and the City of Folsom for the Construction of

Resolution No. 11134
Page I of2

Page 508

12/12/2023 Item No.7.



the Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and Replacement Project for a not-to-exceed amount of $ 1 66, 1 00.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is authorized to appropriate

$166,100 in the Wastewater Operating Fund (Fund 530).

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of December, 2023, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Rosario Rodriguez, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 1l134
Page 2 of 2

Councilmember(s)
Councilmember(s)
Councilmember(s)
Councilmember(s)

Page 509

12/12/2023 Item No.7.



Attachment 2

Page 510

12/12/2023 Item No.7.



F()r,s(}M
btStrxcrrva 6Y r^ruit

October 27,2023

115 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

Dear Property Owner:

The City of Folsom (Environmental and Water Resources Department) completed the right-of-way phase

for their Natoma Alley Sewer Rehabilitation Project. The purpose of this correspondence is to formally
offer you the fair market value of the appraised value of the easement on your property, Sacramento

Cou nty Assesso r's pa rce I n u m ber 07 0-077 2-045.

To assist in the process, the City of Folsom retained Bender Rosenthal, lnc. (BRl), Commercial Valuation
and Right of Way Services, to complete an appraisal report for the 2,389 square foot easement located

on your property. Based on the appraisal report completed by BRl, the fair market value was determined
to be s35,900.

Pursuant to Civil Code of Procedure Section 1263.025, you elected to obtain an independent appraisal
performed by Commercial Valuation, lnc. (CVl). Based on the appraisal report completed by CVl, the
appraised fair market value is 567,000. The fair market value offered to you by the City is $67,000.

Upon approval by City Council and your signature on the Easement Agreement, the City will issue a check

to you for 567,000. Before proceeding to City Council for approval, the City requests your signature

approving the offer listed above. The Easement Agreement and related documentation will be provided

after approval by City Council.

lf you have any questions regarding this offer letter, please contact Marcus Yasutake, Environmental and

Water Reso u rces Di rector, at mvasutake @fo lsom.ca. us or 9 16-461-6161.

NtCWad Y\\oa rL l-4arau9 Yat*tolrc
Printed Name Environmental & Water Resources Director

k4k
Signature

7

5,J O c+-- 7-oAz
Signature

,o\rrlz"ul
Date Date

Page 511

12/12/2023 Item No.7.



Attachment 3

Page 512

12/12/2023 Item No.7.



Page 513

12/12/2023 Item No.7.



Attachment 4

Page 514

12/12/2023 Item No.7.



ti'{}Lf$q}&.8

Dear Stephen and Doreen Holden:

The city of Folsom (Environmental and water Resources Department) completed the right-of-way phase
for their Natoma Allby Sewer Rehabilitation Project. The purpose of this correspondeice is to formally
offer you the fair market value of the appraised value of the easement on your property, sacramento
County Assessor's parcel number 070-0171-023.

To assist in the process, the city of Folsom retained Bender Rosenthal, lnc. (BRl), commercial Valuation
and Right of Way Services to complete an appraisal report for the 1,654 square foot easement located onyour property' Based on the appraisal report completed by BRl, the fair market value of the easement is
$24,900.

During negotiations between you and the city on october 4,2023, the city agreed to offer you anadditional $5,000 to avoid the cost of an independent appraisal, Based on the fair market value as
determined by BRI and the additional Ss,ooo, the amount offered to you by the city is 529,900.

Upon approval by city council and your signature on the Easernent Agreement, the city will issue a checkto you for $29,900' Before proceeding to City council for approvai, the City ,"qr"rt, your signature
approving the offer listed above. The Easement Agreement and related documentation will be provided
after approval by City Council.

lf you have any questions regarding this offer letter, please contact Marcus yasutake, Environmental and
Water Resources Di rector, at mvas uta ke @fo lsom.ca. us or 916 - 461_6t6!.

Sr€P${€{ l{ot+enf
I"\ arc,^s Yos*t"k

October 5,2023

215 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

Property Owner* Printed Name
--=*>1<41-

Property Owner - Signature
io*5-23

Environmental & Water Resources Director

Signature

1o lp [1o 19

tt+'

lCI
Date

*s-23
Date

Page 515

12/12/2023 Item No.7.



Attachment 5

Page 516

12/12/2023 Item No.7.



() ,s()l\l

October L9,2023

308 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

Dear Property Owner:

The City of Folsom (Environmental and Water Resources Department) completed the right-of-way phase

for their Natoma Alley Sewer Rehabilitation Project. The purpose of this correspondence is to formally

offer you the fair market value of the appraised value of the easement on your property, Sacramento

County Assessor's parcel number 070-0171-033.

To assist in the process, the City of Folsom retained Bender Rosenthal, lnc. (BRl), Commercial Valuation

and Right of Way Services to complete an appraisal report for the 531 square foot easement located on

your property. Based on the appraisal report completed by BRl, the fair market value offered to you by

the City is 58,000.

Upon approval by City Council and your signature on the Easement Agreement, the City will issue a check

to you for 58,000. Before proceeding to City Council for approval, the City r6quests your signature

approving the offer listed above. The Easement Agreement and related documentation will be provided

after approval by City Council.

lf you have any questions regarding this offer letter, please contact Marcus Yasutake, Environmental and

Water Resources Di rector, at mvasutake @folso m. ca. us or 9 15-461-6151.

F\ a..* I Yag*ta\r'
Property Printed Name Environmental & Water Resources Director

In

r4K
Property - Signatu

IO

Signature

1.o\1al2rz3

Date Date

Page 517

12/12/2023 Item No.7.



Attachment 6

Page 518

12/12/2023 Item No.7.



l,'() l.s()sl

October 20,2023

310 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

Dear Property Owner:

The City of Folsom (Environmental and Water Resources Department) completed the right-of-way phase

for their Natoma Alley Sewer Rehabilitation Project. The purpose of this correspondence is to formally

offer you the fair market value of the appraised value of the easement on your property, Sacramento

Co u nty Asse sso r's pa rce I n u m be r 07 O-Ot7 1-032.

To assist in the process, the City of Folsom retained Bender Rosenthal, lnc. (BRl), Commercial Valuation

and Right of Way Services to complete an appraisal report for the 850 square foot easement located on

your property. Based on the appraisal report completed by BRl, the fair market value offered to you by

the City is S12,800.

Upon approval by City Council and your signature on the Easement Agreement, the City will issue a check

to you for 512,800. Before proceeding to City Council for approval, the City requests your signature

approving the offer listed above. The Easement Agreement and related documentation will be provided

after approval by City Council.

lf you have any questions regarding this offer letter, please contact Marcus Yasutake, Environmental and

Water Resou rces Directo r, at mvasutake @fo lso m.ca. us or 9 L6-461-6151".

M*-,* 5 {'-e,,stJ I'tarc*g Y4-lo\re
Property Owner - Printed Name Environmental & Water Resources Director

th "F
Property Signature Signature

,o t"ot""t3ro /c -o I zOzz
Date / / Date

Page 519

12/12/2023 Item No.7.



Attachment 7

Page 520

12/12/2023 Item No.7.



r.'() l,tt()lr

October 20,2023

312 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95530

Dear Property Owner:

The City of Folsom (Environmental and Water Resources Department) completed the right-of-way phase

for their Natoma Alley Sewer Rehabilitation Project, The purpose of this correspondence is to formally

offer you the fair market value of the appraised value of the easement on your property, Sacramento

County Assessor's parcel number 070-0171-031.

To assist in the process, the City of Folsom retained Bender Rosenthal, lnc. (BRl), Commercial Valuation

and Right of Way Services to complete an appraisal report for the 359 square foot easement located on

your property. Based on the appraisal report completed by BRl, the fair market value offered to you by

the City is 55,400.

Upon approval by City Council and your signature on the Easement Agreement, the City will issue a check

to you for $5,400. Before proceeding to City Council for approval, the City requests your signature

approving the offer listed above. The Easement Agreement and related documentation will be provided

after approval by City Council.

lf you have any questions regarding this offer letter, please contact Marcus Yasutake, Environmental and

Water rces Di rector, at mva suta ke@folsom.ca. us o r 916-461-5151

F\arc*5 Yas*t.Vr-

perty me Environmental & Water Resources Director

h "tk
ner re Signature

1o\7-l1"15

r-Pr

o
Date

Page 521

12/12/2023 Item No.7.



This page is intentionalla left blank
to facilitote double - sided printtng .

Page 522

12/12/2023 Item No.7.



.t"'ltt.r!{.-}lsl
L:;i rr:l:rr ir t-ii.ni

Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

MEETING DATE: 1211212023

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT Resolution No. 11 135 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Purchase Agreement with 911 Vehicle for
Full Emergency Response Equipment and Emergency Lighting
Installation for Four Fire Ram Trucks

FROM: Fire Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Fire Department recommends that the City Council move and adopt Resolution No. 1 1135 -
A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute a Purchase Agreement with 911 Vehicle

for Full Emergency Response Equipment and Emergency Lighting Installation for Four Fire

Department Dodge Ram Pickup Trucks

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Fire Department currently utilizes seven various staff vehicles that range from 15-20 years

old and have extensively high mileage. The current staff vehicle fleet is unreliable and requires

replacement. Rising maintenance expenses to the staff vehicle fleet are outpacing replacement

costs.

The Fire Department staff vehicle replacement purchase is for four Dodge Ram pickup trucks

which will be utilized by the Fire Department for emergency responses and non-emergency duties

including logistical support, training, equipment movement, and state-wide overhead resource

needs. This purchase has been approved in the FY 2023-24 Fire Department Budget and

Resolution No. 11 I25. The pickup trucks will replace four current staff vehicles ranging from 15-

20 years old, all with rrrore than 100,000 miles.

Staff is recommending that the City enter into apurchase agreement with 911 Vehicle of Anaheim,

CA to install emergency lighting and equipment for four Dodge Ram staff trucks at atotal cost of
$465,305.13 and with a tentative delivery date of July 2024.

Page 523

12/12/2023 Item No.8.



POLICY / RULE

Section 2.36.080, Award of Contracts of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that contracts

for supplies, equipment, services, and construction with an estimated value of $70,952 or greater

shall be awarded by the City Council.

Section 2.36.140, Sole Source procurement of the Folsom Municipal Code states prior to

submitting a purchase request, the requesting departrnent shall couduct a survey of available

sources to determine whether there is only I source for the required supply, equiprnent, service or

construction item. After review of this request by the purchasing agent and the finance director
and approved by the city mallager, a contract shall be awarded without competition. The

purchasing agent, or his/her designee, shall conduct negotiations, as appropriate, as to price.

delivery and terms. The requesting department shall prepare a waiver of bid and submit it to the

purchasing agent for filing with the city clerk. (Otd.723 $ 3 (part), 1991)

ANALYSIS

The Fire Department currently uses staff vehicles that all range in age from 15-20 years old with
considerable high mileage. The current staff vehicle fleet is becoming less reliable as we have

extended their expected service life. Rising costs to maintain this aging fleet have escalated each

year.

The Fire Department has conducted extensive research and determined that 911 Vehicle is the only
vendor that can provide the City of Folsom with the specific equipment, installation, and

capabilities required for Fire Department staff vehicles. Employing 911 Vehicle affords the Fire

Department emergency vehicle fleet consistency and reliability. Other vendors have not elected

to provide quotes or bids on the detailed scope required by the Fire Department. There are also no

other vendors available that can or will build the radio suite required for our incident management

process. process.

911 Vehicle has previously installed emergency response equipment and lighting packages for
four Fire Department staff vehicles. Using 91 1 Vehicle to upfit our Dodge Ram pickup trucks will
provide a reliable and consistent end-product matching our previous vehicles. There are several

California municipalities who have used 911 Vehicle, including the Cities of Los Angeles,

Anaheim, Culver, Rancho Cucamonga, Ventura, Long Beach, and El Dorado Hills Fire District.

This purchase would represent the installation of emergency equipment and lighting on four Dodge

Ram chassis which will replace four of the oldest vehicles in the staff vehicle inventory. These

trucks will be regular Dodge trucks, each equipped with unique equipment to fit the Fire

Department's need. The trucks will be utilized to serve the department in emergency,

administrative, and logistical functions.

2 Page 524

12/12/2023 Item No.8.



FINAIICIA I,IMPACT

The contract with 911 Vehicle to install emergency lighting and equipment for four Dodge Ram

staff trucks is $443,147 .74 with a 5o/o contingency (22,157 .39) for a total amount not to exceed

$465,305.13.

The approved Fiscal Year 2023-24 Ftre Department Budget in the General Fund (Fund 010)

includes funds for the upfit of the Dodge Ram pickup trucks and the necessary standard equipment.

This payment will tentatively be made during Fiscal Year 2023-24 upon delivery of the four
vehicles.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This report concerns administrative activities that do not constitute a "project" as defined by
section 15378 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines and is otherwise

exempt pursuant to sections 15061(bX3) and 15378(bX2).

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 11135 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute a Purchase

Agreement with 911 Vehicle for Full Emergency Response Equipment and Emergency

Lighting for Four Fire Department Dodge Ram Pickup Trucks

2, Waiver of Bid Notification - Memo for 911 Vehicle

Submitted,

J

Emergency Equipment and Lighting Installation for four (4) Dodge Ram

trucks

s41r,274.00

Sales Tax 7.75% $31.873.14

Total Purchase s443,147.74

5o% Con $22,157.39

Total Amount not to exceed $465,305.13

Ken Cusano, FIRE CHIEF

Page 525

12/12/2023 Item No.8.



Attachment 1

Page 526

12/12/2023 Item No.8.



RESOLUTION NO. 11135

A RESOLTUION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH 911 VEHICLE FOR FULL EMERGENCY

RESPONSE EQUIPMENT AND EMERGENCY LIGHTING INSTALLATION FOR
FOUR FIRE DEPARTMENT DODGE RAM PICKUP TRUCKS

WHEREAS' the Fire Department staff has completed extensive research and validated the

need to install emergency response equipment and lighting to four Dodge Ram staff trucks; and

WHEREAS, replacement staff vehicles were approved in the Fiscal Year 2023-24 Fire
Department Budget and Resolution No. lll25; and

WHEREAS, staff reviewed and recommended using 911 Vehicle for the installation of
emergency response equipment and lighting to four Dodge Ram staff trucks to ensure purchase of
the best product at the best price; and

WHEREAS, the purchase for the installation of emergency response equipment and

lighting of four staff trucks is$443,147.74 anda5Yo contingency in the amount of $22,157.39 for
a total amount of $465,305.13; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the Fiscal Year 2023-24Fire
Department Budget in the General Fund (010); and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the City Manager to execute a,purchase agreement with 911 Vehicle, in a form
acceptable to the City Attorney, for the installation of emergency response equipment and lighting
of four Dodge Ram staff vehicles, in the total amount not to exceed $465,305.13.

pASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of December 2023, by the following roll-call
vote

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s)
Councilmember(s)
Councilmember(s)
Councilmember(s)

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 11135

Page I of 1

Rosario Rodriguez, MAYOR

Page 527

12/12/2023 Item No.8.



Attachment 2

Page 528

12/12/2023 Item No.8.



uuuu9rgr r Er rvvruPg lu. uv tuEv+J-EuuF-+nvt -oJ+u-D lnvoFDzvroo

Memo

:tF"CIlLs(}N{i

To Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

Ken Cusano, Fire Chief

November 13,2023

Waiver of Bid - 911 Vehicle

From

Date:

Subject:

This shall serve as a "Waiver of Bid Notification" for Sole Source procurement for the
installation of vehicle emergency response equipment and lighting contract, as required
by Section 2.36.140 of the Folsom Municipal Code.

Secfion 2.36.140, So/e Source procurement of the Folsom Municipal Code sfafes prior to
submitting a purchase request, the requesting department shall conduct a survey of
avaitable sources to determine whether there is only 1 source for the required supply,

equipment, service or construction item. After review of this request by the purchasing
agent and the finance director and approved by the city manager, a contract shall be
awarded without competition. The purchasing agent, or his/her designee, shall conduct
negotiations, as appropriate, as to price, delivery and terms. The requesting department
shall prepare a waiver of bid and submit it to the purchasing agent for filing with the city
clerk. (Ord. 723 S 3 (paft), 1991)

The Fire Department has previously utilized 911 Vehicle for installation purposes with four
staff vehicles and have been extremely satisfied with the end product. 911 Vehicle has
proven to be a reliable company that can deliver in a timely manner. Additionally, 911

Vehicle has many proprietary products that the Fire Department applies in emergency
response vehicles. Employing 911 Vehicle affords the Fire Department emergency
vehicle fleet consistency and reliability.

Other vendors have not elected to provide quotes or bids on the detailed scope required
by the Fire Department. There are also no additional vendors available that can or will

build the radio suite required for our incident management procedural process.

The Fire Department is requesting approval for sole source procurement through 911

Vehicle for the installation of vehicle emergency response equipment and lighting for four
Dodge Ram trucks. The Fire Department hereby requests this waiver of bid be approved
to remain in effect through the completion of the contract.

The Fire Department has funds budgeted for Fiscal Year 2023-24 tor the installation of

emergency response equipment and lighting for four Dodge Ram trucks'

r'ile lrro. 046-2L 23-004
Page 529

12/12/2023 Item No.8.



uuuuorgrl EilvErvPv lu. vv rvEv+J-EUUF-+nvF_oo+v-D IAUoFDZgFOD

o 1111312023
Date

LL/27 /2023

Date

LL/27 /2023

Date

Ken o, Fire Chief

by:

ni, Finance Director

by:

d^oi,nt, ilwhnn
Elaine ersen, City Manager

City Clerk, Original
City Manager

cc

Page 530

12/12/2023 Item No.8.



 

 

Folsom City Council 
Staff Report 

  
 

1 
 

MEETING DATE: 

 

12/12/2023 

AGENDA SECTION: 

 

Consent Calendar 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 11136 – A Resolution Accepting the AB1600 
Development Fees Annual Report for the Fiscal Year ended June 
30, 2023 
 

FROM: Finance Department 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

 

Staff recommends the City Council approve Resolution No. 11136– A Resolution Accepting 
the AB1600 Development Fees Annual Report for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2023. 
 
BACKGROUND / ISSUE 

 
Following the passage of Proposition 13 in 1978, many cities began charging fees on new 
development to fund public improvements and services such as streets, transit facilities, 
sewers, and storm drains.  These fees are commonly known as development impact fees.  In 
order to ensure that these fees were spent in a timely manner and on projects for which they 
were being collected, the State Legislature passed a bill known as AB 1600 (Mitigation Fee 
Act).  This bill applies to developer fees, increased, or imposed on or after January 1, 1989. 
AB 1600 enacts Government Code Sections 66000-66008 that generally contain four 
requirements:  
 

1. A local jurisdiction must follow the process set forth in the bill and make certain 
determinations regarding the purpose and use of the fees, and establish a 
“nexus” or connection between a development project or class of project and 
the public improvement being financed with the fee. 

 
2. The fee revenue must be segregated from the general fund in order to avoid 

commingling of public improvement fees and the general fund. 
 

Page 531

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



 2

3. If a local jurisdiction has had possession of a developer fee for five years or 
more and has not committed that money to a project or actually spent that 
money, then it must make findings describing the continuing need for that 
money. In addition, an annual report must be made of fees collected, interest 
earned, projects on which fees were expended, and any transfers or loans from 
the fee account.  This report is to be reviewed by the local agency assessing the 
fees. 

 
4. If a local jurisdiction cannot make the findings required under paragraph 3, the 

city or county must refund the fees collected. 
 
The attached report provides the information required by Government Code for the 
development fees that fall under this disclosure requirement.  In some instances, the ending 
fund balance amount is less than the remaining appropriation because outstanding advances 
and loans are not included in the fund balance.  Cash balances are sufficient for the remaining 
appropriations.  No refunds have been made nor are any required.  More information on these 
funds and all other capital project funds is available in the annual budget adopted by Council 
in June 2023 and in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). 
 
This report was compiled with the unaudited City financial records.  The audited ACFR will 
be available at the end of the current calendar year. 
 
This report has been on file with the City Clerk’s office as of November 27, 2023. 
 
POLICY / RULE 

 
Policy 11.6 of the General Plan states: 
 

It is the Policy of the City of Folsom to require new development to bear the cost of its 

increased demand/effect on municipal services and facilities so as not to create a 

greater burden on existing residents. Development contributes to the need for the 

expansion and extension of the City’s circulation, water, sewer, storm drainage, and 

parks systems and other capital improvements, facilities, and equipment to adequately 

serve the development area. Service expansion and extension is not necessarily site-

specific; rather, it is generally related to a larger area and the City as a whole. In order 

to accommodate the new development, maintain an acceptable level of service, and 

alleviate the effects of the increased demand on City services, it is the policy of the City 

of Folsom to require certain necessary improvements as a part of the development 

and/or the payment of municipal services and facilities fees consistent with the 

proportional effect of the development on such services. . .  

 
ANALYSIS 

 
For fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 development impact fee funds for all revenues totaled 
$41,164,246.  Of the $41.16 million, $27,967,640 are impact fees, the remaining $13,196,606 

Page 532

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



 3

are grants, reimbursements, interest, and miscellaneous revenue.  Expenditures totaled 
$14,052,251. 
 
Upon review, it is determined that all fees have been spent or committed within 5 years of 
receipt, and thus no refunds are required. 
 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

1. Resolution No. 11136 - A Resolution Accepting the AB1600 Development Fees 
Annual Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

2. The Development Fees Annual Report for the City of Folsom for the Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 2023 

 

 

Submitted, 
 
 
       
 Stacey Tamagni, Finance Director 

Page 533

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 1 

Page 534

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



 

Resolution No.  11136 

Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 11136 

 

 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE AB1600 DEVELOPMENT FEES ANNUAL 

REPORT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

  

 WHEREAS, Policy 11.6 of the General Plan requires new development to bear the cost 

of its increased demand/effect on municipal services and facilities so as not to create a greater 

burden on existing residents; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Folsom has imposed and collected the Development Impact Fees 

based upon several adopted Nexus Reports that were completed in accordance with Government 

Code Section 66000, et. al.; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Section 66006(b) 2 of the Government Code of the State of California 

mandates that the “local agency shall review the information (concerning local agency 

improvement fees) made available to the public...at the next regularly scheduled public meeting...” 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom 

hereby accepts the Development Fees Annual Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 on 

file in the City Clerk’s office. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of December 2023, by the following roll-call 

vote: 

 

AYES: Councilmember(s): 

 

NOES: Councilmember(s): 

 

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): 

 

ABSENT: Councilmember(s): 

 

                 

          

______________________________ 

                                    Rosario Rodriguez, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK 

 

Page 535

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 2 

Page 536

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank  

to facilitate double-sided printing.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 537

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Development lmpact

Fee Report

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2023

City of Folsom

€r?l Ol

I"(l f , !:i tl tI
$J!lt,rrCl!tt ttI rA!rJll

Page 538

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Table of Contents

lntroduction ............
Housing Trust Fee Fund.
Humbug Willow Creek Trails Fee Fund........
Tree Planting and Replacement Fee Fund...
lnclusionary Housing Fee Fund.
Supplemental Park Fee Fund.
City-Wide Park lmprovement Fee Fund
Police Capital Fee Fund..,
Fire Capital Fee Fund.......
General Capital Fee Fund
Transportation lmprovement Fee Fund
Drainage Capital Fee Fund...
Light Rail lmpact Fee Fund
General Park Equipment Fee Fund
Water lmpact Fee Fund.
Water Capital lmprovement Fee Fund
Sewer Capital lmprovement Fee Fund
Facilities Augmentation Critical Fee Fund....
Facilities Augmentation General Fee Fund ..
Solid Waste Capital lmprovement Fee Fund
Folsom Plan Area Highway 50 lmprovements Fee Fund
Folsom Plan Area Highway 50 lnterchange Fee Fund...
Folsom Plan Area Transit lmpact Fee Fund....
Folsom Plan Area Corporation Yard Fee Fund
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Capital Fee Fund.......
Folsom Plan Area Solid Waste Capital Fee Fund........

1

2
4
6
8
1

1

0

24
27
29

...... 31

......34

...... 36

...... 38

...... 40
42
44
46
48
50
52
54

Page 539

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Annual RePort
Development lmPact Fees

For the City of Folsom
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Government Code Section 66006 requires local agencies to submit annual and five year reports detailing the status of

development impact fees. The annual report must be made available to the public and presented to the public agency

(City Council) at least fifteen days after it is made available to the public.

This report summarizes the following information for each of the development fee programs:

1. A brief description of the fee program.
2. Schedule of fees.
3. Beginning and ending balances of the fee program.

4. Amount of fees collected and the interest earned.
5. Disbursement information, including operating transfers.

ANALYSIS

For the fiscal year ended June 30,2023 all fund revenues totaled $41,164,246 while expenditures totaled $14,052,251

The table below summarizes, by program, the impact fees collected in FY 2022-2023

Fiscal Year End
June 30, 2023

Housing Trust Fund
Humbug-Willow Creek Fee
Tree Planting and Replacement Fee
lnclusionary Housing Fee
Supplemental Park Fee

Park lmprovements
Police Capital
Fire Capital
General Capital
Transportation I mprovement
Drainage Capital lmprovement
Light Rail Transportation
General Park Equip Cap
Water lmpact Fee
Water Capital lmprovement
Sewer Capital
Facilities Augmentation Critical
Facilities Augmentation General
Solid Waste Capital
FPA Highway 50 lmprovement
FPA Highway 50 lnterchange
FPA Transit lmpact
FPA Corporation Yard
FPA Specific Plan CaPital

FPA Solid Waste CaPital

Total lmpact Fees Collected

$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

46,405
52,035

146,888
4.176,929

1,213,251
195,297
296,683
450,067

1,494,674
294,656
147,974
127,996
137,511
216,389
219,485

107,807
1,537,486
2,989,948
1,523,953

637,985
11,488,461

465,761

$ 27.967.640

Page 1

Page 540

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Gity of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2023
Housing Trust

Fund221

Section 3.g0.01 0 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Housing Trust Fund impact fee. The housing

trustfund is intended to be utilized with other sources of funding including, but not limited to, fee deferrals, fee waivers, federal tax credits,

tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds, community development block grants, and HOME funds. The purpose of this fee is to further the

policies, goals arid 
-programs 

of the housing element of the City's general plan and to help facilitate the development of affordable housing

within the City.

Monies in the housing trust fund shall be used to promote the goals and policies of the housing element of the general plan; to implement

any housing assistance plan, program, or guidelines adopted by the City Council; and to increase and improve the supply of housing

affordable t6 low and very low income households, with priority given to residential projects which include very low income units, as well as

other housing related puiposes. Housing trust funds may be used for loans, grants, equity participation or other funding mechanisms to

accomplish these purposes. The housing trust fund may be used to cover reasonable administrative, legal, consulting, or other housing

related expenses, which are not reimbursed to the City through processing fees.

HOUSING TRUST FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Cateqory
Fee per Gross
Square Foot

Office
Retail
Light lndustrial
Heavy I nd ustrial/Manufacturin g

Light lndustrial/Manufacturing

$

$
$
$

$

1.86
1.86
1.86
1.86
1.86

Description

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

I Loan Receivable

Available Fund Balance

Sfafemenf of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2018/19 FY 2019120 FY 2020121

$ st,ztz
21,476
15,000

$ 90,188

$

FY 2021122 FY 2022123

$ 175,956
41,916

6,000

11,443
27,568

6,000

36,080
21,916

46,405
19,446
6,000

$ $

$ 223,872 $ 45,011 $ 57,996 $ 71,851

$$$ 11,405
3,771 2 222

1,310
1.956

475
1,954 1.753

$ 4,067 $

$ 1s,176

$ zs,ot z

$ 6,289

$ 217,583

$ s,zoo

$ 41.745

$ 2,106/22

2,429

55,567

148,167

1,753

70,098

$

$

$

$

$$ 1,813,828 $ t 2,

$ 1,888,83e $2, 106.422 $ 2,148,167 $ 2,203,734 $ 2,273,832

$ 84e,683 $ 84 1.289 $ 841,28s $ r 10 $ 1,826,410

$ 447,422$ 'l ,039,156

2 203 734

Notes:
1 

Loan Receivable are loans issued for development of affordable housing projects.

$1 132 $ 1,306,877 $ 377,324

Page 2

Page 541

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Housing Trust

Five Year Revenue Test Using FIrst ln Flrst Out Method
Available Revenue CurrentYear $ 90,188 $ 223,872 $ 45'011

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds) 103,462 90,188 223'872

Availabb Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds) 279,328 103'462 90'188

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds) 318,662 279,328 103,462

Avaibble Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (5-yr Old Funds) 247,516 318,662 279,328

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (6-yrs and beyond)

Total Revenue Available

249,620 565,016

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

$ 57,996

45,01'l

223,872

50,445

57,996

45,011

223,872

50,445

70,098

t

$ 1,0s9,156 $ 1,265,132 $ ',1,306,877 $ 377,324 $ 447,422

FY 2022-23 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ I,zss
$ 1,753

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Fee

Administrative Overhead (interfund transfer) $ 1,753

$ 1,753

100o/o $
$

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Non-lmpact

ExpendituresFY 2021-22 Proiects
Operations
Administrative Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2O2O-2'l Proiects
Operations
Adm inistrative Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2019-20 Projects
Operations

Administrative Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ t,sto $ 1,310
.t,956

$

$ 475

1,954

$ z,qzs

100o/o

1000/

475
954

$ $

$ z,qzs $

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
100%

100%956
$ 3,266

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ s,zoo $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 4,067

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Project
Amount

Expended

$ 4,067

2,222
$ o,zeg

Proiect
Amount

Expended

100%

1O0o/o

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
100%

1000h

$ o,zss $

$

2,222

FY 2018-19 Proiects
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 11,405

3,771

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$Operations

Administrative Overhead (interfund transfer)
$ 11,405

3,771

$ 15,176

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

$ 15,176 $

Page 3

Page 542

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2023
Humbug-Willow Creek Fee

Fund223

Section 4.12.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Humbug-Willow Creek Parkway impact fee. The

Humbug-Willow Creek Parkway fund is intended to be utilized with other sources of funding including, but not limited to, the residential construction

tax, capital improvement-new construction service charge, drainage fees, Quimby Act fees, major road fees and park lmprovement Fee. The
purpose of this fee is to further the long-range planning efforts of the General Plan to develop the Humbug-Willow Creek Parkway. New

development, and the expansion of existing development within the city, generates the need for financing the planning and construction of
recreational trail, and passive recreational amenities along the Humbug-Willow Creek Parkway.

HUMBUG-WILLOW CREEK FUND FEE SCHEDULE

BasisUse Category
Residential, Single Family
Residential, Multiple Family
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial/lndustrial Development

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.

Fee Amountffi
$ 184

$ 160

$ 0.0710

Description

Sfafemenf of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2018/19 FY 2019120 FY 2020121 FY 2021122 FY 2022123

Revenues
Fees
Grant Reimbursements

Other Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB '1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

Humbug-Willow Creek Fee Fund

$ (824,527) $ (1,165,1e1)

$ (824,527\ _$ (1,165,1e1I

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
$-$$

$ (135,320)

_$ (164,919I $(1 35.320)

$ 107,206
2,402,241

244,493

81,891
68,123

123,785

42,365
985,000

80

$ 52,035$ $

$

$17,265
40,000

$ 2,753,940 $ 273,799
74 160

131,424 $ 1,027,445 $ 52,035

$ 2,678,645
106,013

$ 544,809
69,653

30,308
79,472

30,202
18,637

21,550
866

$ $

$ 2,784,658

$ (30,718)

$ (7e3,80e)

$ 614,462

$ (340,664)

$ (824,527)

$ 109,780

$ zt,aq+

$ (1,165,1e1)

$ 48,839

$ 978,606

$ (1,143,546)

$ (164,e40)

$ 22,416

$ 29,620

$ (164,e40)

_$ (1,143519I

$ (1,143,546)

Available Revenue current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior FiscalYear (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yrs and beyond)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior FiscalYears

Total Revenue Available

$ $

$ $ $ $

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

$

Page 4

Page 543

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Gapital lmprovement Projects

FY 2022-23 Proiects
Placerville Rail Trail
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2021-22 Projects
Placerville Rail Trail

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2020-21 Proiects
Placerville Rail Trail

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2019-20 Proiects
Oak Parkway Trail Undercrossing
Placerville Rail Trail

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee Fee

Expenditures Expenditures
$ 21,550 $

866

$ 22,416 $

$ 21,550
866ffi

100%
lOOo/o

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 30,202
18.637

$ 48,839

100%
1O0o/o

$ $30,202
18,637

$ 48,839 $

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
Expenditures Expenditures
$ 30,308 $

79,472
$ 109,780 $

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
Expenditures Expenditures
$ 534,574 $ 91,625

10,235

69,653
$ 614,462 $ 91,625

Proiect Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 30,308
79,472

$ 109,780

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

100%
''000/o

$ 626,1 99
10,235
69,653

85o/o

1O0o/o

100%

$ 706,087

FY 2018-19 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended
Folsom Lake Trail Phase 2

Lake Natoma Class 1 Trail
Lake Natoma Water Front Trail
Oak Parkway Trail Undercrossing
Placerville Rail Trail
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 2,784,658

Notes:
I lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$$$ 4,515

868,568
48,500

1,728,829
28,233

106,013

100%
100o/o

100o/o

lOOo/o

100%
1O0o/o

4,515
868,568
48,500

1,728,829
28,233

106,013
$ 2,784,658 $

Page 5

Page 544

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2023
Tree Mitigation Fee

Fund226

Section 12.'16.160 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a tree planting and replacement fund fee. Mitigation
fees and penalty assessments under this section shall be deposited into the tree planting and replacement fund. The tree planting and

replacement fund may be used for tree planting and revegetation projects such as parkways, parks, planting of trees along public trails and

beautification projects, to purchase property for tree mitigation sites, or beautification projects, for the retention of a city arborist, or for the

development, staffing or implementation of an urban forestry program. Funds shall not be made available for mitigation or planting on private
property, with the foliowing exceptions: (A) private property that is maintained by the city under the terms of a maintenance agreement; or (B)

maintenance of landmark trees at the recommendation of the city arborist. This fund shall be administered by the community development
department. (Ord. 1299 S 2 (part), 2020).

TREE PLANTING AND REPLACEMENT FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Fee Per lnch

Mitigation in-lieu $ 250.00

StafementofRevenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
tor Last Five Fiscal Years

Description FY 201 8/1 I FY 2019120 FY 2020121 FY 202'122 FY 2022123

Revenues
Fees

lnterest

Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

Tree Planting and Replacement Fund

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (6-yrs and beyond)

Total Revenue Available

$ 132,939
21,544

1 ,018

$

$ 101,150 $ 1ss,500 $ 191,323 $ 302,284 $ 178,901

$ 1 15,938 $

79,450
21,700

177,797
13,246

280

$ 292,433
9,851

$ 146,888
32,013

$

963
804

$ $ 59,918
65,1 15

$ 31J22
161,983 27 700

123,875
16,53628

$ 29,768

$ 71,382

$ 935.809

$ 125,033

$ 30,467

$ 1,007,191

$ 193,106 $

$ (1,783) $

$ 1,037,658 $

$ 140,411

$ 38,490

143,638

'158,646

1,035,875 $ 1, 't94.521

$ 1,007,191 $ 1,037,658 $ 1,035,875 $ r, 194.521 $ 1,233,011

$ 1,007 .191 $ 1,037,658 $ 1,035,875 $ 1,',l94,521

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
Available Revenue CunentYear $ '101,150 $ 155,500 $ 191,323

AvailableRevenuePriorFiscal Year(2-yrOldFunds) 225,385 101,150 155'500

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds) 217,358 225,385 I 01 '150
Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds) 96,569 217,358 225'385

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yr Old Funds) 84,872 96'569 217'358

$ 302,284
't91,323

'155,500

'101,150

225,385

218,879

$

$1

281.857 241,696 145,1 59

1 78,901

302,284

1 91,323

155,500

101,150

303,853

$ 1,007,191 $ 1,037,6s8 $ 1,035,875 $ 1,194,521 $ 1,233,011

Notes
Result: The Tree Planting and Replacement Fund fee reports funds being held beyond the five-years as described by A81600. The City has an agreement with the Sacramento Tree

Foundation for Tree Programs and Tree Planting and Maintenance. The Tree Planting and Replacement Fund will be utilized for a total of $645,000 for this agreement over the next

three years.

Page 6

Page 545

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2022-23 Projects
Operations
Landscape Enhancements

Administrative Overhead (interfund transfer)

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact

Expenditures
$

61,280

Fee

$ 123,875
75,530
2,286

$ 201,691

Project
Amount

Expended

100o/o

19%
'100o/o

123,875
14,250
2,286

$

FY 2021-22 Proiects

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 140,411 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$-

69,478
Operations
Landscape Enhancements

Administrative Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 1 15,938
93,624
3,555

$ 213,117

Project
Amount

Expended

100%
26%

100%

$ 1 15,938
24,145

3,555

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 31,122

26,521
135,462

$ 143,638 $ 69,478

Non-lmpact

Expenditures
$-

76,316

$ 193,106 $ 76,316

Fee

FY 2020-21 Projects
Operations
Landscape Enhancements
Administrative Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2019-20 Proiects
Operations
Landscape Enhancements
HumbugArVillow Crk/ Prkwy/ Empire Ranch Bridge

Administrative Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2018-19 Projects
Operations
Landscape Enhancements

Administrative Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 31,122
102,838
135,462

100%
26%

1000/

$ 269,422

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 59,918
90,729
40,000

1,593

$ 192,240

100%
26eh

lOOo/.

1Ola/o

$ 59,918
23,522
40,000

1,593

$ 12s,033 $ 67 ,207

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee

Expenditures Expenditures

$s63$
24,209
4 595

$ 29,768

$-
67,207

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
Fee

$
93,873
4,595

$ 99,432

963 100o/o

26%
100%

69,664

$ 69,664

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

PageT

Page 546

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gompliance 2023
lnclusionary Housing Fee

Fund 238

Section 17.104.030 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes that all for-sale development projects consisting of ten or more units, including

condominium conversion projects, as well as residential rental projects of ten or more units receiving funding assistance from the city or that are

otherwise subject to a voiuntary affordable housing agreement with the city, shall include inclusionary housing units equal to ten percent of the

total number of units in the prol-ect, excluding density bonus units. The ten percent shall consist of three percent very low income units and seven

percent low income units. ihg,inclusionary housing requirement may be satisfied by: including the units within the development project; providing

an alternative as set forth in Section 17.104.060i providing the units off site; dedicating land for other affordable development projects; acquisition,

rehabilitation, and conversion of exis-ing market rate units; conversion of existing market rate units; paying an in-lieu fee; other methods as

approved by the city council that meet the intent of this chapter; or a combination of these methods or other alternatives set forth in this chapter.

Section 1 7.1 04.060 G of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for an ln-Lieu Fee. A developer may pay an in-lieu fee calculated as

follows to satisfy all of the inclusionary housing requirements: multiply one percent of the lowest priced for-sale residential unit in the proposed

subdivision by t'he total number of for-sale resid-ential units in the proposed subdivision. For custom lot subdivisions where only lots will be sold,

multiply one-half percent of the estimated cost of the least expensive homes anticipated for the proposed subdivision by the total number of for-

sale iois in the proposed subdivision. The in-lieu fee is payable at the time of the building permit on a per-unit basis, and may be deferred upon

application by the developer and approval in the ciiy's sole and complete discretion pursuant to Section 16.80.030. Once the in-lieu fee has been

set for an iniiial twelve months, the amount of the fee shall be evaluated on January 1st of each following year. ln the event the lowest priced for-

sale residential unit or anticipated home in the subdivision changes by ten percent or more, the amount of the in-lieu fee shall be adjusted to the

new amount using the formula set forth above, applicable prospectively to the remaining units or lots in the subdivision'

INCLUSIONARY HOUSING FEE SCHEDULE

An in-lieu inclusionary housing fee is calculated as follows to satisfy all of the inclusionary housing requirements: multiply one percent of the lowest

priced for-sale residential unit in the proposed subdivision by the total number of for-sale residential units in the proposed subdivision. For custom

iot subdivisions where only lots will be sold, multiply one-half percent of the estimated cost of the least expensive homes anticipated for the

proposed subdivision by the total number of for-sale lots in the proposed subdivision

Sfafemenf ofRevenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Description FY 201 8/1 9 FY 2019120 FY 2020121 FY 2021122 FY 2022123

Revenues
Fees
lnterest
Grant Reimbursements
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

AB 1 600 Transfers Out

$ 2,024,070
514,887

$ 2,032,772
630,288

$ 6,625,814
(207,es7)

2,291,094
$ 8,708,911

$ 4,176,929
252,934

17,310
$ 4,447,173

$ 4,733,226
172,446

2,500,000
41,536 14,020 179 658

$ 2,580,493 $ 2,677,080 $ 7,585,330

$ 18,67s $ j12,869
13 853

$ 3,580,990
112,360

62,516
25,085

88,418
115,529

$ $

6,647
$ 25,322 $ 3,693,350

$ 3,891,980

$ 87,601

$ 8,621,310

$ 29,167,731

$ 203,947

$ 4,243,226

126,722

Revenues less Expenditures $ 2,555,171 $ 2,550,358

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear $ 20,170,222 $ 22,725,393 $

Fund Balance, End of Year

' Loan Receivable

Available Fund Balance

Notes:
1 

Loan Receivable are loans issued for development of affordable housing projects and down payment assistance

751 $ 37, 789.04',1

$ 22.725.393 $ 751 $29,167,731 $ 37,789,041 $

$ 12,785,869 $ 12,738,995 $21,447 .812 $ 30,015,044 $ 30,574,821

$ 9,939,525 $ 12,536,757 $ 11,457 .447$ 7,719,919 $ 7,773,997

Page 8

Page 547

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (S-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (6-yrs and beyond)

Total Revenue Available $ 9'939'525

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

lnclusionary Housing

FY 2022-23 Proiects

Five Year Revenue Test Using Flrst ln First Out Method
$ 2,580,493 $ 2,677,080 $ 7,585,330

7'35e'032 iiii;Ii'l 134'58e

$ 7,773,997 $ 4,447,173

7,O10,274

$ 12,536,757 $ 7,719,919 $ 7,773,997 $ 11,457,447

Project Amount
Expended

Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

lmpaci Fee
Expenditures
$ 88,418

't 15,529
$ 203,947

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 88,418
115,529

1O0o/o

1O0o/o

$Operations

Administrative Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2021-22 Projects
Operations
Administrative Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 203,947 $

Project Amount
Expended

Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact

Expenditures
Fee

$ 62,516
25,085

$ 87,601

Project Amount
Expended

100%

1O0o/o

Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

$ 62,516

25,085
$

FY 2020-21 Proiects

$ 87,601 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 3oo,99o

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$

2,500,000
780,000

1 12,360
$ 413,350 $ 3,280,000

Operations
Bidwell Street Studios
Broadstone Apartments

Administrative Overhead (i nterfund transfer)

$ 300,990
2,500,000

780,000

112,360

100%
0%
0%

1O0To

$ 3,693,350

FY 2019-20 Proiects
Project Amouni

Expended
Perceni Funded
by lmpact Fees

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Operations
Administrative Overhead (interfund transfer)

s 1 12,869

13,853
$ 126,722

100%

100% 13 853
$ 1 12,869 $

$ 126,722 $

Project Amount
FY 201 8-19 Proiects Expended

$ 18,675Operations

Administrative Overhead (interfund transfer) 6,647
$ 25,322

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
100o/o

't00%
18,675

6,647
$

$ 25,322 $

Page 9

Page 548

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Gity of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gompliance 2O23

Supplemental Park Fee

Fund 411

Section 4.10.0'1 0 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Park lmprovement impact fee. The fee

established by this chapter is in addition to any other fees or charges, or taxes, required by law or city code as a condition of
development, including, but not limited to, the residential construction tax levied by Chapter 17.90, capital improvement-new
construction service charge levied by Chapter 17.92, drainage fees levied by Chapter 17.95, Quimby Act fees levied by Chapter

16.32 and major road feel levied by Chapter 12.04.The fee established by this chapter is to be collected for park and recreation

facilities for which an account shall be established and funds appropriated, and for which a proposed construction schedule shall be

adopted. The fee imposed by this chapter is necessary in order to assure compliance with the applicable general plan requirements

that new development bear the cost for park and recreation infrastructure which is needed to serve such development.

SUPPLEMENTAL PARK IMPROVEMENT FUND FEE SCHEDULE

This fee is no longer charged

Statement ofRevenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Description FY 2018/19 FY 2019120 FY 2020121 FY 2021122 FY 2022123

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 't600 Expenditures

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

Supplemental Park Fee

Total Revenue Available

$
5,912

$ s,gtz
5,703

$ s,zos

$ $ $ $
3,276 2 508 7,342

$ s,zz0 $ z,soe $ 7,342

$$$$
435

$

$

$ s,gt z

$ 269,463

435

5,268

275,375

$

$ s,zzo

$ 280,643

2,508

283.919

$

$ t,s+z

$ 286,427

$

$

$

$

$

$

$ zts,zts

$ 275,375

$ 280,643 $ 283,919 $ 286,427 $ 293,768

$ 280,643 $ 283,919 $ 286,427 $ 293,768

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
Available Revenue current Year $ 5,912 $ 5'703 $ 3'276

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds) 3,938 5'912 5,703

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds) 3,962 3'938 5'912

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds) 10,491 3'962 3'938

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (S-yrs and beyond) 152,078 10,491 3,962

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years 98,994 1 250,637 261J28

$ $2,508

3,276

5,703

5,912

3,938

265,090

7,342

2,508

3,276

5,703

5,912

269,028

$ 275,37s $ 2s0,643 $ 283,919 $ 286,427 $ 293,768

Notes:
Result: The Supplemental Park lmprovement Fund reports funds being held beyond lhe five-years as described by AB'1600. Per the 2024 Capital lmprovement Plan

funds are reserved for the Benevento Family Park project. The Supplemental Park lmprovement Fund will be utilized for a total of $285,000 for this project which is

currently in the design phase.

Page 10

Page 549

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2022-23 ects
General Government (interfund transfer) $

$

FY 2021-22
General Government (interfund transfer) $

FY 2020-21 Projects
General Government@

$

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$100%

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact

Expenditures
$

$

Fee

10}o/o $

$

Project
Amount

Expended
$

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$

$

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$lOOo/o

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$

Non-lmpact

Expenditures
Fee

FY 2019-20 Proiects
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer) $ 435

$ 435

100% $ 435 $

FY 2018-19 Projects
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

Project
Amount

Expended

$

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$+ss$

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$- $

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
100Yo

$

1 
lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

$ $

Page 1 1

Page 550

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Gity of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2023
City-Wide Park lmprovement Fund

Fund 412

Section 4.'t0.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Park lmprovement impact fee, The fee

established by this chapter is in addition to any other fees or charges, or taxes, required by law or city code as a condition of development,
including, but not limited to, the residential construction tax levied by Chapter 17.90, capital improvemenl-new construction service charge
levied by Chapter 17.92, drainage fees levied by Chapter 17.95, Quimby Act fees levied by Chapter 16.32 and major road fees levied by

Chapter 12.04. The fee established by this chapter is to be collected for park and recreation facilities for which an account shall be
established and funds appropriated, and for which a proposed construction schedule shall be adopted. The fee imposed by this chapter is

necessary in order to assure compliance with the applicable general plan requirements that new development bear the cost for park and

recreation infrastructure which is needed to serve such development.

CITY.WIDE PARK IMPROVEMENT FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category Basis Fee Amount
Residential, Single Family
Residential, Multiple Family
Residential Senior dwelling
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial/lndustrial Development

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.

7,447
4,947
3,824
2,858
0.504

Descriotion

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2018115 FY 2019120 FY 2020121

$ 2,539,e16
42,345

2,643

$

FY 2021122 FY 2022123

Revenues
Fees
lnterest

Other Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

$ 2,584,905 $ 2,183,421 $ 467,070 $ 891,040 $ 1 ,316,658

$ 2,034,287
141,800

7,334

446,419
1 9,1 63

1,488

$ I ,010,323
(11e,283)

$ 1,213,251
103,407

223,757
8,307

$ 999,e04
$ 43,231

$ 145,66s
$ 80,371

$ 226,036

$ 1,957,386

$ 1,974,203

$
$

$
$

152,101
21,528

165,512
9,943

$
$

$ 1,043,135

$ 1,541,769

$ 432,434

$ 173,629

$ 293,441

$ 3,931,589

$ 175,455

$ 715,585

$ 4,225,029

$ 232,064

$ 1,084,594

$ 4,940,615

$ 1,974,203 $ 3,931,589 $ 4,225,029 $ 4,940,615 $ 6,025,209

$ 1,s74.203 $ 3,931,589 $ 4,225,029 $ 4,940,615 $ 209

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method

Gity-Wide Park lmprovement Fund

Available Revenue current Year

Available Revenue Prior FiscalYear (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior FiscalYear (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yrs and beyond)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

1,974,203 $ 2,183,421 $

1,748,168

467,070

2,183,421

1,574,538

891,040

467,O7o

2,183,421

1,399,084

1,084,594

891,040

467,070

2,183,421

1,399,084

$$

$ 1,s74,203 $ 3,931,s89 $ 4,22s,02s $ 4,940,615 $ 6,025,209

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance wiih Government Code 66001

Page 12

Page 551

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2022-23 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Operations
Livermore Park
Benevento Park (Empire Ranch Site 51)
Sutter Middle School Gym
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 7',t,027
6,535

46,195
100,000

8,307

$ 232,064

100%
lOOo/o

100%
100%
100%

71,027
6,535

46,1 95
100,000

$ $

8 307

$ 232,064 $

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact

Expenditures
Fee

FY 2021-22Prqecls
Operations
Livermore Park
Benevento Park (Empire Ranch Site 51)
Sutter Middle School Gym
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2020-21 Projects
Operations
Davies Park
Benevento Park (Empire Ranch Site 51)
Sutter Middle School Gym
Memorial/Celebratory Benches
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 32,305
6,239

26,968
100,000

9,943

100o/o

lOOo/r

100%
100%
1000/

32,305
6,239

26,968
100,000

9,943

$ $

$ 175,455 $ 175,455 $

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 30,727
4,650

15,236
100,000

1,488
21,528

T-lz3,6'2e

100%
lOOo/o

100%
100%

Oo/o

100%

$ 30,727
4,650

15,236
100,000

$

1,488
21 528

$ 172,14't $ 1,488

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee

Expenditures Expenditures

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Fee

FY 2019-20 Projects
Operations
BT Collins Park
Econome Park (Site 44)
Sutter Middle School Gym
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 37,067
1,838
6,760

100,000
80,371

$ 226,036

80%
100yo
lOOo/o

100%
100%

$ 29,733
1,838
6,760

100,000
80,371

$ 218,702 $ 7,334

$ 7,334

FY 2018-19 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Operations
Livermore Park
Johnny Cash Art Park
Johnny Cash Trail Art
Econome Park (Site 44)
Sutter Middle School Gym
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 90,537
(5,518)

(371)
9,216

806,040
100,000

43,231

87,894
(5,s18)

(371)
9,216

806,040
100,000

$ z,o+s97%
100o/o

100%
lOOo/o

101o/o

100%
100%

$

43 231

$ 1 ,043,1 35

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government supporl.

$ 1,040,492 $ 2,643

Page 13

Page 552

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Gity of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Complian ce 2023
Police Capital

Fund 428

Section 3.30.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision to implement the City General Plan, Urban Development Policy No.

1.1 .6, and to provide for adequate police, fire and general governmental services and facilities to serve new residential, industrial and commercial

developmeni throughout the City.' The City Cou-ncil determined that the existing police, fire and general governmental services and facilities

would be inadequate to accommodate the needs generated by projected new residential, industrial and commercial groMh in the City, and

additional services and facilities were needed to proiect and promote the health, safety and welfare of Folsom residents and businesses. Under

this section of the City's Municipal Charter the City estahished three improvement funds entitled the police improvement fund' the fire

improvement fund and the geneial government improvement fund. The amount of the capital improvement new construction fee shall be

esiablished by resolution aOo-pteO Uy ifre City Councii of the City, and shall be based upon the determination in the Nexus Studies of: (1) the use

of the fee and- the type of developmLnt on *nich the fee is imposed; (2) the need for the facilities and/or services created by the new residential

and commercial development; and (3) the reasonable cost of the facilitles and/or services attributable to new development' (Ord. 871 $ 1 (part),

1g97) All fees collected pursuant to ihis chapter shall be deposited in these improvement funds and shall be expended solely to finance the

planning, construction and development of the facilities and services identified in the Nexus Studies.

POLICE CAPITAL FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial Lodging
Commercial Development
lndustrial Development

Basis Fee Amount
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

636
721
165
37

1.071
0.926

$
$

$
$
$
$

Description

Stafemenf of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2018/19 FY 2019120 FY 202012',1

$ 307,384 $ $

FY 2021122 FY 2022123

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

376,561
19,536

48,085
'13,505 9 302

$ 169,303 $ 195,2e7

13 649 31 345

$ 321,033 $ 396,098 $ 61,590 $ 178,606 $ 226,643

117,796
716

$ 43,185 $ 137,633 $
2,643

$$

$-

$ 321,033

$ 443,565

118,512

277,586

764,598

$ 43,185

$ 18,40s

$ 1,042,184

$ 137,633

$ 40,e73

$ 2,643

$ 224,000

$ 1,101,562

$

$

$ $ t,060,589

$ 764,598 $ 1,042,184

$ 1,042,184

$ 1,060,58e $ 1,101,562 $ 1,325,561

$ 1,325 ,561$ 764,598 $r _$_1 ,1 01 ,562_

Page 14

Page 553

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Police Capital

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (S-yrs Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
$ 321,033 $ 396,098 $ 61,590

443,565 321,033 396,098

325'053 
l3l:3ll

$ 178,606

61,590

396,098

321,033

144,235

226,643

178,606

61,590

396,098

321,033

141,591

$

$ 764,598 $ 1,042,184 $ 1,060,s89 $ 1,','01,562 $ 1'325'561

Notes:
The police Capital Fund reports funds being held beyond the five-years as described by AB1600. Per the 2024 Capilal lmprovement Plan funds are reserved for the Police Station

Remodel project. The Police Capital Fund will be utilized for $830,000 for this proiect

Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2022-23 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$

$
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2021-22 Proiects
Police HQ Remodel

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 2,643

$ z,o+s

Project
Amount

Expended

$ 137,633

$ 137,633

100% $ 2,643 $

$

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
100o/o

0o/o

$ 2,643

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 137,633

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 137,633 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$

$

FY 2020-21 Proiects
Police HQ Remodel

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 4s,185

$ 43,185

IOOYo

0o/o

$ 4s,185 $

FY 2019-20 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 43,185 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 117,796

716

$ 1 18,51 2

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$-

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$

$

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$

Purchase of Police Vehicles

General Government Overhead (interfund iransfer)

FY 2018-19 Proiects

$ 117,796

716

10lo/o

100o/o

$ 1 18,51 2

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$

Notes:
'l lnterfund transfers are used io reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support

$ $

Page 15

Page 554

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2023
Fire Gapital

Fund 441

Section 3.gO.O1O of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision to implement the City General Plan, Urban Development Policy No.

11.6, and to provide for adequate police, fire and general governmental services and facilities,to serve new residential, industrial and commercial

development throughout tne bity. The City Councii determined that the existing police, fire and general governmental services and facilities would

be inadequate to aicommodate the needs generated by projected new residential, industrial and commercial growth in the City, and additional

services and facilities were needed to protect and promote the health, safety and welfare of Folsom residents and businesses. Under this section

of the City's Municipal Charter the City established three improvement funds entitled the police improvement fund, the fire improvement fund and

the geneial government improvement fund. The amqunt of the capital improvement new construction fee shall be established by resolution

adop-ted by tlie City Council of the City, and shall be based upon the determination in the Nexus Studies of: ('l) the use of the fee and the type of

development on *hi"t the fee is imposed; (2) the need ior the facilities and/or services created by the new residential and commercial

development; and (3) the reasonable cost of the facilities and/or services attributable to new development. (ord. 871 S I (part), 1997) All fees

collected pursuant'to this chapter shall be deposited in these improvement funds and shall be expended solely to finance the planning,

construction and development of the facilities and services identified in the Nexus Studies.

FIRE CAPITAL FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Gategory
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial Lodging
Commercial Development
lndustrial Development

Basis Fee Amount
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

1,149
1,111
1,146

994
0.671
o.292

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 20',t9120 FY 2020121FY 2018/'19 FY 2021122 FY 2022123Description

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

Debt Service - interfund transfer

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

$ 478,923 $ $ 77,107
(12,922)46 994

503,670
26,669

$ 247,787
(2,412)

$ 296,683
(736)

$ 525,916 $ 530,339 $ o+,t as $ 245,374 $ 295,s47

$$$ 1,785,969
80,049

1,487
80,420
43.784

$ 2,008,060

52,861

157,800
2,323

12,432
78,947
57,383

$

$ 1,867,505 $

$ (1,341,589) $

$ 2,060,921

$ (1,9e6,736)

$ 1 60,123

$ 85,251

$ (396,87e)

$ 148,762

$ 147,185

$ 2,535,312 $

124,204

406,1 35

1,193,723 599,857$ t, $(3 11.627\

_$_1,193,n9_ $ 1,5ss,857 $ (396,879) $ (311,627) _$J1S!,!9_

_$_J13!,!lA_$ 1,193,723 $ 1,599,857 _$ (3e6,8?el $ (311,627)

Page 16

Page 555

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Fire Capital

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (Z-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue PrionFiscal Year (5-yrs Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater lhan Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Available Revenue

Five Year Revenue Test Using First In First Out Method
525,916 $ 530,339

667,807 525,916

- 543,602

$$$

$ 1,193,723 $ 1,599,857 $ $ $

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2022-23 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 78,947

$ 12,432
57,383

$ 148,762

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 140,100

$ 140,100

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 157,800
2.323

$ 160,123 $ 66,147

Debt Service on Fire Station 35 (interfund transfer)

Capital Equipment

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ z'tgptt
$ 12,432

57,383
$ 288,862

36%
100%

10oo/o

FY 2021-22 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ oo,t+zDebt Service on Fire Station 35 (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2O2O-21 Proiects
Station 38 Remodel

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 223,947
2.323

$ 226,270

TOYo

100%

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

2

2

$ 2,430,715
52 861

2,483,576

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

83o/o

100%
$ 2,008,060

52,861

$ 422,655

$ 2,060,921 $ 422,655

FY 2019-20 Proiects
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 80,420

43,784
$ 124,204 $ 142,968

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 142,968Debt Service on Fire Station 35 (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 223,388
43,784

$ 267,172

360/o

1000k

FY 2018-19 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Debt Service on Fire Station 35 (interfund transfer)

Fire Station #39

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 222,357
2,161,413

1,487

36lo
83%

100%

$ 80,049
1,785,969

1,487

$ 142,308

$ 2,385,257

Notes:I 
lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for the impact fee portion of the debt service payments and capital expenses.

2 lnierfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support

$ 1,867,505 $ 142,308

Page 17

Page 556

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Gity of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2023
General Capital

Fund 445

Section 3.g0.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision to implement the City General Plan, Urban Development Policy

No. 11.6, and to provide for adequate police, fire and general governmental services and facilities to serve new residential, industrial and

commercial development throug'hout if'" City. Ttre bity Council determined that the existing police, fire and general governmental

services and facilities would be inadequate to accommodate the needs generated by projected new residential, industrial and commercial

growth in the City, and additional services and facilities were needed to protect and promote the health, safety and welfare of Folsom

residents and businesses. Under this section of the City's Municipal Charter the City established three improvement funds entitled the

police improvement fund, the fire improvement fund and the general government improvement fund. The amount of the capital

improvement new construction fee shali be established by resolution adopted by the City Council of the City, and shall be based upon the

determination in the Nexus Studies of: (1) the use of the fee and the type of development on which the fee is imposed; (2) the need for the

facilities and/or services created by the new residential and commercial development; and (3) the reasonable cost of the facilities and/or

services attributable to new development. (Ord. 871 g 1 (part), 1997) All fees collected pursuant to this chapter shall be deposited in these

improvement funds and shall be expended solely to finance the planning, construction and development of the facilities and services

identified in the Nexus Studies.

Use Category

GENERAL CAPITAL FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial Lodging
Commercial Development
lndustrial Development

FY 2018/'t9

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

1,689
1,689
1,681

241
0.527
0.524

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2019120 FY 2020121 FY 2021122 FY 2022123Description

Revenues
Fees
lnterest

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
Debt Service - interfund transfer
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

$ 701,310
37,077

$ 738,387

$ 42,871
1,856,1'10

702
1,90 ,683

$ (1,163,2e6)

$ 714,359 $ 117,263
10,224

$ 365,120
9,921

$ 450,067

3 681 41 152

$ 718,041 $ 127 ,487 $ 375,040 $ 491 ,219

2,505

152,745

$ 1,582 $

1,21',1 51 187

$$

$ 1,368,371 $ 075

$ 155,250

$ 562,790

$ 1,582

$ 125,905

$ 767,865

$ t,ztt

$ 373,829

893 770

$ 51,187

$ 440,032

$ 1,267,599

$ 205,075 $ 767,865

$ 767,865

$ 893,770 $ 1,267,599 $ t,707,631

$ t,707.631$ 205.075 $ 893.770 $ 1;267,599

Page 18

Page 557

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



General Capital

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (5-yrs Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

Five Year Revenue Test Using Flrst In First Out Method
205,075 718,O41

49,824

127,487

718,O41

48,242

375,040

127,487

718,041

47,031

491,219

s75,040

127,487

713,885

$$

$ 205,075 $ 767,865 $ 893,770 $ 1,267,599 $ 1'707'631

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2022-23 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$ 9,994Capital Equipment

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2021-22 Proiects

$ 59,9s4

187

83o/o

IQOYo

$ so,ooo

187

$ 51,187 $ s,994

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 61 ,181

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

100%

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$$ 1,211 $ 1,211

$ 1,211 g 1,211 $

FY 2020-21 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 1,582

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$General Govemment Overhead (interfund transfer) $ 1,582

$ 1,582

1O0o/o

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 1,582 $

FY 2019-20 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 2,745
150,000

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 2,095
6,847

Software upgrade
Capital Equipment

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2018-19 Proiects

$ 4,840
156,847

2,505

$ 164,192

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

57Yo

96Yo

100% 505

$ 155,250 $ 8,e42

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 42,871

1,856,110

2,702

$ 1,901,683 $ 44,749

2

$

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$ 44,749Software upgrade

Debt Service on City Hall (interfund transfer)

General Govemment Overhead (interfund transfer)

87,620

1,856,110

2.702

49o/o

10OYo

lOOo/r

$ 1,946,432

Notes:
1 lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund

2 lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for the impact fee portion of the debt service payments

Page 19

Page 558

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gompliance 2023
Transportation lmprovement Fund

Fund rM6

Section 12.04.060 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for a transportation improvement fee. The purpose of the fee is to

establish a fund for financing transportation facilities as identified in the circulation element of the city general plan and those studies which identify

specific transportation facility improvements called for in the circulation element and the estimated costs thereof. lmprovements include

construction oi new transportation facilities where there are none and reconstruction of existing transportation facilities which are not sufiicient to

accommodate increased iraffic caused by new development. The area of benefit of the transportation facilities is the entire corporate limits of the

City.

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial / Retail
lndustrial / Office
Hospital
Hotel / Motel
Other
Additional Land Uses
High Trip Commercial
Gas Stations

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

Sq. Ft. $
Per Fueling Station $

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

8,643
6,050
6,050
12.98

5.64
12.98
12.98

5.64

51.50
11,549

Description

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2018/19 FY 2019120 FY 2020121 FY 2021122 FY 2022123

Revenues
Fees
lnterest

Other Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

Other Expenses
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

$ 3,058,578
523,814
577,843

2,339,992
355,678

1,668,308

$ $ 547,306 $ 1,323,716
(61 ,334) (12e,e33)

5,911,747 14,329,002

$ 1,494,674
23,257

11,509,051

$ 4,160,235 $ 4,363,978 $ 6,397,720 $ 15,522,785 $ 13,026,982

$ 5,299,363
102,483
91,884

7,927,850
152,118

41,545

$ 8,993,579
117,918
100,682

s 17,548,721
118,234
152,910

$ 7,647,824
2,208,939

135,251

$

$ 5,493,730

$ (1,333,495)

$ 14,220,069

8,12'.1,513

(3,757,534)

12,886,574

$ 9,212,179

$ (2,814,45e)

$ 17,819,865

$ (2,297,080)

$ 6,314,581

$ 9,992,014

$ 3,034,968

$ 4,017,500

$

$

$ $e, 129,040

$ tz,886.574 $ 9,129,040 $ 6,314,581 $ 4,017,500 $ 7,052,468

$ 12,886,574 $ 9,129,040 $ 6,314,581 $ 4,017,500 $ 7,052,468

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior FiscalYear (s-yrs Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

$ 4,017,500 $ 7,052,468

$ 12,886,s74 $ 9J29p40$6,314,581 $4,017,500$7,052,468

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
$ 4,160,235 $ 4,363,978 $ 6,314,581

5,585,431 4,160,235

3,140,908 604,827

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Page 20

Page 559

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2022-23 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended
Percent Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Capital SE Connect Seg D3

Empire Ranch Rd lnterchange

East Bidwell/ lron Pt US50 Onramp

Green Valley Road Widening

lntelligent Transportation System

lntelligent Transportation Sys Master Plan

New Traffic Signal lmprovement

Folsom Lake Xing Satety lmprovement

Historic District Connectiviity

HSIP Safety lmprovements

lron Point Median

Scott Road Realignment

Traffic Signal System Upgrade

Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2021-22 Proiects
East Bidwell Frontage lmprovements

Capital SE Connect Seg D3

Empire Ranch Rd lnterchange

East Bidwell Widening

East Bidwell / lron Pt Signal Delineation

East Bidwell/ lron Pt US50 Onramp

Green Valley Road Widening

lntelligent Transportation System

Median lmprovement Program

Folsom Lake Xing Satety lmprovement

Greenback/ Madison Paving

Orangevale Bridge

H istoric District Connectiviity
HSIP Safety lmprovements

lron Point Median

Scott Road Realignment

Traffic Signal System Upgrade

Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 3,751 ,618
1 13,985
185,545

11,540
71,943

147,761
1,166

92,'196
34,577
71,305

484,760
2,775,634

47,335
135,251

8,939

'l 13,985
185,545

4,840
71,943

't47,761
1,166

92,1 96
34,577
71,305

364,934
2,775,634

47,335
135,251

8,939

Expenditures
$ 3,751 ,6'18

6,700

1 19,826

OYo

lOOo/o

100%
42Yo

100o/o

100o/o

IOOY'
100%
100%
lOOo/o

75Yo

100%
lOOo/o

100%
100%

$

2

'1

$ 7,933,556 $ 4,055,412 $ 3,878,144

Project Amount
Expended

Percent Funded by
lmpact Fees

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 77,328
16,554,198

't98,636
74,740
49,704
7,101

23,507
10,942
25,084
32,902
2,361

25,673
46,726
'17,555

3,600
383,683
69,657

152,910
118,234

100%
OYo

100%
100%
1000/
'1000/0

lOOo/o

960/o

100o/.
100%
100vo
100%
100%
100%
100%
lOOo/o

22%

100%
1O0o/o

$ 77,328 $
16,554,198

$ 17,874,53e

198,636
74,740
49,704
7,101

23,507
'10,520

25,084
32,902
2,361

25,673
46,726
17,555
s,600

383,683
15,404

152,910

118,234
$ 1,265,667

421

54,253

$ 16,608,872

Page 21

Page 560

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



FY 2O2O-21 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended
Percent Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

East Bidwell Frontage lmprovements

Capital SE Connect Seg D3

Empire Ranch Rd lnterchange
East Bidwell Widening
East Bidwell / lron Pt Signal Delineation

Green Valley Road Widening

lntelligent Transportation System

Median lmprovement Program

Local Streets & Roads Program

New Traffic Signal lmprovement

Orangevale Bridge

Prairie City / Blue Ravine

Rainbow Bridge Repair

Riley Street Feasability Study

Traffic Signal System Upgrade

Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 251,712
6,322,280

230,580
563,324
34,040

830,339
174,992

'15,723

34,754
84,430
6,367

342,415
'10,306

72,412
62,098

100,682

120,144
$ 9,256,597

100%
0%

100%
100%
100%
100%

9syo
100vo
'1000/0

10004
lOOo/o

100%
100%
lOOo/o

43%
100%

lOOo/r

$ 251,712 $

Percent Funded by
lmpact Fees

6,322,280
230,580
563,324
34,040

830,339
166,019

15,723
34,754
84,430

6,367
342,415

10,306
72,412
26,653

100,682

120 144
$ 2,889,899 $ 6,366,698

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

8,973

35,445

FY 2019-20 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended

East Bidwell Frontage lmprovements

Empire Ranch Rd lnterchange

East Bidwell Widening
East Bidwell / lron Pt Signal Delineation

Green Valley Road Widening

lntelligent Transportaiion System

lron Point Rail Road Crossing Modifications

Local Streets & Roads Program

New Traffic Signal lmprovement
Prairie City / Blue Ravine
Rainbow Bridge Repair
Riley Street Feasibility Study
Traffic Signal System Upgrade

Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 376,391
289,408
322,717

28,'143
5,893,164

294,278
8,000

34,706
477,280

15,768
30,074
66,054

't53,200

41,545
152,118

100%
'100o/o

100%
lOOo/o

lOOo/o

92o/"

lOOo/o

77lo
10oo/r
IOOY,
100%
100%

80o/o

'loo%
100%

$ 376,391
289,408
322,717

28,143
5,893,137

271,121
8,000

26,706
477,280

15,768
30,074
66,054

123,050

41,545

Expenditures
$-

26
23,157

8,000

30,1 50

$ 8,182,846
152 118

$ 8,121,513 $ 61,333

Page 22

Page 561

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



FY 2018-19 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended
Percent Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

East Bidwell Frontage lmprovements

East Bidwell lnfill

East Bidwell Widening
East Bidwell / lron Pt Signal Delineation

Greenback / Madison Paving

Green Valley Road Widening
Highway 50 Facilities
Intelligent Transportation System

lron Point Rail Road Crossing Modifications

Median lmprovement Program

New Traffic Signal lmprovement

Orangevale Bridge
Rainbow Bridge Repair

Regional Transportation Coordination

ROW Asset Management

Traffic Signal System Upgrade

Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 218,007
598

65,808
290,820

2,144,312
704,818

37,841
148,291
761,820

3,692
2,396,298

35,395
30,851
55,000

5,079
251,O01

91,884

$ 218,007
598

65,808
290,820
416,174
704,818

37,841
148,291
761,820

3,692
2,396,298

35,395
30,851
31,276
5,079

107,370
91,884

1,728,138

23,724

143,631

100%
100%
100%
100%

19o/o

100%
100%
100%
100o/o

'1000/o

100o/o

lOOo/o

100%
57o/o

lOOo/o

430

100o/o

100%

$

2

1

147 707 147 707
$ 5,493,730 $ 1,895,493$ 7,389,223

Notes:
I lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

2 lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing Engineering support

Page 23

Page 562

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2023
Drainage Gapital

Fund 448

Section '17.95.030 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a fee to establish a drainage fund. The City

Council declares and finds that it is necessary to adopt and establish the entire City as a zone for the improvement and construction of trunk

and collection drainage facilities, including waterways, pumping plants, levees and other facilities utilized for controlling drainage and storm

waters within the City in order to promote and protect the public health, safety, comfort, convenience and general welfare from uncontrolled

drainage and storm water. (Ord.620 S 1, 1988: Ord.368 (part), 1978)

For any residential structure, residential subdivision or parcel map, whether for single-family or multiple-family use, the fee shall be $832 per

dwelling unit. For commercial or industrial buildings, commercial or industrial subdivision and all other land uses not otherwise provided for in

this chipter or improvements appurtenant thereto, the fee shall be $5,055 per acre. When only a portion of a site is being developed, the city

engineer may, by written agreement with the property owner, defer that portion of the fees due on the undeveloped portion of the site. (Ord.

620 S 1, 1988)

DRAINAGE CAPITAL FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category
@
Multi-Family Residential
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial Development
lndustrial Development

FY 2018/19

Basis Fee Amount
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Acre
Per Acre

$
$
$
$
$

1,097
1,097
1,097
6,669
6,669

Description

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 20't9l20 FY 2020121 FY 202',I22 FY 2022123

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Grant Reimbursement
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

$ 471,222
21,396
74,204

$ 488,461
23,629

$ 265,676
7,716

42,475
144

$ 294,656
27,476

38,719
$ 360,851

$ 71,862
10,545

$ 566,823 $ 512,090 $ 82,407 $ 316,011

$ 459,797 $ 167,547 $ 272,377 $$ 87,904
89,494 78 174 68 181 71 744

15,868
51,600

$

$

$

177,398

389,425

701.O31

$ ssz,szt

$ (25,881)

$ 1,090,456

$ 235,728

$ (153,320)

$ 1,064,576

$ 344,121

$ (28,110)

$ 67,468

$ 293,382

$ 883,145$ 911 255

$ 1,090,456

$ 1,090,456

$ 1,064,576 $ 911,255 $ 883,145 $ t, 176.527

$ t, 176.527$ 1,064,576 $ 911,255 $ 883,145

Page 24

Page 563

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Drainage Gapital

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (S-yrs Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Ed Mitchell Park
Ed Mitchell Park Drainage
Flood Plain Mapping
NPDES
Weather Station
Misc Expense
Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
$ 566,823 $ 512,oeo $

523,633 552,486

82,407

s1 2,090

31 6,758

316,01 1

82,407

484,727

344,546

316,01 1

82,407

433,563

$ $

Total Revenue Available $ 1,090,456

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2022-23 Projects
Project Amount

Expended

$ 1,064,576 $ 911,25s $ 883,145 $ 1,176,s27

$ 2,881
2,395

893
8,160

745
795

46,940

4,660

$ 67,468

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$

4 660
$ 67,468 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ z,aat
2,395

893
8,'160

745
795

46,940

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

lOOo/o

101o/o

100%
100%
100Yo

100Yo

1000/

100%

FY 2021-22 Proiects
Storm Drain Ponds
Willow Creek Estates Storm Drain Lining
Flood Plain Mapping
NPDES
Weather Station
Glenn Drive Storm Drain Outfall Failure

Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 12,195
1 1,803
3,305
1,070

30,228
48,440

228,141

$ 12,195
11,803
3,305
1,070

30,228
48,440

228,141

Expenditures
$-

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

2,370
94,471

lOOo/o

lOOo/o

100%
100%
1O0o/o

1O0o/o

100%

100%

FY 2020-21 Proiects

939

$ sqqizt

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

939
344,121 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ at,ztt
7,307
3,654
5,616

32,1 96
1,160

1 15,543

3,015

Storm Drain Ponds
Willow Creek Estates Storm Drain Lining
Flood Plain Mapping
NPDES
Weather Station
Annual NPDES Water Quality
Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 67,237
7,307
3,654
5,616

34,566
95,631

115,543

3,015

100%
100o/o

100%
100%

93o/o

1o/o

1O0o/o

lOOo/.

$

2

1

$ 332,569 $ 235,728 $ 96,841

Page 25

Page 564

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by'

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

ExpendituresFY 2019-20 Proiects
Storm Drain Ponds
Willow Creek Estates Storm Drain Lining
Bidwell @ Bluestone Storm Drain Repair
NPDES
Weather Station
Misc Expense
Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2018-19 Proiects
Storm Drain Ponds
Willow Creek Estates Storm Drain Lining

Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 29,376
736,1 06

71,100
29,093

5,493
1,026

186,722
3.240

$ 1,062,155

Project Amount
Expended

$ 11,827
229,471
71,100
29,093

5,493
1,026

186,722

3,240

$ 17,549
506,635

400h
31%

100%
10OYo

100Yo

100%

100%

100"/o

$ 330,596
10,185

156,862
3 187

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
ao/1to

100%

100Yo

10004

$ 537,971 $ 524,184

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
Expenditures Expenditures

$ 7,163 $ 323,432
10,185

156,862
3 187

177,398 $ 323,432500,830

Notes:
1 lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

2 lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing Engineering support

Page 26

Page 565

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2023
Light Rail lmpact Fee

Fund 451

Section 1 0.50.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Liqht Rail Transportation Service Fee. The
purpose of this fee is to implement the City General Plan, Urban Development Policy No. 17.20, which requires that the City develop a

long range service system to service Folsom residents and businesses. As required by the General Plan, a long range transit plan has
been developed entitled "City of Folsom Light Rail Transit lmplementation Study, Final Report, dated February 1993" (hereafter the
"transit study''), and includes an analysis of the feasibility and financing of: (1 ) Continued city-operated intra-community bus service; (2)

Continued city-operated commuter bus service to downtown Sacramento and/or service to the nearest RT Metro Rail Station; and (3)

Extending RT Metro service to Folsom and the preservation of future rights-of-way'

The fee established by chapter 10.50.010 is in addition to any other fees or charges or taxes, required by law or city code as a condition
of development, including, but not limited to, the residential construction tax levied by Chapter 17.90, drainage fees levied by Chapter
17.95, major road fees levied by Chapter 12.04, capilal improvement new construction fees levied by Chapter 17.92and is necessary in

order to assure compliance with the applicable general plan requirements that new development bear the cost for light rail transportation
service infrastructure which is needed to serve such development.

LIGHT RAIL IMPACT FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Gategory Basis Fee Amount-$--66
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial Development
lndustrial Development

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

$

$
$

$

527
527

0.243
0.'101

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

Description

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2018/19 FY 2019t20 FY 2020t21

$ $ 250,624 $

FY 2021122 FY 2022t23

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

270,286
19.781 21 800

46,722
12,872

$ 121 ,969
8,772

$ 147,974
28,554

$ 290,067 $ 272,425 $ 59,594 $ 130,740 $ 176,528

$ 1,321 $ 65,010$$ 143,966
't0,745

$ 154,712

67,804
3,658

$ 127,315
78,176

$ 71,462

$ 200,963

$ 895,260

$ 205,491 $

$ (145,8e7) $

8,605

122,135

950,326

120,852
$ 185,862

$ (e,333)

$ 1,072,462

$ 135,355

$ 759,905

7 284

$ 1, 096.223 $

$ 895,260 $ 1,096,223 $ 950,326 $ 1,072,462 $ 1,063 .128

$ 895,260 $ 1,096,223 $ 950,326 $ t $ 1 ,063,1 28

Page 27

Page 566

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Light Rail lmpact Fee

Five Yqar Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
Available Revenue CurrentYear $ 290,067 $ 272'425 $ 59'594

Availabte Revenue Prior FiscalYear (2-yr Old Funds) 452,203 290,067 272,425

Available Revenue Prior FiscalYear (3-yr Old Funds) 149,447 452,203 290,067

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds) 3,543 81,528 328'240

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (5-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater lhan Five Prior Fiscal Years

$ 13,740

59,594

272,425

290,067

436,636

176,528

13,740

59,594

272,425

290,067

250,774

$

Tolal Revenue Available $ 895,260 $ 1,096,223 $ 950,326 $ 1,072,462 $ 1'063'128

Notes:
The Light Rail Transportation Service Fee Fund reports funds being held beyond the five-years as described by ABI 600. Per the 2024 Capilal lmprovement Plan funds are

reserved for the Light Rail Project. The Light Rail Transportation Service Fee Fund will be utilized for $ 100,000 for this project annually.

Gapital lmprovement Projects

FY 2022-23 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
65,010

120,852

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Light Rail Project
Administrative and Engineering Overhead

FY 202'l-22 Proiects
Light Rail Project
Administrative and Engineering Overhead

FY 2020-21 Projects
Safety Bumps
Light Rail Project
Historic Folsom Station L&L

Administrative and Engineering Overhead

FY 2019-20 Proiects
SP-JPA Admin
Landscaping
Administrative and Engineering Overhead

FY 2018-19 Projects
SP-JPA Admin
Landscaping
Historic District Parking Signs
Concrete repairs in Historic District Plaza

Administrative and Engineering Overhead

65,010
120,852

$ 185,862

100%
100%

$ 185,862 $

Project
Amount

Expended
1,321

7,284
$ 8,605

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
1,321

7,284

Non-lmpact

Expenditures
Fee

10004

100%
$ 8,605 $

$

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 15,538

88,827
22,950
78,176

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$15,538

88,827
71j22
78,176

100%
100o/o

32%
100%

$ 253,663

48,172

$ 205,491 $ 48,172

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 3o,ooo

37,804
3,658

$ 71,462 $ 53,406

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$

53,406

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 27,500

38,908
30,930
46,628

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$

54,965

10 745
$ 154,712 $ 54,965

$ 30,000
91,209

3,658
$ 124,867

IOOY'
41%

1000h

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 27,500
93,873
30,930
46,628
10,745

100%
41o/o

109o/o

100%

lOOlo

$ 209,677

Notes:
I 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse ihe General Fund for providing General Government and Engineering support

Page 28

Page 567

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Gity of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2023
General Park Equipment Gapital

Fund 452

Section4.lO.0l0oftheFolsomMunicipal CodeestablishestheprovisionforcollectionofaParklmprovementimpactfee. Thefeeestablishedby
this chapter is in addition to any other fees or charges, or taxes, required by law or city code as a condition of development, including, but not limited

to, the residential construction iax levied by Chapter 17.90, capital improvement-new construction service charge levied by Chapter 17-92' drainage

fees levied by Chapter 17.95, Quimby Aci fees levied by Chapter 16.32 and major road fees levied by Chapter 12.04. The fee established by this

chapter is to be collected for park and recreation facilities for which an account shall be established and funds appropriated, and for which a

proposed construction schedule shall be adopted. The fee imposed by this chapter is necessary in order to assure compliance with the applicable

ieneral plan requirements that new development bear the cost for park and recreation infrastructure which is needed to serve such development.

GENERAL PARK EOUIPMENT CAPITAL FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Gategory Basis Fee Amount
Residential
Single Family
Single Family - HD
Multi-Family - LD
Multi-Family
Multi-Family - HD
Mobile Dwellings
Non-Residential
Commercial Development
lndustrial Development

Statemenf ofRevenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Description FY 2018/19 FY 2019120 FY 202012',1 FY 2021t22 FY 2022123

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

99
99
99
99
99
47

$

$
Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

0.019
0.019

Revenues
Fees
lnterest

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

General Park Equipment

$ 80,e35 $ $ 3,646 $

$ $ $ $73,302
2,458

70,988
2,498

83,624
2,344

112,358
2,768

127,996
10,020

$

$ 75,760 $ 73,486 $ 85,969 $ 115,126 $ 138,016

9,',121

149 137
12,336

219
$ 73,559

414
$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

80,935

(5,1 75)

91 .879

$ 9,270

$ 64,216

$ 86,704

3,783

82,186

150,91 I

12,555

102,571

233,105

73,973

64,043

335,676

$ 86.704 $ 150,919 $ 233,105 335.676 $ 399,720$

$ 86,704 $ 150,919

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
$ 73,302 $ 73,486 $ 85,96913'+02 '?:l?3 ll:i33

$ 233,105 $ 335,676 $ 399.720

s 115,126

85,969

73,486

61,09s

138,016

1',t5,126

85,969

60,609

$Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (S-yrs Old Funds)

Available Revenue Grealer than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available $ 86,704 $ 150,919 g 23A,.105 $ 335,676 $ 399,720

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Page 29

Page 568

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2022-23 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

100%

100%

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Park Maintenance Equipment (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 73,559

414
$ 73,973

$ 73,559
414-$- ?3873

$

$

FY 2021-22 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

100%
lOOo/o

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Park Maintenance Equipment (interfund iransfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2020-21 Proiects
Park Maintenance Equipment (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 12,336

219
$ 12,555

$ 12,336
215-$- 12s55

$

$

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 3,646
137

$ 3,783

Project Amount

100o/o

10Oo/"

$ 3,646
137-$- x?83

$

FY 2019-20 Proiects

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 9,121

149

Non-lmpact
Fee

$

Expenditures

$Park Maintenance Equipment (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2018-19 Proiects

$ 9,121
149

100%

1001o

$ 9,270 g e,270 $

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Park Maintenance Equipment (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 80,935

$ 80,935

Notes:
1 lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

2 lnterfund transfers are used lo reimburse the General Fund where the equipment costs were expensed.

100%
jYo

$ 80,935 $
2

1

$ 80,935 $

Page 30

Page 569

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Gity of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gompliance 2O23
Water lmpact Fund

Fund 456

Section 13.30.0.t0 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Water lmpact Fee. On October 31, '1988, the Folsom

City Council approved and adopted its General Plan (the "General Plan") identifying proposed groMh within the city limits and further identifying

the impacts of such growth upon public facilities within the city including the impacts on water supply and the water supply system' The City of

Folsom water mastei plan daied becember 1998 (Water Plan) was adopted by the City Council on May 25, 1999 by Resolution No. 6028. The

water plan analyzed the City's present and projected water supply and facilities demands, and the costs of water conservation efforts within

developed areas of the City.

Section 13.30.030 established a water impact fee which is imposed on the construction of all new commercial, industrial and residential buildings

that are to be served with water supplies owned and treated by the City. This fee shall be imposed on all new construction within the City, unless

such property is otherwise exempt'as provided for in Section 13.30.070 of this chapter. The fee established by this chapter is in addition to any

other fees or charges or taxes that are required by law or City code as a condition of development. (Ord. 912 S 1 (part), 1 999).

Use Category

WATER IMPACT FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Commercial
lndustrial / Office

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Acre
Per Acre

1,042
561

1,403
1,403

$
$
$
$

Stafement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2018/19 FY 2019120 FY 202012'l

$ $ 272,941
34,955

$

FY 2021122 FY 2022123Description

Revenues
Fees
lnterest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

Other Expenses

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

330,840
94,239

67,733
26,224

$ 127,61 I
24,747
36,746

137,511
68,913
35,357

$

454 001

$ 425,079 $ 307,896 F 547,s59 g 189,112 $ 241,781

$ 175,872
103,503

$ 158,1 98
104,226

$ 184,902 $ 321 ,886 $ 31 1 ,851
47 139 8 902 840

$ 279,375

$ 145,704

$

$ 262,424

$ 45,472

$ 2,411,974

232,041

315,918

330,788 $ 320,691

$ (78,s10)

$

$

$ 2,457 ,446

$ (141,676)

$ 2.773.364 $ 2,631 ,688

$ 2,411,s74 $ 2,457,446 $ 2,773,364 $2,631.688 $ 2,552,778

$ 2,411,974 $ 2,457.446 $ 2,773,364 $2,631.688 $ 2,552,778

Page 31

Page 570

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Water lmpact Fund

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yrs Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater lhan Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

FY 2022-23 Proiects
GSWC lnter-Tie Booster
Water Delivery Reliability StudY
Recycled Water
Dry Year and Water Conservation (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

Five Year Revenue Test Using Flrst ln First Out Method
$ 330,840 $ 307,896 $

519,340 425,079

216,364 519,340

128,766 216,364

288,035 128,766

928,629 860,001

547,959

307,896

425,O75

519,340

216,364

756,726

189,112

547,959

307,896

425,079

51 9,340

642,302

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
Expenditures Expenditures

$ 14,447 $
39,675
49,965

207,763
8 840

320,691 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

$ 241,781

118,112

547,959

307,896

425,079

91 1,951

$ 2,552,778

$

$ 2,411,974 $ 2,457,446 $ 2,773,364 $ 2,63',1,688

Notes:
The Water lmpact Fee Fund reports funds being held beyond the flve-years as described by AB1600. Pet Ihe 2024 Capital lmprovement Plan funds are reserved for the Empire Ranch

reduce water use ($300,000).

Capital lmprovement Projects
Project
Amount

Expended

$ 14,447
39,675
49,965

207,763
8,840

$ 320,691

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
10oo/o

100%
100%
100%
100o/o

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact FeesFY 2021-22 Proiects
Empire Ranch non-Potable Water Well
Water Delivery Reliability StudY

Recycled Water
Dry Year and Water Conservation (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 31,946
58,761
44,729

186,449
8,902

$ 330,788

100o/o

100%
100%
lOOo/o

100%

$ 31,946
58,761
44,729

186,449

8,902

Expenditures
$-

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 330,788 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

ExpendituresFY 2020-2'l Proiects
GSWC lnter-Tie Booster
Regional Water Authority
Recycled Water
Dry Year and Water Conservation (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 142,506
17,500
24,896
40,653

6,486

$ 232,041

100%
100o/o

100%
100v.
100%

142,506
17,500
24,896
40,653

6,486

$$

2

1

$ 232,041 $

FY 20'19-20 Projects
GSWC lnter-Tie Booster
Dry Year and Water Conservation (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$ 8,456$ 166,654

100,000

4,226

9SYo

100%
100%

$ 158,198

100,000

4,226
$ 262,424$ 270,880 $ 8,456

Page 32

Page 571

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



FY 2018-19 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 167,416

'100,000

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$ 40,725GSWC lnter-Tie Booster

Dry Year and Water Conservation (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 208,'141

100,000

80%

100vo

lOOo/o

2

3 503

$ 311,644
3,503

$ 270,919 $ 40,725

Notes:
1 lnlerfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support'
2 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the Water Operating Fund. The Water Operating Fund captured the expenses for water consewation.

Page 33

Page 572

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2023
Water Gonnection Fund

Fund 521

Section 13.24.060 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Water Connection Fee. Water connection charge was

established to provide for the connection of water pipes to the city water system. (Ord 427, 1981)

WATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
South Lexington Hills 

(1)

Mobile Dwellings

Commercial/lndustrial
3/4" meter
1" meter
1 112" meler
2" meter
3" meter
4" meter
6" meter
S" meter
10" meter

Basis
Per Unit
Per Unit

Per Unit
Per Unit

$ 431,405
175,569

Fee Amount-s--355i
$ 2,312

$ 2,203
$ 2,312

3,548
8,847

17,699
28,324
56,663
88,566

177196
283,608
408,050

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Descriotion

Sfatemenf of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20 FY 2020121

$

FY 202',122 FY 2022123

Revenues
Fees
lnteresi

Other Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

$ 892,951
't88,406

$ 1,08'1,356

201,146 $
(3,153)

363,450 $
(91,637)

467

216,389
181,471

3,819

$ 606,974 $ 197,993 $ 272,281 $ 401,679

s 88,325
9,200

$ 487,545
10,792

$ 1,499,707 $ 1,222,500
969 16 393

1,509,676 $

$ 562,554
26,899I

$ 97,525

$ 983,832

$ 4,509,478

$ 498,337

$ 108,636

$ 5,493,310

$ (1,311,683) $

1,238,893

(e66,613)

4,290,264

$ 589,453

$ (187,775)

$ 5,601 ,946 $ $s,323,651

$ 310 $5,601,946 $ 4,290,264 $ 1 $ 3,135,877

$ 5,493,310 $ 5,601,946 $ 4,290,264 $s,323.651 $ 3,135,877

Page 34

Page 573

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Water Gonnection Capital lmprovement Fund

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yrs Old Funds)

Available Revenue creater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

Five Year Revenue Test Uslng First ln Flrst Out Method
g 1,081,356 $ 606,974 $ 1e7,993

1,414,462 1,081,356 606,974

747,906 1,414,462 1,081,356

670,253 747,906 1 ,414,462

1,017,329 670,253 747,906

$ 272,281

1 97,993

606,974

1 ,081,356

1,1 65,047

401,679

272,281

1 97,993

606,974

1,081,356

575,594

$

562,004 241,573

$ 5,493,310 $ 5,601,946 $ 4,290,264 $ 3,323,651 $ 3,135,877

Notes:
TheWaterConnectionFeeFundreporisfundsbeingheldbeyondthelive-yearsasdescribedbyABl600. Perlhe2024Capital lmprovementPlanfundsarereservedfortheWaterPre-

Treatment sytem lmprovement project. The water connection Fee Fund will be utilitized for an additional $3 3million for this project'

Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2022-23 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 433,348

129,206

26,899

$ 589,453

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Water Treatment Plant Backwash & Recycle Water

Water Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System lmp

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 1,245,535
130,274

35%
990k

100%

$ 812,187
1,068

813,255

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

26 899

$ 1,402,708

FY 2021-22 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Water Treatment Plant Backwash & Recycle Water

Water Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System lmp

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2O20-2'l Proiects

$ 71,362
1,219,911

16,393

40k

100%

1000h

$ 2,589
1,219,911

16,393

$ 1,238,893

$ 68,773

$ 1,307,666

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
23%
97%

100%

$ 109,390
1,517 ,623

9,969

$ 68,773

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$ 25,314

1,474,393

9,969

$

$ 1,509,676 $ 127,307

84,076
43,231

Water Treatment Plant Polymer Reliability & Redundancy

Water Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System lmp

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2019-20 Proiects

$ 1,636,983

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
23o/o

91o/o

100%

Water Treatment Plant Polymer Reliability & Redundancy

Water Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System lmp

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2018-19 Projects
Water Treatment Plant Polymer Reliability & Redundancy

Water Treatment Plant Lime System Upgrades

Water Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System lmp

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 553,307
395,342

10,792

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 126,509

361,036

10,792

$ 498,337 $ 461,103

$ 426,798
34,306

$ 959,441

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 43,849
25,820
78,743

9,200

47o/o

33%
75o/o

100o/o

$ $20,747
8,568

59,010

9,200

23,102
't7,252

19,732

$ 157,612

Notes:
1 lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support

$ 97,525 $ 60,087

Page 35

Page 574

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Complian ce 2023
Sewer Capital

Fund 531

Section 13.2b.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a sewer connection charge. This charge shall be

collected prior to the issuance of building permits for commercial/industrial development and dwelling units as established by resolution of
the city council. The purpose of the fee G io establish a fund for financing equipment and capital improvement projects required to maintain

municipal services at adequate levels as service requirements increase with the construction of commercial/industrial developments and

dwelling units.

SEWER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FEE SCHEDULE

UseCategry
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential

South Lexington Hills 
(1)

Mobile Dwellings

Gommercial/lndustrial
3/4" inch
1" inch
1 112" inch
2" inch
3" inch
4" inch
6" inch
8" inch
10" inch

Basis Fee Amount
Per Unit
Per Unit

Per Unit
Per Unit

1,135
888

884
1,004

$
$

$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,135
1 ,'t35
2,274
3,638
6,821

11,369
22,738
36,380
52,295

Description

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2018/'t9 FY 2019/20 FY 2020121

$ $ 39,835
13,343

FY 2021122 FY 2022123

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

$ 129,796 $ 72,487 $ 53,178 $ oe,zas

$ 114,800
14,996

56,832
15,655

$ 58,694
10,092

$ 219,485
24,614

$ 244,099

$$
327 002 949 1 160

99,673
2,471

$ $ 7e,e82 $

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

327

129,469

226.675

1,002

71,485

356,144

949

52,229

427,628

$ atjqz

$ (12,357)

$ 479,857

$ 467,500

102,144

141,955

467,500

$ 356.144 $ 427,628 $ 479,857 $ 609,455

$ 47e,857 $ 467,500 $ 6!91!5$ 356.144 $ 427,628

Page 36

Page 575

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Sewer Capital

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
Available Revenue CurrentYear $ 129,796 $ 72,487 $ 53'178

Available Revenue Prior FiscalYear (2-yr Old Funds) 226,348 129,796 72'487

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr old Funds) - 225,345 129,796

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds) 224'396

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (S-yrs and beyond)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

$ 68,785

53,1 78

72,487

1 29,796

143,254

244,099

68,785

53,1 78

72,487

129,796

41,110

$

$ 356,144 $ 427,628 $ 479,857 $ 467,500 $ 60e,455

Notes

The Sewer connection charge Fund reports funds being held beyond the five-years as described by AB1600. Per the 2024 Capital lmprovement Plan funds are reserved for

theSewerEvaluation&CapacityAssuranceplan(SECAP)project. TheSewerConnectionChargeFundwillbeutililizedforanadditional$4l5,000forthisproject.

Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2022-23 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ z,+tt
99,673

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$
447,981

$ toz,t++ $ ++z,sat

Engineering and Gen Government overhead
Sewer Evaluation & CapacitY Plan

$ 2,471
547,654

100%
18%

FY 202'l-22 Proiects

$ 550,125

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Engineering and Gen Government overhead
Sewer Evaluation & Capacity Plan

$ 1,160
92,062

lOOo/o

87Vo

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ I ,160

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$
79 982 '12 080

$ et,1qz $ 12,080

FY 2020-21 Proiects

$ 93,222

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ g+s

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$Engineering and Gen Government overhead $ 949 100%

FY 2019-20 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Engineering and Gen Government overhead $ 1'002 10oYo $ 1,002 $

FY 2018-19 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$Engineering and Gen Government overhead $ SZZ 100% $ szt

Notes:
I 

lnierfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government and Engineering support.

Page 37

Page 576

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2023
Facilities Augmentation Critical

Fund 536

Section 3.40.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a facilities augmentation fee for the Folsom

south area faciliges plan. The fee is iniended to augment existing City fees and thereby provide the necessary means for financing the

construction of the facilities identified in the Folsom south area facilities plan.

FACILITIES AUGMENTATION CRITICAL FEE SCHEDULE

This fee is based on location and lot size. For fees related to developmenl of property in this area please contact the City

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Description FY 20'18/19 FY 2019120 FY 2020121 FY2021122 FY2022123

Revenues
Fees
lnterest

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

Facilities Augmentation Gritical

Total Revenue Available

$ $ $ $

320 $ 691 $438$

$
438in,320

$$$

$ 40,571

355 1,052
$ t,osz

$
54

$ 355

$ 2,629
590-S- 

3P1e

$ (2,8ee)

$ 44,766

$ 41,867

$ 41.867

1,987 144 59

$

$

$

1,987 $

(1,2e6) $

144

294

40,571

59

296

40,864

$sa
$ gsa

$ 41,16141 867 $

$

$

$

$ 40,864

$ 40,571 $ 40,864

$ 41,161

$ 41,161

$ 42,159

$ 42,159

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method

Available Revenue CurrentYear $ 320 $ 691 $ 438

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds) 2,306 320 691

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds) 3,616 2,306 320

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds) 3,490 3,616 2'306

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (S-yrs and beyond) 5,718 3,490 3,616

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years 26,417 30,148 33,493

$ ,$355

438

691

320

2,306

37,051

1,052

355

438

691

320

39,303

$ 41,867 $ 40,571 $ 40,864 $ 41,161 $ 42'159

Notes:
1

The Facilities Augmentation Crititcal Fund reports funds being held beyond the five-years as described by AB1600. Per lhe 2024 Capital lmprovement Plan funds are

reservedfortheWaterTreatmentplantLimeSystemUpgradeproject. TheFacilitiesAugmentationcritical Fundwill beutilizedfor$43,159forthisproject.

Page 38

Page 577

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2022-23 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

General Government overhead (interfund transfer) $ 54

$ 54

Project
Amount

Expended

100% $ 54$

$ 54

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$5e

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

$ 5e$

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 144

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

$ 144

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 1,987

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

$ 1,e87 $

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee Fee

Expenditures Expenditures

$ 2,629 $ 23,191

590

$ 3,219 $ 23,191

FY 2021-22 Projects

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

General Govemment overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2020-21 Proiects

$ 59 100o/o

$5e

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

General Government overhead (interfund transfer) $ 144 100%

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 144

FY 2019-20 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

$ 1,987

$ 1,987

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

100% 2
General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2018-19 Proiects
Water Treatment Plant Lime System Upgrades

General Government overhead (interfund hansfer)
$ 25,820

590

10o/o

1O0o/r

$ 26,410

Notes:
2 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

Page 39

Page 578

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2023
Facilities Augmentation General

Fund 537

Section 3.40.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a facilities augmentation fee for the Folsom south

area facilities plan. The fee is intended to augment existing City fees and thereby provide the necessary means for financing the construction

of the facilities identified in the Folsom south area facilities plan.

FACILITIES AUGMENTATION GENERAL FEE SCHEDULE

This fee is based on location and lot size. For fees related to development of property in this area please contact the City.

Statemenf of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Description FY 2018/'19 FY 2015120 FY 2020121 FY 2021122 FY 2022t23

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

Facilities Augmentation General

932
$

5,170
$ s,170

$ $

932 $ SO+

$
747

ffi
2,280

$ 2,280

7 $
857

$

$ 323,432 $ 17,023 $
139 1 112 4 970 426

27,577
118

$ $

$ 324,571

$ (319,402)

$ 18,135

$ (17,203)

$ 110,497

4,970

(4,1 06)

93,294

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$ 89

426

321

188

27,695

(25,415\

89,509$ 42e 898

$ 1 10,497 $ 93,294 $ 89,188 $ 89,50s $ 64,093

$ 110.497 $ e3,294

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
Available Revenue Current Year $ 5,170 $ gSZ $ 864

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds) 5,670 5'170 932

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds) 7,024 5,670 5"170

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds) 6,233 7 '024 5,670

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (S-yrs and beyond) 6,059 6,059 7 
'O24

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years 80,341 68,439 69,528

Total Revenue Available 93,294 $ 89,188 $

$ 89,188 $ 89,509 $ 64,0e3

$ 747

864

932

5,170

5,670

76j26

2,280

747

864

932

5,170

54,1 00

$

$ 1 10,497 $ 89,509 $ 64,093

Notes:
1 The Facilities Augmentation General Fund reports funds being held beyond the five-years as described by A81600. The Storm Drain Ponds project is in process. Pet Ihe 2024

Capital lmprovement Plan $106,505 offunds are reserved forthe Storm Drain Ponds project.

Page 40

Page 579

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2022-23 Projects
lron Point Median
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 512,337
't 18

SYo

1O0o/.

$ 27,577

118

$ 484,760

$ 27,695 $ 484,760$ 512,455

FY 2021-22 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 426

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

Fees
2

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer) $ 426

$ 426

100o/o

$ 426 $

FY 2O2O-21 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer) $ 4,970

$ 4,970

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

100Yo $ 4,970 $

$ 4,970 $

FY 2O19-2O Proiects
Storm Drain Ponds

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 17,02s

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$ 12,353$ 29,376

1,112

$ 30,488

58o/o

100%
2

FY 2018-19 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

112

$ 18,135 $ 12,353

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 323,432

139

$ 324,571 $ 7,164

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Storm Drain Ponds

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)
$ 330,596

139

98%

100Yo

$ 7,164

$ 331,735

Notes:
2 

lnlerfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Governmenl support.

Page 41

Page 580

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Gity of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2023
Solid Waste Capital lmprovement Fund

Fund 541

Section 3.20.045 of the Folsom Municipal Code established a capital improvement service charge which shall be collected prior to the issuance

of building permits for all residential development and upon application to the finance department for all commercialiindustrial development as

established by resolution of the City Council. The purpose of the fee is to establish a fund for financing equipment and capital improvement

purchases required to maintain municipal services at adequate levels as service requirements increase with the construction of
commercial/industrial developments and dwelling units.

SOLID WASTE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Mobile Dwellings

Commercial/lndustrial
2 yard dumpster
3 yard dumpster
4 yard dumpster
6 yard dumpster
15 yard roll-off
20 yard roll-off
30 yard roll-off
40 yard roll-off

FY 2018/19

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

$
$
$

384
176
176

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

4,301
4,330
4,390
4,570

14,078
14,456
15,038
15,364

Description

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2019/,20 FY

$ $

FY 2020121 FY 2021122

$ 74,494 $ $
Revenues

Fees
lnterest

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

122,216
6,813

52,732
8,435

96,1 08
783

107,807
6,5937493

$ 129,029 g 61,167 $ 78,243 $ 96,8e1 $ 114,400

$ 18,250 $ $ 13,366$ $
7272

25,010
392

27j28
345,234

't4,365

1,416 907

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

20,977

108,052

241

25,402

35,765

349,830

372,362

(294,11s)

385.595

15,781

81 ,1 10

91,476

14,273

100,127

172,586

$ 349,830 $ 385,595 $ 91.476 $ 172,586 $ 272,712

$ 349,830 $ 385,s95 $ 91.476 $ 172,586 $ 272.712

Page 42

Page 581

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Solid Waste Gapital lmprovement Fund

Avairabre Revenue currenr year 
Five Year 

T*""".]fft 
using First 

':.,:tft 
otlt 

""tno9r,ro,
Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yf Old Funds) 220,801 129,029 13,233

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds) - 195'399

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (S-yrs and beyond)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available $ 349,830

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects
Project
Amount lmpact Fee

ExpendituresFY 2022-23 Projects Expended
$ 13,366

$s 96,89 1

75,695

114,400

96,89'1

61,421

$ 385,595 $ 91,476 $ '172,586 $ 272,712

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
100%
100%

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Garbage Containers

General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2021-22 Proiects
Gatbage Containers

General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2020-21 Proiects

907

$ 14,273

Project' 
Amount

Expended

$ 14,365

1,416
$ 15,781

Project
Amount

Expended

$ 13,366

907-g Mzn

$

$

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 14,365

'l,416

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$100%
100%

$ 15,781 $

Garbage Containers

Solid Waste Capital Equipment (interfund transfer)

General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 27,128
344,127

'l,'lo7

100%

100%

100%

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 27,128

344,127

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$

107

FY 2019-20 Projects

$ 372,362

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
100v.

1Olo/a

$ 372,362 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 25,010

392

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$-Garbage Containers

General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2018-19 Projects
Garbage Containers
General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 25,0 10

392
$ 25,402 $ 25,402 $

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 18,250

2,727

100%

100%
18,250

2,727
$ $

$ 20,977

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse lhe Solid Waste Operating Fund. The Solid Waste Operating Fund
2 

captured the expenses for lhe purchase.

$ 20,977 $

Page 43

Page 582

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2023
Folsom Plan Area Highway 50 lmprovements

Fund 443

Section 3.120.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Highway 50 lmprovement Fee. The purpose

of this fee is to fund certain improvements to Highway 50 that serve the Folsom plan area such as, for example: Highway 50 segments

from Sunrise to Hazel; Hazel to Folsom Boulevard, Folsom Boulevard to Scott Road, and the Hazel interchange modifications, as

described in the pFFp and the nexus study, and including but not limited to those improvements identified in the memorandum of

understanding dated December 17,2014, entered into between the city and caltrans.

Use Cateqory

FOLSOM PLAN AREA HIGHWAY 50 IMPROVEMENT FEE

Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Single Family Residential High Density
Multi-Family Residential Low Density
Multi-Family Residential Medium Density
Multi-Family Residential High Density
Mixed Use - Residential
Mixed User - Commercial
Office Park
General Commercial
Community Commercial
Regional Commercial

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

1,443
1,313
't,182
1,051

985
919
't.77

1.48
2.10
2.10
1.53

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

StatementofRevenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Description FY 2018119 N 2015120 FY 2020121 FY 2021122 FY 2022123

Revenues
Fees

lnterest

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

FPA Highway 50 lmprovements

$ 307,982 $ 699.022

Five Year Revenue Test Uslng First ln First Out Method
$ 391,078

284,700

23,244

$ 1,779,146 _$_q,079f91_ $ 4,712,624

$ $ 1,273,362
24,086

$ 284,700 $ 391,078 $ 1,080,124 $ 1,297,448 $ 1,636,030

313,824 $
(2e,124)

379,114
11,965

$ 1,031,'102
49,022

$ 1,537,486
98,544

$$ $ $ $
38

$-
$ 284,700

$ 23,282

38

391,040

307,982

$

$ 1,080,'124

$ 69e,022

$

$ 1,297,448

$ 1,779,146

$ 1,636,030

$ 3,076,594

$

$

$

$ 307.982 $ 699,022 $ 1, 779.146 $ 3,076,594 $ 4,712,624

284,700

23,282
$ $ 1,O80,124

391,078

284,700

23,244

1,297,448
'1,080,124

39 1,078

284,700

23,244

'I,636,030

't,297,448

1,080,124

391,078

284,700

23,244

$ $Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (S-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

$ 307,982 $ 699,022 $ 1,779,146 $ 3,076,594 $ 4,712'624

Notes:
The Folsom plan Area Highway 50 lmprovement Fee Fund reports funds being held beyond the five-years as described by AB1600. The Folsom Plan Area Highway 50

lmprovement Fee is intended to provide the City of Folsom's share of a future Caltrans project to widen Highway 50. Caltrans has yet to program that prcject.

Page 44

Page 583

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2022-23 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures Expenditures
$$$ iYo

0o/o

0To

$ $ $

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
Expenditures Expenditures

$$-
FY 2021-22 Proiects

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 0%
00k
0o/o

$ $$

FY 2O2O-21 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpaci
Fee

Expenditures

$-$

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

10oo/o

Oo/o

00k

jYo

0%
lYo

$

$

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee Fee

Expenditures Expenditures

$38$

$$

FY 2019-20 Proiects
General Government overhead (interfund transfer) $

$

38

38 $ 38$

FY 2018-19 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$$ lYo

0%
0%

$

$ $ $

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used lo reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support

Page 45

Page 584

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2023
Folsom Plan Area Highway 50 lnterchange Fee

Fund 444

Section3.l20.040oftheFolsomMunicipal CodeestablishestheprovisionforcollectionofaHighway50 lnterchangeFee. Thepurposeof
this fee is to fund a fair share contribution toward certain Highway 50 interchanges thai serve the Folsom plan area, such as, for example,

the Empire Ranch Road interchange, the Oak Avenue parkway interchange, the ScotVBidwell interchange modifications, the Prairie City

Road interchange modifications, and the Rowberry Drive Overcrossing, as described in the PFFP and the nexus study.

FOLSOM PLAN AREA HIGHWAY 50 INTERCHANGE FEE

Basis Fee Amount
2,937
2,670
2,402
2,134
2,003
1,870
3,60
3.03
4.24
4.24
3.1 '1

SfafementofRevenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

DescriDtion FY2018/19 FY 20',19120 FY 2020121 FY 2021122 FY 2022123

Single Family Residential High Density
Multi-Family Residential Low Density
Multi-Family Residential Medium Density
Multi-Family Residential High Density
Mixed Use - Residential
Mixed User - Commercial
Office Park
General Commercial
Community Commercial
Regional Commercial

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

Revenues
Fees
lnterest

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

$ 640,268 $
(12,566)

768,668
25,483

$ 2,096,084
74,372

2,589,411 $
(150,415)

2,989,948
87,481

$

$ 627,702 $ 794,151 $ 2,170,456 $ 2,438,996 $ 3,077,429

$
77

$$ $$

$

$ 627,702

$ 47,338

77

794,074

675,O41

2,170,456

1,469,115

2,438,996

3,639,571

$-

$ 3,077,429

$ 6,078,567

$ e,1s5,996

$ $

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$ 675,041 $ 1,46e,115 $ 71 $ 6,078,567

$ 675.041 $ 1,469,1 15 $ $ 6,078,567 $ 9,155,996

Page 46

Page 585

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



FPA Highway 50 lnterchange

Flve Year Revenue Test Using Flrst ln Flrst Out Method
Available Revenue Current Year $ 627,703 $ 794'151 $ 2,170'456

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds) 47,338 627 '703 794'151

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds) - 47'261 627'703

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds) 47,261

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (5-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

c$ 2,438,996

2,170,456

794,151

627,703

47,261

3,077,429

2,438,996

2,170,456

794,151

627,703

47,26'l

Total Revenue Available

FY 2022-23 Proiects

$ 675,041 $ 1,469,11s $ 3,639,571 $ 6,078,s67 $ 9,155,996

Notes:
TheFolsomplanAreaHighway50lnterchangeFeeFundreportsfundsbeingheldbeyondthefive-yearsasdescribedbyABl600. TheFolsomPlanAreaHighway50lnlerchange

(TBD), USsO/Rowberry Drive Crossing (TBD), ahd USs0/Oak Avenue Parkway lnterchange.

Gapital lmprovement Projects
Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
Non-lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ lYo
Oo/o

Oo/o

$ $

$ $

FY 2021-22 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
Non-lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$

$tt

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
Non-lmpact Fee

Expenditures

ooh

OYo

0%

$ $

$

FY 2020-21 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

$

FY 2019-20 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

General Government overhead (interfund transfer) $ 77

$ $

o%
OYo

Oo/o

$ $

$$ $

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
Non-lmpact Fee

Expenditures

1 jOYo

oo

Olo

$ 77$

$ 77 $

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
Non-lmpact Fee

ExpendituresFY 2018-19 Proiects
$

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

OYo

o%
lYo

$ $

$$ $

Page 47

Page 586

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2023
Folsom Plan fuea Transit lmpact

Fund 449

Section 3.120.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Transit Fee. The purpose of this fee is to

fund public transit improvements in the Folsom plan area, including, but not limited to, improvements to the transit corridor, transit parking,

transit stops, and a share of the public transit vehicles, as described in the PFFP and the nexus study.

FOLSOM PLAN AREA TRANSIT FEE

Use Category
Single Family Residential
Single Family Residential High Density
Multi-Family Residential Low Density
Multi-Family Residential Medium Density
Multi-Family Residential High Density
Mixed Use - Residential
Mixed User - Commercial
Office Park
General Commercial
Community Commercial
Regional Commercial

Basis
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

Fee Amount
TtZe1

1,356
1,220
1,085
1 ,016

950
1.82
1.53
2.16
2.16
1.58

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

StatementofRevenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2018/19 FY 2019120 FY 2020121 FY 202'1122Description

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

Available Fund Balance

FPA Transit Impact

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yr old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

FY 2022123

$ 325,208
5,680

$ 389,982
13,222

$ 1,064,446
15,331

$ 1,315,011
24,842

$ 1,523,953
(46,364)

$ 330,888 $ 403,204 $ 1,079,777 $ 1,339,853 $ 1,477,589

$$ $ $ $
39

$

$

$

330,888

24.O39

$3e
$ 403,165

$ 354,927

$

$ 1,079,777

$ 758,092

$-
$ 1,339,853

$ 1,837,869

$ 1,477,589

$ 3,177,722

$ 354,927 $ 758,092 $ 1,837,869 $ S, 177.722 $ 4,655,3'1'1

$ 354,927 $ 758,092 $ 1,837,869 $ 3,177,722 $ 4,655,311

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
$ 330,888 $ 403,204 $

24,039 330,888

- 24,039

1,O79,777

403,204

330,888

24,000

1,339,853

1,079,777

403,204

330,888

24,O00

't,477 ,589

1,339,853

1,079,777

330,888

24,039

403,1 65

$$

$ 354,927 $ 758,',131 $ 1,837,869 $ 3,177,722 $ 4,655,311

Notes:
TheFolsomPlanAreaTransitFeeFundreportsfundsbeingheldbeyondthelive-yearsasdescribedbyABl600. TheTransitFeeisintendedtofundimplementationofthe

Folsom Plan Area Transii Master Plan. This project cannot be imptemented at this time as the plan area roadways have not been fully constructed yet

Page 48

Page 587

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2022-23 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures Expenditures
$$$ 0o/o

OTo

Oo/o

$

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$

FY 2021-22 Proiects
0%
0%
Olo

0%
o%
0lo

$

$

$

Project
Amount

Expended

$

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$-

$

FY 2020-21 Proiects
$

FY 20{9-20 Proiects

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ $

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee Fee

Expenditures Expenditures

$3s$

$ 3e$

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
Expenditures Expenditures

$$-

General Government overhead (interfund transfer) $ 39

$ 39

Project
Amount

Expended

10oo/o

0%
0o/o

Percent
Funded by

lmpact FeesFY 201 8-1 I Proiects
$

Notes:
I 

lnterfund lransfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

0To

0o/o

OYo

$ $ $

Page 49

Page 588

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Complian ce 2023
Folsom Plan Area Corporation Yard

Fund 459

Section 3..120.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Corporation Yard Fee. The purpose of this fee is

to fund the cost of land for the corporation yard, and the fair share of the cost of facilities and construction of the city's new corporation yard

necessary to accommodate future growth in ihe city and the Folsom plan area, as described in the PFFP and the nexus study.

FOLSOM PLAN AREA CORPORATION YARD FEE

Basis Fee AmountUse Category
Single Family Residential
Single Family Residential High Density
Multi-Family Residential Low Density
Multi-Family Residential Medium Density
Multi-Family Residential High Density
Mixed Use - Residential
Mixed User - Commercial
Office Park
General Commercial
Community Commercial
Regional Commercial

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

1,413
857
515
247
186
231

0.53
0.36
0.42
0.47
0.38

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

$
$
$
$

$

$
$

$

$
$

$

Sfaternent of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Description

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
A8 1600 Expenditures

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

FPA Corporation Yard

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior FiscalYear (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior FiscalYear (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior FiscalYear (s-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

FY 2018/19 FY 20'19120 FY 2020121 FY 2021122 FY 2022123

$ 307,980
5,359

$ 123,134
4 708

$ 310,480
16,512

$ 326,992

$ 661,297
2,760

$ 840,618
6,532

$ 637,e85
37,342

$ 313,339

$ 1,995

127,842 $ 664,057 F B47,iso g 675,327

$ 281,332
588

$ 273,516
195

ffi
$ 573,439

$
688

$

$

$

'1,995

311,344

22.752

$ 281,920

$ 382,137$ (1ee,150)

$ 334,096

$ 688

$ 674,639

$ 134.946 $ 517,083 $ 1,090 .522

$ 334,096 $ 't34.946 $ 517,083 $ 1,090,522

$-

$ 1,765,161

$ $ $ $

$ 334,oeo $ 134,946 $ 517,083 $1 $ 1,765,161

Flve Year Revenue Test Using First ln Flrst Out Method
$ 313,339 $ 127 ,842 $

20,757 7,104

517,083 $ 847 jso
243,372

675,327

847,150

242,684

$

$ 134,946 $ 517,083 $ 1,090,522 $ 1,765'161$ 334,096

Page 50

Page 589

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects
Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee Fee

Expenditures Expenditures

100o/o $ 688 $
$688$

FY 2022-23 Proiects
General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2021-22 Proiects
Purchase Corp Yard Property

General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2020-21 Proiects
Purchase Corp Yard Property

General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2019-20 Proiects
Purchase Corp Yard PropertY

General Government overhead (interfund tlansfer)

$ 688
$ 688

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 273,516

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$$ 273,516

195

$ 273,711

100o/o

lOOo/o

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

195

$ 273,711 $

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee Fee

Expenditures Expenditures
$ 281,332 $

588

$ 281,920

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
Expenditures Expenditures
$ 310,480 $

16,512
$ 326,992 $

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
ExpendituresExpenditures

$ 1,995 $

$ 281,332
588

100%
100%

$ 281,920

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 310,480
16,512

$ 326,992

IOOYo

lOOo/o

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact FeesFY 2018.19 Proiects
Purchase Corp Yard PropertY $ 1,e95

Notes:
1 

lnte.fund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

lOOo/o

Page 51

Page 590

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2023
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Capital

Fund 472

Section 3.'120.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Specific Plan fee. The fee is comprised of 7
subcomponents as follows:
1. The general capital facilities component of the FPASP fee is to fund acquisition of general capital facilities, including, but not limited to:

furniture,iixtures and equipment for city facilities (including fire and police facilities); police and fire vehicles and uniformed personnel turnout gear,

public works vehicles and equipment, library materials, such as books, computers, and other materials; and other general capital needs of the city

in the Folsom plan area, as described in the PFFP and the nexus study.
2. The library component of the FPASP fee is to fund the construction of a branch library in the Folsom plan area, as described in the PFFP and

the nexus study.
3. The municipal services center component of the FPASP fee is to fund the construction of a municipal services center in the Folsom plan area

that allows customers to make utility bill and license payments, register for recreation programs, obtain and file building planning and permit

applications and employment applications, and request code enforcement and other public services, as described in the PFFP and the nexus

study.
4. The police component of the FPASP fee is to fund a police substation to serve the Folsom plan area, which is anticipated to include a public

information counter area, conference rooms, lockers and showers, interview rooms and supervisor offices, as described in the PFFP and the

nexus study.
5. The 1ra component of the FPASP fee is to fund two new fire stations to serve the Folsom plan area, as described in the PFFP and the nexus

study.
O. fne parks component of the FPASP fee is to fund the construction of one hundred twenty-five acres of parkland in the Folsom plan area

comprised of two community parks, five neighborhood parks, and two local parks, as described in the PFFP and the nexus study.

7. The trails component of the FPASP fee is to fund the construction of approximately thirty miles of trails in ihe Folsom plan area, which include

trails, a Class 1 bike path, Class ll bike lanes, intersection protection, trail bridges, under-crossings, and design costs, as described in the PFFP

and the nexus study.

FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN FEE

Use Cateqory Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Single Family Residential High Density
Multi-Family Residential Low Density
Multi-Family Residential Medium Density
Multi-Family Residential High Density
Mixed Use - Residential
Mixed User - Commercial
Office Park
General Commercial
Community Commercial
Regional Commercial

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.

14,783
14,783
10,597
10,597
10,597
10,597

3.25
2.41
2.76
2.99
2.53

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$

Description

SfatemenfofRevenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2018/19 FY 2019120 FY 2020121 FY 202',1122 FY 2022123

Revenues
Fees
lnterest

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

$ 3,053,840
71,735

$ 4,184,s47
234,593

$ 10,215,972
129,911

$ 12,818,590 $
(717,e05)

11,488,461
519,830

$ 3,125,575 $ 4,419,540 $ 10,345,882 $ 12,100,685 $ 12,008,291

$ $ 192,000
366

$ 312,072 $ 766,238 $ 1,785,297
8,46010 842

$-

$ 3,125,575

$ 225,790

$ 192,366

$ 4,227,174

$ 312,072

$ 10,033,81 o

$ 7,578,538

$ 777,080

$ 11,323,606

$ 17,612,348

$ 1,793,757

$ 10,214,534

$ 3,351,364 $ 28,935 ,954

$ 3,351,364 $ 7,578,538 $ 17,612,348 $ 28,935.954 $ 39,150,488

$ 39,150,488$3, 351.364 $ 7,578,538 $ 17,612,348 $ za, 935.954

Page 52

Page 591

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



FPA Specific Plan Capital

Five Year Revenue Test Using FIrst ln Flrst Out Method
Available Revenue Current Year $ 3,125,575 $ 4,419,540

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds) 225,790 3,125,575

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds) - 33,423

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (5-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2022-23 Proiects

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 10,345,882

4,419,540

2,846,926

12,100,685
'10,345,882

4,419,540

2,069,847

12,008,291

12,1 00,685

1 0,345,882

4,415,540

276,090

$$

$ 3,351,365 $ 7,578,538 $ 17,612,348 $ 28,935,954 $ 39,150,488

Project Amount
Expended

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact Fee
Expenditures

FPA Neighborhood Park #3
Fire Station #34
Folsom Plan Area Trails
General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 180,151
1,477 ,627

't27,519

8,460

$ 1,793,757

1000
lOOo/"

100%
100v.

$ 180,'151
1,477 ,627

127,519
8,460

$

FY 2021-22 Proiects
FPA Neighborhood Park #3
Fire Station #34
Folsom Plan Area Trails
Russell Ranch Bike Trail
Folsom Specific Plan Area Capital Transfer
General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

Project Amount
Expended

$ 229,228
117,862

11,647
280,000
127,500

10,842
$ 777,080

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 1,793,757 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact Fee
Expenditures

100%
100%
'lOOYo

100%
100%
lOOo/o

229,228
117,862

11,647
280,000
127,500

'10,842

$ $

FY 2020-2'l Proiects
Project Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 777,080 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact Fee
Expenditures

FPA Neighborhood Park #3
Russell Ranch Bike Trail

FY 2019-20 Proiects
Equipment
General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 32,072
280,000

$ 312,072

Project Amount
Expended

IOOYo

100%

32,072

280,000
$ $

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 312,072 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 192,000

366

$ 192,366

10a%

100%
192,000

366
$ $

FY 2018-19 Projects
Project Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ '192,366 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ olo $

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse lhe General Fund for providing General Government support.
2 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the Public Works Fund. The Public Works Fund captured the expenses for the purchase.

$

Page 53

Page 592

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



City of Folsom
Devef oper lmpact Fee Complian ce 2023
Folsom Plan Area Solid Waste Capital

Fund 544

Section 3.120.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Solid Waste Fee. The purpose of this fee is to
fund solid waste vehicles and waste container purchases required to maintain the level of municipal solid waste service in the Folsom plan

area described in the PFFP and the nexus study.

Use Category

FOLSOM PLAN AREA SOLID WASTE FEE

Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Single Family Residential High Density
Multi-Family Residential Low Density
Multi-Family Residential Medium Density
MultFFamily Residential High Density
Mixed Use - Residential
Mixed User - Commercial
Office Park
General Commercial
Community Commercial
Regional Commercial

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

532
532
353
353
353
353

0.40
0.40
0.40
0.40
0.40

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Sfafement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Description FY 2018/19 FY 2019t20 FY 2020t21 FY 2021t22 FY 2022123

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

FPA Solid Waste Capital

$ 115,876
2,024

$ 158,853
5,067

$ 382,189
5,787

$ 480,558 $ 465,761
28,3847 264

$ 117,900 $ 163,919 $ 387,976 $ 487,822 $ 494,145

$ 34,905 $ 216,006 $ 80,000
99714

$$

$

$

$

$

$

$

117,900

8,559

14

163,905

126,459

$ s4,eo5

$ 353,071

$ 290,365

$ 216,006

$ 271,817

$ 643,436

$ 80,997

$ 413,148

$ e15,252

$ 126.459 $ 290,365 $ 643,436 $ 915,252 $ 1,328,400

$ 126.459 $ 290,365 $ 643,436 $ 915,252 $ 1,328,400

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
$ 1 17,900 $ 163,919 $

8,559 1 17,900

- 8,546

387,976

163,91 I
91,541

4A7,822

387,976

39,454

494,145

487,822

346,433

$$

$ 126,459 $ 290,365 $ 643,436 $ 915,252 $ 1,328,400

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Page 54

Page 593

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2022-23 Projects
Garbage Containers
General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2021-22 Projects
Garbage Containers
Equipment Purchases

FY 2020-21 Proiects
Garbage Containers

FY 2019-20 Projects
General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 8o,ooo

997

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$-$ 80,000 lOOo/"

100%
lYo

997

$ 80,997

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ ao,ssz $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 66,006
150,000

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$
'199,978

$ 66,006
349,978

100%
43o/o

o%

$ 415,984

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

$ 216,006 $ 199,978

$ 34,905

$ 34,905

Project
Amount

Expended

1 O0Yo

0To

0o/o

$ 34,905

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 34,e05 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$la

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$$ 14

$ 14

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

00o/o

0%
Oo/o

$ 14$

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
Expenditures Expenditures
$$

FY 2018-19 Proiects
$

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

0o/o

Oo/o

Oo/o

$ $ $

Page 55

Page 594

12/12/2023 Item No.9.



 

 

Folsom City Council 
Staff Report 

  
 

1 
 

MEETING DATE: 

 

12/12/2023 

AGENDA SECTION: 

 

Consent Calendar 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 11137 – A Resolution Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Causey Consulting for 
Professional Consulting Services for the Preparation of the 
Sewer System Management Plan and Audit for Compliance with 
Statewide Waste Discharge Requirements  
 

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

 

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends that the City Council pass 
and adopt Resolution No. 11137 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an 
Agreement with Causey Consulting for Professional Consulting Services for the Preparation 
of the Sewer System Management Plan and Audit for Compliance with Statewide Waste 
Discharge Requirements. 
 
BACKGROUND / ISSUE 

 
The State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) adopted the Statewide Waste Discharge 
Requirements (WDR) General Order WQ 2022-0103-DWQ (Order) on December 2, 2022.  
The Order became effective on June 5, 2023.  The purpose of this Order is to ensure that 
wastewater collection systems are properly operated and maintained by the municipalities that 
oversee their operations. The Order applies to all public collection system agencies in 
California that own or operate collection systems comprised of more than one mile of pipe or 
sewer lines and convey untreated wastewater to a publicly owned treatment facility. The 
principal elements of the Order include requiring each agency to prepare a Sewer System 
Management Plan (SSMP), which outlines how the municipality operates and maintains the 
collection system and reporting of all Sanitary Sewer Spills (Spills) to the SWRCB’s online 
Spill database (CIWQS), with the ultimate goal of minimizing wastewater spills. 
 

Page 595

12/12/2023 Item No.10.



 2

Through this newly adopted Order, the City shall update and implement the SSMP, updating 
the SSMP every six (6) years. The City last adopted the SSMP in 2019.  The Order also requires 
that the City conduct an internal audit of the SSMP every three (3) years.  The City last updated 
the internal audit in 2021. Through this WDR Order, the City also updated the Spill Emergency 
Response Plan (formerly known as the Sanitary Sewer Overflow Response Plan) in 2023. 
 
The City issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for consulting services to evaluate the City’s 
compliance with the Order and to prepare the City’s 2024 SSMP Internal Audit and the 2025 
SSMP. Environmental and Water Resources (EWR) Department Staff recommends using a 
consultant with the expertise and knowledge to evaluate the City’s compliance with the Order 
and to prepare the City’s 2024 SSMP Internal Audit and the 2025 SSMP.  Because of their 
knowledge and experience with WDR Compliance and SSMP’s, Causey Consulting has the 
qualifications and expertise to analyze the City’s compliance and to prepare the SSMP Internal 
Audit and SSMP.   
 
This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with Causey 
Consulting for professional consulting services for compliance with the WDR Order and the 
preparation of the SSMP and Audit for a not-to-exceed amount of $157,111. 
 
POLICY / RULE 

 
In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code, supplies, equipment, services, 
and construction with a value of $70,952 or greater shall be awarded by City Council. 
 
In accordance with the Statewide Waste Discharge Requirements General Order WQ 2022-
0103-DWQ, the SSMP Internal Audit must be updated every three (3) years and the SSMP 
must be updated every six (6) years.   
 
ANALYSIS 

 
The City issued a RFP to various engineering and consulting firms to complete this work.  
EWR Staff recommend Causey Consulting and consider them experienced and qualified to 
perform these services based on past relevant experience, qualifications, proposal cost, and 
understanding of the project requirements.  Causey Consulting’s fee to complete this project 
is $157,111. 
 
This Project will include: 
 

 Information and data collection pertaining to the City’s management of the sewer 
system. 

 Review of the City’s 2019 SSMP. 
 Review of the City’s 2021 SSMP Internal Audit. 
 Review of the City’s Spill Emergency Response Plan and update as necessary to 

adhere to compliance and the requirements of the new WDR Order. 

Page 596

12/12/2023 Item No.10.



 3

 Preparation of the 2024 SSMP Internal Audit and the 2025 SSMP to adhere to 
compliance and the requirements from the new Order. 

 Recommendations of any updates/changes to the City’s sewer system and the 
operating and maintenance procedures to further align with compliance of the WDR 
Order. 

 
The City of Folsom’s existing wastewater collection system consists of approximately 303 
miles of gravity sewer mains, approximately 9 miles of sewer force mains, and approximately 
116 miles of sewer laterals.  Pipes range in size from 2 to 33 inches in diameter and wastewater 
is pumped throughout the system by 18 pump stations.  The City has 4 major sewer sheds and 
26 sewer sub-basins currently monitored by 20 metering sites that all discharge to a 54-inch 
main interceptor in Folsom Boulevard. 
 
The EWR Department recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to 
execute an agreement with Causey Consulting for a not-to-exceed amount of $157,111. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 
Sufficient funds are budgeted and are available in the Sewer Operating Fund (Fund 530) in FY 
2023-24 to provide for this agreement. This agreement will also be included as part of the FY 
2024-25 and FY 2025-26 budgets for a total not-to-exceed amount of $157,111. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

 
This project is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality 
Act, Section 15301 “Existing Facilities”. 
 
ATTACHMENT 

 
Resolution No. 11137 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Causey Consulting for Professional Consulting Services for the Preparation of the Sewer 
System Management Plan and Audit for Compliance with Statewide Waste Discharge 
Requirements 
 
Submitted, 
 
       
Marcus Yasutake, Director 
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

Page 597

12/12/2023 Item No.10.



Resolution No. 11137 
Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 11137 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 

AGREEMENT WITH CAUSEY CONSULTING FOR PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING 

SERVICES FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN 

AND AUDIT FOR COMPLIANCE WITH STATEWIDE WASTE DISCHARGE 

REQUIREMENTS 

 

WHEREAS, the State Water Resources Control Board adopted the Statewide Waste 
Discharge Requirements (WDR) General Order WQ 2022-0103-DWQ (Order) on December 2, 2022; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Order mandates that all public collection system agencies in California that 

own or operate collection systems comprised of more than one mile of pipe or sewer lines and convey 
untreated wastewater to a publicly owned treatment facility, is responsible for preparing a Sewer 
System Management Plan (SSMP); and 

 
WHEREAS, Causey Consulting, by reason of their knowledge and experience with WDR 

Compliance and SSMP’s, has the qualifications and expertise to analyze the City’s compliance with 
the WDR Order and to prepare the SSMP Internal Audit and SSMP; and  
 

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the Sewer Operating Fund (Fund 
530), for this agreement in the amount of $157,111; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom 
authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with Causey Consulting for Professional 
Consulting Services for the preparation of the Sewer System Management Plan and Audit for 
Compliance with Statewide Waste Discharge Requirements for a not-to-exceed amount of $157,111. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of December, 2023, by the following roll-call vote: 
 
AYES:  Councilmember(s):  
NOES:  Councilmember(s):  
ABSENT: Councilmember(s):  
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):  
 
 

___________________________________ 
Rosario Rodriguez, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________  
Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK 
 
 

Page 598

12/12/2023 Item No.10.



 

 

Folsom City Council 
Staff Report 

  
 

1 
 

MEETING DATE: 

 

12/12/2023 

AGENDA SECTION: 

 

Consent Calendar 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 11141 – A Resolution Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute a Communications Site License Agreement 
with Comcast Cable Communications Management, LLC, a 
Delaware Limited Liability Company, at 403 Stafford Street  
 

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

 

Staff recommends the City Council approve Resolution No. 11141 – A Resolution Authorizing 
the City Manager to Execute a Communications Site License Agreement with Comcast Cable 
Communications Management, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company, at 403 Stafford 
Street.  
 
BACKGROUND / ISSUE 

 
In 1986, the City entered into a Communications Site Lease Agreement with Sacramento Cable 
Television, a partnership of the Scripps Howard Cable Company of Sacramento and River City 
Cablevision, for the site at 403 Stafford Street on the City Hall Campus, with plans to construct a 
tower with cable television equipment. The initial term commenced on April 11, 1986, and was 
scheduled to expire on December 23, 2003.  
 
In 1998, Amendment No. 1 revised the name of the lessor to Comcast Cablevision of 
Sacramento by Comcast Cablevision of Sacramento, Inc, a Delaware corporation, a general 
partnership. Additionally, Amendment No. 1 allowed for some minor site improvements, and 
adjusted the improvements section, and the terms of the lease. The initial term of the lease was 
extended through December 31, 2008, and maintained the option to renew for one fifteen (15) 
year extension from the date of expiration.   
 
In 2005, Amendment No. 2 revised the name of the lessor to Comcast of California III, LLC, 
allowed for minor site improvements, made revisions to the rent, and modified the options for 

Page 599

12/12/2023 Item No.11.



 2

extension from one fifteen-year extension to three additional five-year terms that are renewed 
automatically. To date, all automatic renewals have been exhausted, and the final extension is set 
to expire on December 31, 2023. 
 
POLICY / RULE 

 
In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code, supplies, equipment, services, 
and construction with a value of $70,952 or greater shall be awarded by the City Council. 
 
ANALYSIS 

 
The final extension of the City’s Communications Site License Agreement with Comcast of 
California III, LLC, to utilize the space at 403 Stafford Street is slated to expire on December 31, 
2023. Comcast reached out to the City to initiate a new agreement with updated terms and 
conditions and to continue the use of the space.  The major terms and conditions of the proposal 
are highlighted below: 
 

1. Ground area not to exceed 1,958 square feet. 
2. Initial annual lease rate of $9,517 with an annual escalator of 3%.  
3. An initial lease term of 5 years with 3 automatic renewals of 5 years each for a total 

possible lease term of 20 years.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 
The total value of the license agreement, inclusive of renewal option years, would be 
$255,725.35 over the 20-year period. The City Attorney’s Office has reviewed and approved the 
license agreement as to form.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

 
Environmental review is not required pursuant to section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines (related 
to Existing Facilities) and section 15303 of the CEQA Guidelines (related to new construction or 
conversion of small structures).  Based on the staff’s analysis, none of the exceptions in Section 
15300.2 of the CEQA Guidelines apply to the use of the categorical exemptions in this case.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 

 
Resolution No. 11141 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 
Communications Site License Agreement with Comcast Cable Communications Management, 
LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company, at 403 Stafford Street. 
 
Submitted, 
 
Kelly Gonzalez, Parks & Recreation Director 
 

Page 600

12/12/2023 Item No.11.



Resolution No. 11141 
Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 11141 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 

COMMUNICATIONS SITE LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH COMCAST CABLE 

COMMUNICATIONS MANAGEMENT, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY, AT 403 STAFFORD STREET 

 

WHEREAS, Comcast Cable Communications Management, LLC requests a 
Communications Site License Agreement with 1,958 square feet of lease space; and 

 

WHEREAS, the new agreement will commence on January 1, 2024, and is for five years 
with three automatic five year renewals with an expiration date of December 31, 2044; and 
 

WHEREAS, the total value of the license agreement, inclusive of renewal option years, 
would be $255,725.35 over a 20-year period; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom 
authorizes the City Manager to execute a Communications Site License Agreement with Comcast 
Cable Communications Management, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company, at 403 
Stafford Street. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th  day of December 2023, by the following roll-call 
vote: 
 
AYES: Councilmember(s):  
NOES: Councilmember(s):  
ABSENT: Councilmember(s):  
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):  
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Rosario Rodriguez, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________  
Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK 
 
 

Page 601

12/12/2023 Item No.11.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank  

to facilitate double-sided printing.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 602

12/12/2023 Item No.11.



 

 

Folsom City Council 
Staff Report 

  
 

1 
 

MEETING DATE: 

 

12/12/2023 

AGENDA SECTION: 

 

Consent Calendar 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 11143 – A Resolution Rejecting All Proposals 
for Maintenance of Parks, Trails & Pet Stations, and Public 
Works Areas 

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

 
Staff recommends the City Council approve Resolution No. 11143 – A Resolution Rejecting 
All Proposals for Maintenance of Parks, Trails & Pet Stations, and Public Works Areas.  
  
BACKGROUND / ISSUE 

The City of Folsom Parks and Recreation Department is dedicated to the quality of life for 
our residents and the stewardship of our parks, trails, and natural open spaces. Over the past 
several years, staff have utilized contracts to maintain landscape maintenance of parks, trails, 
open space and public work areas.  
Our contract agreement with the existing vendor is currently up for renewal. Staff started the 
Request For Proposal (RFP) process in late August. The Parks and Recreation Department 
proceeded with the procurement process with minimal changes  for levels of service. All 
responding contractors provided proposals with average annual costs that exceed the 
department’s budget allocation ranging from 22% to 59% .  Because of the costs, it was 
determined that staff needed to create a reduced scope of service levels in line with our 
budget allocation. 
 

POLICY / RULE 

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code, City Council approval is 
required for contracts in excess of $70,952. 
 
In accordance with Folsom Municipal Code section 2.36180, the City Council may reject all 
proposals when it is for good cause and in the best interest of the City. 
 
ANALYSIS 

Page 603

12/12/2023 Item No.12.



 2

On September 11, 2023, the Parks and Recreation Department advertised on CIPlist.com and 
the City of Folsom website the availability of a landscape maintenance contract that will 
service the City’s Parks, Trails & Pet Stations, and Public Works Areas. The city requested 
both qualifications and a proposal from contractors for the advertised bid package. As part of 
the outreach process, staff sent targeted emails to contractors and landscape maintenance firms  
 

The overall bid process consisted of the following steps: 

 Posting of bid package: September 11, 2023 

 Mandatory Pre-Bid meeting: October 10, 2023 

 RFQ/RFP’s Due to City: October 27, 2023 (3:00 PM) 

 Interviews of Qualified Contractors: November 16, 2023 

 RFP’s of Qualified Contractors Opened: November 13, 2023 

 Notice of Award: November 17, 2023   
 
Some of the notable updates we made to this contract package from the prior year were creating 
more defined coverage maps and clarifying what areas receive what type of service (i.e., 
hardscape, non-sports turf, sports turf, shrub beds, play areas). Staff reviewed each park and 
calculated the exact quantities of each asset type to be maintained within each area. 
 
The City received three responses to the RFQ package from BrightView, TerraCare, and Elite 
Landscape. The evaluation process was comprised of four factors following our current 
procurement process. The first phase was the independent evaluation of their request for 
qualifications by three staff members. The second was a panel interview consisting of 5 scored 
questions. Third was calling their references and having them rate the contractor in different 
areas. The last factor that was considered was price. Based on these four criteria, staff scored 
and ranked the firms as shown in the table below: 
 
Table 1 – RFQ/RFP Scores 

 Terracare Elite Landscape BrightView 

RFQ SCORE 20 18 23 

INTERVIEW SCORE 17.125 16.875 23.75 

REFERENCE SCORE  21.25 20 22 

COST 25 24.6 19.18 

TOTAL 83.375 79.475 87.93 

 
 

Company Average Annual Cost 

Terracare $ 1,275,503.08  

Elite $ 1,296,139.68  

Brightview $ 1,662,418.72  

 
The average yearly maintenance cost across the proposed 3-year term is shown in Table 2. 
Costs are currently outside of the department current budget allocation. 

Page 604

12/12/2023 Item No.12.



 3

Due to the funding gap, staff is requesting the City Council reject all proposals.  Staff will 
repeat the process with reduced service levels and bid alternates. Staff will continue a month-
to-month agreement with the current vendor and begin to prepare an updated RFP in 
preparation of the upcoming budget cycle. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

There should be no impact on the budget if the City Council approves the recommendation to 
reject all proposals for maintenance of Parks, Trails & Pet Stations, and Public Work Areas.  
 

ATTACHMENT 

Resolution No. 11143 – A Resolution Rejecting All Proposals for Maintenance of Parks, 
Trails & Pet Stations, and Public Works Areas 
 

Submitted, 

 
       
Kelly Gonzalez,  
Parks & Recreation Director 
 

Page 605

12/12/2023 Item No.12.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 1 

Page 606

12/12/2023 Item No.12.



 

Resolution No. 11143 

Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 11143 

 

A RESOLUTION REJECTING ALL PROPOSALS FOR MAINTENANCE OF PARKS, 

TRAILS & PET STATIONS, AND PUBLIC WORKS AREAS  

 

WHEREAS, the existing agreement with Terracare Associates is set to expire December 

31st 2023; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom solicited proposals advertising the availability of the 

contract for Parks, Trails & Pet Stations, and Public Works Areas; and 

 

WHEREAS, upon review of the submitted proposals all responding firms costs exceed 

our available budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, staff will be revising the scope and specification and readvertising the 

reduced scope to be in alignment with the available budgeted funds; and  

 

WHEREAS, staff recommends that the City Council reject all bids and repost the Request 

for Proposal; and  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom 

that all proposals received through the public Request for Proposal process for maintenance of our 

Parks, Trails & Pet Stations, and Public Works Areas are hereby rejected. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of December, 2023, by the following roll-call 

vote: 

  

AYES: Councilmember(s):  

NOES: Councilmember(s):  

ABSENT: Councilmember(s):  

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):  

 

 

___________________________________ 

Rosario Rodriguez, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK 

 

 

Page 607

12/12/2023 Item No.12.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank  

to facilitate double-sided printing.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 608

12/12/2023 Item No.12.



 

 

Folsom City Council 
Staff Report 

  
 

1 
 

MEETING DATE: 

 

12/12/2023 

AGENDA SECTION: 

 

Consent Calendar 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 11144 – A Resolution Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute a Public Trail Easement for the Oak 
Parkway Trail between the Property Owner of 339 Montrose 
Drive and the City of Folsom  
 

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

The Parks and Recreation Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt 
Resolution No. 11144 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Public Trail 
Easement for the Oak Parkway Trail between the Property Owner of 339 Montrose Drive and 
the City of Folsom. 
 
BACKGROUND / ISSUE 

In October 2021, the property owner at 339 Montrose Drive reached out to the City regarding 
a fallen tree on their rear property fence adjacent to the Oak Parkway Trail that is within the 
PG&E power line corridor. Previously, the property owner reached out to PG&E to address 
the fallen tree issue only to be told that it was not on PG&E property. After contacting the City 
about the tree issue, the property owner was informed that the Oak Parkway Trail has an 
easement within the PG&E corridor and that the tree and/or damage was not the City’s 
responsibility. 
 
The 339 Montrose Drive property owner submitted a property parcel map showing the rear 
property line extending beyond the existing rear fence of the property. The City confirmed that 
he was correct and that a portion of the Oak Parkway Trail was within his property at 339 
Montrose Drive. After staff further examined the issue, it turned out that there was a total of 
four properties that included a portion of the Oak Parkway Trail within their properties. The 
four properties included: 341 Montrose Dr; 339 Montrose Dr; 337 Montrose Dr; 335 Montrose 
Dr. 
 

Page 609

12/12/2023 Item No.13.



 2

Staff further examined the issue to find out that back in the early 2000s the Oak Parkway Trail 
was a design/build project that assumed the four Montrose Dr property fences were the actual 
rear property lines and constructed the trail in its current location on the four Montrose Drive 
private residential properties.  
 
To address the issue, City staff reached out to all four property owners to discuss remediation 
of the situation. The City hired Stewart Title to provide title reports for all four properties to 
double check that the City had built the trail within private property without an easement. After 
the title reports confirmed there was no easement in place for the trail, the City hired TDS 
Engineering to provide a trail easement survey and BRI to provide an appraisal report for a 
trail easement on each of the four Montrose Dr properties. BRI was also contracted to provide 
negotiation services with the property owners on behalf of the City to establish a trail easement 
for the Oak Parkway Trail. 
 

POLICY / RULE 

Acquisition of property rights by the City of Folsom requires City Council approval.  
Resolution No. 2435, adopted on July 18, 1988, authorizes the City Manager to execute an 
Easement Deed. 
 
ANALYSIS 

The City contracted with Bender Rosenthal, Inc. (BRI) and TDS Engineering to prepare the 
necessary surveying and documentation to obtain the public trail easements, including plat and 
legal descriptions, easement valuation negotiations, and appraisals. BRI also determined the 
fair market value of each easement, which was included in the appraisal reports. 
 
BRI provided negotiations services, on behalf of the City with each property owner, to discuss 
the valuation for the public trail easements. BRI negotiated with the owner at 339 Montrose 
Drive and a final offer was agreed to between both parties for a total of $50,000 for the public 
trail easement. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

The City shall pay not to exceed a sum of $50,000 for the 339 Montrose Drive public trail 
easement. Sufficient funds for the payment are budgeted and available in the General Fund 
Non-Departmental division (Fund 010) in Fiscal Year 2023-24. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

The establishment of a public trail easement for the existing Oak Parkway Trail on 339 
Montrose Drive is categorically exempt from environmental review under the California 
Environmental Quality Act as noted in Title 14 – California Code of Regulations, Chapter 3 – 
Guidelines for Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Article 19 – 
Categorical Exemptions, Section 15301 (Existing Facilities).  
  

Page 610

12/12/2023 Item No.13.



 3

ATTACHMENTS 

 
1. Resolution No. 11144 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 

Public Trail Easement for the Oak Parkway Trail between the Property Owner of 339 
Montrose Drive and the City of Folsom  

 
Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
       
Kelly Gonzalez, Director 
PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
 

Page 611

12/12/2023 Item No.13.



 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 

 

 
 

Page 612

12/12/2023 Item No.13.



  

 

Resolution No. 11144 
Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 11144 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PUBLIC 

TRAIL EASEMENT FOR THE OAK PARKWAY TRAIL BETWEEN THE PROPERTY 

OWNER OF 339 MONTROSE DRIVE AND THE CITY OF FOLSOM  

 

WHEREAS, the City has identified the need for a public trail easement on private property 
at 339 Montrose Drive to maintain the operation of the existing Oak Parkway Trail; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City negotiated with the 339 Montrose Drive property owner and came 
to an agreement on the valuation of the public trail easement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City shall pay $50,000 to the owner of 339 Montrose Drive in exchange 

for a public trail easement; and 
 

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the General Fund Non-
Departmental division (Fund 010) in Fiscal Year 2023-24; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the easement deeds and agreements will be in a form acceptable to the City 
Attorney:  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom 
authorizes the City Manager to execute a public trail easement for the Oak Parkway Trail between 
the property owner of 339 Montrose Drive and the City of Folsom for a not-to-exceed amount of 
$50,000; 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of December, 2023, by the following roll-call 

vote: 
 
AYES: Councilmember(s):  
NOES: Councilmember(s):  
ABSENT: Councilmember(s):  
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):  
 
 

___________________________________ 
Rosario Rodriguez, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________  
Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK 

Page 613

12/12/2023 Item No.13.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank  

to facilitate double-sided printing.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 614

12/12/2023 Item No.13.



 

 

Folsom City Council 
Staff Report 

  
 

1 
 

MEETING DATE: 

 

12/12/2023 

AGENDA SECTION: 

 

Consent Calendar 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 11145 – A Resolution Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute a Public Trail Easement for the Oak 
Parkway Trail between the Property Owner of 337 Montrose 
Drive and the City of Folsom  
 

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

The Parks and Recreation Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt 
Resolution No. 11145 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Public Trail 
Easement for the Oak Parkway Trail between the Property Owner of 337 Montrose Drive and 
the City of Folsom. 
 
BACKGROUND / ISSUE 

In October 2021, the property owner at 339 Montrose Drive reached out to the City regarding 
a fallen tree on their rear property fence adjacent to the Oak Parkway Trail that is within the 
PG&E power line corridor. Previously, the property owner reached out to PG&E to address 
the fallen tree issue only to be told that it was not on PG&E property. After contacting the City 
about the tree issue, the property owner was informed that the Oak Parkway Trail has an 
easement within the PG&E corridor and that the tree and/or damage was not the City’s 
responsibility. 
 
The 339 Montrose Drive property owner submitted a property parcel map showing the rear 
property line extending beyond the existing rear fence of the property. The City confirmed that 
he was correct and that a portion of the Oak Parkway Trail was within his property at 339 
Montrose Drive. After staff further examined the issue, it turned out that there was a total of 
four properties that included a portion of the Oak Parkway Trail within their properties. The 
four properties included: 341 Montrose Dr; 339 Montrose Dr; 337 Montrose Dr; 335 Montrose 
Dr. 
 

Page 615

12/12/2023 Item No.14.



 2

Staff further examined the issue to find out that back in the early 2000s the Oak Parkway Trail 
was a design/build project that assumed the four Montrose Dr property fences were the actual 
rear property lines and constructed the trail in its current location on the four Montrose Drive 
private residential properties.  
 
To address the issue, City staff reached out to all four property owners to discuss remediation 
of the situation. The City hired Stewart Title to provide title reports for all four properties to 
double check that the City had built the trail within private property without an easement. After 
the title reports confirmed there was no easement in place for the trail, the City hired TDS 
Engineering to provide a trail easement survey and BRI to provide an appraisal report for a 
trail easement on each of the four Montrose Dr properties. BRI was also contracted to provide 
negotiation services with the property owners on behalf of the City to establish a trail easement 
for the Oak Parkway Trail. 
 

POLICY / RULE 

Acquisition of property rights by the City of Folsom requires City Council approval.  
Resolution No. 2435, adopted on July 18, 1988, authorizes the City Manager to execute an 
Easement Deed. 
 
ANALYSIS 

The City contracted with Bender Rosenthal, Inc. (BRI) and TDS Engineering to prepare the 
necessary surveying and documentation to obtain the public trail easements, including plat and 
legal descriptions, easement valuation negotiations, and appraisals. BRI also determined the 
fair market value of each easement, which was included in the appraisal reports. 
 
BRI provided negotiations services, on behalf of the City with each property owner, to discuss 
the valuation for the public trail easements. BRI negotiated with the owner at 337 Montrose 
Drive and a final offer was agreed to between both parties for a total of $22,700 for the public 
trail easement. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

The City shall pay a not to exceed sum of $22,700 for the 337 Montrose Drive public trail 
easement. Sufficient funds for the payment are budgeted and available in the General Fund 
Non-Departmental division (Fund 010) in Fiscal Year 2023-24.. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

The establishment of a public trail easement for the existing Oak Parkway Trail on 337 
Montrose Drive is categorically exempt from environmental review under the California 
Environmental Quality Act as noted in Title 14 – California Code of Regulations, Chapter 3 – 
Guidelines for Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Article 19 – 
Categorical Exemptions, Section 15301 (Existing Facilities).  
  

Page 616

12/12/2023 Item No.14.



 3

ATTACHMENTS 

 
1. Resolution No. 11145 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 

Public Trail Easement for the Oak Parkway Trail between the Property Owner of 337 
Montrose Drive and the City of Folsom  

 
Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
       
Kelly Gonzalez, Director 
PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
 

Page 617

12/12/2023 Item No.14.



Resolution No. 11145 
Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 11145 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PUBLIC 

TRAIL EASEMENT FOR THE OAK PARKWAY TRAIL BETWEEN THE PROPERTY 

OWNER OF 337 MONTROSE DRIVE AND THE CITY OF FOLSOM  

 

WHEREAS, the City has identified the need for a public trail easement on private property 
at 337 Montrose Drive to maintain the operation of the existing Oak Parkway Trail; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City negotiated with the 337 Montrose Drive property owner and came 
to an agreement on the valuation of the public trail easement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City shall pay $22,700 to the owner of 337 Montrose Drive in exchange 

for a public trail easement; and 
 

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the General Fund Non-
Departmental division (Fund 010) in Fiscal Year 2023-24; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the easement deeds and agreements will be in a form acceptable to the City 
Attorney:  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom 
authorizes the City Manager to execute a public trail easement for the Oak Parkway Trail between 
the property owner of 337 Montrose Drive and the City of Folsom for a not-to-exceed amount of 
$22,700. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of December, 2023, by the following roll-call 

vote: 
 
AYES: Councilmember(s):  
NOES: Councilmember(s):  
ABSENT: Councilmember(s):  
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):  
 
 

___________________________________ 
Rosario Rodriguez, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________  
Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK 

Page 618

12/12/2023 Item No.14.



 

 

Folsom City Council 
Staff Report 

  
 

1 
 

MEETING DATE: 

 

12/12/2023 

AGENDA SECTION: 

 

Consent Calendar 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 11146 – A Resolution Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute a Public Trail Easement for the Oak 
Parkway Trail between the Property Owner of 341 Montrose 
Drive and the City of Folsom  
 

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

The Parks and Recreation Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt 
Resolution No. 11146 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Public Trail 
Easement for the Oak Parkway Trail between the Property Owner of 341 Montrose Drive and 
the City of Folsom. 
 
BACKGROUND / ISSUE 

In October 2021, the property owner at 339 Montrose Drive reached out to the City regarding 
a fallen tree on their rear property fence adjacent to the Oak Parkway Trail that is within the 
PG&E power line corridor. Previously, the property owner reached out to PG&E to address 
the fallen tree issue only to be told that it was not on PG&E property. After contacting the City 
about the tree issue, the property owner was informed that the Oak Parkway Trail has an 
easement within the PG&E corridor and that the tree and/or damage was not the City’s 
responsibility. 
 
The 339 Montrose Drive property owner submitted a property parcel map showing the rear 
property line extending beyond the existing rear fence of the property. The City confirmed that 
he was correct and that a portion of the Oak Parkway Trail was within his property at 339 
Montrose Drive. After staff further examined the issue, it turned out that there was a total of 
four properties that included a portion of the Oak Parkway Trail within their properties. The 
four properties included: 341 Montrose Dr; 339 Montrose Dr; 337 Montrose Dr; 335 Montrose 
Dr. 
 

Page 619

12/12/2023 Item No.15.



 2

Staff further examined the issue to find out that back in the early 2000s the Oak Parkway Trail 
was a design/build project that assumed the four Montrose Dr property fences were the actual 
rear property lines and constructed the trail in its current location on the four Montrose Drive 
private residential properties.  
 
To address the issue, City staff reached out to all four property owners to discuss remediation 
of the situation. The City hired Stewart Title to provide title reports for all four properties to 
double check that the City had built the trail within private property without an easement. After 
the title reports confirmed there was no easement in place for the trail, the City hired TDS 
Engineering to provide a trail easement survey and BRI to provide an appraisal report for a 
trail easement on each of the four Montrose Dr properties. BRI was also contracted to provide 
negotiation services with the property owners on behalf of the City to establish a trail easement 
for the Oak Parkway Trail. 
 

POLICY / RULE 

Acquisition of property rights by the City of Folsom requires City Council approval.  
Resolution No. 2435, adopted on July 18, 1988, authorizes the City Manager to execute an 
Easement Deed. 
 
ANALYSIS 

The City contracted with Bender Rosenthal, Inc. (BRI) and TDS Engineering to prepare the 
necessary surveying and documentation to obtain the public trail easements, including plat and 
legal descriptions, easement valuation negotiations, and appraisals. BRI also determined the 
fair market value of each easement, which was included in the appraisal reports. 
 
BRI provided negotiations services, on behalf of the City with each property owner, to discuss 
the valuation for the public trail easements. BRI negotiated with the owner at 341 Montrose 
Drive and a final offer was agreed to between both parties for a total of $11,300 for the public 
trail easement. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

The City shall pay a not to exceed sum of $11,300 for the 341 Montrose Drive public trail 
easement. Sufficient funds for the payment are budgeted and available in the General Fund 
Non-Departmental division (Fund 010) in Fiscal Year 2023-24. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

The establishment of a public trail easement for the existing Oak Parkway Trail on 341 
Montrose Drive is categorically exempt from environmental review under the California 
Environmental Quality Act as noted in Title 14 – California Code of Regulations, Chapter 3 – 
Guidelines for Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Article 19 – 
Categorical Exemptions, Section 15301 (Existing Facilities).  
  

Page 620

12/12/2023 Item No.15.



 3

ATTACHMENTS 

 
1. Resolution No. 11146 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 

Public Trail Easement for the Oak Parkway Trail between the Property Owner of 341 
Montrose Drive and the City of Folsom  

 
Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
       
Kelly Gonzalez, Director 
PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
 

Page 621

12/12/2023 Item No.15.



 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 622

12/12/2023 Item No.15.



Resolution No. 11146 
Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 11146 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PUBLIC 

TRAIL EASEMENT FOR THE OAK PARKWAY TRAIL BETWEEN THE PROPERTY 

OWNER OF 341 MONTROSE DRIVE AND THE CITY OF FOLSOM  

 

WHEREAS, the City has identified the need for a public trail easement on private property 
at 341 Montrose Drive to maintain the operation of the existing Oak Parkway Trail; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City negotiated with the 341 Montrose Drive property owner and came 
to an agreement on the valuation of the public trail easement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City shall pay $11,300 to the owner of 341 Montrose Drive in exchange 

for a public trail easement; and 
 

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the General Fund Non-
Departmental division (Fund 010) in Fiscal Year 2023-24; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the easement deeds and agreements will be in a form acceptable to the City 
Attorney:  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom 
authorizes the City Manager to execute a public trail easement for the Oak Parkway Trail between 
the property owner of 341 Montrose Drive and the City of Folsom for a not-to-exceed amount of 
$11,300; 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of December, 2023, by the following roll-call 

vote: 
 
AYES: Councilmember(s):  
NOES: Councilmember(s):  
ABSENT: Councilmember(s):  
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):  
 
 

___________________________________ 
Rosario Rodriguez, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________  
Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK 

Page 623

12/12/2023 Item No.15.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank  

to facilitate double-sided printing.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 624

12/12/2023 Item No.15.



 

 

Folsom City Council 
Staff Report 

  

 

1 

 

MEETING DATE: 

 

12/12/2023 

AGENDA SECTION: 

 

Public Hearing 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 11139 - A Resolution to Adopt an Addendum to 

the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan EIR/EIS and Approve a 

Specific Plan Amendment to Modify FPASP Table A.7 

(Transportation, Communication, Infrastructure) to Add 

“Electronic Readerboard Sign” as a Conditionally Permitted Use 

on a Specific Property (Parcel 61 - APN No. 072-3190-052) 

Located at the Southwest Corner of the Intersection of U.S. 

Highway 50 and East Bidwell Street within the Folsom Plan 

Area  (to be continued to the January 9, 2024 meeting) 

 

FROM: City Clerk's Department 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

 

Staff and the applicant request that this item be continued to January 9, 2024.   

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Christa Freemantle, CMC 

City Clerk 

  

Page 625

12/12/2023 Item No.16.



 2

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank to  

facilitate double-sided printing. 

Page 626

12/12/2023 Item No.16.



 

 

Folsom City Council 
Staff Report 

  
 

1 
 

MEETING DATE: 

 

12/12/2023 

AGENDA SECTION: 

 

New Business 

SUBJECT: Presentation on the City’s General Fund Unassigned Fund 
Balance (Reserves) Policy and Direction to Staff 
 

FROM: Finance Department 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council receive the Chief Financial Officer’s presentation on 
the City’s General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance (Reserves) Policy and provide direction to 
staff. 
 
BACKGROUND / ISSUE 

 

The City Council directed staff to prepare an item to review the General Fund Unassigned 
Fund Balance (Reserves) policy, with the possibility of adjusting the current reserve policy 
from its 15% of expenditures minimum and to confirm what fund any excess reserves, if any, 
shall be transferred to to be used for “one-time” expenditures.  
 
The General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance (Reserve) policy is established to ensure that the 
City’s finances are managed in a manner which will (1) continue to provide for the delivery of 
quality services, (2) minimize or eliminate the need to cut services because of temporary 
revenue shortfalls, and (3) establish the reserves necessary to meet known and unknown future 
obligations and provide for the ability to respond to unexpected events.  
 
Public entities intentionally accumulate and then maintain adequate reserves to help ensure 
both financial stability and the continued ability to provide essential services in difficult times.  
Financial stability is an important factor in operating a City.  Establishing certain financial 
reserves protects the City against unexpected interruptions in revenues, vulnerability to Federal 
or State actions, adverse economic conditions, unpredictable one-time costs, and exposure to 
natural disasters and emergencies. 

Page 627

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 2

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA), an international organization that 
promotes the professional financial management of governments for the public interest, 
recommends maintaining, at a minimum, an unassigned fund balance (reserves) in the General 
Fund of no less than two months of regular general fund operating expenditures, equivalent to 
about 17% of annual operating expenditures.   A government’s particular situation may require 
levels of unassigned fund balance in the general fund to be significantly more than these 
recommended minimum levels.   Cities with higher reserve levels are better positioned to 
protect public services during economic downturns or other unforeseen events. GFOA 
recommends that in establishing a policy determining the level of unassigned fund balance in 
the general fund, a government should consider a variety of factors, including: 
 

 The predictability of its revenues and the volatility of its expenditures (i.e. higher levels 
of unassigned fund balance may be needed if significant revenue sources are subject to 
unpredictable fluctuations, such as sales tax revenue, or if operating expenditures are 
highly volatile, such as large fluctuations in required CalPERS contributions.) 

 

 The availability of reserves in other unrestricted funds, as well as the potential drain 
upon general fund resources from other funds (i.e. the availability of resources in other 
funds may reduce the amount of reserves needed in the general fund, just as deficits in 
other funds may require that a higher level of reserves be maintained in the general 
fund). 
 

 The susceptibility to natural disasters like extreme weather, wildfires, earthquakes, 
floods, and the like. These can result in urgent needs like overtime for first responders 
or shelter, food, and supplies for displaced families. There may be expenditures for the 
cleanup that follows the initial devastation. Sometimes, a local government will have 
some of its costs reimbursed by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 
and/or state agencies. If this is the case, reserves are still important to cover the 
nonreimbursable costs, including lost revenue and fees and increased operating costs, 
while also fronting the costs until reimbursement arrives. GFOA sampled several local 
governments that received FEMA reimbursement for natural disasters and found it took 
an average of 18 months to be reimbursed. 

 
POLICY / RULE 

 
Financial Policy VI. Undesignated Fund Balances (Reserves) adopted May 25, 2004, states 
that the City shall maintain an Undesignated Fund Balance (reserve) for the General Fund of 
no less than 15% of the annual operating expenditures.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 628

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 3

ANALYSIS 

 

In 2004, a comprehensive set of Financial Polices was adopted by the City Council. The 
document, in its entirety, is attached to this staff report. This staff report and related 
presentation to the City Council will focus on one of the adopted financial policies, policy VI. 
Undesignated Fund Balances (Reserves). 
 
Current Reserve Policy: 

 

VI.   Undesignated Fund Balances (Reserves) 
 

A.   General Fund Reserve 
 

The City shall maintain an Undesignated Fund Balance (reserve) for the General 
Fund of no less than 15% of the annual operating expenditures.  The Undesignated 
Fund Balance will be used to provide for temporary financing for unanticipated 
extraordinary needs of an emergency nature; for example, costs related to a natural 
disaster or calamity, economic recession, or an unexpected liability created by 
Federal or State legislative action.  Funds shall be appropriated from the 
Undesignated Fund Balance only after the Finance Director and the City Manager 
have prepared an analysis and presented to City Council.  The analysis shall provide 
sufficient evidence to establish that the remaining Undesignated Fund Balance is 
adequate to offset potential downturns in revenue sources and provide a sufficient 
cash balance for daily financial needs.  The analysis shall address the nature of the 
proposed expenditure and the revenue requirement in subsequent budget years.  Prior 
to allocating funds from the Undesignated Fund Balance, the City Council shall find 
that an emergency or extraordinary need exists to justify the use of these funds. 

 
Funds shall be allocated each year in the budget process to replace any use of the 
Undesignated Fund Balance during the preceding fiscal year to maintain the balance 
of the Undesignated Fund Balance at the percentage set forth herein. 

 
B.  Enterprise Funds 

 
The City shall strive to maintain sufficient reserves in its enterprise funds necessary 
to maintain cash flow requirements, and contingencies for unforeseen operating or 
capital needs. 

 
C.  Transfer of Amounts in Excess of Specified Reserve 

 
To the extent funds accumulate in excess of the percentage described in paragraph 
A, above, such funds shall be transferred to the Capital Projects Fund.  This transfer 
shall be made upon completion of the annual financial audit.  It is the intent of the 
City Council to affect such transfers through a Mid-Year Budget Resolution. 

 

Page 629

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 4

Current Level of General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance (Reserves) 

 
As noted above, the current policy calls for reserves in the General Fund to be no less than 
15% of annual operating expenditures and the policy does not specify a maximum reserve 
level.  
 
The chart below displays the historical level of reserves in the General Fund from FY 2005-06 
through FY 2023-24. Before the Great Recession began to impact the City’s finances in 2008, 
the average level of reserves was at 23% of expenditures for the 10-year period prior to the 
recession, reaching a high of 26.6% in FY 2005-06. Having this level of reserves allowed the 
City to get through the Great Recession, but service cuts and layoffs were still required. Even 
with this level of reserves as a staring point, total reserves reached a low point of $3.99 million 
or 5.98% of expenditures by FY 2010-11.  
 

 
 
The current policy states that funds shall be allocated each year in the budget process to replace 
any use of the Unassigned Fund Balance during the preceding fiscal year to maintain the 
balance of the Unassigned Fund Balance at the percentage set forth (by the policy). As 
required, the City worked over many years to rebuild the reserve from the 5.98% low point.  
 
Although the current adopted policy sets a minimum of 15% of expenditures, there is no 
specified maximum reserve level and the reserve as a % of expenditures has remained at an 
average of 20% over the past eight years. This consistent level of reserve is in part due to using 
the Risk Management Fund reserves to stabilize the General Fund during the COVID-19 
pandemic. The reserves used from the Risk Management Fund have not been replenished.  
 
 

Page 630

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 5

Determining an Appropriate Reserve Range 

 
In preparing this item for the City Council, staff reviewed over 20 different reserve policies 
from city organizations and studied the GFOA’s recent publication titled “Rethinking 
Reserves.” In that publication, the GFOA writes that it has found that a policy that identifies a 
floor and ceiling for reserves, rather than just a single target number, may provide more useful 
guidance. This is because a city government will rarely, if ever, have exactly the amount of 
reserves called for by its policy. Having a range defines the acceptable tolerances the reserves 
should stay within.  
 
GFOA additionally states that a reserve range better supports the ongoing management of 
reserves. Reserves fluctuate from year to year. If the reserve stays in range, there is little need 
to revisit whether the actual reserve is too high or low relative to the policy. If the reserve falls 
outside the range, it suggests a clear course of action (i.e., do something to get it back in range). 
This helps make sure that reserves stay where they need to be to manage risks. 
 
A range includes a floor that communicates that there is a minimum amount necessary to be a 
good steward of the community but also a ceiling that communicates that there is an upper 
limit on the usefulness of reserves and a point at which excess resources should be devoted to 
some other purpose. 
 
To assist in determining an appropriate range, we can look to our neighboring cities for 
comparison. The chart below shows Folsom’s policy of maintaining a 15% minimum reserve, 
in comparison to neighboring cities. All others have a reserve policy minimum of 20% or 
higher. In practice, each of these cities maintain actual General Fund reserve balances in excess 
of their minimum policy requirement. 
 

 
 
In addition to their General Fund reserves, these cities also have “other unrestricted funds” set 
aside outside of their General Fund to mitigate specific risks or to plan for anticipated future 
expenditures. When last surveyed, Rancho Cordova, West Sacramento and Elk Grove, were 

Page 631

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 6

all in the 80-88% range when you compare total reserves as a % of their general fund 
expenditures. Roseville was at 54% and the City of Folsom was lowest by far at 29%. 
 

Risk Assessment 

 
In addition to comparing to our neighbors, we can use a risk assessment template developed 
by the GFOA to help cities determine an appropriate reserve range based on their unique risk 
profile. This risk assessment subjectively determines the City’s vulnerability to extreme events, 
level of revenue stability, volatility of expenditures, the dependency of other funds on the 
General Fund to cover shortfalls, the rate of growth in the City and the City’s ability to pay for 
services related to that growth, and the extent of unfunded infrastructure and capital needs 
within the City.  
 
This risk assessment template also takes into consideration the size of the government, budget 
practices, and borrowing capacity to ultimately develop a “risk score” and provide analytical 
guidance for selecting an appropriate reserve target.  
 
When staff worked through the risk assessment process, we found that the City does not have 
an unusually high or an unusually low level of risk in most of the risk factor categories. 
However, the categories of (1) dependency of other funds on the General Fund to cover 
shortfalls and (2) extent of unfunded infrastructure and capital needs within the City both 
received a higher risk score.  
 
With all risk factors taken into consideration, the result of the risk assessment for the City was 
a score of 20 out of 40, putting the City in the low to moderate risk category (scores between 
17-24). GFOA recommends cities within this category consider adopting a reserve target 
somewhat higher than the GFOA minimum of 17%. Their recommendation is a range of 17%-
25% of expenditures. They also recommend cities in this risk category consider an informal 
benchmarking study with peer agencies to provide further guidance, which was completed. 
 
Recommended Reserve Range  

 
After careful analysis, risk assessment and benchmarking with peer agencies, staff 
recommends the City Council consider replacing the current 15% reserve target with a reserve 
range. The floor should be no less than the GFOA’s recommended minimum of 17% of 
expenditures. An appropriate ceiling may be 20% of expenditures, consistent with the average 
reserve the City has held over the past eight years, and within the suggested range that resulted 
from the risk assessment.  
 
If a range is the City Council’s desire, any reserves accumulated above the ceiling would be 
transferred to the Capital Projects Fund upon completion of the annual financial audit, per the 
current policy. Staff recommends that reserves for purposes of this annual transfer be 
calculated using the current year’s Adopted General Fund budgeted operating expenditures.  
 

 

Page 632

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 7

ATTACHMENTS 

 

1. Financial Policies, May 25, 2004 
 
 

 
Submitted, 
 
 
______________________________ 
Stacey Tamagni, Finance Director/CFO 

Page 633

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



City of Folsom, California 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Financial 
Policies 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Martha Clark Lofgren,  
City Manager 
 
Navdeep S. Gill, 
Finance Director 
 
Adopted May 25, 2004 
 

Page 634

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 
Table of Contents 

 
 
 
I.  PURPOSE          1 
  
 
II. FINANCIAL PLANNING       1 
 A.  ANNUAL FINANCIAL PLANNING     1 
 B.  MULTI-YEAR FINANCIAL PLANNING     1 
 C.  PLANNING FOR LONG-TERM LIABILITIES    2 
 
 
III. BUDGET PREPARATION       2 
 A.  BALANCED BUDGET       2 
 B.  STRUCTURAL BALANCE      2 
 C.  APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT       2 
 D.  OPERATING CARRYOVER       3 
 E.  ONE-TIME REVENUES       3 
 F.  INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS       3 
 G.  MAINTENANCE ACCOUNTS       3 
 H.  LEVEL OF CONTINGENCY APPROPRIATIONS   3 
 I.    STRATEGIC PLAN OBJECTIVES     4 
 
 
IV. BUDGET MANAGEMENT      4 
 A.  INTERNAL CONTROL       4 
 B.  REVENUE FORECAST       4 
 C.  FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT     4 
 D.  QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT     5 
 E.   MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW     5 
 F.   APPROPRIATIONS DURING FISCAL YEAR    5 
 G.  INTERFUND BORROWING      6 
 
 
IV. UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES (RESERVES)   6 
 A.  GENERAL FUND RESERVE      6 
 B.  ENTERPRISE FUNDS       6 
 C.  TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS IN EXCESS OF  
  SPECIFIED RESERVE      6 
 
 
VI. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN     7 
 A.  ANNUAL ADOPTION OF CIP      7 
 B.  ANNUAL APPROPRIATION REQUIREMENT   7 

Page 635

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 C.  PROJECT MANAGER       7 
 D.  STATEMENT OF IMPACT ON THE OPERATING BUDGET 7 
 
 
VII. PRESERVING CAPITAL INVESTMENT    7 

A. PARKS AND RENOVATION      8 
B. CAPITAL ASSETS       8 

 
 
VIII. DEBT MANAGEMENT       9 
 A.  DEBT MANAGEMENT APPROACH     9 
 B.  FINANCING CRITERIA       11 
 C.  PROCESS         17 
 D.  ADDITIONAL POLICIES REGARDING LAND-SECURED 
  AND CONDUIT FINANCING     19 
 
 
IX. STRENGTHENING FINANCIAL POSITION    36 
 A.  DIVERSIFIED ECONOMY AND REVENUES    36 
 B.  ECONOMIC INCENTIVES FOR COMMERCIAL  
  AND INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT    36 
 C.  REDEVELOPMENT REVENUES     37 
 D.  INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES    37 
 E.  COST ALLOCATION CHARGES     38 
 F.  USER FEE COST RECOVERY      38 
 G.  ENTERPRISE FUND RATES      42 
 
 
X. INVESTMENTS        44 
 A.  POLICY ADOPTION       44 
 B.  DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY     44 
 C.  SCOPE         44 
 D.  PRUDENCE        45 
 E.  OBJECTIVES        45 
 F.  ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST    46 
 G.  INVESTMENT PROCEDURES      46 
 H.  AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS 46 
 I.   AUTHORIZED AND SUITABLE INVESTMENTS   46 
 J.   INVESTMENT POOLS/ 

MUTUAL FUNDS DUE DILIGENCE    49 
 K. COLLATERALIZATION       49 
 L.  SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY     50 
 M.  INTERNAL CONTROL       50 
 N.  PERFORMANCE STANDARDS     50 
 O.  REPORTING        50 
 

Page 636

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



XI. FINANCIAL REPORTING       52 
 A.  ACCOUNTING PRACTICES      52 
 B.  ANNUAL FINANCIAL AUDIT      52 
 C.  QUARTERLY FINANCIAL AND 
  MANAGEMENT REPORTING     52 
 D.  AVAILABILITY OF REPORTS TO THE PUBLIC   52 
 
 
XII. PRODUCTIVITY        53 
 A.  TECHNOLOGY        53 
 B.  CONTRACTING FOR SERVICES     53 
 C.  CUSTOMER SERVICE       53 
 D.  TRAINING        53 
 E.  PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT     53 
 
 
XIII. RISK MANAGEMENT       54 
 A.  SAFETY TRAINING AND RISK MANAGEMENT   54 
 B.  THIRD PARTY INDEMNIFICATION     54 
 C.  EMERGENCY OPERATION PLAN     54 
 
 
APPENDIX A 
 RESOLUTION NO. 7332 - A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 
  FINANCIAL POLICIES FOR THE CITY OF FOLSOM  55 
 

Page 637

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 
I. Purpose 

 
The purpose for implementing financial policies is to provide operating and planning 
guidelines that support the City’s financial operations.  The financial policies shall guide 
staff in evaluating financial implications of program and policy recommendations to the 
City Council.  The financial policies shall also serve as parameters for City Council 
action to ensure a long-term, stable economic base for the City.  The City Council and 
staff shall comply with the guidelines set forth herein absent a compelling reason not to 
do so.  Any recommended deviation from these policies shall be clearly identified in 
appropriate written documentation (e.g., staff report, resolution, or budget presentation).  
These policies are intended to be applied in conjunction with requirements set forth in 
state law, the City Charter, and the Folsom Municipal Code and Generally Accepted 
Accounting Procedures (GAAP).  In the case of any conflict, the provisions of such laws, 
ordinances or GAAP will control. 
 

II. Financial Planning 
 

A. Annual Financial Planning 
 
The City shall engage in annual financial planning through the adoption of an Annual 
Budget.  Through the Annual Budget, the City will link resources with results by: 
 
1. Identifying community needs for essential services.  
2. Organizing the programs required to provide these essential services. 
3. Establishing program goals and objectives that define the nature and level of 

program services to be provided. 
4. Identifying activities to be performed in delivering program services. 
5. Proposing objectives for improving the delivery of program services. 
6. Identifying operational, maintenance, staffing and long-term renovation costs in 

connection with any new proposed level of program services and/or activities.   
7. Identifying and appropriating the resources required to perform program activities 

and to accomplish program objectives. 
8. Setting standards to measure and evaluate: 

a. Output of program activities. 
b. Accomplishment of program objectives. 
c. Expenditure of program appropriations. 
d. Cost comparisons with other service providers (e.g., benchmarking service 

delivery cost against other local agencies and/or options for contracting with 
private service providers). 

 
B. Multi-Year Financial Planning 

 
In order to determine the effect of current year decisions on the City’s future, a 
five-year financial forecast, projecting revenues and expenditures for all operating 
funds, shall be developed as a part of each year's budget process and shall be updated 
during the mid-year budget review.  Individual and aggregate revenue categories, as 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 1 May 2004 
Page 638

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



well as expenditures, shall be projected by revenue and/or expenditure type.  Historical 
growth rates, inflation assumptions, and City expenditure priorities will be used in 
developing the forecast.  This tool shall be used as a planning document for developing 
the budget guidelines and for evaluating the future impact of current year decisions.   

 
C. Planning for Long-Term Liabilities 
 

To avoid future financial burdens that could affect financial stability, the City shall 
proactively plan for potential liabilities, such as leave payouts, pension plans, retiree 
health costs, state and/or federal unfunded mandates,  

 
III. Budget Preparation 
 

The Annual Budget shall comply with the provisions of Section 5.05 (Budget and 
Accounting) of the Folsom City Charter and Chapter 3.02 (Budgeting, Accounting and 
Fiscal Procedures) of the Folsom Municipal Code.  The Annual Budget shall meet the 
following criteria:   
 

A. Balanced Budget 
 
The City shall maintain a balanced budget.  The total of proposed expenditures shall not 
exceed the total of estimated revenues plus carried forward fund balance, exclusive of 
reserves, for any fund. 
 

B. Structural Balance 
 
The Annual Budget shall clearly identify anticipated revenue for all funds for the 
upcoming fiscal year.  Current revenue shall be sufficient to support current 
expenditures (defined as “structural balance”).  Estimates of current revenue shall not 
include beginning fund balances (whether General Fund, Revenue Funds, or other 
Specially Designated Funds).  Any unreserved fund balance available at the 
commencement of a fiscal year shall generally be used only to fund capital items in the 
operating budget or in the capital improvement plan.  If projected revenue is insufficient 
to support projected funding requirements, the City Manager and Finance Director may 
recommend allocation of all or a portion of an unreserved fund balance if it appears that 
(1) the revenue source leading to the development of the available revenues is likely to 
remain stable in future years, (2) the expenditure requiring the appropriation of 
additional revenues is not likely to be recurring, or (3) the City Manager and Finance 
Director can otherwise establish an appropriate match of revenue/expenditures that will 
not lead to structural imbalance in future years.   

 
C. Appropriations Limit 

 
Appropriations in the Annual Budget shall comply with the annual determination of the 
City’s appropriations limit, calculated in accordance with Article XIIIB of the 
Constitution of the State of California and Government Code section 7900.  

 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 2 May 2004 
Page 639

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 
D. Operating Carryover 

 
Operating program appropriations not spent during the fiscal year will not automatically 
carry-over into the next fiscal year, and shall lapse at year-end, subject to 
reappropriation into the subsequent fiscal year, except for long-term projects in progress 
that are carried forward to the following year and reserved for encumbrances.  This 
policy shall not preclude the adoption by the City Council of an expenditure control 
program that may be designed as an incentive to encourage departments to achieve 
annual cost-savings to fund large capital expenditures.   

 
E. One-Time Revenues 

 
One-time revenues shall only be used for one-time expenditures.  Prior to allocating any 
one-time revenues, the Finance Director shall determine that such revenues are not 
being used to subsidize an imbalance between operating revenues and expenditures.  If 
the Finance Director determines that one-time revenues are needed to correct a 
structural imbalance, the Finance Director shall present the City Manager and City 
Council with a financial forecast demonstrating that the operating deficit will not 
continue.   

 
F. Internal Service Funds 

 
The City may establish and operate one or more Internal Service Funds.  Internal 
Service Funds shall be created to report any services that are provided to other City 
departments and the Cost Allocation Plan does not recoup that cost.  It is the policy of 
the City Council to minimize the creation of Internal Service Funds unless it is clearly 
established that no other fund type is applicable.  At the same time that it adopts the 
budget ordinance, the City Council must approve a balanced financial plan for each 
Internal Service Fund.  A financial plan is balanced when estimated expenditures do not 
exceed estimated revenue.   

 
G. Maintenance Accounts 

 
Equipment and buildings shall be maintained at reasonable levels to avoid service 
disruptions, and to achieve maximum useful life, and to ensure safety of employees and 
the public.  Maintenance and replacement funding shall be allocated each year 
consistent with this policy.   

 
H. Level of Contingency Appropriations 

 
A General Fund Contingency of 1% of total budgeted departmental expenditures shall 
be budgeted annually.  The Contingency Appropriation may be used to provide for 
unanticipated or unforeseen needs that arise during the year; for example, expenses 
associated with unforeseen weather or other natural disasters such as debris removal 
following a flood, unexpected liability created by federal or state legislation, new 
service needs that have been identified after the budget process, new public safety or 
health needs, revenue shortfalls, service enhancements, or opportunities to achieve cost 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 3 May 2004 
Page 640

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



savings.  Funds shall be allocated from the Contingency Fund only after an analysis has 
been prepared and presented by the Finance Director and City Manager to the City 
Council outlining the initial and recurring costs associated with the proposed 
expenditure.  Funds shall be allocated each year in the budget process to replace any use 
of the Contingency Fund during the preceding fiscal year and to maintain the balance of 
the Contingency Fund at one percent (1%) of budgeted departmental expenditures.  The 
Contingency Fund will be exhausted prior to any utilization of the Undesignated Fund 
Balance.  This fund is subject to the City Manager’s contract approval limit as defined 
in the Folsom Municipal Code. 

 
I. Strategic Plan Objectives 

 
The Annual Budget shall establish measurable program objectives consistent with the 
City’s Strategic Plan.  The status of major program objectives identified in the Annual 
Budget and the Strategic Plan shall be formally reported as part of the Quarterly 
Financial Report.   

 
IV. Budget Management 

 
A. Internal Controls 

 
A comprehensive system of financial internal controls shall be maintained to protect the 
City’s assets and sustain the integrity of the City’s financial systems.  Managers at all 
levels shall be responsible for implementing sound controls and for regularly 
monitoring and measuring their effectiveness. 

 
B. Revenue Forecast 

 
Revenue estimates shall be monitored on a monthly basis to identify any potential 
trends that would significantly impact revenue sources.  The Finance Director shall 
consult with stakeholders to review current local economic trends that may impact City 
revenues sources.  

 
C. Fiscal Impact Statement 
 

Effective management dictates that the City Council and citizens be presented with the 
direct and indirect costs of all items as part of the decision making process.  Items 
presented to the City Council for approval shall include a Statement of Projected Fiscal 
Impact.  Proposals that were not included in the annual budget work plan shall be 
identified, and funding shall be based on the identification of savings or additional 
revenue necessary to fund the unanticipated needs.  The Finance Director shall also 
review state and federal legislative items that might result in a fiscal or policy impact on 
the City and shall promptly report on such items to the City Manager and City Council. 

 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 4 May 2004 
Page 641

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



D. Quarterly Financial Report 
 

As required by Section 5.05R of the City Charter, the City Manager and the Finance 
Director shall submit a Quarterly Financial Report to the City Council after the end of 
each quarter of the fiscal year.  The Quarterly Financial Report shall analyze budgeted 
versus actual revenues and appropriations, expenditures and encumbrances on a 
year-to-date basis. 

 
E. Mid-Year Budget Review 

 
The City Manager and the Finance Director shall prepare and submit a mid-year budget 
review for the City Council’s review.  The report shall review the City’s fiscal 
condition, and amend appropriations if necessary.   

 
F. Appropriations During Fiscal Year 

 
1. Supplemental Appropriations 

 
As set forth in Section 5.05H of the City Charter, prior to the City Council making 
any supplemental appropriation, the City Manager shall certify that monies in 
excess of those estimated in the budget are available for appropriation.  Any such 
supplemental appropriation may be made for the fiscal year by resolution up to the 
amount of any available excess funds. 

 
2. Emergency Appropriations 
 

As set forth in Section 5.05I of the City Charter, the City Council, by four-fifths 
vote only, may make emergency appropriations to respond to a public emergency 
affecting life, health, public welfare, property or the public peace. 

 
3. Reductions in Appropriations 
 

Appropriations may be reduced any time during the fiscal year by the City Council 
or City Manager if it appears probable that either the revenues or fund balances 
available will be insufficient to finance the expenditures for which appropriations 
have been authorized.  The City Manager shall report any appropriation reductions 
to the City Council as required by Section 5.05J of the City Charter.   
 

4. Transfer of Funds 
 

The City Manager may transfer monies between departments and divisions, 
programs and accounts within departments and divisions as provided for in Section 
5.05K of the City Charter.  All such transfers made by the City Manager shall be 
reported in writing quarterly to the City Council.  Only the City Council, by 
resolution, may transfer monies between funds and from unappropriated balances 
or fund balances to any fund or appropriation account.  
 
 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 5 May 2004 
Page 642

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



G. Interfund Borrowing 
 

From time to time it becomes necessary for the City to loan funds from one fund to 
another.  If this need arises a written request shall be made to the Finance Director.  The 
Finance Director shall make a written recommendation to the City Manager regarding 
the request and the appropriate repayment schedule and interest rate.  If approved by the 
City Manager the Finance Department and the requesting department(s) shall prepare an 
agenda item seeking City Council approvals.  Any intrafund borrowing contemplated 
shall be consistent with documents establishing the fund. 

 
VI. Undesignated Fund Balances (Reserves)  

 
 A. General Fund Reserve 

 
The City shall maintain an Undesignated Fund Balance (reserve) for the General Fund 
of no less than 15% of the annual operating expenditures.  The Undesignated Fund 
Balance will be used to provide for temporary financing for unanticipated extraordinary 
needs of an emergency nature; for example, costs related to a natural disaster or 
calamity, economic recession, or an unexpected liability created by Federal or State 
legislative action.  Funds shall be appropriated from the Undesignated Fund Balance 
only after the Finance Director and the City Manager have prepared an analysis and 
presented to City Council.  The analysis shall provide sufficient evidence to establish 
that the remaining Undesignated Fund Balance is adequate to offset potential 
downturns in revenue sources and provide a sufficient cash balance for daily financial 
needs.  The analysis shall address the nature of the proposed expenditure and the 
revenue requirement in subsequent budget years.  Prior to allocating funds from the 
Undesignated Fund Balance, the City Council shall find that an emergency or 
extraordinary need exists to justify the use of these funds.  
 
Funds shall be allocated each year in the budget process to replace any use of the 
Undesignated Fund Balance during the preceding fiscal year to maintain the balance of 
the Undesignated Fund Balance at the percentage set forth herein.   

 
B.  Enterprise Funds 

 
The City shall strive to maintain sufficient reserves in its enterprise funds necessary to 
maintain cash flow requirements, and contingencies for unforeseen operating or capital 
needs. 

 
C.  Transfer of Amounts in Excess of Specified Reserve 

 
To the extent funds accumulate in excess of the percentage described in paragraph A, 
above, such funds shall be transferred to the Capital Projects Fund.  This transfer shall 
be made upon completion of the annual financial audit.  It is the intent of the City 
Council to affect such transfers through a Mid-Year Budget Resolution.  

City of Folsom Financial Policies 6 May 2004 
Page 643

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 
VI. Capital Improvement Plan 

 
As required by Section 5.05M of the City Charter and Folsom Municipal Code sections 
3.02.040, a Capital Improvement Plan (also known as a Capital Investment Plan or 
“CIP”) shall be prepared for the upcoming budget year and the next five fiscal years.  The 
purpose of the CIP is to systematically plan, schedule and finance capital projects to ensure 
cost-effectiveness as well as conformance with established funding and construction 
policies. The CIP shall reflect a balance between capital replacement projects that repair, 
replace or enhance existing facilities, equipment or infrastructure, and capital facility 
projects that significantly expand or add to the City’s existing fixed assets.  

 
A. Annual Adoption of CIP 

 
The City Council shall adopt the annual CIP that addresses all capital investments planned 
for the budget year and for the subsequent budget years at the same time as adoption of the 
Annual Budget.  

 
B. Annual Appropriation Requirement 

 
The capital budget represents only the first year of the CIP.  The primary difference 
between the capital budget and the CIP is that, through the annual Appropriation 
Resolution passed by the City Council, the Capital Budget legally authorizes 
expenditures during the upcoming fiscal year.  The CIP includes the first year 
projections as well as future projects for which financing has not been secured or legally 
authorized.  The funding allocation for future years of the CIP are therefore subject to 
change. 
 

C. Project Manager 
 
Every CIP will have a project manager who prepares the project proposal, ensures that 
required phases are completed on schedule, authorizes all project expenditures, ensures 
that all regulations and laws are observed, and periodically reports project status.  
 

D. Statement of Impact on the Operating Budget 
 
Each approved CIP project will contain a statement of impact on the annual operating 
budget. 

 
VII. Preserving Capital Investments 
 

The City invests in capital assets such as property, plant, equipment, facilities and 
infrastructure.  Preservation of such investments through regular maintenance and a long-
term renovation plan is necessary to preserve the value of such capital investments.  The 
City must also plan for the replacement of capital investments (particularly vehicles and 
equipment).  The following policy requirements are intended to ensure the preservation 
of capital investments and to provide a sound economic base for their replacement. 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 7 May 2004 
Page 644

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 
1. The budget shall provide sufficient funding for adequate maintenance, renovation 

and the orderly replacement of capital assets such as equipment, fleet, facilities, and 
parks. 

2.  All capital assets shall be maintained at a level that protects capital investment and 
minimizes future maintenance and replacement costs.   

3. A five-year schedule of equipment replacement and maintenance needs as well as 
facility and parks renovation and maintenance needs shall be prepared on an annual 
basis.  Expenditures consistent with such plans shall be included in annual budget 
appropriations. 

 
 
A. Parks Maintenance and Renovation 
 

a. Each budget year the Parks and Recreation Department shall present to the 
City Manager a budget request that includes the maintenance, operation and 
renovation costs for all parks in the City’s park system. 

b. If the City Manager concludes for fiscal or other operational reasons that full 
funding should not be included for the park maintenance, operations and 
renovation expenses, the City Manager shall explain such recommendations to 
the City Council as part of the annual budget presentation. 

c. The Finance Director shall segregate all park renovation funding in a separate 
account that shall be used only for renovation projects as outlined in the Park 
Renovation Plan. 

d. The City’s Annual Budget will include an update of the current funds available 
for park renovation and an updated five-year projection of park renovation 
funding requirements. 

 
B. Capital Assets 

 
The City defines capital assets as assets with an initial cost of more than $5,000 and 
an estimated life in excess of three years.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost 
or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are 
valued at their fair value on the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance 
and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives 
are not capitalized.  Property, plant and equipment, and depreciable infrastructure 
assets of the City shall be depreciated using the straight-line method over the 
following useful lives. 
 

Assets Years
Specialty equipment and vehicles 3-20
Computer and office equipment 3-7
Construction equipment 10-20
Buildings, facilities and improvements 10-40
Roads (surface only) 10-20
Utility underground systems 33-40
Bridges 99

 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 8 May 2004 
Page 645

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 
VIII. Debt Management 

 
The Debt Management Policy provides operating guidelines for all major debt 
transactions of the City.  Additional guidelines specifically applicable to land-secured 
(including Community Facilities Districts (“CFDs”) and Assessment Districts (“ADs”)) 
and conduit financings.  The Debt Management Policy addresses the following 
objectives: 
1. To guide the City Council and management in policy in debt issuance decisions 

having significant fiscal impact; 
2. To maintain appropriate capital assets for present and future needs; 
3. To promote sound financial management by providing accurate and timely 

information on financial condition; 
4. Protect and enhance the city's credit rating; 
5. To ensure the legal use of city bonding authority through an effective system of 

financial security and internal controls; 
6. To promote cooperation and coordination with other governments and the private 

sector in the financing and delivery of services; and 
7. Properly articulate the City’s policies and make them available to interested parties. 

 
A. Debt Management Approach 

 
The City will manage its debt to ensure high credit quality, access to credit markets, and 
financial flexibility.  This debt management program will lower the overall long-term 
cost of government for Folsom residents and businesses. 
 
1. Credit Quality 

 
All City debt management activities will be conducted to receive the highest credit 
ratings possible and then, at a minimum, to maintain at least the current credit 
ratings assigned to the City's debt by the major credit rating agencies.  The City 
shall use the following ratios, standards and limits to guide its maintenance of credit 
quality: 
a. Non-self supporting annual debt service will not exceed 25 percent of total 

annual general fund expenditures. 
b.  The City shall not exceed the statutory debt limits. 
c.  Overlapping debt (including debt from all other jurisdictions which tax 

Folsom taxpayers) will be taken into consideration in planning debt issuance. 
 

2. Standards for Use of Debt Financing 
 
Debt will be used only in those cases where public policy, equity, and economic 
efficiency favor debt over cash (pay-as-you-go) financing.  Whenever possible, the 
debt shall be self supporting.   

 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 9 May 2004 
Page 646

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



a. Long-Term Capital Projects:  Debt will be used primarily to finance long-term 
capital projects -- paying for the facilities or equipment over their useful life 
and concurrent with the stream of benefits from these facilities. 

b. Special Circumstances for Debt Issuance.  Debt may be used in special 
circumstances for other than long-term capital projects, only after careful 
policy evaluation by the City Council and management. 

c. Cash Financing of Capital Outlays.  To demonstrate the City's commitment to 
a continued capital program, to ensure careful consideration of the level of 
capital expenditures, and to enhance the City's overall creditworthiness, the 
City will continue to fund at least between 2 and 5 percent of the overall 
capital program from current resources, depending upon the specific projects 
and annual budgetary constraints. 

 
3. Record-Keeping 

 
The Finance Department will develop and maintain a central system for all debt-
related records.  At a minimum, this repository will include all official statements, 
bid documents, ordinances, indentures, leases, etc. for all City debt.  To the extent 
that official transcripts incorporate these documents, possession of a transcript will 
suffice.  The Finance Department will collect all available documentation for 
outstanding debt, and will develop a standard procedure for archiving transcripts 
for any new debt. 
 

4. Rebate Policy and System 
 
It will be the policy of the City to accurately account for all interest earnings in 
debt-related funds.  These records will be designed to ensure that the City is in 
compliance with all debt covenants, and with State and Federal laws.  The Finance 
Department shall maintain a system of reporting interest earnings, which relate to 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended, rebate, yield limits, and arbitrage.  The 
City's policy shall be to maximize the interest earning on all funds while 
minimizing rebates to the Federal Government. 
 

5. Disclosure and Market Relationships 
 
The Finance Director shall maintain a system of disclosure, which will ensure that 
investors, rating agencies and other interested parties are provided full and accurate 
disclosure of all matters relevant and material to each debt issue.  All City official 
statements will be designed to meet or exceed industry standard disclosure 
guidelines. 

 
a. Investment Community and Rating Agency Relationships:  Private decision 

makers and opinion-leaders in the investment community can have a 
significant effect on the City's borrowing cost.  In order to ensure the lowest 
possible cost of capital, the City shall seek to maintain positive relationships 
with all members of the investment community. 

 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 10 May 2004 
Page 647

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



The foundation of these positive relationships will be frequent, open, and 
effective communication of the City's financial status to these parties.  The 
Finance Director will seek to inform the investment community through a 
yearly publication detailing the financial health and fiscal forecasts of the City.  
Such publication shall be made available to all credit market participants. 

 
Except for all Mello-Roos and Assessment District Financings, the City will 
seek a rating, either directly or indirectly through the purchase of bond 
insurance.  The City will also seek a rating when appropriate for Mello-Roos 
and Assessment District debt. 

 
B. Financing Criteria 

 
1. Types of Debt 
 

a. Long-Term Debt  
Whenever possible, long-term debt shall be self-supporting and as such will be 
revenue debt, or revenue-backed with a general fund pledge.  Other long-term 
debt may be issued as best meets the City's needs. 

 
b. Short-Term Debt 
 

i. Bond Anticipation Notes (BANs) may be issued instead of capitalizing 
interest to reduce the debt service during the construction period of a 
project or facility.  The BANs shall not mature more than 3 years from the 
date of issuance.  BANs shall mature within 6 months after substantial 
completion of the financed facility. 

ii. Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes (TRANs) shall be issued only to meet 
actual cash flow needs and shall never exceed 10 percent of projected 
budget resources. 

iii. Lines of Credit shall be considered as an alternative to other short-term 
borrowing options.  The lines of credit shall be structured to limit concerns 
as to the Internal Revenue Code. 

 
2. Lease Purchase Debt 

 
Lease purchase debt, including certificates of participation, shall be considered as 
an alternative to long-term vendor leases.  Such debt shall be subject to annual 
appropriation.  In order to reduce the cost of lease borrowing and to improve 
control over leases, the City may adopt a master lease program.  Lease-purchase 
debt -- equipment and furnishings -- will not be issued for items, singularly or when 
aggregated, that cost less than $10,000 or that have a useful life of less than 3 years.  
Long-term non-self-supporting leases -- buildings and facilities -- will be used 
when the cost of leasing such buildings is more than or equal to the debt service 
paid for the lease purchase of such facilities. 
 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 11 May 2004 
Page 648

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



3. Variable Rate Debt 
 
The City shall consider variable rate debt only in the following circumstances: 

 
a. High Interest rates:  Interest rates are above historic average trends; 
b. Variable Revenue Stream: The revenue stream for repayment is variable, and is 

anticipated to move in the same direction as market-generated variable interest 
rates, or the dedication of revenues allows capacity for variability; 

c. Adequate Safeguards against Risk:  Financing structure and budgetary 
safeguards are in place to prevent adverse impacts from interest rate shifts;  
such structures could include, but are not limited to, interest rate caps; 

d. Finance Department Analysis:  A report from the Finance Director shall be 
forwarded to the City Council evaluating and quantifying the risks and returns 
involved in the variable rate financing and recommending variable rate as the 
lowest cost option. 

 
4. Swaps, Foreign Markets 

 
The City will not issue any foreign denominated debt nor engage in any interest 
rate swaps, unless such transactions have been first thoroughly evaluated and the 
risk exposure from such transactions is quantified and presented to the City Council 
for review. 
 

5. Terms and Conditions of Bonds 
 
All terms and conditions of City debt shall be established by the City Council with 
advice from the City Manager and Finance Director.  The Finance Director will 
control, manage and invest all bond proceeds, including those from land-secured or 
conduit project issued bonds.  Unless otherwise authorized by the City, the 
following shall serve as bond requirements: 
 
a. Term - If a single series of bonds is contemplated, the bonds will mature within 

a period that is no greater than twenty-five (25) years unless extended to more 
closely relate the final maturity to the useful life of the facility being financed.  
If multiple series of bonds are contemplated, the term of each series will be 
appropriately determined to meet the City's objectives. 

b. Capitalized Interest - Unless otherwise agreed to by the City, interest shall not 
be funded (capitalized) beyond two years or a shorter period if further 
restricted by statute. The City may require that capitalized interest on the initial 
series of bonds be funded from the proceeds of the bonds.  Interest earnings 
may, at the City's discretion, be applied to extend the term of capitalized 
interest but in no event beyond the term statutorily authorized. 

c. Debt Service Structure - Debt issuance shall be planned to achieve relatively 
rapid repayment of debt while still matching debt service to the useful life of 
facilities. Beginning with the commencement of the repayment of principal, 
annual debt service of the City's General Obligation indebtedness shall be 
retired on a level debt service basis unless project circumstances require 
otherwise.  In regard to Mello-Roos CFD debt, annual debt service may be 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 12 May 2004 
Page 649

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



level or may escalate up to a maximum of 2% per year, subject to restrictions 
imposed by applicable laws and regulations. To the extent that bonds are 
issued in series, individual series of bonds may have uneven debt service if the 
intent is to create level debt service at such time as all series of bonds are 
issued and to minimize the potential of a fluctuating annual debt service. 

d. Court Validation Proceedings - Upon advice of bond counsel and prior to the 
issuance of bonds, the City shall authorize its bond counsel to commence and 
process to final judgment an action establishing the validity of the proceedings, 
special tax and issuance of bonds. 

e. Underwriter’s Discount - The underwriter’s discount shall be negotiated and 
determined solely by the City and shall be competitive with and comparable to 
such discounts on similar financings being issued by the City or other public 
entities.  The City shall consider any other compensation the underwriter may 
be receiving in connection with the bond financing in determining the 
appropriate amount of the discount. 

f. Original Issue Discount - An original issue discount will be permitted only if 
the City determines that such discount results in lower total debt service 
payments, a lower true interest cost on the bonds and that, for land-secured 
financings, the use of an original issue discount will not adversely affect the 
ability of the financing district or conduit project to construct facilities 
identified by the bond documents. 

g. Multiple Series - In instances where multiple series of bonds are to be issued, 
the City shall make a final determination as to which facilities are of the 
highest priority and those facilities which will be financed first, pursuant to 
funding availability and the proposed timing of facilities development, and will 
be subject to the earliest or most senior lien except, when concerning land-
secured financing if the City and applicant/developer agree separately. 

 
6. Credit Enhancements 

 
The City will consider the use of credit enhancements on a case-by-case basis, 
evaluating the economic benefit versus cost for each case.  Only when a clearly 
demonstrable savings can be shown shall an enhancement be considered.  The City 
will consider each of the following enhancements as alternatives by evaluating the 
cost and benefit of such enhancements. 
 
a. Bond Insurance - The City shall have the authority to purchase bond insurance 

when such purchase is deemed prudent and advantageous.  The predominant 
determination shall be based on such insurance being less costly than the 
present value of the difference in the interest on the bonds insured versus 
uninsured. 

b. Debt Service Reserves - A reserve fund equal to the lesser of ten percent (10%) 
of the original principal amount of the bonds, maximum annual debt service or 
one-hundred-and-twenty-five percent (125%) of average annual debt service 
(the "Reserve Requirement") shall be funded from the proceeds of each series 
of bonds, subject to federal tax regulations.  The City shall have the authority 
to purchase reserve equivalents when such purchase is deemed prudent and 
advantageous.  Such equivalents shall be evaluated in comparison to cash 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 13 May 2004 
Page 650

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



funding of reserves on a net present value basis (i.e., the use of a reserve fund 
surety). 

c. Letters of Credit - The City shall have the authority to enter into a letter-of-
credit agreement when such an agreement is deemed prudent and 
advantageous. 

 
7. Refunding 

 
The Finance Director shall analyze all outstanding bond issues for refunding 
opportunities on a periodic basis.  Such review shall consider the benefits and costs 
of the proposed refinancing.   In addition, the City will accept refunding proposals 
from underwriting firms and financial advisors, which the Finance Director shall 
then analyze and verify.  The Finance Director shall consider the following 
issues/criteria in analyzing refunding possibilities: 
 
a. Debt Service Savings - The City shall consider refunding bonds if the 

refunding generates at least three (3) percent of the refunded bond principal 
amount or at least $750,000 (including foregone interest earnings) or that the 
refunding will capture at least 75% of the option value of the outstanding debt.  
The present value savings will be net of all costs related to the refinancing. 

b. Advance Refunding - The advance refunding of outstanding indebtedness may 
be appropriate to meet City service and financial objectives.  In giving its 
authorization for the advance refunding, the City will state the reasons and 
goals to be achieved by the refinancing, as well as acknowledging that each 
bond issue is allowed to be advance refunded only once.  The City will retain a 
verification agent to independently determine that the advance refunding 
escrow is sufficient to pay all necessary principal and interest payments for the 
refunded bonds. 

c. Restructuring - The City will refund debt to achieve a restructuring of its debt 
when it is in the best financial interest of the City to do so.  Such refundings 
will be limited to restructuring to meet unanticipated revenue expectations or 
to remove unduly restrictive bond covenants.   

d. Term of Refunding Issues - No refunding shall result in the extension of debt 
service payments beyond the term of the originally issued debt.  The term may 
be shortened to realize greater savings, but such shortening should be guided 
by the remaining useful life of the financed facility and the concept of inter-
generational equity. 

 
8. Methods of Issuance 
 

The City will issue all of its debt through competitive sale unless the Finance 
Director finds that the sale by negotiation would provide significant cost 
advantages to the City or eliminate or reduce certain risks such as those related to 
the timing of certain sales.  The Finance Department shall provide the City Council 
with a recommendation whenever a negotiated sale is contemplated. 
 
 
 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 14 May 2004 
Page 651

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



a. Methods of Issuance 
i. Competitive:  Sale of securities by competitive bid shall be the method of 

choice for general obligation debt and other types of debt on a case-by-
case basis. 

ii. Negotiated:  The City recognizes that some securities are best sold through 
negotiation.  The City shall elect to sell securities through this method if 
conditions exist that would otherwise limit the market access of the City 
for these securities.  The criteria to be used when evaluating the negotiated 
sale of indebtedness may include: 
1) Structure:  Whether the financial structure of the issue is simple and 

straightforward, or is complicated and/or a "story" bond; 
2) Capital Market Conditions:  Whether the capital markets are calm, 

changing little on a week- to-week basis, or if they are volatile and 
changing frequently. 

3) Security:  Whether the issue is Certificates of Participation of the 
City, Mello-Roos, Assessment District debt, or other types of debt on 
a case-by-case basis. 

iii. Private Placement:  From time to time the City may elect to privately 
place its debt.  Such placement shall only be authorized if this method is 
demonstrated to result in a cost savings to the City relative to other 
methods of debt issuance. 

 
b. Issuance Method Analysis:   

The City shall evaluate each method of issuance on a net present value basis, 
using the City's investment rate as the appropriate measure of the discount rate. 

 
c. Feasibility Analysis:   

Issuance of self-supporting revenue bonds may be accompanied by a feasibility 
projection or report demonstrating the projected revenue stream's ability to 
meet future debt service payments. 

 
9. Terms and Conditions of Sale 

 
The City shall establish the terms and conditions of the sale prior to the actual sale 
date.  In competitive sales the terms shall be approved by the Finance Director prior 
to the publication of the notice of sale.  In negotiated sales, the terms shall be set in 
an underwriting agreement at least five days prior to the pricing of the securities. 
a. General 

i. Call Provisions:  The Finance Director shall ensure that an analysis of the 
cost of all provisions for each financing is performed.  Based upon this 
analysis, the City's securities shall provide for redemption at the option of 
the City as early as current market conditions allow, given the appropriate 
cost-benefit to the City.  In general, the City's securities shall include an 
optional call feature no later than 10 years from the date of delivery of the 
bonds (and approximately 50% of the life of the last maturity for issues 
which are shorter than twenty years). 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 15 May 2004 
Page 652

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



ii. Purchase Offer Analysis:  Offers to purchase the City's debt will be 
analyzed according to the true interest cost method.  The interest 
calculation in this method determines the rate at which the present value of 
the debt service equals the par amount of the bonds less the discount (plus 
any premium) plus accrued interest. 

iii. Bond Denominations:  In general, the City's securities will have 
denominations of $5,000.  The City will consider denominations of less 
than $5,000 if targeting special markets or initiating mini-bond programs.  
When in the best interest of the City, Capital Appreciation Bonds (bonds 
which pay interest only at maturity and whose value at that time equals 
$5,000 or multiples thereof) will be considered as an alternative to 
traditional current interest bearing municipal securities.  When 
undertaking a project the City believes is necessary for its general health 
and welfare, but has higher-than-normal risks associated with it, the City 
may require denominations of greater than $5,000 to insure that only 
sophisticated buyers can purchase these bonds. 

 
b. Competitive Sale 

When conducting a competitive sale, the City will undertake to publish a 
Preliminary Official Statement (“POS”).  Such POS shall be prepared by the 
Finance Department with the assistance of an appointed disclosure counsel.  
The POS shall be in accordance to the standard heretofore mentioned.  The 
POS and final Official Statement shall be published according to timelines 
established by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) and other 
rulemaking bodies. 

 
i. Market:  The City shall inform the potential market for its securities on a 

timely basis prior to the sale date and make available sufficient POSs to 
assure the maximum number of bids for all of the City's sales.  The market 
for municipal securities is increasingly a national market.  In marketing 
the City's bond issues, trends, structures, and factors in the California 
regional markets as well as national credit markets should be considered.  
The City's marketing should be designed to take maximum advantage of 
the factors in both the national and regional markets, which will provide 
the lowest borrowing cost for City residents and businesses. 

ii. Official Bid Form:  The City shall make available an official bid form for 
all sales, which will be used by all bidders and provide a common 
structure for all bids. 

iii. Bid Constraints:  The City will list any constraints of the bid so desired.  
In general, the City shall not allow a discount to exceed 2 percent of the 
par amount of the securities.  Prevailing state and federal law should guide 
discounts and other bid constraints. 

iv. Award of Bid:  All bids shall be evaluated by the True Interest Cost 
Method (“TIC”).  Bids shall be awarded to the lowest TIC bidder. 

 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 16 May 2004 
Page 653

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



c. Negotiated Sale 
When the City's interests may be best served by a negotiated sale.   
i. Selection of Underwriter:  The City shall select the negotiated 

underwriter(s) through a request for proposal for underwriting services.  
The City may select more than one underwriter for a single issue.  
Underwriter selection will be based on the Firm's demonstrated experience 
and ability to market the type and size issue being contemplated, assigned 
personnel's experience with similar credits and structure, estimated costs 
and fees, and the proposed marketing plan. 

ii. Negotiating Techniques:  The City shall separate the negotiation of the 
terms of the bonds, the management fees, the expenses chargeable and the 
underwriting fees from the takedown and rate discussion.  The City shall 
receive a pre-pricing book, before the sale date, which will include 
comparable sales and a proposed rates and prices for the bonds.  On the 
day of the pricing, only interest rates, final financing structure and 
takedown will be discussed unless takedown has been previously agreed 
upon.  In cases where the bonds will be offered at an Original Issue 
Discount, this too may be discussed at the time of the sale. 

 
d. Private Placement 

From time to time the City may seek to privately place its securities.  The City 
will send inquiries to several investors seeking interest in such a placement.  
The City will seek bids from such private placements for its securities. 
 

e. Lease Purchase 
The City shall consider coordinating its lease purchase financings through the 
development of a master lease program.  The Finance Director shall submit the 
master lease purchase program to the City Manager and City Council for 
approval. 

 
C. Process 

 
1. Evaluation of Financing Options and Proposals  

a. Submission and Review of Financing Proposals   (City and/or land-secured 
new money debt) 

 
Early communication with the City is encouraged to assist applicants in 
evaluating the feasibility of available financing programs and to discuss 
program procedures.  The submission of a proposal does not guarantee the 
feasibility of a project or the City’s willingness to proceed with any project.  
A proposer’s completion of all or part of the proposal submission and review 
process neither creates nor implies any vested right to reimbursement by the 
City or any other public agency of costs incurred or revenues foregone.  

 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 17 May 2004 
Page 654

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



b. Assessment of Alternatives 
The review of financing proposals will include a review of all alternatives, 
including cash financing, which could lower the net present value of acquiring 
the capital asset. 
 

c. Establishment of Financing Priorities 
In evaluating individual financing proposals, the Finance Department will 
consider all pending financing requirements of the City.  This approach will 
allow the City to take a long-term strategic approach to each financing in 
order to ensure that each financing is completed efficiently, at the lowest cost, 
and will not negatively impact future City transactions. 

 
d. Adoption of Capital Financing Plan/Debt Calendar.   

The City will periodically adopt a Capital Financing Plan/Debt Calendar 
which will control all issuance of debt by the City.  No debt will be issued 
unless it has been included on the Debt Calendar.  The Finance Director 
should periodically update the Debt Calendar.  Authorization for refunding of 
outstanding debt that is sensitive to market rate fluctuations shall have a 
special approval process, which gives maximum authorization to the Finance 
Director to carry out such financings after the City Council has approved the 
refinancing within parameters such as: 

 
i. Minimum present value savings; 
ii. Maximum principal amount; 
iii. Maximum true interest cost; 
iv. Maximum final maturity; and 
v. Date this authorization terminates (no longer than the end of the 

current fiscal year). 
 

2. Use of Consultants 
 

The City shall select, retain, employ, and be responsible for, in its sole discretion, any 
consultants necessary for the formation of a special district, review of the financing, 
and the issuance and administration of bonds, including but not limited to the 
underwriter(s) and underwriters’ counsel; bond counsel; financial advisor; special tax 
consultant; engineers; appraiser; district administrator, market absorption study 
consultant; or any other consultant deemed necessary by the City in its judgment to 
complete the legal proceedings;  and financial analysis for issuance of bonds.  The 
cost reimbursement provisions of Section IV.D of this policy shall apply to all costs 
and expenses incurred by City in employing such consultants.   

 
An applicant/developer may retain its own consultants for its own benefit, but will 
work through those consultants hired by the City.  If the developer/applicant retains 
its own consultants, all costs associated therewith shall be borne by the 
developer/applicant. 

 
No firm may serve in more than one capacity as design engineer or special tax 
consultant on the same District pursuant to California Government Code.  Similarly, 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 18 May 2004 
Page 655

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



no firm may serve as a financial advisor or bond counsel during the planning stages 
for a district or conduit project and subsequently as underwriter or disclosure counsel 
for the bonds of the district or project. 

 
3. Land Use Approvals 

 
All proposed projects within the proposed district or project area, together with the 
infrastructure and public facilities, must be consistent with the City’s adopted General 
Plan, zoning classifications, and the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  
All property within the proposed district must possess land use determinations or 
zoning classifications of sufficient certainty, and facility requirements of sufficient 
specialty that each parcel can be adequately assessed. 

 
D. Additional Policies Regarding Land-Secured and Conduit Financing 

 
1. Purpose of Additional Policies Regarding Land-Secured and Conduit Financing 

The purpose of these Additional Policies Regarding Land-Secured and Conduit 
Financing is to facilitate the acquisition and construction of public facilities on 
commercial, industrial and residential properties in order to promote any of the 
following: 
a. The health and welfare of developed areas; 
b. The orderly development of the City; and 
c. The development of needed commercial or industrial property. 

 
2. Policy for Use of Public Financing for Public Facilities 

Factors to be considered in reviewing a request that a Community Facilities District 
(CFD) or an Assessment District be formed shall include but not be limited to the 
following: 

 
a. Whether there is a need for additional commercial, industrial or residential 

zoned lots in the City; 
b. Whether the inventory of existing improved parcels in the community is 

adequate for orderly development needs; 
c. If additional commercial, industrial or residential lots are desired in the City, 

and if the project's financial feasibility is dependent upon financing the 
public improvements with tax-exempt bonds; 

d. Whether the proposed assessment or special tax, when added to the existing 
public indebtedness in the area will result in an unusually high tax rate or 
collection charge, which tends to make the sale or use of property 
uneconomic. Total tax assessment including special taxes must be less than 
2%; and 

e. Whether the City anticipates debt issuance during the applicable calendar 
year for the purpose of general City operations, which might be precluded or 
negatively impacted as a result of an assessment district or CFD financing. 

 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 19 May 2004 
Page 656

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



The City encourages the development of commercial or industrial property.  The 
City Council will consider the use of community facility districts (hereinafter 
"CFDs") or special benefit assessment districts (hereinafter "Assessment 
Districts"), as well as other financing methods to assist these types of development.  
Where, in the City's opinion, the public facilities of a residential development 
represents a significant public benefit, this type or other appropriate types of public 
financing will also be considered. 

 
While recognizing that public facilities proposed to be financed must meet a public 
need and must benefit properties within the proposed development project, public 
benefit implies that a significant benefit will also result to the community at large.  
An example of significant public benefit is a public facility having regional impact 
such as a bridge, a freeway overpass, a regional water or wastewater treatment 
plant, etc.  Significant public benefit can also take the form of affordable housing 
through reduced housing costs, etc. 

 
Public financing will be permitted for real property public improvements that will 
benefit the ultimate property owner and whose useful life will be equal to or greater 
than the term of the bonds.   

 
The proposed development project must be consistent with the City's 
Comprehensive General Plan and have secured appropriate land use approvals from 
the City to allow for the implementation of the ultimate development of the area. 

 
Facilities, which are, upon completion, owned, operated or maintained by public 
agencies, shall be considered public facilities.  Limited exceptions will be made for 
certain facilities to be owned, operated or maintained by private utilities. 

 
An appraisal of the property subject to any lien required to secure any public 
financing shall be required.  A minimum property value to lien/debt ratio of 3:1 
(after inclusion of the public facilities being financed and including any 
overlapping assessment or community facilities districts) must be present pursuant 
to Premise 3 entitled, Bulk Land Value, as determined by an M.A.I. appraisal.  
Exceptions may be granted for commercial, industrial and mixed-use development 
projects.  The appraisal shall be reviewed by the City and shall be prepared 
according to the requirements discussed in Section H, below. 

 
3. Legal Environment 

 
Numerous laws codify assessment proceedings and bond issuance in California, 
with the most relevant, for purposes of the Policies, being the Municipal 
Improvement Act of 1913 (setting forth procedures for forming an assessment lien 
on property), the Improvement Bond Act of 1915 (providing a method of issuing 
bonds secured by those assessment liens), and Proposition 218.  The Improvement 
Act of 1911, routinely used by municipal issuers for small assessment projects, is 
rarely, if ever, used for developer-sponsored assessment financing  
 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 20 May 2004 
Page 657

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



The bonds shall be issued in accordance with the 1913, 1915 or Mello-Roos Bond 
Acts as determined jointly by the City and project proponents.  In the absence of a 
development agreement, no bonds shall be issued unless the City Council makes 
findings that a development agreement is not in the best interest of the City. 
 
Facilities shall be funded in accordance with the provisions of the Municipal 
Improvement Acts of 1911, 1913, and 1915 and the Mello-Roos Community 
Facilities Act of 1982 as amended.  In the event the acquisition provisions of the 
1913 Act are utilized, the City and the project proponent shall mutually agree upon 
the facilities to be acquired and the method of determining the construction costs 
incurred.  Furthermore, the project proponent shall be required to provide evidence 
satisfactory to the City of (1) competitive bids for the construction contract and (2) 
payment of prevailing wage with respect to such construction contact(s). 

 
4. Project Costs and Reimbursement Policies 

 
a. Costs incurred by the City prior to approval of project:  All costs incurred by 

the City prior to formation of a district or approval of a land-secured or a 
conduit project, including but not limited to consultant costs (e.g., legal 
counsel, engineering firms, appraisers, special tax consultants, financial 
advisors), City staff and administrative costs and related expenses, cost of 
providing notices, printing and publication costs, and all expenses directly or 
indirectly relating to these items, shall be reimbursed to the City by the 
applicant/developer prior to formation of the district or approval of the 
conduit project.  Reimbursement shall be facilitated by advance deposit 
increments as required by the City. At the City’s discretion, the City may 
consider as an alternative to a cash reimbursement by the applicant/developer, 
in-kind improvements which are dedicated to the City, and which have a value 
at least as great as the identified City costs.  The City may also allow the 
reimbursement to be accommodated for in the development agreement, which 
would stipulate that the City’s costs will be paid from bond proceeds. 

b. Costs incurred prior to bond closing:  If a district is formed or a conduit 
project is finalized, and if bonds are issued, the City may direct that a portion 
or all of the City’s costs be reimbursed and the consultant's costs be paid from 
bond proceeds. 

c. Costs incurred by the City subsequent to formation of district:  in the case of a 
land-secured financing, all City administrative and consultant costs related to 
administration of the district and incurred after formation shall be included 
within the assessment or special tax formula in accordance with applicable 
provisions of law. 

d. Reimbursement to applicant/developer 
i. Where district is formed or conduit project is approved and bonds 

are issued:  If the district is formed or conduit project is approved 
and bonds are issued, the applicant/developer shall be entitled to 
reimbursement from bond proceeds for all reasonable costs and 
expenses incident to the proceedings and construction of the 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 21 May 2004 
Page 658

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



facilities, subject to approval of the City Council, and subject to any 
applicable restrictions contained in the Improvement Acts, the Mello-
Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and other applicable laws 
and regulations as amended. With regard to applicant/developer paid 
consultant costs, reimbursement shall be limited to those project-
related consultants hired by the City or those hired by the 
developer/applicant and expressly approved by the City prior to 
expenses being incurred.  The City reserves the right, in the City’s 
sole discretion, to retain any independent consultant, which shall be 
at the applicant/developer’s cost, to review or audit project related 
costs, including, but not limited to applicant/developer paid costs.  
Eligibility for reimbursement for any otherwise-eligible expense is 
conditioned upon the applicant/developer providing paid invoices 
therefore to the City, and City approval. 

 
The applicant/developer shall not be entitled to reimbursement 
from bond proceeds for any of the following reasons:  interest 
expense incurred by the applicant/developer during the planning 
or design or construction (subject to the exception for 
construction-related interest expense, set forth below) of the 
public improvements, any other costs and expenses incurred by 
the applicant/developer which are not legally authorized for 
reimbursement, or as to which bond counsel has declined 
approval for reimbursement, and any costs not expressly 
approved by the City. 
 

ii. Where district is not formed (or conduit project is not approved), 
or where district is formed (or conduit project is approved) and 
bonds are not issued:  In the event that the district is not formed 
(or the project does not proceed) due to City disapproval or 
abandonment, or due to applicant/developer abandonment, or the 
district is formed (or the project is approved) and bonds are not 
issued for any reason, the City will refund to applicant/developer 
any remaining unexpended and unobligated portion of advance 
deposits posted with the City, subject to the City’s prior and full 
reimbursement of all its direct and indirect costs.  If the 
applicant/developer’s advance deposit to the City is not sufficient 
to reimburse the City for all of its direct and indirect costs, the 
City, at its sole discretion, will require an additional deposit by 
the applicant/developer for the difference.  The City shall be 
entitled to pay any refund to the applicant/developer listed on the 
application form without interest, irrespective of any changes in 
the ownership or composition of the applicant/developer. 

 
 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 22 May 2004 
Page 659

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



5. Jurisdictional Impact Study 
 

At the City’s discretion, a jurisdictional impact study may be required to determine 
the aggregate public service needs for the project.  Upon receipt of an application 
for public financing, the City may notify the other public entities having 
responsibility to service the proposed project and request comment on the 
application.  Periodic meetings, on a regional basis, with all affected public entities 
may be required by the City to address issues relative to overlapping debt and other 
considerations. 
 

6. Agreements Required 
 
The applicant will be required to enter into all agreements incident to district or 
conduit project proceedings as determined by the City in a form provided by the 
City and consistent with these policies.  These agreements may include, but not be 
limited to: 

 
a. Development Agreement 
b. Disposition and Development Agreement 
c. Acquisition Agreement 
d. Funding and Reimbursement Agreement 
e. Advance Deposit Agreement 
f. Land Dedication Agreement 
g. Other Agreements (as required) 

 
As a condition to the issuance and sale of the bonds, all of the agreements required 
by the City shall be duly approved and executed by the parties thereto.  Prior to 
execution of any agreements, the City Attorney, the Finance Director and the City’s 
bond counsel shall review such agreements.  Additional agreements and conditions 
are described below. 

 
All contracts for public improvements to be owned, operated or maintained by the 
City shall be solicited, let and administered as required by City policy. 
 
The proponents (developers) will covenant that bond proceeds will be used and 
dispersed at times and in the manner as specified on the resolutions forming the 
financing districts and other such agreements entered into with the City. 
 

7. Information Regarding Feasibility of Project 
 

a. Fiscal Feasibility Report - Prior to the formation of a financing district or 
project, a fiscal feasibility report may be required if a portion of the land 
within a district or project area is substantially undeveloped.  The report 
shall be prepared by or at the direction of the City.  All costs for preparing 
this report shall be borne by the applicant/developer. 

b. Property Owner Support - Where the formation of a district is 
applicant/developer initiated and where multiple property owners are 
involved, the district applicant shall be required to produce letters of support 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 23 May 2004 
Page 660

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



from the other property owners who are in favor of the district as an 
attachment to the district application.  The applicant/developer must 
demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the City, that the project has, or is likely to 
have, sufficient property owner support to meet all legal and statutory 
requirements, including but not limited to the Mello-Roos Act and 
Proposition 218. 

c. Market Absorption Study - An absorption study of the proposed 
development project may be required for land-secured financings.  The 
absorption study shall be used as a basis for verification that sufficient 
revenues can be produced and to determine if the financing of public 
facilities is appropriate given the timing of the development.  Additionally, 
the projected absorption rates will be provided to the appraiser for use in the 
appraisal required in Section H, below. 

 
8. Appraisal 

 
A current appraisal will be required of the property that comprises the financing district 
against which a lien will be placed to secure the bonded indebtedness to be incurred.  
The City may also require a current appraisal of the proposed conduit financing project 
in such cases that the City considers appropriate which may include but not be limited 
to the case in which the proposed debt issue is neither to be rated nor insured.  The 
appraisal will be made by an appraiser retained by the City and is to be made consistent 
with the following guidelines (with special emphasis on section five, “Form and 
Content of Appraisal”). 
 

a. Introduction 
The process of arriving at an appraised value outlined by the California Debt 
Advisory Commission’s Guidelines for Appraisal Services for Land-secured 
Financing may be summarized as follows: 

 
i. Statement of appraisal problem. 

ii. Required data and sources of data. 
iii. Gathering, recording and verification of data. 
iv. Determination of “highest and best use.” 
v. Estimation of land value. 

vi. Estimation of improvement value by relevant approach: 
1. sales comparison, 
2. cost (or replacement value), or 
3. income capitalization. 

vii. Reconciliation of results to concluded value. 
viii. Report of value with statement of limitations, conditions, and 

assumptions. 
 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 24 May 2004 
Page 661

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



b. The Appraiser - General Requirements 
Appraisals undertaken to establish value-to-lien ratios for land-secured 
financing can be complex, requiring the appraiser to interpret the 
significance of various financial and demographic data.  Because an 
appraisal essentially is an appraiser’s opinion of value, the City requires that 
the appraiser be qualified to render this opinion. 
 

i. City Oversight:  Appraisers must be selected from a “pre-qualified” 
list of appraisers determined by the City. 

ii. Credentials:  The appraiser will be accredited by the State of 
California Office of Real Estate Appraisers and be a Member of the 
Appraisal Institute (MAI), or have similar training, experience and 
qualifications as determined in the City’s sole discretion. 

iii. Independence:  The appraiser will be a member of City staff or an 
independent contractor retained by the City, rather than a land 
owner/developer.  No appraiser or review appraiser shall have any 
direct or indirect interest in the real property being appraised for the 
City that would in any way conflict with the preparation of or review 
of the appraisal.  Compensation for making an appraisal shall be 
neither based on the amount of the valuation, nor subject to 
contingency fee arrangements, nor based on successful sale of the 
bonds. 

 
c. The Appraisal Problem 

The appraiser will begin each assignment by defining the appraisal problem 
- that is, succinctly stating the objective of the appraisal.  The statement of 
the appraisal problem will identify (1) the property rights to be valued,  (2) 
the operative definition of value, and  (3) the specific date of the value 
estimate. 

i. Property Rights to be Valued:  Appraisals undertaken to establish 
value-to-lien ratios in CFDs and assessment districts will value the 
fee simple estate within the established district and subject to the 
special tax or assessment lien. 

ii. Definition of Value:  Appraisals undertaken to establish value-to-lien 
ratios in CFDs and assessment districts will estimate the market 
value of the subject property.  The market value estimate will be the 
bulk sale value for all vacant properties - both unimproved properties 
and improved or partially improved but unoccupied properties.  The 
bulk land value will include the property within the district as it is 
currently entitled with all appropriate zoning and in its current state 
of development, the value of the improvements to be financed with 
the proposed bond issue, if any, and the value of other improvements 
to be financed with any other cash escrow or security whose cash 
value is entirely controlled by the City. 

iii. Date of the Value Estimate:  The date of the value estimate should 
clearly be identified in the appraisal report.  The period between the 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 25 May 2004 
Page 662

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



date of the appraisal and the financing should be no more than four 
months, to accurately represent land values to prospective investors. 

 
d. Valuation Methods 

The first three valuation methods discussed in this section - the Sales 
Comparison Approach to Value, the Cost Approach to Value, and the 
Income Capitalization Approach to Value - form the core of modern real 
estate appraisal practices.  These valuation methods are appropriate for 
conventional appraisal assignments involving improved real property, but 
are less well suited to the valuation of unimproved land.  Appraisals of 
unimproved CFDs and assessment districts will additionally employ a 
Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) analysis based upon the bulk land value of the 
property appraised, the fourth valuation method discussed in this section.  
This section concludes with a brief discussion of Mass Appraisal techniques 
and an assessed value approach alternative.  An appraisal may include more 
than one appraisal method, depending on the status of the project. 
 

i. Sales Comparison Approach to Value:  The Sales Comparison 
Approach to Value offers the best indication of the market value of 
the subject property, because it is based on actual sales data.  This 
methodology is appropriate for most improved properties, but the 
absence of comparable sales data usually constrains its application to 
appraisals of unimproved CFDs and assessment districts.  The Sales 
Comparison approach, however, provides the analytical basis for 
estimating future retail value of presently unimproved properties, 
which may be incorporated into a Discounted Cash Flow analysis. 

ii. Cost Approach to Value:  The Cost Approach to Value is not 
appropriate for appraisals undertaken to establish value-to-lien ratios 
in CFDs and assessment districts.  Cost does not create value.  The 
Cost Approach may be useful, however, for adjusting for physical 
differences between properties under the Sales Comparison 
Approach. Sales Comparison appraisals can be adjusted to reflect 
infrastructure differences between different projects. 

iii. Income Capitalization Approach to Value:  The Income 
Capitalization Approach to Value is appropriate for retail value 
calculations of income-producing properties.  It also may be 
appropriate for estimating the future retail values of income-
producing properties for use in a Discounted Cash Flow analysis. 

iv. Discounted Cash Flow Analysis:   Discounted Cash Flow Analysis is 
appropriate for bulk sale valuations of unimproved properties and 
improved or partially improved but unoccupied properties.  
Discounted Cash  Flow valuations should rely on an absorption study 
to estimate how quickly properties can be developed and sold or 
leased to end users.  The expenses of converting raw land to finished 
product or improved lots must be deducted from gross cash flow to 
derive net cash flow prior to discounting.  The value of the public 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 26 May 2004 
Page 663

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



facilities to be financed with the contemplated bond financing will be 
included in the appraisal.  The discount rate should reflect the rates 
of return needed to attract debt and equity participation in the project 

v. Mass Appraisal Techniques:  When an entire tract or project has been 
built and fully absorbed, the appraiser may employ mass appraisal 
techniques, utilizing conservative per dwelling unit estimates. 

vi. Assessed Value:  If, based upon assessed value, the value-to-lien 
ratio of the project and 90% of the undeveloped parcels is greater 
than 5:1, then a separate appraisal may not be required at the City’s 
sole discretion.  If the assessed value of 90% of the undeveloped 
parcels is not greater than five times the amount of the lien, then the 
City can require an appraisal to be completed on the undeveloped 
portion of the project while it uses the assessed value for the 
developed portion. 

 
e. Form and Content Of Appraisal 

The appropriate format and level of appraisal documentation can vary 
according to its complexity.  A detailed appraisal will reflect nationally 
recognized appraisal standards, including, to the extent appropriate, the 
Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice.  Appraisal 
methodology and presentation of the results of the appraisal shall be 
presented in writing in either form report or narrative report, as required, by 
the Finance Director and City Manager.  

 
Appraisals should conform to the following specific criteria: 

 
i. Appraisals must be in writing, using either a “form report” (Uniform 

Commercial and Industrial Appraisal Report - Existing Property) or a 
“narrative report.” 

ii. Each appraisal shall clearly state the purpose of the report; a 
definition of the estate being appraised (i.e., fee, leasehold, etc.); and 
a description of the limiting conditions and assumptions underlying 
the appraisal. 

iii. Valuation dates shall be as determined by the City, but in no event 
more than 120 days prior to the sale of bonds.  To the extent 
practical, valuation dates on all properties shall be synchronized to a 
specific date, such as “October 1, 2002.” 

iv. A physical description of the property being appraised, along with a 
discussion of its “highest and best use,” land use regulations, present 
use and location. 

v. An opinion of value which specifically considers the value of the 
property (including individual parcels) with the completed public 
facilities (bond proceeds and other financial guarantees). 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 27 May 2004 
Page 664

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



vi. A certificate of the appraiser stating the absence of any direct or 
indirect interests in the property, along with a brief description of the 
appraiser’s qualifications. 

vii. Improvement description (to the extent information is practically 
available) 
(a) Land parcels which have been developed and subsequently sold 

should at minimum indicate land parcel size, number of lots, 
density, number of plans, square footage, year construction was 
initiated, year of completion, and when sales were initiated. 

(b) Land parcels with product under construction or with standing 
inventory should be described as in (a) above and include a 
summary of the stage of development including: number of 
residential units or buildings completed, number of buildings, 
status of buildings under construction, finished lots and mass-
graded or raw lots.  In addition, a comment on the marketability 
of the buildings (architecture, size, etc.) is appropriate. 

(c) Land parcels which have been developed with income-producing 
(or owner-occupied) commercial, industrial, offices, etc., should 
be described as follows: 

 
1. Commercial-Retail - Land parcel size; basic construction 

type; typical tenant improvements (and who is responsible for 
their construction); leaseable area, when construction was 
initiated; and date of completion. 

2. Industrial - Land parcel size; basic construction type, whether 
single or multi-tenant; typical office build-out as percentage 
of total area, when construction was initiated; and date of 
completion. 

3. Office - Land parcel size; basic construction type; typical 
tenant improvements/allowance; net rentable area, when 
construction was initiated; and date of completion. 

4. Residential - Land parcel size; basic construction type; 
whether single or multi-family; when construction was 
initiated; and date of completion 

 
9. Value-to-Lien Ratios 

 
The following guidelines describe the City’s general policy on value-to-lien ratios, 
however the requirements will be determined on a project by project basis and are 
subject to the City’s sole discretion. 

 
a. The District (or improvement area) property value-to-lien ratio should be 

at least 3:1 after including in the appraisal the value of the financed public 
facilities to be installed and including as part of the lien any prior or 
pending special taxes or improvement liens.  Individual properties within 
the boundaries of the proposed District must also meet the minimum 
value-to-lien ratio test of 3:1 on a parcel by parcel basis. 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 28 May 2004 
Page 665

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



b. If the value-to-lien ratio is 3:1 or greater for the entire district and if there 
is a value-to-lien ratio of 3:1 on at least 90% of vacant land in the district, 
the City may not require, at the City’s sole discretion, letters of credit or 
other security to secure payment of the special taxes to be levied annually 
on properties within the district. 

c. If the value-to-lien ratio is less than 3:1 for the district as a whole or on at 
least 90% of approved parcels in the district, the City may require either 
letters of credit or other security (assigned deposits, deposits to escrow) to 
secure payment of the special taxes/special assessments on properties 
within the district or may elect to abandon the district. 

 
10. Credit Enhancement 

 
Each bond issue shall be structured to adequately protect bondholders and to not 
negatively impact the bonding capacity or credit rating of the City through some 
combination of credit enhancement, foreclosure covenant, special reserve fund or 
deposits and/or a contractual commitment by the proponents and successors to pay 
the special taxes or assessments during at least the first four years of the bonds.  
Specifically: 

 
a. Financial Plan: Prior to City approval of the district or project, the 

applicant/developer may be required to submit a financial plan which 
demonstrates to the City’s satisfaction the applicant/developer’s ability to 
pay all assessments and/or special taxes through build out of the project. 

b. Credit Enhancement Requirements:  In general, where credit enhancement is 
required for the bond issue as a whole, in the opinion of the City, the 
applicant/developer shall provide such enhancement in such form as is 
approved by the City and the underwriters.  Such enhancement may, for 
example, be required in cases where the value-to-lien ratio for property 
within the district or project area is insufficient, and may take the form of 
letters of credit, policies of insurance, or other vehicles. 

c. Letter of Credit Requirements: With regard to the formation of either a 
Community Facilities District pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community 
Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, or a Special Assessment District 
pursuant to the Municipal Improvement Act of 1913, as amended, if a 
person or persons owning property within the proposed boundaries of a 
District will be responsible for payment of thirty-three percent (33%) or 
more of the total annual special tax or special assessment to be levied, then 
said property owner or owners may be required to provide a Letter of Credit 
naming the City as beneficiary.  In general, the following requirements 
apply to letters of credit: 

i. The term shall be the longer of one year, the length of time 
anticipated for the completion of the improvements, or the length of 
time anticipated for the subject parcel(s) to reach a sufficient value-
to-lien ratio, as determined by the City, an appraiser and market 
absorption consultant retained by the City, with automatic renewal 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 29 May 2004 
Page 666

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



unless canceled in writing by the City.  In addition, the letter of credit 
will terminate when the obligated party’s property holding has an 
annual special tax or special assessment liability of below thirty-three 
percent (33%) of the total annual special tax or special assessment to 
be levied.  New property owners responsible for thirty-three percent 
(33%) or more of the total annual special tax or special assessment 
may be required to provide a substitute Letter of Credit under the 
same terms and conditions described herein. 

ii. The Letter of Credit is to be in an amount equivalent to the gross debt 
service on the bonds allocable to the person's property for the current 
fiscal year and the succeeding fiscal year or in such other amount as 
is determined by the City.  The amount of the Letter of Credit will be 
proportionately reduced as the property owner sells portions of his or 
her property. 

iii. The letter of credit must be posted with the City in final form, 
properly authorized and executed, prior to City authorization to issue 
bonds for the district or project.  Irrevocable credit commitments, 
commitment letters, in-lieu letter of credit guarantee forms, or other 
similar instruments, will not be accepted. 

iv. The letter of credit shall be irrevocable, and issued for the benefit of 
the City on or before the date of the delivery of the bonds. 

v. The issuer of any Letter of Credit or other credit enhancement shall 
be a bank legally operating within the State of California, and which 
has a rating that is acceptable to the City Treasurer, including a 
Thompson Bank Watch rating of “C” or higher, or an equivalent 
rating by any other nationally recognized financial institution rating 
agency, and whose letters of credit are deemed marketable by the 
City for public financing purposes. 

vi. The City reserves the right to consider other forms of credit 
enhancement or bond guarantee which are determined by the City, in 
its sole discretion, to be a lawful and adequate substitute for a letter 
of credit. An irrevocable credit commitment, commitment letter or 
in-lieu Letter of Credit guarantee will not be accepted irrespective of 
whether capitalized interest is funded from bond proceeds. 

 
11. Refunding of Prior Issues 

 
The City may require that each new district or conduit project bond issue refund any 
prior issues, if they exist on properties included in the district or project area, in 
order to avoid subordinated liens.  Instances where prior issues may not require 
refunding are:   

a.  Where refunding of prior issues will result in higher interest costs;   
b.  Where there can be assurance that prior liens may pose no marketing 

problems for the new district or project area bonds; or   

City of Folsom Financial Policies 30 May 2004 
Page 667

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



c.  Where refunding of prior issues may present future administrative difficulties 
to the City or other affected public entities 

 
12. Security Supporting Financings 

 
a. Conduit Financings - Bonds issued through conduit financing mechanisms 

are to be supported by the flow of payments from the developer to whom the 
issuer of the bonds has loaned the bond proceeds.  Frequently, the repayment 
of the loaned proceeds is guaranteed by a letter of credit or similar credit 
support (as described in Section J: “Credit Enhancement,” above).  The 
requirement for a letter of credit on conduit financings shall be determined 
on a project by project basis and shall be at the sole discretion of the City. 
 

b. Limited Obligations - All statements and materials related to the sale of 
special tax bonds (CFDs) and Assessment District bonds shall emphasize 
and state that neither the faith, credit nor the taxing power of the City of 
Folsom, Sacramento County, the State of California, nor any other taxing 
entity, is pledged to the repayment of the bonds, nor is there an obligation of 
the City to replenish the reserve fund from revenue sources other than 
special taxes, annual assessments or proceeds from foreclosure proceedings. 

 
c. Technical Defaults - Concerning each CFD with outstanding bonds, all City 

departments and agencies with administrative responsibilities will notify the 
Finance Director and file a written report of the circumstances if an event of 
technical default has occurred or is likely to occur. 

 
d. Foreclosure Covenant - A foreclosure covenant may be required as follows: 

 
The City covenants for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds that it will 
commence appropriate foreclosure proceedings within one-hundred-and-
eighty (180) days of notice of a delinquency from the Auditor-Controller of 
the County of Sacramento in the Special Tax or Assessment Collections 
Department identifying the parcel(s) with respect to which the Special Tax 
has not been paid, and once existing delinquencies amount to at least (5%) of 
annual debt service and the City determines that the benefits are greater than 
the costs of pursuing foreclosure proceedings, the City will diligently pursue 
to completion such foreclosure proceedings.   
 
As used herein "benefits" are defined as either monetary (more revenue is 
generated than costs incurred) or non-monetary (prevention of bonds issued 
in the City's name from going into default). 

 
13. Special Taxes and Assessments 

 
Land-secured bonds are termed “limited obligations” whose primary repayment is 
secured, in the case of community facilities districts, by a special tax, or in case of 
assessment districts, by a confirmed assessment lien. 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 31 May 2004 
Page 668

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 
The rate and method of apportionment of the special tax must be both reasonable 
and equitable in apportioning the costs of the public facilities to be financed to each 
of the parcels within the boundaries of the proposed district. For an assessment 
district, as State Law requires, the apportionment of the assessment lien among the 
parcels comprising the proposed assessment district shall be based upon the direct 
and special benefit each parcel receives from the public facilities to be financed.  
For community facilities districts, the City prefers that this apportionment of costs 
be based on the benefit that each parcel is to receive from the public facilities 
financed. 

 
The projected special assessment and/or special tax, when added to the ad valorem 
property tax and other benefit assessments, special taxes levied for authorized but 
unissued debt, and any other anticipated special assessments, fees, taxes or charges 
which may be included on a property owner’s annual property tax bill, should not 
exceed two percent (2%) of the projected assessed value of each improved parcel 
within the district. A backup special tax to protect against changes in densities 
resulting in insufficient annual special tax revenues to pay annual debt service and 
administrative expenses shall be required. A formula to reimburse the special tax 
payments may be permitted. 
 

14. Special Tax Formula for Land-Secured Financing 
 

a. Maximum Overall Tax Burden 
The total of the following should not exceed two percent (2%) of the 
projected assessed value of the subject properties: 

 
i. Ad valorem property taxes levied by the City. 

ii. Voter approved ad valorem taxes levied by the City in excess of one 
percent (1%) of the assessed value. 

iii. Special taxes levied by any existing CFD for the payment of bonded 
indebtedness or on-going services. 

iv. Assessments levied for any assessment district or maintenance 
district for the payment of bonded indebtedness or services. 

v. The maximum special tax for the proposed CFD. 
vi. Any other fees or charges secured by the property. 

 
b. Maximum Special Tax 

The maximum special tax formula shall adhere to the following 
requirements: 

i. The maximum special tax submitted to the qualified voters of the 
district shall not exceed one percent (1%) of the projected assessed 
value of the developed properties at the time of full build-out of 
district formation.   

City of Folsom Financial Policies 32 May 2004 
Page 669

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



ii. In regard to CFDs, the total projected annual special tax revenues, 
less estimated annual administrative expenses, must exceed the 
projected annual gross debt service on the bonds by ten percent 
(10%).  Projected annual interest earnings (at current treasury yields) 
on bond reserve funds may also be included as revenue for the 
purpose of structuring the special tax.  Reserve fund interest earnings 
credit in excess of the foregoing will only be permitted if an 
investment agreement, satisfactory to the City, is secured at the time 
any bonds are sold and delivered. 

iii. The maximum special tax may be established when a developed 
parcel is first subject to the tax and shall include reasonable annual 
administrative expenses and other direct costs to the CFD. 

iv. Under limited circumstances, an increase in the maximum special tax 
will be permitted, not to exceed two percent (2%) annually for 
residential property. 

v. The City shall have discretion to allow a special tax in excess of the 
two percent (2%) maximum tax burden limits for any commercial or 
industrial lands within the district.  The City may allow exceptions to 
the maximum tax burden in situations where the excess tax burden 
would not affect the marketability of the district lands, or the credit 
quality or flexibility of future City financing. 

vi. All property not otherwise statutorily exempted or owned (or to be 
owned) by a public entity shall bear its appropriate share of the 
special tax liability. The special tax may be apportioned on the basis 
of benefit to all categories and classes of property within the CFD.  
The apportionment should be based upon ultimate use of the 
property. 

 
15. Special Tax Consultant Report 

 
The City shall retain a special tax consultant to prepare a report which: 

a. Recommends a special tax for the proposed CFD, and 
b. Evaluates the proposed special tax in light of its ability to adequately fund 

identified public facilities, City administrative costs and services (if 
applicable) and other related expenditures.  Such analysis shall also address 
the resulting aggregate tax burden of all proposed special taxes plus existing 
special taxes, ad valorem taxes and assessments on the properties within the 
CFD. 

 
16. Disclosure and Notification Requirements 

 
a. Proposal 

At the time of proposal submission and prior to the sale and issuance of any 
bonds, the applicant/developer must demonstrate the financial wherewithal 
to complete the project by meeting the City’s requests for information which 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 33 May 2004 
Page 670

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



may include but not be limited to the following: a pro forma of the project, a 
Dunn and Bradstreet Report, and disclosure of material events, including 
bankruptcy filings and outstanding liens.  In addition, the applicant for a 
land-secured or conduit debt issue and all property owners within the 
boundaries of the proposed financing district or project area that will be 
responsible for twenty percent (20%) or more of the debt service on the 
bonded indebtedness to be incurred shall, at the request of the City, provide 
financial statements (preferably audited) for the current and prior two fiscal 
years if such financial statements are already done in the normal course of 
business (as covered in SEC rule 15(c)2-12). This requirement may be 
adjusted appropriately if the proposed debt issue is to be rated or insured or 
otherwise guaranteed by an appropriate credit enhancement.  The applicant 
shall also provide all other financial information related to the proposed 
project that may be requested by the City.  The City reserves the right to 
reject a project based on failure to comply with the City’s disclosure 
requirements if the City determines, in the City’s sole discretion, that facts or 
circumstances relating to disclosure may have a material effect on the 
applicant/developer’s ability to implement the project. 

 
In order to obtain appropriate disclosure information on the 
developer/applicant, the City shall require the developer/applicant to 
complete an information questionnaire similar to Attachment A.  Failure to 
fill out the questionnaire to the City’s sole satisfaction will be the basis for 
the City’s rejection of the application. 

 
b. Notification of Intention to Form a District 

When an assessment district or CFD is formed by petition of the property 
owners or by direct action of the City Council, all property owners and 
holders of first deeds of trust on property within the proposed district will be 
notified of the procedures undertaken to establish such a district and the 
public hearing to be held not less than thirty (30) days after the City adopts 
the Resolution of Intention. 

 
c. Offering Statements 

It is the intent of the City to comply with all applicable federal or state 
requirements regarding disclosure to insure that fair and accurate 
descriptions of debt issues are provided to the purchasers of the bonds.  
Decisions as to the adequacy of the disclosure will be determined by the 
Finance Director, the City Attorney, bond counsel, financial advisor and 
underwriter or disclosure counsel.  No preliminary or final offering 
statement for a particular land-secured financing will be released for 
circulation unless it is deemed final by the City. 

 
The proponent(s) of a particular land-secured or conduit financing and all 
principal participants therein are expected to provide the information 
requested by the Finance Director, the City Attorney, financial advisor, the 
underwriter, disclosure counsel or bond counsel that is deemed necessary for 
disclosure purposes.  Failure on the part of the proponent and any principal 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 34 May 2004 
Page 671

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



participants to comply with such requests will jeopardize completion of the 
debt issue. 

 
The proponent of a particular land-secured financing and all principal 
participants therein will be required to execute those certificates and provide 
those written opinions of their respective counsel that are required by the 
terms of the bond purchase agreement.  Failure to do so will result in the 
bonds not being issued and sold. 

 
d. Continuing Disclosure 

The developer will comply with federal and state securities laws and SEC 
rule 15(c)2-12 requirements concerning secondary market (continuing) 
disclosure as those requirements are interpreted by the City and its counsel. 

 
e. Notice to Future Purchasers of District Properties 

The following provisions apply to land-secured financings.  The 
applicant/developer shall be responsible for compliance with all applicable 
federal and state statutory disclosure requirements, as well as any additional 
City requirements, in transactions with purchasers of properties within the 
district.   

 
i. Community Facilities Districts: The Mello-Roos Community 

Facilities Act requires that certain disclosure certificates regarding 
the existence of a community facilities district and the special tax 
obligation be provided to those individuals purchasing property 
within the district.  The City will require that the statutorily 
prescribed disclosure be made to the initial purchaser of property 
within a community facilities district, and it will make available the 
information necessary to complete the disclosure certificate required 
for secondary transfers.  In its sole discretion, the City may require 
additional disclosure if to do so will aid subsequent purchasers to be 
made aware of the existence of the community facilities district and 
the lien obligations created by the special tax. 

ii. Assessment Districts: Consistent with the applicable provisions of the 
Streets and Highways Code dealing with notice as to the existence of 
an assessment district, the City considers the recordation of the 
notice of assessment lien with regard to a parcel sufficient notice as 
to the existence of an assessment district and the amount of the lien. 

 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 35 May 2004 
Page 672

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 
IX. Strengthening Financial Position 

 
Development projections indicate that the City shall reach build-out in approximately 
2009-2010.  At this time, revenue sources shall begin to stabilize.  To preserve General 
Fund revenues, the City will need to take proactive steps to strengthen its financial 
condition.  The following policies shall guide those efforts.  
 
A.  Diversified Economy and Revenues 
 

1.  Preservation of Commercial and Industrial Development Opportunities 
 

The City shall diversify its economic base by encouraging a broad range of private 
sector commercial and industrial employment.  While it is important to maintain an 
inventory of land zoned for residential use, the City shall carefully consider 
economic impacts before rezoning any commercial or industrial land to residential 
use with any proposed rezoning from commercial or industrial land use to 
residential land use.  The City Council shall be presented with an analysis of trend 
data comparing percentages of residential development to commercial/industrial 
development.   
 
2.  Jobs/Housing Balance 
 
The City shall implement growth principles designed to encourage an equal ratio of 
jobs to housing, and shall encourage the expansion of businesses that will provide 
opportunities for Folsom residents to work in their home community.   
 
3.  Effect of Fees/Charges/Rates on Commercial and Industrial Development 
 
In setting fees, charges, and/or rates on commercial and industrial development, the 
City shall evaluate the comparative fee structure of other neighboring jurisdictions.  
The City shall strive to implement fees, charges and/or rates that are competitive 
with other jurisdictions and that shall not have a negative impact on sales tax or 
other valuable sources of revenue.   

 
B.  Economic Incentives for Commercial and Industrial Development 

 
The City shall provide economic incentives for commercial and/or industrial 
development when such incentives shall lead to a positive economic return for the City 
in terms of jobs, workforce housing opportunities, enhanced revenues, a more 
diversified economic base, or enhanced transportation or other public services.  Any 
economic incentive policies shall be attached as an Appendix to this document.   

City of Folsom Financial Policies 36 May 2004 
Page 673

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 
C. Redevelopment Revenues 

 
Within the boundaries of the Redevelopment Agency, property tax increment revenues 
are a resource for housing-related subsidies, and also provide resources to support 
commercial and industrial business expansion.  Consistent with the statutory goal of 
eliminating blight and the adopted Redevelopment Plan, the Redevelopment Agency 
shall develop and implement a long-term economic plan that leverages the use of 
available property tax increment and other redevelopment revenues in a manner that 
sustains ongoing property tax growth and provides increased opportunities for 
enhancement of property values within the Redevelopment Agency boundaries.  The 
Redevelopment Agency shall develop an appropriate balance between investment of 
Redevelopment revenues in public projects within the Redevelopment Agency 
boundaries and private development opportunities.  The Redevelopment Agency shall 
also consider the generation of increased sales tax revenues and the creation of a stable 
and diverse economic base in evaluating opportunities for the investment of property 
tax increment. 
 

D. Intergovernmental Revenues  
 
1. Grants 

 
Grants from federal, state or private organizations are an appropriate and desirable 
means of enhancing available revenues.  However, grant funding is rarely a 
long-term, stable economic base.  The following policies shall ensure that grant 
funding is appropriately leveraged to enhance City services. 
 
a. Grant Applications 

 
Requests to the City Council for approval of a grant application shall identify 
anticipated long-term maintenance and/or renovation costs, required City 
matching funds, and additional personnel that may be needed if the grant is 
awarded for a capital project.  With respect to grants for staffing, the source of 
funds for long-term staffing after the expiration of the grant shall also be 
identified in the request for approval of the grant application. 

 
b. Grant Administration 

 
All grants and other federal and state funds shall be managed to comply with 
the laws, regulations, and guidance of the grantor, and all gifts and donations 
shall be managed and expended according to the wishes and instructions of the 
donor.  
 

c. Grant Project Resolutions 
 
All grants received from the Federal or State government for operating or 
capital purposes shall be recognized in separate grant project resolutions.  A 
balanced grant project resolution must be adopted prior to beginning the 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 37 May 2004 
Page 674

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



project.  A grant project resolution is balanced when estimated expenditures do 
not exceed estimated revenue.  Information on each grant project resolution 
shall be included in the Annual Budget.  
 

d. Review by Finance Department 
All grant applications on behalf of the City shall be reviewed by the Finance 
Director before submittal to the City Council or the grantor. 

 
2. State Shared Revenues  

 
To protect against fluctuations in intergovernmental revenues.  The City shall 
maintain fifteen percent in undesignated fund balance as a reserve against 
unanticipated or uncontrollable reductions in state subventions. 

 
E. Cost Allocation Charges 

 
The City Council recognizes that certain administrative functions are performed for 
services that are funded by fees, rates or other service charges.  The General Fund 
should be reimbursed for the cost of such services when the administrative functions are 
performed by City staff paid out of General Fund revenues (e.g., legal, finance and 
personnel).  To preserve General Fund revenue and to properly allocate the cost of such 
administrative services, Enterprise and Special Revenue Funds shall be charged for 
administrative services in an amount equal to the value of the time spent on such 
services.  The process for determining Cost Allocation shall be determined by the 
Finance Director, and shall be revised from time to time as may be necessary.  In each 
Annual Budget, the amount charged to an Enterprise or Special Revenue Fund shall be 
separately identified as a “Transfer Out.”  The Cost Allocation amount shall be 
examined annually and adjusted as deemed necessary to respond to changes in cost of 
service. 

 
F. User Fee Cost Recovery 

 
The City provides certain services to Folsom residents and business that are funded in 
whole or in part by fees that are intended to cover all or a portion of the cost of 
providing such services.  To the extent User Fees do not cover the entire cost of 
providing such services; the General Fund subsidizes the additional expense.  Careful 
examination of User Fees shall enhance the stability of the General Fund.  The 
following policies shall be implemented to ensure that User Fees keep pace with 
changes in the cost-of-living as well as changes in methods or levels of service delivery. 
 
1. General Principles  

 
a. Revenues derived from User Fees shall not exceed the reasonable cost of 

providing the service. 
 
b. Cost recovery goals shall be based on the total cost of delivering the service, 

including all direct costs, departmental administration costs, and organization-

City of Folsom Financial Policies 38 May 2004 
Page 675

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



wide support costs such as accounting, personnel, data processing, building 
and/or vehicle maintenance, and insurance. 

 
c. The method of assessing and collecting fees shall be as simple as possible in 

order to reduce the administrative cost of collection.  Although a high cost of 
recovery may be appropriate for specific services, if it is impractical or costly 
to charge the user, a lower level of cost recovery shall be appropriate. 

 
d. Fee levels shall be sensitive to the “market” for similar services, including the 

provision of services by private sector service or program providers.  User Fees 
shall not be set so high that services shall not be used.  Conversely, User Fees 
shall not be set so low that the City is stimulating a demand by artificially low 
prices.  Specifically, the City shall carefully consider whether it is appropriate 
to provide services at a subsidized cost (or a cost that does not include all cost 
of services, such as room rental costs, building maintenance or personnel 
charges) if such services are available through the private sector.   

 
e. Fee levels shall be sensitive to smaller, infrequent users of the service, for 

example, small businesses that may have less of an opportunity to recover the 
cost of User Fees through ordinary business income. 

 
f. The level of cost recovery should consider the community-wide versus special 

benefit of the program or activity that is the subject of the User Fee.  The use 
of general-purpose revenues shall be appropriate for community-wide services, 
while User Fees at some level shall be appropriate for services that are of 
special benefit to easily identified individuals or groups.  (For example, it 
would be unusual to charge a User Fee for a community-wide event such as an 
Easter Egg Hunt, while it would be appropriate to charge a User Fee at some 
level for an adult recreational program with a limited number of participants.) 

 
g. The level of cost recovery shall consider the financial benefit to the service 

user, and whether the user is a service driver or a service recipient.  In cases 
where there user benefits financially from the provision of the service, and the 
service would not be provided but for the expanded business or revenue 
opportunities, the level of User Fee should more closely approximate 100% 
cost recovery.  (For example, a developer receives financial benefit at the 
conclusion of the development review process, and the City would not provide 
the review of development applications but for the expanded business or 
revenue opportunity for the developer.  While the community may be the 
actual service recipient of the review of development applications, the 
developer is the service driver.) 
 

2. Factors Favoring High Levels of Cost Recovery.  High cost recovery levels are 
especially appropriate in the following circumstances:  

 
a. The service is similar to services provided through the private sector.  

 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 39 May 2004 
Page 676

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



b. Other private or public sector alternatives could or do exist for the delivery of 
the service. 
 

c. The demand for the service is high and cost of service is needed as a 
mechanism to help control demand. 
 

d. The cost of service can be used as a mechanism for encouraging compliance 
with the law.  (For example, police response to false burglary alarm calls.) 
 

e. The service is regulatory and voluntary compliance is not expected to be the 
primary method of detecting failure to meet regulatory requirements.  (For 
example, building permit, plan checks and subdivision review services.) 
 

3. Factors Favoring Low Levels of Cost Recovery.  In addition to the general policy 
considerations noted above, low cost recovery levels are appropriate in the 
following circumstances:  

 
a. The program or services falls within the range of general public services which 

are provided to the community to promote the general safety, health and 
well-being of the community, and there is no intended relationship between the 
amount paid and the benefit received.    (For example, police and fire services, 
general access to park facilities.)  
 

b. The service is not generally available through private sources and is necessary 
to promote the general safety, health and well-being of the community.  (For 
example, teen after school programs.) 
 

c. The service is generally non-recurring, delivered on a “peak demand” or 
emergency basis, cannot reasonably be planned for on an individual basis, and 
is not readily available from a private sector source.  (For example, police and 
fire services in response to emergencies.) 
 

d. Collecting fees would discourage compliance with regulatory requirements and 
adherence to regulatory requirements is not readily identified by the City.  (For 
example, home-based business licenses.) 
 

4. Periodic Adjustment of User Fees.  A comprehensive analysis of User Fees shall be 
made at least every three years.  In the interim, if applicable, fees shall be adjusted 
by no less than the amount of the annual change in the Consumer Price Index.  Fees 
may also be adjusted more frequently than every three years based on supplemental 
analysis whenever there has been significant change in the method, level or cost of 
service delivery.  A schedule reporting the rate of all User Fees shall be included as 
an Appendix to the mid-year budget review, and the City Council may direct 
adjustment in User Fees as part of the annual budget process.  

 
5. Recreation Programs.  Consistent with the policies described above, the following 

cost recovery policies apply to the City’s recreation programs.  
 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 40 May 2004 
Page 677

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



a. Cost recovery for activities directed to adults should be relatively high.  
 
 

b. Cost recovery for activities directed to youth and seniors should be relatively 
low.  In those circumstances where services are similar to those provided in the 
private sector, cost recovery levels should be higher. 
 

c. Differential rates may be established for User Fees for non-residents whenever 
there is not full cost recovery for a program.  Differential rates may not be 
appropriate if the higher User Fee for non-residents reduces attendance and 
there is no appreciable savings in the cost of providing the program with a 
lower number of participants. 
 

d. The following cost recovery goals shall be considered in establishing 
recreational User Fees.  These goals are not mandatory, and given appropriate 
analysis may not apply to a particular program. 
 
High-Range Cost Recovery Activities (75-100%): 
i. Adult and special interest classes 
ii. Day care services 
iii. Adult sports 
 
Mid-Range Cost Recovery Activities (50-75%): 
i. City library room rentals.  
ii. Fee based special events sponsored by the City. 
iii. Youth sports and special interest classes 
iv. Indoor and outdoor facility and equipment rentals 
 
Low-Range Cost Recovery Activities (0-50%) 
v. Teen services.  
vi. Senior Services. 
vii. Zoo Entrance Fees 
viii. Non fee based special events sponsored by the City 

 
e. Charges shall be assessed for the use of rooms, swimming pool, gymnasiums, 

ball fields, special-use areas, and recreational equipment for activities that are 
not sponsored or co-sponsored by the City.  Such charges shall generally 
conform to the guidelines for cost recovery described above.  However, the 
Parks and Recreation Director is authorized to charge fees that are closer to full 
cost recovery for facilities that are heavily used at peak times and include a 
majority of non-resident users.  

 
f. A vendor charge shall be assessed from individuals or organizations that use 

City facilities for money-making activities based on mutual agreement between 
the City and the vendor. 
 

g. The Parks and Recreation Director is authorized to offer reduced fees such as 
introductory rates, family discounts and coupon discounts on a pilot basis to 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 41 May 2004 
Page 678

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



promote new recreation programs or to increase attendance at existing 
programs.  All such special rate programs shall be enumerated in the mid-year 
budget report to the City Council. 
 

h. Fees for City facilities and/or programs shall only be waived if the City 
Manager or his/her designee determines in writing that an undue hardship 
exists or overriding circumstances justify the benefits. 

 
6. Development Review Programs.  Cost recovery for development review programs 

shall be very high, and in most cases the goal for cost recovery should be 100%.  
The City shall also impose clear performance standards to ensure that there is high 
value for services rendered.  This cost recovery principle applies to the following 
types of development review programs:  

 
a. Planning (planned development permits, tentative and parcel maps, rezonings, 

general plan amendments, variances, use permits, etc.) 
 

b. Building and safety inspections (building permits, structural plan checks, fire 
inspections, etc.) 
 

c. Engineering (public improvement plan checks, inspections, subdivision 
requirements, encroachments, etc.) 
 

G. Enterprise Fund Rates 
 

The City operates sewer, water and solid waste Enterprise Funds.  Each of the 
Enterprise Funds shall be operated in a manner to fully cover the total direct and 
indirect costs (including operations, capital outlay and debt service) for operating such 
functions so as to avoid General Fund subsidies for enterprise operations.  

 
1. Rates shall be reviewed on an annual basis and shall be adjusted as appropriate and 

equitable.  
 

2. Rates charged for enterprise activities shall be compared periodically against rates 
charged by other public agencies for purposes of benchmarking cost of service and 
operations.  Private contracting opportunities shall be evaluated as appropriate as a 
means of reducing expenses, while remaining in compliance with Sections 5.04 
Purchasing and Contracting and 7.01 Conflicts of Interest of the Charter. 

 
3. Collections 

 
The City shall implement a uniform collection policy pursuant to the Folsom 
Municipal Code section 1.09.062. The costs of this collection procedure shall be 
reviewed annually to ensure the total direct and indirect costs are fully covered. The 
costs shall be passed on to the delinquent customers as a penalty in the collection 
process. 
 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 42 May 2004 
Page 679

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



The following options for collection are defined in the Folsom Municipal Code 
section 1.09.062. 
 
a. Property Liens.  After a small claims judgment, a lien shall be placed on the 

property should the owner fail to pay utility charges, penalties and interest 
charges. 

 
b. Special Assessments.   A resolution must be presented to the City council to 

declare a special assessment on a delinquent customer’s real property. Upon 
passage and adoption a certified copy shall be recorded with the Sacramento 
County recorder’s office. The assessment shall be collected at the same time 
and in the same manner as ordinary municipal taxes. 

 
c. Withholding Entitlements.   The City may withhold issuing any licenses, 

permits and other entitlements until payment for the utility charges, penalty and 
interest is received. 

 
d. Collection Agency (other enforcement procedures).  The City can take other 

actions allowed for enforcement of a civil judgment. Collection agency fees 
shall be passed on to the customer through penalty and interest charges 
therefore avoiding gifting of public funds. 

 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 43 May 2004 
Page 680

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



X. Investments 
 

The Investment Policy provides operating guidelines for the investment of City monies.  
It is the primary duty of the City officers having investment responsibility to protect, 
preserve and maintain the cash and investments placed in their trust on behalf of the 
citizens of the City. 
 
A.  Policy Adoption 

 
Annually, in accordance with the Folsom Municipal Code, Chapter 30.30.030 (I.), and 
the California Government Code, Section 53646, the City Council shall consider and 
approve a Statement of Investment Policy at a public meeting.  Any modifications made 
to the investment policy must be approved by the City Council during this annual 
process. 

 
B.  Delegation of Authority 

 
The California Government Code allows for the delegation of investment authority to the 
Treasurer for a one-year period, to be renewed annually.  This action shall be performed 
in conjunction with the City Council’s annual adoption of the investment policy, unless 
otherwise necessary throughout the year. 
 
Authority to manage the City’s investment program is derived from Section 2.11.080 of 
the Municipal Code.  Management responsibility for the investment program is hereby 
delegated to the Finance Director/Treasurer, who may delegate investment program 
management functions to others.   
 
The Finance Director/Treasurer shall be responsible for all transactions undertaken and 
shall maintain a system of internal controls to regulate the activities of subordinate 
officials to whom investment management functions have been delegated. 

 
C.  Scope 

 
This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the City of Folsom, including the 
Folsom Redevelopment Agency and the Folsom Public Financing Authority.  These 
assets are accounted for in the City of Folsom Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
and include: 

   
1. General Fund 
2. Special Revenue Funds 
3. Capital Project Funds 
4. Enterprise Funds 
5. Debt Service Funds 
6. Trust and Agency Funds 
7. Internal Service Funds 
 
 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 44 May 2004 
Page 681

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



D.  Prudence 
 

Investments shall be made with judgment and care – under circumstances then prevailing 
– that persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of 
their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety 
of their capital, their liquidity needs, as well as the probable income to be derived. 
 
The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the Prudent Investor 
Standard as set out in Government Code Section 53600.3.  This standard shall be applied 
in the context of managing an overall portfolio.  Investment officers acting in accordance 
with written procedures and the investment policy and exercising due diligence shall be 
relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security’s credit risk or market price 
changes, provided deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and 
appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments. 

 
E.  Objectives 

 
The City’s primary investment objectives, in priority order as per Government Code 
Section 53600.5, are: 
 
1. Safety 

Safety of principal is the primary objective of the investment program.  
Investment transactions shall be made in a manner that seeks to minimize credit 
risk, and ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio.   
To attain this objective, the City shall limit investments to the safest types of 
investment grade securities and diversify investments among a variety of 
securities and financial institutions offering independent returns. 

 
2. Liquidity 

The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to enable the City to 
meet all reasonably anticipated operating requirements.  Liquidity is 
accomplished by investing the City’s operating funds primarily in shorter-term 
securities and structuring the portfolio so that investments mature concurrent with 
cash needed to meet anticipated demands.  Emphasis should be on securities with 
a low sensitivity to market risk by considering the investment’s overall issue size, 
denomination, market of issuance and form of security. 

 
3. Return on Investments 

Investment earnings on the portfolio shall be tertiary to the basic requirements of 
safety and liquidity.  The investment portfolio shall be designed and managed 
with the objective of attaining a benchmark market rate of return throughout 
budgetary and economic cycles, commensurate with the City’s investment risk 
constraints and the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio.   
 

F.  Ethics and Conflicts of Interest 
 

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal 
business activity that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 45 May 2004 
Page 682

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



which could impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions.  These officers 
and employees shall disclose to the City Manager any material financial interests in 
financial institutions that conduct business within their jurisdiction, and they shall further 
disclose any large personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the 
performance of the City’s investment portfolio. 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 53637, deposits in financial institutions where a 
member of the City’s governing body or employees with investment decision-making 
authority serve on the board of directors or the specified committees of that financial 
institution are prohibited. 

 
G.  Investment Procedures 

 
The Finance Director/Treasurer shall maintain written investment procedures for the 
operation of the investment program consistent with this policy.  The procedures should 
include reference to: safekeeping, repurchase agreements, wire transfers, banking service 
contracts and collateral/depository agreements.  Such procedures shall include explicit 
delegation of authority to persons responsible for investment transactions.  No person 
may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this 
policy and the procedures established by the Finance Director/Treasurer. 

 
H.  Authorized Financial Dealers and Institutions 

 
The Finance Director/Treasurer shall maintain a list of financial institutions authorized to 
provide investment services.  In addition, a list shall also be maintained of approved 
security broker/dealers who are authorized to provide investment services to the City.  
These broker/dealers must be registered to provide investment services in the State of 
California and may include primary dealers or regional dealers that qualify under 
Securities & Exchange Commission Rule 15C3-1 (uniform net capital rule).  No public 
deposit shall be made except in a qualified public depository as established by State laws. 
 
All financial institutions and broker/dealers who desire to become qualified bidders to 
provide investment services to the City must submit the following: 

 
1. Audited financial statements 
2. Proof of National Association of Securities Dealers (NASD) certification 
3. Proof of State registration 
4. Completed City Broker/Dealer Questionnaire 
5. Certification of having read and agreeing to comply with the City’s  

Investment Policy and depository contracts 
 

I.  Authorized and Suitable Investments 
 

1. Authorized Investments 
 

The City of Folsom is authorized to invest in securities allowable under the 
California State Government Code.  Investments that are authorized and suitable 
for inclusion in the City’s investment portfolio are listed in the table below.  A 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 46 May 2004 
Page 683

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



complete copy of Government Code Sections 53600-53609, Investment of 
Surplus, and Section 16429.1 Local Agency Investment Fund are provided in 
Exhibits 1 and 2 of this policy. 

 
Investment Type Conditions and Limitations Term 

California State 
Treasurer’s Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF) 

Portfolio Limit:  80% n/a 

Bonds Issued by the City Portfolio Limit: 80% 5 Years 
U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes 
and Bonds 

Portfolio Limit:  80% 5 Years 

Registered State Warrants, 
Treasury Notes or Bonds 
of the State 

Portfolio Limit:  20% 5 Years 

Bonds, Notes or Warrants 
of any Local Agency 
within the State 

Portfolio Limit:  20% 5 Years 

Federal Agency Securities 
or U.S. Government 
Sponsored Enterprise 
Obligations  

Portfolio Limit:  50% with no more than 
20% invested in a single agency 
 

5 years 

Bankers Acceptances Portfolio Limit:  40% and no more than 
10% in a single commercial bank 

180 
Days 

Commercial Paper Portfolio Limit:  15% and no more than 
10% in a single corporation.  An additional 
15%, or a total of 30%, may be invested in 
commercial paper if the dollar weighted 
dollar average maturity of the entire 
amount does not exceed 31 days. 
 
Conditions:  Must be a domestic 
corporation with assets in excess of $500 
million and have an investment grade 
rating of A or higher on its debt other than 
commercial paper. 

270 
Days 

Negotiable Certificates of 
Deposit 

Portfolio Limit:  30% 
 
Conditions:  Maximum dollar amount of 
deposits are subject to various conditions 
set forth in Government Code Section 
53678.  Must be a national or state 
chartered bank, state or federal association, 
or a state licensed branch of a foreign bank 

5 Years 

Repurchase Agreements Portfolio Limit: 20% 
 
Conditions:  A master repurchase 
agreement is required, with securities 

1 year 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 47 May 2004 
Page 684

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



underlying the agreement valued daily at 
102 percent.  Securities limited to U.S. 
Treasury and Federal Agencies. 

Reverse Repurchase 
Agreements 

Portfolio Limit: 20% 
 
Conditions:  Requires prior approval of the 
governing body.  Various conditions apply 
if the security was not owned or 
specifically committed to purchase prior to 
12/31/1994, as set forth in Govt. Code 
Section 53601. 

92 Days 

Medium Term Notes Portfolio Limit:  30% 
 
Conditions:  May invest in domestic 
corporations or financial institutions only 
and must be rated “A” or better by a 
nationally recognized rating service. 

5 Years 

Mutual Funds Portfolio Limit:  20%, no more than 10% 
in a single mutual fund. 
 
Conditions:  Must invest in securities 
authorized by Govt. Code Section 53601 
(a-j, m, n).  Must have highest letter and 
number rating by at least two nationally 
recognized rating agencies, and must have 
investment advisor registered with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission and 
at least 5 years experience. 

n/a 

Monies Held by Trustee or 
Fiscal Agent 

Conditions:  Pledged for payment of bonds, 
other indebtedness, lease obligations, 
installment sale, and certificates of 
participation or other agreement of a local 
agency invested with the statutory 
provisions governing the issuance of the 
indebtedness. 

Per 
Bond 
Issue 

Notes, Bonds or 
Obligations for Purpose of 
Securing Local Agency 
Deposits 

Conditions:  Must at all times be secured 
by first priority interest in securities listed 
in Government Code Section 53651.  
Market value must be at least equal to 
requirements set out in Section 53652. 

5 Years 

Mortgage Backed or 
Consumer Pass-through 
Securities 

Limitation: 20% of portfolio 
 
Conditions:  Must have an investment 
grade rating of at least AA with the issuer’s 
other debt rated at least A by a nationally 
recognized rating agency.   

5 Years 

 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 48 May 2004 
Page 685

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



2. Diversification 
To mitigate credit risk in the investment portfolio, the City shall diversify 
investments by security type and issuer.  With the exception of U.S. Treasury 
securities, the Local Agency Investment Fund and bonds issued by the City, no 
more than 50% of the City’s total investment portfolio shall be invested in a 
single security type or with a single issuer.   

 
3. Maximum Maturities 

The investment portfolio shall be structured so that securities mature to meet the 
City’s anticipated cash flow requirements.  The City shall maintain a minimum of 
50 percent of the investment portfolio in securities with a maturity of one year or 
less as required by Municipal Code Section 3.30.020.  Investments with a 
maturity of more than five-years must be specifically authorized by the City 
Council no less than three months prior to the purchase of such an investment as 
required by the Government Code. 
 

 4. Prohibited Investments 
Investments in inverse floaters, range notes or mortgage derived interest-only 
strip securities are prohibited as set forth in Government Code Section 53601.6.  
Also prohibited are investments in any security that could result in zero interest 
accrual if held to maturity.  A local agency may hold previously purchased 
prohibited investments until their maturity dates. 

 
J.  Investment Pools/Mutual Funds Due Diligence 

 
A thorough evaluation of an investment pool or mutual fund is required prior to 
investing, and on a continual basis, to ascertain the following: 
 
1. A description of eligible investments, and a written statement of investment 

policy and objectives. 
2. A description of interest calculations and distribution method, and how gains and 

losses are treated. 
3. A description of how securities are safeguarded (including the settlement 

process), and how often the securities are priced and the program audited. 
4. A description of who may invest in the program, how often, what size deposits 

and withdrawals are allowed. 
5. A schedule for receiving statements and portfolio listings. 
6. Whether reserves, retained earnings, etc. are utilized by the pool/fund. 
7. A fee schedule, including when and how it is assessed. 
8. Whether the pool/fund is eligible for the investment of bond proceeds and/or shall 

it accept such proceeds. 
 

K.  Collateralization 
 

Collateralization is required for investments in repurchase agreements.  To anticipate 
market changes and provide a level of security for all funds, a collateralization level of 
102% of daily market value of principal and accrued interest is required.  Collateral is 
limited to the following types of securities: 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 49 May 2004 
Page 686

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 
1. United States Treasury securities, certificates of indebtedness or those for which 

the full faith and credit of the United States is pledged for the payment of 
principal and interest. 

2. Securities issued by United States Federal Agencies or U.S. Government 
Sponsored Enterprises 

 
L.  Safekeeping and Custody 

 
All investment transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements, entered into 
by the City shall be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis.  Securities 
shall be held by a third party custodian designated by the Finance Director/Treasurer and 
evidenced by safekeeping receipts. 

 
M.  Internal Controls 

 
The Finance Director/Treasurer shall maintain a written system of internal controls over 
investments designed to prevent losses of public monies from fraud, error, theft or 
misuse.  The Finance Director/Treasurer shall provide for an annual process of 
independent review by an external auditor to ensure compliance with the internal control 
system. 

 
N.  Performance Standards 

 
The investment portfolio shall be managed with the objective of obtaining a market-
average rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, commensurate with the 
City’s investment risk constraints and cash flow needs.   
 
The City’s investment strategy is generally passive, and securities shall not be sold prior 
to maturity with the following exceptions: 
 
1. To minimize the loss of principal from a declining credit security 
2. To swap a security to improve quality, yield or portfolio target duration 
3. To meet portfolio liquidity needs 
 
Given this strategy, the basis used to determine whether an appropriate rate of return is 
being achieved shall be to identify a benchmark comparable to the duration or the 
average weighted maturity of the investment portfolio for the period evaluated. 

 
O.  Reporting 

 
The Finance Director/Treasurer shall provide monthly investment reports to the City 
Council on a quarterly basis.  The investment reports shall include the elements required 
by California Government Code Section 53646 and Municipal Code Section 3.30.030.  
The investment reports should also include information on the fixed income markets and 
economic conditions, changes in the portfolio structure and investment strategies.  
Schedules in the report should include: 

 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 50 May 2004 
Page 687

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



1. Individual securities held, by authorized investment category 
2. Par value, amortized book value and market value 
3. Average life and final maturity of investments listed 
4. Coupon, discount or earnings rate 
5. Interest earnings to date 
6. Average portfolio weighted yield 
7. Percentage of portfolio represented by each investment category 
8. Investment transactions 

 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 51 May 2004 
Page 688

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 
XI. Financial Reporting  

 
Clear, accurate and understandable financial reporting provides accountability over all 
components of the City’s financial affairs and ensures compliance with applicable 
statutory and other regulatory requirements.  Financial reports shall meet requirements 
established by various governmental regulatory oversight organizations.  Financial 
reports that are understandable by the public shall also be generally available.  
 

A.  Accounting Practices 
 
The City shall establish accounting practices that conform to Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as set forth by the authoritative standard setting body 
for units of local government.  
 
B.  Annual Financial Audit 

 
As required by Folsom Municipal Code Section 3.02.160, an annual audit shall be 
performed by an independent certified public accounting firm.  An official 
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) shall be issued no later than 6 months 
following year-end.  The CAFR shall contain the independent auditor’s report and 
financial statements of the City, along with operating results, statistical and 
demographic information about the City.  This report shall be prepared under the 
guidelines of GAAP and the GFOA for Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 
Financial Reporting Program.  A management letter, the by-product of an annual audit, 
shall be provided by the independent certified public accounting firm no later than 
March 31.  
 
C.  Quarterly Financial and Management Report 
 
As required by Folsom Municipal Code Section 3.02.050 (b), the City Manager shall 
submit a quarterly financial and management report to the City Council within 30 days 
from the end of each quarter. 
 
D.  Availability of Reports to the Public 
 
The CAFR and other financial reports shall be available for public inspection and, to the 
extent practicable, shall be posted on the City website.  

City of Folsom Financial Policies 52 May 2004 
Page 689

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 
XII. Productivity 

 
The City shall constantly monitor and review methods of service delivery to ensure that 
services continue to be delivered in the most cost-effective manner possible.  The review 
process shall encompass a wide range of productivity considerations, including:  
 
A.  Technology 
 
Evaluating and implementing appropriate technology to improve customer service and 
productivity. 

 
B.  Contracting for Services 

 
Evaluating the ability of the private sector to perform city services at a similar or 
expanded service level at a lower cost. 
 
C.  Customer Service 
 
Evaluating and implementing changes to business systems to enhance service to the 
residents, businesses and developers that interact with City government.  Efforts to 
streamline and eliminate duplicative review process shall be a high priority.  
 
D.  Training 

 
Identifying and budgeting for training that shall enhance service delivery and reduce 
cost of providing services by developing the skills and abilities of all City employees. 

 
E.  Performance Measurement 
 

Employees at all levels of City government shall be evaluated on a regular basis.  The 
City is committed to being a high performing organization, and all efforts shall be made 
to improve the productivity of the City’s programs and its employees through 
performance measurement.  The City is committed to continuous improvement of 
productivity and service through analysis and measurement of actual performance 
objectives and customer feedback. 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 53 May 2004 
Page 690

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 
XIII. Risk Management 
 

Continuing growth in the City’s assets and operations increases the possibility of 
significant property losses as well as exposure to liability to third parties for injuries to 
person or property.  In recognition of this, the City has adopted a policy of professional 
and prudent management of risk exposures.  Prudent risk management program 
objectives are as follows:  
 
A.  Insurance 
 

The City shall maintain worker’s compensation insurance as required by law, shall 
insure its real property, vehicles and other capital assets, and shall participate in a 
general liability insurance program (through self-insurance or participation in an 
appropriate insurance pool.)  
 
B.  Safety Training and Risk Management 

 
The City shall train its work force on safety measures and shall institute all practical 
measures to eliminate or control injury to persons, loss to property or other loss-
producing conditions.  
 
C.  Third Party Indemnification 

 
Whenever appropriate, the City shall shift liability for injury to property or person to 
third parties through appropriate indemnification language in contracts or entitlements 
issued by the City.  The City shall require insurance in forms satisfactory to the City 
Attorney and with carriers of approved standing prior to executive of any contract.  The 
City shall also require the right to audit all provisions of contracts, to review any 
financial /escrow accounts, bank letters of credit or other credit instruments, and the 
right to require complete financial reports if appropriate for the situation. 

 
D.  Emergency Operations Plan 
 
The City shall implement an Emergency Operations Plan consistent with regional, state 
and federal requirements.  To the extent possible, the City shall cooperate with regional 
agencies in preparing for emergency situations and shall endeavor to share emergency 
equipment and facilities to the extent practicable.  Appropriate City personnel and 
officials shall be trained in the conduct of emergency operations procedures.  
 
 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 54 May 2004 
Page 691

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



Appendix A 
 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 55 May 2004 
Page 692

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



Appendix B 
 
 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 56 May 2004 
Page 693

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



Appendix C 
 

City of Folsom Financial Policies 57 May 2004 
Page 694

12/12/2023 Item No.17.



 

 

Folsom City Council 
Staff Report 

  

 

1 

 

MEETING DATE: 

 

12/12/2023 

SECTION: 

 

Elections 

SUBJECT: Selection of Mayor and Vice Mayor for 2024 

 

FROM: City Clerk's Department 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council select a Mayor and Vice Mayor for 2024. 

 

 

BACKGROUND / ISSUE 

 

The Mayor and Vice Mayor serve at the pleasure of the City Council, with the Vice Mayor 

authorized to possess and perform the duties of the Mayor in the absence of the Mayor.  

Traditionally, the City Council selects a Mayor and Vice Mayor each December to serve for the 

following calendar year.   

 
 

POLICY/ RULE 

 

Folsom Charter sections 2.03 and 2.05 establish the selection of the Mayor and Vice Mayor by 

the City Council.    

 

The Mayor’s primary responsibilities include: 

 Presiding at meetings of the Council; 

 Meeting regularly and as appropriate with the City Manager to provide policy 

guidance relative to the actions of the Council, expressing the desires of the Council 

and its members, and monitoring the administrative implementation of Council 

policies; 

Page 695

12/12/2023 Item No.18.



 2

 Recommending City policy, legislation, and programs, subject to approval by a 

majority of the City Council;  

 Representing the City for ceremonial purposes; 

 Represent the City in intergovernmental relations, personally or by a designated 

representative with the concurrence of the Council; and 

 Establishing and dissolving limited-term ad hoc committees, subject to the approval 

of the Council 

 

The Vice Mayor’s primary responsibility is to perform the Mayor’s duties in the Mayor’s 

absence. 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

None  

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Christa Freemantle, CMC 

City Clerk 

 

Page 696

12/12/2023 Item No.18.


	Top
	12/12/2023 Item No.1.	Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking Authority Monthly Investment Reports for the Month of September 2023
	12-12 Staff Report - City Investment Report Jun - Sep 23 Qtr 1 FY24.final combined for packet

	12/12/2023 Item No.2.	Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2024
	12-12-23 Staff Report Res 11147 and Res 011 - includes both resos and attachment pages_archive
	12-12-23 Staff Report RES 11147 and 001 - Attachment 3+ for packet

	12/12/2023 Item No.3.	Resolution of Commendation Honoring Kikkoman Foods on their 25th Anniversary
	12-12-23 Kikkoman Resolution of Commendation

	12/12/2023 Item No.4.	Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming December 16, 2023 as Wreaths Across America Day
	12-12-23 Proclamation re Wreaths Across America_archive

	12/12/2023 Item No.5.	Declaration of the Folsom City Council Reaffirming Its Commitment to Promoting an Inclusive, Safe Environment For All
	12-12-23 Declaration Reaffirming Commitment to Promoting Inclusive Safe Environment_archive

	12/12/2023 Item No.6.	Receive and File SB-165 Annual Reports for Community Facilities Districts No. 13, No. 14, No. 2013-1, No. 16, No. 17, No. 18, No. 19, No. 20, No. 21, No. 22, and No. 23 to Comply with the Local Agency Special Tax Bond and Accountability Act
	12-12-23 Staff Report SB 165 Annual Report FY 22-23
	20231206160426

	12/12/2023 Item No.7.	Resolution No. 11134 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Sewer Easement and Maintenance Agreements between the Property Owners of 115 Natoma Street, 210 Natoma Street, 216 Natoma Street, 308 Natoma Street, 310 Natoma Street, and 312 Natoma Street and the City of Folsom for the Construction of the Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and Replacement Project and Appropriation of Funds
	12-12 Staff Report RES 11134 -Natoma Street Easements - final - scan version

	12/12/2023 Item No.8.	Resolution No. 11135 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Purchase Agreement with 911 Vehicle for Full Emergency Response Equipment and Emergency Lighting Installation for Four Fire Department Dodge Ram Pickup Trucks
	12-12 Staff Report RES 11135- Four Fire Department Dodge Ram Pickup Trucks - scan version

	12/12/2023 Item No.9.	Resolution No. 11136 – A Resolution Accepting the AB1600 Development Fees Annual Report for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2023
	12-12-23 Staff Report and Res 11136 for packet
	20231206162950

	12/12/2023 Item No.10.	Resolution No. 11137 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Causey Consulting for Professional Consulting Services for the Preparation of the Sewer System Management Plan and Audit for Compliance with Statewide Waste Discharge Requirements
	12-12 Staff Report RES 11137 - Causey Consulting for the Sewer System Management Plan_archive

	12/12/2023 Item No.11.	Resolution No. 11141 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to execute a Communications Site License Agreement with Comcast Cable Communications Management, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company, at 403 Stafford Street
	12-12 Staff Report RES 11141 - Communications Site License Agreement with Comcast Cable.final_archive

	12/12/2023 Item No.12.	Resolution No. 11143 – A Resolution Rejecting All Proposals for Maintenance of Parks, Trails & Pet Stations, and Public Works Areas
	12-12-23 Staff Report RES 11143 - Rejecting all Proposals Maintenance Parks and Public Work Areas.final_archive

	12/12/2023 Item No.13.	Resolution No. 11144 -  A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Public Trail Easement for the Oak Parkway Trail between the Property Owner of 339 Montrose Drive and the City of Folsom
	12-12-23 Staff Report Res 11144 - Montrose Drive Trail Easement 339 Montrose Drive

	12/12/2023 Item No.14.	Resolution No. 11145 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Public Trail Easement for the Oak Parkway Trail between the Property Owner of 337 Montrose Drive and the City of Folsom
	12-12-23 Staff Report RES 11145 - 337 Montrose Dr Trail Easement.final_archive

	12/12/2023 Item No.15.	Resolution No. 11146 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Public Trail Easement for the Oak Parkway Trail between the Property Owner of 341 Montrose Drive and the City of Folsom
	12-12-23 Staff Report RES 11146 - Montrose Drive Trail Easement - 341 Montrose Drive_archive

	12/12/2023 Item No.16.	Resolution No. 11139 - A Resolution to Adopt an Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan EIR/EIS and Approve a Specific Plan Amendment to Modify FPASP Table A.7 (Transportation, Communication, Infrastructure) to Add “Electronic Readerboard Sign” as a Conditionally Permitted Use on a Specific Property (Parcel 61 - APN No. 072-3190-052) Located at the Southwest Corner of the Intersection of U.S. Highway 50 and East Bidwell Street within the Folsom Plan Area
	12-12-23.RES 11139 Continuation Notice for Readerboard item_archive

	12/12/2023 Item No.17.	Presentation on the City’s General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance (Reserves) Policy and Direction to Staff
	12-12-23 Staff Report - Unassigned Fund Balance Attachment 1 - Fin Policies May 2004

	12/12/2023 Item No.18.	Selection of Mayor and Vice Mayor
	12-12 Mayor and Vice Mayor Election.final_archive

	Bottom



